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DRUG PREVENTION, REHABILITATION, 
INTERDICTION, AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 12, 1983 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
SELECT COMMITTEE ON NARCOTICS ABUSE AND CONTROL, 

Corpus Christi, TX. 
The committee met, pursuant to call, at 9:30 a.m., in room 221, 

Bay Plaza Convention Center, Corpus Christi, TX, Hon. Charles B. 
Rangel presiding. 

Present: Representatives Charles B. Rangel, Sam B. Hall, Jr., 
Solomon P. Ortiz, Benjamin A. Gilman, and Kent Hance. 

Staff present: Richard Lowe, chief counsel; Jack Cusack, chief of 
staff; Elliott Brown, minority staff director; Michael J. Kelley, 
counsel; and John J. Capers, chief investigator. 

Mr. RANGEL. Good morning, my colleagues and friends from 
Corpus Christi. We thank you for joining with us this morning, and 
we're going to see whether or not we can find some answers to the 
awesome problems facing our Nation today in drug abuse. 

The Select Committee on Narcotics Abuse and Control is in 
Corpus Christi because of the efforts of your outstanding represent
ative in Congress, Solomon Ortiz, who, I must say, more than any 
other member of the committee tried to get on the committee when 
it was reconstituted and brought a very special type of expertise to 
us because of his unique background and the fact that. he is one of 
our outstanding new Members to the Congress and especially to 
this committee. 

Because of that, we were persuaded to change our schedule to 
make certain that we gave the priority to Corpus Christi that he 
thought it deserved. 

We recently completed hearings in October in Florida and 
learned of the enormous influx of drugs that are coming in from 
South America where we also made a study and were notified, in 
no small terms, that we should expect bumper crops of marijuana 
and cocaine. 

The success that we've had in Florida, there's been some ques
tion as to whether or not it's just spread from the Floridian area to 
the east coast and to the gulf coast. And, of course,. we're ~nxio~s 
to see whether or not there has been an adverse Impact In thIS 
area. .. 

Our committee is also concerned with the amount of heroin and 
marijuana that is coming across the border. 

And while this committee is the first to admit that we've had our 
failures and successes in terms of our friends in Mexico, it really 
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doesn't help much. to see brown heroin and marijuana still coming 
across the border m unmanageable amounts. Mexico is one of the 
few countries to commit not only its resources but enter into bilat
eral agreements with the United States to m~ke it look as though 
we can have some type of objective eradication. 

We ~ant t? look at reports of heroin addiction in the Brownsville 
are~, IncludIng drug treatment and prevention activities in the 
regIOn and the need for comprehensive drug education. 

These are not theoretical concerns. In 1982 the last year for 
which figures are available, there were 1,735 drug abuse related 
emergency room episodes in Dallas, while in San AntonIO in 1982 
there were 1,226 emergency room episodes. ' 

The medical examiner in Dallas in 1982 reported 47 drug-related 
deaths. In San Antoni?, there were 46 drug-related deaths. 

These figures graphIcally show the seriousness of the drug abuse 
threat. 

After hearing from the mayor of Corpus Christi Mr. Luther 
J onE!s, we'll receive testimony from various Federal dfficials repre
~entlng the spectrum of Federal concern about illegal drug traffick
Ing .and drug use. The Federal witnesses will range from Mr. 
DanIel Hedges, U.S. attorney for the southern district of Texas to 
Rear Adm. William Stewart, the Coordinator of the National Nar
cotics BordeI' Interdiction System for the Gulf Region. 

From the~e F~de:r:al officials, we want information on the extent 
of drug trafficking In south Texas, the method of operation of the 
traffickers, and what ad~itional resources are necessary before we 
are able to make a dent In the problem we are facing. We particu
larly want t? have information as relates to NNBIS. It was formed 
fo: the speclfi? purp?se of interrupting and impacting the smug
~lI~g of drugs I~tO thIS country. We have questions of how effective 
It IS and how ItS functions differ from the other task forces that 
have been formed. 

One of the issues th~t w~ want to explore with the panel of local 
law .enforc~men~ officI~ls IS the extent of cooperation, including 
sharIng of IntellIgence Information that they've had with the Fed
erallaw enforcement officials. 

I might point out tha~ this committee has been disappointed with 
the degree of cooperatIOn that we've seen in Florida, California 
and other areas. ' 
. This ~f~e!noon we'll focus. on drug abuse treatment and preven

tIOn actIVItIes. From those WItnesses, we want to learn which drugs 
~hey encounter most frequently in treating drug abusers, what 
Impact the passage of the alcohol, drug abuse, mental health block 
g!ant h~s. ?n ~he availability of drug abuse treatment and preven
tIon actIVItIes In south Texas. 

Finally, we'd like to know what the witnesses would think of the 
~ederal drug strategy which has been created by this administra
tIon. 
Tomor!"~w we'll receive testimony from representatives of local 

communItIes ~nd sc~ool dist:icts to see the impact of drug abuse, 
an~, ~nce a&,aln, we 11 examIne the drug law enforcement issues. 
ThIS tIme, WIth Texas law enforcement officials. 

Our hearings will conclude with a panel of State representatives 
who are concerned about drug trafficking. 
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Since both the ranking minority member of our committee and I 
have served in the State legislature, we respect and appreciate the 
fact that so many of you have taken time out to share your views 
with us, because in the final analysis, you are faced with the prob
lems on a day~to-day basis. And we feel it's up to us to provide the 
resources for you to be able to do a more effective job. 

Before I call on Mayor Jones, I, again, would want to thank Solo-
mon Ortiz for bringing us here. 

I have to be very candid in saying that when we had our reap-
portionment in the State of New York and found out we were 
losing five outstanding world leaders, in terms of Congressmen, we 
were a little upset to find that the sovereign State of Texas was 
picking up three of them. [Laughter.] 

I'd like to say that the quality that you bring to the Congress 
makes the pain a little easier to bear. 

I'd like to recognize Benjamin Gilman, the ranking Republican 
member of our committee. 

[Mr. Rangel's opening statement appears on p. 135.] 

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. BENJAMIN A. GILMAN, A REPRE
SENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF NEW YORK 

Mr. GILMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I want to associate myself with your remarks and commend you 

f'Dr arranging this hearing on drug trafficking and abuse in the 
Texas gulf coast area. 

I want to commend our colleague, Co:ngressman Ortiz, for his ef-
forts in encouraging and helping to arrange for these hearings of 
our select committee to spotlight the drug trafficking problem in 
the Corpus Christi and gulf coast region. . ... 

I certainly welcome our good colleague, Kent Hance, In JOlnmg 
us today and thank him for taking time out from his schedule to 
participate in this hearing. ' . 

Narcotics trafficking and drug abuse has certainly reached epI-
demic proportions from the gold coast of Florida to the gulf coast of 
Texas, from New York to Los Angeles, throughout our Nation and 
throughout the world. 

Unfortunately, we find that we've only been making too small a 
dent in combatting this deadly menace that's been undermining 
our political and our economic and our social institutions and ,cre
ating havoc for our citizens, many of whom erroneously belIeve 
that the way to escape the pressures of society and to s~ek some 
form of relaxation is through the abuse of drugs. 

Out of a total population, I guess it's about 14.5 million in the 
State of Texas, it's been estimated that there are as many as 
700,000 drug abusers. 

Our Narcotics Select Committee has been investigating some of 
our Nation's hot spots in the trafficking of narcotics. Earlier this 
year, our committee held hearings on the domestic cultivation of 
marijuana in California, where our c01;1lmittee observed fir~thand 
the massive marijuana fields and the sophisticated operatIOns of 
marijuana growers in the northern California region. 

In our recent investigations in south Florida, we received testi
mony on the disrupting effects of narco dollars on local communi-
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ties and heard State and local law enforcement officials complain 
about the lack of cooperation with the Federal drug law enforce
ment agencies. 

During the summer recess, our committee met with the heads of 
the drug-producing nations in Latin America, where we tried to en
courage them to eradicate narcotics at their source. 

Today we'll be focusing our attention on drug trafficking and 
drug abuse in the Texas gulf coast area to determine, among other 
things, the magnitude of the trafficking in this region and the 
extent to which these drug traffickers are shifting their operations 
in south Florida to this Texas gulf coast region. 

The proximity of Corpus Christi to the border areas is a source of 
concern for all of us, and while the Mexican Government has been 
cooperative in their efforts to eradicate the illicit cultivation of 
marijuana, we have been receiving some disturbing reports of late 
of increased border trafficking in heroin, cocaine, and other dan
gerous substances. 

This committee and our colleagues in Congress are anxious to de
termine how we, as a nation, can more effectively combat drug 
trafficking, the sordid business activities that bring so much misery 
to so many of our citizens and how we can best develop more effec
tive drug prevention, better treatment, and better rehabilitation 
services, and programs to warn our citizenry, particularly our 
young people, of the dangers of drug abuse and to try to help those 
who have become dependent upon this deadly substance. 

Mr. Chairman, we look forward to hearing from our panelists 
from Federal, State, and local levels to learn of their efforts to 
combat drug trafficking and abuse and, most important, what we, 
as lawmakers, can do to assist them in their efforts. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
[Mr. Gilman's opening statement appears on p. 139.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Mr. Gilman. 
The Chair recognizes Congressman Kent Hance from Texas. 
As most of you know, all of us have legislative committee respon

sibilities and volunteered to serve on the Select Committee on Nar
cotic Abuse and Control. 

I'm happy on my Ways and Means Committee, which has tax ju
risdiction that one of my friends and colleagues on that committee 
~s Congressman Kent Hance, who is just joining with us today be
cause of his concern with this very serious problem. 

OPENING STATEMEN'f OF HON. KENT HANCE, A 
REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF TEXAS 

Mr. HANCE. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate 
being here and appearing with your committee, and also being in 
the district of my good friend, Solomon Ortiz. 

Solomon is doing an outstanding job for this committee and for 
this district, and I'm also honored to be here with Mr. Gilman from 
New York. 

I think that the problem of drug abuse is a problem that affects 
every person in this State and every person in this Nation, either 
directly or indirectly. If it's not directly affecting you, you're indi-
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rectly affected by the tax dollars that we spend, by the amount of 
money that we have to spend in rehabilitation. 

Hopefully, with some of the recommendations that Solomon 
Ortiz has come forward with, we can make prevention the No.1 
item of cure and adjust rehabilitation accordingly. It would save 
the taxpayers lots of dollars if we are able to do this. 

I appreciate the opportunity to be here and look forward to hear
ing each and every witness. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. Before we start our witnesses and before I recognize 

Solomon Ortiz for the purpose of making his opening statement 
and introducing the mayor, I would like to point out that the com
mittee has taken on a very ambitious schedule here for 2 days, and 
because of the deep interest and so many witnesses wanting to 
make a contribution, we're going to ask that the committee mem
bers, by unanimous consent, allow the entire prepared statements 
to be entered into the record and ask our witnesses whether they 
would consent to confine their testimony to 5 minutes so that the 
panel members will have an opportunity to question and get some 
of the answers to questions we have. 

I would like to point out that when the committee leaves, we just 
don't leave entirely because Congressman Ortiz has promised to 
have his staff to serve as a liaison to us, and if there are other 
questions, we have our chief of staff, Jack Cusack, our chief coun
sel, Richard Lowe, our ranking Republican counsel, Elliott Brown, 
and our staffs are prepared to receive information from those 
people who are not scheduled to testify but may want to make a 
contribution. 

Once again, I thank Congressman Ortiz for his efforts and recog
nize him. 

OPENING STATEMENT OF RON. SOLOMON P. ORTIZ, A 
REPRESEN1'ATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF TEXAS 

Mr. ORTIZ. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and good morning. 
I want to welcome Chairman Rangel, we pronounce it Ran-hel' 

[phonetically, Spanish pronunciation] in south Texas, Mr. Chair
man, and my distinguished colleagues to Corpus Christi. 

It is, indeed, a pleasure and an honor for you to be in our beauti
ful city today. 

I also want to welcome those of you who have so graciously 
agreed to participate in this most important venture. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for conducting these hearings. Both 
the residents of Texas' 27th District and I deeply appreciate your 
willingness and that of the Select Committee on Narcotics Abuse 
and Control to examine drug trafficking and abuse on the Texas 
gulf coast. 

I also wish to express my thanks to my colleagues for joining 
with me in examining the issues of drug use and abuse. 

The select committee's primary objective for the 98th Congress is 
the development of a Federal strategy for the prevention of drug 
abuse and trafficking. In its efforts to accomplish this goal, the 
committee has initiated and participated in several activities. 
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A series of hearings were held to evaluate the J?erfor~a~ce ~nd 
effectiveness of Federal drug programs and theIr admInIstering 
agencies. . ' .. . 

The committee has also studIed the domestic cultivatIOn of marI-
juana. ' 

Additionally, it has examined international narcotics p~ograms, 
drug smuggling in Florida, drug treatment and preventIOn pro-
grams, and evaluated education programs. . 

To assist in fulfilling the overall mission of the commlttee, we 
have scheduled these hearings in Corpus Christi, and we intend to 
focus on several areas during the next 2 days. 

We will examine drug smuggling and trafficking in south Texas 
and its relationship to the nationwide distribution system. 

We will study the drug addiction problem in south Texas and 
evaluate treatment and prevention programs. 

We will focus on soliciting information from administrators, edu
cators, and parents in order to develop comprehensive drug educa
tion legislation. 

Now, we are all aware of the growing problem in this area of 
narcotics trafficking and drug abuse. The problem affects every 
segment of our society from the very young to the very old. 

The recent bumper crop of coca plants in South America and in 
marijuana and poppy fields in Mexico, along with inadequate law 
enforcement at all levels and political instability in these countries, 
has led to the increasing supply of narcotics available in south 
Texas. 

Because of greater quantities, the price of these and other drugs 
is steadily dropping, thereby increasing their availability to a 
greater number of people. 

Unfortunately, we now have children 9, 10, and 11 years of age 
experimenting with drugs and alcohol. 

We all know that there is a serious drug problems in our coun
try. Previous testimony has revealed the need to educate our 
schoolchildren, an education that must begin early in their life. It 
should be a joint effort between parents and educators-it must in
volve the entire community. 

The question becomes, "What should be the curriculum, and 
when do we begin this educational process?" 

Hopefully, during the course of these hearings, the witnesses, es
pecially the educators, will provide the necessary guidance. 

AlJ.other problem in the area is the lack of available treatment. 
There are too few facilities to serve the many people requiring 
services and not enough money to treat them properly. 

It is my sincere hope that the proceedings toaay and tomorrow 
will assist the committee in gaining a better understanding of the 
serious problems in the area and provide input for finding a satis
factory solution. 

Again, I thank all of you for attending. With your help, I feel 
confident that this endeavor will prove productive and successful 
for all concerned. 

At this time, I would like to introduce a dedicated public official, 
my good friend, Mayor Luther Jones. 

[Mr. Ortiz' opening statement appears on p. 142.] 
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TESTIMONY OF HON. LUTHER JONES, MA YON Oli' CORPUS 
CHRISTI, TX 

Mayor JONES. Chairman Rangel and gentlemen of the committee, 
it's my great privilege as mayor of the city to welcome you to our 
city. 

I suppose, under these circumstances, mayors are supposed to 
brag a little bit, but you have told me that 5 minlltes is all we're 
going to have. Senator Truan was substantially worried about the 
30 minutes that was shown in the program, so I'll ,confine my com
ments to that 5 minutes. 

I don't think you can avoid thinking in terms of the beauty of 
where we are Bitting right now and the beauty of wher~ you stayed 
last night at the hotel. ' 

There's a lot of things that I could say about our city, but I think 
that Corpus Christi Bay, that 15-mile expanse of water, has had 
over 600 oil and gas wells drilled in it, that there's 200 gas wells 
and oil wells producing out there today, and when you get back to 
Washington-and I lived up there for 6 years, and I know how 
deep the snow gets in that part of the country-that I hope that 
you will remember that Corpus Christi and that beautiful bay 
down here produces a substantial portion of the gas that comes 
your way. We're proud of that, and we're proud that it's been done 
without any adverse effect on the environment. 

The citizens of this community have a substantial investment in 
this convention center, and to keep our city beautiful is one of our 
prime objectives. 

We're also proud of Solomon Ortiz. Solomon started his political 
career in Nueces County as a constable. He was elected to county 
commissioner. He was then elected as a sheriff. And he has never 
lost an election, and he has never lost his contact with his constitu
ents in our community. And we're extremely proud of him. 

We're proud that you saw fit to bring this committee to our city. 
The witnesses that are going to testify today in substantial detail 

on a number of items, but I'd just like to mention, within the 5 
minutes, a few. 

There's 1,250 to 1,500 heroin addicts with an average of a $350-a
day habit in Corpus Christi. There's seven deaths in this city that 
appear to be drug overdoses from January to October of this year. 

The Corpus Christi Independent School District drug policy insti
tuted in May 1981 has led to 42 suspensions of students for drug 
and alcohol abuse; 31 of these suspensions were marijuana related; 
6 were alcohol related; and 5 were related to drug paraphernalia. 

The Corpus Christi Police Department has made 1,362 drug-relat
ed arrests between January and November of this year. Forty per
cent of these arrests were associated with marijuana; 3 percent 
with cocaine; 3 percent with speed; and 4 percent were related to 
heroin. 

Our police department believes that, these statistics reflect the 
general ratio of usage of these drugs in the community and predict 
a rise in the use of cocaine as the drug becomes more readily avail
able and, tragically, more popular among even professionals in the 
city. 
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One last sobering local statistic, the methadon0 clinic for the 
Coastal Bend, an agency federally funded to treat 105 clients per 
month, currently treats 125. 

I would like at this time, if I may, to approach the bench and 
present to our distinguished Congressmen a key to our city, which 
can be worn as a tie clasp, and say again to you gentlemen, we are 
honored that you. come to our city and that you come here to listen 
to this problem as it affects us and as it affects the entire Nation. 

Thank you. 
[The prepared statement of Mayor Jones appears on p. 145.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Mayor, what were you saying about the reha

bilitation clinic? 
Mayor JONES. It is staffed for 105 clients per month, and it treats 

125. 
Mr. RANGEL. Well, do you receive any State or Federal assistance 

for the operation of this clinic? 
Mayor JONES. Yes, we do. > 

Mr. RANGEL. And has there been an increase in the number of 
services that you have been able to provide in the city of Corpus 
Christi for drug addicts or preventive care? 

Mayor JONES. No, sir. And the funds have not increased. 
Mr. RANGEL. And then, the reduction of Federal funds', you have 

felt the impact locally in your city? 
Mayor JONES. Yes, sir. And I would add that it's probably very 

difficult to determine the extent of that impact. The statistics I just 
quoted, I think probably, are the closest I can come to answering 
that. 

Mr. RANGEL. Has the State legislature attempted to make up for 
that shortfall in Federal funds? ~, 

Mayor JONES. To my knowledge, they have not, but I would-I 
cannot say positively. I know that it has probably been discussed. I 
also know that there are substantial other critical needs in connec
tion with State funds, such as, teachers salaries and highway re-
pairs. . 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, in the school system, do you have a preven-
tion program? 

Mayor ~TONES. Yes, sir, we do. 
Mr. RANGEL. And how is that paid for? 
Mayor JONES, It's paid for by the Corpus Christi Independent 

School District. And there are probably some Federal funds, but 
the extent of that, I don't know, sir. 

Mr. RANGEL. And the rehabilitation clinic that you have, that's 
the one you mentioned. 

Mayor JONES. Yes, sir. 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Gilman. 
Mr. GILMAN. Mayor Jones, do you feel that you are getting the 

kind of cooperation that you need from the State and Federal au
thorities with regard to your drug problem? 

Mayor JONES. I have had no report of anything less than com
plete cooperation, and I think we have it in this community. 

Mr. GILMAN. And are the agencies responding to you by way of 
material needs, funding? You state you're short on beds in your 
clinic and some of these other areas. Do you find the State agency 
responding to your needs? 
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Mayor JONES. I'm not aware of any State funds that are ~oming 
into that program. The speakers that follow ~e can specIfically 
talk to that. I would say this: There are no CIty funds that are 
going into that program. ? 

Mr. GILMAN. Well, how do you finance your rehab progr~m· .. 
Mayor JONES. It is Federal funds, and ther~ are UnIted Way 

funds also involved in this program. The UnIted. Way funds, I 
would say, are relatively small because the pr?b~em IS. rather large. 

Our total United Way budget is about $2 mIllIon thIS year for all 
60-some-odd agencies. . b t th 1 300 

Mr. GILMAN. I take from what you're tellIng us a ou 1 e , . 
drug-related arrests and the rise in cocaine use that you .n.ave serI-
ous drug abuse problems in the area. 

Mayor J ONES. We believe we do. . ' . 
Mr. GILMAN. Is this problem receiving the kInd of prIOrl~y that 

you would like it to receive at the State and ~he county level. 
Mayor JONES. I believe it is, sir, and I thInk that .your pres~nc~ 

here, I think the presence of ?ur State representatives here IndI
cates that it is receiving that kInd of attentIOn. 

Mr. GILMAN. Thank you. 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Ortiz. . 
Mr. ORTIZ. I don't have any questIOns. 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Hance. . 
Mr. HANCE. I don't have any questIOns. . . 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Mayor, I'm anxious to receIve thIS key that you 

brought us. 
[Presentation.] . . f C Ch . t' 
Mayor JONES. It's a symbol from the CItIzens 0 .orpus ris 1 

that says: Welcome to our city, a~d we hope you enJoy your stay, 
and we want you to come back agaIn. 

Mr. RANGEL. On behalf of the committee and our staff, we want 
to thank you for the courtesies already extended. Thank you very 
much. 

Mayor JONES. And one for you. 
Mr. GILMAN. Thank you. 
Mr. RANGEL. You've got to get elected, I guess, to get one of 

thp-se, Mr. Hance. 
Mayor JONES. Thank you very much. 
Mr. RANGEL. I assume Mr. Ortiz already has the key. 
Mayor JONES. Well, he deserves one. f 
Mr. RANGEL. We've had a change of scl;edule at the reque~t 0 

Congressman Ortiz, and so, the committee IS now prepared to lIsten 
to Senator Carlos Truan. 

TESTIMONY OF CARLOS F. TRUAN, STATE SENATOR, 20TH 
SENAT01RIAL DISTRICT, CORPUS CHRISTI, TX 

Senator TRuAN.Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, members 
of the committee, and thank you yer~ much m~ own Cop.gressman, 
Congressman Ortiz, for this opportunIty and thIS courtesy extended 
to me to appear before you today. . 

I also want to echo what the mayor stated earlIer, and I want to 
welcome you to Corpus Christi and south Texas and the 20th Sena-

----~----~ - -
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torial District that I' am privileged to represent in the Texas Legis
lature. 

My name again, for the record, is Carlos F. Truan. I am the 
State Senator for the 20th Senatorial District of Texas, and I've 
served in the Texas Legislature for the past 15 years. 

My perspective of the subject of your hearings is grounded in 
both my chairmanship of the Texas Senate subcommittee on public 
health and my vice chairmanship of the senate education commit
tee. 

Because I thought that this perspective might be too narrowly fo
cused to tackle that pai't of the subject matter dealing with drug 
trafficking, as distinguished from drug abuse, I consulted with a 
number of experts. I picked the brain of people, such as, our dis
trict attorney, Grant Jones, and I consulted with Dr. Phil Rhoades, 
member of the criminal justice faculty at Corpus Christi State Uni
versity, as well as Dr. Fred Cervantes, a political science professor 
at Corpus Christi State University. What they told me has been in
valuable in helping me articulate the message that I am about to 
give you, and the message is: 

The Texas Department of Community Affairs estimates that over 
700,000 Texans are in need of drug abuse treatment. Over half a 
million young people, aged 12 to 17, are at risk of becoming de
pendent on drugs and require prevention services. And, as many as 
14,000 people, aged 12 to 17, may be added each year to Texas as 
they reach the drug-abuse age. 

I would give you no more statistics, as they will be covered in 
depth, I understand, by the director of Drug Abuse Prevention Di
vision and the Texas Department of Community Affairs. 

I was encouraged to read that our Congressman Ortiz plans to 
introduce legislation to promote drug education in public schools, 
because that is the heart and the soul of the feedback r obtained 
when talking to drug enforcement officials in preparing this testi
mony. 

One would have thought that law enforcement authorities would 
be heartened by the emphasis on drug law enforcement in the past 
3 years. There has be.en a 30-percent reduction in funds for drug 
prevention, and, at th;~\ same time, there has been a 30-percent in
crease to drug law enforcement. Universally, however, I find great 
dissatisfaction with this. Noone has told me that they had wit
nessed a reduction skewing of funds. Likewise, I find that the 
strongest proponents of drug abuse education in the schools are, 
indeed, prosecutors and law erlforcement officials. 

So, there is, indeed, no satisfaction, across the board, for reduc
tion of funds in this area. 

May I urge a balanced approach. That translates into no de
crease in emphasis on drug treatment and prevention services, and, 
in fact, an increase in funds for drug abuse education in the public 
schools as Congressman Ortiz proposes. 

Dr. Phil Rhoades tells me that when we get back to a sound pro
gram of sound drug abuse education in schools, the information 
provided should be less in the way of fear tactics and more in the 
way of accurate descriptions of the negative effects of drugs on the 
human body. He also emphasizes the need to expose students to 
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some education in law enforcement as part of the drug educational 
program in schools. 

I think that this is a very constructive idea worthy of your con
sideration. 

Pee:r group programs in schools have been proven to be effective, 
and education in schools should start in the fifth or sixth grades, or 
even sooner. 

Everyone with whom I have consulted, and, particularly, our dis
trict attorney, Grant Jones, from this county, strongly emphasized 
that there is a defmite relationship between alcohol abuse and 
drug abuse among many young people and that it would be evading 
the issue entirely and defeating our own purpose if we fail to in
clude alcohol abuse in any expanded educatio:;.:.p:r.ogram on drugs. 

In closing, let me again plead for a balanced approach. No one 
begrudges any money spent on law enforcemellt efforts to appre
hend and convict drug traffickers. However, we must dry up the 
future part of those traffickers by a comprehensive program on 
drug abuse education that begins in the fifth or sixth level, which 
definitely includes alcohol abuse and which also explains the role 
of law enforcement and obedience of the law in our society, so that 
our young people will comprehend the role of the criminal justice 
system. 

Likewise, no one can begrudge the spending of money on treat
ment and rehabilitation of drug abusers. But I think that we have 
neglected prevention and drug abuse education in arranging our 
funding priorities. 

I hope that this committee of the Congress will take the lead in 
rearranging those priorities. 

Thank you. 
[The prepared statement of Senato: Tru~n appears on p. 150.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Senator. . 
It shouldn't take political courage to make that statement, but I 

do know that it's more popular to talk about guns and police and 
prisons than it is to talk about preventing the need for kids to be 
involved in crime or drug abusers. 

Having said that, however, that flies in the face of the adminis
tration's posture, and that is that the emphasis is on law enforce
ment, And while there has been a reduction in Federal funds avail
able, the administration's position is that by having the block grant 
and having mental health, alcohol, and drug abuse dollars all be 
passed on to the State that those of you on the local level will 
decide your own priorities and where there is a shortfall, it should 
be made up by charitable contributions or, a word that Mrs. 
Reagan likes to use, volunteerism. 

Have you seen this gap in the reduction in Federal assistance 
being closed by State aid and volunteerism? 

Senator TRUAN. On the contrary, Mr. Chairman and members. 
We in Texas had, for too long, enjoyed a great prosperity in busi
ness as a result of our oil and gas revenues, but unfortunately, like 
every other State, we have felt the problems of inflation and the 
problems associated with the economy. 

We in Texas now are having to deal with more than a $3 billion 
drop in our estimated revenues, to the point where we were not 
even able to allocate the necessary funds this year in our biannual 
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session of the legislature in order to finance the needed increases 
in the salaries, just for teachers, much less providing additional 
moneys to make up for the loss of Federal dollars. 

We do not have, at the present time, the necessary financial re
sources in order to fund adequately those programs that have been 
reduced through the Federal budget cutbacks. 

Mr. RANGEL. Then, would you disagree with the administration's 
posture that drug addiction is a local and State problem and not a 
national problem? 

Senator TRuAN. I think there is no doubt that it is, indeed, a na
tional and international problem and that we may be able· to do 
some justice at the State and local level, but it needs a concerted 
and coordinated effort and primarily led by our Federal Govern
ment and the Federal Congress, and with the leadership of the ad
ministration, in order to tackle the problems that are far too big to 
stop at the border of a particular state or a particular local school 
district. 

Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Gilman. 
Mr. GILMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Senator Truan, the State has a great deal of discretion, of course, 

in how it uses a block grant money. When there was something of 
a cutback in the block grant money, did the State make an effort 
to increase its resources for drug abuse in prevention and educa
tion? 

Senator TRUAN. We were able to pass a number of bills into law 
that primarily led toward the trying to get people aware of how to 
deal with the problem at the local level. 

But when it comes to the money part, the financial part, our 
school districts have been hardpressed to keep up with inflation 
and the high cost of living. And. the property tax, the ad valorem 
tax, which has been the. primary source of funding at the local 
level for financing of education, has not produced the necessary 
funds to finance the management and operations of the school dis
tricts,much less t.rying to add additional moneys in this particular 
area. 

At the State level, we have tried to keep up with the obligation 
we have to finance about 80 percent of the cost of public education 
in the State, but, unfortunately, We have not been able to fund the 
program adequately of drug abl.~se education and prevention, prin
cipally because we do not have, at the present time, the necessary 
financial resources. 

Mr. GILMAN. When there was a Federal cutback, what I'm trying 
to elicit from you, was there any equivalent increase in State fund
ing for these programs? Was there any increase in funding? 

Senator TRUAN. There have been-there had not been an ade
quate funding for the program even before the Federal budget cut
backs, but the Federal budget cutbacks further added to the prob
lem. 

Mr. GILMAN. What did the State do to respond to that need for 
increased funding? Did they do nothing? Did they ju~,t leave it at 
the bare level? Did they decrease it? What was the State's ap
proach to the problem? 

Senator TRUAN. Let me say that we tried to attack the total 
problems of education in the, State. In my role on the education 
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committee, I recall trying to come up with the necessary funds to 
make up for the loss in revenues from the Federal budget or the 
Federal Congress. 

The unfortunate thing is that we have yet to address the particu
lar financial needs of public education in the State of Texas. We, at 
the State level, did not do justice to the financing this year of just 
salaries and maintenance and operation, and we still need to go 
back in special session, Mr. Gilman, and deal with the total financ
ing of public education. 

Mr. GILMAN. So, what you're saying, Senator, is that the State 
did not respond to the reduction and sort of left it at status quo; is 
that correct? 

Senator TRUAN. Well, we have had a problem at the State and 
local level with respect to the moneys that are available. We have 
depended, I guess like other States, on the Federal Congress, also, 
simply because our problem of drugs and the need for education 
and services are more than the present budgets have been able to 
adequately meet in meeting our obligation at the State and local 
level. 

Mr. GILMAN. At the State level, do you mandate a drug educa
tion program in the educational system? Is there a mandated pro
gram? 

Senator TRUAN. We had a law passed several years ago that 
would have r€'quired the program being mandated in the early 
grades in order to get our young people to understand, as I indicat
ed in my testimony, the evils of drugs and alcohol. 

And the unfortunate thing is that we have not had enough funds 
at the State level to give to the local school districts, and the local 
school districts have been hard pressed with their reliance on ad 
valorem taxation to keep up with the rising cost associated with 
public education. 

The public schools, just like the State, have been relying on the 
Federal budget in order to assist with those moneys that are sorely 
needed and, of course, are very much missed with the reduction in 
funds. 

At the same time, the Block Grant Program at the State level, 
has-is relatively new to the States, I assume, across the country, 
and we are dealing with the mechanics of how to implement those 
programs at the State and local levels. 

Mr. GILMAN. Well, essentially, it was intended to give the State a 
great deal more discretion in how to allocate the dollars coming 
back fr.om Washington. I wiould assume, from what you're telling 
me, you still have to work out the guidelines in order to get a 
better allocation of funding. 

Is that a proper interpretation of what you're saying to us? 
Senator TRUAN. Well, while that is still correct, the problems as

sociated with those funds is that they are less than what we were 
getting before, and the school districts across the State were oper
ating, for the most part, on a shoestring budget, with a few excep
tions of some affluent school districts that are allowed to increase 
their local enrichment moneys to make up for lack of State and 
Federal funds. 

35-5!~~ 0-84-2 
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Mr. GILMAN. But, essentially, you really don't need much fund
ing to ask your teacher to include in the curriculum some drug 
education program, do you? . 

Senator TRUAN. Well, you do need to hav~ the pr?per ma~~rIals 
and the proper preparation of teachers, whlCh requIres addItIOnal 
funding in order to do those things, Mr. Gilman. In order to be able 
to adequately carry out a program and not Just &ive j,t lip servi~e 
and not just put on a superficial program whIch wIll s~rve nobody s 
interests I think we need to address the problem wlth adequate 
funding in order to prepare the teachers and in order to prepare 
the materials, which all require money. . 

Mr. GILMAN. My time is running, and I just want .to state .thIS: 
Apparently, you've had that law on the bo?ks fo: qu~.te a whIle. I 
would hope that there had been some fundIng gOIng Into that pro
gram and I don't know that what has happened at Federal level 
would reduce any of that kind of funding. 

Senator TRUAN. What has been done at the Federal level has 
multiplied the problem, because we've already been strapped for 
funds at the State and local levels. 

Mr. GILMAN. What we have found in other areas is that the 
State education programs are not giving the kind of priority that's 
needed to these kind of programs that are so sorely needed. . 

And you pointed out that some of our law enforcement officIals 
continually point out a need for more education at lower level, and 
I would hope somehow that you and your colleagues could encour-
age that. . 

I know my time has run, and I thank you, Mr. ChaIrman. 
Mr. RANGEL. Are there any other questions? 
Mr. ORTIZ. I would like to ask, to what extent do we have such 

training at the public school system? How far do they go to enforce 
drug prevention in school? 

Senator TRUAN. I think the project at the State level has been to 
offer assistance to the local school districts, but with the lack of 
sufficient financial resources, the program has not been able to get 
implemented in the schools across the State as well and as effi
ciently as they would be if we had a total commitment in this area, 
both at the Federal and State level. 

Mr. ORTIZ. Do you think that there is a possibility that we need 
some type of curriculum in the school system? 

Senator TRUAN. Well, we need to have it put together. I think 
the Texas Education Agency will be testifying on what they've 
done and I know that both the Texas Education Agency and the 
Texa's Department of Community Affairs have programs that are 
being put together and have been worked on in order to help school 
districts across the State. 

I think we ll~~.d a total coordinated commitment, Congressman, 
and I would hope'4hat legislation would be approved by your col
leagues and would t)e funded adequately in or~er to make sure t~at 
everyone understariids the value of a preventive type program, In
stead of waiting u;htil there is some crisis to try to address the 
problem. 

Mr. ORTIZ. This is very true. 
Now, you mentioned something about the fifth and sixth grades, 

am I correct? 
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Senator TRUAN. Yes. 
Mr. ORTIZ. In some of the hearings that we have held, we have 

seen children at 9 and 10 years of age who are already experiment
ing with drugs. 

What we're looking at is legislation that would affect an earlier 
age, just like we teach a young one to brush his teeth, comb his 
hair, and salute the flag. 

I feel that we have a responsibility to teach children at a young
er age to stay away from drugs. If we can get educators to testify, 
perhaps we can get some more input. 

But you would be in favor of something like this. 
We're looking at a pilot program since it would be very hard for 

the Federal Government to mandate to the school district and to 
the State what to do and what kind of programs to put together. 

Senator TRUAN. I understand. 
The statistics point out that more and more younger children are 

involving themselves with drugs, and as a result, that carries on. 
And the problems in the future are liable to be even worse than 
they are now. 

And I think the program needs to be extended, if I may, even 
into the adult parents to make them aware of what their children 
are taking up in school, and, perhaps, it might make them even 
more aware of the need to have the yJnd of home environment that 
will bring about a greater awareness on their part that will tran
scend to their children. 

I happened to have authored the Texas Adult Education Act, and 
we ought to incorporate as much of this, also, into the adult educa
tion curriculum, if I may include the adult education needs of this 
state, as well. 

Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Senator. 
Mr. Hance. 
Mr. HANCE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I certainly am glad to see my former colleague. 
One thing that I would just mention, and I think it's good that 

you mentioned it is alcohol abuse. I think that when we talk about 
drug abuse some people have a tendency to forget that alcohol is 
also a drug that can be abused. 

We have seen more and more drinking activity by teenagers in 
the high schools, and now many States are moving to change the 
drinking age to 19 or 21. 

So, alcohol abuse is also an issue that I appreciate your address
ing. Thank you very much. 

Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Senator, for your contribution. 
. Senator TRUAN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman and mem

bers of the committee. 
Mr. ~ANGEL. The chair would like to call Mr. Marion Hambrick, 

the Drug Enforcement Administration, agent in charge of the 
Houston, TX area, if I might. 

We'll have a panel here, and we'll reserve our questions until 
after we've heard all the testimony. 

The U.S. attorney for the southern district, Mr. Daniel Hedges, 
also from Houston. 

The Regional Commissioner of Customs, Mr. Donald Kelly. 
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From the Eighth Coast Guard District, Rear Adm. William H. 
Stewart. Thank you for making the trip from New Orleans. 

And from the U.S. Immigration and Naturalization Service, J. 
William Carter, the Deputy Regional Chief of the Border Patrol. 

As I said earlier, we thank all of you for participating in this 
hearing, and we do have the written testimony which, by unani
mous consent and without objection, will be entered into the 
record. 

Vie do have a lot of questions that we would like to ask you, 
based on our experience in other parts of the country. For that 
reason, we ask if you could keep your testimony down to 5 minutes, 
it will give us a chance to get some of the answers of questions that 
we have. 

Let's hear first from Mr. Hambrick. 

TESTIMONY OF MARION W. HAMBRICK, SPECIAL AGENT IN 
CHARGE, HOUSTON FIELD DIVISION, DRUG ENFORCEMENT AD
MINISTRATION, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Mr. HAMBRICK. Mr. Chairman, thank you. I'm happy to be here 
and to represent the Drug Enforcement Administration today. 

As you suggested, I have a prepared statement. I will not at
tempt to read it~ but would like to make a couple of remarks and 
leave time for various questions from the committee. 

Texas is kind of unique in, one, its position in proximity to 
source countries for drugs, which makes us a prime transshipment 
area. If you will notice, very few other states have the proximity to 
Mexico and South American countries, which are sources, whic:h 
allow the drugs to come up through the land routes or through the 
air routes. We're very easily accessible. As well as the large coast
line we have. 

So, when we look at the source countries where most of the 
drugs are effected in the United States today, we will see that 
Texas is beginning to playa more prominent role. Or, at least, we 
feel it is. 

When we look at heroin abuse, there was a period in time when 
Mexican heroin had gone down as far as the amount of Mexican 
heroin being abused in the United States. However, today we are 
beginning to see somewhat of a rise in the availabiEty of Mexican 
heroin. We estimate that approximately 34 percent .of the heroin 
used in this country today is of Mexican origin. 

When we look at marijuana, there was a period in time when Co
lombia occupied the domestic market as far as demand and abuse 
in this country. That was for several reasons, in my judgment. One 
was the so-called paraquat scare, in which the people in this coun
try were afraid to smoke marijuana that had the paraquat. 

We saw a laxity in that program with Mexico during the previ
ous administration, and we've seen the Mexican marijuana re
emerge as a threat, again, to our country. 

We've seen the Colombian marijuana decline somewhat in avail
ability, and we think that this is due to the excellent program that 
the administration has in cutting off, at the choke points, the 
source countries; that is, the Coast Guard's efforts, the Custom's ef-
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fort~ in stopp~ng s?me of the large marijuana shipments that were 
comIng up, prnpanly, 0 th~ough the Florida coastline in the past. 
Ho~ever, we re begInnmg to see new and emerging trends where 

the ;;1.1r routes from South America through Belize into Texas was 
caUSIng Texas to be a transshipment point. . 
W~ are ~eeing .the saD?-e thin.g with the land routes through 

~exlco. We.re seeIng MexICO haVIng land smuggling to come on up 
Into the UnIted States. 

When we ~ook at cocaine, we feel that Florida is still the primary 
source locatIOn for cocaine coming into the rest of the United 
Sta~es. However, we have seen Texas, again, reemerge as a distri
butler. ~enter for cocaine. 

Now, I'm not trying to tell the committee that all of the coca 
sources of supplv, or coke dealers that have been located in Florid~ 
have m~>ved to Texas. We're not trying to say that at all, but we 
are sayIng that we have had the Florida violators cocaine viola
tors, rearrange. fo~ their smuggl~ng ventures to co~e in through 
Texas and be d~stnbuted from thIS point, or from Texas, into other 
parts of the UnIted States. 
N~w, w,e saw ad.ditiona~ evidence of that in several of the recent 

P~esldent ~ OrganIzed Cnme Task Force cases, which Mr. Hedges 
WIll mentIOn later,. that indicate that we do have some of the 
Cuban and qolomblan underworld community moving into our 
State and trYIng to get a better foothold on smuggling trends or 
the Rmuggling trafficking in through Mexico or the land and 'sea 
routes. 

We look at the dangerous drugs, and we find that we have the 
dangerous drugs, also, readily available. We see that mandrax or 
met~aqualone, whi~h is a heavily abused item in our country is 
comIng out of MeXICO where it's being illicitly produced from raw 
powders obtaIned from overseas. DEA has been working to try to 
cu~ the source off. We have not been totally successful at this 
POlI~t, b~t we. do haye sev~ral programs from Ian enforcement point 
of VIew In ~hICh we re trYIng to be more active in that respect. 

Mr .. Cha~rman, I could go on and on, but fOQ" the sake of time, if 
you WIsh, I 11 reserve the rest of my time for q\lestions. 

Mr. RANGEL. Very good. . 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Hambrick appears on p. 154.] 
.Mr. RANGEL. Fr~m the U.S. Attorney's Office of the southern dis-

tnct of Texas, Mr. Hedges. 

TESTIMONY OF DANIEL K. HEDGES, U.S. ATTORNEY FOR THE 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

. Mr. HEDGES. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate the opportu
nIty to appear before the committee today and want to compliment 
the coml11:Ittee on. the most important work it is doing. 
. Under InstructIOns from Attorney General Smith, every district 
In. t~e country created a law enforcement plan. We have seven 
crImInal enforcement priorities in this district. Narcotics is number 
one, and number one by a very wide margin. 

The Department of Justice, in the last 2% years that I've been in 
~ffice has s<?u!5ht t<;> com?at nar:cotics in two ways from, shall we 
.,ay, an ~dmmIstratlve pOInt of VIew. One of those is to increase law 
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enforcement resources. The other is to better utilize the resources 
that you have. 

I think both of those things have taken place in this district. Our 
office, presently, has 50 assistant U.S. attorneys. When I took 
office, we had 40. Our 25-percent growth over that 2%-year period 
of time is greater than that of any other large office in the United 
States, with the exception, if you wanted to guess what the exeep
tion is, and that's Miami, of course. 

We hope we're utilizing those additional resources in the best 
way possible. 

Some changes that I have made in the internal structure of the 
office. When I took this position, there was no designated narcotics 
unit in the southern district. of Texas. I immediately created such a 
unit. We have one very experienced prosecutor and three less expe
rienced prosecutors who are assigned to it. 

That, I would point out to the committee, is completely apart 
from and in addition to the drug task force. This four-person unit 
in our office handles only those narcotics cases which do not meet 
the guidelines of the drug task force. 

In March of 1983, we began operations of the drug task force for 
th.e southern district of Texas, and the committee is, of course, fa
miliar with its guidelines and the kinds of cases that it handles. 

It became fully staffed, and our staff is 7 prosecutors and 40 in
vest.igators. And that is a substantial addition. That is a tremen
dous amount of growth. 

The current inventory of the drug task force for the southern dis
trict of Texas is 10 investigations involving approximately 200 de
fendants. We've already had two indictments. One of those was 
Thursday, I believe, of last week. Nineteen defendants and massive 
quantities involved in each and everyone of these cases, large or
ganizations involved in each and everyone of these cases. 

And one point that, I think, bears on some of the testimony that 
you'll be hearing later on that's quite important is that 4 of the 10, 
including the one that was indicted last week, we've had signifi
cant, and I would say critical, involvement of State and local law 
enforcement entities. 

None of these cases, so far, involve Corpus Christi, and probably 
you will hear testimony from law enforcement officials here that 
they have not worked with us on any of these cases. They have not. 
That's just the cases that have come to us. So far, none of them 
have been Corpus Christi. 

Several months ago, I sent out a letter to all law enforcement of
ficials throughout the southern district of Texas explaining to them 
precisely what the drug task force is, precisely how it works, and 
inviting them, if they get any cases that come into their agencies 
that appear to fit the guidelines of the drug task 'force, to please 
contact us. We will not steal the cases from them, which is a con
cern, but we will give them whatever assistance they need, what
ever assistance they want. 

I fully anticipate that there will be some cases in the Corpus 
Christi area. 

l'd like to say a word of thanks to the Members of Congress, and 
all the Members of Congress, for the moneys that they've appropri-
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ated to the drug task force. It was needed. It's being very well 
spent, at least in this district, which, of course, is all I can speak to. 

We've gone from, when I took office, having no one assigned to 
prosecuting narcotics cases on a full-time basis to now having four 
people in our regular criminal division who are assigned to it on an 
as-needed basis and seven full-time drug task force prosecutors, 
which is a very dramatic increase. 

Just to touch on a few statistical matters, the current case load 
in the southern district of Texas, the criminal case load over the 
whole district, which is a 43-county area involving, virtually, the 
entire Texas gulf coast and the border up past Laredo. District
wide, 24 percent of the criminal cases involved narcotics. In the 
Corpus Christi division, 55 percent of the case load here involves 
narcotics. 

Also, very briefly, for the last 3 years--
Mr. RANGEL. Excuse me. I thought you were saying that you 

weren't getting any major cases, or any cases, out of Corpus Chris
ti. 

Mr. HEDGES. V'le're getting lots of cases, Mr. Chairman, It's just, 
so far, none of them that have met the guidelines of the drug task 
force, major organizations. There are plenty of narcotics cases here, 
a great number. 

For the last 3 years, the southern district of Texas, although it's 
only the eighth largest U.S. attorney's office, being half the size of 
the southern district of New York, less than half the size, and half 
the size of Los Angeles, has filed more felony cases than any other 
district in the United States. We filed more than New York City. 
We filed more than Los Angeles. We have filed even more than 
Miami. 

In the area of narcotics, we have ranked second only to Miami in 
the number of cases filed. So, there's been a very vigorous effort in 
this area. We're used to handling high volumes of cases. 

Now, we're going to continue to handle that high volume, but 
we're also going to try to shift the emphasis a little bit to get into 
these large organizations. 

Part of this new effort has been unprecedented cooperation be
tween Federal, State, and local law enforcement. 

A member of our advisory committee to the drug task force is 
Capt. Jack Curtis of the Department of Public Safety here in the 
Narcotics Branch. He sits with us on the advisory committee and 
gives us input from the State. As I mentioned earlier, the State's 
intimately involved in 4 of the 10 cases, State and local. 

Finally, just to touch on three of the major cases that have, in 
two instances, been tried and one instance only been indicted quite 
recently, these are extremely large cases. The Bushmaster case out 
of San Antonio had metharnlphetamines and cocaine being distrib
uted 'to several States, to at least seven Texas cities, including 
Corpus Christi. The Grouper prosecution recently with 45 some-odd 
defendants in Beaumont was an offspin of the Grouper investiga
tion in Miami. The Miami tie is there. There's no question about it. 

And the most recent case, in the Houston area, involved hun
dreds of thousands of pounds of marijuana being smuggled up from 
Colombia, and that was coming in all along the Texas gulf coast, 
including the general Corpus Christi area. 
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So, I don't think the time has been there to see the impact on 
the street. But the time has already been there in the few short 
~onths that this program's been operational to see that the impact 
IS there on some .of these major narcotics trafficking organizations. 

And we apprecIate the support that Congress has given us in this 
effort and hope that it will continue. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Mr. U.S. Attorney. 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Hedges appears on p. 166.] 
Mr. RANGEL. The Regional Commissioner of Customs, Donald 

Kelly. 

TESTIMONY OF DONALD F. KELLY, REGIONAL COMMISSIONER, 
U.S. CUSTOMS SERVICE, HOUSTON, TX 

Mr. ~ELLY. Than~ you, Mr .. Chairman. I very much appreciate 
appearIng before thIS group thIS morning. 

I've been around the Customs Service a good long time 36 years 
a good part of that time in management. " 

~ was re~ecting this morning that this is, I think, the fifth time 
thIS ~ear I ve appeared before a group such as yours, and this type 
of thIn~ nev~r ?a~ h~pp~ned before in my previous experience. 

And if thIS IS IndIcatIve of the concern being expressed at the 
Federal level what, I believe, has become a national emergency I 
can only applaud that and hope that your group and others in the 
field will act. 

I have responde.d in my ~ritten testimony to budgetary matters, 
staffing matters, Increase In the narcotics seizures in the area of 
Texas and the Mexican border and the gulf, so I will not go into 
those matters again in this brief time. 

We have seen, since the success of the Vice President's task force 
in Miami, a definite shift of narcotics threat to this area, contigu
ous areas, the gulf coast, and the Mexican border. This has been 
particularly noticeable in the number of air intrusions that we 
have ha? an~ the smuggling of h~rger amounts of marijuana in 
four-engIne aIrcraft all the way down to small aircraft and in
creases in cocaine being smuggled by air. 
T~ere . has been a general trend, also, in the heroin that has been 

~omI:ng In across the Mexican border, and the marijuana business 
IS gOIng up and up, going off the tracks. 

TJ:is is kind of cyclic, depending on the crops coming in down in 
MeXICO. 
~he~ it. comes to ~ow, we fight against this emergency, the first 

thIn~ I d hke to say IS I m not too bothered by the application of 
cuts I~ resource lev~ls because you will 'flot solve this problem by 
throWIn.g .mo.ney at I~. And the number of people we throw at it is 
not too sIgnIficant eIther because of the geographic problems in
volved. It's a vast area we have to cover. 

We could never line people up shoulder to shoulder to protect the 
border areas that we nee~ed to protect .. We'd need not orily the 
qoast Guard, but the entIre Army, MarIne Corps, and Navy be-
SIdes. - . 
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What. we have to do is manage this problem better, come to a 
high degree of productivity, and use some techniques that we 
haven't used in the past. . .. 

It is extremely important that we Increase our IntellIgence ac
tivities. I am very happy to report ~o yo:u today th~t the CustoJ?s 
Service has just recently added, natlOnwIde, approxImately 175 In-
telligence positions to oui effort. .,. 

FOr example in the- Texas area, we have Just-they re all In 
school in training right now-we've added 14 positions to our :e
gional staff totally dedicated to intelligence. In our area, specIal 
agent and charts officers, there are four of those, and we've added 
one intelligence analyst each. . . 

We have dedicated a good half dozen people to the IntellIgence 
slots down at NNBIS in EI Paso. We have, I am very happy to say, 
negotiated an arrangemen~ with DEA where we now have--:"we'r~ 
going to put three-establIsh a Houston desk, a Hou~ton IntellI
gence desk, in EPIC, HEA's intelli~ence center .d~wn In ~l Paso. 
And those people will be totally dedICated to prOVIdIng tactical field 
intelligence for this particular area. 

In addition to that, we have put in a hot line to our sect~r com
munications unit to Mexico City and made arrangements WIth the 
Mexicans to obtain narcotics intelligence from them. 

So we're proceeding down that route, I think, very rapidly,. and I 
hop~ that we will achieve significant results from that effort In the 
future because of the techniques we're using. . 

The' cargo smuggling is very acute fo: ~s, and w~ ~re trYIng .to 
approach that by a high ~egree of se!ectIvity. In addItIon to the In
telligence analysts I prevlOusly mentlOned, we have put on board a 
large group of operational analysts that look through all the do?u
mentation and other sources to create profiles and select out, w~th 
a high degree of confidence, those thing~ that we should be lookIng 
at that have a high potential for smugg~mg. . 

We are also running a lot more specIal operatIOns than we have 
in the past, particularly under th~ NNBIS umbrella .. And we are 
increasing our undercover operatlOn and our surve:J.llance tech-
niques. .. . . f . 

We are also moving rapIdly Into more sophIstIcated types 0 .In-
vestigative cases, particularly in the area of cu~rency. 'Ye're trYIng 
to combat the smuggling problems that are Infiltrating through 
bank analysis those things that will give :us a handle on tl,le .money 
that moves and the solicit trade and trYIng to approach It In that 
manner. . 

We're also switching our resources to become mobile, rather than 
static. We have created a special force, for example, across the 
Mexican border, a series of inspectional enforcement teams that 
are totally mobile. They move up an~ down between ports of entry 
and infiltrate and saturate one partIcular port of entry at a par
ticular time and then move on to another. 

So',, what I'm saying is that we're trying to us~ a system of m?re 
management and new techniques to approach thIS problem. I thInk 
that we are now starting to see some success. in that area. . . 

Additionally, and one thing that is peculH:~r to my operatlOn, IS 
cooperation with the Mexican Customs SerVIce. We have made a 
major effort. We have a national meeting with the Mexican Cus-
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toms Service between our top executives in Washin~on a~d :reirs 
every 6 months on a formal basis. There's one comIng up In anu-
ary in San Francisco. . t' I 

But because of my placement in th~ Custom~ organIza IOn,. 
meet with the Mexican Customs S~rvICe, sometImes", on a daII~ 
basis And this is starting to bear frUIt. We hav:e rec~ntly ID:a~e sev 
eral ~ignificant marijuana ca~es in which ~he IntellIgence In orma-
tion came from the Mexican Customs ServIce. . . 

And we are working right now on 10 s~parate pr?Jects V:Ith t~e 
Mexican Customs Service that are dedIcated to ImprovIng t .e 
interdiction of narcotics and contraband along our b<;>rder. 0he IS 
ver significant, called Operation Eagles. On our SIde,. v:ve ave 
decBcated along our side of the border, about seventy addItIo~al jO
sitions to' this particular one project, and they have commItte a 
similar number on their side. 'd f 

And this is where we have teams, mobile teB;ms, on our SI e 0 
the border in contact with mobile teams o~ MexIcan 9u~toms Serv
ice on the other side, all of whom are dedIcated to pICkIng up n~r
('otics traffickers. That's just started, and there's be~n ~everal SI~
clficant cases made in that area, and I hope that WIll Improve In 

the future. . thi bl d gain . S that's about the way we're gOIng at s pro em, an , a , 
I th~nk you very much for allowing me to appear here today. 

Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Mr. Kelly. 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Kelly appe~rs °Sn p. 171

t
?] A d th 

Mr. RANGEL. Can we hear now from AdmIral tewar. n e 
admiral not· only serves in charge of the Coast Gua.rd for t~e 8tp 
District, but you also are the coo.rd~nator for the VIce PresIde~lt s 
National Narcotics Border InterdICtIOn ~ystem for the gulfhre~IO~. 

So, as we go around the cou~try. trYIng to find out w 0 IS In 
charge, it's good to see someone In thIS area. 

TESTIMONY OF REAR ADM. WILLIAM H. STEWART, U.S. COAST 
GUARD COMMANDER, 8TH COAST GUARD DISTRICT [ALSO 
NNBIS COORDINATOR, GlJLF COAST REGION] 
Admiral STEWART. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members of the 

committee. I'm guilty as charged. [Laughter.] 
I'm Adm. William H. Stewart, the comman~er of t~e 8th Coast 

G d District and I welcome the opportunIt~ to dISCUSS 90ast 
G~:~a maritirde narcotics interdiction efforts wIth the ~ornmIdt~e. 

The 8th District encompasses most of the q-u~f ~f ~exICo an In
cludes the States of Alabama, Louisiana, MISSISSIPPI, Texas, CNe~ 
Mexico and part of the State of FI~rida. To support ~he oa~ 
Guard'~ drug interdiction effort in this area, the folloWlng mu!tI
mission assets are available: 10 82-foot patrol boats~ two seag~mg 
buoy tenders; 11 helicopters located at thr~e 10~atlOns, Hou::;ton, 
Corpus Christi and New Orleans; 7 fixed-wIng aIrcraft at Co~pus 
Christi and M~bile; and utility boats at 11 Coa~~ Guard ~tatlOns 
scattered along the gulf coast from Panama CIty, FL> to. Port 
Isabel, TX. Four medium-endurance cutter~ are. hox:neported In the 
8th District but these vessels operate prImarIly In the Yucatan 
pass, and they,are under the .oper~tio~al control of the 7th Coast 
Guard District headquartered In MIamI. 
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With these assets, I can assure the committee that the 8th Coast 
Guard District carries out a very a~gressive law enforcement pro
gram in support of maritime narcotics interdiction along the gulf 
coast. 

The 8th District also responds, in a timely fashion, to intelligence 
which indicates the presence of drug-laden vessels or smuggling op
erations. Our assets are also deployed on joint operations with 
other agencies from Federal, State, and local governments. We 
maintain a strong liaison program with the other Federal agencies 
involved in narcotics activities. Liaison officers have been detailed 
to the Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Forces in the core 
cities of Houston, St. Louis, and Atlanta to insure effective coordi
nation with each of these task forces, because each has jurisdiction 
over a part of what cOlnprises the 8th Coast Guard District. 

To insure cooperation at the State and local level, the Coast 
Guard is a member of the Law Enforcement Coordinating Commit
tees, operating under the direction of the Department of Justice 
throughout the entire 8th Coast Guard District. 

Since clarification of the Posse Comitatus Act by Public Law 97-
86, the Defense Department has provided the Coast Guard excel
lent support in drug interdiction. Their assistance is a welcome ad
dition in our fight against the drug smuggling. 

In the past several years, the drug smuggling problem by vessel 
in this area appears to have been reduced. I attribute this reduc
tion to the blockade of the Yucatan Pass between Cuba and 
Mexico, the primary route for smuggling to gulf coast ports. 

The National Narcotics Border Interdiction System advent has 
forced the maritime smuggler to other areas and other means, such 
as, aircraft or overland routes. 

In addition, as you have already mentioned, Mr. Chairman, to 
my duties as 8th District commander, I assumed duties as the gulf 
region coordinator for NNBIS on June 17 of this year. And I cer
tainly welcome an opportunity to discuss the NNBIS interdiction 
efforts with this committee. 

The gulf region of NNBIS encompasses 111,500 square miles of 
the Gulf of Mexico, Yucatan Pass, and the Caribbean Sea. It in
cludes the border areas of the States of Alabama, Louisiana, Missis
sippi, Texas, and part of the State of Florida. The center, which is 
located in New Orleans, Louisiana, is now fully manned. We cur
rently have 29 people on board from the Coast Guard, Customs 
Service, the Department of Defense, the Drug Enforcement Admin
istration, the Border Patrol, the Federal Bureau of Investigation, 
the New Orleans Police Department, and the Louisiana State 
Police. 

People from each of the Federal agencies, who have a role in 
drag interdiction, the national intelligence community, plus State 
and local representatives are actively engaged in a coordinated 
drug interdiction program throughout the gulf region. The bulk of 
the manpower is being provided by the Coast Guard, the Customs 
Service, and the Department of Defense. 

To insu.re coordination with the Organized Crime nrug Enforce
ment Task Forces set up last year for investigation and prosecution 
versus interdiction, a strong liaison link has been established with 
each regional task force coordinator. To strengthen this link, I, or 
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my staff, have personally visited and talked with the three core 
city groups in our area, St. Louis, Houston, and Atlanta. And Hous
ton and St. Louis personnel have visited the New Orleans center in 
order to become familiar :with our operation. 

To keep local enforcement agelll~ies advised of our activities, I 
have visited with the governors of Louisiana and Texas and will 
meet with the Governors of Alabama and Mississippi in the near 
future. I have asked each Governor to designate a contact point in 
the State agency responsible for drug enforcement. The State 
agents designated will provide us with the State and local intelli
gence needed to round out the picture. 

Information is exchanged on a continual basis with both the 
other NNBIS centers and with the El Paso intelligence center. 

EPIC's role, as I see it, will not decrease, but will increase, as 
they coordinate the nationwide assessment. They will provide the 
strategic information necessary to meet the changes in tactics by 
the opposition. Members of my staff and members of the EPIC staff 
have exchanged visits to ensure coordination with the valuable 
asset, 

Th9 overall NNBIS effort nationwide is intended to fulfill a need 
for a strong interdiction effort in the drug enforcement program. 
Obviously, overseas source country eradication programs in the De
partment of State are working to reduce the supply. Within the 
United States, domestic eradication programs under DEA, in coop
eration with the various States, are targeted to reducing home
grown marijuana and eliminating the illegal chemical production 
of drugs, such as, PCP. 

Domestic enforcement programs under DEA and extensive re
search and education efforts are working to reduce this demand for 
illicit drugs. 

All of these programs, Mr. Chairman, are producing results. But 
by their very nature, most tend to be long-term efforts, and the full 
effect and benefits may not be realized right away. 

In the meantime, it continue.s to be clear that strong, coordinated 
law enforcement action must be taken to interdict this flow of ille
gal drugs. And that, basically, is the NNBIS mission: Stop them at 
the border; do not let them across. And do so, by making maxi
mum, effective use of all of our national assets in a fully coordinat
ed, systematic approach to the problem. 

To give you a basic intelligence report on the gulf area, from De
cember 1982 until November of this year, the Yucatan was the pass 
of choice of the smugglers for maritime efforts. Thirty-five percent 
of all mother ships seized during the period Were seized in that 
area. 

Once in the gulf, the vessels could proceed almost anywhere from 
the southwest coast of Florida to the bayous of Louisiana, the coast 
of Mississippi, Alabama, or the coast of Texas to offload. 

Aircraft used the gulf as a primary smuggling route. Once over 
land, they proceed to r(~mote air strips in or north of the Gulf 
States to refuel or offload. 

This time of the year:. the traffic tends to be heavier because a 
new crop has been recently harvested and is ready for shipment. 

Seizures are up in recent weeks. Load size is down, down materi
ally, as the organizations have been forced to go to secret compart-
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ments and other methods of trying to defeat interdiction of their 
loads. 

We have not seen, interestingly enough, so far, a commensurate 
increase in air traffic as we have seen in vessel traffic. 

In recent NNBIS operations, participating agencies have success
fully interdicted four aircraft with loads of cocaine and marijuana, 
a container of marijuana from a commercial vessel, six vessels, co
caine concealed on a person or shipment of cocaine concealed in a 
water tank of a commercial vessel, and, most recently, two kilos of 
pure heroin. 

The total figure since June 17 reflects the following: 15 seizures, 
55 persons arrested, over 77 tons of marijuana seized, 1,806 pounds 
of cocaine seized. 

And I conservatively estimate, Mr. Chairman, that the value of 
those narcotics is over $260 million. 

And these statistics do not reflect the extraordinary cooperation 
and coordination and the extra efforts by all of the enforcement 
personnel involved. 

In a vessel interdiction case, air resources were required from 
DOD to successfully prosecute the mission. The request was proc
essed promptly. The Air Force aircraft successfully located the 
target for interdiction on that same day by Coast Guard cutter. A 
Coast Guard vessel, Customs aircraft, and DEA located and, subse
quently, interdicted mother ship in the northern gulf region. 

Our first 3 days of operation, two aircraft were detected by Air 
Force A WACS aircraft, wen~ followed by Custom's aircraft to Mis
sissippi and Texas. Both aircraft were carrying contraband when 
landed, one in tl ackson, MS and the other in Childress, TX. 

I could give the committee many other illustrations of mutual co
oper:;7Ltion between the participating agencies, but in the interest of 
tim~, I will simply say that this high level of coordination will sig
nificantly enhance our efforts, and we will be able to work a lot 
smarter than we have in the past. 

And that concludes my prepared testimony, Mr. Chairman. 
I would like to close by saying that I am very, very pleased at 

the commitment and the coordination and the support by all of the 
participants in NNBIS. 

Thank you. 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Admiral. 
[The prepared statement of Admiral Stewart appears on p. 178.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Carter, we haven't received any prepared testi-

mony from you. 
Mr. CARTER. Mr. Chairman, I apologize for that inconvenience. 

Fifty copies of my statement were submitted. However, they have 
been misplaced. 

I gave the one copy I brought to this gentleman here [indicating]. 
Mr. RANGEL. All right. Well, I assume the reporter will be using 

that. 
That's.no problem; Mr. Carter, we are glad that you are person

ally here because we do have a deep concern over our borders and 
the narcotics law enforcements over the borders, and we didn't 
even think you'd show up. 

So, tell us what you're doing and how we can be helpful. 



" 

26 

TESTIMONY OF J. WILLIAM CARTER, DEPUTY REGIONAL CHIEF, 
BORDER PATROL, SOUTHERN REGION, DALLAS, TX 

Mr. CARTER. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, I'm 
very pleased to be here today to testify at this hearing on the traf
ficking and drug abuse problems plaguing the Texas-Mexican 
border. 

I would like to submit, for the record, a printed copy of my state
ment and summarize to you orally today the key points of my 
statement. 

Mr. RANGEL. Without objection, Mr. Carter. 
Mr. CARTER. Thank you, sir. 
The Immigration and Naturalization Service is an agency of the 

Department of Justice and is responsible for administering and en
forcing the immigration and nationality laws of the United States. 
We have two basic functions: 

No.1, to insure that all persons entering into or remaining in 
the United States are entitled to do so under law; and 

No.2, to provide public services in the form of processing various 
applications for admission, petitions for naturalization, and similar 
other benefits under the immigration and nationality laws. 

While the Immigration and Naturalization Service has never 
been authorized by statute to enforce Federal drug laws, we do en
counter drug smugglers incidental to the performance of our duties 
regarding the entry' of aliens into the United States. This is evi
denced by the 1,516 narcotics seizures valued at $35,560,963 having 
been made by the Immigration and Naturalization Service along 
the Texas-Mexican border over the past 3 years. 

In fiscal year 1981, the Immigration and Naturalization Service 
was responsible for 624 narcotic seizures along the Texas-Mexican 
border. The value of those seizures was $7,697,434. A total of 82 de
portable aliens were involved in the smuggling of narcotics during 
that same period of time. 

In fiscal year 1982, 118 deportable aliens were involved in the 
smuggling of narcotics along the Texas-Mexican border. During 
this same period of time, 500 narcotics seizures were made valued 
at $9,994,373. 

In fiscal year 1983, the value of narcotics seized by INS along the 
Texas-Mexican border was $17,869,145. 

Drug traffic trends along the Texas-Mexican border over the past 
3 years include ,the smuggling of drugs across the U.S./Mexican 
border principally by vehicles through U.S. ports of entry and, to a 
lesser extent, by pedestrians crossing illegally between ports of 
entry. A significant amount of cocaine has been intercepted, both 
east and west bound across the United States, at Border Patrol 
traffic checkpoints, the smugglers in most cases being Colombians. 

In October of 1983, Border Patrol agents of the Sierra Blanca, 
TX, traffic checkpoint intercepted two Colombians in possession of 
13 pounds of cocaine valued at $418,000. Between the months of 
April through October 1983, agents assigned to the EI Paso Border 
Patrol sector were responsible for seizing a total of 45 pounds of 
cocaine with a street value in excess of $10 million. 

It is widely acknowledged that large numbers of illegal aliens are 
successfully eva(.iing apprehension by Border Patrol ,and other INS 
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officers. The administration supports a three-pronged solution to 
this problem. This approach, which was recommended by the Select 
Commission on Immigration and Refugee Policy, includes enhanced 
border enforcement penalties for employers who hire illegal aliens 
and legalization of certain aliens who have been here for a speci
fied length of time. 

The administration has not identified a specific level of resources 
appropriate for border control. We are, however, optimistic that 
the immigration reform legislation will come to a vote in early 
1984 and that suitable funding will be requested upon passage of 
that legislation. 

Cooperation between INS and other agencies and between INS 
and State and local law enforcement entities is excellent. 

INS cooperates with DEA and Customs in the El Paso Intelli
gence Center [EPIC], which maintains indices of alien smuggling, 
fraudulent documents utilized by illegal entrants and priva.te air
craft arriving from overseas. While having primary responsibility 
for the smuggling of aliens, INS has found that the mixing of drugs 
al'l:d people is the norm, even in the case of small smuggling oper
atIOns. 

Whether it is our Border Patrol agents on the ground, inspectors 
at the ports of entry, or aircraft operational surveillance, we rou
tinely receive support from EPIC and the other agencies, and, in 
return, provide information and assistance to them in our day-to
day operations. 

Cooperation with State and local enforcement agencies is the 
best it has been in many, many years. A directive issued by the At
~orney General in the previous administration has been interpreted 
In some areas to discourage such cooperation. This was clarified 
last year, and we have experienced a healthy responsiveness to our 
requests for assistance and initiatives for cooperation against smug
glers. 

It should be noted that the administration has not identified a 
specific need which would enable INS to be effective in apprehend
ing drug smugglers. However, through enhanced border enforce
ment, our mere presence would insure greater control of the 
border, consequently resulting in the detection and apprehension of 
larger numbers of suspected drug smugglers. 

The effect of the National Narcotics Border Interdiction System 
on INS has been of a positive nature. As a result of NNBIS, a 
better flow of information between agencies now exists. Working 
relationships between Federal and State agencies, as well as effec
tive coordination of intelligence data, is a direct result of NNBIS. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. , 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Carter appears on p. 192.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Let me thank you, Mr. Carter, and thank the entire 

panel for what appears to be some very positive testimony. 
An~, cert~inly, we are. impresse~ with the dedication that you 

frontlme unIts have had In combatIng what we all recognize to be 
an international problem. 

I gather from all of the testimony that you are pleased with the 
~ncrease that the administration and t~e Congress has provided, as 
l~ relates to Jaw.enforcement, and I thInk, notwithstanding the na
tIOnal coordInatIOn of the effort, that all of the particular units 
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have enjoyed an increase in moneys and staff and equipment to 
fight this problem. . . . 

I'm particularly impressed wIth the testimony relatIng to the 
amount of local and State cooperation with law enforcement offi
cers, and I hope that some of you will be able to remain until after 
they testify. . 

In addition to that, I'm impressed, as I always am Impressed, 
with the amount of cooperation that we're getting from the Mexi
can authorities as well as, in our travels, with all of the drug-pro
ducing countri~s. It appears as though we are receiving the maxi
mum amount of cooperation. 

Having said all of that, we're under the impression that there is 
little or no inspection of vehicles crossing the border, that, as a 
practical matter, that you shouldn't expect anything to be happen·· 
ing, especially with the individual experiences that we have on the 
Brownsville, TX border. 

We also hear that there are known drug traffickers on both sides 
of the border that, because of lack of operative agents, we don't 
have any DEA agents in Mexico, do we? 

Mr. HAMBRICK. Yes, sir, we do. We do have quantities, not as 
large, but we still have approximately 35 agents. 

Mr. RANGEL. But we do know who some of the big violators are 
on. both sides of the border. 

And notwithstanding the increase in effort, cooperation, and 
moneys, our constituents should expect a larger am~unt of. Mexi
can heroin coming into the United States. And certainly, wIth all 
of the great work that's being done by t~e task forc~ in Florida, I 
think the facts have shown that there s been an Increase, and, 
again, Mr. Hambrick went out of' his way, and we will, too, to say 
that we can identify it as being the same drugs that would h~ve 
gone into the Florida area. But for th03e of us who have constItu
ents the question still is 'outstanding: Should we expect a sharp in
crea~e to compensate for the decrease in the Floridian area and the 
eastern seaboard and in Texas? 

Now Mr. Kelly says that is not a question of throwing money at 
the pr~blem. We agree, so we're not going back and asking for 
more money. 

But somehow, we're going to have to come away from these hear
ings in trying to fmd out how long is it going to take, Admiral, for 
us to see some of the positive effects of these new techniques that 
we're coming up with, and is it realistic enough to testify that we 
can ever expect drugs from being stopped from crossing the border, 
that is as relates to the Texas-Mexican part of the border?' 

Now', I've seen it on the maps./Cve seen it by air. And I've see~ it 
personally. And I know it sou~as un-Am~rican to .say that you ve 
given up on it, but I don't see how effectIvel~ Wfi~ ~h01l:ld try to ex
plain to the American people that we are dOIng 'anythIng at all on 
that borderline. 

Let's start that question off, Mr. Hambrick, with you. Is there 
any testimony that you can give to allow this committee to believe 
that as it relates just to the borderline that we should expect any 
decrease in the amount of drugs that are coming across that 
border? 
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Mr. HAMBRICK. I wish I could give you a very positive answer, 
Mr. Chairman, and I don't have a positive answer at the moment. I 
do see some signs that are somewhat encouraging that we haven't 
had in the past. _ 

You spoke of the heroin availability. I think that if we look back 
at the previous Mexican administration, we saw a laxity in their 
program on the poppy eradication. I think we began to see an in
crease, a slow increase, in the availability of opium in Mexico. -

Mr. RANGEL. Now, I'm going to Iv.Iexico this evening for dinner 
so I want to take a little risk in my statement, but I don't recall, i~ 
the last 4 years, anyone ever telling the Congress that they were 
not getting cooperation in the past from the Mexican Government. 
All I've been hearing is about this new cooperation we're getting 
from the new Mexican administration. 

I've been in the Congress now for 14 years, and no one has ever 
said that we're riot getting the maximum amount of cooperation 
from the Mexican authorities, which means, you know, that maybe 
the next Mexican administration is going to do better than this 
one. 

But that's not the point. My point is that: What positive evidence 
ca~ you ~ve us based on the Border Patrol O:r interdiction 0: any
thIng that s come up new, that we should expect a decrease In the 
amount of drugs crossing that border? 

Mr. HAMBRICK. As I mentioned a while ago, Mr, Chairman I 
think the things that we're the most hopeful of, and let me spe~_k 
to the Mexican side for a moment, is, one, the new attitude by the 
ne,,: adminis~ration. Yl e've. seen very strong eyidence that they are, 
agaIn, spraYIng. We:::-e beIng allowed to venfy that spraying. To 
me, that's a big plus. 

Mr. RANGEL. You're talking about eradication. That's a good 
point. I have no problem with it. 

But as relates to that border, forget it, right? 
Mr. HAMBRICK. No, sir, I'm not willing to say that, yet. We've 

seen the Mexican Government change the comandantes of the 
Mexican Federal police. Both the Federal, State, and local are be
ginning to have a pretty good, open enforcement relationship at 
the moment. 

We have seen them become active with information that we've 
given them that we didn't see before. 

I can't tell you that this is going to be the panacea but we're be
ginning to see a change in attitude, as it relates to drugs and as it 
relates to--

Mr. ~.ANGE~. I ~an't argue, Mr. Hambrick, with those objective 
evaluatIOns. I m Just-. to go to the extreme, I'm saying that if 
anyone gets arrested for bringing across the border, it's my opinion 
that he or she wants to get arrested. And that's as drastic as-I 
mean, that's what I'm saying. 

Mr. KELLY. Well, I hope I'm going to be called on next, Mr. Con
gressman, because you just wounded me very severely. I heard you 
say. that we d.idn't give much attention to the inspection of motor 
vehIcles crossIng the border, and I certainly can't wait to express 
myself to that remark. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, please. 
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Mr. KELLY. First of all, I have to tell you how very difficult this 
problem is. It's what we call a primary inspection. 

Now, the first crossings and other crossings cross the contiguous 
border impact tremendously on the economy of the U,.s. citizens 
that live on'those border areas. 

Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Kelly, if you tell me that there's good reason 
why there's no enforcement, I'm not going to argue with you. 

Mr. KELLY. No, no. If you could allow me, sir, I will get to the 
point. 

Mr. RANGEL. Sure. 
Mr. KELLY. I want to tell you that this is a difficult accomplish

ment to do two things at once, OK? And that's expedite traffic to 
help our economy cross those border crossing points and still do a 
highly professional job of inspection. And I propose that we do 
both. 

But I've given a lot of attention to this problem. We make a lot 
of narcotics seizures from motor vehicles. Recently, we made a cull 
seizure of 45 pounds of heroin out of a motor vehicle in Browns
ville, TX. Extremely significant procedure across our routine proc
essing. 

Now, we have to function with facilities that are outmoded down 
there for a variety of reasons, and we can only man so many cross
ing points. So, we're limited. 

So, just today, we're starting a test in Brownsville and in Hidalgo 
of a new system of roving primary inspection that was very suc
cessfully tested at Laredo in the last 2 weeks. 

And this is in addition to our normal primary processing. Weare 
putting out roving inspectors in front of the primary processing 
booth that are highly trained in profiling techniques and are 
taking out from the normal traffic and putting as~de for secondary 
inspection those cars with a high potential for narcotics smuggling. 

We made significant seizures in the Laredo test, and we are run
ning that test in Hidalgo and Brownsville, as I said, in these 2 
weeks. 

Now, I am telling you that we run a highly professional organi
zation in our primary screening of motor vehicles along the Mexi
can bord~r. 

In addition to roving patrols, I told you about Operation Eagles, 
and this is where we are now getting tipped off on vehicles to select 
out in the primary examination process from our Mexican counter
parts across the border from us. 

So, we're doing a lot in that area. An awful lot. While simulta
neously helping the economy down there by facilitating those 
motor vehicles across. 

And I'll be glad to take you, or anybody else on this committee, 
to any border crossing point we have and show you the profession
alism that we have down there, our customs inspectors and our 
counterparts in INS. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, to tell you the truth, I didn't even recognize 
that you we1.'e there. It seems to me that--

Mr. KELLY. I'm glad to correct the record, sir. 
Mr. RANGEr... Yes. The inquiries are made by the Mexican side of 

the border. 
Mr. KELLY. What inquiries are those? 
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Mr. RANGEL. As to whether or not you're bringing anything into 
the United States. 

Mr. KELLY. Well, the Mexican inquiries do not matter. 
We' conduct ourselves, I think, in a more sophisticated way than 

just asking every car: What are you bringing in? We use an intelli
gence technique and profiling techniques. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, I know, but--
Mr. KELLY. You know, a customs inspector standing at our 

border in order to get that traffic into the United States has about 
5 to 15 seconds to make that initial interview. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, you--
Mr. KELLY. Don't interrupt me, sir. 
We cannot, we cannot depend on that alone to make smuggling 

interdictions. We have to be more sophisticated. We have to do a 
lot of things on a training basis and a profiling basis, and that is 
what we're doing. 

So, it might appear to you that you're being expedited across 
that border with no attention anytime you personally come across 
there, but. I can assure you that is just not so. 

Mr. RANGEL. All right, Mr. Kelly. And I wish you wouldn't get 
emotional about it. We're only trying to exchange observations, 
and you're concentrating on areas which are crossing points. 

Now, we're talking about a thousand miles of border between 
Mexico and--

Mr. GILMAN. Two thousand miles, I think, would be closer. 
Mr. RANGEL. Well, it's over a thousand miles of border, and 

you're satisfied that Customs is doing an effective job in monitoring 
th;:lt border. 

Mr. KELLY. Yes. 
Mr. RANGEL. Well, I think your answer speaks for itself, Mr. 

Kelly. 
Mr. KELLY. Thank you. 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Carter, do you join with Mr. Kelly's observa

tions about our ability to stop drugs from crossing the border? 
Mr. CARTER. The Immigration and Naturalization Service is very, 

very enthusiastic about the function and the role we play at the 
ports of entry. We work very closely with Customs, and even 
though our primary responsibility is the-is people, not drugs, we 
will enthusiastically inspect vehicles and individuals. And in the 
course of our inspection, if we intercept narcotics, we, of course, 
turn them over to the U.S. Customs Service at the ports of entry. 

We do everything within our power and the resources that are 
made available to us to do the best that we possibly can. 

Mr. RANGEL. That answer I can understand. 
Mr. CARTER. We are not, we are not doing what we have-we are 

doing what we can do with what we've got. Weare not getting the 
job done. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, Mr. Carter, that's why we're here. We're not 
here to be critical. We're here to give assistance, to find out where 
we can be of help. 

Of course, where we find people just enthusiastically reporting 
the great success they're having, it's very difficult for the Congress 
to respond. 

Mr. Gilman. 
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Mr. GILMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Gentlemen, I want to thank you for taking time out of your busy 

schedules for giving us the benefit of your views. And please bear 
in mind that we're here to work with you to try to find a more ef
fective way to do your job. 

And I think what Mr. Carter just said that we're doing the best 
we can with what we've got focuses attention on what we're trying 
to find out. What do you need to do a better job? 

You've all talked very glowingly about what you're individually 
doing in your own agencies, and you're working in good cooperative 
spirit. And, yet, we find we're increasing in heroin trafficking, we 
find cocaine is going up, we find the purity levels are high, we find 
there's a greater number of arrests and seizures. And it's not 
making any dent on the problem confronting our Nation. We're not 
making a substantial dent. 

And what we're here to find out is what we can do to close down 
this operation or to reduce it substantially. And while you're work
ing in every direction, apparently, we have not evolved, yet, an ef
fective method for making a substantial reduction of narcotics traf
ficking across these borders. 

Now, let me just address a couple of things, individually. 
Now, we've talked-a number of you have talked about this coop

erative effort in meeting together. When was the last that you all 
got together and worked out a strategy for this region? Any of you. 
That question's to the panel. 

Mr. HEDGES. On Federal agencies, Mr. Congressman? 
Mr. GILMAN. Yes, Federal agencies. 
Mr. HEDGES. We, in Houston, office together. They're together 8, 

10, 12 hours a day, every day. 
Mr. GILMAN. I don't mean just being together in your office. 

When did you meet with Mr. Kelly and Admiral Stewart and Mr. 
Carter and Mr. Hambrick? \Vl1en have you gotten together? You're 
all key people in your various,',agencies. When have you got togeth
er to go over some strategy for this region? 

Mr. HEDGES. I think our last meeting was-what? About 2 or 3 
weeks ago in Houston? 

That was the most recent one. We've had quite a number of 
them. 

Mr. GILMAN. All of you have been in--
Mr. HEI)GES. Representatives of all these agencies. Mr. Ham

brick, himself. Of course, he's at Houston. It's more difficult for the 
Admiral to come over for routine lneetings, but he has a Coast 
Guard commander, who is a full-time member of the drug task 
force who acts as a liaison between the drug task force efforts and 
the NNBIS efforts. 

Mr. GILMAN. Are you chairman of that group that gets together? 
Mr. HEDGES. Yes, I am. 
Mr. GILMAN. And how frequently do you meet? 
Mr. HEDGES. There's several different groups. The advisory com

fn.ittee, and then there is a district coordinating committee. And I 
would say between the two of them, we probably meet every couple 
of months or so, but we're in contact with each other by telephone 
and by our representatives on a daily basis. 

~ --------_--' __________ ~_~_~_"'_ __ _"'_ .... __ ~_LL ______ _.M~'__ 
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. Mr .. g:LMAN: :Well, I don't mean the day-to-day manner of deal
bIg WI d a

h
CrIS1s. I, mea~, sitting down and seeing where you've 

een an were you re gomg. 

M
Have you evolved a long-range strategy for this region? 

. r. HEDGES. I believe we have, yes. The-- . 
£ Sl.r, a[e you ref~rring just to the drug task force, or are you re-
errIng 0 a narc~tICs strategy beyond that? . 

l\;Ir. GILM~N. I m talk~ng about ~ strategy for trying to make a 
m~or dent In the narcotICS traffickIng in this area Mr Hedges 

r. HEDGES. I think, Mr. Congressman, that p;obabl the ~ain 
aspect of that is the discussions that we have had anl we've h d 
many of them, tha~ ther~'s sort of two sides, the~e's the kind ~f 
~spect. t~at the chaIrman s questions were directed to that i 
1nte!dICtIOn at the border; there's the other of trying to actiaiin 

tet kto large narcotics trafficking organizations which if you caK 
rea some of those up, you might have an impabt. ' 

YO~b' ~LMAN .. Wtehll, how many large narcotics organizations have 
ro en up In e past couple of years down there? . 

Mr. HEDG1~S. In the past couple of years? . 
Mr. GILMAN. Yes. 

. M;r. H~DGBS. Just in the past few months alone, there's been con
v~ctIOns In the Bushmaster case. And Mr. Hambrick I think has in 

T
h1hs sttate~enst some of ~hose statistics on the size of this op~ration 

a was In an AntonIO. . 
A large conviction in the Grouper operation out of M' .. Beaumont. 1am1 In 

And we've had two major organizations in which indictments 
?avthe bHeen returned, but, of course, the trials have not taken place 
In e ouston area. . , 

All of thes~ were ma~or narcotics trafficking organizations. 
wt!ry~~~MAtNI'I~o, you? vAe hda~ two major convictions, right? Is that 

re ,e 1ng me. n In what period of time? 
b Mr. HEDGES: The drug task forces in this area, Mr. Gilman h 

beents4taffed hS1nce August. So, that's only been in the past 'wh:te 
a ou mont s. ' , 

Mr. GILMAN. What about prior to that? 
Mr. HEDGES. I would say, and I would defer to Mr Ha b' k . 

part on this, one of the major organizations-- . m rIC In 
of~~' f~ILq~~NeT·a\w~ehIJI' Mhr. H~tdges,?you've been in charge cf that 

1 e, aven you. 
Mr. HEDGES. Two and a half years. 

tio~;' h~~:thN. Wbell, in the h2% ye~rs, besi~e~ these two organiza-
M 

' ere een any ot er major conVICtIOns? 
r. HEDGES. Certainly. . 

Mr. GILMAN. Major traffickers? 
Mr. HEDGES. Very definitely. 
Mr. GILMAN. How many? 

M
Mr. HEDGES. I don't know the precise numbers on that 

r. GILMAN. Approximately Mr. Hedges . 
Mr. H~DGES. Five to ten. A~d we're talking large organizations 

a~ nO~Just, you know, one boat load or something like that 
r. ILMAl; Well,. this e~hibit A that you attached to yo~r testi

mOM ny, Hover w at perIOd of tIme does this chart refer to? 
r. EDGES. That is, I believe, fiscal 1982. . 

Q 
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Mr. ,OILMAN. It's astounding to me to see that you have the larg
est number of narcotics cases, or the second largest number of nar
cotics cases, in the entire Nation; is that correct? 

Mr. HEDGES. Yes, it is. 
Mr. GILMAN. And you have four prosecutors working on your 

narcotics cases. 
Mr. HEDGES. No. It's considerably more than that, Mr. Gilman. 

There are four in the Houston office in a narcot?l~B unit, aside from 
the drug task force, that--

Mr. GILMAN. But they don't work prim&J.ily on narcotics, those 
four, from your testimony. 

Mr. HEDGES. I would say they probably spend from a third to a 
half their time on narcotics cases. 

Mr. GILMAN. And your other people across the other cities don't 
work fulltime on narcotics. 

What would you say you had by way of full-time manpower in 
prosecutors on narcotips? 

l'vlr. HEDGES. Probably, 10. 
IVIr. GILMAN. Ten full-time people? 
M:r. HEDGES. Manhours. Only the seven on the drug task force 

work on it fulltime. The four in the narcotics unit probably spend 
ahoJ.lt 50 percent of their time, as I pointed out in my remarks-

Mr. GILMAN. Do you feel you are adequately staffed for narcotics 
prosecutions? 

Mr. HEDGES. The courts and the jails could not handle more 
cases if we produced more cases, under the current load. What we 
need first are more courts in this area. 

Mr. GILMAN. You're not answering my question, Mr. Hedges. 
Forget the courts and the prisons for a moment. That's another 
problem. Someone else will be dealing with that problem. 

With regard to prosecution, do you feel you have an adequate 
staffing for your narcotics case load in this area? 

Mr. HEDGES. I suspect Mr. Hambrick could tell you that as many 
prosecutors as we could provide, they could provide with cases for 
these prosecutors. 

Mr. GILMAN. Well, then, you're saying that you're understaffed 
with narcotics prosecution; is that correct? 

Mr. HEDGES. I am satisfied with the staffing we have at the 
present level to meet the cases that are being brought to us, and I 
think we'd have an infinite size of staff. There are enough cases for 
an infinite number of prosecutors in this area, I regret to say. 

Mr. GILMAN. Well, then, what is it? That we stop investigation 
and we stop the court process because of the number of prosecutors 
and that makes you satisfied? Or, do we do it the other way 
around? 

Mr. HEDGES. No, sir. I think what we do and what we've tried to 
do is change the focus of the investigations from,the car, individual 
car, coming across the border. We're keeping those at the present 
level. 

Mr. GILMAN. What is your backlog at the present time of narcot
ics cases? How many are backlogged? 

Mr. HEDGES. I don't consider any to be backlogged. 
Mr. GILMAN. Well, how many are awaiting prosecution? 
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Mr. HEDGES. I think I-the total case load would be, probably, 
700 or 800 in the district as a whole. It may be less than that. 

Mr. GILM.:".N. And what's the oldest case in that 700? 
Mr. HEDGES. Well, under the Speedy Trial Act, they can't be very 

old. 
Mr. GILMAN. Well, how old are they? 
Mr. HEDGES. I doubt there are any narcotics cases that are more 

than-I do not have those statistics. I'm trying to talk off the top of 
my head over a large number of cases. 

Mr. GILMAN. Could you provide our committee with that infor
mation, Mr. Hedges? 

Mr. HEDGES. You would want to know the age of all of the nar
cotics cases--

Mr. GILMAN. I want to know what your backlog is and what the 
extent of the time is that they have been lingering on the back
logged area. 

Mr. RANGEL. 1--
:Mr. GILMAN. I would be pleased to yield to the chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. I would want to make the record clear, Mr. Hedges, 

that you are not testifying that your prosecutions are based on the 
amount of space that's in the jail or the number of Federal judges 
that are available. 

Mr. HEDGES. I have had considerable concern expressed to me by 
the judges on a tremendous-the judges in this district, I believe I 
have the largest case loads of any judges in the United States. I 
may stand corrected on that. I don't know what--

Mr. RANGEL. I wan::- the record to remain clear, Mr. Hedges, that 
you're not saying thl:../;~he people of this area, the citiz(~ns of this 
area, should expect tliu amount of law enforcement or the amount 
of arrests or the amount of indictments, as it relates to narcotics 
cases, to be based on the jail population or the number of judges. 

Mr. HEDGES. No, I don't believe we've ever turned down a case 
on that basis, and I don't think we would. 

I think the trial is the only thing that would be, obviously, limit-
ed on that. . 

Mr. GILMAN. Mr. Hedges, do you see a need for any additional 
personnel in your department in order to properly prosecute the 
case load? 

Mr. HEDGES. Not at the present time, Mr. Gilman. Thank you. 
Mr. GILMAN. To any of you gentlemen, do you see any need for 

additional equipment? 
Mr. KELLY. Yes. 
Mr. GILMAN. Mr. Kelly talked about somel outmoded problems. 

Mr. Carter talks about doing the best you can with what you have. 
Mr. KELLY. Yes, I do-- . 
Mr. GILMAN. Admiral Stewart, I note in the past there was some 

talk about need for an additional cutter to come up to the kind of 
enforcement that's needed, and there is a need for some additional 
patrol boats: Bu~ I didn't hear any of that testimony here, and I'm 
Just wonderIng, IS there some reluctance by the agencies to make 
their requests that's needed to do the job that's needed? 

Mr. KELLY. Not in my case. 
Mr. GILMAN. Have you made a request, Mr. Kelly, to improve 

the--
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Mr. KELLY. I make them all the time, sir. Let me speak to-
Mr. GILMAN. In the last budgetary process---
Mr. KELLY. Yes. 
Mr. GILMAN [continuing]. Did your office recommend reconstruc

tion of these outmoded facilities that you're talking about? 
Mr. KELLY. Certainly. But it's not our budget. Some of these fa

cilities are controlled by local authorities, and it's beyond our con
trol. 

Mr. GILMAN. Well, have you made a request to--
Mr. KELLY. Yes. That's an ongoing process in my office. 
Mr. GILMAN. And in this past year in the budgetary request, that 

was denied; is that what you're telling us? 
Mr. KELLY. I can't give--
Mr. GILMAN. What sort of outmoded facilities are you working 

with? 
Mr. KELLY. 'lNell, let's take Brownsville. We know that Browns

ville-if you ever come across the border in Brownsville, it's just 
horrible. 

Mr. GILMAN. Well, what is needed there? What would you recom
mend? 

Mr. KELLY. What is needed there is a totally new crossing facili
ty. 

Mr. GILMAN. Have you recommended that? 
Mr. KELLY. Yes, I have. But that happens to be a situation that 

is totally within the control of the local authorities down in 
Brownsville, and they have a considerable problem financially with 
that. Now, we're working with them on it. 

Mr. GILMAN. Is that State government or local government? 
Mr. KELLY. Local, I believe. Local or county. 
Mr. GILMAN. And recommendation has heen made to reconstruct 

that? 
Mr. KELLY. Yes. 
Mr. GILMAN. Do you need any more personnel or equipment 

along this border? 
Mr. KELLY. Yes. Now--
Mr. GILMAN. And have made a recommendation for these things? 
Mr. KELLY. Yes, I have. I would like to explain something about 

that. 
I think what we basically need-I think that we have taken ini

tial steps to control the air intrusions and to control sea intrusions. 
I think this problem on narcotics, and what we were speaking 
before, the examination of motor vehicles crossing the border and 
cargo shipments. 

Now, I do not mean to imply that I'm satisfied that we get every
thing out of motor vehicle inspections. We do not. I meant to imply 
that we're working very hard on that. 

What we need in this particular area is a lot more guarantee. 
We need to be able to come to devices, drug sniffing devices, that 
will be applicable to motor vehicles. Right now we use dogs to do 
that, after our selectivity process. 

It would be-it would give us a quantum job if we could get into 
research ami development and come to some drug sniffing 
type * * * 
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Mr. GILMAN. Besides the more sophisticated type of equipment 
that's needed, do you have-presently, do you have enough person
nel and standard equipment to do the job that you're required to 
do? 

Mr. KELLY. Yes. Let me be specific about that. 
We man every border crossing booth that we have constantly. 
Mr. GILMAN. All right. Then, you're satisfied with what you've 

got to do what you have to do. 
Mr. KELLY. Not totally. 
Mr. GILMAN. Well, tell me what you want-
Mr. KELLY. I'm trying to, sir. 
Mr. GILMAN. Our problem is our time is extremely limited. 
Mr. KELLY. All right. I'll try to do it very rapidly. 
I'm certain that we man all our border crossing booths 24 hours 

a day. We don't have room for any more booths. And we have just 
put in CET teams, contraband enforcement teams, that do a lot of 
roving work. I just described to you previously the roving oper
ations that we're testing out in front of the booths. 

So, insofar as the facilities will allow, we have the people to exer
cise every possibility we have to exercise. And I'm totally satisfied 
with that. 

The moneys that we'd need would be in the R&D area. 
Mr. GILMAN. And Admiral Stewart, do you see any need for any 

additional funding for equipment or personnel in order to do a 
better job? 

AdmIral STEWART. You asked me one question, sir, and I have 
two hats. So, let me clarify which hat is speaking, if I may. 

As far as the Coast Guard is concerned, no. I think our level of 
resources are adequate. 

At the moment, given the national priorities, the Coast Guard's 
long-range interdiction goal is to make it uneconomical to smuggle 
by sea. And in order to do that, we firmly believe that we should 
have a higher level of coordination between agencies before asking 
for additional resources. 

As far as my NNBIS hat is concerned, yes, I do. And I have 
asked the Vice President. I badly need--

Mr. GILMAN. What have you asked for? 
Admiral STEWART. I have asked for some form of radar system 

which will give us some defense against low-flying aircraft that are 
coming into the United States across the Gulf of Mexico. That 
problem is being worked by the Vice President's staff at the 
present time. 

And I have also asked for an increase in the available intelli
gence in the gulf region, and that problem is also being worked. 

But those are two very, very important needs, sir, which I have 
already addressed to Mr. Bush. 

Mr. GILMAN. Well, Admiral Stewart, let me ask you something. 
There was a report that in order to make a major dent that we'd 
have to cut down on 70 percent of the trafficking, and you respond
ed to that report that in order to meet those needs, you'd need a 
cutter, and you'd need~ome patrol boats and additional personnel. 
And, yet, I didn't hear any testimony of that today. 

Admiral STEWART. Sir, if you are referring to Admiral Gracey's 
t.estimony before you, Mr. Chairman, on the' 24th day of May in 
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which the admiral agreed to provide this committee with some ad~ 
ditional answers to some questions for the record, I am aware of 
what Admiral Gracey said, and I will defer to the Commandant in 
that regard, sir. He's already on record in that regard. -

Mr. GILMAN. Well, do you substantiate that need to do the job 
down here? 

Admiral STEWART. Sir, I always substantiate the needs of the 
Commandant. 

[Laughter.] 
Mr. GILMAN. I guess I should have expected that sort of response. 
Mr. Carter, you're saying that you're doing the best you can with 

what you've got. What do you nel~d to do a better job? 
Mr. CARTER. At the present ti:rne, as Mr. Kelly indicated, we are 

fully staffed at the points of entry. The Border Patrol stations are 
fully staffed. 

We are trying to get a border-enhancement package at the 
present time. If, in fac:t, that border-enhancement package is ap" 
proved--

Mr. GILMAN. What does that mean? What is a border-enhance
ment package? 

Mr. CARTER. An additional 1,000 Border Patrol agents and immi-
gration officers along the Texas-Mexican border. 

Mr. GILMAN. One thousand agents. 
Mr. CARTER. Yes, sir. 
:Mr. GILMAN. And that's what you would need to do the job that's 

needed to reduce trafficking? Or are you talking now about the 
overall illegal alien problem? 

Mr. CARTER. The overall illegal alien problem, yes, sir. 
Mr. GILMAN. All right. I'm asking you now to concentrate a 

moment on narcotics. What would you need to do a better job in 
regard to narcotics? 

Mr. CARTER. Well, sir, with our primary function, as I indicated 
in my testimony, being the apprehension of illegal aliens and the 
apprehension of drug smugglers going hand in hand with that, I 
can only state that if we have these thousand agents that we are 
requesting, we will, at that time, be able to intercept a thousand 
times more drug smugglers than we do now. 

Mr. GILMAN. Well, you don't go out on drug smuggling expedi-
tions, do you? 

Mr. CARTER. No, sir, we do not. 
Mr. GILMAN. You go out on alien deterrent expeditions. 
Mr. CARTER. Yes, sir, that is correct. 
Mr. GILMAN. In everyone of those arrests, do you usually find 

some narcotics smuggling? 
Mr. CARTER. No,;sir, not in everyone of those arrests. No, sir. 
Mr. GILMAN. Do you go out with some intelligence to arrest po

tential narcotics smugglers coming over as aliens? Do you have 
that kind of mission? 

Mr. CARTER. There are occasions, yes, sir, when information is 
provided to us that there is a narcotics smuggler who, in fact, is an 
illegal alien. 

Mr. GILMAN. There's been a great deal of testimony today. Cus
toms, Mr. Kelly talked about the more intelligence effort that they 
are embarked on and how they are expanding their efforts. And 
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t~e admiral talked about some additional intelligence. You've men
tIoned some intelligence. 

1\;1r. Hambrick, you used to be ill intelligence in DEA, as I recall. 
Isn t. ther~ a great d~al ?f ov~rlapping here and unnecessary ex
pendIture In overlapPIng mtellIgence gathering? 

Mr. HAMBRICK; Well, today, I think they're beginning to come to
gether, Mr. Gilf2,an. 

Mr. GILMAN. Beginning to come together. 
Mr. HAMBRICK. Yes, sir. It may have appeared that way on the 

surf~ce at t~e begi~ning, but I think you'll find that the Presi
dent s OrganIzed CrIme/Drug Control Task Forces have a very nec
essary part. They're fully coordinated with NNBIS. NNBIS is now 
coordinated with--

Mr. GILMAN. Why do we need separate intelligence gathering 
groups? If NNBIS is doing such a good job, why can't we concen
trate aU of those funds and make the dollars more effective in one 
intelligence gathering unit? 

M:. HA;rvtBRICK. I don:t think it's so much the gathering itself of 
the IntellIgence, Mr. GIlman. I think that's basically gathered by 
the same people that always gather it. 

Mr. GILMAN. Well, that's n.ot what JVIr. Kelly's saying. He just, 
talked about how they had Increased their personnel in intelli
genfe. You f?lks have people out there in intelligence. I guess; I 
dont know If Border Patrol has any. There's some intelligence 
people out there. 
. Wh>, isn't ~his coord~nated in one central group? It seems to me 
IntellIgence IS somethmg that would go right across the entire 
gamut of this operation, and you could have one central group 
doing the job. 

Mr. HAMBRICK. Wel~, ~ .feel it doe~, and I still/eel that, basically, 
DEA has ~he r~sponsibilIty for ultImately gettIng all drug intelli
gence and InSUrIng that there is a proper dissemination. 

Mr. GILMAN. Mr. Hambrick, allow me to interrupt a moment be
cause my time is short. 

Do w~ need five o~ six diff~ren~ intelligence gathering groups to 
do .the Job" or could,n t we do It WIth one good, centralized, effective 
unIt? That s what I m, essentially, asking you. 

Mr. HAMBRICK. I think it's appropriate--
1\1:r. GILMAN. It seems to me that--
~r. HAMBRICK [continuing]. Being disseminated today, sir. And I 

thInk the way the information is--
Mr. GILMAN. I'm not talking about dissemination now. I'm talk

ing about intelligence gathering. 
Mr .. HAMBRI?K. No, sir, I don't think you could cut down the 

gatherIng. I thInk that you need every individual you can possibly 
get, no matter what agency or what--

Mr. GILMAN. Are all of these separate agencies and each one 
having a separate gathering? 

Mr. HAMBRICK. As a gatherer. I think when we look at intelli
gence-I look at intelligence as the person that gets the raw data, 
ta~es and analyzes that data, and tl1en disseminates the data. I 
thIn~ ever:r ~ge~t that I have, e~ery customs official, every Immi
gratIOn offICIal IS a gatherer of Intelligence. You have to have a 
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proper reporting of that intelligence. It has to be analyzed. And 
then it needs to be properly disseminated. I think that's where-

Mr. GILMAN. Well, Mr. Kelly, when Customs g'Oes down and gath-
ers the intelligence, where does that go? 

Mr. KELLY. It goes to EPIC right now. 
Mr. GILMAN. Straight into EPIC? 
Mr. KELLY. And it goes to our own intelligence operation in 

Washington. 
Mr. GILMAN. Ah ha.Now, what is your own intelligence oper

ation in Washington? What does that do? 
Mr. KELLY. That's an operation that consists of collating and 

analyzing that--
Mr. GILMAN. Well, there you are. You have their collating and 

analyzing. You're collating and analyzing. Border Patrol is collat
ing and. ana--Isn't there some duplication in all this? 

Mr. HAMBRICK. There may be some minor duplication, Mr. 
Gilman, but each agency is also looking for a separate matter. Im
migration is not just looking for narcotics. They're primarily look
ing at the people intelligence that they have. 

Mr. GILMAN. Well, gentlemen, I would hope that you might take 
a look at that problem and see if, maybe, the Feds could streamline 
what we're doJ'ug, save some money, bring it together in a more co
ordinated effort, and stop duplicating all of these services. 

I know my time has run, Mr. Chairman. I thank you for allowing 
me to extend. And I thank you, gentlemen. 

Please bear in mind, gentlemen, we're here to try to find out how 
we can do the job better. We're not trying to play games with each 
other. We welcome your recommendations for trying to streamline 
and use these dollars more effectively. 

Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Ortiz. 
Mr. ORTIZ. Maybe I'm missing something. Mr. Hambrick stated 

that there is an increase of drug trafficking in the area. Then Mr. 
Hedges said that there has been an increase in the cases that he is 
finding. 

Next the admiral stated that there has been a reduction in some 
of the narcotics coming in on vessels now. 

Are they flying over? What's happening? We see a decrease in 
one, but an increase in the other. 

Mr. HAMBRICK. We've seen a change in smuggling trends, Mr. 
Ortiz. In the past, I think we had seen an awful lot of vessel traffic, 
vessel smuggling. They weren't having to secrete it. They were 
smuggling fairly openly coming into Florida or the southern coast 
area. 

Then we saw where they went into the land routes and air 
routes. They were still fairly open. I think that that came out in 
the testimony here today. 

Now, we're beginning to see a reemerging of the sea vessel, but 
with concealment involved. So, the loads are ,somewhat smaller to 
allow for that concealment. But we're still getting the loads in by 
sea. It's more expensive, and they're not allowed to bring as large a 
load in. 

But I think it was pointed out by Mr. Kelly, we have not seen a 
decrease in air traffic or air smuggling. 

r 
! I 
I 

I 

\ 
I 
t ,,' 
it 
H 

ij 

j 

It \ I 1\ 
1: j 
[ 

i \ 
" 

41 

There's two ways to look at that. You can look at the, stats and 
say: OK. The stats reflect, to us, a decrease in the number of air 
smugglings that we've encountered. 

To me, the key word is encountered. 
We know that we're fighting a losing battle daily attempting to 

get aircraft up to intercept the smuggling aircraft whose going to 
fly over a predestined location, kick the goods out of the side of the 
airplane, and keep going. Now, we may intercept that aircraft and 
pull it down, but the chances of it having anything left on board 
are very minute. 

Now, it sounds confusing, but it's all still there. 
Mr. ORTIZ. Another question, when you have your meetings, are 

only Federal agencies included? In your intelligence gathering and 
dissemination the information that you get from the local level? 

Mr.-HAMBRICK. Yes, we do. In several forms. One is through Mr. 
Hedges' LEC meetings, and the other is through the booklets that 
we automatically send out to dissenlinate the information that we 
get, as well as the operation on the local level between the DEA 
officials and the State and local officials. 

Mr. ORTIZ. I have another question that I would like to ask now. 
Knowing how extensive drug trafficking is and how much money it 
involves, do you feel that you have enough buy money to conduct 
the buys so that you can build your cases at this point? 

Mr. HAMBRICK. We could always use more money, Mr. Ortiz, to 
carry out our operation. No, I couldn't tell you that we've got 
enough money. We could always use more because of the sophisti-
cation of the groups that we're dealing with. ' 

However, the one thing that we've tried to do to offset that need 
for money, which goes back into the taxing base, is to get with the 
other agencies and start pooling this intelligence that we were 
talking about with Mr. Gilman a while ago, which has resulted, as 
Mr. Hedges said earlier, in four major, good operations that we've 
brought to a successful conclusion in the Texas area that utilize, 
not only Federal, but Federal, State, and local agencies, where 
none of us could have done it independently. None of us had the 
money to do it independently. But by banding together and sharing 
the intelligence and everybody understanding they weren't going to 
lose their part of the case, all four were brought to a successful 
conclusion and involved multistates.· 

Mr. ORTIZ. Do you have any figures on how much money has 
been seized when you make an arrest? 

Mr. HAMBRICK. I don't have that for a national level at the 
moment, but it goes into the General Treasury. It doesn't come 
back to the agency. 

Mr. ORTIZ. It does not come back to the agency. 
Mr. HAMBRICK. Not at the Federal level; no, sir. It goes to the 

General Treasury. 
Mr. ORTIZ. I'll pass on. 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Hance. 
Mr. HANCE. I have one quick question to Mr. Hedges. On your 

case load, how many of your cases actually go to trial and how 
many are pleading guilty for some type of plea bargaining? 

Mr. HEDGES. I think it's a vast, vast majority that plead guilty, 
particularly-it depends on the kind of case that you're talking 
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about. The drug task force cases, which are monstrous cases and a 
great deal is at stake and there's a likelihood of extremely stiff sen
tences, you're more likely to go to trial on that kind of case than a 
person who is seized at a border crossing with a relatively small 
amount. 

The Brownsville case load is an enormous one, and the Laredo. A 
vast percentage of those Gases result in guilty pleas. 

Mr. HANCE. When you~re involved in plea bargaining or trying to 
come to an agreement, do you go after evidence that will help you 
in other cases, and are those cases larger or smaller or just any 
kind of case? 

Mr. HEDGES. Generally, cases that are larger. 
Mr. HANCE. Last night I watched the television program "60 

Minutes." I don't know if you saw.: the program or not, but it was 
reported that the U.S. Attorney's Office had given immunity to a 
guy for his testimony, on drug trafficking when he was the kingpin 
of the whole operation. He testified against the mechanic that 
worked on the boat and the man that loaded the boat. They got 10 
or 15 years and the kingpin walked away. It was a pretty interest
ing story. 

But it made me wonder. I think most prosecutors, if they're 
going to take evidence and use it, try to go after larger fish. 

Is that pretty well the rule? Or, do you just go after whoever you 
can? 

Mr. HEDGES. Generally, you try to move up instead of trying to 
move down. 

But I did not see that. I think I was still watching the demise of 
the Dallas Cowboys at the time. It was State tragedy. 

But we do have some situations where there are other cases in
volved where that person, as part of his plea bargaining, will give 
you all the people below him, but also as part of his plea bargain
ing, may be giving you somebody in another investigation. 

We had a case very similar to that recently. It was not a narcot
ics case. It was another kind of case. And the judge, not being 
aware of this other possibility over here, thought we were doing ex
actly what you mentioned pleading to get lower people and threw 
out the plea bargain. 

But sometimes, there is something more there than meets the 
eye, and that may have been the case with the "60 Minutes" pres
entation. 

Mr. HAMBRICK. Mr. Hance, that's very common. If you look at 
the individual's case and he was that high, the only people he 
could give up were the lower-ups in his organization. But it would 
not be the rule that we would agree to let him just give his own 
operation up. We'd insist that he give somebody else's operation 
up, if he were that high, plus his own operation. 

So, I'm not saying that the show was tainted. I didn't see it. It 
could have left one-half of that out and only said: OK. Yes, in his 
own operation, he gave up so and so and so and so. 

Which, of course, would leave the other missing. 
Mr. HANCE. I understand now. 
One other thing, just an observation. With all the different intel

ligence in all the different agencies, and I'm sure there is some co
ordination, but I'm surprised that you're catching as many people 
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as you do. It seems like that there's just so many people involved 
that there should almost be one or two individuals working full 
time just to coordinate what everybody is doing. 

Mr. HAMBRICK. We do kind of have a clearing house that, maybe, 
I didn't hit strong enough earlier, in El Paso. We have the El Paso 
intelligence center. . . 

In that center it's just, really, Drug Enforcement AdmInIstra-
tion. It's Coast Guard. It's Immigration. It's Customs. It's FBI. It's 
IRS. It's ATF. And it's the State. Or, the State is able to get infor-
mation from it. , 

It's one central location where all of the various agencies data 
bases can'be checked with one single phone call into it, which we, 
at the Federal level, use. By the way, NNBIS is also involved with 
EPIC. We at the Federal level use it. The State can make a call, 
and so can the local departments in through the State authorized 
network. 

So there is a clearing house for all of this intelligence. 
lVl;. HANCE. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. The committee is glad to have with us the Con

gressman from eastern Texas, ~n outstanding member o~ this c0:t;l
mittee and a hardworking memner, and also a subcommIttee chaIr
man of the Judiciary Committee. So, we welcome and thank Sam 
Hall for being with us this morning. 

Mr. HALL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I have the advantage of being a member of the Immigration Su~

committee of the Judiciary Committee, as well as a member of thIS 
committee, and I have heard some testimony here today that is of 
great interest to me. 

Our Immigration Subcommittee made a trip down to the Chula 
Vista, CA area last year-year before last, spent several days 
there watched the operation of the Customs as they crossed the 
bord~r. Stayed there in a area with the customs official who w.as 
trying to get a profile on people as they came through, as you saId, 
in several seconds of time. 

While I was there, he saw something that aroused his attention, 
and they were directed into a little area. The people. that he 
stopped had something in the automobile. So, along that hne, even 
though they have a small amount of ti~e to ~pend with these 
people, they do have an idea of what they re looking for. And they 
can see things that an ordinary person cannot see. 

Now, with reference to Mr. Carter's testimony-or, statement, 
and let me say at the outset, I think everyone of you at this table 
need more people, you need more money. Whether you admit it or 
you don't. 

In the immigration area, and it gets back to what Mr. Carter 
said a moment ago, I understand you have about one person every 
13 miles--

Mr. CARTER. Yes, sir, that's correct. 
Mr. HALL [continuing]. To try to take care of the border between 

Texas and Mexico or Mexico and California in that area. 
Mr. CARTER. That is correct, sir. 
Mr. HALL. Which is an impossibility. I think that you'll admit 

that it's an impossibility to do it. 
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Now, we have, in the committee, attempted to get more people. 
You say you need 1,000 people. We tried to get you 1,200, but both 
administrations, the present administration, and the past adminis
tration, would not fund it, to get you down to one person eVE\ry 4 
miles, which we were told would be a sufficient number of people 
per miles to try to put some control on that border. 

Do you agree with that? 
Mr. CARTER. Yes, sir. I do agree with that. 
Mr. HALL. Now, you also said a moment ago, or someone said, 

that the border down here is fully staffed.. Now, I don't know who 
made that comment. 

When we were down in the lower portion cf California, we were 
told by Customs that, first, you were not fully staffed and, second
ly, that you were having people work probably two or three 
straight shifts because you didn't have enough people to fill in. 

Now, is that the situation in the Houston area? 
Mr. KELLY. No, that is not the situation. We have a little ups and 

downs by attrition, but we've made staff studies, on all of our dis
tricts along the border. And we're satisfied with the numbers, and 
we try to keep them fully staffed. 

Now, we might have a little attrition going on, but other than 
that, they're fully staffed. 

Mr. HALL. Well, do you have any occasions where you might 
have one shift of men working two-

Mr. KELLY. No, sir. 
Mr. HALL [continuing]. Or three shifts in a row-
Mr. KELLY. No. 
Mr. HALL [continuing]. Because they don't have replacements? 
Mr. KELLY. No, we do not have that situation. 
Mr. HALL. Well, have you ever heard of that existing in Califor

nia? 
Mr. KELLY. I sure would hear it in a hurry from my union, and I 

have not. And I would hear it from my supervisors, and I have not. 
I do not believe that situation exists. 

Mr. HALL. Now, another thing, Mr. Carter, you say that the ap
prehension of drugs goes hand in hand with the immigration prob
lems. 

Mr. CARTER. Yes, sir. 
Mr. HALL. Well, are you stating to the committee that the major

ity of the immigrants who come here illegally from Mexico are 
bringing drugs with them? 

Mr. CARTER. No, sir, I'm not. 
Mr. HALL. Well, would you elaborate and explain to me what you 

mean by that statement? Because we have been told in our other 
committBe just the opposite from that statement. 

And the reason I'm bringing it up is not to try to test the credi
bility of anyone. I accept the credibility of all of you gentlemen at 
face value. 

But we do have some areas where there might be some problems 
that exist that if we know about those problems, we may be in a 
position to help you? . 

Now, I've always had in the back of my mind that a lot of the 
illegal alien traffic coming into this country, after it gets into 
W'ashington, DC, New York, Chicago, Philadelphia, Boston, and it's 

i, 
1 
1 
I 
I 
r 

I 
I 

'\ 
I 

\ 
1 
I 

'f 

I 

I ! 
I 
I 
1 ~ 

~j 

{' n I 
tl 

\ n 
,1 
II f,\ :! 

45 

all over the country, we know that, that you might have some 
Mafia connection, which we've been told by the people that you 
don't in any large measures. . 

But when you say that there is a great amount of drugs ~and In 
hand with immigration, I haven't heard that before. I WIsh you 
would elaborate on that. 

Mr. CARTER. Examples being that our Bo!der Pat~ol traffic 
checkpoints, those that are especially the functIOnal eqUIvalents to 
ports of entry. 

We have a number of cases. As I indicated in my statement, ~:me 
particular case, 43 pounds of-excuse me-13 pounds. of cocaIne, 
$418,000. The individuals in possession of those narcotIcs were Co-
lombians. . 

At the same particular checkpoint, on nUI!lerous o~casIOns, the 
individuals in possession of narcotics are also Illegal alIens. . 

We find not nearly as many individuals entering without Inspec
tion between the ports of entry being in possession o~ narcotics. 

Mr. HALL. Well, the narcotics that these people brIng over across 
the Rio Grande that's not any large amount in the sense that 
we're talking ab~ut with Mr. Hambrick and those that Mr. Hedges 
has talked about in prosecuting. I would assume that. 

Mr. CARTER. That is correct. 
Mr. HALL. It's a correct statement. 
Mr. CARTER. Yes, sir, that is an accurate statement. . . 
Mr. HALL. All right. Do you believe that if you had an addItIOnal 

1000 men on that border, would that, to any great extent, .P~t a 
d~nt in narcotics traffic coming into this country? Or would It Just 
stop the wetback problem, or, say, hinder it? You're not going to 
stop it, but maybe slow it down. 

Mr. CARTER. I don't believe that it would do any more than put a 
dent into the narcotics problem, and it wo~ld just damper th~
slow down the individuals entering the UnIted States WIthout In
spection. It would not stop it, no, sir. Not by any means. 

Mr. HALL. All right. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. .. . 
Mr. RANGEL. The committee WIll Just pause for a mInute to allow 

the reporter to change the paper. 
[Pause.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Hall. . 
Mr. HALL. One additional question. When we were In th~ low~r 

Califqrnia Chula Vista area, because of the-and, Mr. Kelly, thIS 
might be something that you or Mr. Carter can answer .. 

We went out to an area there, and we found, or sa~r, Ill?-pounded, 
close to an airport if I remember correctly, or an aIrstrIp, 150 or 
200 automobiles that had been .Jmpounded there for a great 
Dumber of months, and maybe longer than that, years. And they 
told us that they had not been sold, the procedures had not been 
followed to dispose of those automobiles because of the absence of 
personnel. . 

Do we have enough people? That's my point. To do a Job. 
Mr. KELLY. 'rhat type of problem is handled b~ people on ad11?-in

istrative staffs. And, first of all, the length of tIme that a vehIcle 
can remain on our hands, sometimes, can lengthen because they 
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have to forfeited, either administratively or through the U.S. attor
ney's office in a court of law. 

But following that, it can be forfeited to the Government and 
either sold at auction or we have a new system now where we put 
them together and trade them in and receive, in turn, motor vehi
cles that we can use. 

And we have had some problems in that area. And in response to 
a GAO audit of last year, we have, this year, taken some substan
tial steps to improve that process. And I think that problem has 
been solved at this particular point. There was a problem before. 

Mr. HALL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Kelly, that may have been an administrative 

problem, but in looking over your testimony, inspectors really have 
line corps responsibility, right? 

Mr. KELLY. Right. Yes, sir. 
Mr. RANGEL. And as relates to Corpus Christi, in your testimony 

on page 4, you start off in 1980 with four inspectors,. went up in 
1981 to six inspectors, and actually have reduced your Inspectors to 
five for 1982, 1983 and 1984; is that correct? 

Mr. KELLY. I'm attempting to reduce to four as soon as somebody 
retires or otherwise leaves. 

Mr. RANGEL. You're reducing the inspectors to four. 
Mr. KELLY. Yes, sir. 
Mr. RANGEL. And Mr. Hambrick had testified that it was his 

opinion that Mexican heroin was accounting for 34 percent of the 
heroin coming into the United States, and he also indicated that 
the movement of heroin into the United States has been largely re
stricted to the use of vehicles and individual couriers and that this 
remains the case today. 

Mr. KELLY. We don't have a--
Mr. RANGEL. And I take a look at your testimony-
Mr. KELLY. I'd like to explain. We don't handle--
Mr. RANGEL. I take a "look at your testimony, and it says that 

your uniqu~ responsibility is preventing the smuggling and illegal 
entry of narcotics and other contraband into the United States. 

And then in reviewing the success of that, as relates to what we 
hear in Corpus Christi about where you're looking forward to a re
duction in Customs agency, it seems as though--

Mr. KELLY. Well, 1-- ' 
Mr. RANGEL [continuing]. That in 1980, you seized no heroin. In 

1981, you seized no heroin. In 1982, you seized 1 pound of heroin. 
And in 1983, you seized 45 pounds of heroin. '.' 

Mr. KELLY. Right. That was in Brownsville, the 45 pounds. 
Let me explain--
Mr. RANGEL. Well, then, there was really just 5 pounds of heroin 

in Corpus Christi. 
Mr. KELLY. That's correct. 
Mr. RANGEL. So, a total for 1980 to 1983, you've seized a total of 7 

pounds of heroin. 
Mr. KELLY. That's right. But that doesn~t relate to customs in

spectors. We also have' patrol officers in this vicinity, and I think 
they should be increased, because we're, obviously, not getting 
what we should be getting out of this area. 
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The inspectional force here handles commercial business impor
tations into a particular port. We have approximately 650 vessels 
arrive here per year. . . 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, how many pounds of herOIn-SInce you say 
that this 'is your mandate, to stop it from coming across the border. 
DEA says that this is one of their most serious problems as ~elates 
to Mexico. You're having a reduction of staff as relates to Inspec
tors--

Mr. KELLY. Right. 
Mr. RANGEL [continuing]. And feel satisfied that you have ade

quate resources--
Mr. KELLY. That's in a commercial area . 
When I talk about the narcotics effort here, we're talking about 

patrol officers. We have eight here. I think we need more. 
Mr. RANGEL. You're satisfied that you have--
Mr. KELLY. No, I'm not satisfied. I'm satisfied with the amount of 

personnel that we have here to do our commercial work. To do OUr 
enforcement work, I'm not satisfied, and I need some more people 
in here. 

Mr. RANGEL. I misunderstood you entirely, Mr. Kelly. 
Mr. GILMAN. Mr. Chairman, would you yield? 
Mr. RANGEL. I yield. . 
Mr. GILMAN. That was specllcaBy what I was addressIng before, 

Mr. Kelly, and you said you thought you had the adequate re
sources, except for the outmoded facilities. 

Is there some need for personnel? Is there some need for addi
tional personnel? 

Mr. KELLY. Yes, of course. 
Mr. GILMAN. Well, please, be frank and tell us. That's what we're 

here for. . 
Mr. KELLY. I thought I was doing that. 
Mr. GILMAN. What do you recommend by the way of--
Mr. KELLY. I make specific recommendations every year in my 

budget request. 
Mr. GILMAN. What have you requested for your region? 
Mr. KELLY. I cannot recall it to mind. I would say it's not in 

excess of 10 percent of our present personnel resources. 
Mr. GILMAN. That's in all categories, now. 
Mr. KELLY. All categories. 
Mr. GILMAN. Commercial, noncommerciaL 
Mr. KELLY. Right. 
Mr. GILMAN. Ten percent additional personnel. 
And will that help you do the job properly? 
Mr. KELLY. Certainly. 
Mr. GILMAN. Thank you. 
Thank you for yielding, Mr. Chairman.. ,. 
Mr. RANGEL. It gets a little more confusIng, but you re sayIng 

that you have no problem with decreasing your commercial inspec-
tors in Corpus Christi. .. . 

Mr. KELLY. Right. Now, on the enforcement SIde, that IS dIffer
ent. 

Mr. RANGEL. OK. Now, these figures in your testimony, as r(~
lates to heroin seizures, is that commercial heroin seizures? 
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Mr. KELLY. No. Heroin seizures come under law enforcement 
part of my responsibility. I have a great responsibility in the com
mercial area, as well. 

Mr. RANGEL. OK. But you're saying that in 5 years-in 4 years, 
that you've seized 5 pounds of heroin. 

Mr. KELLY. In this area. In Corpus Christi, yes. 
Mr. RANGEL. Seven pounds in Corpus Christi. 
Mr. KELLY. Yes. It's not enough. 
Mr. RANGEL. And then, you also allege that that's your unique 

responsibility, to prevent the smuggling an(~ illegal entry of narcot
ics into the United States. 

Mr. KELLY. Right. 
Mr. RANGEL. So, how do I walk away, Mr. Kelly, in saying to the 

people of Corpus Christi that if you're assuming this as being your 
unique responsibility protecting the border and that in this very 
area that we're having hearings, you know, you've got a 10-percent 
request for an increase in personnel, but that there's no specific 
things that we can do to improve things? And heck, we seize more 
than 7 pounds on the corner on which I live annually. Of heroin. 

What am I not understanding here? 
Mr. KELLY. 'VeIl, I understand that we have not been successful 

in seizing heroin in Corpus Christi if, indeed, it is coming in here. 
I'm not aware that-We don't have any specific intelligence that it 
is. But we're not seizing it. That I know. 

Mr. RANGEL. You had a big seizure, I guess, in Brownsville. You 
got--

Mr. KELLY. Forty-five and a half pounds. 
Mr. RANGEL. Yes. Well, you had 1 pound from Brownsville in 

1982. If what you're saying is that there's some question as to 
whether or not it's coming in, you're the professional. 

Mr. KELLY. Well, we know it's coming in, and we, frankly, 
haven't been too successful in intercepting heroin. We've done 
quite well on marijuana and well in cocaine. In heroin, we haven't 
Gone so well. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, I think I started off on the wrong foot with 
you, but I started trying to say that the DEA is saying that most 
drugs are coming in with individual couriers and automobiles, and 
that's how they are crossing the border. And somehow, you thought 
I was attacking the professionalism of Customs. 

But what I was trying to say is that if it's coming across that 
way and you have the responsibility to protect the borders, and I 
look, and from your own testimony, from this area, 5 pounds, from 
the Brownsville area, 45 pounds, then something is wrong. 

Mr. KELLY. Yes. 
Mr. RANGEL. It may not be the professionalism .. 
Mr. KELLY. No, I understand what you're saying. What is wrong 

is heroin comes across in very small amounts. If it comes on a mer
chant vessel, it comes into Corpus Christi. The hiding places on a 
mercha.nt vessel are just thousands upon thousands. It's very diffi
cult to search a vessel and frnd a hiding place for a pa0kage of 
hel'oin or coke could be. 

OK. Now, as I said before, a total interdiction strategy, I think 
we can get a handle on intrusions by air, by the things we're doing 
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after the contraband act was relaxed and getting the Defense De-
partment resources. . k t h dl 0 

With the help of the Coast Guard, I thIn we ge a an e n 
what's coming by vessel. . ,. f t' 

What we're having great difficulty with IS shIpments 0 n::;.rco ICS 
that come across concealed on vessels or in cargo. And I thInk the 
ultimate solution to that is technology. h I 

We in Customs, do a lot of research and develop~ent tec n? ogy 
to get some machinery to be able to, throu.gh ehemlCal analYSIS, as 
a fight against a container of cargo. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, have you told this to your colleagues-
Mr. KELLY. Yes. 
Mr. RANGEL [continuing]. And to law enforcement--
Mr KELLY. Yes. And we have-- . 
Mr: RANGEL. Do you have regular meetings WIth your colleagues 

here in the Coast Guard-
Mr'. KELLY. Oh, sure. 
Mr. RANGEL [continuing]. And DEA? 
How often do you meet? .. 
Mr. KELLY. Well, we meet on an ongomg baSIS. . 
Mr. RANGEL. I know. But do you have formal meetings--
Mr. KELLY. Sure. ., . h up 
] 1r RANGEL Is there a strategy tnat you guys ave c:ome 

wiZh that we c~n take back and say that, perh~ps, we. can Increa~e 
our productivity, but the people on the front. hne be~Ieve that thIS 
. ea that the Congress should concern Itself WIth? Is there a 
~~r~~e~ for the Texas border narcotics problem that we can take 
back to the Congress? 

Mr. KELLY. The best thing that th7 Congress can do for us P!O
vide us some way of rapidly developIng new t.echno~ogy that Will, 
for lack of a better word, sniff out hard narcotics as It could be a~
plied to containers of merchandise and packages and motor vehI-
cles. , h I 

That's where we could use some e~. , . 
Mr. GILMAN. Well, Mr. Chairman, If you II YIeld, ?O you know 

whether any research is going on now at the present time? t th t' 
Mr KELLY. Yes. We have an inhouse R&D departmen a s 

working hard on this. I would like to see those efforts extended out
side the Customs Service even. 

M GILMAN Well do any of you gentlemen know whether any 
of th~ ~ther s~rvice~ are engaged in this kind of research or re-
quested it? . . h th C t 

Mr HAMBRICK. We know that we're workIng WIt. e u~ oms 
Servi~e in their R&D, one R&D to another, ~r. GI~man, I.n a~
tempting to come up with some kind of a senSIng deVIce, whIch IS 
drastically needed by both. ., t' d 

I think that we have not been too suc~essful Ii!- what we ve ne 
so far. And I think that's what we're trYIng to bnn& ?ut. 

Mr RANGEL. Mr. Hedges, we visit other communIties t~r?ughout 
th United States and we have found with local authorIties that 
th: number of act~al arrests have been conditioned. on the expense 
of a trial. And it's just heartb!eaking, as an Amencan, to see the 
American justice system breakmg down to that extent. 
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There is no question some of our urban communities that the 
commissioners of prisons dictate to the judges what their probation 
and bail procedures have to be because of lack of space in the jail. 
There is no question that many of the judges have instructed the 
prosecutors as to the number of cases that they can handle because 
of case load. And it's my understanding that a lot of prosecutors 
have then informed local enforcement officers that they just won't 
be able to handle a large number of narcotics cases. 

Now, we've been forced to accept that on the local level, and you 
came pretty close to saying that we are about to have the same 
problem on the Federal level. In other words, you said that case 
load is with the courts, and that's another problem. And let the 
judges and the Federal Bureau of Prisons handle that. 

I don't know whether we'll be hearing from the judiciary branch 
of Government, but I do hope that you'll be able to get some type 
of paper to the committee that will give us a chance to evaluate as 
to whethel' or not we can expect, either now or sometime in the 
future, that people will just not be arrested because of the inability 
of the judiciary system to process the arrests. 

Mr. HEDGES. Can I respond very briefly? 
That hasn't happened, yet, and I certainly hope it doesn't. We've 

come pretty close. I have had the marshal call me on two occasions 
to say we, literally, do not have a single space in a single jail to 
which we have access in the southern district of Texas. 

And rather than just stop making arrests, we scrambled and we 
have come up with something. But it has actually reached that 
point. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, it should break your heart, as a prosecutor, to 
know that throughout these United States, on the local level, this 
is happening. And this is especially so when the counties have to
or the sheriffs have to go out and get elected, and the counties 
have to pay incre~.ses in taxes because they've had some big narcot
ics problems. 

Let me thank you on behalf of all the members of this commit
tee. I do hope that you interpret the severity of our questioning as 
just our way of trying to help. It's very difficult for us to return to 
our constituents and explain how everything is increasing in terms 
of success and how we're appropriating more money and how ev
eryone is satisfied with the way things are going, only to find out 
that we also are telling them to expect a bumper crop, 

And we're not trained in diplomacy, but one thing is clear with 
the Mexican Government. It appears as though they have lesser ar
rests now than ever before of narcotics traffickers, but their coop
eration with our efforts have increased. 

So, that's-we will have to get people to interpret that for us, too. 
But we want you to know that our record will remain open. If 

there were questions that you wished that we had asked you or be
cause we cut back in your testimony, then we want you to know 
that you can send that directly to us in Washington, and it will be 
inserted in the record. 

And I will ask Congressman Ortiz to close out the panel for us. 
Mr. ORTIZ. Just one more short question. 
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You were talking about narcotics being big business, big money. 
At what point is IRS being referred to some of these cases? k 

Mr" HEDGES A great deal. IRS is a member of the drug tas 
force: They ar~ present. In a substantial percentage of those cases, 
IRS has a very major involvement. I 

I think, because of the way we're approaching tho~e cases, a ot 
of them are going to be-they're going to en~ up beIng tax cases. 
We're going to end up getting some of t~e 1!laJor tr~ffickers, not on 
drug charges, but on tax charges. IRS is Intimately Involved. 

Mr. ORTIZ. Thank you very much. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. I thank the entire panel. . 
We'll break for 5 minutes, and then the next panel WIll be .th~ 

sheriff of Brownsville, Mr. Rousseau; the sh~riff of c'0rpus Christi; 
the police chief of Corpus Christi; and the chIef of polIce of Browns
ville. 

Recess for 5 minutes. 
[Recess.] . . 
Mr. RANGEL. The committee WIll resume our hearings. 
At this time, we'll hear from our local l~w enforcement panel. 
Mr. Rousseau is not with us from Broyv~sville. 
Mr. Hickey, the sheriff of Corpus Christl. 
Mr. Banner, our chief of poli?e here. . . 
And Mr. Vega, who is the chIef of polIce ~f Bro~ns'tlllle .. 
As you can see we're very interested In askIng questIOns and 

trying to find out'how we can be helpful. We're her.e to help and 
not to be critical, even though, unfortunately, sometImes we come 
across that way. ld 

We have your prepared statements. We hope that you cou. sum
marize them. And even to the point of after we conclll;de, If the~e 
are some questions that you wish we had asked, t?-en time permIt
ting, I would ask you to give answers to those thIngs that are not 

coS~r;:~se we start with l\fr. Hickey, right here from Corpus Chris
ti. 

TESTIMONY OF JAMES T. HICKEY, SHERIFF, NUECES COUNTY, 
CORPUS CHRISTI, TX 

Mr. HICKEY. I think we've heard in the testimony and will hear 
more of the type of testimony we'v.e hear~ th~t we do. J:.ave a very 
serious problem. We've been workIng on It WIth traditional meth
ods for many, many years, and we have not solved the ~roblem. 

And the consensus that I'm able to gather of the variOUS la~ en
forcement administrators of this area and o,f the recently reac~Ivhlt
ed Coastal Bend Major Crime Task Force IS tha~ we ,are pro a; y 
getting in confiscation of narcotics, the proverbIal tip of the ICe-
berg. P~'obably, 1 percent, if that. . . h' 

And the problems that I find among my fellow offI.cers In t IS 
area is that they feel that shortages of manpower, eqUIpment, and 
funds; the decreased personnellevel~ of Federal enforc~ment agen
cies; lack of educational programs In th~ ~chools,. f~r Instance, to 
forestall entry into drug use' lack of specIalIzed traInIng for nar~ot
ics agents; and other operational defIciencies that we usually fInd 
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in an! function that i~ less than reasonably successful. All of these 
contrIbute to our prob.lem and are the things which we must over
come. 

While I feel that the enforcement effort can and must be devel
oped to its highest potEmtial, it is not alone the answer to the prob
lem. 

I think as solutions to it, of course, first of all, that we must feel 
that, while law enforcement is not the total solution we must 
move forward in that area as if it were. ' 
A~d. as enforcement solutions, I would propose the allocation of 

realIstic levels of Federal manpower to those areas that experience 
and are most suitable to extensive infiltration of narcotics most 
notably, here in this area; assistance at the local level in 'equip
ment funds; cooperation and communications capabilities among 
agencies at all levels, which can best be affected at the Federal level. 

As a departure from traditional type enforcements are deter
rence ~fforts. I wo~ld s~y this is in addition £;0 the present criminal 
penaltIes of fine, ImpriSOnment, confiscation and import taxation. 
Ther~ should be imposed on the narcotics dealer a more compre
hensIVe penalty that pr'Bcludes the possibility of exemption from 
laws due to complication., for example, on the basis of the Govern
ment's inability to prove that certain assets were derived from nar
cotics profits. 
~ow, I. first heard of this almost 2 years ago, and I thought that 

thIS particular concept did not receive the attention it deserved at 
that time. And I feel it should be explored. 

One of the misunderstandings at the time was that we would just 
tax people wh<? were dealing in narcotics and let them go their 
~erry. ~ay. ThIs, of course, was not true. This would be a penalty 
In addItIOn to all of the other penalties. 

T.his w~uld be that if a seized narcotics inventory were defined as 
ordInary Income, because of the known, rapid turnover of the prod
uct, then the street value of that inventory could be the basis of a 
tax levy. In other words, the liquidity, the negotiable nature of a 
narcotics substance would make it the equivalent of cash and the 
~ere possession would make it taxable as unrEJported, ordinary Income. 

A statute could provide for the legal presumption to so defme 
na~cotics. Where now there are many assets excluded from confis
cat~on, none of thf;:;:~J'1 would escape a tax lien issuing from an IRS 
actIOn. The deterrent effects would be considerably more than the 
trafficker now faces as penalties. 

Enforcement, though, as I've said, is not enough and another ap-
proach is needed. ' 

In viewing the manner in. which we arrive at a given place of cir
cumstance, can we not also consider the same vehicle for our 
return? The influences 'Y~ic:h caused the problem of widespread 
narcotics use can be applIed In reverse fashion. At least, some can. 
. The h~r~ful advice of I?rofessionals and other significant figures 
In the sIxties and seventies exhorting students to try marijuana, 
for example, can be reversed by persons of today in that category 
who speak the truth about the dangers of narcotics but more im-
portantly, who express disapproval of their use. ' 
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Many who extolled the benefits of drugs earlier have. re,:ersed 
their position after having had the chance to study 10ngitudInal~y 
the effects of narcotics in the lives of users. But who he~rs. theIr 
repudiation of their own earlier ignorance? The new~ medIa IS not 
as attentive to the issue as they were when ~ forb~d.den act was 
being advocated by someone who, by virtue of hIS posItion, demand-
ed attention and respect. . . 

I suggest that we fight fire with fire. That is, that In the sa;me 
wav in which Americans were exposed to .bad example, bad advIce, 
bad lawmaking, bad judici.al ~ecisi<?ns~ wishy-wash~ serm~>ns from 
the pulpit, leadership lackmg In princIples and fortitude, Impot.ent 
and uncaring parenting, let them now be ~xposed to ~he O~posites 
in a most positive way with the only;negatIve expreSSIOn beIng our 
extreme disapproval of harmful practices. 

Historically, Americans have measured up to whatever emergeJ?
cy endangered their wellbeing. !hey. can. measure up to. thIS 
present plague if proper leadershIp eXIsts, If good example IS set 
and encouraged by those whom the:y trust. . 

I suggest it is possible to establIsh, on a natIOnal level, a move
ment which would not only make our soci~ty ~w~re of the need to 
regain its moral balance, but would also Instill In man! of t?ose 
whom we trust to lead, the courage to loud~y and publIcly dIsap
prove of narcotics use. A~proval helped to brmg on the abuse. May 
not disapproval help end It? . 

I was reminded after the drafting of this st~tement by talkIng 
with Lt. Gen. William Maloney of the U.S .. M~rIn~ Corps, who was 
here recently, who said that they are elImInatIng many of the 
problems of drug use in the Marine C<;>rps by one .aspect, one ele
ment, of what was earlier the cause.of It, a~d ~hat IS peer pressu~e 
that individual marines are expressIng theIr dIsapproval and theIr 
fellow marines are listening to them. . 

Such a program would be an am'J?itious underta.kIng and wo:uld 
call for resources not available at the local level In the organIza
tional and conlmunication requireme~ts. At th<: ~ederal lev~l, 
much more is possible. All that is requIred to begIn IS leadershIp. 

Thank you. 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Sheriff. 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Hickey appears on p. 1~5.] 
Mr RANGEL. The committee would like to hear from BIll Banner, 

the chief of police of Corpus Christi. 

TESTIMONY OF WILLIAM C. BANNER, CHIEF OF POLICE, CORPUS 
CHRISTI, TX 

Mr. BANNER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. . . 
The issue of drug trafficking and drug abuse today IS a ~ultIfa

ceted problem that affects a community in a man~er unlIke any 
other criminal activity. Drug abuse spans generation gaI?s, cuts 
across sociological and socioeconomic planes, and touches vlrtual~y 
every segment of American society. South Texas and Corpus ChriS-
ti are certainly included in that segment.. . 

Intelligence information indicates that, as a result of. IntensIfi.ed 
Federal efforts toward the interdic~ion of ma~i~e and aIr narcotIcs 
smuggling in south Florida, there IS a probabIlIty that an un deter-
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mined portion of that smuggling activity 'will be, and is, redirected 
toward other gulf coast areas. 

Furthermore there are recent indications that connections be
tween south T~xas and Coastal Bend figures and Florida drug traf
fickers and suppliers have been established to a more significant 
degree than in the past. 

The Coastal Bend because of its flat continental shelf and 
remote stretches of u~inhabited beaches, affords smuggling vessels 
a topographical advantage over many other, more popufa~ed arc::as. 

In addition the rural area adjacent to Corpus ChrIstl conSIsts 
mainly of isol~ted farm and ranch land that is e::speci.ally.conducive 
to the construction and maintenance of clandestine aIrstrIps. 

Because of the geographical advantages and the minimum num
bers of law enforcement personnel to cover this large territory, the 
Corpus Christi and the Coastal.Bend area. certai~l:y .could be consid-
ered a prime avenue for narcotlcs smugglIng actiVItIes: ... 

Along with being geographicall:y su~ted ~or sm~gglIng ~CtlVItlc::S, 
Corpus Christi is also the first major CIty WIth an InternatIOnal aIr-
port north of the eastern Texas-Mexican bord~r. . 

In addition. factors such as having convenIent water access, rail 
and truckiD":i facilities being north of the Border Patrol checkpoints 
make it plausible to consider Corpus Christi as an advantageous 
link in the overland distribution routes of illicit narcotics that are 
destined for points farther north. .. ., . 

As a result, the incidences of traffickIng In marIJuana, cocaIne, 
heroin and methamphetamine in our city are increasing. 
Bec~use of the greater quantitic::s of n~rcotics., the 'pri~e. of the 

drug is steadily dropping, thereby IncreaSIng theIr avaIlabilIty to a 
greater number of people. 

For example, in 1981, a kilo of cocaine in Corpus Christi was 
priced at $75,000. Today, that same kilo can be purchased for 
$40,000. . . 

In addition the cocaine distributed on the streets of thIS CIty last 
year averaged from between 30 aD:d 4.0 percent in purity, w~ereas 
recent seizures of the drug have IndIcated a conSIstent PUrIty of 
over 80 percent. . 

Similar statements can be made about recent herOIn and meth-
amphetamine seizures. 

The enhanced quantity and quality of narcotics can only lead to 
increased trafficking activities in the future. 

Other factors, such as, reduction of personnel in the local DEA 
office, make the role of the police in drug enforcement difficult,' at 
best. 

As the Federal Government has recently experienced, successful 
narcotics enforcement in any area is costly, requiring vast re
sources of manpower and material if that effort is to preva:i!. Loc~.l 
jurisdictions are hardpressed to provide such efforts, espeCIally In 
the face of municipal budget cuts and reduced ~r canceled ~ederal 
programs previously in existence that were deSIgned to aSSIst mu-
nicipalities in law enforce:ment ~fforts. . .., 

Adding to the problem IS the IncreaSIng sophIsticatIon. of the pop
ulation. that is using the drugs; for example, the recreatIOnal use <?f 
cocaine by professionals is becoming widespread. And as a result, It 
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has become difficult for police to penetrate the social circles and 
professional relationships that exist. 

It is also common in south Texas for heroin and marijuana traf
ficking organizations to consist exclusively of entire families, there
fore making it very difficult for police to infiltrate, or even develop 
information about, their activities. 

However, as difficult as the problem may seem, steps are behlg 
taken to combat it. For example, there are an increasing number of 
drug educational and treatment programs in existence today in 
Corpus Christi. There further appears to be a new emphasis to edu
cate citizens on drug abuse, treat those individuals who are addict
ed to drugs, and to provide service and information to the commu
nity. 

Furthermore, an aggressive drug policy has been adopted by our 
local school district that provides for mandatory suspensions for 
those students who bring illegal drugs onto the campus. 

New laws have been enacted on the State level to combat the in
creasing drug problem in Texas that provide for enhanced penal
ties for aggravated drug offenses and forfeiture provisions that 
offer law enforcement the means to seize assets of drug offenders 
in certain trafficking offenses. 

In addition, a wiretap statute has been enacted that has proven 
to be a successful tool against major drug traffickers. 

These ende=-vors to combat drug abuse and narcotics smuggling 
clearly point out that it is not only a police problem, but a societal 
one. If we are to be successful in our efforts to SUbstantially reduce 
its effects on our cities, it is essential that we address it within that 
scope. Only with the combined forces of government and citizens 
working together will we be able to realize our goal. 

Thank you. 
. Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Chief Banner. 

[The prepared statement of Mr. Banner appears on p. 198.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Chief Vega, Brownsville Police Department. 

TESTIMONY OF ANDY VEGA, CHIEF OF POLiCE, BROWNSVILLE, 
TX 

Mr. VEGA. Mr. Chairman, initially, I'd like to thank you and this 
committee for allowing me to be a part of this panel. It certainly 
gives me an opportunity to present my vews as far as drug abuse 
and drug trafficking is concerned in our jurisdiction. 

My prepared statement has been delivered to you, and I will try 
to read some excerpts from it and try to make the high points. 
Some of this information has already been stated in previous testi
.mony. 

Initially, I mentioned in my report that we have a unique situa
tion in the city of Brownsville in our lower valley because of the 
fact that we are right on the border next to Mexico. 

Many people will argue whether or not this is an advantage to 
us, both politically and economically. I think this is a point of 
much discussion. 

I venture to say, from the standpoint of law enforcement, we do 
have a problem. 

Q 
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The figures that I mention in the report are just simply to give 
you an idea of what the situation is, some of the things that we 
have to deal with, and I think that I speak for many cities of com
parable size throughout the border from Brownsville all the way to 
San Diego, CA. 

The city of Brownsville has a population of about 90,000 people. 
The Chamber of Commerce has estimated that we carry about 
50,000 residents between September and April of each year. 

In addition to that, we have 350,000 citizens in our sister city of 
Matamoros. 

Conservatively speaking, I would say they have about 130,000 
citizens that we have to deal with on a daily basis in our communi
ty. 

Geographically, the city of Brownsville covers about 30 square 
miles, and we currently have about 112 officers, with about 33 civil
ian support personnel. 

Certainly, if you start considering the number of calls with 
130,000 people, that certainly is not enough to cover the substantial 
amount of reserves that it requires within our community. 

This brings us to the issues under consideration by this commit
tee. 

In order to effectively launch a full-scale and effective drug en
forcement program within our community would take about, 
roughly speaking, 20 officers to work the street drug peddlers and 
the bulk smugglers. 

The only unit that we currently have that is operational is the 
Cameron County Organized Crime Task Force, which is an offshoot 
of the Brownsville Police Department, and this force consists of two 
field officers, a supervisor, and a secretary. 

Gentlemen, this is hardly the beginning to try to effectively 
launch a narcotics enforcement program in this area. 

Because of our current economic situation, we have not been able 
to hire additional personnel to reinforce the ranks an.d adequately 
serve the day-to-day activities of police service, much less to imple
ment a specialized, adequately manned, and fully equipped narcot
ics enforcement unit. 

Over the years? our crime task force has, in combination with the 
various Federal law enforcem.Emt agencies, addressed drug traffick
ing in the area. However, this system appears hardly adequate 
since the Federal agencies recently have experienced that they are 
not adequately staffed either. 

Even so, a great number of cases have been made with their com
bined efforts, and they are to be commended for what they have 
accomplished. 

What can we do with the narcotics and drug trafficking problem? 
This has been, and will continue to be, a very serious question to 
all in law enforcement and, certainly, to the citizens that we serve. 

Initially, in the late sixties, the Omnibus Crime Control Act 
through the Law Enforcement Assistance Administration, Federal 
funding was provided to the local agencies in the United States. 
The act served its purpose well, with, perhaps, some reservations. 

Since the abolishment of this agency, the State of Texas has now 
taken on the responsibility of categorical grant assistance to local 
law enforcement agencies. 
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However, the same criteria to determine how these funds are dis
tr:tmted to the various regions remain basically the same as they 
were when Law Enforcement Assistance Administration was in 
effect. The funds are distributed on the basis of popUlation density 
and the statistics shown by the uniform crime report on each indi
vidual region. 

Of course, we're going to find more people and higher crime fig
ures in the metropolitan areas of the State, and I certainly have no 
argument with these areas getting their share of Government as
sistance for law enforcement or other criminal justice projects. But 
I must say that they do receive a larger portion of available funds, 
based on the criteria used for distribution. 

However, let me point out, again, that we on the United States 
and Mexican border do have a unique law enforcement problem. 

I said earlier in my testimony that, although we only number 
about 90,00.0 people in Brownsville, it has not been taken into con
sideration that we have 50,000 tourists during several months of 
any given year. And in addition to that, we have 350,000 people 
across the river. Many come into our community for legitimate 
purposes, and many do not., 

I must say that Federal, State, and local law enforcement agen
cies of the United States-Mexican border are the frontline units 
that are combating the evergrowing narcotics and dangerous drug 
smuggling into this State and into the entire country. 

We must never forget that every ounce of heroin, every kilo of 
marijuana and pound of cocaine that comes through our defense at 
the border will eventually end up being used by some young man 
or woman somewhere in this country. 

Therefore, it is imperative that the law enforcement agencies 
along the border are properly staffed and fully equipped to effec
tively address the menace that is so adversely impacting on our 
way of life. 

I, as an individual, propose that we collectively must do four 
things: 

No.1, Federal financial assistance must be provided to more 
cities in order that communities can develop and implement a good 
narcotics enforcement program. These communities should consid
er the formulation of a regional task force, specifically pro
grammed to target areas. The other local law enforcement can be 
effective as the officers will have full and complete knowledge of 
the people and the environment they will be working in. When an 
agency has limited resources to do a job, its effectiveness subsides 
accordingly. 

No.2, Federal agencies must consider assigning sufficient person
nel and equipment to the border, instead of the metropolitan areas, 
to increase the effectiveness and SUbstantially reduce the chances 
for narcotics traffickers getting through with their illicit cargo. 
Federal, State, and local agencies-in the same instance, the 
mutual cooperation between Federal, State, and local agencies is a 
must. Without cooperation between law enforcement agencies, we 
stand to lose the war against the narcotics traffickers. 

No.3, U.S. attorneys and State district attorneys must also be 
provided with additional personnel and financial resources in order 
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for them to vigorously prosecute violators. This will assure arrest 
and timely prosecution of these matters. 

And No.4, narcotics and drug abuse programs should be devel
oped at the elementary level in order that youngsters, at a very 
early age, begin to learn and understand the problem that they 
will be faced with should they, some day, be exposed to this type of 
activity. 

I have provided you with copies of the narcotics enforcement sta
tistics in this report for the last 2 years. I feel that the report is 
self-explanatory and provides you with an idea of what we have to 
deal with in our region. 

In closing, I must reemphasize that one solution to our narcotics 
and drug abuse problem is to address it as closely to the source as 
possible. In order to do this, we need the necessary resources to 
carry out this mission. Plain, simple reasoning will dictate that 
keeping narcotics and dangerous drugs out of the country or mini
mizing their smuggling will prevent their distribution to our citi
zens. 

I, then, ask you to take this matter under consideration. 
We are prepared to do more in narcotics enforcement, but we do 

need assistance. Narcotics and drug abuse in our society affects all 
of us, either directly or indirectly. Federal assistance to the local 
agencies for the purpose of enforcing narcotics laws is simply an
other method of appropriating funds for the defense of this coun
try's welfare. 

[Chief Vega's prepared statement appears on p. 201.] 
Mr. RANGEL. We thank the entire panel, and I af'sume that most 

of you were here to listen to the Federal panel this morning. 
One of the concerns that we have is the degree of cooperation 

that local enforcement officers and officials have with the Federal 
EPIC. 

Now, Mr. Vega, you went into great detail with some recommen
dations that appear to make a lot of sense to me as to what we 
should be doing. 

Have you had the proper vehicle where you could share these 
recommendations with the Federal officials in the area, the law en
forcement officials? 

Mr. VEGA. Mr. Chairman, I-through the years, we have had ex
cellent cooperation with Federal agencies in our area. We have had 
discussions, especially, with the Drug Enforcement Arupinistration 
people in our jurisdiction. And the issues that have bf~en brought 
before this panel today, or this committee, have been discussed 
with them. Possible ideas, solutions such as the ones that I have 
given you, have been discussed at our level. We have discussed 
these issues among local enforcement agencies. 

Sometimes, the situation comes down to two things: We need the 
resources and manpower, and financial resources are not available. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, sometimes the questioning from the commit
tee appears as though we're trying to g~~t you to say there's a lack 
of cooperation. I'm assuming that there is always this cooperation 
with public officials that have to work together, but what we're 
trying to find out: Is there a systematic coordination of efforts? Is 
there intelligence sharing on the recommendations made? Do you 
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develop strategy, and do you collectively come up with an agenda 
that you can present to the Congress? 

Mr. VEGA. Well, in developing intelligence, Mr. Chairman, we 
spare it w~th the Drug Enforcement Administration, and certainly, 
I m confinIng my remarks to narcotics traffic here. 

The development of this information, of course, it could be 4 or 5 
or 10 different cases. And the information, as I understand it is 
carried from Drug Enforcement from our area to their regional'di
rector, or whatever. And from there, apparently, it does go on to 
Washington. 

Exactly how this thing is handled from there on out, I don't 
really rightly know. 
. But we t:r;y to ",:ork the information that we have, as best as pos

sIble, certainly WIth two people or the few people that are avail
able. There's nothing much that you can do with it. 

Mr. RANGEL. You state in your testimony, and accurately so that 
this is a war, and what we're trying to do is see how we ca~ pro
vide the resources and the tools to give to those of you that are on 
the front line of this war. 

It's always good and encouraging to hear the great successes that 
we're having, but if we have cooperation with the Mexican authori
ties, if we have cooperation with the local authorities, if we know 
that 30 percent of the heroin coming into the United States is 
coming in from Mexico, we know that most of it is corn.ing by couri
ers and by automobiles, and if we know that, we should expect 
more to be coming. -

And, yet, we realize that, at the crossing, because of Brownsville 
anU....:I thA l\Jrt:l\""~con t-nuTn nTh", ... "" 4-he-e'8 ~ ~,,~_4- ""o .... "my w1.ere - l.V.i_.A~ U.I. .... v 'Y.L.L 'fT .1..1.'-'.1. \;;I "'.1 L a. JU.1.1.1l1 CV .LlV.1J. 11' 

there's a necessity ·of getting back across that border the;e's very 
little that's being done. ' 

And I'm not saying that I have any answers to that, but to be
~ieve that we have effective border monitoring, as relates to narcot
ICS drugs, would be an understatement, wouldn't it, Chief Vega? 

Mr. VEGA. I would say that the amount of seizures and amount 
of arrests that are being made are very minimal as compared to 
what is coming through. 

And in further answering your question, my suggestion would be 
~o increase the number of Federal officers that we currently have 
In our area and, by the same token, provide assistance to local 
agencies to increase our personnel, our resources, equipment and 
funding in order to be able to mutually, Federal, State, and 'local 
agencies, combine their efforts an.dcreate a two- or three-pronged 
attack into this problem. 

By this, I mean you need to get at the street pusher. You need to 
get at the intermediary. You need to get at the top level individ
uals that are funding the narcotics traffic. 

Mr. RANGEL. But you don't find the Federal presence of law en
forcement on your streets in Brownsville; do you? 

Mr. VEGA. Not to my knowledge. 
Mr. RANGEL. And you're saying that notwithstanding the Federal 

effort that you don't have the resources with your limited police 
~epartme~t t.o do an effective job in terms of narcotics investiga
tIOns and IndICtments. 

" 
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Mr. VEGA. We're doing the best we can under the circumstances. 
But what I consider effective--

Mr. RANGEL. But you have a problem, and you've gone out of 
your way to point out that being a border town, your problems are 
increased. They're unique. You're right there, and everyone knows 
it's coming from a different country. You're not growing opium in 
Brownsville. It comes from the other side of the border. 

Mr. VEGA. That's correct. 
Mr. RANGEL. So, what we're hoping is that somehow your forces 

can get together and tell us the degree of cooperation you're having 
with the Federal Government and where you think the Federal 
Government can be more effective with the resources so that you 
can do a better job. 

And I might ask whether Congressman Ortiz will be willing, on 
behalf of this committee, to have-not a hearing, but a conference 
with the local enforcement officials right here in this area, in the 
border area, to get together to eliminate this whose-on-which-side
of-the-table exchange and see what ideas you can come up with, 
what recommendations you've made to the Federal authorities, 
what have been accepted, and what have been rejected, and for 
what reasons, so that no matter which constituency we go back to 
that we can feel that government, whether it's local, State, or Fed
eral, at least has tried to coordinate their efforts here. 

I know you've talked about a lot of cooperation, but I don't know 
what strategy has come out of it as relates to the police chief, and 
the sheriffs, and the Customs, and DEA, and whether or not all of 
those taxpayers dollars are coming up with a comprehensive border 
program. 

And that's what we hope that can come out of this. 
Mr. Gilman. 
Mr. GILMAN. Thank you, .Mr. Chairman. 
I want to welcome our local law enforcement people here today 

and to thank you for the good testimony. 
I was particularly interested in a couple of comments that Sher

iff Hickey made. 
I note that you were talking about a reactivation of the Coastal 

Bend Major Crimes Task Force. Is that something that's been in 
existence for a while in the past? 

Mr. HICKEY. Yes, sir, it was. I think it was originally started in 
about 1979 or 1980, perhaps even before that, by Sheriff Ortiz, now 
Congressman Ortiz. 

It drew together some nine counties, I believe, at that time. 
Mr. GILMAN. And has that been functioning over that period of 

time? 
Mr. HICKEY. No; it has not. It somehow broke down over time. 

We have, not only got it started again, but it has grown to 13, and 
we hope it will go to 15, counties or more before we're finished. 

Mr. GILMAN. And you're trying to work out some regional ap-
proaches, I take it, to the problem. 

Mr. HICKEY. Yes. 
Mr. GILMAN. And sharing of capability? 
Mr. HICKEY. Sharing of capability and, you know, the resources 

that are available, which are few. Really, we do have manpower 
that's given us that capability. We do not have funds. And this 
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would be one of the things that we would hope to receive some 
help. In the area of funding, as well as training. 

And we will have a sharing of personnel where we can have un
dercover personnel brought in that we can trade out in the various 
areas, various counties. ' 

Mr. GILMAN. Certainly sounds like a worthwhile undertaking. 
Let me ask you: What sort of cooperation are you receiving from 

the Federal enforcement agencies in this region? And I address 
that to all of you. 

MI'. HICKEY. I can speak for my department in this respect, and 
that is that we have always received help from DEA, for instance, 
which was principally charged with investigation of narcotics, and 
that we've never had any problem there,. 

I understand that, perhaps, there is a problem generally, and I 
think that that stems from, for instance DEA's inability to always, 
in every case, trust local law enforcement. They have, just as we 
have all found out, that not in every jurisdiction can you, at any 
given time, totally trust all of those agents that you are working 
with, perhaps because they are loose lipped or whatever. ( 

And I think that wherever we have found that there is not coop
eration with Federal agencies, it stems from that. I think that can 
be corrected by proper training, and I think that that training 
needs to come from DEA. And, this is another thing that we would 
ask for. 

Mr. GILMAN. Mr. Vega and Mr. Banner, how do you feel about 
the cooperation with your Federal law enforcement agencies? 

Mr. BANNER. Our agency has always had very close cooperation 
with DEA. We have not had contact with the drug task force in 
Houston to this point. 

Mr. GILMAN .. They haven't contacted you at all? 
Mr. BANNER. To my knowledge, we have not been contacted, 

other than informational information sent to us relative to its for
mation in the area, but we've had no personal contact, to my 
knowledge. 

Mr. GILMAN. How long has that task force been in operation 
now? 

Mr. BANNER. I heard since May. Didn't somebody say this morn
ing? 

Mr. GILMAN. Has the task force been in touch with you, Mr. 
Vega? 

Mr. VEGA. No, sir. 
Mr. GILMAN. And Mr. Hickey. 
Mr. HICKEY. No, sir. 
Mr. BANNER. We work very closely withDEA, as I stated. DEA 

has had a cutback of personnel, it's my understanding. We've only 
got four people here, I believe, now, a cutback from eight a couple 
of years ago. That concerns us. 

A substantial portion of DEA's manpower time is spent on check
point cases, which gives them very little overlay to work with us. 
But they do work very closely with us and very cooperatively. 

Mr. GILMAN. Mr. Vega/I how has your response been with the 
Federal agencies? Are they working with you at all? 

Mr. VEGA. Yes, sir; in the area of drug trafficking,of course, it's 
Drug Enforcement Administration, and they have. Since we've had 
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the Organized Crime Task Force in operation over 10 years now, 
the cooperation has been very, very good. 

We've also had good cooperation with the Alcohol, Tobacco ~nd 
Firearms Division and, of course, the Federal Bureau of InvestIga
tion. 

And as far as cooperation in that order, we've had it real good, 
and I don't have anything to say about that. 

We have not had any contact with the drug task force, and 
maybe they have their own priorities. Maybe they're working on 
something. But to this point, we have not. . 

Mr. GILMAN. Is your major crimes task force that you fellows 
formed yourselves had an opportunity to meet with the Federal 
people? Have they expressed any interest in meeting with you? 
Have there been any meetings? 

Mr. BANNER. There have been no communications with them, as 
far as I know. 

Mr. HICKEY. Well, we have had, from the local agents, you know, 
with DEA, with Customs, Navy intelligence. We've had them all 
present. And they have--

Mr. GILMAN. You've invited them to come to your meetings. 
Mr. HICKEY. Yes. 
Mr. GILMAN. Have they invited you to come to any of their meet

ings on policy? Have they consulted with you on policy or strategy 
at all? 

Mr. HICKEY. No; not formally. At times, on a casual basis; yes. 
But not formally, that I can recall. 

I think, perhaps, as w~'re getting this thing kicked off, they're 
relying on these meetings to do that for them for exchange of 
ideas. • 

Mr. VEGA. I'd like to qualify what I just said while ago. The drug 
task force had a representative to come down to Brownsville, and 
they met with a number of agencies down there simply to explain 
to them that they were in operation. It's been several months ago. 

But my answer to your question was whether they have contact
ed me in any particular given case, no. 

Mr. GILMAN. Or asked your advice or your best judgment in how 
best to address some of these problems. There's been no consulta
tion of that nature. 

I'm interested, too, Sheriff Hickey, in your suggestion about a tax 
levy on seized inventory. That sounds like a very interesting propo
sition. I think it's something our committee might want to look 
into, ,particularly since our chairman sits on Ways and Me~ns Com
mittee and is in charge of taxes. And Congressman Hall IS also, I 
think, part of that endeavor-I mean, Congres~man Hance. I think 
we might want to take a look at some of those Ideas. 

As you know, we're engaged in some legislation at the present 
time with regard to forfeiture of all assets, including a home, of a 
narcotics trafficker. But I don't know if that includes the inventory 
or not. And it sounds like, certainly, a worthwhile proposal to look 
at further. 

What sort of assistance is your task force getting at State level? 
Are they providing any assistance to you? 
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Mr. HICKEY. We do have, of 'course, the department of public 
safety. The department of public safety is involved in this and has 
always given support. We work a number of cases with them. 

But as far as-well, in fact, there has even been-in SOme of our 
cases this year in my department, there have been funds available 
that have helped us. 

And, in fact, we made the largest heroin buy that we have made 
in my department. Not by the police department, my department. 
It's been this year, which was OVClr 7 ounces. And that was with 
assistance from the department of public safety. 

Mr. GILMAN. Has the safety department provided any funds to 
your local agencies? 

Mr. HICKEY. No, they haven't. Not to mine. 
Mr. GILMAN. I'm reading some testimony here from the Texas 

Governor's office~ and he's going to be testifying a little later in the 
hearing, and he winds it up saying: 

Development of strategies and techniques to control drug smuggling and traffick
ing in Texas, especially in the Texas gulf coast, where large percentage of controlled 
substances enter the State, is a major concern of Governor White and his adminis
tration. Funds available to, the criminal justice division will continue to be priori
tized to give maximum support to law enforcement agencies dedicated to the control 
of drug smuggling. 

Has any of that funding come down? 
Mr. BANNER. We have been supported through the block grant 

program, and our organized crime control unit and our na.rcotics 
task force unit. That support has been diminishing for the past 
couple or 3 years, but we have been consistently supported with 
some monies in those categories. 

Mr. GILMAN. Some support, but going downhill. 
Mr. BANNER. Yes, sir. 
Mr. VEGA. Yes. 
Mr. GILMAN. Despite the fact that trafficking is going uphill and 

accelerating; is that correct? In all of your areas, are you finding 
narcotics use and trafficking increasing? 

Mr. HICKEY. Yes. 
Mr. BANNER. We believe it's on the increase. 
Mr. GILMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Ortiz. 
Mr. ORTIZ. Mr. Vega, you might be able to shed some light if you 

have the statistics. How many violations or crimes are committed 
by people from Mexico who come into the Brownsville area? 
• Mr. VEGA. Congressman, I don't have the, you know, the given 
sta.iistics from the uniform crime report, as such, because we don't 
categorize them as being illegal aliens or whatever. 

My estimation is that, for example, taking one particular offense, 
burglary, I can go as high as 40 percent of all the burglaries that 
are committed, are committed by illegal aliens. 

Mr. ORTIZ. Forty percent. . 
Mr. VEGA. Yes, sir. 
Mr. ORTIZ. At this point, you are fighting an international prob

lem with local police officers and with local funds. Is that it? 
I\1r. VEGA. This is what it amounts to, really. The situation 

where we're having to deal with people coming in from Mexico 
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with local funding and, certainly, you develop priorities as to what 
needs to be addressed first. 

One of our major problems right now is burglaries, and we have 
complaining witnesses in these matters. Certainly, you have to ad-
dress that, primarily. . 

When. you look into the situation of narcotics trafficking, and, of 
course, you have two people agreeing to commit a crime in a situa
tion where you don't have a witness. And it is a much, much 
hard.er case to develop. 

So, what I'm saying is that we have to prioritize as to what we 
are going to address first. And certainly, this is a problem because 
we're having people coming in from Mexico. And I'm not saying 
that they are the ones to blame for our entire problems but cer-
tainly, that is a contributing factor, right there. ' 

Mr. ORT~Z. Let me ~sk you another question now. Do you have a 
task force In BrownSVIlle or Cameron County. If so who is assigned 
to it and how does it work? ' 
. Mr. VE~~A. Our crime task force was originally composed of addi

tIona! polIce officers. of Cameron 90unty, the city of Harlingen, and 
the CIty of BrownsVIlle. At that tIme, we had about six officers as
signed to it. 
. Since that time, the dty of Harlingen has pulled out of the task 
force. The district attorney's office has also pulled out of the task 
force because of unavailability of funds for that purpose. 

So, consequently, the only ones who are operating the unit now 
is the city of Brownsville. 

The sheriff has expressed to us that he does not desire to partici
pate of whatever reason, the funding probably. 
. So, consequently, we're sitting there by ourselves, and I don't 
ngh~ly kn?w w~ether we are going to be able to get additional 
fundI~g. thIS comI,ng fiscal y~ar, bec!luse one of the requirements is 
that. It IS a multlagency unIt. So, if we apply for funds now this 
comIng. ~ear a~ the city of Brownsville Organized Crime Task 
Force, It IS pOSSIble that we may not get funding. 

Mr. 0RTIZ. What about when we're talking about intelligence in
fO'cinatwn? Do you have that rapport at the Federal level with the 
DEA and Customs? Can you exchange information and workups? 
Have you done that in the past? 

Mr. VEG:'-. That ~a~ been ?one in the past and has been very, 
very effectIvla. And It s certaInly one of the reasons that this has 
been, out of theeooperation that we've had with people. And I'm a 
firm believer that in order to effectively combat the narcotics traf, 
fic, you've got to have cooperation among the val'ious agencies that 
are interested. 

The flow of information has been of give and take, and we work 
cases together. 1; for one, have never felt that because one of my 
men develops information and then carries it on and develops a 
case that we should have the case. I don't care who prosecutes as 
long as we get prosecution. I don't care whether it's the Stat~ or 
th/~ ~ederal Government, as long as we get somebody out of com
mltSSIOn. 

Mr. ORTIZ. What about these big cases? I guess I asked the same 
question of the Federal agencies. In preparing a case, when it gets 
to the point where you need to have some flash money or you need 
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to have some buy money, are you financially able to put a dent 
into the big narcotics pushers with the amount of money that you 
might have at this point? . 

Mr. VEGA. No, we don't. When. we have to have flash money, .we 
have to go to the Federal agencies. Usually, drug enforcement SItu
ations when we could work cases on a buy-and-walk type oper
ation 'we do not have the funds to do that. So, we just don't take , 
that approach. 

Mr. ORTIZ. But the Federal people make it available when you 
need it? 

Mr. VEGA. Yes, sir. 
Mr. ORTIZ. They do. ., . . 
Mr. VEGA. Now, I'll qualify that by saying that It s hmIted. 

Sometimes they have cases going, and sometimes we may have 
ours and it depends on the situation. They may be able to help us 
out br not. Because they have their guidelines they have to follow, 
also. . t' d 

.Mr. ORTIZ. Going back to my previous questIOn, you men lOne 
burglaries as about 40 percent of the cases. How many are drug re-
lated? Any idea? 

IVlr. VEGA. I don't think that I could answer that. AB far as our 
intelligence is concerned, some of the residential burglaries, for ex
ample, the removal of firearms, electronic .equil?ment, jewelry,~h~t 
is something that is easily sold, and our IntellIgence sources IndI
cate that this is going as a tradeoff for drugs. 

~Ylr. OR'rlz. Thank you, Idr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you. 
Mr. Hall. 
Mr. HALL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman . 
You gentlemen have made it abundantly clear that the drug tas.k 

force has not been in touch with you about any area of t~elr 
domain. Have you tried to contact them to try to get worked Into 
their program? 

Mr. BANNER. No, sir, I have not. 
Mr. HICKEY. No, I have not. 
Mr. HALL. Now, we talked about the cooperatio? between the 

State and the Federal and I think, by and large, it s good. And of 
CDurse I realize you three people are the front liI?-es of this war, as 
you indicated. And that's certainly what it is.. . 

We've heard testimony from many people In other countrIes, Co
lombia Sweden some in Mexico.· They come telling us about the 
great ~fforts th~t they are making to try to stop this at the source, 
and then they tell us about the economic problems that these coun-
tries are having. . 

And I sometimes wonder if we are getting the cooperatIOn ~r?m 
some of the countries that. they indicate to us that they are gIVIng 

to us. ..' ,.' h t' 11' d N ow with reference to MeXICO, and that s the one t a s a Ie 
with y~u across the border, are you getting the cbopera~ion from 
the Mexican officials that you need to try to dent thIS flow of traf-
fic coming across the border? . 

I'll ask you, sheriff. You1re closest to it. And then, I'll work back 
to Mr. Hickey. 

Q 
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Mr. VEGA. As far as the cooperation in drug trafficking, it's very 
minimal. 'Ve have had, in the past, cases that have been referred 
to us from the Mexican authorities. I couldn't give you a figure as 
far as that is concerned. 

On the other hand, we also have-diverting myself a little bit 
from the drug traffic, we have had a major problem in the area of 
stolen automobiles. At one time about 2 years ago, we were experi
encing the theft of over 100 automobiles a month in Brownsville 
alone. That has subsided now to about 40 or 45 a month. 

Now, the cooperation that was implemented as soon as the cur
rent administration took over-I'm talking about the mayor and 
the chief of police of the city of Matamoros-that changed consider
ably, because we used to take anywhere from 20 to 30 days to try 
to get a stolen vehicle back into the United States once it was re
covered in Mexico. Since these people took over, we are getting 
them back within a matter of hours or a matter of 2 or 3 days. 

Mr. HALL. Let's talk about narcotics. 
Mr. VEGA. Narcotics, very minimal information. Very minimal 

cooperation. . 
Mr. HALL. If you have information-anq I'm giving you a situa

tion here that calls for a certain amount of devil's advocacy on my 
part. If you have information that narcotics are coming into 
Brownsville in large quantities, and you have information to be
lieve that you know where it's coming from across the border, can 
you contact the official in Mexico and alert that official, and will 
they do anything toward trying to apprehend that person? 

Mr. VEGA. I think so. I think that if we have the information ex
actly where it was coming from that it would be either the local, 
the State, or the Federal judicial police. I think we have coopera
tion, and I think he would go into that area and confiscate. 

Mr. HALL. Now, when you say it's minimal, what do you mean by 
that? When you say that the cooperation you're getting from 
Mexico on drug trafficking is minimal, using your language, what 
do you mean by that? 

Mr. VEGA. I'm talking about information coming in from the 
Mexican authorities to us. Information concerning drug trafficking. 

Mr. HALL. Do you have reason to believe that they may know of 
instances where drug trafficking is going on over and across the 
border into Texas and they don't tell you about it? 

Mr. VEgA. I would-I've. got some suspicions, but that's about as 
much as I can say. I couldn't very well testify that, yes, this is--

Mr. HALL. I understand you're right across the border looking at 
these people every day, and I don't want to, in allY way, hurt the 
situation that you have now. But I'm concerned greatly about this 
cooperation that they claim they're giving us. Frankly, I don't 
think they are, I may not eat with them tonight for this, but I 
might let them eat it first and I'll taste it later. 

Chief, I'll ask the same question. How do you stand on that situa
tion? Are we really getting the cooperation from Mexico that we 
need to hav€ to try to put a dent in this? 

Mr. BAN~'E,R. I think good from the standpoint of a local-level co
operation-now, when you get to the higher echelons of the Feder
al agencies that haV'e agents in Mexico and have established per
sonal contact, it may be a different thing. But from the standpoint 
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of a local cooperation· with the people across the river, in this 
regard, I think it's practically nonexistent, except for specific, nar
rowly defined sorts of cases. 

Congressman Ortiz and I went to Mexico and established what 
we felt was a very good contact with the Attorney General of 
Mexico, and subsequent to that visit, we felt that in specific cases 
we could call this gentleman and get information that was solid 
and that our request would not go anywhere else. 

But these are unusual situations. And on the whole, I think the 
cooperation, working cooperation, between the local and State 
people with their counterparts across the river is rather dismal in 
looking at history. 

If I could put a caveat on Chief Vega's response about be~ng able 
to call an individual across the river and if you gave that person 
information about where some narcotics was, I expect we could do 
that. I would expect, certainly, that Chief Vega would have connec
tions across the river that would tell him who he could call to get 
that done. 

I would not have that kind of optimism about making a call 
across the river to someone who I did not know personally. 

Mr. HICKEY. Along these lines, I can only speak from hearsay, 
but I have numerous contacts in Mexico, relatives, in fact, in a 
mountainous region of Mexico where a great deal of the poppy is 
grown and in the valleys where the marijuana is grown. I have 
friends there who are businessmen who know what's going on in 
Mexico, and they say that the drug eradication-U.s.-sponsored 
drug eradication program was something that was always a farce, 
that it was for the benefit of the generals of Mexico who adminis
tered the program locally, and that they would do so for-they 
would put on a show of support and assistance and actually go out 
and destroy many, many acres of marijuana and poppies. But there 
were areas that were, perhaps, not visited then. 

Mr. HALL. Well, do you believe, all of you believe, that we must 
have the cooperation of Mexico to help solve this problem? 

Mr. HICKEY. I think so. I think we must. And I'm not quite sure 
how that is to be gained. 

And I'm not-you know, when you have individuals there that 
may be engaging in these practices of putting on a show so as to 
get this. And I personally believe it, although I can't prove that 
that exists. 

I think there's something much, you know, much deeper under 
all of this. 

And this was expressed some years ago in an interview that I 
saw on "20/20" or one of thQae shows, and it was about the drug 
eradication program. They interviewed the Attorney General of 
Mexico, who, I felt was sincere in what he was saying. And he 
summed it all up and he said, "If you Americans didn't use dope, 
our criminals would not grow it." 

And I think that that is probably the root of the thing, that 
somehow we have to get back to what we were 30 or 40 years ago, 
and that is have people who did not believe in it. 

Mr. HALL. Well, I agree. There's no question about that. 
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But getting down to the practicalities of what's going on tod.ay, 
yes, I agree with everything you have in your statement. I thlnk 
it's a fine statement. 

But I'm just not sold, yet, on. these bleedin9 hearts ?omin.g to us 
from these other countries tellIng us that -yve re working wlth you 
every way we can. . . 

I think what you say about the eradlcatlon program, to an 
extent has been an absolute· farce. I think they've done it for pur
poses 'of making it appear. that they're working with us much, 
much closer than they really. are. 

My fmal question is this: All of yourAestimony gets down to the 
bottom line vou need more money and you need more personnel. 
And I think that's what we've heard prior to your testimony. 

Do you need more personnel locally, or do you need more person
nel from the Federal level helping you locally? Where do you need 
the personnel? 

Mr. VEGA. Both sides .. 
Mr. HICKEY. I think, perhaps, both, but more heavily on the Fed-

eral help because of their jurisdictional considerations. 
Mr. HALL. How many people, DEA people, do you have, Chief, in 

Corpus Christi now ~orking with you? . 
Mr. BANNER. T belIeve there are four, a supervlsor and three. 
Mr. HALL. And how many customs people? 
Mr. BANNER. I don't know how many customs people there are. 
Mr. HALL. And Immigration? . ' , 
Mr. BANNER. I don't know. I cart get that lnformation, but I don t 

have it at my fingertips. 
Mr. HALL. Sheriff Hickey, how many customs people do you 

know? 
l\i1r. HICKEY. Offhand, I don't. 
Mr. HALL. Or Immigration? 
Mr. HICI{EY. There again, I think it's very sparse. 
Mr. HALL, And four op. DEA. 
Mr. HICKEY. Four. 
Mr. HALL. What about down in Brownsville? . 
Mr. VEGA. I think they've got six people in Brownsville. 
Mr. HALL. DEA? 
Mr. VEGA. Drug Enforcement, yes. 
Mr~ HALL. And what about Customs? 
Mr. VEGA. I have no idea. 
Mr. HALL. Immigration? 
Mr. VEGA. I have no idea. 
Mr. HALL. Well, now, to me, that's something you people should 

know. Why don't you know how many customs people are. working 
in Corpus Christi and in Brownsville? 

Yes, sir. . ' . 
Mr. BANNER. Well, unlIke the preVlous people who testified, the 

parameters of our responsibilities are very small. Anythin~ .t~at 
occurs'within the city limits of Corpus Christi is my responsibillty. 

Mr. HALL. I understand and appreciate that. And nothing occurs 
. here relative to narcotics that doesn't begin or transpire some-
where else, part of it. .... 

Mr. BANNER. And our manpower sltuatIon from the standpOInt 
of people in Corpus Christi available work on a case. They are all I 
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in our police department, we have a very supportive council. They 
respond to our requests for manpower. . 

Our requests for manpower and our manpower in the city of 
Corpus Christi does little to address the overall problem that we've 
been speaking to here today. . . 

Mr. HALL. Well, suppose you know that within the city limits of 
Corp~s Christi you have someone who is conducting-first, he's 
here Illegally, and that person is conducting a smuggling operation 
on narcotics. . 

Doesn't that come under your jurisdiction? 
Mr. BANNER. Yes, sir, it sure does. 
Mr. HALL. Well, when you find out that, don't you determine 

that you should contact DEA or Customs and Immigration? 
Mr. BANNER. We do that routinely, sir. 
Mr. HALL. Well, how do you do it when you don't know how 

many you have here? Why don't they let you know who's here? 
Mr. BANNER. Well, I know how many DEApeople we have here, 

and I probably should know how many customs people we have 
here; I do not. 

Mr .. HALL. Do you have any? 
Mr. BANNER. Oh, yes, we do. 
Mr. HALL. Does anybody know how many customs people we've 

got tn Corpus Chri$ti? '.-
Mr. HICKEY. I think there may be three or four, at the most. 
Mr. HALL. And how many immigration. people? Does anybody 

know? . ' 
Mr. BANNER. NQ special agents for Immigration, I'm told by my 

lieutenant. 
1\1:r. HALL. No immigration people in Corpus Christi. 
Mr. BANNER. No special agent immigration people. Just patrol of-

ficers here in Corpus Christi. 
Mr. HALL. But no special agents. 
Mr. BANNER. No special agents. 
Mr. HALL. And how far are you from the border? 
Mr. BANNER. A hundred and forty miles. . . 
Mr. HALL. How many illegal aliens do you have in Corpus Chris-

ti, Nueces Co~nty today? . " 
Mr. BANNER. I have no idea. 
Mr. HALL. Nobody else does either, do they? 
Mr. HICKEY. No. 
Mr. HALL. I yield back the balance of my time. 
Mr. RANGE~. Don't you think with the. limited resource that it 

might be helpful if you all got together and had some type of task 
force? . 

Even, Chief Vega, you indicate that some of the localities may 
not even be able to support a contribution to it, at the very least, 
you could come to your Federal Government and say: We can't, 
even afford to get together to exchange our problem and our re-
sources and identify what we have to work with. . }. 
D~ you think jt would be helpful if the chief of police and the 

sherIffs from the border towns that Rhare these mutual problems 
could get together and evaluate what you need? . 

Mr. BANNER. I think it would be extremely helpful. 

Q 
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Mr. RANGEL. Now, it's been my understanding that in Laredo 
that they have put together a city, county, and State and Federal 
task force. Is anyone familiar with it? Does it work? Or have you 
heard of it? 

Mr. BANNER. Sure, I've heard of it. 
Mr. HICKEY. I've heard that they are having some success with it, 

too. 
Mr. RANGEL. Well, we don't want to come and point out the prob-

lems which you know you have. What we'd like to do is to leave 
with some feeling that we're going to try to provide some answers 
for you or to make some resources available. 

We cannot do it with the high level of cooperation that you have, 
both with the Mexican Government and with the Federal officials, 
because with that, you don't need us. 

But I get the impression that cooperation means that they talk 
with you from time to time, and that's OK, since you probably 
have not been enjoying too much of that. 

In any event, what we'd like to do is see whether or not you can 
coordinate your efforts, see whether or not you can prepare a list of 
some of the things that you would like to share with your counter
parts in the Federal Government to allow our member and the 
Congressman from this area to coordinate that effort so that we 
can, on your behalf, not diminish the cooperation that you're 
having with the Federal officials, but in a congressional way 
present some of these things on your behalf. 

Certainly, we may not have to do it individually, which would 
help. If we could do it collectively, as to what resources you need. 

Finally, I'd like to say that it's been my understanding that we 
do know some of the Mexicans that are involved in drug smug
gling, and it's been our information that arrests on the other side 
of the border have decreased, notwithstanding the increase in coop-
eration. 

Now, I've asked this question several times this morning, Chief 
Vega~ and people agree that we have more cooperation and less ar
rests. Does it make any sense to you? 

Mr. VEGA. Well, it does to an extent, Mr. Chairman. I feel that, 
you know, in answer to your proposal there that getting together 
is, perhaps, a beginning. I think we're coming down to the nuts and 
bolts of this thing, and that's-for example, I have discussed with 
our sheriff in Cameron County the possibility of helping us with 
one or two people to keep the task force going. 

His response is that he does not have the personnel, he does not 
have the funding. The work load, as far as serving the subpoenaes 
and the things that his deputies have to do as far as responsibil
ities are concerned, are to the extent that the amount of people 
that he has to serve his matters that he just can't do it. 

So, consequently, you're going back to prioritizing. Now, our situ
ation is that does additional funding help? I think we're getting 
down to that. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, the thing is that I think there has been a 
communication problem because, while all of you have the height 
of cooperation, you don't have the resources and the Federal Gov
ernment's not providing it. 

Am I wrong? 
~ 
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Mr. HICKEY. That's correct. 
M~. ~ANGEL. ~ mean, everybody has cooperation, but the fact is 

the.Job IS not beIng done, and if you can't go out and make investi
gatIon, make buys, and arrest people, and if you can't reliably go to 
DEA and say that XYZ is on the other side of the border and 
they're coming here, or some of our people are going there, and we 
wa~t t? have a ,:oordi~ated investigation and arrest, and produce 
bodIes Ins~ead of Just dIplomacy, it's not working. 

And ChIef Vega, you know, we got in a little trouble with Cus
toms, but I think we cleared it up. That border thing, what do you 
call that checkpoint that you have in Brownsville on the other side 
your sister 'city? ' 

Mr. VEGA. Matamoros? 
Mr. RANGEL. Yes, the checkpo~nt. 
As .long as you're going to enjoy an economic exchange of people 

crossIng that borde! and as long as DEA knows that the majority 
of drugs are crossIng the border by personnel or by vehicle, it 
seems to me that that whole structure, the way it's set up is an 
unworkable situation. ' 

I mean, it's impossible to have people going back and forth to 
work across that border if you're going to have any type of a check 
on drugs as crossing the border. And I think the sooner we admit 
that we can't check and, at the same time, have people cross the 
border that the easier we can come up with some type of solution 
to . se~ whether or not we can produce an easier way and a more 
effectIve way to have people to cross and vehicles to cross and at 
the. same time, at least give the idea that there's some type of ~ar
cotIc check. 

But it appears to me that if you check for narcotics at that point 
at Brownsville, it's a half-hour wait without a check. 

Mr. VEGA. Well, I couldn't answer that. 
Mr. ~ANG~L. B~t someone has to be able, p~rhaps 
I thInk hIS unIqu~ background in law enforcement is a· great 

talent t~at ~e need on the committee, but should it improve the 
communIcatIOn between those of you who have the same experi
ences as the Congressman in bringing it to us. 

So, I thank you for coming, and we look forward to meeting with 
you. 

Could you tell me, Sheriff Hickey, how many arrests you had 
this year? Narcotic arrests? 

Mr. HICKEY. We've had about 25. In the neighborhood of 25. 
Mr. RANGEL. In the year? 
Mr. HICKEY. In the year, to date. 
Mr. RA~G~L. And your overall arrests, what percentage of your 

overall crImInal arrests would that be? 
Mr. HICKEY. Oh, very slight. Very slight. Perhaps, less than 1 

percent, surely. 
Mr. RANGEL. Why would that be? 
M:r:. HICKEY. Well, at any given time, of course, we have cases 

pendmg, buy cases, where we haven't had indictments yet. We may 
have another 25, for instance. 

Even so, we're looking at a very small percentage of overall ar
rests made by the department. A fraction of 1 percent. 
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Mr. RANGEL. Now for the potential criminal, it's safe to say that 
they could sell drug~ in Corpus Christi. without fear of being arrest-
ed. .. . , 

Mr. HICKEY. Almost wIth ImpunIty. That s true. 
We don't have the resour(.es. We don't have the resources. We 

don't have the manpower. We don't have the training. We don't 
have the educational programs that is going to prevent people from 
even getting into it. We don't have--

Mr. RANGEL. Why aren't you screaming with outrage as ~o wh~t 
your government is not doing to help you? I mean, you can t POSSI
bly feel proud, as a sheriff-and I say this as a former Fede~al 
prosecutor-to know that the criminal element, the scum of SOCIe
ty, has just thumbed its nose up at you an~ your o~fi~e. 

Mr. HICKEY. This is true. And I'm afraId that It IS the mood of 
too large a segment of society that is turning it~ back to the whole 
problem. That there is not, as I urg~d, the ~Isapproval, but the 
tacit approval, of drug use. And I thmk that s what we need to 
turn around. . 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, I'd just like to say tacit approval is one thI?-g, 
but- giving a guy 10 or 15 years for breaking the law is somethIng 
else. 

Mr. GILMAN. I thank the chairman for yielding. . 
Sheriff Hickey, what percentage of your personnel devotes theIr 

time and attention to the narcotics problem? 
Mr. HICKEY. This year, it has varied between 3 and 4 out of a 

total of 148. 
Mr. GILMAN. Three or four men out of a total of 148 are your 

narcotics team? 
Mr. HICKEY. That is the full time-- . 
Mr. GILMAN . Well, what percentage of your crime is narcotics re

lated? 
Mr. HICKEY. Fifty percent. 
Mr. GILMAN. Well, then, why is there such ~ low number of per

sonnel devoted to this program? 
Mr. HICKEY. Because under Texas statutes, and most States a~e 

this way, there are certain things that are prescribe~ ~hat a sherIff 
must do. He must serve civil process. He must run a JaIl. 

I've got half of my total personnel running a jail because we 
must comply with Texas jail standards, and if we didn't have the 
Texas Jail Commission, the Federal courts would be all over us. 
And so we've got that fear that we have to comply there. 

We ~annot you know-as Sheriff Ortiz always used to say, "I'd 
rather have 'the 70-odd people that are working the jail on the 
street, and the 25 patrolmen working the jaiL" And I hold that 
same view. 

We've got the constitutional--
Mr. GILMAN. To what body do you have to appeal for your 

budget? 
Mr. HICKEY. To the Commissiol'".I.er's court. . 
Mr. GILMAN. And have you made a request for additional person

nel to go out on the street to handle the na!c'?tics problem? 
Mr. HICKEY. This we have, yes. And thIS IS not somethIng that 

we typically find them amenable to. 
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Mr. GILMAN. You mean, there wouldn't be the community sup
port for increasing the personnel from, it sounds like, 3 percent of 
your total personnel to handle 50 percent of the crime? 

Mr. HICKEY. Well, sadly enough, budget constraints and the econ
omy being what it is, there's very little chance of getting increased 
personnel during certain times because of political' considerations. 

And we have-we've grown quite a lot in the last 6 years in this 
department, but we have quite a ways to go. . 

And there again, I thin~ it's a matter of public perception, and, 
therefore, the representatIves of those constituents in the public 
that, perhaps, this is not all that gr~at a problem right now. 

Mr. GILMAN. Mr. Banner and Mr. Vega, are you confronted with 
the same type of a problem with limited number of personnel to 
handle a major portion of the crime? 

,Mr. BANNE~. Well, I have 34~ sworn people. I have 20 people, 
generally, assIgned to our narcotics problem. Our arrests this year 
were down somewhat. We had something over 1,300 arrests for nar
cotics of all kinds down from 1,600 last year. Now, that's 7 percent 
or so of our total number of arrests, which were 18,000-17,000 ar
rests last year. 

I have the authority to assign whatever manpower I feel is justi
fiable to whatever job I feel needs to be done. 

Mr. GILMAN. And Mr. Vega? 
Mr. VEGA. Mr. Gilman, as I mentioned earlier, our main concen

tration of narcotics, of course, is based on the people that we have 
assigned to the organized crime unit. 

Now, they have various--
Mr. GILMAN. How many do you have assigned? 
Mr. VEGA. Three. 
Mr. GILMAN. Out of how many? 
Mr. VEGA. Out of the total number of officers that I've got, 112. 
Mr. GILMAN. And what percentage of your crime is narcotics re-

lated to? . 
Mr. VEGA. It'~ hard to 'tell. I couldn't give you figures, as far as 

narcotics--
Mr. GILMAN. Well, what would you estimate? 
Mr. VEGA. I would say that, probably, 25, 30 percent, something 

like that. 
Mr. GILMAN. What I'm hearing from all three of you gentlemen 

is . t~at a major portion of your crime is narcotics. related, hut a 
mInlffial amount of your personnel has been assigned to handle 
this problem. Six percent, 3 percent, ranging in that 3 to 6 percent. 

Mr. BANNER. I don't know percentage of my total crime is nar-
cotics related. I don't have that information. ' 

Mr. GILMAN. Well, statistically, across the country, I guess, it 
runs on a means of about, at least, 50 percent if not more. Some 
areas we find it substantially more. . 

Mr. BANNER. I think that depends on whether you're talking to 
the head of your CIB or your narcotics unit. 

Mr. "GILMAN. Would you think you were very far off if you said 
somewhere from 30 to 50 percent is narcotics related? 

Mr. BANNER. Probably somewhere between 30 and 50. 
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Mr. GILMAN. And you're not allocating that amount of your man
power to the problem. You're much-a minimal amount of your 
manpower is being devoted to it. 

Is there something that we're doing wrong in that direction? 
Mr. VEGA. My estimation, Mr. Gilman, is this, that in assigning 

the officers, you have a unique situation when you assign, say, 15 
or 20 men to the enforcement of narcotics laws. Because this type 
of an investigation may take days, even months before you can 
make an arrest. 

Mr. GILMAN. A very specialized form of investigation. 
Mr. VEGA. Precisely. 
But what am I going to do if I assign 20 or 30 men from the 

police department to enforce narcotics laws and a high incidence of 
burglary, high incidence of theft. 

Mr. GILMAN. Isn't a lot of that burglary narcotics related burgla
ry and robbery? That's what we're finding in other police enforce
ment areas. 

Mr. VEGA. This is what the national statistics show. But the 
thing of it is, when you have a robbery, you've got a complainant 
for it that needs to be talked to. A case may be made. You've got to 
assign people to investigate that situation. You may have two or 
three arrests. You need case preparation, you need witnesses, you 
need all these people to go to court. This is the thing that we are 
faced with. 

It's not a matter of assigning people and saying: You're going to 
be assigned to narcotics enforcement, and this is all you are going 
to do. 

We wish we could do that, but it's impossible. 
Mr. RANGEL. Chief, I think what all three of you are saying is 

that enforcement of the narcotics laws is a luxury that, politically, 
you cannot enjoy. 

You're basically saying that narcotics investigations are long, are 
thankless, and they don't make the newspapers. 

When your citizens tell you about a burglary, a robbery, a mug
ging, you have to respond immediately. You can't tell them that a 
large number of your men are undercover or are trying to break 
some big case. 

But I think if you got together privately, you'd be able to say 
that a lot of the crimes that you are forced to respond to are 
caused because of these narcotics transactions that are taking place 
within your jurisdiction. 

Somehow, we're going to have to get that information together, 
because there is no question that undercover work in narcotics is a 
long, drawn out, thankless, and expensive proposition. And it could 
very well be that you could not make the decision to allocate your 
men based on the type of crimes that you have in that city. 

But somebody is going to have to address it. In the sixties and 
seventies, you could say the Federal agents were doing it, but 
they're not doing it now. 

And notwithstanding the cooperati9n that you have, if people are 
dealing in the trafficking and the Ep.lling and the buying in your 
jurisdictions, we'll have to provide tJI'le vehicle where you can share 
that information with us in a very official manner, because it's a 
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very serious national problem. And the fact that you're located 
close to the border makes it even that much more important to us. 

Mr. ORTIZ. Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Ortiz. 
Mr. ORTIZ. I feel that, as public officials, we all have a responsi

bility. We cannot sit idle. We need to go out and try to mold public 
opinion to our support. 

The taxpayers, at this point, are already paying huge sums of 
money on the items that they lose in burglaries, robberies-I could 
go on and on. 

But I feel that we need more public awareness of the seriousness 
of the problem that we have and we need public support. 

And I feel sorry for you because I was once in the same position. 
When I took over the office of we didn't have a single narcotics in
vestigator in the office. I was able to get more manpower. 

But we cannot sit idle. W'e have a responsibility to go out and to 
get public support at any expense. 

This is a very, very serious cancer eating at our society, at our 
young people at all levels. 

And I appreciate you all taking the time to be with us today and 
testifying; I can understand your problem because I've been there. 
You have to contemplate trying to find a solution to a problem that 
is not a local problem but is an international problem having to do 
with people across the border. 

And I know how it is because I used to sit where you are sitting 
today and had to look at reelection and look at getting appointed. 

I feel that our responsibility goes beyond that, and I compliment 
you for being with us today. 

Mr. RANGEL. I would conclude by thanking you and saying that 
the public opinion· that the Congressman says that you have to go 
out and get, we want to go out with you to get it. We want to be 
able to say that as a result of the information that you've pulled 
together, the coordination with Congressman Ortiz, that we're con
vinced that one of the things we have to do to fight this battle and 
look like we want to win it is to give you more resources, either by 
a better sharing of the resources with the Federal Government or 
some special task force, as the Congressman has indicated, where 
you find the communities right on the borders of the problem. 

So, we want to thank you collectively, and we hope to be hearing 
from Congressman Ortiz soon. 

And as I said earlier, if"there's anything that you want to in
clude in the record, I'm going to leave the record open for that pur
pose so that you can go back to your staffs and bring information 
that you may not have had today. 

Thank you very much. 
The committee is going to adjourn until 2:20. Because of the tes

timony and the interest in questioning, we've passed our lunch 
hour; so if we cut that short, we can come back at 2:20 and resume 
the hearing. 

[Whereupon, at 1:55 p.m., the committee recessed, to reconvene 
at 2:20 p.m., the same day.] 
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AFtERNOON SESSION 

Mr. RANGEL. The committee will resume its hearings. 
We have a panel here. We have Miss Meadows, the executive di

rector of the Corpus Christi Drug Abuse Panel. 
Next to Miss Meadows, Dr. Maria Luisa Garza, Gulf Coast-Na

tional Council of La Raza. 
Mr. Robert Warren. Good to see you again. The director of the 

Palmer Drug Abuse Program in Brownsville. 
Mr. David Pollard from the Rleberg County Alcoholism Office. 

We thank you for coming. 
And Mr. Richard Salwen, counselor, Texas War Against Drugs. 
Suppose we start with Dr. Garza. 
I hope some of you had an opportunity to hear the testimony this 

morning. 
And in order to accommodate all of the witnesses, what we'll do 

is resort to the 5-minute rule. 
So, I would ask you to allow us to put your entire written and 

prepared testimony into the record and to highlight that testimony, 
so that we will be able to hear the full panel and still go to 
Brownsville where we are meeting with some Mexican officials. 

Dr. Garza. 

TESTIMONY OF DR. MARIA LUISA GARZA, GULF COAST
NATIONAL COUNCIL OF LA RAZA, CORPUS CHRISTI, TX 

Dr. GARZA. Thank you, Mr. Rangel [Spanish pronunciation]. If I 
may, I will call you Mr. Rangel, because that it is the way we south 
Texans pronounce your name. 

First of all, I would like to thank you, Mr. Rangel, for giving me 
the opportunity to be here before this panel and to be'heard about 
the concerns that we have in south Texas and all over OUr Nation 
in regard to drug abuse. 

To our Congressman, Solomon Ortiz, I thank you for allowing me 
to do this service to the community. 

And to the members of the panel, thank you very much. 
The latest national survey shows that 60 percent of teenagers 

have experimented with drugs, including marijuana, amphet
amines, and barbiturates. And even a larger percent have been ex
perimenting with alcohol. 

There is no doubt that we are doing something about it, but that 
to .really have an effect, we have not shown to have been using the 
skills and the talents that we need to utilize. 

The problem of drug abuse has increased, and that is a docu
mented fact, among teenagers. 

The problem of treatment and the high recidivism rate is also 
one problem that I would like to touch on today. 

Apparently, our youngsters are under tremendous pressure and 
are trying to find some type of relief for that pressure. We have 
been trying to check the problem by reacting to a crisis level situa
tion. Weare a society that usually reacts when something erupts 
on a crisis level. 

I feel that the problem of drug abuse is not goi~g to be corrected 
by intimidation techniques, by expUlsions from the school district, 
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by the strict rules that we have too many of already, or by continu
ing our punishment techniques that we have for our youngsters. 

For too long, we have done this, and the problem has increased, 
rather than decreased. 

A drug abuse prevention program is one that has all those activi
ties that act as an intervention network to inform, educate, guide, 
protect, and to stop youngsters from ever becoming involved in 
drug abuse. 

The propensity and inclination to use drugs transcends all 
ethnic, economic, sexual, educational, and social backgrounds. 
Young people from the barrio, specifically, and from the ghetto, 
from the middle class, and from the jet set groups have been, and 
are, experimenting with drugs with frightening consistency. 

The response from the public toward drug abuse has not been 
unli.ke the general response to other potential ~roblems facing 
youth. On the part of the parents, assuming that it s not their chil
dren who are involved with drugs, it's always somebody else. When 
the situation occurs, the parents do not know what to do about it. 
They do not know where to go, especially those parents that come 
from an .economically depressed area. They have no recourse, be
cause they have no money, no education, and no information as to 
what to do. They cannot ask for assistance from the schools, be
cause that would be an automatic expulsion for the youth. 

Therefore, I feel that a drug prevention program that is away 
from the schools, located in a community-based organization that is 
of nonthreatening situation can make a real impact in the inter
vention and education of drug abuse. 

Drug abuse prevention programs need the support of the commu
nity, the schools, the businesses, and the legislators. 

Drug prevention programs need to be strengthened financially, 
not at the expense of curtailing treatment and rehabilitation pro
grams, but as a priority measure to divert man) youngsters from 
ever having to join a treatment and rehabilitation program. 

Our entire society needs' to become educated in the tremendous 
value of prevention. A pr.evention program brings everybody a tre
mendous relief in terms of s~vings of tax dollars, not to mention 
the savings of pain and the horrible destruction that drug addiction 
brings to individuals and to entire families. 

School districts, in particular, need to become more accepting 
and more cognizant of the psychological impact that a specialist 
from the drug prevention program can make in their school popu
lation. School districts need to become more cooperative with com
munity-based organizations that specialize in drug prevention as
sistance and education. 

For the past 3 years, we at the Gulf Coast Council of La Raza 
have offered a drug prevention program to this community and 
surrounding areas. We have found that the people we service are 
those that are dropouts from school districts, those that-a greater 
percentage are on probation because they've already committed a 
crime to sustain their life style. And they have found no help in 
terms of prevention, in terms of counseling, in terms of education, 
in terms of real impact that one can make in the family. 

Given this program, a comprehensive approach, to talk to every 
member of the family, every child that exists and that can be ex-
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posed to the problem. Schools are not able t.o reach into th~ ho~es 
in a comprehensive manner, as communIty-based organIzatIOns 
can. 

Community-based ?rganizations are 10cB;ted in the. heart of the 
problem in the barrIO. We are constantly In touch wIth those who 
need heip, those who suffer, those who need the assistance of a 
CBO, community-based organization. 

The CBO's are better able to deal-- . 
Mr. RANGEL. Excuse me just a minute. I'm sorry to interrupt. 
But we do have listed the fme services that are offered by the 

council. Why don't we get to the recommendations that you'd like 
to make so that we can hear the rest of the panel. 

Dr. GARZA. Thank you, sir. 
The recommendationm are as follows: 
Appropriate sufficient financial suppor~ for the. implementati?n 

of drug prevention p.. "rams that deal dIrectly With th~ potential 
users and deliver din, ... ,; services to families, communIty groups, 
and other agencies: 

Allow community-based organizations to implement programs of 
:l.rug prevention and delivery servic~s directly to the participaI?-ts, 
potential users, families~ classrooms, and other groups. CommunIty
based organizations are the ~.:nly other institutions that can work 
with the youngsters school districts c:mnot retain. . . 

Drug prevention programs must Involve the entire communIty 
and the entire family, placin~ ~mphasis in drug education at a very 
early age. 

Drug abuse prevention programs need stronger financial support 
to provide a more intensive and a more extensive service in pre
venting youngsters from ever entering a drug treatment and rel?-~
bilitation program. The recidivism rate of treatment and rehabIlI
tation programs is very high to ignore the prevention aspect of 
drug abuse. 

We need to raise the level of awareness concerning the benefits 
of prevention, rather than acting under crisis, by holding more 
meetings in the local communities and a~lowing the pa~e~ts, tl;1e 
educators, the social workers, and the legIslators to partIcIpate ill 
these programs. 

Mr. RANGEL. Thrank you so much, Dr. Garza. 
[The prepared statement of Dr. Garza appears on p. 207.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Warren, we have the report from Mrs. Lenora 

Rentfro, the chairperson of the board of trustees of the Palmer 
Drug Abuse Program in Brownsville. 

We also have your report as the executive director of that pro
gram, and we have read it. 

We hope that you could summarize and highlight: it for us. 
Mr. WARREN. OK. I'll try to be short. 

TESTIMONY OF ROBERT WARREN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, 
PALMER DRUG ABUSE PROGRAM, BROWNSVILLE, TX 

Mr. WARREN. I would first thank you for having me here today. I 
appreciate the opportunity to share some opinions and ideas for 
what I see are needs in the valley. 

I'll try to be brief. 
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The first thing that I would like to address is: What is the prob
lem? 

In my experience as a drug abuse counselor and as a drug 
abuser, I have lived all over Texas, Dallas, Houston, San Antonio, 
Midland. I've lived in Colorado. And never before, have I been con
fronted with the accessibility, ease of accessibility, that we're find
ing in the valley. 

I have teenagers in my group, I'd say almost 90 percent of these 
kids, age ranging from 12 to 25, that were using prescription drugs 
from Mexico through them acquiring them. Not through drug deal
ers, but through going to Mexico and going to the farmacia, going 
to doctors and obtaining prescriptions. 

It's very frightening to me as a counselor to work with kids that 
have had such an easy time of gett.ing drugs. And it's very fright
ening. And this was documented. 

A local newswoman in the valley documented what happened. 
She had a young person go into the doctor and actually get a phar
macy for a feigned illness, a fake illness, and go and get drugs, get 
narcotics, and bring them back across the border. 

This was sort of scary to me because it was so easy that a news 
reporter could actually photograph the whole thing and publish it 
on the air. 

From this, we're finding a great need in the valley, a large, large 
percentage which I would believe would be above th.e national sta
tistics, as far as people affected. And for everyone of these people 
affected in the valley, there are also other people. There are the 
families, and these families are greatly, greatly affected. The guilt, 
the anger, the frustration, and the fear that parents feel, it's very 
hard for them to deal with. And the social implications. They fear 
they feel of even they don't know where to go. Their friends tend to 
ostracize them saying, HOh, well, they're bad parents." The mythol
ogy around drug abuse in the valley is quite apparent from talking 
to any parent and their antiquated views of drug abuse being 
heroin addiction. 

This kind of information that we run into is pretty scary to me 
as a counselor. Brochures cost $5 a piece. 

One of my recommendations to this committee would be to ques
tion why the cost of these publications is so high, why we can't get 
prevention literature free or at cost of printing. It does not cost $5 
to print a five-page brochure that is 2. inches wide by 7 inches tall. 
That would be one of my recommendations which I didn't outline 
'·:ery well in my report to you. 

I would also recommend to this committee to look into endorsing 
some of the associations for professionalism in the field of alcohol 
and drug abuse. Some of the associations are not even legislatively 
endorsed in the area. 

I would aleo recoIILlrllend that this committee look into the red
tape involved with private industry opening a treatment facility 
that is cost effective and available to the general public. Due to the 
redtape and the time required to open a facility, it's pretty impossi
ble to achieve a c~rlificate of need and then to set it up according 
to the standards th~t tl-.Js State operates on. It is quite, quite hard 
to open any kind of freestanding, inpatient. treatment facility. 
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I would· also recommend that this committee look at necessary 
legislation to provide prevention education funds stringfree, other 
than auditing for fiscal responsibility. We found that just to apply 
for some of these funds that are available now would take a full
time person working. We don't have the funds to hire somebody 
just to apply for grants. 

Most important, I would recommend to this committee to review 
the current system of treatment in MHMR. We found it burden
some. We found it ineffective. On quite a few occasions we can doc
ument, we referred clients to MHMR, and these clients were 
turned down due to medical reasons, MHlVIR either not having the 
funds necessary to treat them medically or something. 

But it's real hard when you take a heroin addict to a treatment 
facility, and that treatment facility says we can't work with you be
cause you have a urinary infection. 

Mr. RANGEL. What's MHMR? 
. Mr. WARREN. It's the mental health/mental retardation agency 
1n--. 

1v.1r. RANGEL. Is that State? 
Mr. WARREN. Yes. 
Mr. RANGEL. Well, who is your State representative? 
Mr. WARREN. I'm not sure. 
Mr. RANGEL. That's. the problem. 
Mr. WARREN. That's the problem .. 
Mr" RANGEL. That's the problem, but go ahead. 
Mr. WARREN. In this State, we also have some antiquated views, 

in my opinion, of alcohol and drug abuse being two different kinds 
of problem. l'hey .are basically the same problem. And treatment 
and education efforts, in my opinion, should be geared basically the 
same for both. And I have outlined that in my report. 

I appreciate being here today and thank you. 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Mr. Warren. 
[The prepared statenlent of MI'. Warren appears on p. 211.] 
Mr. RANGEL. We have Mr. David Pollard from the Kleberg 

County Alcoholism Office in Kingsville, TX. 
Thank you for being with us. 

TESTIMONY OF DAVID M. POLLARD, COUNSELOR, KLEBERG 
COUNTY ALCOHOLISM OFFICE, KINGSVILLE, TX 

Mr. POLLARD. Thank you very much, Mr. Rangel and other mem-
bers of the panel, for having me here. . 

I think there's a big gap in the drug prevention in the State. Ba
sically; if you go into the State hospital is mainly your treatment 
for alcoholism and your detox. If you don't live in one of the cities, 
you can't hardly get any treatment. It takes 2 or 3 weeks to get 
people into treatment. 

Then, a lot of times they won't go into treatment, because very 
few people who come in try to get detoxed or care or anything 
unless it's a real bad catastrophe. Then, by the time that's over, we 
just can't get anybody in for treatInent. They're gone. And a lot of 
the people just aren't getting any treatrrient. 

Most of the treatment for alcoholism is barely just a drop in the 
bucket for alcoholism. . 
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I've been working in a treatment center for 5 years now, and I've 
been a year and a half in Kingsville, which is about a 30,000 popu
lation, 45 miles down the road. 

I've experienced, like, having 200 or 300 people on a caseload, in
stead of 20, and trying to get things started in the communitx. 

I'm a whole lot for people going into counties that don t have 
anything in the school systems and trying to coordinate things 
with the legal system and the jails and the sheriffs and the schools 
and trying to get something started with volunteer efforts and com
~unit:y efforts .. There needs to be people going through the coun
tIes. LIke that IS the only way you can get anything done. 

What I've found out is that in the junior highs, it used to be 
going from the college and the high school and all, and now when I 
start going into the classrooms and start talking to the junior kids 
about drugs, a lot of them, instead of just smoking marijuana and 
drinking, now they're on yellows and pills, prescriptions, things. 
And a pretty high percentage of the classrooms that you're getting 
this. It's real obvious, and they'll talk to you about it. 

Now it's going, like, from eighth graders to sixth graders. And 
here in Corpus, I think it was, like, four kids that were on heroin 
that reported. to the methadone clinic for help. And one little girl 
asked them, and she was in second grade on amphetamines. So, 
now, it's getting to where, you know, the elementary school kids 
are actual~y abusing drugs themselves on a pretty high level. 

But baSICally, you know, from their own brothers and sisters, it's 
getting down into that level. 

Fronl what I know about-I have a master's, and I'm working on 
a doctorate. And I've been in treatment for about 8 years trying to 
figure out what to do. And I think that, you know, you have to 
treat the family. And, like, if you can find out which of the little 
kids--

It's almost like a losing battle with the older people. And if you 
can do some prevention things, to me, it's another form of treat
ment with the elementary s!!hool level kids. If you can get their 
families, somehow, to come in, usually there's either-not putting 
the responsibility on the parents, but a lot of times, if you could 
work with the parents, too, you have a chance of treating the 
younger children. 

Most of these kids are just kind of unidentified. They had the 
program, like, HChildren Are People, Too." I think what's going on, 
a lot of the children in that age span are under a lot of J?ressure, 
and nobody realizes what's happenin9: to them. They're kind of 
overlooked. Adults that get on drugs, it s the same thing. 

What happens with my problem is I'm identified and it's hard to 
get them in, anyway, to see me. And their families won't bring 
them in. And I just kind of get everything stirred up, and it's hard 
to keep getting further treatment for the elementary school aged 
kids to see what's going on. 

I think, you know, the best bet would be to try to start treating 
these kids b~fore they come in as alcoholics, and catch them then 
and get them a way to relieve their pressures and relieve their ten
sions and get more psychologically balanced where that won't 
happen to them. 

I don't know how all that's going to be done, but--

o 
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[The prepared statement of Mr. Pollard appears on p. 214.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Well, thank you, Mr. Pollard, and I hope that we 

can see how soon those needs can be met. 
Mr. POLLARD. I feel that working with the law enforcement in 

Kingsville has helped me a lot as far as when people are released 
from jail, they're detoxed and I can start, you know, doing some 
form of treatment with them right then, since there aren't any fa
cilities. 

The jails, working real close with the people, there's a good 
chance, then, you can start working with the children of these 
people. 

I'm kind of skipping over a lot of my ideas, but--
Mr. RANGEL. Well, we have those ideas, and they'll not only be in 

the reco.rd, ~ut we hope we can come up .with some type of vehicle, 
as we dId wIth law enforcement, to see Just how coordinated your 
efforts are in prevention and treatment and to see whether or not 
a stronger voice could be heard to the administration. Because a lot 
of q:lis, you're 90in~ to need local and State support. And if you 
don.t know :who s gO.mg to represent y<?u and who's going to be pro
tectmg the Interest In the budget and If there's no political support 
for it, then we're just whistling against the wind. 

But it's not as though the communities don't have the same type 
of problem, but it is, though, some communities are a heck of a lot 
bet~er organized with churches and synagogues and civic groups 
saymg that this is ~ priori~y. And politicians, necessarily, have to 
respo~d to what theIr constituents believe is the priority. 

AddIcts are not considered. a priority unless somebody, like this 
group, comes forward collectively and exercises that type of politi
cal strength. 

Let's hear from Mr. Salwen. He has a rather extensive statement 
before the committee. So, why don't we talk about what the Elec
tronic Data System Corp. is doing, because with my limited under
standing of national and Texas politics, Ross Perot doesn't need a 
whole lot of community groups in order to have support. 

Mr. SALWEN. On the contrary, Mr. Chairman. We would not 
have gotten anywhere if it hadn't been for hundreds of thousands 
of Texas parents. Ross Perot and I and the other members of the 
committee, acting by ourselves, couldn't have gotten anywhere. 

The major thing that we found was that there was a tremendous 
upwelling of concern all across Texas. 
~r. RANGEL. Well, let me start off by complimenting the organi

zatIOn, as well as Mr. Perot for using the skills that he has in busi
ness to organize the community and to try to meet those needs. 
And I hope the committee m.ight have some recommendations how 
we can be of some help fo1' that effort. 

So, if yo~ can highlight for us what you have been doing, we will 
apprecIate It. . 

TESTIMONY OF RICHARD E. SALWEN, TEXANS WAR AGAINST 
DRUGS, DALLAS, TX 

Mr. SALWEN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the 
committee. 
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I'm not going to read ;ny statemen~, even t~ough I haq left out, 
inadvertently, page 5. It s now been Inserted In your copIes, and I 
apologize for not having gotten that here. . 

Mr. RANGEL. Let me make it clear, in case I've overlo?ked It, 
that the statements of all of the witnesses will be entered Into the 
record in their entirety. 

Mr. SALWEN. Thank you, Mr. Chairm~. . 
The Texans War Against Drugs CommIttee was app~)Inted by t?e 

Governor of Texas to determine and implement effective strategies 
to reduce drug abuse in the ~tate ?f Texas. . . 

The committee was establIshed In 1979 and has been actIve SInce 
then. , '1 bl 

Because our resources, and, indeed, all of the res?u:ces aval a e 
to the State are limited in this area, our first prIOrIty was to do 
research and to collect those strategies for reduction of drug abuse 
that would be most cost effectivp-. The ones we selected are. not, by 
any means, the only strategies that ought t~ be fo~lowed, Just the 
ones that we felt were most important to get ImmedIate effect. 

For example, we decided early on that we had to focus, pretty 
much exclusivelv on prevention rather than treatment. That 
doesn't mean tha't there shouldn't be treatment for people who 
have gotten themselves in trouble with dr~gs. They've got !o have 
that. But we felt that we could do more With less by fOCUSIng our 
efforts on prevention. . 

Another example, as we looked into i~ further, we dIscovered 
that the whole prevention problem required us to focus first .on 
youth. -t\nd you've. heard lots of testimony ab~ut the age at whIch 
kids are €'ntering the drug culture, and I won t repeat any of that 
for you. d"t . d 

Prevention, further, we decided after we looke ~n 1 '. requIre 
that we focus not exclusively by any means, but primarily on t~e 
problem of m~rijuana, because Inarij~a~~ is the gate':'Vay drug. ~t IS 
the drug that is 80 percent of the Ill~CIt drug use In the UnIted 
States. It is the drug that most of the kids use first. . 

Now here in Texas, we've got a special problem, particularly 
among'the Hispanic community of !nhalants, an~ we felt that that 
required some focus, too. And we tr~ed to e~phasize that. 

Finally, we decided that pre~entIOn requIred t~at we focus both 
on the demand, that is, educatIng parents and chIldren and teac?-
ers and everyone else about the problems of drugs so that you WIll 
reduce the demand for. drugs, but that you must also focus on the 
supply side of the equation, that you must cut doWJ?- th.e supply: of 
drugs along with the demand if yo\.} are to be eff~ctIve In redUCIng 
drug abuse as something that doesn t reengender Itself. . 

Based on those ideas and decision, we adopted the follOWIng 
strategies: .. 

First to review and improve Texas laws In order to give law en
forcem~nt better tools and cut down the supply: of illegal drugs. . 

Second we want to provide better informatIOn and better traIn
ing for l~cal law enforcement agencies, prosecutors, and judges. 
And we've conducted more than 50 seminars statewide for those 
local law enforcement agencies. . 

Third and most important, we want to select and Implement 
strategi~s to reduce the demand by educating parents, teachers, 
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and children to protect our youth. And to do this, we've acted to be 
an information resource and to disseminate up-to-date.i.nformation 
that we've found elsewhere. We didn't generate any of this our
selves, but we've gathered it from all over the country and served 
as a dissemination source for it. 

Second, to help form and organize parent coalitions and peer 
groups. There are now more than 400 functioning groups in more 
than 150 Texas cities and towns. 

Third, to provide inservice training for school districts and speak
ers for community groups to further bring awareness of the prob
lem. 

Fjnally, to multiply our effect by mobilizing major volunteer 
groups. And we've got the Texas PTA, and they printed for us the 
manual which is attached to my statement. 

There is also, by the way, a good description of the laws that we 
developed and which were enacted by the legislature of Texas 
that's attached to the statement. 

The PTA, the Lions International has adopted our program as an 
international priority. The Texas Medical Association auxiliary, 
the Junior League, and various church organizations across ithe 
State are all using the programs that we've selected and which we 
disseminate. 

The result has been, we think, very encouraging. We don't have 
any specific statistics for Texas, but what we've done here has been 
paralleled by similar kinds of movements in other States, the 
result of which, if you look at the most recent statistics, the 
demand for illicit drugs, and particularly for marijuana, has lev
eled off nationwide. If you look at the current users and the daily 
users among schoolchildren, that has leveled and is slightly down 
in 1982. 

We certainly can't take credit for all of that, but we think that 
the kinds of things that we've done have helped with that. 

The next step, in our opinion, is to go fQrward with the kinds of 
things we are recommending in my statement. 

First, we think that there needs to be better, more thorough re
search than has been done at the Federal level about the effects 
and dangers of all kinds of drugs, but principally of marijuana, and 
that there needs to be more aggr1essive dissemination of that infor
mation once it's developed. 

Second, we think that there net3ds tp be more emphasis, particu
larly in Texas, on interdiction of the smuggling, problem. And here, 
I want to draw your attention, more than cease smuggling, al
though there's more comes in in one big bulk than you can bring 
in a plane, we think the biggest problem in Texas is the midnight 
air traffic that runs across every night and lands i:~ our west 
Texas, principally west Texas-I don't want to give west Texas a 
bad name-but principally our west Texas area, because that's the 
area where, the land is relatively flat. You can bulldoze an airstrip 
in a couple of hours. Also, there's an area-there's one road, and 
I'm not sure what the highway designation is, where they've got 
about 4 miles of straight, flat road with no electric wires along it, 
and smugglers call that West Texas International. '. 
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Some nights, I'm told by department of public safety officers, our 
State police organization, that there are as many as two or three 
drug deals going on simultaneously along that road. 

Third, we are asking that you provide more and better funds to 
train and inform local enforcement agencies. We've taken some 
steps there. We don't think it's nelar enough. You can multiply the 
effects of all the Federal agencies if you'll provide better training, 
better information. 

Finally, and most important, we want the Federal Government 
to go forward with aggressive eradication efforts. This is the best 
form of prevention there is, is to get the prevention at the source. 
And I'm talking about both foreign eradication, really pressing the 
South American and Central American countries to comply with 
the treaties that require them to do this, following up, seeing that 
it's done, and finally, so that we live up to the treaty, doing an ag
gressive eradication effort here in the United States. 

I'm just sick when I see the furor that's been raised over para
quat spraying of marijuana. Paraquat is used all over this country 
to spray crops with no damage or hazard to life or health, and it's 
a damn shame to see people-thalG it only becomes a dangerous 
substance when you use it to eradicate marijuana. 

Mr. RANGEL. Counselor, we were in South America advocating 
the use of herbicide when we were embarrassingly notified by Bo
livian friends and Colombian friends, but it was happening right in 
Georgia. 

[The prepared statement of Mr. Salwen appears on p. 218.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Listen. We have to l,eave. 
But your testimony is very iInportant because you went far 

beyond just the area of prevention, and your organization, obvious
ly, has resources that some of the smaller communities do not 
have. 

It's always, in politics, that those that do something you ask 
them to do a little more, but you're used to that. 

I'm going to ask whether or not you c~n arrange to meet wi~h 
Congressman Ortiz so that he can share With you some of the legIS
lation that we have pending in the Congress, some of the things 
that we've been able to do in. foreign affairs through the efforts of 
Mr. Gilman and others, and to see whether or not we can extend 
this Texas war on the national level, and certainly as it relates to 
some of the budgetary problems that we are facing in terms of cut
backs. 

'rhe voices of many of the constit1llents at this table are not going 
to be heard, or, even with the best talent. It's hard to organize 
them so that it would have any impact. 

It would seem to me that if we can be of help to the charter in 
bringing this all together in Texas, I'll steal the idea and take it to 
New York. 

But you have got a lot of pieces, if they were locked into place. A 
lot of talent. And I think it could have some impact in Washington. 

And I would ask you, counselor, whether or not you would agree 
to m(~et with Mr. Ortiz to see whether or t;;9t this committee, as we 
move forward in the areas of researchi·~:-~,~tch, really, it's embar
rassing what we're not doing, and eradication and that type of 
thing, whether we could work well as a team. 
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Mr. SALWEN. Mr. Chairman, I don't have anything more impor
tant than that to do in this world, and my time belongs to the com
mittee. You've got as much of it as you want whenever you want it. 

Mr. RANGEL. We're deeply appreciative. And I personally will be 
following through with Mr. Ortiz. 

Let me hear from Miss Meadows, and her group is the Corpus 
Christi Drug Abuse Council. 

Thank you for your patience. 

TESTIMONY OF CHRISTINE MEADOWS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, 
CORPUS CHRISTI DRUG ABUSE COUNCIL, CORPUS CHRISTI, TX 
Miss MEADOWS. Thank you. 
The Corpus Christi Drug Abuse Council is 14 years of age, so 

we've been through lots of funding cycles, new deals, old deals, raw 
deals, whatever. 

We're excited about being here today because we're at a point in 
the continuity of our agency that something's either got to be done 
or the doors have got to be shut. 

We're 60 percent federally funded, 40 percent local cash match, 
which is a great deal of money. And that money isn't-there's no 
city-county money that will handle that because my agency is a 
private agency. 

The reason for that is that years ago when they came down with 
the MHMR concept, mental health/mental retardation, the two 
doctors who started my agency chose to go to Washington and get 
direct funding for our Methadone Program because they did not 
want the client to be involved in the bureaucracy of yet another 
health agency. 

So, when Tricky Dicky Nixon came in with MHMR, we chose to 
stand alone, and we're still paying for that. 

So, we have 183 slots. We have 108 on methadone. We're carry
ing 128 people. We have 75 on drug free; I'm carrying 99 people. I 
have 52 people on waiting list trying to get on. And, in fact, as of 
this morning, I have three lawsuits against me because we have no 
slots for opiate drug abusers to get on the Methadone Program. We 
have them waiting in the wings, if you will. 

There's better heroin in town than there's been in a long time. 
I've been with the agency for 12 years, and so, we know pretty 

much the cycle of the drug abuse. 
I was amazed with Sheriff Hickey's report this morning with re

gards to what they're not doing or doing. 
Unfortunately, the parents aren't bringing the children in at a 

point where they could get counseling and prevention sort of meas
ure when they7re first smoking marijuana; 95 percent of my people 
on I?Y drug-free program, if yo~ will, are referred by the courts, 
the Judges who call me and say, Chris, can you take one more. We 
can't send them to TDC, Texas Department of Corrections, because 
there are no more places." 

So, in lieu of penitentiaries, we get the young people to try the 
drug counseling, surveillance of the urinalysis, if you will, and then 
we report back to the probation office, if there's State probation, 
and then they report back to the judges. 
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It's been very effective. It eliminates a lot of folks going to the 
penitentiary. 

The problem there has arised that I am getting older and not 
better. I cannot continue to raise the 40-percent match. We re
ceived 247,498 Federal bucks, which are channeled through Texas 
Department of Community Affairs Drug Abuse Prevention Division 
in Austin. With that, I have to match $164,999. 

Also, that's only my budget for my treatment. That's not my 
total agency money, because they don't allow me to put everything 
I'd like in, you know, the treatment budget, if you will. 

W'e were cut 11 percent this year. There are 52 people on the 
waiting list. I was cut 12 clients. My match was raised from 35 per
cent to 40 percent. 

We do all sorts of things to raise money. We have a urinalysis 
machine. The Eagles Lodge are doing good work on getting me a 
new one. MyoId one is about dead. And we're running a lot of 
urines for probation and the outside world, if you will. They pay up 
front, and we run those urines for folks. We observe urines, we 
cover six counties and the 36th judicial district, which the home 
base is in Sinton, TX, those clients, those probation clients up 
there. 

We're not able, really, to offer counseling service due to mileage, 
but we are able to offer the urinalysis kinds of testing and get that. 

Where they get those kinds of bucks to pay us, if they're not 
going to claim drug abuse on the State level, it made sense to me, 
and they're going to give the money to criminal justice, then I'm 
going to get my portion from them for their urinalysis testing, as 
opposed to mailing it to California, because we can give them a 
tu.rnaround in an hour's time. And they lr~110W exactly how dirty 
the man is and what he's doing. 

We also handle the AO types, which the administrative offices of 
the U.S. court, the old bureau of prison people, that's the new Fed
eral name for that, and we handle those people on a contract basis. 

Ail of my statistics are in here with regards to how many folks 
work. Even with unemployment being what it is, there's a little, 
and I think within 90 days, you must either be employed, going to 
school, or a homemaker. We don't care what your sex is. Just put 
an apron on and take care of the kids. 

So, we're pretty emphatic about what our responsibilities are, 
and they, in turn, must be responsible, too, if they want to stay on 
our program. 

The other thing that I would like to point ou.t is that we have no 
prevention, not even when Governor Clements proclaimed the war 
against drugs. Our prevention efforts were ceased because they felt 
the money better spent on that effort. So, my efforts were cut. 

The only time I do prevention, which we get calls daily, is only if 
they'll pay, up front, $35 an hour for schools and $100 for industry. 
So, we offer no preventative services, although people request that. 

[The prepared statement of Miss Meadows appears on p. 230.] 
Mr. RANGEL. How much St.ate money do you get? 
Miss MEADOWS. Well, I get $247,498. That's my money from tbe 

Texas Department of Community Affairs, to be matched with 40 
percent. 

Mr. RANGEL. Isn't that the Federal money? 
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Miss MEADOWS. Well, that's the Federal block grant. 
Mr. RANGEL. What's the State money? 
Miss MEADOWS. None. 
Mr. RANGEL. Who's on your council? 
Miss MEADOWS. My council? 
]\11'. RANGEL. Yes. I mean, do they represent other organizations 

or individuals? The Corpus Christi Drug Abuse Council. 
Miss MEADOWS. Oh, we only represent ourselves. 
But let me point out that we've been working on the McAlister 

Act on the State level for the last 2 years. It has been passed with 
no money, which makes it a worthless piece of legislation. 

We have attended all the legislative hearings. I am familiar with 
who is in Austin, more than they want to know. And I have ap
peared and testified for that hearing year after year after year. 

Mr. RANGEL. What's the name of your State representative 
where you are situated? 

Miss MEADOWS. I use Senator Truan, primarily, and then I use 
Glossbrenner. 

Mr. RANGEL. Who's·the local--
Miss MEADOWS. Oh, and Hugo Berlanga. 
Mr. RANGEL. All right. Your council are individuals, rather than 

organizations, right? 
Miss MEADOWS. It's one board of governors, yes. Directors. 
And they, too, helped testify to get the State bucks, but Texas is 

the lowest with regards to giving to State programs in the whole 
bunch. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, one of the problems that we have, not just in 
your State but in many States, is that when you look at the prior
ities that the State repre8entatives have, alcoholics and drug ad
dicts have to be on the bottom of the list. They don't vote. They're 
not organized. The churches don't support them. 

And so, the real question is: When you get people like Ross Perot 
and others who are willing to give their time, how can you mobilize 
those people who are concerned to come forward and make that a 
part of their political priorities so that representatives would know 
that even though the people that you're trying to protect can't help 
or hurt them, those who are advocating more help--

Because, to me, in the long run, it's one of the cost effective 
things that you can have. Prevention, to local and State govern
ments, what voices are heard screaming against this? 

I hoped that maybe we could find your council members and 
others to say that this money could be cost effective if properly 
used. 

Miss MEADOWS. I think the State of Texas, if you will, recognizes 
that they don't give enough mone~. 

And Monsignor Brosnan, who s going to be on your panel, I 
think, tomorrow, can address that, because those of us who have 
been in the business for a long time have worked very diligently to 
get the cash match up on the State level. 

But we don't have constituents, if you will, to make enough noise 
to get the McAlister Act passed with money. 

I don't know the answer to that. I don't know that Federal 
bucks, if 60 percent is the proper amount, and then what's the 
State going to do? 
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The problem therein lies that there is a terrible drug problem in 
south Texas, OK? I was asked to address that problem. And what 
the State chooses to do with that, then-you know, all we're doing 
right now is closing State programs and coming up with private, 
which puts more methadone in the streets on an illegal basis, 
which makes a bigger problem for south Texas. 

And this is my community, also. 
So consequently, we're going to have to find some sort of funding 

alternatives, if the State's not willing to bear that with the McAlis
ter Act. 

I don't know what the Federal proposition is going to be either. 
Mr. RANGEL. Well, the proposition is that you go to voluntary 

agencies, charitable organizations, and churches. That's the Feder
al response. 

Now, it's an election year, and I'm confident that they can 
change that response if we hear from enough people who would say 
that they tried it that way and it didn't work. You and I know that 
it's not working. 

Miss MEADOWS. Right. 
Mr. RANGEL. It didn't even work before we had an economic 

problem in Texas, which somehow separated its oil taxes and edu
cational taxes. But that's a local problem. 

Now, what you're facing in southern Texas is a national problem, 
and I'm confident that we can get together with Congressman Ortiz 
and have it pictured as a national problem, especially in southern 
Texas. We're going to need some help. 

And just seeing who you are, the organizations that support you 
collectively, I'm confident that you have the expertise to present a 
case that can be heard at the White House, or, at least, assist us in 
presenting our case to the House. 

I want to thank you for this information. 
And again, the record will be left open. I would ask Mr. Ortiz, 

who realizes that we have to go, if you'll hold it, Mr. Ortiz. I would 
want you to adjourn our meeting because you know the schedule 
better than I do. 

Mr. ORTIZ. Yes. We are going to have to leave in a few minutes 
now to go to Brownsville. 

So, I don't have anything further to state. 
Mr. GILMAN. Mr. Chairman, first of all, I recognize we've got 

very little time. 
I want to thank the panel. I think they've given us a lot of 

worthwhile information, and I'm particularly interested in the way 
they are handling their own programs with the limited funding. 

I note that tomorrow Deena Watson, director of the drug abuse 
prevention program from the Texas Department of Community Af
fairs who is apparently an individual a lot of you don't know, is 
coming in. And she says: 

At a time when the block grant mechanism shifts administrative responsibilities 
to the State level, support for administrative staff has diminished drastically. A core 
of quality services has been carefully developed over the past decade and attention 
by the agency should now be given to expanding toward a comprehensive system of 
services fully cool"dinated with related efforts. Unfortunately, support for State 
planning staff has similarly diminished and funds are unavailable for development 
of these additional services. 
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Is that a valid criticism of the State's planning and program
ming? 

Miss MEADOWS. Deena Watson is the head of our department, if 
you will, at TDCA and is in the audience today, and I'm responsi
ble to her for my funding. 

Mr. GILMAN. Well, if this is a valid problem, then it seems to me 
that you've got an important problem to take care of at the State 
level to make certain that there is some adequate administrative 
staffmg to do the kind of job that needs to be done to assist all of 
your various agencies, and I urge you, at the State level, to focus 
some more attention on that very important aspect of Deena Wat
son's testimony. 

I want to commend all of you for thinking. I think that this 
manual that you've developed in the Texas war may be very help
ful to some of our other State groups, and I'm going to be passing it 
on. I hope you can make some supply of that. available to us. 

But each of you have offered something very important to what 
the problems are in dealing with this at the local level. 

But, again, I say, take a good, hard look at what Miss Watson is 
saying. If they need some better administrative support at State 
level, and it's my impression that in the block grant programs that 
have been passed OIl, there is a need for State governments to do a 
lot better in sorting out the problems and prioritizing the funds. 
And I hope you'll take a good, hard look at all of that. It was in
tended to give the States a lot more discretion in utilization of 
these funds and the manner in which they were prioritized. 

Do you have any comments that you'd like to make? 
Just one more request of all of you. What do you think is the 

most important thing that we can do, as a committee, to be of help 
to you? In a quick phrase. 

Dr. GARZA. Mr. Gilman, I would say that I think that the consen
sus today has been reached that we all need more money to oper
ate our programs. 

Our total funding from the Texas Department of Community Af
fairs is $35,000. And we have 3 people working the program, 2% 
people really, and with that we have been able to do wonders. 

And there's more people that call us from all over Nueces 
County that we cannot serve because we don't-have the mileage, 
we don't have the personnel. 

Mr. GILMAN. Miss Meadows, do you have something, one major 
request? 

Miss MEADOWS. I just need bucks. And I'm not picky. I'll take 
Federal or State. And we're going to work on both levels. 

Thank you. 
Mr. GILMAN. Mr. Warren. 
Mr. WARREN. We have, at this point, never taken any Federal or 

State money and operated totally privately. We would like to see 
some money become available with only a limited hassle for pre
vention efforts. 

Mr. GILMAN. No strings attached. 
Mr. WARREN. Yeah. None of the 55,000 pages to get it. 
Mr. GILMAN. Mr. Pollard. 
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Mr. POLLARD. I'd like to agree with Dr. Garza, if I could just add 
somebody else to help here and some personnel here to spread out 
more. 

Mr. GILMAN. Mr. Salwen. 
Mr. SALWEN. I think the most important thing you can do is 

eradicate drugs at the source, reduce the supply. 
That's not to say these other things are not important, but I . 

think the single most important thing is a-I know I'm preaching 
to the choir-but a tougher, stronger, broader eradication effort. 

Mr. GILMAN. That's precisely what this committee has sought to 
do. We went to Latin America recently and met with the heads of 
government to preach eradication. 

And then, Mr. Rangel and I introduced some legislation, and it, 
fortunately, has been adopted, cutting out economic assistance in 
the event some of these foreign countries do not come through with 
a proper plan of implementation of eradication program. 

Mr. RANGEL. With a congressional hearing. 
Mr. SALWEN. Thank you, Congressman. 
Mr. GILMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and I want to thank the 

panel. 
Mr. RANGEL. What I hope, before we adjourn, Mr. Salwen, is that 

you might send to this committee the names of the corporations, 
Texas-based corporations, which are cooperating with your efforts, 
as well as seeing whether we can come up with the names of some 
corporations that are not cooperating. 

Mr. SALWEN. There are some, and we'll be happy to send them, 
Mr. Chairman. But, primarily, it's individuals, rather than corpo
rate entities. It's parents all across the State. And we've found that 
if you let them know there's a place, they flock in to support. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, OK. Let's try a different approach. You have 
a chamber of commerce down here, and they were very kind to us 
yesterday. I hope that you can have some type of meeting with 
those that are providing preventative and rehabilitation care to col
lectively state the problem as eloquently as you have today to see 
whether or not we can have corporations join in this Texas war 
against drugs. 

Those of us that serve on the Ways and Means Committee will 
remind them from time to time of the President's request of them 
to perform this type of public service. 

And, maybe, collectively, with the efforts of Congressman Ortiz, 
we can identify those people that are following the President's 
mandate or who believe that the President's not talking about 
them. 

But clearly, your constituency, your clients are falling between 
the cracks. They're not a part of the safety net. They're not includ
ed in Federal funds, and local and State governments have been 
unable to fill the gap. And this has caused us an increase in the 
amount moneys that are being spent either in the jails, the court 
system, or law enforcement. 

So, as the sheriffs and police chiefs have gotten together, maybe 
we can form a minicouncil, if you will, for those that want to pro
vide better and more services and see what we can do to help in 
Washington. 

Thank you. 
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The- committee will stand adjourned until tomorrow morning, 9 
o'clock. . 

[Whereupon, at 3:30 p.m., the committee was recessed, to recon
vene at 9 a.m., Tuesday, December 13, 1983.J 

[The following was received for the record:] 
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December 6, 1983 

Hon. Charles B. Rangel 
U. S. House of Representatives 
Select Committee on Narcotics Abuse and Control 
Room H-2-234, House Office Building Annex 2 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

Dear sir: 

Thank you for your letter regarding the hearing in Corpus Christi 
December 12 and 13. Please accept this letter as my brief response 
to the issues you will be considering. Obviously, Brownsville is 
the -hottest- or nearly so of any city in our nation with regard to 
smuggling and trafficking •. We are a border town, a coastal town, 
a tourist town, a poverty area, understaffed, and historically famous 
for being a place to bring things through or across. I would estimate 
that we are the likely channel for every thing east of the Rocky 
Mountains. 

With regard to the other areas dealing with effectiveness of treatment, 
prevention network and educational needs I am disappointed that you 
did not select more qualified people to issue opinions on these 
issues. The only one that I've heard of that will be testifying 
that has real knowledge along these lines is Robert Warren, Director 
'of the newly formed Palmer Drug Abuse Program. He moved here in 
April of 1983 from Midland to open this program. 

The addiction problem is alarming and of epidemic proportio~s in our 
area. Drugs are being bought, sold, and given awaY,in every school 
in our city. Ten year old children have a variety of market places to 
obtain chemicals of all sorts. 

I { 
, 1 

Fairlight, Inc. 
2390 Central Boulevard, Suite S • Brownsville, Texas 78520 • (512) 542-7000 

35-584 0-84-7 
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We have had very little treatment effectiveness in our area. This 
spring several facilities opened for the first time. These include 
our facility, a family out-patient treatment center; Charte:!' Palm 
Hospital, an in-patient facility, the Detox-Evaluation-Referral 
agency; and a halfway house in Pharr, Texas. .Prior to the opening 
of these we only had MHMR facilities in Harl.ingen and Edinburg with 
entrance requirements and waiting lists that limited their effective
ness. All facilities that are state and federally funded have long, 
long waiting lists and you well know drug dependent persons don't 
wait well. 

A number of prevention programs have come and gone. The most 
successful and effective was the Cottage Program based in sai~ Lake 
City. This failed due to lack of acceptance by persons in the 
fie~d of chemical dependency in our area, in my opinion. The 
Mex~can-American people working in the field seem to think that the 
citizens of our area in difficulty need to be treated in a different 
fashion. The Mexican-American culture is no different than the black 
culture, the Oriental, American Indian, or any others. Persons with 
drug dependenqy problems need basically the same treatment as I see 
it. 

We are extremely. limited as far as education is concerned. The major 
p:t'ovider of this is the Valley Regional Council on Alcoholism and 
Drug Abuse. They, with a staff of one and a half persons and a cadre 
of volunteers present educational sessions to over 20,000 persons per 
year. They could desperately use funds to expand their film library 
provide a video system, and offer expenses to volunteers. ' 

We need help. 

sincielY, 

/ /;t;-' f-f'~ It-. 
I'v / 1 

Howard B. Conkey 

HBC/gwr 

. Fairlightr Inc. 
2390 Central Boulevard, Suite S" Brownsville, Texas 78520 • (512) 542-7000 • 
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NUECES COUNTY MHMR COMMUNITY CENTER 
1630 South Brownlee Corpus Chrlsll. Texas 7B404 

Veeemb~ 9, 1983 

Conglte6llma.n Soiomolt T. Olr-ti..z 
Conglte6ll.(.ona.i V.i.llbUc;t 27 
U.S. HOCL6e 06 Replte6entat.(.ve6 
Setec;t ConmUtee on NMeo.tie,;, 
AbCL6 e a.nd Con.tltoi . 
3649 Leopaltd S~eet 
Co/tpu6 CivU.6.ti, Texall 78408 

Honolta.bie Conglte6llman Olr-ti..z, 

In Ueu. 06 a. peMona.i a.ppea./ta.nee be60/te .the setec;t CommUtee'll hellllbtg 
panet.in COltpCL6 CivU.6U, Texall on Veeemb~ 12-13, 1983, woul.d Uk.e:to 
llubmU i:.he 60Uowing :te6Umony on nMeo.tie,;, a.bCL6e. My c.ommeliU llpeu-
6.(.c.a.U.y a.ddlte6ll i:.he Mea.' II neeM .in :te~ 06 pltov.i.di.ng ~ea.tmel1.:t to 
i:.hMe. .(.ncLi.v.i.cf1J.a.e.l, and :the.i.lt oaJltU.i.e6 who Me a.iltea.dy a.60ec;ted by I1Meo
tie,;, CL6e. and a.bCL6e. In a.dcU:t<.01t, I wa.n.t :to llltMe llOme obll~va;UoM .(.n 
i:.he. Mea. 06 plte.ven:t.i.on 00 V/tUg AbCL6e. 

lor Mn be 00 6Wt:tll~ allll.i.lli:.a.nee, piealle 6ed o/tee to eon.ta.c;t me at 
(512) 884-6667. 

~S.i.ne~~ I!~ M ~o P. MaJ[i;..(.n z 
S ~~.i.ltee;tolt 
NCMHMR SUbll:ta.nc.e AbCL6 e Pltog 

MPM:nd 

Admlnl'traUon 
1512) 888-5321 

/. 

Adult Mental Health 
888-4445 

Child & Youth Mental Health 
884·6467 

Mental Retardation 
888-5541 

An Equal Opporlunlly/Alllrmallvl Action Employer 

Substance Abuse 
864-8667 

,. 
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NUECES COUNTY MHMR COMMUNITY CENTER 
1630 South Brownlee Corpus Christi. Texas 78404 

TESTIMONY ON NARCOTICS ABUSE TREATMENT NEEVS 

Tlte. Nuec.u Coun.t1J MHMR Suh6.tanc.e. AblJ.6e. Ce.n.teJr. Juu, been ht exi6.tanc.e. 601L app!t.ox1.
mate1.y J 2 yeaJr..6. It 1uu. .thJLee c.o,,!ponen.t.6,: a Itu.i.dent<.a.e. pItOgltctm, . an . o~pa.ti.en:t; 
pltogltctm and an Atc.oltofum Plte.ven.t.i.on pltoje.d. Tlte pltogJta.m6 heJr.Ve. .utcUv.i.du.a.t6 wUh 
a1.c.olto.e, dJtu.g, Olt c.omb.i.ned ctdcUc.:ti.ollh, and .th.e.a..?ne.n.t htclud~ htcUv.i.du.a1., g'!-oup, and 
6amU.y phyc.lto:the.Jtapy. 1.t ai.ho .tncludu ltec.Jteati.oltai., edu.c.a.:ti.onal. and voc.a.:ti.onal. 
c.oun6eUng. 

In :the. pltOC.Uh 06 pltov.i.cUng -6eJr.V.tc.u .to :the. people. 06 Nuec.u COU/1.ty 
heveJr.a1. .thhUU h.tand ou..t ct6 need6 :that mlJ.6.t be. met. Tltue. e66ow, ltoweveJr., ltequ..i.Jte. 
adcLU:.lonal. and molte. c.omplte.lten6.tve. pl.ann.i.ng and 6wtcUng. 

Re.6.i.dent<.a.e. SeJtv.i.c.u 

In dJtu.g ablJ.6e. .th.ea.tme.n.t ou.Jt 1te.6.i.de.n;Ual pItOgltam .th :the. only goveJr.nme.n.t-6wtded 6a
c.,Ui;ty .tn Nuec.u Coun.ty' Cl.I'!tl :the. COct6.ta.e Bend Mea. Tlte. 6ac.,Ui;ty luu, 48 be~ whA;c.It 
Me. cUv.i.de.d a1.moh.t e.venly .ta <ieJr.ve. bo.tlt a1.c.oltoUC!6 and dJtu.g ablJ.6e.M. Tlte. .i.de.n.t.i.
Med nee.d6 ht :th.i.h Mea htc1:udu: 

- ctddUf.onal. dJtu.g ablJ.6e. .th.e.a.tmen.t be.d6, 
- clt.Ud c.Me heJr.V.tC.U hO :that 6e.ma1.u wU:lt c.hildll.en may e.n.teJr. .th.e.a.tmen.t, 

- a ltu.i.de.n:U.a1. .th.e.a.tme.n.t 6ac..i.U.ty 601L c.ItildJten, .JJtd 
- 6uncUng 601t 60Uow-up ac.:ti.v.ui.e.6 .that e.an explOIte. .the. .impad 06 

.th.e.a.tme.n.t • 

Plteve.n.t.i.on SeJr.v,{.c.u 

Plte.ve.n.t.i.on .th pItObab.ey:the. mOh.t popu.l.aJt, .ee.ct6.t unde.M.tood, and:the. mOh.t poo/tly 
6u.nde.d c.a.tegolty ht :the Meld 06 dJtu.g ablJ.6e and mental Ite.a.etlt. The. Nuec.u Coun.ty 
MHMR SUbh.tcutC.e. AbMe. pltogltctm' h woltlUng de6htUf.on 06 plteven.tion .th ct6 60UolAU>: 

"In601tma.ti.0nal. and e.du.c.a.ti.onal. heJtv.i.C.e.6 .to a popu..ea.ti.on :that.th at 
wk 06 be.c.omhtg htvol.ve.d .<.It :the. 1J.6e. and ablJ.6e. 06 dJtu.gh". 

In p!t.even.t.i.on :theJte. 1.!. a glte.a.t need .ta make. 6ac..tu.a.e ht601tma.ti.on availabl.e. .to 
c.ItildIten and you..tlt. The tatu.t ltue.a.Jtc.lt and h.tu.cU~ c..I':e.aJtl.y hltoW .that ht6oltmc;
.t.i.onal. and e.du.c.a.ti.onal. p!t.ogltctm .to c.ItildJten mlJ.6.t beg.ut .ut e1.eme.n.ta.Jty -6c.1tool., 6.uu..t, 

Administration 
1512/888-5321 

Adult Mentll Health 
888-4445 

Child & youth Mental Health 
884-6467 

Mental Retardation 
888-5541 

An EquII Opportunlly/Alllrmltlvl ActIon Employer 

Substance Abuse 
884·6667 
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hec.ond olt :th.i.Jtd gltctde, a,6.teJr. .that U may be. .tao tate. I.t.th c.eJr.ta..i.n.ey.tao .e.a.te 
ht h.i.glt hc.ltool.. Tlte plt06uh.i.anai.h pltov:uJ.i.n.g :th.i.h heJtv.i.c.u mlJ.6.t l.e.a.Jtn .to 1J.6e. non
.th.a.d.ui.ona1. .too.1'.6 and me.tltod6 .tlta.t appe.a1. .to :the. c.hildJtelt' 4 htc.Jte.ct6 e.d atWtenuh. 
Tlte 1J.6e. 06 6ilmh, hLi.du and l.ec..ttlJtu Me. mht.i.ma.Uy p.n6ec.:ti.ve., ht6.te.a.d I .yh, 
puppet hltOIAU> and o:theJt mecUa. ac.:ti.vLti.u mlJ.6.t be. exp.e.olted and u..tU<.zed tc max1.
mLze. e.66ec.:ti.ve.nuh. 

Spec..i.a1. c.ammun.Uy plteve.n.t.i.on p!t.ogJta.m6 mlJ.6.t .taJtge.t :the mLnoJtUy t:Joptlh.t;UOn6 
(b.l'.a.c.k6 and h.i.6pa.n.LC!6). Tltue. g.touph ita.ve. h.i.glt .tltc..i.de.nC.U 06 1J.6e. and abll-6e. and 

:the..i.lt c.ue..twr.e. and l.rutgllage. pltue.n.t a cU66eJten.t cUmen6.i.on ht c.ammun.Lc.a.ti.on. Em
ployeJr. gltauph and un.LOn6 hltou.t.d ai.ho be ctddltuhed .Ln an e660Jt.t .to explolte :the Ite.
l.a..t.i.on6h.i.p between :the hLglt htc..i.denc.e 06 ac.c..i.den.t6, abhe.n.tee..i.6m, POOIt jab peJt-
601tmanc.e and :the. 1J.6e. and ablJ.6e 06 dJtu.gh. 

1 n .tlte pah.t ouncUng 601L plteve.n.t.i.on ac.:ti.v.ui.u Juu, al.wa.L/h been UmUe.d bec.alJ.6 e. 
6undbtg -60MC.e.6 exped pltogJta.m6 .to hltoW pltoo6 :that :they ita.ve p!t.eve.n.ted a hpec..LMc. 
nu.mbeJt 06 pe.MOn6 6ltam bec.omLng dJtu.g ctdcUd6. 

I uxmt .to c.onc..eu.de. by app.l'.a.ucUng :the CommLttee.' h and YOM e660w .to undeJt
h.ta.nd .the dJtu.g ablJ.6e pltobl.e.m at :the. gJtct6h ltoo.t6 l.eve.t.. 
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ANONYMOUS LETTER RECEIVED BY THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON NARCOTICS 

ABUSE AND CONTROL, DESCRIBING THE IMPACT OF DRUG ABUSE ON ONE 

FAMILY IN CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS 

December 12, 1983 

Select Committee on Narcotics 
Room H2-234 
House Office Building Annex 2 
Washington, D. C. 20515 

Gentlemen: 

I am aware that you have been holding meetings to discuss 
the drug situation in Corpus Christi, Texas and I would 
like to make a written appeal to you for assistance. I 
wish to remain anomymous. 

My husband apd I have very good jobs, professionals in 
our community. We have been married for over 20 years and 
have two sons, age 15 and 10. We live in a nice neighborhood 
close to an elementary school and junior high school. We 
have been very active with our children, playing little leaf-ue 
baseball, soccer, boy scouts, school participation, etc. 

When our oldest son entered junior high school at age 13, we 
were totally unprepared for what would hapoen durinp the next 
two years. He went into the 7th grade with a good academic 
record and had been a member of the safety patrol in 6th grade 
and student council. He lasted 6 months. He began exoermenting 
with pot during Christmas vacation. We began to notice strange 
signs. He talked on the phone, he stayed in his room, he did 
not want to be seen with the family. Our 8 year old began 
having difficulty in school, his grades were' bad. We began 
seeing a pyscologist with our 8 year old. 

We discovered that the 13 year old was smoking pot and so 
were all the other kids in the neighborhood. They had even 
given it to our 8 year old. We were devastated and ashamed. 
We talked to other parents, we worked with our children we 
joined PDAP, we became very active. We began to investigate 
the neighborhood, talk to school teachers and principals. 
~7e learne~ that this was a horrible epidemic. Not only ~vas 
~t affect~ng,our children, but look at the news paper, everyon~, 
sports heroes, school teachers, etc" were doing the same things 
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We talked to the parents of other children, told them what 
was going on. We turned names of drug dealers in our neighborhood 
over to the oolice. We feared for our lives. God help us, we 
did not know' what to do. Our jobs were suffering, our familv 
was suffering, our children were headed for the gutter and death. 

We turned to God, realizing that our 13 year old ~as g~ing to 
die. We talked to our doctor, who had treated th~s ch~ld for 
13 years, she said I can't help you. We sent him to a drug 
rehabilitation hospital in Houston, Texas. The cost was $35,000.00 
for nine weeks treatment. When he came back home, he lasted 
about 28 days, then the same cycle began over again. My ~us~and 
and I were losing our minds. We turned to the Corpus Chr~st~ 
Drug Abuse Council. I had a oersonal friend there and they 
agreed to see our son. They began to cou~cil him week~y and 
check his urine weekly. We began to phys~cally beat h~m. \\fe 
had tried everything else and didn't know what else to do. It 
took 35 licks with a wooden oaddle and four straight weekends 
in the house. We were totaliy committed to turning this child 
around. 

Our son has been clean for the last six months. We chanp,ed 
him from the public school to a catholic school. We are 
Baptist. He requested this change. He began to feel better, 
look better and act better. Our youngest child started to 
do well in school, our family has started to heal. 

I wanted you to hear our story. The assist~nce I seek is 
stiffer penalties for people who break the law and se~l drugs. 
Stiffer penalties for DWI's - most of the m.;rr's are h:-gh on. . 
drugs, we just can't tell the difference. I su~port ~nvest~gat~on 
into corruption for our police, judges, qfficials and oeoole ~ho 
enforce the law. Some changes need to be made in laws affect~ng 
minors. Drug dealers know that minors can escape through the 
system, consequently, we have 11 year old drug pushers. It.is 
connncn practice for the older kids to deal to the younger k~ds. 

Thank you. 
Corpus Christi, Texas 
Family 

" 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of Texas 

12000 Fede",' Building and U.S, Courthouu Po.t O/flce Box 61129 

Mr. Richard B: Lowe, III 

$1$ Ru.k Avenut 
Houlton, Te"", 77002 

December 15, 1983 

Chief Counsel, House Select Committee on 
Narcotics Abuse and Control 

Room H2-234, House Office Building Annex 2 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

Houston, Te"". 77208 

Re: December 12, 1983, hearing 
in Corpus Christi, Texas 

Dear Mr. Lowe: 

During my testimony before the Select Committee, Con
gressman Gilman asked me to submit our narcotics caseload 
showing both the age and the status of the cases. The 
following statistics are in response to that request. The 
column at the left indicates the year in which our file was 
opened. 

1963 1 fugitive status 
1969 3 fugitive status 
1970 2 fugitive status 
1971 8 fugitive status 
1972 8 fugitive status 
1973 6 fugitive status 
1974 12 fugitive status 
1975 10 fugitive status 
1976 23 fugitive status 
1977 13 fugitive status 
1978 8 fugitive status 
1979 10 fugitive status 

1 awaiting trial 
1980 9 fugitive status 

1 awaiting arraignment 
1 awaiting sentencing 
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22 fugitive status 
1 awaiting arraignment 
1 awaiting trial 
5 pretrial diversion 

25 fugitive status 
1 awaiting arraignment 
2 awaiting trial 
4 awaiting sentencing 
1 under investigation 
6 pretrial diversion 

40 fugitive status 
23 awaiting arraignment 
34 awaiting trial 
26 awaiting sentencing 

1 in trial 
9 awaiting grand jury 
1 awaiting service of warrant 

11 under investigation 
4 indictments being prepared 

Congressman Rangel also inquired as to the caseloads of 
the federal courts in the Southern District of Texas. Enclosed 
r,lease find the Southern District of Texas' response to the 
'Questionnaire for the 1984 Biennial Survey of Judgeship Needs." 

I would like to call the Committee's attention to several points. 
In the narrative answer to 3(a) it is pointed out· that from 
June ]982 to June 1983 the total caseload in the district grew 
over 99%. The rate of growth of the "weighted" case load in our 
district far exceeds the national average. In the narrative 
answer to 3(b), the Drug Task Force is specifically cited as 
a reason why more judges are needed. Our courts are strained 
up to or beyond their limits. I would not recommend putting 
any more prosecutors into the district until we receive addi
tional judges. 

Enclosure 

cc: Honorable Jesse Clark 
District Clerk 

Very truly yours, 

'D....:...(Jr~ 
DANIEL K. HEDGES 
United States Attornwy 

Q 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT 0' TEXAS 

CHAW.EIIS 0' 

JOHN V. SINGLETON 

(,HIIH JUOO' 

UNITEO S"ATttl COURTHOUSE 

HOUSTON. TEXAS 77002 

Honorable Charles A. Moye, Jr. 
Chief Judge 

October 5, 1983 

Chairman, Subcommittee on Judicial Statistics 
Northern District of Georgia 
75 Spring Street, S. W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Dear Judge Moye: 

Attached please find the completed questionnaire and supporting 
materials relative to the 1984 Biennial Judgeship Needs. I 
am distressed that Congress has not yet enacted legislation 
companion with recommendations based on earlier surveys. 
Upon submission of the 1982 Biennial Survey, I submitted a 
rather lengthy missive containing what appeared to be our 
justification for an additional position but declined to 
request such position. The position was not requested 
primarily due to the fact that there simply was not sufficient 
space available to house another judge and construction 
resulting from the 1979 omnibus judgefihip bill has only been 
completed this month. In other words, it was my desire to 
withhold the request for additional help even though it was 
needed at the time in order to ensure that we could economically 
utilize a new position. The failure of Congress to act 
indicates that my fears were useless and now we are in 
serious need of positions which we can accommodate. With the 
taking of senior inactive status by one judge, the assignment 
of an exclusive Galveston docket to the district judge 
resident in Galveston and the acceptance of lesser quarters 
for an active senior judge, we have three complete facilities 
available for immediate occupancy. This simply means that 
the appointment of three new district judges would not cost 
the tax payers any additional construction funds and would 
reap early benefits in managing" and disposing of a fast 
growing docket. 

I am forwarding a copy of the completed questionnaire and 
supporting material to Mr. James A. McCafferty, as per your 
instructions. The materials contain;';!d therein. represent the 
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genuine and urgent needs of this dl.strict for the effective 
administration of justice. 

cc: Mr. James A. McCafferty 

Sincerely, 

John V. Singleton 
Chief Judge 
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Questionnaire for the 1984 Biennial 
&trvey of Ju~eship Needs 

Please complete the questionnaire and send it al~ with any additionallq)pOl'ti~ 
material by Oetober 10, 1983 to the address shown on page 8. . 

1. Distri~t/~ircuit Southern Texas 
--~~~~~~~~-------' 

2. a. Number of ju~eships re~ommended for your court in 1982 by the Judicial 
Conference 0 • Is there still a need for these additional 
ju~eships? N 7 A If so, they must be justified below. 

b. How many additional ju~eships over and above the number shown in "a" 
above are required to meet the present needs of your 
court? 3 

--.......:~---

11 prepa!'~ your rellPOllSes to the fono~ questions, please justify all 
jtqeships requested in both 2a and 2b above. If the Judicial Conference did 
not recommend ju~eships for your court in 1982 and you are not request~ 
additional j.qeships in Ibn above, respond only to Questions 'I thru 12 (courts 
of appeals) or 10 thru 12 (district eourtsl. 

3. a. Comment on all case!cad fa~tors of your court that justify your request for 
additional ju~eships and explain their signifi~an~e. 

See Attachment No. 3(a). 

b. Give an ac~ount of other factors not in~luded in the statistical profile that 
justify a request for additional ju~eships. 

See Attachment No. 3(b) 
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c. list any re~ent legislation that you think win affect your court more 
severely than it will affect others. In~lude a brief explanation. 

d. Dis~U1lS any geographical problems within your distri~t/~ircuit that affect 
your need for additional ju~eships. 

See Attachment 3(d) 

e. Explain the effect of any present or past va~ancies or long term medical 
diffi~ulties of a~tive ju~es on your court's ability to handle the current 
workload. 

None 

c 
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f. Is the situation that requires you to seek additional juq;eships temporary or 
long term? EXplain. . 

All indications are the present growth of litigation will 
continue to gen~rally increase throughout the district, but 
accelerate particularly in the Houston and Galveston Di,visions 
due to the continual growth of the population and rapidly 
expanding economic factors in the counties in and around the 
Houston - Galveston area. 

g. Discuss. any additional factors that the SUbcommittee should consider in 
evaluating the need for additional juq;eships in your court. 

Economic considerations regarding the authorization of three 
new omnibus judgeship positions should include the fact that 
the Houston Division is currently capable of furnishing both 
chambers and courtroom facilities without additional cost. 
This capability occurred through the unexpected senior 
inactive status of one judge, the reassignment of full time 
resident duties to a second and the willingness of an active 
senior judge to accept less extensive chambers. This 
consideration alone will save the tax payers significant 
sums of money and allow the immediate utilization of new 
judgeship positions and relief from the pressures of bulging 
caseloads. 

What ~ecific caseload ~r other factors would suggest that y~ur co~rt does not 
need any additional ju~eships and why should the Subcommittee Ignore them 
when reviewing the ju~eship needs of your court? 

None 
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What suggestions for handling the caseload can yoll propose if you do not 
receive the additional ju~eship(s) you request? 

None 

District Courts only. 

a. Has the court by local rule or otherwise, authorized the magistrate(s) to 
perform a full range of "additional duties" pursuant to Title 28 U.S.C. 
Sections 636(b) and (c)? 

Yes. 
See Attachment 6(a) 

b. Could the volume or range of duties of the magistrates in you~ district be 
expanded to relieve the juq;es of part of their workload? Explam. 

See Attachment 6(a) 



................ 

. , 
-- \. f 

\ 

108 

c. If you had additional magistrates would your court expand the duties of 
your magistrates and how? 

Considering the remarks covered in Attachment 6(a), an 
additional magistrate position would allow a better dis
tribution of the tremendous pending caseload now assigned to 
this court and its existing four magistrates. The court 
has allowed for the broad use of magistrate positions but 
simply does not have enough magistrates to exercise and 
delegate authority on anything other than a priority basis. 
At the moment, the management of prisoner related civil 
rights cases is demanding most of the magistrates time 
outside of criminal arraignments and more traditional 
functions. Without question, additional magistrate positions 
would allow sufficient distribution of this unusual caseload 
complexion and perhaps furnish additional services and 
relief to the district court. 

d. Could the caseload situation in your district be resolved by the appointment 
of additional magistrate(s) rather than ju~eships? Explain. 

Only as noted above. 

7. Courts of Appeals only 

a. What percentage of the total case dispositions in your circuit are effected 
in the following manner? 

Withou t oral argument " •. " ~ • " • " . " • " " • " . " • " " •• " •• " 

Oral argument fixed in advance at less 
than the standard length ••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Normal amount of oral argument •••••••••••••••••••• 

Allowance of extra time fixed in advance •••••••••••••• 
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b. If the ju~eship(s) you requested are authorized would you propose to 
change this? If SO, how? 

8. Courts of Appeals only. Fill in the followi~ information on the schedule of 
sittings for the current year: 

The court holds session __ times each year for __ days each session, 

hearing __ cases each day, totalling __ cases per year. 

Each active ju~e sits for __ sessions and hears __ cases per session, 

totalling __ cases per year • 

Number of en banc sitti~s __ (for a total of __ cases per year). 

The court sits in __ locations each year. List the locations: 

35-584 0-84-8 



9. 

" 

110 

Does your court depend regularlY on the services of senior ju~es and/or 
district ju~es within the circuit in setting the schedule of sittings? If so is 
there a regular schedule for sittings for: ' 

Senior Ju~es? Explain. 

District Jucges? E!cplain. 

Courts,o,f App,eals only. J?oes your court have a screening program for 
determinIng whIch cases T-eqwre oral argument? Briefly 'describe your. program. 
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10. If the Subcommittee were to recommend that the number of ju~eships on your 
court be reduced by one position, how would you justify retaining that position? 

The justification would be by statistical comparison of the 
patterns of steady growth in filings .in the area and verifiable 
statistical profiles. 

11. Please provide your views on the possibility of the Judicial Conference 
recommending decreases in the number of ju~eships during the Biennial 
Ju~eship Surveys. 

12. Does the response to this questionnaire represent the consensus of the court or 
the views of the responding ju~e only? 

Honorable John V. Singleton Ju~e respondi~ 
Signature 
Date '--~O~c~t~o~b-e-r~6-,~1~9~8~3~----~~-----

FTS Number 527,..0600 

Please send a eopy of the eompleted questionnaire and any additionallq)pOl'~ 
material by October 10, 1983 to: 

Mr. James A. McCafferty, Chief 
Statistical Analysis and Reports Division 
Administrative Office ot the U.S. Courts 
Washi~ton, DC 20544 
A ttention: Ju~eship &lrvey 

o 
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3. (a) Comment on all caseload factors of your court that 
justify your request for additional judgeships and 
explain their significance. 

Some rather significant and dramatic totals have evolved 
since statistical gatherings submitted in the September 1981 
Biennial Judgeship Report. From June 30, 1981 until the 
same reporting period 1983, filings have inc~eased as 
indicated below: 

Houston 
Galveston 

Brownsville 
Corpus Christi 
Laredo 
Victori,a 

120% 
66% 

25% 
92% 
63% 
61% 

(Houston - Galveston = 115%) 

(Other Divisions 44%) 

It should be noted that these filings are unweighted, but do 
reflect significant increases at both Houston and Corpus 
Christi. Due to the diverse caseload distribution and 
case load complexion (criminal vs. civil) the needs of this 
district should more appropriately be examined on a divisional 
basis rather than considering the district as a whole. 
While there is a percentage of increase at all divisions, 
the most dramatic occurs at Houston. It has been clearly 
established that resident judges assigned at each divisional 
point are necessary to ensure the effective and efficient 
administration of justice within that divisional jurisdiction. 
The press of deadlines under the Speedy Trial Act joined 
with the general demands of a heavy docket and vast geographic 
distance, prohibits routine shifting of resident judges from 
one division to another on any regular or scheduled basis. 
This procedure has been attempted in the past to the detriment 
of effective case management and the physical well-being of 
our judges. Consequently, the justification for new judgeship 
positions should stand on divisional demands and/or needs as 
opposed to the more traditional grouping of district averages. 

Secondly, it should be noted that the Houston - Galveston 
divisions account for 77% of the total filings in the 
district with a district-wide increase of over 99% since 
June 3D, 1982. Due to this high rate of filings the Houston -
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Galveston judges hold a 48% higher filing ratio than judges 
in the other divisions. Thus, the caseload filing ratios as 
of June 3D, 1983 are as follows: 

Houston 
Galveston 

Brownsville 
Corpus Christi 
Laredo 
Victoria 

799.6(800) Per Judge 

541.5(542) Per Judge 

The published 1983 national average of weig~ted c~ses per 
active judge is 473,'which represents~a nat~onal ~~crease of 
13.4% over the previous year and 37:8% over the pr~or 5 year 
period. For comparison, please cons~der tha~ the Sout~ern 
District of Texas average weighted case rat~o per act~ve 
judge is 553 and represents an i~crease of ~9.2% ov7r the 
previous year and 51.9% for the 5 year prev~ous per~od. The 
filings for the Houston - Galv7s~on divis~on di~id7d by the 
national average of weighted f~l~ngs per Judge ~nd~cate the 
need for 11.7 active judgeships for the Houston - Galveston 
divisions. This requirement represents an increase of 3.7 
additional active judge positions within the Houston -
Galveston divisions. 
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Give an account of other fact~rs ~ot included in. 
the statistical profile that Just~fy a request for 
additional judgeships. 

It should be noted that not statistically ~upp~rtable are 
several factors which place the south;rn D~~trLct.o~ Texas 
in jeopardy of a tremendous increase ~n serLOUS l~t~gatiol 
even beyortd that which is shown in our profiles. First, et 
it be noted that Houston and the Southern District of }exas , t 
has been targeted for a special task force for drug en orcemen . 
The U. S. Attorney has increased its criminal attorney force 
by 26 91. and similar increases have been noted among all . 
law e~f~~cement 8.gencies. It can be expect;d. that author~zat~ons 
for prosecution 'indictments and serious cr~m~nal litigat~on 
will increase a~ a result of this effort. Secondly, t~eth 
economic down-turn in Mexico is much worse than most 0 .e 
nation recognizes. Illegal aliens and those who traffic ~n 
this human commodity have reached unprecedented levels with 
full expectation of continued increase; Bankruptcies involving 
businesses have increased more than 59% in;the,Southern 
District of Texas which l\'ill continue to Lnvolve the 
district court in'such litigation. For instance, the recent 
bankruptcy of Continental Air Lines is expected to prloduce 
monumental litigation that most likely will be large y 
handled by the U. S. District Court. 

All of the above factors auger themselves to the beli7f that 
not only will we continue to experience the caseload :n~reases 
noted in other portions of this repo:t, but ~hat.spe~7a 
factors loom large on our horizon wh~ch requLre Lmme fate 
attention in the hope of avoiding a severe shortage 0 

judges. 
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3. (d) Discuss any geographic problems within your 
district/circuit that affect your need for additional 
judgeships. 

This district is composed of 45 counties in South and Southeast 
Texas consisting of 14,108 square miles, something less than 
one-fifth the area of the state of Texas. It lies, in 
general, in a belt approximately 150 to 200 miles wide along 
the Texas Gulf Coast, beginning on the east at a point 
approximately 50 miles west of the Louisiana border, and 
extending in a southwesterly direction, roughly parallel to 
the Gulf Coast, to the point of intersection with the Rio 
Grande River. It includes about 250 miles of common border 
between the United States and Mexico. 

This district points to inherent geographic factors associated 
with distance between divisional offices, requiring complex 
management of clerical and judicial time. For instance, 
there are six divisional offices of the Court, including 
Houston (as headquarters), Galveston (58), Corpus Christi 
(250), Victoria (120), Brownsville (375), and Laredo (320). 
The distances in miles from Houston to each of these points 
are indicated in parentheses by the listed division. 

There are diverse caseloads peculiar to districts similar to 
the Southern District of Texas which are affected by the 
geographic factors. In addition to normal litigation expected 
in cities of such size, Houston, Corpus Christi, Galveston, 
and Brownsville are deep water ports; and each - particularly 
the first three named - has a large number of admiralty, 
longshoreman, personal injury and cargo damage cases. In 
addition to this complex civil litigation, we are finding 
that more multidistrict litigation is finding its Ttlay to the 
Houston division in the form of complex antitrust suits. On 
the other hand, the Brownsville and Laredo divisions extend 
generally along the Mexico border with each of these cities 
being located on a main arterial highway leading to Monterrey 
and Mexico City. These divisions are burdened with extremely 
heavy criminal caseloads, which include smuggling and 
immigration cases. The Corpus Christi division is also 
feeling the impact of increased civil litigation and continues 
to receive intense criminal activity being filtered through 
the border divisions en route north. All of the misdemeanor 
immigration cases and many felony, which are filed as 
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misdemea~ors! are ha~d17d by the U. S. Magistrates in the 
border d1vis10ns, br1ng1ng some relief to the court's 
docket .. The c~ntinued press of the Speedy Trial Act often 
results 1~ civ1l c~~es in Br~wnsville, Corpus Christi, and 
Laredo be1ng delaye:J, result1ng in periodic "Crash Docket 
Ca~l" ef~orts to reduce the resulting severe case log jam. 
Wh1le th1s pr~c7d~re has allowed effective management in 
~he~e.three d1v1s10ns, the effort is ineffective in terms of 
Jud1c1al support and personnel time. The loss of judicial 
~nd support personnel time in traveling the distances 
1n~01ved reduces the opportunity for effective case management 
wh1le away from the home division. However through extra 
effo;t ~hese divis~ons are able to adequateiy maintain 
stat1st1cs on clos1ngs near or in excess of the national average. 

In the Houston - Galveston divisions other special geographical 
problems surface. Approximately 90% of all civil cases 
filed.i~ ~he Southern District of Texas occur within these 
two d1v1s10ns. The area is characterized as one of the 
fastest growing metropolitan centers in the nation, with an 
7xtreme~y healthy prospect for continued economic and 
1ndustr1al growth. ~~ny large corporations are relocating to 
the.are~, bringing highly complex civil litigation in their tra1l w1nd. 

Houston - Galveston population growth between 1970-1983 
reflects a 56% increase, with a projection of 3 945 096 
(82%) for 1985. Houston continues to lead the ~ati~n in 
construction activity for the past five (5) years The 
29,398 permits issued for new construction totaled 
$2,858,660,800.00, an increase of 28.9% from the previous 
annual record established in 1980. The Houston - Galveston 
area leads the South and Southwest in retail sales volume 
and.ha~ the highest ~rowth rate in retail sales among the' 
nat10n s 24 metropo11tan areas with more than 1.5 million 
pop~lation. Total retail sales in the area increased 89.5% 
dur7ng 1977-1981, and are projected to rise another 90.7% 
dur1ng 1981 to 1986. Houston is a major center of international 
business activity. More than 400 Houston companies maintain 
over 2,700 foreign offices in 110 nations. The number of 
fo;eign-o~ed firms ~ocated in the Houston area has nearly 
~r1pled S1nce 1976 w1th over 600 foreign firms now operating 
1n the Houston area. 
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Unemployment in Houston for the past y~~r was 6.5% of the 
total available work force. Annual average employment rose 
2.7%. Motor vehicle registration has more than tripled 
since 1960, and rose 5.8% last year. Ho~sto~ ran~s third 
among U. S. ports in total tonnage, and 1S f1rst 1n foreign 
tonnage. Five (5) major rail systems operate l~ lines of 
mainline track radiating from the city. Approx1mately?0 
common carrier truck lines operate daily schedules serv1ng 
the Southwestern distribution center and provide routes 
throughout the state and nation. The Houston.ar7a is one_of 
the nations most important oil and gas transm1SS10n cente .. s. 
Of the nation's 25 largest pipeline companies that move 
natural gas, 10 are headquartered in Ho~s~n. The area 
airports had an annual increase of 10.77. 1n passenger 
traffic. Houston International Airport domestic passenger 
traffic ranked thirteenth among U. S. Airports, and ranked 
seventh in foreign passenger traffic. It is sufficient to 
say that the Houston - Galveston area has become the aerospace 
center for the nation. All this activity augers itself to a 
sustained level of complex and multifaceted litigation, as 
reflected by the increased caseload of 65% over the past 
year. 

Further complicating the free movement of litigation ~n the 
Houston - Galveston divisions is the fact that approx1~at7ly 
24 105 of 36 210 (67%) of state prisoners are housed w1th1n 
Te~as Depart~ent of Corrections facilities which are 10cat7d 
within the jurisdiction of these two divisions. ~h7 volum1nous 
prisoner litigation comes primarily thr~u~h·the f1l7ng of 
civil rights complaints current~y.comJ?r1s1ng a pend1ng 
caseload of approximately 561 c1v1l r1ghts (1983) cases. In 
addition there are currently pending 394 habeas corpus 
cases and an additional 23 miscellaneous fili~gs, for a ll~o 
total of some 978 cases. This represents an 1ncr7ase of h 

over the previously reported data. Since most pr1~one:s 
file a!3 pro se litigants, a tremendous amou~t of t1me 1~ 
requirc~d in screening and processing. these .n~n-profess10nal 
cases". The appointment of counsel 1S proh1b1ted by sheer 
volume and economic factors. 
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SOLOMON P. ORTIZ 
27TM DtlTaltT. TlJtAI 

'52. LONGwoII," Houl. Ornci 'UII.DING 
WUHINQTOfif.D,C 20511 

202-225-7742 

0I1nUCT omell: 

304' UotAIlO SUITl1510 
Co"pus CHIUITI" TlXAi n"ol 

IS 12-aI3-5UI 

(ton!lfU,S of the iinited £,tatts 
!tOUt of 'Rtprumtatibts 
Washington, !t.Q:. 20m 

35015 BOCA CHICA IOULlV4IIO. SUITI 438 
BAOWWIVlUIl. TlX.U 7152, 

1512-154' ... 1242 

January 24, 1984 

Chairman Charles Rangel 
Select Committee on Narcotics 

Abuse and Control 
H2-234 HDB Annex 2 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

Dear Mr. Chairman: 

COW"'lnUI: 

ARMED SERVICES 

IU,COM .. I"r •• ; 
r£ftSONNEl AND COMPENSATION 

SEAPOWER AND STRATEGIC AND 
CfU11CAL MAT£RIALS 

MERCHANT MARINE AND FISHERIES 

.u.co .... 'nlll: 
FISHERIES AND WILOUFE 

CONSERVATION AND Tht tNVIRONMENT 

MERCHANT MARINE 

PANAMA ~Al. AND THE 
OUTtR COPmNENTAL SHELF 

SELECT COMMITTEE ON 
NARCOTICS ABUSE AND CONTROL 

I have enclosed an article which appeared in the January 16, 1984 
issue of the C0rIlUS Christi Caller, regarding the reactivation of the 
Coastal Bend MaJor Cnmes Task Force. 

Reactivation of the task force is a first, and extremely important, 
result of last month I s hearings in Corpus Christi. lis the article 
indicates, the task force was originally formed in 1978 and disbanded in 1981. 

Nueces County Sheriff James Hickey spearheaded the movement to 
reactivate the task force and it is my strong belief that his de.cision 
was a direct result of the Corpus Christi hearings. 

I want to, again, extend my deepest' appreciation and thanks to both 
you and your staff. As a result of your support and efforts,the drug 
problems in South Texas will receive desperately needed attention. 

With warm personal regards, I· am 

SPO:m1m 
Enclosure 

c2/!i2 .6l. 
r-"I.(MJN p. E j~ 
~bmber of Congress r~ 
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,Crime t
Casltn

force 
~enew~ drug fight 
By LIHDA CARRICO· . ~ttIIW''''' Malhl~, Oranlc Grove and ~eDed1' 

The Coaalal Bend MuJor Crln _ Hiclt!!Y'!lld. 
Tnik Force I. be In, reactlvlltrd in I-~n I O~h(cr clllri expected 'to Join thl! 
uHrmptlo comballhc lncrcullnl n~r ~~ orc!! ore Frarr, Port Arlnall 
TOfio:a trofflckln. throughout South ~ I)rr~'u~ Christi, Kln,sville, Rockport' 

UiI:!, Nucres CounlY Sh~rlli James fI ~ UIlIO, Goliad.. Portland. SlAton: r, Hlck!!y ~id, ,(l'vlll,~" Gre,ory. Taft. Karl" City, 
Thlll'roralinizulion of thl'lusk for('e Sun f lC ,

O
, Thrl!e Rlvtlra and Ray-

_ eOlTlprl,~d of luw oUken rrom 15 1n0l,l ,ville, -
eountici _ will OIl1ow lawmen 10 cro.~~ .. \\ hilt! 011 IJwmber <'IUu and COUll
JurlldlrtlDnallinel fo InvelUptf and 111':<; " .. HI b\!nl!CIl, Nuecel County 
Itrl'ell tbole perlOfluulpeded9rDllr. It~nd5 to ,b\'nl!rlt Ihe mOlt rrom,the 
toUr •• muulln, Hickey uld tn,;k rurct! I work, Ulekey uld 

"The tilliloree I. a workln; htlter "Whule\'er cornu tnlo NUl'cn 
allon o( counUPIi and munlclpli!lItle· fOIlIlI )' fir", hltR tbe IIround in the out 
with the purpose or Invelltlllltl". rna II yillS dlfttrict,:' Hick., Ie~, "Air: 
JOT ('rime., principally n I' ~rlH' {';mylnll narrnUi!1I _lIy laud 
.tnuullnl," Hickey· said areot e. In the more ~ppneh' popultUed coon· 

"" will allow fv !he m~xlmum ule tlell where there ill a IJ'l!at amount or' 
of resourcell _ the mlt,pnwl'!' 0( all rangeland, BUI lho.p narrotic. lind'a 
departments (!artlclpatln" a •• Id' all' r~'~ 10 :-/Ul'<:flll (:otlnty in .malllOr 

, provldln, latllude In RltvetAtnl 011 l\ UI\IIully by vehlele.," 
, throughout lhl' ure" " Hickey laid 13111 Hlclley said narcotic. are • 

"Since ""feollc" tr'21U\ci;era d " prohh,'m rOT lhe ('IIlire Ii~. and the 
• top 01 county linel we Uftd rin t prllbh'rn mUlIl be atlal:ked Jolall)'. 

,.I)H.Jlty to ~c with Ute In .. e"tl~!· ,\$ un t',,,"npJe,of how tM talk lorce 
, 1100 .. ,,,. " elUJ "1~I~t in drug cu~es. Hickey re-

The III-"k (orce, howl'Vt!r. won't be. c~lI.l'd iI rllid modI! b~ Un Oak,Cotln
come InvDlved In" elise \intil II rounl l~ Sheriff 1.arr)· Bu~b1 thr.c monlh~ 
lIhl?riCf or ell)' police chic! hnl! 1Ilkc~ II~U In ""~Irh 7fM1 pDundJl or mariJuuna 
lor IIMiltoncc, H\t"kI!Y auld W.I~ l'onlulI.'ull.'d, 

.. ,.. J1l1rtlcuhlr IIhcriU or ~JlCIl chl"r In\'C'litlgalnrll "lid thf rllid wal n 
mil)' need urtdhlonol Jnanpower ~r rUl .... !!" .. ;, ~\Il udded that,lhe IIlreraft 
equlpmenl hl' due:!n't hu\'\.' (lr thc't'x ~a~$VOrllnl Ihll ",l:Irljuanl and u 
I"'rlille In tI CI!rlllln a);IK'!'1 of to' I' P (' up trut"" ci1l1'yml/: ID .. ddltlonlll 
n~:<;tig,,"un," Ilk'key !lilla, ,.It Wi~I~;' 7011 .pnundll (If Ih" wl"ed elcllpcd oap-
II ptllliing of wlllni which will he mude ' 11m. 
lIvllllllblt' 10 1111 of UI," . 

, , 

"Bu~b!i didn't hove tb.! perlOnnel 

. ,., ' ."ullable 10 lIet up lurvelllancc In the 
Tile tuk, re~ orllloallf ",II "rNI or to InlnCtlpllne load," Rick., 

formed In Ncn-emHr 1171 IMoulh tile said. ' 
oHortl of theJ1.Nu.ce1l County ShllriU ": .. ch .hcrUf and police eblef w1\l 
8olombn Ortl" ~ lo.count)' &.a.k 1II~lillI oUlcers to work In the lask 
(oree dt~bDnded ... eady 1181. .. (oTC", 'rbe' orllccrtt perlorm Ihelr nor· 

Hldle1 lpearheaded the movement mal dUlln. bUI may be called Into In-
10 «'acttvale ttlt ta.k 'orce, He II VUIlj{3lionli In other t'OUnUH. Hickey 
chairman o( ttw &IIsk force', board of laid, The oUil'Cri will be paid by tbe 
.overnor •• wblch II ,.IPonlllble lor clli"l' ;tnd CoynUc. that employ toom, 
l~k force opera","" Kleber, County , J)~l\?lte h~ own mllnpower Ihor~. 
Sherlll Jim SClrborou,h II 'lice ,,_:: III the Nueee. (''ounty SnerUI, 
chairman, ' ". Di.'l'urlmcnt. Hickey said 1\1 will UI. 

"We feU thert' Willi. crying n£~ to ,Ign RenTal depII'!" to partlelpate in 
hlvt! lhlB," lUckey .aId o[ tbe: look th~ la~1I. (orce-. loree'" r.~Uy.\inn, "We know ltlill ,,' leelll .. '0 Imporlont to join In 
narcotici ar. comln, tt ,real bUlk to. '(hI:' OI"tlvltk!. Iince the t .. k force call 
South TeIlD., All .berUh,and poUce net more cIIlllllICated nare:otlCl in one 
admlnl."atofl in the area know the)' OtJera\llln tnlln what In\' dl'pllUel can 
and helpwltb tho protilfln:' 00 In I whole ,ear," Hi!:ke1 Ia1d. 

Elev." co.alleS have recf\yed. alk He .aldll,", t •• k force will reulve 
.tbarIuUe" ftoAm,u.'lftCtlm1

1aaIoJlen. lDvelllla.U", i1i1l1l.su:e,rro~ "veral 
,~01S i~l~f&IcllI.t •• ·,Hlc II)' ,,_'d, ,rtdltl'ufa • .ccwRi.lricludIRllbe 'Pf,U1 
TM1.'" Nil""'. KI~ra" an Pa'ri. Enlorc:eml!lIl Admlllbtrltlioll Qnd the 
do. Uve ,Oi:lk, .. Br_., Jlrn Weill. COll:cl Guard. 
~e. Ouva\, Karatll, JIm UOIl oad Vl'illut'y c:ounHrt.. .• Hickey snl.d !lome snulsltU! n~ed to 

Ot'ller e:ounllei upct"ted tojoln ure be r~lWlvC!d. 
AranMU., Goliad, Re'"&\lIund t\eswdy Ht> _uld the 'I,ll (oroce' neld, Q 

CO\Intlell, hI! luld. "klllIKo ;and Starr "lIa!!h l\MId" to11ntict! n.f(:Olicl deal • 
cOllntln ilf'1! conlicierln, II, Rick ... ), rfll lind cUlh (or lInderco .... r "Ulcera 
IIIIld. 10 bu)' Ihe drlllll, Perl 01 the ",eM In 

Cltle!l tbol an mrmbt.'rll Indudr l'hl' NUl'CC8 ('ounlY Tall" Force 1m· 
.Allcc, Robwtowll, BillhDp. Jo'alfurrills, I'rl's ... ·und Inuy be UI(!d for thou pur· 

. Premunt. ~ranllll! PQl(5, In'lo~Id,·. pD~«'''. he RlIld, 

'. 

.. 

<> 



\ 

Mr. Richard B. Lowe III 
Chief Counsel 

120 

e 
d? auf c:lfuC7alo, .:S't. 

SHIIIII'F 

WlLLACY COUNTY COURTHOUSE 

RAYMONDVULE. TEXAS 78580 

House Select Committee on Narcotic Abuse and Control 
Room 234 
House Office Annex II 
Washington, D.C. 

Dear Mr. Lowe, 

I recently received a telephone call ·from Respresentative Ortiz's office requesting 

attend a hearing in Corpus Christi, Texas m "Drug Trafficking and Abuse on the Texas 

'Gulf Coast." I 'received a letter Monday of this week stating that due to the large amount 

of witnesses contacted it would be impossible for all 'of us to tesitfy at the' hearing. It 

was requested that we submit to ycu our written testimony. 

I am enclosing a proposal ~e submitted to our County Commissioners Court approximately 

four years ago. The request was turned down bu~ as you can see from the figures we had a 

tremendous problem then, and if anything it has gotten worse. 

We work closely with the State Police Narcotics people but there's so much going m 

that they don't have the manpower or the time to work on the cases. Also a lot of our cases 

involve smaller ~ounts of drugs and they usually only work cases with larger amounts. 

We average 3-4 cases a week just off expressway 77 alone. This does not include air 
/ 

traffic, boat traffic, or local people. So you see we do have somewhat of a problem. We do 

have Drug Abuse programs that we make available to the schools, civic groups, etc., and they 

help but the trafficing still continues. 

During 1983 alone so far 149 .. people have been processed through our facility on drug 

cnarges. Of those 149 people, 98 were passing through and 51 were arrested locally. So 

you see even though we!re a small community there is an enormous amount of drug traffic. 

Also bear in mind these figures show mly those caught, so you can imagine what is getting 

through. 

'-----~ - '\ .. - ~ 
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I hope this information will be of some assistance to the members of your committee. 

If you need any more information or if I can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate 

to call on me. This is a very serious pl"oblem, one "that I am not only very concerned about 

but also very involved with. 

If there is some type of report that will be made available as to the findings of 

'" your committee, I would appreciate it if I could obtain a copy of the report. 

Re~pectfully submitted. 

~;!.~y 
Willacy County Sheriff's Dept. 
Raymondville, Texas 78580 
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DRUGS IN WILLACY COUNTY 

Drug misuse, or abuse, is found in every sector of society. 

It occurs increasingly in affluent suburbs, as well as in the 

midmle-class or ~oor areas. It is becoming a tragic common-

place in schools, colleges, and also in industry. As our daily 

papers tell us all too clearly, it is a particular problem 

among our young people. We have laws designed to help control 

the drug problem, but they do' not eliminate or prevent it. 

Education is needed also. Before there can be effective control, 

there must be widespread understanding by the people of the 

possible tragic effects of drug misu~e on mind and body. 

Here in Willacy County we have a two fold problem. First, 

we have the regular drug trafficking and over the past few 

years it has risen to a very serious sitUation. You need ?nly 

drive down Hidalgo Avenue from the roadside park to the freeway 

on a warm Saturday night to see the problem first hand. Approx-

imately 250 to 300 cars are involved in the "Parade", with an 

average of 2.5 persons per car. There are about 750 people 

involved. Of those 750, about 60% (or 450) will have been in 

contact with drugs (smoked, dropped, bought, sold, or been in 

the car with someone who did) before the night is over. Beer 

is seen everywhere. It is used to "cover" intoxicating 

effects of ~~rijuana and other drugs, and as an amplifier of 

drugs effects. 

Second, we have one of the two main highways leaving the 
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valley going through' our County. Willacy County is unique in 

its geographic position on Highway 77. The transportation of 

drugs through our County to points North are of great abundance. 

It is the last stop before the long 52 miles of ranch isolation. 

Because of this, illegal drugs going North will many times be 

transferred from one vehicle to another in case they have been 

spotted in getting this far. This is one of the primary 

reasons that the D.P.S. Task Force has made so many arrests 

with large quantities of Marijuana. A portion of the drugs 

are staying"tlere for use or sale by residents of our County. 

Our crime rate has risen because of the drug traffic~ Most of 

our thefts and burglaries are committed to obtain merchandise 

to sell or trade for drugs. 

Problems have begun to arise in' the school systems; not 

jus t the High Schools, but the lower grades, as well. A pro-

gram of Law Enforcement and Education is needed, and needed 

now. The problem is already a serious one and we don't want 

it to reach epidemic proportions. Therefore, we 'propose the 

following program, which we beli~ve will help to lesson and 

perhaps eliminate a majoJ: problem in our County before it gets 

too far out of hand. 

The four school districts in the County have begun having 

serious problems with drugs. These have been handled by the 

school authorities up to now, but the volume and seriousness 

of the drug violations can no longer be left to Counselors and 

Principals. They must be handled by Peace Officers and Judges. 

There .is not enough training program to inform teachers of the 

symptoms of drug abuse or the identification of dangerous drugs. 

-------- ------'-
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The majority of the teachers could not ~dentify marijuana if 

they were to see it. Students have no credible source of drug 

information. Many times, streetwise students have better 

knowledge of drugs than law enforcement instructors and teachers. 

It has been projected that on a ty.pical High School 

campus approximately in every ten students, eight have used a 

"Dangerous Drug"; five are regular users; three are physically 

or psychologically dependant and one is a pusher, or supplier. 

Junior High has shown a great increase in the usage of drugs. 

Drugs have also been detected in Grammer School. With nearly 

600 sq. miles and a little over 1000 ~tles of road in the 

County, it is difficult to provide basic security with only 

seven Deputies. ~t would not be possible to assign any of 

these men to work ~ull time on drug'traffic without leaving 

some intolerable lapses in security. We have always been able 

to call upon the State D.P.S. Task Force or the Federal Drug 

Enforcement AdministratiC?nfor assistance in the past. We still 

can, but only for very large (several hundred pounds or several 

thousand pills) cases, and most recently, they are so under-

staffed that they are asking for us to work on their large 

cases whenever they involve Willacy County •. 

II GOALS AND INDICATORS 

It Wlill be the goal of the proposl!!d drug enforcement team 

to actively pursue cases on a Full-Time basis, and to1work with 

Federal and State Drug Enforcement Agencies. 

It will be necessary to develop a record system which will 

identify drug related cases in order that adequate statistics 
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can be developed to shew the magnitude of the problem and the 

progress being made to reduce drug crime. 

As an initial goal it will be expected that the new team 

would make a minimum·of 25 drug related arrests in the fi~st 

year. Additionally, it would be expected that burglaries, 

thefts and other drug related crimes would be reduced 20%, or 

more, within the first 12 months. 

It will also be a goal of this team to raise public aware

ness of the proQlem by working with the service 9lubs of the 

community and with the school districts to contact large numbers 

of young adults. 

III METHODOLOGY, ORGANIZATION AND COORDINATION 

The Drug Enforcement Team will c~sist of four Deputies 

and a team leader organized under the Sheriff and responsible 

to him. The team will address itself exclusively to Drug 

related cases and will cooperate with other Local, State, 

and Federal Authorities. 

A program of prevention will be developed along with the 

standard detection, apprehention, prosecution methodology. The 

prevention program will consist of a series of programs 

tailored to service club presentations, a Seminar for Teachers, 

and a program of up-to-the minute information for students, 

including question and answer sessions. 

IV PROPOSED BUDGET 

The following is the proposed budget for the first year 

of operation of the Drug Enforcement Team. 

35-584 0-84-9 
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PERSONNEL 

Salaries: 5 Deputies $60,000.00 

Training 1,000.00 

Expenses 1,000.00 

Professional and contact services 1,000.00 

EUIPMENT 

Automobiles (2) plus opere Exp. 10,000.00 

Radio Equipment 5,000.00 

Misc.-Tape recorder etc. 1,000.00 

FUNDS 

"Buy" Fund 5,000.00 

"Snitch" Fund 5,000.00 

89,000.00 

VI IMPLEMENIATIOK SCHEDULE 

Hire/Assign Officers four months plus schooling 

Obtain Autos four months 

Obtain Equipment four months 

First Full Deployment four months 

First Year Detailed Report one year 

SUMMARY 

The Drug Problem is epidemic and growing .fast. Street 

drug traffic has become enormous and because of our geographic 

location transient drug traffic is heavier than other communities. 

Our schools can no longer handle drug violations as discipline . 

problems: 

A Drug Enforcement Team is needed, organized and working 

under the supervis~on of the Sheriff. The team would consist 
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d four deputies working exclus~vely on ,. 
of a team leader an 

. The Team would be equiped with two cars drug related cases. 
office in ttl! Correction Facility and operate from seperate 

Building. 

1 $89,000.00 and about four Funding of approximate y 

months lead-time would be necessary to the first full deploy-

mente 

., 



\ 

----------- - -

128 

Strategies for Drug Control Efforts 

In July 1982, at the Annual ~Ieeting of the Southem Governors' Association in Hilton 
Head, South Carolirla, the southern governors agreed that international drug 
trafficking has become an issue of major regional concern. Governor Lamar Alexander 
of Tennessee and Governor Bob Graham of Florida invited governors and srate law 
enforcement officials to a special meeting in Nashville, Tennessee to discuss 
strategies for handling drug trafficking problems. The results of that meeting, held in 
September 1982, were eight policy recommendations for states to enhance drug 
control efforts. These recommendations subsequently received unanimous concur· 
renee from all participating states. 

On October 14, 1982, President Reagan announced his national initiatives to combat 
drug smuggling and organized crime. These initiatives are consistenr with the 

o recommendations developed by the govemors in Nashville. 

An ad hoc staff group of the National Governors' Association (NGA) met in 
~ashingron, D.C. on November 18, 1982, to define the role of the Goz:ernors' Project 
included in the Presidenr's initiatives. The group also agreed to work with staff of 
Governor Bob Grnharn. of Florida to prepare an implementation strategy for the eight 
policy recommendations approved by the southern states. On January 13, 1983, 
Commissioner Robert Dempsey of the 'Florida Departmenr of law Enforcement 
presented an implementation strategy to the ad hoc commirree for their review and 
comment. The southern governors ~ish to express their appreciation to the members 
of this cornmirree for their \\'illingness to work on this endeavor. 

Upon adoption of the implementation strategy by the NGA. a steering commirree 
should be appoinred immediately to oversee and ensure implementation. This 
steering commirree should submit an annual report to the NGA on progress related to 
these initiatives. 

Both the Presidenr·s and the governors' recommendations indicate that it is 
imperative that implementation of drug strategies be closely coordinated among the 
states and at the federal level. 
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Executive Summary 
The following Is a plan for Implemc:ntlng recommenda· 
tlons for drug control th:1t was dr:1ftetl by an ad hoc 
group from the :-IGA In Jan~ 198;. The following eight 
llems were Identlfied:lS needed for bercc:r.drug contrOl In 
the t:nlted Stltes: 

1 ~d edUcuiooal e1fom. including the CSQb. 
Ushmcnr of blue ribbon .comrnJ.sslons in each stlIe 
and a federnlly·sponsored national education 
program: 

2 lotelUllfled eradl.c:adOQ aQd WIC1'dlc:tlOo. I.e .. 
atiUtlry/oayai assl5Qnc:e to 5l:lte and 1001 
io~n:unent5. focusing on the destruction of drugs 
at their soun:e. for!;!lgn or domestiC. and on :Ill 
Increased mili~ commiunent to the interdlctlon of 
drugs being Importcci by air or .se:I: 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 

Nadooal .reac:tlon. encournging the continuation of 
the Bush T3Sk Fon:e :Illd the twelve regional taSk 
fon:es: 
Ccnua1lzed Informadon and Intelligence data 
base. combining :Illd coordinating datl from loc:ll. 
Stlle. multi·stlle :Illd federnl soun:es: 
Concerted ~ enforcement :1Ctl.vlty. urging 
StrOnger suppOrt for IOQI l:iwenfon:ement agencies' 
drug contrOl personnel :Illd equipment; 
5t:mdard legisladon. to be dC\"eloped in e:u:h Stlte 
:md through a national commiaee formed for .this 
purpose: 
Gre:ater pro5ecutori:ll commiunent. \\ith the 0 

S3me priori!}· ghoen to drug cases :IS 10 other prion!}· 
areas: :md 
Coordinadon of efiim of 1001 agencies. en· 
abling agencIes to pool infonp:llion :Illd resources for 
m:Lximum effort. 

E3ch recommendation Is accompanied by specific sugges· 
tions about actions poemors might !:Ike or support. There 
is also a comment on the tlscal Impact of e:Jch recommen· 
dation :Illd \\01~'S in \\hlch this might be minimized 
A list of presidential lnitiathoes dut \\'ere not among those 
dC\"eloped by the :o-iGA. but l\i1ich nel"ertheless de:;el\"C 
gubernalOriaI support. is included at the end of this 
document. 
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'!be Governors' Issues 

1 Need for Increased 
Educational Efforts 

The problem cf drug abuse In our society is related to so 
m.anv factors that it ClMOt be successful Iv :!ddressed b\' 
anr single discipline, .\ consiStent e:teharige of infonna: 
tion :rod ide:lS 3II10ng the various disciplines that c:m 
affect consumer demand does nIX e."Ci5t. The ultimate 
long·tenn success of drug control effortS is nIX possible 
~ithout a marriage of these disciplines, suppon:ed by an 
educated :rod involved public. 

C Governors should urge that the federal govemment 
de\'CJop and implement a O3tiOO3I education program. 
In this n:g:trd. the Presidem has recommended that 
emphasis be Pl:lced on training of sote :md loc:aJ law 
enfolt:ement personnel. Govemors should be encour. 
aged to suppon: this lniti:Jti\-e. 

Ff5c:a.1 Impact 
Recomme:ndarlon 
Each state should consider the establishment of a Blue 
Ribbon Sta~ide Drug EdUCtion Commission Invohing 
le:uiers from the public and private sectors. This 
Commission should consiSt of high'Ie\~1 represenctives 
from a cross section of disciplines including law 
enfolt:ement, prosecution, judicl:ll, educational, medlcll, 
legisla:t\-e and citizen.'parenL·young people groups. 

Implc:mc:nt:uioo Str.uegy 

C E":Ich g<l\-ernor should consider appointing representa. 
tives from a cross section of the public :rod privale 
sectOrs 10 a Stal~ide Drug EdUCtion Commission. It 
is imperati\-e that the membership comprising this 
CommiSSion be committed to :rod :lggressi\-e tow:ud 
accomplishing the.goals established by this recom. 
mendation. The Commission should direct effortS 
10\\":lrd: 

- Prit:are Indllstry: f'ro1,iding crime,specific infomw.. 
tion, identif}ing indUStry prevention progr.uns :rod 
funding soult:es, and integr:1ting muncaJ indUStry/ 
citizen: enfolt:ement acti\ities. 

- PlIblic .-Iu~nme.ss and Concern: Coordin:Jte and 
org:mize citizens' groups:rod progr:uns: de\~lop 
citizens' pr~\-ention program models: de\'elop medi:J 
C1mp:1igns' "technology tr:msfers"; and Integmtion . 
'l\ith chic :rod church groups. Industry. education 
and enfolt:ement. The Commission should consider 
the ''T= War on Drugs" progr:lm. which has 
escblished itself:lS :l model in this are:!.. 

- PlIblic ScbooI Edllcation: ASSiSt the Department of 
Education in de\-eloping :Jnd presenting more 
rele\":lnt. positive :Jnd proacth-e cunicula in bw. 
rewed education. 

- law Enforcement. Comm/lnity Dr8ani;:ations and 
. Neighborhood Coordination: Provide lr:1inlng to bw 
enfolt:emenc personnel in order to promOte more 
effecti\-e integmtion of enfolt:emenc :lgencies 'l\ith 
community educational :lcti\ities. E.'Ci51ing crime 
PCe\-ention :rod other 10Cl1 no:rn;orks should be 
recognized md used. 

C Govemors should urge th:Jt :l O3tiOnal effort. ade. 
quately soffed. be undelt:lken 10 dC\-elop progr;un 
models :Jnd infonnation sel'ices for the indl\idual 
5l:Ites. 

The fiscal impact of educational effortS can be minimized 
by turning to the pri\'3te sectOr for e:teCuti\-e resources. 
fund mising acti\ities and c=ti\'e olem. ~1mJbership on 
the Blue Ribbon Commissions would be volunt:Uy. States 
could also 5:I\-e resoures by promoting drug education 
through e.'Cisting citizen netwOrks. such a:; those address. 
Ing crime prevention. 

2 Need for Intensified Eradication 
and Interdiction: Milltary/Nawl 
Assistance to State and Local 
Governments 

The federal govemment h2s elCdush-e responsibilitr for 
coordinating interdiction of drug shipmentS from foreign 
countries md 3SSisting those countries in the er:Jd.ication 
of drugs :It the SOult:e .• -\5 a resulc of imensi\-e lobb~ing, 
three significam de\-elopmentS h:J\-e occurred over the 
past y= thac ha\'e had :I positi\'e impact on emdlcation 
:Jnd interdiction effortS! (1) rel:L'Cltlon of the Posse 
ComUa/lls dOCtrine. alIo'\\ing the milit:Uy to pCO\ide 
:lSSiSt:lnce to chillan law enfolt:ement :lgencies: (2) the 
n:m0\'31 of the Peocy Amendment to the Foreign 
Assistance .~. '\\tlich prohibited fore!gn gO\-emmems 
from recehing 3SSiSt:lrlCe from the U.s. gO\'emmem if 
herbicides were used to conrrol illicit drugs: :md (3) the 

. recent effortS ffi:lde by the national :ldministratJon 10 
support eedlC:1tion effon:s in foreign countries. 

Recommendation 

The fedeel govemment should :ldopt. :IS itS lOp drug 
control priOrity. the o:mdlcation of illicit drugs in soult:e 
countries :md the interdiction 9f drugs lea\ing those 
countries. 

Tho: Cnited Setes should continue encoueging foreign 
go\'emmo:ntS to employ eedlcation methods. including 
herbicidal :lpplic:Jtions. ;md should COntinue to absorb or 
comribute to the COStS of some of the more cricical 
progmms in significant soult:e countries. In addition. the 
milil:1f}' fOlt:es of the l'niced Sl:1tes should be called upon 
10 ffi:lke :I majOr commitment to increase their Ie\-el of 
suppon: in the Interdiction effort. 
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Imple:meDudoa SU':Itc:ST '. . 
C GO\-emors should consider :ldaptmg a resolullon to 

Congress and the President 10 urge the feder.1l 
p-emment: 
- to keep as one of its top drug concrol priority 

programs the et:ldlcation of drugs at source c01;l"' . 
tries and 10 continue to pCO\'ide adequate funding tn 
subsequent ye:us. . 

- to de\-elop ImpCO\-ed emdication techniques. 
- to continue to contribute to the COSt of these 

control efforts. 
- 10 continue: to encour.Jge ocher countries to utilize 

emdication methods. 
C Keeping in mind the 1femendaus InCIe:JSe of dameStI· 

c:llh' grO\\'tl marijuana :md clandestine manubcture of 
d:m8erous drugs, p'ernors should s~PP9n: emdication 
effOrtS :Jnd the de\-elopment :mel apphClUon of 
1nn00':I.ti\-e mc::uures within their states 10 combat 
these activities. ' 

C GO\-ernors should urge the O3t1onai :ldmin~ti?n to 
e:tp;tnd the role of the milit:l.C)· folt:es of th~ ~nlled 

. Stltes in air :mel se:l interdiction effortS. This incre:1sed 
rol~ should Include all regions of the country. 

C Go\~mors should encoumge their state :md IOCII I:tw 
enfolt:ement :Jgencies to ~'Ork closely with :md seek 
assiStanCe from the miliwy folt:es of the United SCtcS 
and de\-elop pl:a.ns with milit:l.C)· fOlt:es to coordinate 
effortS ag:linsc drug trafficking. 

C Go\"emors should encour.Jge their respecth-e congre~. 
slonal deleg:lIlons co pCO\ide sufficient funding .to ~e 
miliCl" co offset the COStS im'Ol\-ed In p:uticip:1ung 10 

ci\ilI:ui drug control effortS. 
C The: gO\-emors should consider h:J\ing the )latio~1 

Guard and :Ill other :lppropri:Jle resources. '\\'Ork '\\1th. 
5l:Ite :md 10Cl1 bw eruolt:ement :Igencles In drug 
interdiction :Jnd eedication prog= 

Ff5c:a.1 1m pIlct " 
Sates implementing eradication eff~rtS ~Il elCpCn~nce 
costs. Coopemdon '\\ith fedo:ml o:mdlca~on o:lfortS IS • 
encour.Jged to minimize those t::tpendllu(l~S; ~Ost~ ffi:l~ 
also be 3SSoci:lled '\\ith :-::lIiOO3I Guard :lctl\1UeS :lImed :It 
assisting SClt: drug bw enfolt:ement. These COStS can be 
minimized. or possibl~' eliminated, by conductmg . . 
::-<adonal GU3rd drug enforcement. 3Cthities In conlunctlon 
'\\ith. regubr Guard tmining exercises. 

3 Need for A National Reaction 
Q\-er the p:15t decade. numerous 5l:IteS ha\l! been hurt by 
the gro~ing drug problem. These states ha\-e taken . 
Independent steps to combat the problem: h~. their 

. resoult:e IImiwions and geogt:lphic restrictions ha\~ 
hindered the states' effecth-eness. The federal govern· 
ment. n:alizing the natio03I ramifications of the drug 

roblem, h:Is conducted seven! signi~~t operations that 
~\~ lessened these restrictions and hrrut:lIions. such as 
the recent Bush Task Force in SOuth Florida and the . 
=tlon of twel\-e regional task folt:es. 

Recommendarlon 
The federal g<l\-emment should be encoumged 10 
m:lincin on a pennanent basis the federal resources . 
associated with the origirul Bush Task Force and twel~e 
new r:rsk folt:es. 

Implc:memadon SU':Itc:gy 
C Each g<l\-ernor should urge his/her respecth-e congres· 

sional deleg:llion to ffi:lint:1in :md continue suppon: of 
the original Bush T:lSk Folt:e :Jnd the twelve new 
regional drug task folt:t!S. 

C The gO\-emors should urge that lOP, Wbile House and 
justice officl:lls meet ~ice.yearl~· '\\1th ~I~ed 
g<l\'cmors from the :-;GA co discuss pohcr ISSues of 
mUlt.t1l Interest related to drug trafficking. 

C GO\-emors should suppon: the Pi'esidenti:ll Commls· 
slon on Org:mized Crime. which ~II be I~ ~ratlon 
for three \"e:1rs. Membership of thIS commission 
should inClude a represent:lIi\-e of the ~GA. 

C Go\-emors should request the [)ep;utment of J~ce to 
include ~te represenoti\'es lu\ing policy· making or 
oper:Jtlon:il responsibilities in drug el'i?~ement on 
the Intemal group 'responsible for admlm~ering ~e 
regiOO3I task fOlt:cs. Fun:her, that these representlU\-es 
ha\-e :lppropri:lle decision·m:1klng 5l:ICUS I~ ~e group 
'l\ithin p:1r:l1llelers of state·rebted respo~lblhties. 
Fun:her that e:u:h gO\ -ernor should :lppomt a 5l:ItC drug 
enfolt:e'ment coordinator to meet '\\ith the le:ld • 
adminislr:1lOr of the respecth-e wk folt:e on a specific 
periodic basis. 

C The gO\'emors shOUld communic:lle '\\ith .their res~ec, • 
tive 5l:Ite :md local law enfolt:ement officcls to :lctl\-el~ 
suppon: the President's initi:JtI\·e. • 

C GO\~mors mould consider acti\'e!r soliCiting pubU~ 
suppon: of these initi:Jth-es through speeches. medi:J 
and Other public information resoult:es. 

C GO\-emors should. through their respecth'e legisb· 
rurcs, ensure th:Jt adequate resources are a\":libble for 
5l:Ites to coordinate effect!\'elr with :md complement 
tht: fecleml t:1Sk folt:e o:lfortS . 

Fbc:U Imp:lct ' .1._ •• 

E:1ch sote mUSt :In:llyze ilS investments to ensure Ulat It 15 

cklng a b:Jbnced :lppro:lCh to drug Ia'\\' enfolt:e~ent: .-\ 
state's in\'estment prioritio:s should ~f1ect the sencUS:less 
of the drug problem in th:lt St:lte. 

o 
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4 Need for A 'centrall:zed Informa
tion' and Intelligence Data Base 

L:tw enforcement :lgencies im'OI\'ed in drug' conuol have' 
historic:llly been hampered by lack of accessible ;md 
3SSessable intelligence infom1lltion o:l:1[lng to illegal 
[Qfficking, A centralized system to receive, :U1:Ilyze and 
dissemin:ue inform:;.tion among sene ;md Iced law 
enforcement :lgencies must' exist if pro:.crive. non· 
dupliative ;md significant targeting effoltS :lte to occur. 
Such a system must interact with similar sYStems in other 
StItes :and ~ith the federal go\'emment. 

Recommendation 
~h scte must establish :l centr:I!ized drug·o:l:ued 
intelligence system. To be effecti\'e. the indl\idual 
~'Stems must ensure input from ;md response to loal 
enforcement :lgencies and should interact consistently 
~ith :!ppropriate Sute :md multi·scte ~'Stems and the 
Drug Enforcement .~ministr:ltion·s EI P:l.so Intelligence 
Center (EPIC). 

Implementation Str:neg'y 
C Go\-emors should direct their prim:tty s-..:!!e drug 

enforcement ::gency to begin the development of:l 
scc=ide drug,rel:!ted intelligence ~'Stem, ~ith aroly· 
sis and targeting apabilities. These S\,'Stems should be 
joined ~ith the other :!ppropriate state" multi·state and 
federal intelligence ~'Stems. 
- StItes dut possess such ~'S[ems should sh:lie 

conceptS. ideas and technologies with other StItes, 
- States should ensure dut these s}'Stems prO\ide the 

infom1lltion to all loal law enforcement agencies 
~ithin their respecrl\'e SCte:5. 

- The indhidual StItes should ensure ~t their 
S}'Stems :I.re linked with ;appropriate ~'Stems in other 
states, :IS ~;ell :IS ~;th I1m)ti·scte and feder-II 
intelligence ~'Stems. 

C Go\'emors should reco/l"d'ilend dut their :lppropriate 
law enforcement :lgencies de\'elop :1 mmdatory drug 
st:Uiscics reporting '1'Sf'~m re/e'I':II1t to the measurement 
of the drug problem and Ihe:', impact of enforcement 
e!fOItS, ' 

Fl5cil Impact 
CostS :lSSo.:i:1ted with <!s:;>blishing or enhancing Stlte 
intelligence ~'Stems ~\ill \';11!' from Stlte to StIce, 
Purch:!sing :l new computerized S}'Stem. including both 
h:!rd~':IR~ md sofm':lre., is m e:cpensl\'e process, \there 
computer'l'Stems :lte :llread~' in pl:lce. such :IS in those 
scces v,'here responsibilitr for collecting l:CR dac is :It 
the scte le\'el. COstS ma\" be limited to de'.'eloping 
neces53~' soim:ue. Some personnel enh:u1cements may 
a1so be necessary. 

5 Need for Concerted 
Street Enforcement Activity 

l..oc!llaw enforcement :lgencies must pro\ide the 
Immediate response to a \':Iriety of community demmcls 
for crime control. It Is difficult for those agencies to 
dediate alre:!dv stl'3ined resources to proacti\'e drug 
pre\'ention ;md' enforcement problems .• Howe\'er, the re:!.I 
direct ;md indirect drug· related crimes must be dellt \'\oith 
conscntl~':IS a part of the required I:!wenforcement 
response to the community. This response is :IS 
ad:un:mdr demanded:lS are responses to \;olent crime =- . 
Recommend:uioQ 
Governors ;md legislators of the \':!rious St:ltes should 
apply ma:~imum support and effort tov,':Ird incr=ing 
resources (personnel md equipment) of loallaw 
enforcement :lgencies. 

Implementation Str.1~egy 
C Go\'emors should consider a1tem:lth'e funding options, 

such :IS pri\':Ite sources (foundations. etc,) or \ia 
legislath'e mech:!nisms such :IS fine :lnd forfeiture 
alloations specifiaUy =rked for drug conuol 
erUorcement progr:lms. 

C Go\-emors should promote adequate fedet:II ;md StIte 
support of loal law enforcement agencies. Bec;tuse 
the drug problem Is one of nation:ll scope, federal 
resources are needed to support critiol or e.'ru':Iordl, 
nan' scte and loal enforcement effoltS, Go\'emors 
should :llso stress to loal Ie:!ders their support for the 
a1IOCltion of needed resources to conduct drug 
enforcement progr:lms, joint operations :md coopet:l· 
ti\'e elfoRS. 

il15c:LI Impaa 
State go\'emment sctistial ~'Stems must pro\ide go\'er, 
nors \'\oith adequ:ue :1SSessments of ioc:u drug tr:uliclang 
problems, Resource support ~ill \':I~' from Stlte to scte 
depending upon the magnitude of the problem. i,e .. 
border St:Ite. source scte. m:ljor distribution point. etC, 
Go\'emors should asSess e:tistfng in\,eStmentS to ensure 
ther are addressing the problem as :t priori~' m3tter. In 
p:micul:lt. border sctes must dediate a portion of 
a\':Iil:!ble new resources to the priori~' problems of drug 
trafficking me! diStribution. 

\l 
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6 Need for Standard Legislation 

Th
· 's grelt disn:1ri[\' among the St:Ites' drug la~'S, There 

ere I r- , "ha\'e eken 

~ e;c;:;~~t~::~:r~;gd~~~~~~~ legal recou~ 
:and probabilities of detection. apprehension and 
prosecution. 

Recoaunend2tion , f 
Each scte should eSt:lbliSh a legislath'e C:~~~llttee 0 

_< 'udicial and legls ... t \'e prosecuti\'e. e,uorcement. J h nsi\'e 

membed ~~~~~ ~1rod;:~~~ ~:~ri;~iili the drug 
~~~~m. The St:Ite bar :ISSQCiations ~d lav,' ~oo~ be 
;hould be included In this effort. This commltt~ drug 
a separate entity. or a part of:tn existing St:It~1 e 
acthity, 

Implementation Stt:negy f 
C The Go\'emors should consider the eSt:lblishment 0 a 

, ·th'· 'r respectl\'e st3tes to 
com~ittee ~peraulnegg'I"'S~ti~~ ~~ determine that scte's 
e:t:ttnme e:a5tmg 

needs. d rtin to 
c :\ :-Iation:ll Committee should be create • repe Publ~ 
~~ :-;'GA Committee on Crimin:ll Justice and IC 
Prot~ction. This committee "'ill de'l'elop ~ ~~p~~n. 
'\'e svstem of model and umform laws e:! g 
~e drug issue and "'ill disseminate the model dfirug 

legislati\'e pac:loge back to me respective stites or 
their consideration. . 

C The Go\'emors should see dut the fedet:II .gc:\'ercrnent 

, assign :lppropriate representlti\"~s, tOfthiS ~":~rederal 
Committee to promote unlformlt'i 0 St:I(, . 
1av,'S :lnd seC\'e :IS a mech:tnism to transmit St:ltes 
concerns to the federal leglsl:!th'e process. , 

C The :-:ational Committee should c~nsi?~r at le:ISt ~e 
follov,ing items for the modelleglslau\e pacloge. 
_ Racketeer,lnfluenced and Com/pI ?rgani::a~ons Act 

(RICO): pro\iding for the prosecuu5l~ of e~ure I' d 
~rimil~1 org:miZ:ltions md chil fortelture 0 rea ~ 

0:11 propem' used in the cou~ o~. ?,r acqUIC 
. ~ the proceeds of. their crimin:ll acU\1Ues. 

Drug Trafficking Lau'S; pro\idlng ~ppr~prl:ltelsenf' 
- . d 'I., rs;md:l <71"1dU:lung SC:l e 0 tences lor rug \10.:.tO "'-, of the 

n:llt\es commensurate with the se,nousnc:ss , 
~ I md permitting consideration of foreign 
\10 :luon. 'ng dtug I:!w 
feloO\' drug con\;ctions in sentenCI 
\10I:llors. . 

_ lX'jretaps, pro\iding for cou~':1uthOribz~~~~r~~~ 
tlon of te!ephonic communladons e 
!:tv.. \iol:ltors, 

_ I(utual Aid: pro\idlng for definitions of int~rjUriS~:Uc. 
donal authorities, liabilities. agreementS an ,re· 
source exchanges within and among the \-.u10US 
states, , 

_ Mandatorv Reporting of CLlm1.ncy T~nsacnons: , 
uirin'g 'financial instirutlons reportmg ,of,ce,:,m 

~ctions to the states, The St:Itute of hnllcuons 
must pro\ide sufficient time to a,now full~ of St. 

complex law enforcement techniques be ,re acre 
_ Conspiracy Pro~'isions: pro\iding for charging those 

who dlrro or panicip:lte in drllg smuggling ventures 
to be sentenced :IS principals. 

_ .lIandatory Reporting of Drtlg SdtatUt~cs: ;~~~~~! 
entil\' both v,ithin the St:Ites m at e , 
to reduce dupliate reponing ;md to eStab~sh a urce 
valid d:lc base for problem assessment an reso 
a1loc::ttion, , 

_ Contraband and A.sset For/eifllT'f! RejO,:",: \101m, 
appliation of fines and forfeirures beu~g apphed 
directlv to law enforcement programs. I.e" through 
trust funds. 

_ Stare IJt1Xlrtment of ReL'enue FilltS Access: ptO'oidin~ 
for access. with :!ppropriate safegu:uds. by law 
enforcement agencies, , 
""'·tne.'~ ar.d Victim ProtecMn: pro\iding aUlhonty 
w I ~ d _I.: ' o<r.._---""'!l and funding required;m Ill"",ng It, an It ... ~:- "', 

signifiant punishment to a~?r o~ m~ure :I WItness 
or \ictim in\'olved in the CClmln:ll Justice process, 

_ Bail Reform: to more ceCt:linly iml?obi~ize drug 
traIfi kers with less judicial discretion. I,e .. ~'here 
sm~~lers :Ire Ja:t0~1l t~ tI'3\'e1 intem:ttion:llly or 
\'\ont!re \'iolence IS predlccble, 

C Go\'emors should urge that the Congress remo\'e 
restrictions. with :lppropri:1te S:lfeg~~. t~t P";\,f!nt 
the Intem:ll Revenue xC\ice from =ng Itlteiligence 
reg:uding criminal :lcth'ities with = and le<::l 
:lUmorities, . 

c The President h:lS asked the Co~gre~ t~ contin.ue ItS 
elfoRS to seek p3SS:1ge of essent!3l c:~mln:ll l:iw • 
reforms. The specific b ..... 'S mentionea v,'ere ball relorm. 
forfeirure of :lS5etS. sentencing reform md amendments 
to the exdusion:uy rule. The gO\'~m,o~, ~oul.ci " 
consider supporting the President s 100tI:J.U\'e m seeking 

sa e of these essential retoems and ensure that, 
~egissues :lte coonlin:lted ",;th simil:!r scte leglSb· 
tion reform dfons. 

Fbc:11 Impact ed 'm th' 3cthit\· 
There :tre mmim31 scte costs associat ~1 IS , ' 

Q 
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7 Need for Greater 
Prosecutopa1. Commitment 

ProsecUtors :Ire hindered b\' he:l\ ... • court dockers and 
broad responsibilities that make it difficult for mem to 
dediclte resources to me prosecution of major drug 
smuggling operations. Alternative approaches to drug 
prosecution and better coordination among circuits 
de:lling ~im multi·jurisdictional org:mi2:1tions :Ire needed. 
ProsecUtors should take steps to e:ocpedite drug enforce· 
ment cases, as has been done successfull\' in cases 
imuhing C:lreer criminals. Additional resOurces :Ire 

. needed for prosecution of highly financed and well· 
defended drug organi2:1tions. 

Recommendations 
Go\~mors of me \ouious Slates are UIged 10 encourage 
prosecutors to incl ude drug C:lSeS as a p:1rt of meir 
jurisdiction's priorit}" prosecution: career criminal 
progr.uns. 
Go\~mors should de\~!op programs that will anract and 
ret:lin competent prosecuting :1Itome~'S. 

Impiement:ltioQ Str:uegy 
c Qo\~mors should seek strong commitments from meir 

respecti\'e legislatures to ensure that prosecuth'e 
offices are gi\~n me necess:uy support to recruit and 
ret:lin qualified prosecutors for specific assignment to 
drug cases. 

C Govemors should urge mat Slate pr05ecuti\~ officials 
coordinate ~im federal task forces and (;.5. AItome"'S 
10 minimi~ duplicati\-e effortS and ma:cimize the • 
im~ of prosecuth~ effortS. This effort should 
Include me ne~i\' established t!lw Enforcement 
Coordin:uing Committees (LECC) and omer recog· 
nized processes =ted to prm'ide mutu:U fedet:1l. 
state and local assistance. 

C Go\~mors should encourage Slate and local prosecu· 
tors to assume le:ldership in the de\~lopment and 
coordination of priority drug investigative effortS and 
priority prosecution su:uegies. and UIge implemenCl' 
tion of special judici:tl processes dut guarantee flir 
and speedy adjudication of maJor drug cases. 

FIsc:LI Impact 
Direct SClte jurisdiction O\'er prosecution responsibilities 
v,uy from SClte to SClte. Where career crimin:li progr:uns 
ha\~ been. implemented throughout me St:lte. m:ljor drug 
c::LSeS should be handled on the same e:ocpedfted basis as 
a ~OIr of est:lblishing priorities and minimizing e:ocpendl. 
rures associated ~ith prosecution. This effort should 
include de\~!opment :!nd implemenCltion of procedures 
for handling prosecution of both c:lreer crimin:tl and 
m:ljor drug lratficlong cases on :I priori~' b:!sis. ~ere 
prosecution is :I sh:lred re5ponsibili~' of the sr:lIe :lnd 
local go\·emments. :111 le\'els should ~urk together to 
eltpedite me prosecution of career cnminals and drug 
trafficking cases. ~IOS( COSIS associated ~ith a ne~ .. 
emplusis on the prosecution of drug cases ~iU be for 
per3Onnel. 

8 Need for Coordination of 
Efforts of Local Agencies 

There is geneally no mechanism 10 pro\ide for 
local,sClte agencies to pool their resources and work 
together on common drug t:lrgets. Equipped ~ith the 
necessary legislation, :lgencies can draft contr:lctU:l1 
agreements to effect "joint force operations" or "muMll 
aid pactS" to e:ocpand resource and jurisdiction:11 :lbilitles 
to ltt:lck drug operati\~s. 

Recommendation 
The \":1rious SClte5 should consider de\~lopment of 
nec~' legislation to de\~lop :I "murual ;:id SJ.'Stem·'. 
whereby law enforcement :!gencies can contr:ll:ru:1lll' join 
r"'gether and pool their knowledge. resources arid skills 
~;ud im~srigati\~ly att:lCking drug smuggling nemurks. 

Impiement:ltioQ Strategy 
C The G.:l\~mors should consider. as referenced in the 

legisl:lth'e reform section. the de\~lopment of "mUlu:U 
aid" legislation 10 ensure that the law enforcement 
agencies ~ithin and among the \":1rious St:lteS can 
contractU:1l1r join together to effect joint force 
operations. 

C The Go\'emors should ensure dut the le:ld sl:1te!:m' 
enforcement agencr coordin:1tes ~ith local law 
enforcement agencies so dut their opeation:tl con· 
cerns and lnitiati\'es :Ire effecth'eh' coordin:1ted with 
feder:ll msk force ~ffortS. . 

Fl5c:L1 Impact 
De\~lopment of "mutU:11 aid" systems ~;n require a 
dedication of time by e:tisting personnel and minim:ll 
support resources. 

Additional Presidential Initiatives 
In :lddltion to me recommendations ffi:lde b\' the 
President due ha\~ been included in the pr~ious 
discussions. the follo~ing presidenti:ll initiati\'es are also 
~urthy of Strong support by the :"GA. 

C The President has Cllled for a Cabinet·le\'el Committee 
on Organized Crime. chaired by the Attorney Geneal. 
to re\;ew and coordinate all federal eifortS against 
org:mized crime. 

C The President h:l:; requested that the .-\ltome\· General 
prepare an annU:11 report to the American people to 
report on progress and needs in the drug fight. 

C The President has requested dul :Iddltional prison and 
jail sp:!ce be pro\ided to meet the need Clused b\' the 
=tion of the m'e!\'e Clsk forces. . 

C The PreSident recommends th:lt emphasis be placed 
on taining of SClte and local la~' entorcement 
personnel. 
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QJQD MJRNING COLLE'AGUES, DISTINGUISHED WI'rnESSES AND ALL OF YOU 

cno:RNED AOOOT THE AWEOCME ProBLEMS OF DRUG TRAFFICKING AND DRUG ABUSE 

'!HAT FACE OUR NATION TODAY. 

THE SEI:.ECr C'.CM'1I'ITEE ON NARCOTICS MUSE AND CONl'roL IS IN CORPUS 

CHRISTI 'IDDAY WITH AN IMPORTANT MISSION. WE HAVE c:x::ME HERE TO EXAMINE DRUG 

TRAFFICKING AND ABUSE ON THE TEXAS GULF COAST. 

WE RECENl'LY CCl-1PLETED HFAR!NGS IN (GOBER IN FIDRID1\ AND LEMNED OF 

AN ENOl.MXJS INFLUX OF DROGS FR:M SOUTH ~CA, < AND OF THE FEDERAL IN1'ERDlcrION 

EFFORl' TO CClUNI'ER THIS INFLUX OF ILLEl3AL DRUGS. THERE ARE REPORI'S THAT 

BOClillSE OF THE :rN:RFASED FEDERAL PRESENCE ANDEFFORl'S IN SOUTH FIDRIDA DRUG 

TRAFFICKING HAS M'JVED UP THE FAST COAST AND TO THE GULF COAST. WE WAN!' 

TO DEJ:'ER.DNE WHErr'HER THIS IS TRrJE, AND IE: SO, WHAT OUR RESPONSE HAS BEEN 

AND WILL BE m THE FlJ'l'llRE. 

THE a:M1I'ITEE' S HE:ARlNG WILL AI.SO FOCUS CN THE NAGGING, PERSISTENT 

proBLEM OF SMOGGLING OF HErolN FR:M MEXICO IN.ro OUR COUNTRY. THE S~ 

CXMofITrEE ON NARCOTICS REl:ENI'LY CCl>1PLE.I'ED A STUDY MISSION TO MEXICO AND 

SOUTH AMERICA. MEXICO IS ONE OF THE FEl'1 COUNrRIEs TO CXM1IT N:Y.l' ONLY 

ITS RESOURCES BUr ITS WILL TO HALTING ILl.EGAL DRUG ProOOcrION AND TRAFFICKING. 

InlE.VER, THE FI.CW OF IIJ:.B3AL NARCOTICS FR:M MEXICO AND 0l'HER SOUTH AMERICAN 

COUNTRIEs IS STILL A PERSISTENT proBLEM. 

WE ALSO WAN!' TO rooK AT REPORI'S OF GOCm.ING HErolN ADDIcrIQN m THE 

~SVlLLE AREA INCLUDING THE DROG TRE'A'IMENr AND PREVENrION ACl'IVITIFS 

IN THE REX;ION, AND THE NEED FOR CCMPREHENSIVE DRUG EDUCATION. THESE ARE 

I 1.37 

N:Y.l' JUST 'I'HEX)RETICAL CONCERNS. IN 1982, THE IAST YEAR FOR WHIQI FIGURES 

ARE AVAII1IBLE, THERE WERE 1,735 DRUG ABUSE-RElATED EMERGENCY KX:M EPISODES 

IN DALIAS, WHILE IN SAN ANroNIO IN 1982 THERE WERE 1,226 EMERGENCY RXM 

EPISODES. THE MEDICAL EXAMINER IN DALIAS IN 1982 REPORl'ED 47 DRUG-RElATED 

DFATHS. IN SAN ANIONIO, THERE WERE 46 DRUG-RElATED DFATHS. THESE FIGURES 

GRAPHICALLY SIm THE SERIOUSNESS OF THE DRUG ABUSE THREAT. 

AFl'ER HEARING FRCM LUl'HER JONES, THE MAYOR OF CORPUS CHRISTI, WE WU.L 

REX::EIVE TESTlMJNY FRCM VARIOUS FEDERAL OFFICIALS REPRESENI'ING THE SPECTRUM 

OF FEDERAL CONCERN AOOUT ILLEr'..,AL DRUG TRAFFICKING AND DRUG ABUSE. THE 

FEDERAL WITNESSES WILL RANGEFR:M MR. DANIEL HEOOES, THE U.S. ATroRNEY 

FOR THE SOOl'HERN DISTRIcr OF TEXAS, TO REAR AIMrnAL WILLIAM STE.WARl', 

THE CX:ORDINATOR OF THE NATIONAL NARCCYl'ICS !:ORDER INl'ERDlcrION SYSTEM FOR 

THE GULF REGION. FR:M THESE FEDERAL OFFICIALS WE WAN!' INFORMATION ON 

THE EXTENT OF DRUG TRAFFICKING IN SOUTH TEXAS, MErOODS OF OPERATION OF 

DROG TRAFFICKERS, AND WHAT ADDITIONAL RESOll'R:ES ARE NOCESSARY BEFORE WE 

WILL BE ABLE TO MAKE A DENl' IN THE proBLEM. 

WE PARl'ICtJI.ARLY WAN!' TO KN:M WHAT IMPACT FORMATION OF THE NATIONAL 

NAR:al'ICS OORDER INTERDlcrION SYSTEM HAS HAD ON DRUG TRAFFIC AIDNG THE 

TEXAS GULF COAST. AS WE UNDERSTAND IT, NNBIS WAS FORMED FOR 'mE SPECIFIC 

PURPOSE OF INl'ERRrJPTlNG AND IMPACTING THE SMUGGLING OF DRUGS mro THIS 

COUNTRY. YET, WE HAVE QUESTIONS AS TO WHAT NNBIS REALLY IS. WHAT IS IT 

CCl-1PRISED OF? IKm DOES ITS FUNCrrONS DIFFER FRCM THE 0l'HER TASK FOR:ES 

THAT HAVE BEEN FORMED? ONE OF THE ISSUES ~\1E WAN!' TO EXPIDRE WITH THE PANEL 

OF IOCAL IAW ENFOOCEMENI' OFFICIALS IS THE EXTENT OF CX:OPERATION INCLUDING 

SHARING INl'ELLIGENCE INFORMATION THEY HAVE HAD WITH FEDERAL rAW ENFORCEMENl' 

OFFICIALS. 
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'IHIS ~ WE WILL FOCUS W DRLX; ABUSE TRFA'IMENI' AND PRE.VENl'IW 

ACl'IVITIFS. FI01 '.mESE Wl'lNESSES WE WANT '10 LEARN WHICH DROC-5 THEY ENCXlUNI'ER 

M:>ST FRECUENl'LY IN TRFATING DRLX; ABUSERS, AND WHAT IMPACl' PASSAGE OF THE 

AI.a:>B:>L, DRUG ABUSE, AND MENl'AL HE1\LTH BU:X:K GRAN!' HAS HAD W THE AVAlIABILl'lY 

OF DRUG ABUSE TRFA'IMENr AND PRE.VENl'ICN ACl'IVITIES IN soum TEXAS. FINALLY, 

WE WILL BE INl'ERESTm IN '!HEm OPINICN OF THE FEDERAL DruG S'l'RATEX;Y OF THE 

RF.AGAN AI:MrNISTRATICN. 

'ltMJRlOV WE WILL CCNrINtJE CXJR .HE:1UUN3 BY IroKING INro THE E!FFE:Cl' 

DRUG ABUSE HAS ON IJJCAL a::M1UNITIES AND IN '!HE SCHOOLS. <N::E AGAIN, WE WILL 

EXAMINE DRUG UWI ENFORCEMENr ISSUES, THIS TlME WJ:'IH TEXAS lAW ntmRCEMENr 

OFFICIALS. CXJR HFAR:INJ WILL CXN:LUDE WI'lH A PANEl:. OF STATE REPRESENrATIVES 

OJNC:E:RNED AlnJT DRUG TRAFFICKING AND ABUSE AND TRFA'IMENr. 

BEFORE I CALL l.JAl"OR JCNES '10 TFSTIFY, 00 ANY OF MY ,(l)LLFAGOEs 

HAVE ANY CCMo!ENrS THEY WISH '10 MAKE? 
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Opening Statement of the Honorable Benjamin A. Gilman at the 

Narcotics Select Committee Hearing on D~ug Trafficking and Abuse 

in the Texas Gulf Coast, Held at Corpus Christi, Texas, 

December 12, 1983 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

I would like to associate myself with your remarks and 

to commend you for holding this hearing on drug trafficking 

and abuse in' the Texas Gulf Coast area, and I would also like 

to commend our colleaque p Congressman Ortiz, for his efforts 
~ 

in helping our Select Committee spotiight the drug trafficking 

problem in this region. 

As all of us here know, narcotics trafficking and drug 

abuse have reached epidemic proportions both here and abroad. 

Unfortunately, at best, we are only beginning to make a small 

dent in combating this deadly menace that is undermining our 

political, economic and social institutions, that is creating 

havoc for our citizens who erroneously believe that the way 

to escape the pressures of society, or to seek some misquided 

form of relaxation, is through drugs. 

Our Select Committee has been investigating areas in 

the Nation that are some of the "hot spots" in the trafficking 
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of narcotics. This year, in California, we 'held hearings on 

the domestic cultivation of marihuana in that State. We saw 

at first-hand the massive marihuana fields and the sophisticated 

operations of the marihuana ~rowers in the northern California 

region. In our recent investigations in south Florida, we 

received testimony on the corrupting effects of the narcodollars 

on local communities and heard State and local law enforcement 

officials complain that the cooperation with Federal drug law 

enforcement officials leaves a lot to be desired. Today we 

are focusing our attention on drug trafficking and drug abuse 

in the Texas Gulf Coast area to determine, among other things, 

the magnitude of the trafficking in t~is region and the extent 

to which the drug traffickers are shifting their trafficking 
, 

operations from South Florida to the'Texas Gulf Coast. 

The proximity of Corpus Christi to tbe border area is 

also a source of concern for all of us. While the Mexican 

Government has been very cooperative in their efforts to 

eradicate the illicit cultivation of marihuana, we are re

ceiving disturbing reports of increased trafficking in heroin, 

coca~ne, and other dangerous substances to the United States. 

This Committee and our colleagues in Congress are anxious 

to know how we, as a Nation, can more effectively combat the 

drug traffickers whose'sordid business activities bring so 

much misery to so many of our citizens, and how we can develop 

more effective drug prevention, treatment and rehabilitation 

1 
I 
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to warn our citizens, particularly our young people, programs 

of drug abuse and to help those who have become of the dangers 

dependent upon these deadly substances. 

Mr. Chairman, we look forward to hearing from our 

panelist;s at the Federal, State and local levels to learn of 

f t t combat drug trgfficking and drug abuse and their ef: or s 0 

what we, as ,legislators,.can do to help them in their efforts. 

35-584 0-84-10 
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OPENING STATEMENT OF THE HONORAMLE SOLOMON P. ORTIZ 

Good morning, '. I want to welcome Chairman Rangel and my 
V 

distinguished col.leagues to Corpus Christi. It is, indeed, a 

pleas,.ll:.;e~and ~~ honor for you to be in our city. I also want 
. , , 

to welcome t1i(ose!.:~f you who. have so graciously agreed to partici-

pat~ in this'most Jlmportant event. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman f~\r conducting these hearings. Both 

the resigents of TexQS~ 27th District and I deeply appreciate 

your willingness and that of ti~e Select Committee on Narcotics 

Abuse and Control to examine drug trafficking anq abuse on the 

Texas Gulf Coast. I also wish to express my thanks to my 

colleagues for joining with me in examining the issue of drug 

use and abuse. 

The Select Committee's primary objective for the 98th Congress 

is the development of a "Federal Stra~egy For The Prevention of 

Drug Abuse and Trafficking." In its efforts to accomplish this 

goal, the committee has initiated and participated in several 

activities •. 

A series of hearings were held to evaluate the performance and 

effectiveness of federal drug programs and their administering 

agencies. The committee ham also studied the domestic cUltivation 

of marijuana. Additionally, it has examined international narcotics 

control programs, drug smuggling in Florida, drug treatment and 

prevention programs and evaluated education programs. 

To assist in fulfilling the overall mission of the committee, 

we have scheduled these hearings in Corpus Christi. We intend 

to focus on several areas during the next two days. We will --- .. . 
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examine drug smuggling and trafficking in south Texas and its 

relationship to the nationwide distribution system; we will 

study the drug addiction problem in South Texas and evaluate 

treatment and prevention programs; and we will focus on soliciting 

information from administrators, educ~tors and parents in order 

to develop comprehensive drug education legislation. 

We are all aware of the growing problem in this area of 

narcotics trafficking and drug abuse. The problem affects every 

segment of our society from the very young to the very old. 

The recent bumper crops of coca plants in South America and 

marijuana and poppy fields in Mexico, along with inadequate law 

enforcement at all levels, and political instability in these 

countries, have led to the increasing ~upply of narcotics available 

in South Texas. Because of the greater quantities, the price of 

the drugs is steadi~y dropping, thereby increasing their availa

bility to a greater number of people. Unfortunately, we now have 

children -- nine, ten, and eleven year olds -- experimenting with 

drugs and alcohol. 

Another problem in the area is the lack of available treat

ment. There are too few facilities to serve the many people 

requiring services and not enough money to treat them properly. 

While drug educational programs are increasing, much more 

needs to be done to inform our youth of the dangers of drug use 

and abuse. 

It is my sincere hope that the proceedings today and tomorrow 

will assist the Committee in gaining a better understanding of 

the serious problems in the area and provide input for finding a 

sa tisf actoro,;sol ution. 
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Again, I thank all of you for attending. With y?ur help, I 

feel confident that this endeavor will prove productive and 

successful fo~ all concerned. 

.--;: 
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF 

LUTHER JONES 

MAYOR OF CORPUS CHRISTI. TEXAS 

WE IN CORPUS CHRISTI are fond of talking among ourselves and to 

others about the fine "quality of life" we enj oy. Why not? Corpus chriiiti 

is blessed with sUn and sea and many other natural beauties. 

Natives and newcomers and visitors to the Coastal Bettd certainly 

refer to these gifts of nature when they brag about I'quality of life." 

but they also are aware that the popular term refers to the people of the area, 

for the people -- as much as the geography and the topography -- determine 

how pleasing life is and will be here in Corpus Christi. 

As a result of this quality lifestyle, the attractive social, 

economic, cultural conditions, the Corpus Christi area welcomes many new 

residents every day. This growth is a plus, affording the area even more 
, 

advantages 4S citizens blend the experiences of natives with those of 

newcomers. 

This same growth and advantageous geographical and topographical 

conditions also pose problems to the Coastal Bend. One of those problems 

-- drugs -- brings you concerned people here today. 

Throughout,this select cOmmittee's hearings today and tomorrow 

you will hear testimony that describes in detail the extent of drug 

trafficking and abuse on the Texas Gulf Coast. You will hear from our 

Corpus Christi Police Chief Bill B~ner and others some sobering statistics 

that prove that, indeed, drug trafficking and abuse do threaten this 

coveted "quality of life" we enjoy here in Corpus Christi. 
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I do not use the term "sobering" loosely.,' CCPD stats -- and 

Chief Banner will expand on these in his testimony -- tell us that 

* There are 1,250 to 1,500 heroin addicts with an average';$350 per day 

habit in the City of ~nrpus Chricti. 

* There were seven deaths in the City attributed to drug overdoses from 

January to October of this year. 

* The CCISD drug policy instituted in May 1981, has led to 42 

suspensions of students for drug and alcohol abuse. Thirty-one 

of those suspension were marjuana related. Six were alcohol 

related. Five were related to drug paraphernalia. 

* The Corpus Christi Police Department has made 1,362 drug related 

arrests between January and November of this ye~r. Forty per cent 

of those arrests were associated with marijuana: three per cent with 

cocaine; another three per cent with methamphetamine (speed), and 

four per cent were related to heroin. 

Our police department believes these statistics reflect the general 

ratio of usage of these drugs in the community and predict a rise 

in the use of cocaine as the drug becomes more readily available 

and, tragically, more popular 8IIIlong even pllofessionals in the City. 

* One last sobering local statist:!.c: The methadone clinic for the 

Coastal Bend - an agency federluly funded to treat 105 clients 

per month - currently treats 1:~5 clients. 
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National and regional statistics which you will hear during 

this testimony are just as sobering. Daily the media bring us reports 

of rising drug trafficking and usage rates. 

The Wall Street Journal just a few weeks ago pointed out 

that many of the people on Wall Street -- the people who handle the 

large sums of money involved in the market -- are,regular cocaine users. 

In an article and editorial three months back; Esquire magazine told 

readers that cocaine is no longer a drug of the elite, that some of 

the doctors that treat us'are in fact regular cocaine users. Our local 

police narcotics specialists support this view and add that drug usage 

is rising in circles of young professionals in the Coastal Bend. 

Reports also tell us that Corpus Christi's position on the 

Gulf Coast and its proximity to Mexico contribute to incr-eased 

drug trafficking in the area. Recent developments in Florida have 

brought more traffic to the region. 

I HAVE TOUCHED ON just a few of the statistics you will hear 

repeated here during this hearing. I also believe you will hear of some 

I more encouraging statistics and efforts that are a direct result of 

I 

I I 
! 

the efforts of the people of Corpus Ch~isti. 

Commander Henry Garrett of the Corpus Christi Police Department 

describes the need for community involvement this way. "You might say 

the drug pushers, the users and the ,like are digging a huge hole in the 

society. With the big money and organization involved, it's like they're 
'i 
j 

'I 
using a steam shovel, digging deeper and deeper into the fabric of the 
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society. Law enforcement officials are working to re-fill that hole. 
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but - due to limited resources -- Garrett says they are trying to re~fill 

that deepening hole with teaspoonsful of dirt. We are limited, yes, but grateful 

to see that so many community organizations are joining now to help combat 

the efforts on the other side. We daily see more local people grabbing a 

teaspoon and working to re-fill the hole." 

Police Chief Banner will elaborate in his testimony on 

examples of community involvement in Corpus Christi, and you will hear 

from some of these groups' representatives today and tomorrow. 

Police narcotics experts, as I have said, stress that such 

community groups and more must work hand-in-glove with law enforcement 

officials if Corpus Christi is to make a dent in the drug traffickers' 

efforts. These experts stress that legislation that resulted from Ross 

Perrot's Texas War on Drugs Committee has indeed had a significant positive 

effects on police efforts to combat the drug problem, but that the benefit 

of an involved public cannot be overemphasized. 

They report that the Corpus Christi comre',lnity shows signs of 

more involvement today. Police officers lecture daily to civics groups, 

businesses, neighborhood groups and in the schools, where, the police 

emphasize we must get student .. into the right frame of mind regarding drugs. 

A look at the recent 27' per cent drop in the Corpus Christi 

burglary rate proves that public involvement in law enforcements efforts' 

does make a difference. Police attribute this lowelred rate to education 

through the Neighbors On Watch program and the inv()lvement of Crime Stopper, Inc. 

more 
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I want to welcome members of the Select Committee on Narcotics 

Abuse and Control and all of you have prepared testimony for this -hearing. 

I also thank the select committee for providing the opportunity for these 

many governmental and community groups to come together with information and 

perspectives on such an important issue. 
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Mr. Chairman. Distinguised ~embers of the Select Committee 

on Narcotics Abuse and Control, United States House of 

Representatives: 

I am Carlos F. Truan, State Senator for the 20th Senatorial 

District of Texas, and I welcome you also to South Texas. 

My perspective on the subject of your hearings is grounded 

in both my Chairmanship of the Texas Senate Subcommittee 

on Public Health and my Vice Chtdrmansl1ip of the Senate 

Education Committee. I've been a member of the Texas 

Legislature for the past fifteen years. 

Because I thought that this perspective might be too narrowly 

focused to tackle that part of the subject matter dealing 

with drug trafficking, as distinguished from drug abuse, I 

consulted with a number of experts. I picked the brain of 

our District ~ttorney, Grant jones, and I consulted with Dr. 

Phil, Rhoades, member of the Criminal Justice Faculty at 

Corpus Christi State University as well as Dr. Fred Cervantes, 

a Political Science Professor at CCSU. What they told me has 

been invaluable in helping me articulate the message that I 

am about to give to you. 

That message is: 

The Texas Department of Community Affairs ese1mates that over 

700,000 Texans are in need of drug abus~ treatment. Over half 

a million young people, aged 12 to 17, ar,e at risk of becoming 

dependant on drugs and require prevention services, And, as 

many as 14,000 people, aged 12 to 17, may be added each year 

to Texas as they reach the drug~abusing age, I would give you 

no more 8tat~~ti~~.as ~~~ will be covered in depth by the 
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Director of Drug Abuse Prevention Division and the Texas 

Department of Community Affairs. 

I was encouraged to read that our Congressman Ortiz plans 

to introduce legislation to promote drug education in 

public schools, because that is the heart and the soul of 

the feedback I obtained when talking to drug enforcement 

officials in preparing this testimony. 

One would have thought that. law enforcement authorities 

would be heartened by the emphasis on drug law enforcement 

in the past three (3) years. There has been. a 30% 

reduction in funds for drug prevention, and, at the same 

time, there has been a 30% increase to drug law enforcement. 

Univer~ally, I find great dissatisfaction with this. No 

one has told me that they had wi;nessed a reduction skewing 

of funds. Likewise, I find that the strongest proponents of 

drug abuse education in the schools are prosecutors and law 

enforcement officials. 

May I urge a balanced approach. That translates into no 

decrease in emphasis on drug treatment and prevention 

services --- and in fact, an increase in funds for drug 

abuse education in the public schools as Congressman Ortiz 

proposes. 

Dr. Phil Rhoades tells me that when we get back to a ~ound 

program of sound drug abuse education in schools, the 

info~tion provided should be less in the way of fear

tactics, and more in the way of accurate descriptions of the 

negative effects of drugs on the htman body. He also 

emphasizes the need to expose students to some education in 

law enforcement as I?!!r~ _of. th~ A~ug educational program in 
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schools. I think that this is a very constructive idea 

worthy of your consideration. Peer group programs in 

schools have been proven to be effective, and education 

in schools should start in the 5th or 6th grades, or 

even sooner. 

Everyone with wham I have consulted, and, particUlarly, 

District Attorney, Grant Jones, strongly emphasiz~d that 

there is a definite relationship between alcohol abuse 

and drug abuse among young people, and that it would be 

evading the issue entirely and defeating our own purpose 

if we fail to inclUde alcohol abuse in any axpanded 

education effort on drugs. 

In closing, let me again plead f~r a balanced approach. 

No one begrudges any money spent on law enforcement efforts 

to apprehend and convict drug traffickers. However, we 

must dry up the future part of those traffickers by a 

comprehensive program on drug abuse education that hegins 

in the fifth or sixh level, which definitely includes 

alcohol abuse, and which also explains the role of ~aw 

enforcement and obedience of the law in our society so that 

our young people will comprehend the role of the criminal 

justice system. 

Likewise, no one can begrudge the spending of money on treat

ment and rehabilitation of drug abusers. But I think that 

we have neglected prevention and drug abuse edUcation in 

arranging our funding priorities. 

I hope that this Committee of the Congress will take the 

lead in rearrangi~g t~e~e p~~~rities. Thank you. 



\ 

154 

STATEMENT 

OF 

MARION W. HAMBRICK 

SPECIAL AGENT IN' CHARGE 

HOUSTON FIELD DIVISION 

DRUG ENFORCEMENT ADMINISTRATION 

u. S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

BEFORE 

U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

SELECT COMMITTEE 

ON 

NARCOTICS ABUSE AND CONTROL 

DRUG TRAFFICKING 

IN THE 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS 

DECEMBER 12, 198~ 
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Chairman Rangel, I thank you for t4e invitation to appear 

before your Committee today, I am pleased to represent the 

Drug Enforcement Administration and will focus today on the 

drug trafficking situation in South Texas, the Gulf Coast 

and the U.S./Mexican border. 

The United States shares a common border of 1,000 miles with 

the Republic of Mexico, 889 of which is in Texas. The 

border,is extremely porous, and, given the fact that most of 

it is uninhabited desert, lends itself well to unregulated 

criminal activity, most notably smuggling. It is across 

this border that the bulk of drugs produced in or trans-

shipped through Mexico enter the United States. Large 

quantities of heroin, co(.iJe, marijuana, and dangero~s . 
drugs such as methaqualone are all entering the United 

States from Mexico. 

In the mid-1970's, Mexican brown heroin constituted approxi~ 

mately 80% of the entire United States heroin market. As a 

result, DEA, in concert with the State Department, worked 

closely with the Government of Mexico to institute an opium 

poppy eradicati6n ~r~gr8m gndother initiatives. The 

program was extremely successful and, by 1979, caused a 

dramatic reduction in the purity and availability of Mexican 

heroin, reducing the market share for this type of heroin to 

about 30%. Beginning in 1982, however~ the United States 

again began experiencing an inftux of Mexican heroin, but 

Q 
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this time at much higher purity levels than previously 

encountered. Currently, Mexican heroin accounts for an 

estimated 34% of U.S. heroin imports and is primarily 

concentrated in the Western United States and the Chicago 

Metropolitan area. 

Historically, there have been two primary heroin smuggling 

routes originating from Mexico, one terminating at the 

California ~order and the other at the ~exas border for 

distribution on to the Southwestern and North Central 

States. The movement of heroin into the United States has 

largely been restricted to the use of venicles and indi-

vidual couriers, and this remains the case today. Between 

1976 and 1981, Texas led California in major heroin seizures 

at the border. In the last twelve months, two major heroin 

seizures have occurred, the first, in McAllen, was 19 pounds 

in December, 1982, and the second, in Brownsville, was 45 

pounds in June, 1983. 

Based on DEA Intelligence estimates, several important 

trends appear to be occurring. Narcotic arrest and seizure 

records for 1982 indicate that actual arrests of Mexican 

Nationals for drug offenses have decreased to the lowest 

level in six years. At the same time, heroin seizures along 

the Southw\.\st border and in the Mid-Western states increased 

significantl~\ indicating a consolidation among today's 
, 

Mexican trafficking networks. 
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In addit~on, we are observing a large number of 

Houston-based violators becoming active in heroin traf-

fick:tng. Some of these people have extensive contacts with 

major heroin producing organizations in Mexico. 

There is no question that based on the quantitative and 

qualitative increases in brown heroin, Mexico has re-emerged 

as one of the top three heroin producing regions of the 

world. 

With regard to cocaine, it appears the South Florida Task 

Force has caused many Colombian cocaine traffickers to 

restructure their networks to include the Houston area, 

Recent cases and undercover negotiations indicate Texas'is 

now playing a prominent role in this area. On the border, 

Laredo and Brownsville, in the past year, experienced a 

large number of 'ingestors' which are smugglers who 

transport sealed cocaine in their stomach or a body cavity. 

However, because of increased demand for cocaine, we are 

encountering a new trend which is the expanded use of 

aircraft and vessels to import larger quantities of this 

drug into Galve~ton. New Orleans and other points along the 

Gulf Coast. The Texas Department of Safety seized 70 pounds 

of cocaine at Beaumont. Texas during the last month, and the 

U.S. Customs Service seized 90 pounds ~1 cocaine from a 

Colombian vessel at Galveston only itwo weeks ago. 

35-584 0-84-11 
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As a result. So~th Texae cities including Houston. San 

Antonio. Gorpus Christi~ and the border towns ,are encounter-

ing large quantities of very high quality cocaine. It has 

become the drug of -choice among many trafficking organiza-

tions and is now so freely available that the price has 

dropped approximately 50% in the Last six month~. In this 

case. the ,supply is so great that the price has fallen from 

an average of $75.000 per kilo in March. 1983 to $35-40,000 

per kilo today. We predict that cocaine will continue to 

increase in availability as the Colombian organizations 

solidify their control over the South Texas market. 

In the past year. large quantities of high g~ade Maxican 

marijuana have begun re-appearing along the border. Begin~ 

ning in the last twelve months. seizures and resulting 

refezrals from U.S. Customs and the Border Patrol began 

increasing dramatically. In previous years. m~dnight 

crossing of marijuana smugglers at remote 10catioDS along 

the Rio Grande Ri,ver were extremely common. Today. this 1s 

again the prefer~e4 method. Colombian marijuana has also 

been transshipped through Mexico with ultimate distribution 

in Tex~s. 

We are now beginning to observe the increased use of air-

craft and vessels in large scale marijuana smuggling. Iu a 

recent seizure, 46.000 pounds of marijuana was seized from a 

large ,ship • To illustrate an eutirely new phenomenon in 
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Texas. several of our caSes concern violators who are. 

travelling to TeXaS to exchange COCaine for marijuana. 

In a recent Austin case. several New Yorkers came to Texas 

to negotiate for the delivery of 48.000 pounds of marijuana 

and placed a one million dollar cash deposit. In another 

instance. some Cubans came t~ Texas to negotiate for the 

delivery of 18,000 pounds of Iqarijuana, from Texas to Miami. 

The average price per pound for very high qual,ity Colombian 

sinseIqilla -is about $500. Lower grades, such as Mexican 

commercial. average $150 per pound. 

In addition to marijuana importation, we have obServed an 

increase in domestic production of home grown marijuana 

which has become a problem in many areas of East Texas. 

Marijuana is reputed to pe California's ,number one cash crop 

and the law enforcement com,munity is trying to prevent that 

from happening -here. The Texas Department of Public Safety 

(DPS) has taken the lead, to address this problem. The DPS 

is coordinating a statewide Domestic Marijuana Eradication 

Program which has had excellent results. We are 

intensifying ou~ ,~fforts with the DPS, including ~n 

increa~~d exchange of intelligence and extens~ve training 

and education programs • 

Methaqualone is another major drug ~f abuse th~t is smuggled 

from Mexico into the United States Co.mmonly known by its 

----~ '-- ',--
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American trade name. Quaalude. methaqualone powder is . 

clandestinely produced and tabletted in Mexico as Mandrax. 

While DEA has attempted to limit the worldwide availability 

of bulk methaqualone powder. there has been a substantial 

increase of Mandrax availability in Texas during the last 

two years. Mandrax is readily available on the streets of 

Houston. San Antonio. and Corpus Christi. It is smuggled 

into the United States in multi-thousand dosage unit quan

tities. An example of this was a seizure, at McAllen last 

year. of an automobile containing 530 thousand dosage units 

of Mandrax being driven by a fourteen year old Mexican 

National who had been recruited to drive the vehicle. 

Another important phenomenon is the problem of drugs of 

legitimate pharmaceutical origin in Mexico being diverted 

into the U.S. illicit market. Drugs in this category 

include phentermine. Captagon (fenethylline), diazepam and 

codein·e cough preparations. These drugs are being smuggled 

i~ large quantities across the Texas border and are also 

being flown into remote airstrips in Southern California. 

In addition to all of these drugs, the domestic production 

of methamphetamine fTom clandestine laboratories has become 

a major trend that shows no signs of diminishing. In the 

last year, Texas led the nation in the numbe~ of methamphet

amine laboratories seized while in operation. We have a 

very active lab team that has had an unprecedented degree of 
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success in identifying and penetrating organizations that 

choose to manufacture their own methamphetamine. We have 

observed a general trend by which clandestine lab operators 

in remote. rural farmhouses wh'ere the telltale odor of the 

labs won't be recognized. This is happening with increasing 

frequency in the Texas hill country area northwest of San 

Ant.onio. 

DEA is working closely in Texas with other ~ederal. State 

an~ local enforcement agencies in an attempt to stay abreast 

and challenge these trafficking networks. Our efforts as an 

investigative agency are directed at penetrating and 

immobilizing major d~ug trafficking networks through inves

tigation, apprehension. and conviction. and depriving 

traffickers of their accumulated profits and assets through 

judicial forfeiture. DEA accomplishes these goals through a 

br~ad variety of approaches that are designed to respond to 

the unique ~equirements of the individual investigation at 

hand. Regardless of the type of drug. DEA targets its 

resources at the highest level of the organization so that 

our efforts will have the maximum impact. 

The Houston Field Division of the DEA encompasses 115 of 

Texas' 254 counties. including all South Texas and most of 

West Texas. In actual area. the Division measures 124.897 

square miles. or abo~t 45% of the entire state. and includes 

all of the Texas-Mexican bOTder except the area from Big 

.. 
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Bend Nati?nal Park west to El Paso. This area is greater in 

size than the states o·f New, York, ~,ew: Jersey, Massachusetts, 

Connecticut, Vermont, New Hampshir!r and Maine combined. 

DEA has au;horized 128 Special Agents for the Houston 

Division. These personnel are assig~ed to strategic lo

cations based on the needs of the agency, trafficking 

patterns and trends, and the volume of activity in a given 

District. In addition ~o Special Agent pei~onnel, the· 

Division has 5 Intelligence Specialists whose functions are 

to collect and analyze dr~g in~elligence and to initiate and 

coordinate major intelligence programs. There are also 5 

Diver~ion Investigato;s who perform regulatory functions and 

investig.te the Diversion of drugs from legitimate sources. 

To increase the impa~t of our own resources and the effec~ 

tiveness of local drug enforcement activities, DEA supports 

a network of nineteen state and local task force operations 

nationwide. The objective of these task forces is to attack 

the mid-level trafficker, and the program, when instituted 

in a metropolitan area, serves to fill the gap between local 

street arrests and complex Federal investigations of high 

level financiers and organizers. In Texas, DEA recently 

approved task forces for Laredo and San Antonio. 

We have also taken advantage o£ the newly formed Organized 

Crime Drug Enforcement Task Forces (OCDE'llF) that were 
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recently established actoss the nation. The Gulf Coast 

OCDETF is based in Houston and targets the 'highest level of 

drug violators. The goal of the task forces is to ensure 

that all of the resources of the Federal government are 

brought to bear on the drug problem. 

An example of the success of this task force is a recently 

completed investigation code named OPERATION BUSHMASTER that 

resulted in the indictment of 62 members of the 

Houston-based Dempsey MERIDA organization, one of the 

largest poly-drug organizations in the country. This 

organization, which distributed large quantities of heroin, 

cocaine, methamphetamine. and marijuana was involved in the 

full spectrum of criminal activities including multiple 

homicides and heavy equipment thefts. OPERATION BUSHMASTER 

extended to three foreign countries. seven states, several 

cities thr~ughout Texas. and i~cluded the collective 

investigative efforts of at least eleven law enforcement 

agencies. 

Another example is OPERATION GROUPER FOLLOW-UP, an inves-

tigation of a ~ajor trafficking organization which, over a 

year and a half, imported 425,000 pounds of marijuana by 

vessel to the Texas Gulf Coast. We recently indicted 44 

persons in this case which has reacbed .a su~cessful con-

clusion. OPERAT,ION GROUPER FOLL,OW-UP identified smuggling 

points oi'entty i~ three different sta~es. actual drug 
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distribution to four other states, and utilized the 

investigative talents of twelve law enforcement agencies. 

In addition to the OCDETF Program, we have become actively 

involved in the Vice President's National Narcotic Border 

Interdiction System (NNBIS). The Customs Service and the 

Coast Guard are the primary Federal agencies tasked with the 

interdiction of narcotics. DEA provides them .. with interdic-

tion intelligence from both our domestic ana overseas 

offices on drug smuggling into the United States. In turn, 

we are responsible for the follow-up investigations of 

seizures made by them. 

Supporting DEA's efforts to immobilize major trafficking 

organizations at the Federal level are the FBI. IRS, U.S. 

Customs, the U.S. Coast Guard, Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco & 

Firearms, the U.S. Marshal's Service and the Department of 

Defense. DEA agents throughout this Division and the 

Southwest work closely with these agencies and an active 

liaison program is maintained to ensure a continued exchange 

of intelligence. 

As you can see, Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, 

even with the coordinated efforts of the Federal. State and 

local agencies in this area, the drug trafficking situation 

in Texas and along the Southwest Border is one of constantly 
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changing trends that cause us to face a very formidable 

challenge. Your hearings will increase public attention in 

this area and will increase sensitivity to the problem at 

all levels of government. The Drug Enforcement 

Administration is committed to meeting the challenge of the 

drug problems in Texas and the Southwest and responding 

quickly and effectively to the findings and recommendations 

that will surface during the course of these hearings. 

Thank you. 
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STATEMENT OF DANIEL K. HEDGES, 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY FOR THE 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS, BEFORE 
THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES SELECT 

COMMITTEE ON NARCOTICS ABUSE AND CONTROL 

DECEMBER 12, 1983, AT 
CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS 

MR. CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE, I 
WANT TO THANK YOU FOR INVITING ME TO TESTIFY AT THIS HEARING 
ON THE STATUS OF DRUG TRAFFICKING IN SOUTH TEXAS. I HAVE 
BEEN REQUESTED TO ADDRESS THE FOLLOWING TOPICS: (A) PRESENT 
LEVEL OF STAFF ASSIGNED TO U. S. ATTORNEY'S OFFICE, SOUTHERN 
DISTRICT OF TEXASj (B) CURRENT CASELOAD STATISTICS (SPECI
FICALLY NARCOTICS)j (C) STATISTICS RELATING TO PROSECUTIONS 
AND SENTENCINGj CD) FUTURE PROJECTIONS FOR DRUG RELATED 
CASELOAD; AND (E) PROJECTED ROADBLOCKS WHICH MAY BE ENCOUNT
ERED DURING FUTURE PROSECUTIONS. 

(A) ~ENT LEVEL OF STAFF ASSIGNED TO THE U~ . 
AIIORNEY'S OFFICE. SOUTHERN DiSTRICT OF TEXAS: AT PRESENT) 
THE ASSIGNED) PERMANENT STAFF CONSISTS OF FIFTY ASSISTANT 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS. WHEN I TOOK OFFICE IN JULY) 1981) 
WE HAD FORTY ASSISTANT U. S. ATTORNEYS ~ OUR 25% GROVITH 
RATE OVER THE PAST TWO YEARS IS GREATER THAN THAT OF ANY 
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OTHER MAJOR OFFICE OTHER THAN MIAMI (SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF 
FLORIDA). WE HAVE FIFTY-FIVE ASSIGNED) PERMANENT NON
ATTORNEY STAFF MEMBERS. 

THIRTY-THREE ATTORNEYS HANDLE CRIMINAL MATTERS AND 
SEVENTEEN HANDLE CIVIL MATTERS. FORTY-THREE ATTORNEYS 
OFFICE IN HOUSTON) ONE IN CORPUS CHRISTL ONE IN LAREDO) AND 
FIVE IN BROWNSVILLE. IT IS NOT AT ALL UNCOMMON TO SENb 
ATTORNEYS FROM ONE OFFICE TO ASSIST IN THE HANDLING OF A 
CASE IN ONE OF THE OTHER OFFICES. 

IN THE AREA OF NARCOTICS PROSECUTIONS) SIGNIFICANT 
STAFFING CHANGES HAVE BEEN MADE DURING MY TENURE IN OFFICE. 
WHEN I TOOK OFFICE) THERE WAS NO DESIGNATED NARCOTICS UNIT, 
WE NOW HAVE WITHIN THE CRIMINAL DIVISION IN HOUSTON A 
NARCOTICS SECTION HEADED BY ONE OF OUR MOST EXPERIENCED 
PROSECUTORS J AND CONSISTING OF THREE OTHER PROSECUTORS, 
11m I LE NONE OF THESE FOUR LAWYERS DEVOTES FULL II ME TO NAR
COTICS PROSECUTIONS) THEY PROVIDE US WITH rHE MANPOWER AND 
EXPERTISE NECESSARY TO HANDLE THE NARCOTICS CASELOAD IN- THE 
HOUSTON DIVISION. AS I WILL DISCUSS LATER, THE PROSECUTORS 
IN CORPUS CHRISTI, LAREDO, AND BROWNSVILLE DEVOTE A GREAT 
DEAL OF THEIR EFFORTS TO NARCOTICS PROSECUTIONS, 

IN MARCH OF 1983, THE GULF COAST AREA DRUG TASK FORCE 
BEGAN OPERATIONS IN HOUSTON, IT IS RESpbNSIBLE FOR HANDL
ING ALL CASES WHICH MEET THE DRUG TASK FORCE GUIDELINES 
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THROUGHOUT THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS. SINCE HOUSTON IS 
THE "CORE CITY" FOR THE GULF COAST AREA (TEXAS, LOUISIANA, 
AND SOUTHERN MISSISSIPPI), THE HOUSTON TASK FORCE ALSO 
SERVES A COORDINATING FUNCTION FOR THE ENTIRE AREA. IN 
AUGUST THE TASK FORCE REACHED ITS FULL STRENGTH OF SEVEN 
PROSECUTORS AND FORTY INVESTIGATORS. 

IN SUMMARY, IN THE PAST TWO YEARS WE HAVE GONE FROM 
HAVING NO ONE WITH FORMAL RESPONSIBILITY FOR PROSECUTING 
NARCOTI CS CASES TO SEVEN FULL TIME AND FOUR PART -TH1E NAR
COTICS PROSECUTORS. THIS DRAMATIC INCREASE REFLECTS OUR 
PROSECUTIVE PRIORITIES, AMONG WHICH NARCOTICS IS AT THE TOP 
OF THE LIST. 

(B) CURRENT CASELOAD STATISTICS (SPECIFICAI LY NAR
COTICS): THE CURRENT CASELOAD OF CRHE:'IAL r1ATTERS AND 
CASES THROUGHOUT THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS IS 1,951. 
OF THAT NUMBER, 466, OR 24%, INVOLVE NARCOTICS. IN THE 
CORPUS CHRISTI DIVISION, THE TOTAL CRIMINAL CASELOAD IS 189 
CASES AND MATTERS. OF THAT NUMBER, 107, OR 55%, INVOLVE 
NARCOTICS. 

(C) STATISTICS RELATING TO PROSECUTIONS AND SENTENCING: 
I DO NOT HAVE ANY STATISTICS RELATING TO SENTENCING. 
EXHIBIT A ATTACHED HERETO REPRESENTS FELONY FILINGS IN 
FISCAL 1982 BY THE TEN LARGEST U.S. ATTORNEY'S OFFICES 
(EXCLUDING WASHINGTON, D.C.). THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF 
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TEXAS RANKS A DISTANT FIRST IN TOTAL FELONY FILINGS. IN 
THE CONBINED CATEGORIES OF "MARIHUANA, CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE" 
AND "NARCOTICS," WE RANKED SECOND ONLY TO THE SOUTHERN 
DISTRICT OF FLORIDA. . ' 

(0) FUTURE PROJECTIONS FOR DRUG RELATED CASELOAD: I 
HAVE NO REASON TO ANTICIPATE A DECLINE IN THE DRUG CASELOAD 
IN THE NEAR FUTURE. TO THE CONTRARY, AS THE DRUG TASK 
FORCE INDICTMENTS BEGIN TO BE RETURNED, THERE SHOULD BE 
AN INCREASE. BECAUSE OF THE NATURE OF DRUG TASK FORCE ", 
CASES) IT IS NOT ANTICIPATED THAT THERE WILL BE A LARGE 
INCREASE IN THE NUMBER OF INDICTMENTS. HOWEVER, MANY DRUG 
TASK FORCE CASES WILL INVOLVE A LARGE NU~1BER OF DEFENDANTS, 
LENGTHY GRAND JURY I NVESTI GATI ONS, AND LENGTHY TRIALS. 

(E) PROJECTED ROADBLOCKS WHICH MAY BE ENCOUNTEREn. 
DURING FUTURE PROSECUTIONS: AT THE PRESENT TIME, WE ARE 
EXTREf1ELY PLEASED vlITH THE OPERATIONS OF THE GULF COAST 
AREA DRUG TASK FORCE. IT HAS ENABLED US TO INVESTIGATE . 
AND PROSECUTE CASES OF A SCOPE. AND NATURE WH I CH WE S Ir1PLY 
DID NOT HAVE THE RESOURCES TO HANDLE PREVIOUSLY. WE ALSO 
FEEL THAT THE STRUCTURE OF THE TASK FORCE PROGRAr1 NATION
ALLY IS EXCELLENT. WHILE WE RECEIVE GUIDANCE AND TRAINING 
FROM WASHINGTON, WE HAVE SUFFICIENT FLE~IBILITY TO ADDRESS 
THE DISTINCT PROBLEMS OF OUR AREA IN A MANNER BEST SUITED 
TO SAID PROBLEMS. ANY CHANGE IN THE STAFFING OR STRUCTURE 
OF THE DRUG TASK FORCE PROGRAM COULD CONSTITUTE A SERIOUS 
ROADBLOCK. 
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EXHIBIT A 
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\ Homicide, 
\ Weapons, B\lrgJ,.ary Marihuana, Forgery & All 

\ 
District Immigra- Embez- Auto and and Controlled Narco- Counter- Robbery, 

tion zlement ~ Firearms Escape Larcen:i , Substance tics feiting ~ Assault ~ Total 

\' S.D.N.Y. 18 101 3 20 21 71 21 181 81 53 728 80 78 
\ , C.D. Cal. 34 854 

\ 
10 101 2 37 59 73 40 38 117 113 230 

N.D. Ill. 10 58 6 59 520 
I 26 4 88 "., 41 36 157 18 -, 
I , S.D. Fla. 63 22 :3 33 42 762. I-' 

I: 31 2.1 7.:~9 172 49 65 32 -::I 

1: o E.D.N.Y. 5 21 1 20 32 37 417 0 
1 40 19 133 37 71 

\1 N.J. 7 34 3 14 40 337 
I 1 45 l2 11 37 106 17 

P E.D. Pa. 1 18 4 35 361 
't 45 3 32 48 25 27 99 24 . 
I; 
Ii S.D. Tex. 678 32 65 1,441 
H 13 85 76 47 139 70 25 186 25 

ji E.p. Mich. 14 34 8 36 15 82. 2.6 37 383 

1\ 
37 27 ::,r. 31 

N.D. Cal. 

i 
5 82 1 9 9 58 22. :'9 34 72 S3 31 395 
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF 

DONALD F. KELLY 

REGIONAL COMMISSIONER 

U.S. CUSTOMS SERVICE 

HOUSTON, TEXAS 
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The Honorable 
Charles B. Rangel 
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DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 
u.s. CUSTOMS SERVICE 

HOUSTON, TEXAS 

December 7, 1983 

Chairman, Select Committee on Narcotics Abuse and Control 
U.S. House of Representatives 
Room 234. House Office Building Annex 2 
lialshington. D.C. 20515 

Dear Mr. Rangel: 

REFER TO 

ENF-1-E:P JRE 

As Regional Commissioner of the Southwest Region, United States Customs 
Service, I am pleased to provide information to YOU and the U.S. House of Rep
resentatives Select Committee on Narcotics Abuse and Control which may be of 
assistance in our nation's war on drug smuggling and abuse. Drug smuggling 
and abuse pose perhaps the greatest threat to our modern day society. Due to 
the magnitude of this problem, it is absolutely mandatory that we marshal all 
available resources to combat this deadly menace. 

The U.S. Customs Service has the unique responsibility of preventing the 
smuggling and illegal entry of narcotics and other contraband into the United 
States. The Customs Service is charged with primary responsibility for Federal 
anti-smuggling enforcement along the entire land, sea and air borders, as well 
as through the ports of entry of this nation. We take this responsibility 
most seriously and strive to achive maximu@ results. 

The Southwest Region of the U.S. Customs Service encompasses the entire 
States of Texas, Oklahoma. New Mexico. Arizona and two parishes in the State 
of Louisiana. Within this area lies almost 2,000 miles of land border with 
Mexico and 400 miles of Gulf of Mexico shoreline. Enforcement of the Customs 
laws over such a vast area does indeed present a challenge. Not only is the 
area vast, but topogl'aphy varies from mountainous desert in Arizona and West 
Texas to lowland swamps along the Gulf Coast. 

Ports of Entry tn the Southwest Region vary from ferry river crossings on 
the Rio Grande River at Los Ebanos. Texas to the Port of Entry at Houston, 
which is one of the largest seaports in the nation as well as a large and ever 
expanding international airport. 

Illegal penetrations by narcotic laden general aViation type aircraft 
occur throughout the Southwest Region's area of responsibility. These pene
trations are represented in the form of small single engine planes with a few 
hundred pounds of marijuana to large multi-engine aircraft with hundreds of 
pounds of cocaine and other hard narcotics. The threat posed by smuggler air
craft originates in Mexico, Central and South America and flights often termi
nate in the Southwest Region and even to points well within thefnterior of 
the United States. 
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With this general overview in mi~d, I would like to ~ake the opportunity 
to address certain specific areas of 1nterest to the Comm1ttee. 

I. FUNDING 

Total funding for all aspects of the Customs Service miss~on are set 
out as follows. This funding is utilized for revenue collect1on func
tions as well as general enforcement and anti-smuggling efforts. 

National Funding (in millions of dollars) 

1980 
1981 
1982 
1983 
1984 

464.1 
498.5 
527.2 
575.0 
615.9 

Southwest Region Funding 

The Customs Service is organized into seven geographic regions. To 
provide cost for Customs operations which are located d~rectly on the 
border would be misleading since there are other costs ~ncurred centrally 
by the Southwest Region which support the border o~era~lon. A be~ter 
indicator of Customs emphasis on the border operat1on 15 the fund1ng 
level for the entire Southwest Region which, as previously stated, has 
responsibility for virtually the entire US/Mexico border. 

1980 43.3 (milliMs) 
1981 47.1 
1982 50.3 
1983 65.5 
1984 62.2* 

*Based on current funding lev~ls and subject to change dUring FY 84 
as Headquarters makes further allocat~Jns of funds. 

Funding for Corpus Christi/Brownsville 

The amount of funding for operations in Corpus Christi/8rownsville 
during this period is indicated below. These ~re direct operati~g 
expenses and do not include support costs furn1shed by the Distr1cts, 
Southwest Region or Service Headquarters. 

1980 1.7 (millions) 
1981 1.9 
1982 2.0 
1983 3.3 
1984 * 

*Expected to be at about the FY 83 level. 

85-584 ()--84----12 
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n. T~EAT 

The threat assessment is an ongoing dynamic process and is conducted 
at the local area and proceeds upward through the regional level to the 
national level. The threat is measured to some extent by enforcement 
results in the form of arrests made as well as the number and quality of 
narcotics and other contraband seized. These tangible figures are sup
plemented by CUl'rent foreign and domestic intelligence. ,The assesSinent 
of tangible results coupled with intelligence is weighed within the 
Customs Service Intelligence Division and is supplemented by information 
exchanged with other Federal agencies such as the Drug Enforcement Admin
istration and its El Paso Intelligence Center (EPIC) at El Paso, Texas. 

An intelligence report prepared for 1983 by the Intelligence Division 
of U.S. Customs Service at Washington, D.C., is presented to the Commit
tee as a part of this testimony. The report entitled Narcotics Traffick
ina: Impact on the U.S. Customs Service - 1983 Update, contains speCific 
information and is broken down by specific types of narcotics, by region 
and method of conveyance. 

Threat assessment within the Southwest Region is a priority area. As 
evidence of that priority, we have recently established the Intelligence 
Branch within the Office of Enforcement at Region Headquarters. The 
fourteen member staff assigned to th'ts functi on wi 11 conti nua 11y evaluate 
the threat in all forms throughout this region and transmit that vital 
tactical and strategic information to ,appropriate enforcement elements on 
a real time basis. 

I II. PERSONNEL 

Pers~nnel resources available during the period of fiscal years 1980 
to the present are as follows: 

National 

Custom Patro1 Intelligence 
FY Officers Inspectors Spec i a 1 Agen ts Anal)::st 

1980 974 4,490 711 
1981 907 4,481 678 
1982 1,145 4,493 711 
1983 1,082 4,368 954 
1984 1,086 4,546 980 169 

Southwest Region 

Custom Patro 1 
FY Officers Inl,pectors SEecial Agents Intelligence Anal~st 

1980 183 533 88 
1981 165 537 76 
1982 158 550 79 
1983 226 690 103 
1984 225 691 104 19 

FY 

1980 
1981 
1982 
1983 
1984 

FY 

1980 
1981 
1982 
1983 
1984 

CPO's 

6 
6 
4 
8 
8 

~ 

17 
15 
14 
15 
15 
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Corpus Chri sti 

InsEectors 

4 
6 
5 
5 
5 

Brownsville 

Inspectors 

55 
58 
54 
65 
67 

IV, SEIZURES FY 1980 thru FY 1983 

Special Agents 

o 
o 
o 
o 
o 

Special Agents 

5 
5 
6 
5 
5 

The following is a compilation of narcotic seizures for the period 
FY 1980 thru FY 1983: 

SERVICEWIDE 

FY 80 FY 81 . FY 82 FY 83 

Heroin I/SZ 149 170 168 285 
amou'nt in lbs 268.7 234 290 594 

Cocaine i/SZ 1,307 1,372 1,364 1,731 

lbs 4,743 371 11,149 19,601 

Hashish IISZ 3,979 2,689 2,610 1,829 

lbs 14,675 17,991 58,276 2,298 

Marihuana ffSZ 12,620 14,036 11,947 12,101 

lbs 2,361,142 5,109,792 3,958,070 2,732,974 

Other Dangerous 3,495 3,877 3,017 2,862 

Drugs flSZ 43,000,416 38,947,805 2,339,360 5,592,669 

(units) 
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SOUTHWEST REGION 

Heroin #SZ 11 16 27 47 
lbs 10.5 36.3 14 91.1 

Cocaine #SZ 61 83 84 134 
lbs 145.4 46.4 267.7 628.8 

Hashish #SZ 189 454 518 371 
lbs 506.8 24.8 34.8 28.7 

Marihuana #SZ 1,354 1,419 1,438 2,063 
lbs 382,920 207,229 123,923 130,262 

Other DO #SZ 307 365 416 493 
(units) 1,390,467 . 467,230 784,735 4,530,577 

CORPUS CHRISTI/BROWNSVILLE AREA 

Heroin #SZ 0 0 2 5 
lbs 1 45.8 

Cocaine #SZ 2 2 0 5 
lbs * * 5 

Hashish #SZ 4 0 3 1 
lbs * * * 

Marihuana #SZ 108 90 85 142 
lbs 7,070.8 52,293.3 1,006.5 4,136.7 

Other DO #SZ 12 12 19 16 
(lI1its) 234,116 501 5,216 212,059 

* indicates amounts less than 1/10 lbs 

Values of Narcotics Seized in the Corpus Christi/Brownsville Areas 
(based on the DEA National Stats) 

f.'L.§Q FY 81 FY 82 FY 83 

Heroin N/A N/A $589,065.00 $26,397,364.00 

Cocaine N/A N/A N/A 1,362,000.00 

Marihuana $4,843,498.00 $39,063,095.10 782,050.50 3,189,395.70 

Other DO 707 1030.32 11 733.54 25 1297.60 897,209.57 

TOTALS $5,550,528.32 $39,064,868.64 $1,396,413.10 $31,785,969.27 
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V. TECHNIQUES/TRENDS 

Techniques employed by Customs Officers to detect and apprehend drug 
smugglers include: 

-Intelligence - Tactical and Strategic 
-Confidential Sources 
-Undercover Operations 
-Intensified Special Operations 
-Liaison with Other Agencies 
-Use of Sensors - ground sensors, ground radar, FLIR, airborne radar. 
beepers and electronic tracking devices. night vision equipment 

-Investigation - currency. neutrality. etc. 
-Surve ill ance 
-Intensified Inspections - Customs Enforcement Teams (CET) 

Sufficient major assets are on hand to deal effectively with the nar
cotic smuggling problem in the Southwest Region. At the present. great 
emphasis is being placed on working effectively in a well coordinated 
manner. Wit~ expanded intelligence, our Customs Patrol Officers. Inspec
tors and Special Agents are working as a unified force to attack smug
gling at every frontier and level. 

The recent establishment of the National Narcotics Border Interdic
tion System (NNBIS) at the Washington level and at the regional level 
will provide resources never available to us in previous times. NNBIS 
gives us a vehicle whereby a concentration of Federal resources from the 
Department of Defense as well as the civilian Departments can come 
together for a state-of-the-art enforcement effort. Utilization of high 
technology provided by NNBIS will somewhat offset scarce manpower 
resources. 

Relative to smuggling trends along the Texas/Mexican border, as well 
as along the Gulf Coast and at ports of entry within the Southwest Region 
over the past three years. we have observed an increase in virtually all 
forms of narcotic smuggling. This is especially truE: in very recent 
times and is primarily due to increased law enforcement activity in the 
Southeastern portion of the United States. Smugglers respond to pressure 
and the smuggling trend is an ever changing threat as pressure is applied 
at various points. 

It has been my pleasure in presenting this information. and please 
let me know if I may be of further assistance. 

Sincerely. 

I 
J~t:'~~\ Donal~~;;-" 1 
Regional Commissioner 

0 
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF RADH WILLIAM H. ~~, ust~. 
COMMANDER, EIGHTH COAST' GUARD DIS'l'RI:C'l'" 

BEFORE THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATlv&~ SELE~ CCKMI~ 
9N NARCOTICS ABUSE AND COIITROL 

. !'lister Chairman and Membet:s of the Committee. :t am Rear 10dmiral 
Will.iam H. STEWART, Commander of the Eighth Coast· Guard District. r 
welcome the opportunity to discuss Coast GUard' 1ftl!lrit:im~ mt·reoticlT 
interdiction efforts with this Sub-Commiti:ee. 

The Eighth Coast Guard District encompasses- a l.axqe water,area .. 
approximately I~G,~G~ square miles of the GUlf of Mexico. It Includ2& 
the .states of Alabama, Louisiana, Mississippi r ,..exas· ... R!e'v Ptexico and 
part of the State of Florida. To support the C:oast GUard ~ruq 
interdiction effort in this area, the fQIIQwin~ mu.l.ti-mi!Ull0n a.s.set:s: 

. are available: ten 82 foot patrol boats,. two .e-ag~ill<l btl~ tenders" 
eleven helicopters' at three locations (Houst:CltTp C'orps Cl'lr1.S.ti" New 
orleans), seven fixed wing aircraft at Corpus Christi and Mobile~ end 
utility boats at eleven Coast GUard stations alo~ the coast from 
Panama City, Florida to Port Isabel, Texas.F'our med.itlm endurance 
cutters are homeported in the Eighth Districth~t operate primarily ~u 
the ~ucatan area, 'which is presently under the (lI~Efra.t:ional control of 
the Seventh Coast Guard District headquartered. in Ki8llri_ 

With these assets, the Eighth Coast Guard District c~ries out an 
aggressive law enforcement program' in support of marit:~ narcotics 
·interdiction along the Gulf Coast. Patrol. boats, ut:ill.q boa.ts, end' 
buoy tender's conduct both c.oastal and offshore ~ilt:%clI:s· em either 
dedicated missions or in conjunction with. other COa.stGbardmissions. 
Aircraft patrols are regularly conducted in the GUlf alang the coast". 
independently or in conjunction. with surface patrols. Recently, w~ 
have begun to extend the range of our patrol bo.~s by'canductinq 
multi-unit law enforcement patrols,. well offshore. fo.r: UP- to ten day 
periods, using seagoing buoy tenders as. '"mcth~rshi~ for: fuel, water. 
spare p'arts, and communications relay. This has worit!d' well in: the
past and will be used more extensively in the future. 

The Coast Guard also responds in a timeLy fashion to intelligence 
which indicates the presence, in Eighth Dis.trict wat:ers-, of a drug 
laden vessel or smuggling operation. Our asse.ts, arl\!' al:iifu deployed an 
joint operations with other agencies from federal~ &tate and local 
govenments. We maintain a strong liaison program with· the other 
federal agencies involved in narcotics activit~es such as the Drug 
Enforcement Administration, U. S. Customs ServlC6, Bureau of Alcohol 

'T,obacco and Firearms .. and the Federal Bureau of Investigation • 
. rJ.aison officers have been det;.ailed to the Orqani.zed. Crime Drug 
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Enforcement Task Forces in the core cities of Houston, st. Louis and 
Atlanta. Each of these Task Forces has jurisdicion within some part 
of the Eighth District. Having liaison officers on-site ensur'es 
effective coordination with the Task Forces. To ensure cooperation at 
the local and state levels, the Coast Guard is a member of the Law 
Enforcment Coordination Committees operating under the direction of 
the Justice Department in the various o. S. Attorney Offices. Our. 
local commands coordinate with their local law enforcement 
counterparts and this effort has borne fruit. One of our notable 
successes occurred on 15 January 1983 at Grand Isle, Louisiana. This 
case involved 12 tons of marijuana on the fishing vessel CAPT KORT • 
The original information came from the Federal Bureau of Investigation 
in the fall of 1982. Ultimately the Drug Enforcment Administration, 
the U. S. Customs Service, the Louisiana State Police, the La Fourche 
Parish Sheriff's Office and the U. S, Attorney in New Orleans became 
involved. A joint Command Post was established at the Eighth Coast 
Guard District Operations Center in New Orleans. A Local Command Post 
was established at the Coast Guard station at Grand Isle, Louisiana. 
With the FBI and DEA providing intelligence, Coast Guard aircraft 
located the CAPT KURT some 30G miles south of Grand Isle. Using Coast 
Guard and Customs aircraft, constant surveillance was maintained on . 
the vessel until its arrival off Grand Isle. DEA, Coast Guard and 
Customs Service boats were pre-positioned to track the suspect vessel. 
Late in the evening of the 15th of January, the vessel was seized and 
the people on board were arrested. Later that same evening, a contact 
boat with three persons onboard, apparently unaware of the 
interdiction, came alongside the CAPT KURT to begin transferring the 
load ashore. The vessel was seized and the three people promptly 
arrested. 

In a more recent case, on 15 August 1983, the Coast Guard, acting 
on intelligence provided by the Customs Service, interdicted the 
fishing vessel CAPTAIN BUCK with fifteen tons of marijuana and 
arrested two persons on board. What makes this particular case 
extraordinary is that the job of locating the vessel by aircraft fell 
bo the Air Force. Under the terms of the recently signed Coast 
Guard/Air Force Memorandum of Agreement, Air Force resources were 
requested. Approval of such an action must be made at the Secretary 
level in the Department of Defense. The response was very timely. An 
Air Force C-130 aircraft was sent to the probable location of the 
vessel and pinpointed its position, course, and speed for interdiction 
by a Coast Guard cutter cruising in the area. This type of support 
from the Department of Defense made the difference between success and 
failure in this case. Since the clarifications of the Posse Comitatus 
Act by Public Law 97-86, the Defense Department has provided the Coast 
Guard excellent support in drug interdiction. Their assistance is a 
welcome addition in our fight against the drug smuggler. 
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In the past several years the drug smugqI.iaqpr:obI_ by vessel ill 
this area appears to have been reduced. I attl:ibute the- red\lCtion to 
the blockade of the Yucatan Pass between Cuba and Mexico, tbe primary 
route to Gulf Coast Ports, by the Southeast u.s. Task Force and ita 
successor, the Na tional Narcotics Border IntercfictioD' sr..tar, wtdeb' 
has forced the maritime smuggler to other areu or: ot:h1tr means .ucb, •• 
aircraft or overland routes. 

That concludes my prepared testimony Mr. Chairman. r am prepar~ 
to answer any questions you might have. 

J 

I 
I 

I 
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Answers to questions raised in Mr RANGEL' 
November 18, 1983: • s letter t~ ADM GRACEY dated 

1. What is the amount of th C ' 
the 8th Coast Guard Districtef oast ~uard appropriations assigned to 
the amount of the 1984 reqUestO~l:~~ed°~o;i:~:1r!:~~:?1989-1983 and 

ANSWER: Eighth District 0 . peratlng Expenditures: 

FY 1998 
FY 1981 
FY 1982 
FY 1983 
FY 1984 (planned) 

$68,754,399 
$75,718,738 
$89,662,434 

$U4,737,875 
$115,297,247 

NOTE: FY 1984 pI ed 
salaries and th ann eXpenditures include an estimated $69M for 

o er dir~ct costs to be funded by CGHQ. 

Q 
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2. What are the narcotics threat assessments or othe~ written 
justifications prepared,by the appropriate coast Guard authorities to 
support the appropriations and requests for the Eighth Co.ast Guard 
District? 

ANSWER: Due to the dynamics involved in smuggling today, threat 
assessments are invalid even as they are published. Some of the 
factors affecting an assessment are changes in' growing conditions, 
domestic cultivation, demand, and smuggler methods as they react to 
law enforcement tactics. A detailed narcotics threat assessment was 
prepared for the Coast Guard by the El Paso Intelligence Center (EPIC) 
in September 1981. points that remain pertinent are provided here. 

Intelligence reports from Florida suggested that violators were 
feeling the presr.ure of increased law enforcement acti.vities directed 
at maritime smugglers and that some organizations would be moving off
loading operations to areas with less enforcement activity. In 
conjunction with this, some Florida-based smugglers expressed an 
interest in shifting part of their operations to various ports along 
the Louisiana and Texas coasts. 

The Texas coast from Port Arthur to Corpus Christi is most suitable 
for this type of smuggling activity. The coastline south of Corpus 
Christi, howeve~, is blocked by a natural and continuous land barrier, 
padre Island, which stretches past Port Isabel to the southernmost tip 
of Texas and is therefore, not generally considered attractive for 
aaritim~ smuggling. 

Texas, like most Gulf coastal states, has a long coastlin'e which 
exceeds6~0 miles of tidewater and is fed by many navigable rivers and 
bays. However, the fact that these ports are roughly 5gg-6gg miles 
farther from Colombia than Florida (the primary target of smugglers) 
and that inherent navigational and weather problems precluded 
effortless operations, forced violators to modify the traditional 
mothership (coastal freighter) modus operandi. Shrimp boats became 
the primary contact and mothership vessels destined for the Texas 
coast and the Colombian islands of Serranilla and Misteri'osa emerged 
as transshipment points. 

The shrimp business in Texas produces a sizable yearly catch, with the 
Freeport area being the most significant port, and the locale was 
found to be most commonly used by violators for off-loading 
operations. This industry provides marine smugglers with a multitude 
of privately-owned docks and marinas throughout the area. In some 
cases, marina operators and shrimp dock owners have been involved in 
off-loading schemes. 

The Drug Enforcement Agency, Customs Service, and Texas Department of 
Public Safety have all allocated resources which focus on the maritime 
smuggling problems Texas is experiencing. Only through continued 
coordina.tion of these elements and the resultant production of high 
quality intelligence data submitted to EPIC can the true extent of 
Texas-based and targeted actiy~~y be monitored. 

-------------------------.---------------- -----------------------------------------------------------------.---. 
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i989~;;3iS the total number of Coast Guard' 
duties in ~~: ifgO~~~edcoafsOtr 1984 assigned to ~:~~~~nel r!0r fheal years 

Guard District? me W Enforcement 
ANSWER: 

4 medium endurance cutt 
III patrol boats (19 ers (70 crewmember.s each) 
11 stations, each wi~~ewmembers each) 

21 and t a complement of about 
Air station New ow~ or three utility bOIl,t:s 
A~r Station Houst~n eans 
AlI: Station Corpus Christi 
CCGDEIGHT (oil) staff 
GULF NNBIS CENTER staff 
SOUTHWEST NNBIS CENTER staff 

TOTAL 

.u;:u
lI!:nro. 

281r 
11'11 

231 
113 
B· 
n 

:J 
1. 

3" 

aag 
From time to time th 
liM~ted law enfor~e~en~rm~::~~rces are deployed that p&rf~an some 
navlgation teams) that are not n (such as bouy tenders and Aids to 
of the Coast GUard' l" :epeated in the above t bl 
!=:i:fghth Dist:ictSa~~ ;~l~;s~~~i~~:~e~t of fPeratio~s,e~o ~:~sin 
h bme narcotlcs interdiction H 0 mar time law enforcement or 

ave een assigned the t k • owever, all units and 
resources they have at t~:iro~i~~~a1~terdiction utilj%in:-!:~~~:;r 
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4 .• , What is the number of seizures and ~mountlS of. heroin, hashish, 
marijuana, cocaine and other controlled substances taken by the coast 
Guard for fiscal years 198"-1983 and 1984 to date in the Eighth Coast 
Guard District? 

ANSNER: coast Guard marittme narcotics seisura. i~ the Kightb 
District: 

FY 198" 

FY 1981 

FY 1982 

FY 1983 

FY 1984 

4 vessels 
112.5 tons of marijuana 
S2 arrests 

21 vessels 
274." tons of marij~na 
98 arrests 

4 vessels 
29." tons of marlJuana 
45 kg. (98 lb.) of pure crystal cocaine 
~ gallon of hash oil 
36 arrests 

5 vessels· 
61." tons of marijuana 
22 arrests 

1 ve~sel 
marijuana residue only 
B arrests 

The seizures and arrests listed above were all made within· the. Eiq!Jth 
District either exclusively by coast Guard units and personnel, or: by 
Coast Guard resources assisted by another agellCl!. 

When underway on maritime narcotics interdiction patrol.p Eighth 
District WHEC's invariably, and WPS's occasionally, operate within 
Seventh District waters under Seventh District cont%·o1~ .!NCh of" the 
fruit of their activity is, therefore, assigned to th& statistic. 
generated by the Seventh District. 
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5. (a) 'Nlat teclmiques does the Coast Guarq mploy to detect and apprehend drug 
srugglers in .the Eighth Coast (bard District? 

ANSVER: To avoid ccnprt'mising the teclmiques and tactics _ use to interdict the 
DliU'itime narcotics traffic tlu-ough the Gulf, my policy is to avoid discussirJg spe
ci fic tactcs or operations or certain cases. Generally speaking, wi thin the 
Eighth District, Coast (hard uni is respond to aightings of suspicious vessels and 
activi ty~ patrol those areas knCNitl or suspected to be preferred by maritime oar- . 
cotics saigglers; and develop and respond to narcotics S11lggUng intelligence fratl 
all sources, especially other law enforcenent agencies. 

(b) Are the resources available to the Chast Guard in this regard adequate? 

~: Olr resource ~se is adequate, given the overall national priori ties 
am the availability of funding. However, the Coast QJard's objective is to make 
long tel1D mari Ume narcotics S11lgg1 ing lD1econcmlcal. To reach this level of in
terdiction requires a coordinated federal effort v.bich addresses all transporta
tionmodea and effectiveJy utilizes all available intelligence. 

(c) ~t trends have you observed regarding drug trafficking along the Texas 
Gulf Coast particularly in the Corpus Olristi/Brawnsville area over the last three 
years (1980 to date)? 

ANSYER: The Texas Gulf Coast between Brownsville omd Corpus Olristi is not as 
popular with drug swgglers as the Mississippi Delta and Florida panhandle because 
Texas does not have the maze of bayous and inlets found along the upper :o;oast. 
The mari t!me tr~fficking act ivi ty along the Texas coast appears to have markedly 
decreased because of the bloCkade of the Yucatan Olannel. We al so know frem re
Hable information that coastwise narcotics trafficking exists betv.een Texas and 
the other stat!'ls bordering on the G:1lf of Mexico. 
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. QUESTIONS ~ND ANSWERS 

Q. HOW DOES NNBIS FUNCTION IN THE GULF REGION? 

A. NNBIS' FUNCTIONS AS A COORDINATIN.G AGENCX FOR CASES INVO.LVING DRUG 

INTERDICTION AT THE BORDEi. THE CHARTEg IS ~E.Y LI"ITED~WE DO NOT DO 

DOMESTIC ERADICATION, WE DO NOT COND.UCT INVESTIGATIONS, WE DO NOT MAKE 

STREET BUYS AND WE ARE NOT TARGETING MAJOR CRIMINAL ORGANI~ATIONS. 

THOCE TASKS ARE PROPERLY THE PROVINCE OF THE DRUG ENFORCEMENT AGE~CY 

AND THE ATTORNEY GENERAL'S DRUG ENFORCEMENT TASK FORCES. AN NNBIS CASE 

GOES SOMETHING LIKE THIS: INFORMATION IS RECIEVED FROM AN INTELLIGENCE 

SOURCE THAT A LOAD OF CONTRABAND NARCOTICS IS COMING INTO THE U.S. 

THROUGH THE GULF REGION. THE INTELLIGENCE INFORMATION COORDINATION 

CENTER PROCESSES THE DATA AND ATTEMPTS ~O CONFIRM VIA OTHER MEANS. 

liPON COMPLETION OF PROCE~SIt!G_,. THE __ I.NFOFiMATION IS GIVEN TO THE 
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OPERATIONS INFORMATION CENTER. THE OPERATIONS INFORMATION CENTER THEN 

DETERMINES FROM ·T~t.!! STATUS OF RESOURCES WHAT AGENCY HAS ASSETS IN THE 

BEST POSITION TO INTE RDICT THE TARGET. THAT AGENCY IS CONTACTED AND 

REQUESTED TO TAKE ACTION. IF ONE AGENCY'S ASSETS ARE NOT SUFFICIENT, 

OTHER AGENCIES ARE BROUGHT INTO THE PICTURE AND PUT IN TOUCH WITH THE 

CONTROL AGENCY. WHO IS THE CONTROL AGENCY DEPENDS ON THE TYPE OF 

INTERDICTION AND THE LOCATION FOR INTERDICTION. 

Q. WHAT ARE THE COMPONENT AGENCIES? 

A. THE COAST GUARD, CUSTOMS SERVICE, DRUG ENFORCEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL 

BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION, BORDER PATROL, IMMIGRATIONS AND 

NATURALIZATION SERVICE, ARMY, NAVY, MARINE CORPS, AIR FORCE, NEW 

ORLEANS POLICE DEPARTMENT, LOUISIANA STATE POLICE AND LIAISON OFFICERS 

QESIGNATED WI:J,'H THE ALABAMA BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION! MISSISSIPPI 

BUREAU OF NARCOTICS, AND TEXA. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY. IN THE 

., 
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GULF REGION, I HAVE F"ORMED A BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO ADVISE ME ON POLICY 
DERIVED FROM ALL POSSIBLE SOURCES. 

" MATTERS. IN ADDITION TO THE AGENCIES MENTIONED ABOVE THE U. S. 

ATTORNEY IN NEW ORLEANS, THE BUREAU OF ALCOHOL, TOBACCO, AND FIREARMS, 
Q. HOW DO THE COMPONENT NNBIS AGENCIES OPERATE IN THEIR RESPECTIVE 

AND THE INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE ARE ALSO MEMBERS. 
NNBIS ROLES VERSUS THEIR NORMAL OPERATIONS AS INDEPENDENT ENTITIES? 

j 

Q. WHAT SPECIFICALLY DOES THE ADMIRALS ROLE AS COORDINATOR ENTAIL? 

Ii 
~ ! I 
;\ fJ 
! 

J 
A. LET ME ANSWER THAT BY SAYING THIS FIRST: NO NNBIS PARTICIPANT GAINS 

I 
1 
.~ 

ANY AUTHORITY OR POWER BY IT'S PARTICIPATION NOR DOES IT LOSE ANY 
, 
.i 

A. THE REGIONAL COORDINATOR'S FUNCTION IS: ESTABLISHING AND OPERATING l 

! 
~ 

AUTHORITY OR POWER. NNBIS HAS NO AUTHORITY TO DIRECT ANY AGENCY TO 

n. 

" THE CENTER FOR THE GULF REGION, CONDUCTING LIAISON WITH THE FEDERAL 
11 
it 
!i 

TAKE ACTION, WE ONLY MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS AND HELP PROCURE RESOURCES. 

LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES THROUGHOUT THE GULF REGION, CONDUCTING 

LIAISON WITH THE GOVERNORS OF THE STATES AND THE STATE AGENCIES 

RESPONSIBLE FOR DRUG ENFORCEMENT, VISITING. TH<: VARIOUS MILITARY 

~OMMANDS LOCATED IN THE GULF REGION TO DETERMINE THEIR POTENTIAL ROLE 

'i Ij 
n 
~ J, 

II 

~ 
ij t 
~ 
"I 

II 
'I 

II 
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~ 

WHAT IS DIFFERENT IN NNBIS IS THAT EVERYTHING HAS BEEN PUT TOGETHER IN 

ONE PLACE: THE STATUS AND LOCATION OF RESOURCES, THE INT~LLIGENCE FROM 

ALL LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES AND THE NATIONAL INTELLIGENCE COMMUNITY, 

AND AN IMPROVED PROCESS FOR ACCESSING DOD ASSETS. THE RESPECTIVE 

I 
l' 

.IN NNBIS, ENSURING THE EFFORT TO INTERDICT DRUGS IS COORDINATED SO 
AGENCIES STILL MAKE ARRESTS, SEIZURES, AND CONDUCT SEARCHES AS BEFORE 

THAT MAXIMUM EFFORT IS EXERTED AGAINST A GIVEN TARGET AT ALL TIMES, 1 
1 

BUT ON A COORDINATED BASIS. 

ENSURING THAT OUR TACTICAL INTELLIGENCE ~ICTURE FOR THE GULF REGION IS 

\ 
35-584 0-84-13 

, 
I" 
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Q. PLEASE DISCUSS THE APPROPRIATIONS, RESOURCES INCLUDING MANPOWER AND· 

EQUIPMENT, NARCOTICS SEIZURES (AMOUNTS AND VALUES), AND NEEDS OF NNBIS 

PERTAINING TO THE TEXAS/MEXICAN BORDER REGION AND THE CORPUS 

CHRISTI/BROWNSVILLE COASTAL REGION. 

A. MY REGION STOPS AT BROWNSVILLE AND DOES NOT GO WESTWARD FROM THERE. 

THE US/MEXICAN LAND BORDER IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE SW REGION OF 

NNBIS IN EL PASO SO I CAN NOT SPEAK TO THAT AREA. NNBIS OWNS NO 

RESOURCES OR ASSETS. THE PARTICIPATING AGENCIES IN NNBIS ONLY 

CONTRIBUTE MANPOWER AND FUNDING TO MAN THE NEW ORLEANS CENTER. THE 

CONSTRUCTION COST OF THE NEW ORLEANS CENTER WAS BORNE BY THE COAST 

GUARD AND WAS APPROXIMATELY $400,000. EACH AGENCY PAYS ITS OWN 

EMPLOYEE SALARIES AND TRAVEL COSTS. THE ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET FOR 

THE NEW ORLEANS CENTER IS AGAIN MOSTLY PAID BY THE COAST GUARD AND 

AMOUNTS TO APPROXIMATELY $150,000 PER YEAR. THE OPERATING COSTS 

INCLUDE SPACE RENTAL, OFFICE EQUIPMENT AND COMPUTER MAINTENANCE, 
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TRAVEL AND TRAINING COSTS, AND TELEPHONE AND TE~ETYPE· SERVICES •. 

. THE GULF REGION HAS TWELVE PERSONS FROM THE COAST GUARD, EIGHT FROM 

CUSTOMS, TWO FROM DEA, TWO FROM NEW ORLEANS POLICE DEPARTMENT, ONE 
I 

FORM THE BORDER PATROL, ONE FROM THE LOUISIANA STATE POLICE, AND ONE 

EACH FROM TH~1 ARMY, NAVY, AIR FORCE, AND MARINE CORPS. NNBIS 

PARTICIPATING AGENCIES HAVE SEIZED AS OF 2~ NOVEMBER 77.5 TONS OF 

MARIJUANA, 1806 POUNDS OF COCAINE,S POUNDS OF HEROIN, FOUR AIRCRAFT, 

AND NINE VESSELS, 55 ARRESTS HAVE RESULTED FROM THE SEIZURES. VALUE OF 

THE CONTRABAND IS ESTIMATED AT A CONSERVATIVE 260 MILLION DOLLARS. 

NNBIS NEEDS FOR THE GULF AREA ARE: IMPROVED LOW LEVEL RADAR CAPABILITY 

FOR DETECTING I~.lCOMING AIRCRAFT AND IMPROVED DOMESTIC AND FOREIGN 

INTELLIGENCE INFORMATION CONCERNING THE MOVEMENT OF NARCOTICS ACROSS 

OUR BORDERS. 

... 
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STATEMENT OF J. WILLIAM CARTER 
DEPUTY REGIONAL CHIEF. BORDER PATROL 

SOUTHERN REGION. DALLAS. TEXAS. BEFORE 
THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES SELECT 

COMMITTEE ON NARCOTICS ABUSE AND CONTROL 

The Immigration and Naturalization Service is an agency of the Department of 
Justioe and is responsible for ad~inistering and enforcing the immigration and 
nationality laws of the United States. We have two basic functions: 

1. To insure that all persons entering into or remaining in the United 
States are enti tled to do so. under 1 aw. and 

2. To provide publio services in the form of processing various 
applications for admission. petitions for naturalization and Similar 
other benefits under the immigration and nationality laws. 

\ohlle the Immigration and Naturalization Service has never been authorized 
by statute to enforce federal drug laws. we do encounter drug smugglers 
incidental to the performance of our duties regardin g the entry of 
aliens into the United States. This is eVidenced by the 1.516 narcotics 
seizures valued at $35.560.963. having been made along the Texas-Hexican border 
over the past three years. 

In fiscal year 1981, the Immigration and Naturalization Service was responsible 
for 6211 narcotic seizures along the Texas-Mexican Border. The value of those 
seizures was $7.697,445. A total of 82 deportable aliens were involved in the 
smuggling of narcotics during that same period of time. 

Listed below are the cumulative totals of narcotic seizure. amounts seized 
and estimated values of S(·~I'Zures made by INS during fiscal year 1981. 

Type of 
Seizures 

Marijuana (lbs.) 

Heroin (oz.) 

Opi\IJI (oz.) 

Cocain e (oz.) 

Hashish (oz.) 

Dangerous drug 
pills (units) 

other 

Total 

No. of 
Seizures 

512 

-0-

25 

23 

41 

22 

6211 

Amount Est. Value 
Seized of Seizures 

17.895.95 2.837.373 

-0- -0-

.16 320. 

241.12 oz. 903,025 

8511.75 225.559 

134,422 169,134 

NIA 3,562,0311 

NIA 7,697,4115 
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In fiscal year 1982. 118 deportable ali~ns were involvsd in the smuggling of 
narcotics along the Te~as-Hexican Border. During that same period of time a 
total of 500 narootic seizures were made by INS. The following is a breakdown 
of the nlJllber of seizures. llllount seized'and estimated value of seizures made 
by the Immigration Servioe during that period of time. 

'lYpe of No. of Amount Est. Value 
Contraband Seizures Seized of Seizures 

Mar ijuana (lbs.) 426 15.1191.91 3.0311.783 

Heroin (oz.) 5 1.93 5.270 

~i \IJI (oz.) -0- -0- -0-

Cooaine (oz. ) 7 389.11 6.305.911 

HashiSh (oz. ) 10 21.05 7.0811 

Dangerous drug 
136.7111 1154.470 pills (units) 39 

other 13 NIA 186.855 

Total 500 NIA 9.9911.373 

In fiscal year 1983. the value of narcotics sei zed by INS along the Texas-
Mexican border was $17.869.1115.~1:;<1 please f~nd a quantitative analysis of 
the nunber of seizures, lIIIount seized and estimated value of seizure made. 

Type of No. of Amount Est. Value 
Contraband Seizures Seized of Seizures 

Marijuana (lbs.) 325 18579.51 13,709.111 

Heroi n (oz.) 26,000 

Opi\.lll (oz.) -0- -0- -0-

Cooain~ (oz. ) 28 1324.70 2,921.176 

Hashish (oz.) 6 1.54 526 

Dangerous drug 
130.036 1.209.8112 pills (units) 27 

other 5 NIA 2.490 

Total 392 NIA 17.869,145 
0 
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Drug traffic trends along the Texas-Mexican border over the past three years 
inclu:1ed the smuggling of drugs across the U.S./Mexican border principally by 
vehicles through U.S. ports of entry and to a lesser extent by pedestrians 
crossing illegally between ports of entry. A Significant amount of cocaine has 
been intercepted both east and west bound across the United States at Border 
Patrol traffic checkpoints, the smugglers in most cases being Colombians. 

, 
In October of 1983. Border Patrol Agents of the Sierra Blanca, Texas traffic 
checkpoint intercepted two Colombians in possession of 13 1bs. of cocaine 
valued at $418,000. Between the months of April thru October 1983, Agents 
assigned to t,he El Paso Border Patrol Sector were responsible for seizing a 
total of 45 1bs. of cocaine with a street value in excess of 10 million dollars. 

It is widely acknowledged that large nunbers of illegal aliens are successfully 
evading apprehension by the Border Patrol and other INS officers. The 
Administration supports a three-pronged solution to this problem. This 
approach. which was recommended by the Select Commission on Immigration and 
Refugee Policy, inc1u:1es enhanced BJrder Enforcement, penalties for employers 
who knowingly hire illegal aliens, and legalization of certain illegal aliens 
who have been here for a specified length of time. 

The Administration has not identified a specific level of resources appropriate 
for border control. We are, however, optimistic that immigration reform 
legislation will come to a vote in early 1984 and that sUitable funding will be 
requested upon passage of the legislation. 

Cooperation between INS and other federal agencies and between INS and state 
and local law enforcement entities is very good. 

INS cooperates with DEA and Customs in the EL Paso Intelligence center (EPIC), 
which maintains indicies of alien smuggling, fraudulent documents utilized by 
illegal entrants and private aircraft arriving from overseas. While having 
prime responsibility for the smuggling of aliens. INS has found that the 
mixing of drugs and people is the norm even in the case of small smuggling 
operations. Whether it is our Border Patrol Agents on the ground, inspectors 
at the ports of entry, or aircraft operational surveillance, we routinely 
receive support from EPIC and the other agencies, and in return provide 
information and assistance to them in our day-to-day operations. 

Cooperation with state and local enforcement agencies is the best it has been 
in many years. A directive issued by the Attorney General in the previous 
administration has be&n interpreted in some areas to discourage such 
cooperation. This was clarified last year and we have experienced a healthy 
responsiveness to our requests for assistance and initiatives for cooperation 
against smugglers. 

It should be noted that the administration has not identified a specific need 
which would enable INS to be more effective in apprehending suspected drug 
smugglers. However, through enhanced Border Enforcement our mere presence 
would insure greater control of the border, consequently resulting in the 
detection and apprehension of larger numbers of suspected drug smugglers. 

The effect of the National Narcotics Border Interdiction System on INS has been 
of a positive nature As a result of NNBIS a better flow of information 
between agencies now exists. Working relationships between federal and state 
agencies, as well as effective coordination of intellegence data, is a 
direct res~t of NNBIS. 
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County of Nueces 

December 8, 1983 

JAMES T. HICKEY 
IIIDII" 

P,o.IOXI~ PIIONI~ 

OOUUS CHJ.Jn1. TIXAS n40l 

Honorable Charles B. Rangel, Chairman 
U.S. House of Representatives 
Select Committee on Narcotics Abuse & Control 

Honorable Committee Members: 

PROBLEMS OF ENFORCEMENT: 

"LTU)O 
QoidoP ..... 

Enforcement efforts aimed at controlling narcotics abuse have not changed appreciably 
in the last century. Techniques have seemingly improved but this should be recognized 
as merely the sophistication that corresponds to the advances made in all other areas 
of our society. The fundamentals of enforcement still employed today arei:.he search 
warrant, development of informants, roadblocks of transportation routes, agents posing 
as criminals to buy (or sell) narcotics, and other traditional methods of investigation 
and enforcement. What 'nay at first seem innovative is usually, upon close inspection, 
and proper reflection, Just a spin-off from some old technique that has been enhanced 
by the assistance from modern technological systems. There may never be a truly 
revolutionary concept of enforcement that will once and for all eliminate na:rcotics 
abuse. I'm not sure that a radical departure fr~~ traditional methods is necessary. 
While the enforcement effort can and mllst be developed to it's highest potential, it 
alone is not the total answer. 

The recentl'l re-activated Coastal Bend }la.lor Crimes Task Force, which when completely 
organized, Will include 15 or more counties of South Texas. A recent polling of views 
of ~ ~fthe Sheriff's and Chiefs of Police of this Task Force, created an echoing 
of the problems which my own departm<mthas experienced: shortages of manpower, equip
ment and funds; decreased peraonnel le.;els of Federal enforcement agencies; lack of 
educational programs to forestall entry thto drug use; lack of specialized training 
for narcotics agents; and other operational deficiencies usually attendant to any 
law enforcement function that is less than reasonably successful. 

BACKGROUND OF ·PRESENT ABUSELEIJEL.: 

Three decades ago the incidence of narcotics abuse was negligible in this country. 
Because of parental conditioning, media condemnation of narcotics abusers, social 
convention that demanded conformity to decent standards of conduct, the traditional 
disapprovel by respected members of society and various other influences, Americans of 
all a~es would have sooner picked up a rattlesnake than to have used narcotics. All 
of these prevention factors have been subverted to varying degrees and rendered ineffec
tive in the last generation. 

Present attitudes which are characterized by permissiveness I hedonism and escapism 
have evolved, perhaps, out of the combination of extraordinary experiences of recent 
years; two costly Wl'''',1 which were not generally u!lderatood as to purpose; the break-

An Equ.rOppoitu;,lty ~mproy.r 
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down of family values as evidenced by the accelerating incidence of family break~uPi 
the irresponsible advocacy of narcotics use by ed'uclI:tors, psychologists, scientists, 
public officials and other respected fugures; the media representation of hedonistic 
pursuits as something not only acceptable but desirable; the decline of the church; 
immoral court decisions that not only facilitate but beg through example the pursuit 
of personal convenience; and, generally, a lack of moral leadership at all levels of 
the signigicant institutions of society Where mutual backscratching is the rule and 
morality the exception. We did not aPrive at this sorry state of affairs overnight, 
nor shall we retire from it quickly. 

PROP~~~ SOLUTIONS: 

I. While enforcement by itself is not the total solution, we must move forward in 
that area as though it were. 

I propose: 

A. The allocation of realistic levels of Federal manpower to those areas that 
experience and are most suitablfo to extensive importation of narcotics; 
assistance at the local level in equipment, funds, cooperation and communica
tions capabilities among agencies at all levels which can be best effected 
at the Federal level. 

B. In addition to the present criminal penalties of fine, imprisonment, confiscation 
snd import taxation, there should be imposed on the narcotics dealer a more 
comprehensive penalty that precludes the possibility of exemption from loss 
due to confiscation, for example, in the basis of the government's inability 
to prove that certain assets were :D.erived from narcotics profits. 

If a soized narcotics inventory were defined as ordinary income because of the 
known rapid turnover of the produot, then the street value of that inventory 
could be the basis for a tax levy. In other words, the fluid, negotiable 
naturo of a narcotic substance would make it the equivalent of cash and the 
mere possession would make it taxable as unreported ordinary income. A statute 
could provide for the legal presumption to ~10 r.efiI)e narcotics. Where now 
there are many assets excluded from confiscatio1l, none of them would escape 
a tax lien issuing from an IRS action. The deterrent effect would be consider
ably more than what the trafficker now faces as penalties. 

II. To say that enforcement is not enough is to demand the balance of the solution 
or at least some reasonable hypothesis that would merit consideration. In viewing 
the manner in which we arrived at a given place or circumstance can we not also 
consider the same vehicle for our return? The influences which caused the problem 
of widespread narcotics use can be applied in reverse fashion. At least some can. 
The harmfUl advice of professionals and other significant figures in the 1960's 
and 1970's exhorting stUdents to try marijuana, e.g. can be reversed (albeit, a 
generation later) by persons of today in that category who speak the truth about 
the dangers of narcotics but more importantly who express disapproval of their 
use. Many Who extolled the benefits of drugs earlier have reversed their position 
after having had the chance to study longitudinally the effects of narcotics in 
in the lives of users. But who hears their repudiation of their own earlier 
ignorance? The news media is not as attentive to the issue as they were when a 
forbidden act was being advocated by someone who by virtue of his position demanded 
attention and respect. 

I suggest 'tl-.at we fight fire with fire. That is, that in the same way in which 
Aii:ericans were exposed to bad example, bad advice, bad law-making, bad judicial deci
sions, wishy-washy sermons from the pulpit, leadership lacking in principles and 
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fortitude, impotent and uncaring parenting, let them now be exposed to the opposites 
in a mont positive' way wi,th the only neg'ative expression being our extreme disapproval 
of harmful practices. ' 

Historically, Americans have measured up to whatever emergency endangered their well
being. They can me~sure up to this present plague if proper leadership exists, if 
good example is set and encouraged by those whom they trust. 

This may sound so idealistic as to be worthy of filing alongside Alice in Wonderland, 
but I suggest it is entirely possible to estabUeh on a na.tional level a movement 
which would not only make our society aware of the need to regain its moral balance 
but would also instill in many of those whom we trust to lead, the courage to loudly 
and publicly disapprove of narcotics use. Approval helped to bring on the abuse. May 
not disapproval help end it? 

Such a program would be an ambitious undertaking and would cal:;' for resources not 
available at the local level in the organizational and communication requirements. 
At the Federal level much more is possible: All that is required to begin is leadership. 

Respectfully, 

y.J~Ye"""s""T'IS.-=-::::.~l,-[ 
eriff, Nueoe~ 

JTH/ff 

o 
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H. C. BAN~ER 
CH I EF OF POll CE 
CoRPUS CHRISTI POLICE DEPT. 

THE ISSUE OF DRUG TRAFFICKING AND DRUG ABUSE TODAY IS A MULTI-FACETED 

PROBLEM THAT AFFECTS A CCM1.JNITY IN A WINNER UNLIKE Pm OTI-ER CRIMINAL ACTIVITY. 

DRUG ABUSE SPANS GENERATION GAPS, CUTS ACROSS SOCIOLOGICAL AND SOCIQ-ECONa-lIC 

PLANES AND TOUCHES VIRTUALLY EVERY SEGMENT OF h-1ERICAN SOCIETY. SoUTH TEXAS 

AND CoRpus ~ISTI ARE CERTAINLY INLCUDED. 

INTELLIGENCE INFORMATION JNDIG,'\TES THAT AS A RESULT OF INTENSIFIED FEDEHAL 

EFFORTS TOWARD INTERDICTION OF MARINE AND AIR NARCOTICS SNUGGLING IN SoUTH 

FLORIDA, THERE IS A PROMBILITY THAT A SUBSTANTIAL PART OF THAT SMl..kJGLING 

ACTIVITY WILL BE, AND IS, RE'::DIRECTED TOWARD OTHER GULF CoAST AREAS. FURTHERf'IORE, 

THERE ARE RECENT INDICATIa-.JS THAT CONNECTIONS BET'tlEEN Soum TEXAS AND CoASTAL 

BEND FIGURES AND FLOOIDA DRUG TRAFFICKERS AND SUPPLIERS HAVE BEEN ESTABLISHED TO 

A MORE SIoNIFICANT DEGREE THAN IN THE PAST. THE COASTAL BEND, BECAUSE OF ITS 

FLAT CONTINENTAL SHELF AND REMOTE STRETCHES OF UNINHABITED BEACHES AFFORDS 

Sf'<'LIGGLING VESSELS A TOPOGRftPHICAL ADVANTAGE OVER fWlY QTHER MORE POPULATED AREAS. 

IN ~ITION, THE RLAAL AREA ADJACENT TO CoRPUS CffiISTI CONSISTS ~VUNLY OF 

ISOLATED FARM AND RANCH LAND THAT IS ESPECIALLY CONDUCIVE TO THE CONSTRUCTION 

AND MAINTENANCE OF CLANDESTINE AIRSTRIPS. BECAUSE OF THE GEOGRAPHICAL ADVANTAGES 

AID THE DISPARITY IN NIJ.1BERS OF LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL TO COVER THIS LARGE . 
T~ITORY, THE CoRPUS CI-RISTI AND CoASTAL BEND AREA CERTAINLY COULD BE CONSIDERED 

A PRi~VENUE FOR NARCOTICS SMUGGLING ACTIVITIES. "'" . , 

ALONG WITH BEING GEOGRAPHICALLY SUITED FOR SMUGGLING ACTIVITIES, CoRPUS 

CHRISTI IS ALSO THE FIRST MAJOR CITY WITH AN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT NORTH OF THE 

EASTERN TEXAS-frExlCAN BOODER. IN ADDITION, FACTORS sua; AS Cor-NENIENT WATER 

ACCESS, RAIL AND TRUCKING FACILITIES NORTH OF THE BORDER PATROL a;ECKPOINTS MAKE 

IT PLAUSIBLE TO CONSIDER CoRPUS CffiISTI AS AN ADVANTAGEOUS LINK IN THE OVERLAND 

DISTRIBUTION ROUTES OF. ILLICIT NARCOTICS THAT ARNESTINED FOR POINTS F.A.RTHER 

NORTH. As A RESULT, THE INCIDENCES OF TRAFFICKING IN" MARIJUANA, COCAINE, HEROIN, 
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AND ME'l1W1PHETAMINE IN om CITY ARE INCREASING. 

RECENT BUNPER CROPS OF CoCA PLANTS IN SoUTH A'vlERICA AND MARIJUANA AND 

POPPY t=IELDS IN MExICO, COUPLED WITH THE LAW ENFORCEMENT DEFICIENCIES AND 

POLITICAL INSTABILITY IN THESE COUNTRIES, HAVE LED TO THE INCREASIt\'G SUPPLY OF 

NARCOTICS AVAILABLE IN OUR AREA. BECAUSE OF THE GREATER QUANTITIES, THE PRICE 

OF THE DRUGS IS STEADILY DROPPING, Tf-l.EREBY INCREASING THEIR AVAILABILITY TO A 

GREATER NLMBER OF PEOPLE. FOR EXAMPLE, IN 1981, A KILOGRAM OF COCAINE IN 

CORpus CHRISTI WAS PRICED AT $75,OOJ. TODAY, THAT SAME KILOGRAM CAN BE PURCHASED 

FOR $4O,OOJ. IN ADDITION, THE COCAINE DISTRIBUTED ON THE STREETS LAST YEAR 

AVERAGED FRQ\1 BETWEEN 30 AND 40 PERCENT IN PURITY WHEREAS RECENT SEIZURES OF 

THE DRUG HAVE INDICATED A CONSISTENT PURITY OF OVER 80 PERCENT. SIMILAR 

STATEMENTS CAN BE MADE ABOUT RECENT HEROIN AND METHAf.1PHETAMINE SEIZURES. THE 

ENHANCED QUANTITY AND QLLI\LITY OF NARCOTICS CAN ONLY LEAD TO INCREASED TRAFFICKING 

ACTIVITIES IN THE FUTURE. OTHER FACTORS SUCH AS THE REDUCTION OF PERSONNEL IN 

THE LOCAL !fA OFFICE MAKE THE ROLE OF THE POLICE IN DRUG ENFORCEMENT DIFFICULT, 

AT BEST. 

As THE FEDERAL GOVERNr-'ENT HAS RECENTLY EXPERIENCED, SUCCESSFUL NJlRCOTICS 

ENFORCEMENT IN Pm AREA IS COSTLY, REQUIRING VAST RESOURCES OF f-lANPCMER AND 

MATERIAL IF THAT EFFORT IS TO PREVAIL. locAL JURISDICTIONS ARE HARD-PRESSED TO 

PROVIDE SUCH EFFORTS, ESPECIALLY IN THE FACE OF MUNICIPAL BUDGET CUTS AND REDUCED 

OR CANCELLED F8JERAL PROGRAMS SUCH AS TI£ LEAA AND OTHER FEll:RAL AND STATE 

PROGRAMS PREVIOUSLY IN EXISTENCE THAT WERE DESIGNED TO ASSIST MlA'lICIPALITIES IN 

LAW ENFORCEMENT EFFORTS. AnDING TO THE PROBLEM IS THE INCREASING SOPHISTICATION 

OF THE POPULATION THAT IS USING THE DRUGS. FOR EXAMPLE, THE RECREATIOOAL USE 

OF COCAINE BY PROFESSIONALS IS BECQ\1ING WIDESPREAD AND AS A RESULT, IT HAS BEC(1·1E 

DIFFICUlT FOR POLICE TO PENETRATE THE SOCIAL CIRCLES AND PROFESSIONAL RELATIONSHIPS 

THAT EXIST. IT IS ALSO CGf/ON IN SoUTH TEXAS FOR HEROIN AND NARIJUANA TRAFFICKING 

OOGANIZATIONS TO CONSIST EXCWSIVELY OF ENTI.RE FAMILIES, THEREFORE MAKING IT VERY 

DIFFICULT FOR POLICE TO INFILTRATE OR EVEN DEVELOP INFOO'-1ATION ABOUT THEIR ACTIVITIES. 
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fhID!ER, AS DIFFICLl.T AS TI-E PROBLEM M/l,Y SEEM, STEPS ARE BEING TAKEN TO 

CG1BAT IT. Foo EX.AJ1OLE, 'THERE ARE AN INCREASI~ NtJ.1BER OF DRUG EDOCATIONAL 

AND TREAlMENT PROGR.AMS IN EXISTENCE TODAY IN CoRPUS Ci-RISTI. TI-ERE FURTHER 

APPEARS TO BE A NEW EMPHASIS TO EDOCATE CITIZENS ~ DRUG ABUSE, TREAT 1H)SE 

INDIVIDUALS \'K) ARE AOOICTED TO DRUGS AND TO PROVIDE SERVICE AND INFQRMl\TI~ 

TO THE CG'MUNITY. FIJffi£RMJRE, AN AGGRESSIVE DRUG POLICY IS IN EFFECT IN TIiE 

LOCAL So{)()L DISTRICT 'THAT PROVIDES FOR l'WIDATOOY SUSPENSIONS FOR 1'HOSE STUDENTS 

\\HJ BRING ILLEGAL DRUGS ONTO C/lWUS. 

NEW LAWS HAVE BEEN ENACTED ~ 1'HE STATE LEVEL TO CQ'o1BAT THE INCREASI~ 

mUG PROBIB1 IN TEXAS 1HAT PROVIDE FOR ENIWICED PENALTIES FOR AGGRAVATED DRUG 

OFFENSES, AND FOOFEITtRE PROVISIONS 'THAT OFFER LAW ENFORCEMENT 'THE MEANS TO 

SEIZE ASSETS OF DRUG OFFENDERS IN CERTAIN TRAFFICKING OFFENSES. IN ADDITI~, 

A WIRETAP STATUTE HAS BEEN ENACTED 'THAT HAS PROVED TO BE A SUCCESSFUL TOOL 

AGAINST MAJOR DRUG TRAFFICKERS. 

THESE ENDEAVORS TO CCM3AT DRUG ABUSE AND NARCOTICS SMJGGLING CLEARLY. 

POINT OUT 'THAT IT IS OOT ONLY A POLICE PROBLEM BUT A SOCIETAL ONE. IF WE ARE 

TO BE SUCCESSFLl. IN O~ EFFOOTS TO SUBSTANTIALLY REDUCE ITS EffECTS ON ~ 

CITIES, IT IS ESSENTIAL Tf-VI.T WE ~ESS IT WITIiIN 'THAT SCOPE. (}.JLY WITH TI-E 

a:M3INED FORCES OF GOVERf«NT AND CITIZENS 'r.ORKING TOGETHFR WILL WE BE ABLE TO 

REALIZE 0lR GOAL. 
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF 

·ANDRES VEGA, JR. 

CHIEF OF POLICE 

BROWNSVILLE, TEXAS 

Initially I would like to extend my sincer~ thanks to Congressman 
Solomon Ortiz and Mr. Chares B. Rangel and this committee for having 
given me the opportunity to present testimony at this hearing. 

The citizens of Brownsville have always. faced a unique situation, 
perhaps equal only to cities in this coutnry that are located on the 
Mexican border, such as we are. Many will .argue that our geographical 
location may be an advantage to our commun~ty form a P~litical and 
economical view point. This can certainly be, a, point of much discussion 
considering the current and future economic situation .in the Republic 
of Mexico. Without a doubt ~he current economic crisis in Mexico has 
forced many Mexican citizens to move out of that country and into the 
United Stated, searching for better living conditions. By the same token 
we anticiapte that because of the economic crisis in Mexico many Mexican 
citizens along with American~ will conspire into posstble drug trafficking 
when 'otherwise they would be legitimately employed. Brownsville like other 
cities along the Texas - ~exico Border is a conduit for Drug Trafficking, 
and I'believe statistics will certainly varify ~his statement. 

The City of Brownsville has a population of about 90,000 citizens. 
The Brownsville Chambe~ of Com~erce has estimated that we have ~pproxi
mately 50,000 winter tourist between September - Apri~' of each year. 
Additionally, the sister city'of Matamoros, Mexico has an estimated 
population of 350,000 citizens. A great number of these people either 
work. shop transact business, or simply visit Brownsville on a daily 
basis. Conservatively speaking I venture to say that there are 130,000 
people in Brownsville each day of the year. 

Geographically the city of Brownsville covers about 30 square miles 
and we currently have 112 sworn officers twenty (20) of which are super
visors and mid-managers. Additionally we have 33 civilian or support 
personnel. This. to say the least. is far from adequate to cover every 
given situatuion where police service is required. The number of calls 
for service is such that many times citizens may have to wait as long as 
thirty (~O) minutes before an officer can assist them with their problem. 
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This brings us to the issues under consideration by this committee. 
in order to effectively launch a full scale and eff~ctive drug enforce
ment program within our City it would take about twenty (20) officers 
to work the street drug peddler~ and bulk smugglers. The only unit 
we currentl~ have is the Cameron County Organ~zed Task Force. This 
force consists of two (2). fiel~ o~ficers, a super~isor, a~~·a secretary. 
This is hardly a beginning in. trying to effectively deal with our narcotics 
traffickers in our jurisdiction. 

Because of our, current economic situation we have not been able to 
hire additional personnel to reinforce oU,r ranks an'd adequately serve 
the day to day activities of police service mu~h le~s to implement a 
specialized adequately manned and fully equipped narcotics enforcement 
unit. Over the years our Crime Task Force has in combination with the 
various Federal Law Enforcement agencies, addressed drug traffi~king. 
However~ this system appears hardly adequate since thes~ Federal agencies· 
are not adequately staffed either. Even so, a great number of cases have 
been made with their combihed efforts and they are to be commended for 
what they have accomplished with limited resources. 

How can we as Law Enforcement officers address the ever growing 
problem of narcotics and drug'trafficking? 

Gentlemen, this has been and will continue to be a very serious and 
important question to all in Law ~nforcement and certainly to the citizens 
that we serve. Initially in the late 60's the Omnibus Crime Control Act 
through the Law Enfor~ement Assistance Administration provided Federal 
funding to assist Law Enforcement in their efforts against the ever in
creasing crime problem in the Unite States. The act served its purpose 
well, with perhaps some reservation. 

Since the abolishment of the Law Enforcement Assistance Administration 
the state of Texas has now tak~n on the responsibility of categorical grant 
assistance to local Law Enforcement agencies. However, the same criteria 
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to determine how these funds are distributed to the various regions remain 
basically the same as they were when Law Enforcement Assistance Administra
tion was in effect. The funds are distributed on the basis of population 
density and the statistics shown by the uniform crime report of each 
individual region. Of course we find more people and higher crime figures 
in the metropolitian areas of this state -- and I have no argument with 
these areas getting their share of government assistance for Law Enforce
ment and other criminal justice projects. But they do receive a larger 
portion of available funds based on the criteria used for distribution. 
However, let me point out again that we on the U.S. - Mexican border do 
have a unique law enforcement problem. I said earlier in my testimony 
that alth~ugh we only number about 90,OOO citizens in Brownsville it has 
not bee taken into consideration that we have 50,000 winter visitors in 
our area form September to Apri1~ and that we have a sister city on the 
Mexican side of the border with 350,000 citizens and a great precentage 
of them commute to and from Brownsville. Many come inot our community 
for legitimate purpos~s, others do not. 

I must say that Federal, State, and local Law Enforcement agencies 
on the U.S. - Mexican border are the "Front line" units combating the 
ever growing narcotics and dangerous drugs smuggling into the this state 
and the entire country. We must. never forget that every ounce of heroin; 
every kilo of marijuana and pound of cocaine that comes through our defense 
at the border will eventually end up being used by some young man or 
woman somewhere in this country. Therefore, it is imperative that the 
Law Enforcement agencies along the border are properly staffed and fully 
equpped to effectively address this menace that is so ~dversly impacting 
on our way of life 

propose that We collectively, must do four things: 

(1) Federal financial assistance must be provided 
to border cities in order that a community can 
develop and implement a good narcotics enforce
ment program. These communities should consider 
the formulation of a regional Task Force and 

". 
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specifically program the target areas. I f~el 

that local Law Enforcement can be more effective 
since the officers will have full and complete 
knowl edge of the peopl e and. envi roment they wi 11 
be working with. 
When a agency has limited resources to do a 
job its effectiveness subsides accordingly. 

(2) Federal agencies must consider assigning sufficent 
.personnel and equipment to the border inste~d of the 
Metropolitan areas -- to increase the effectiveness 
and substantially reduce the chan.ces for narcotics 
traffi~kers getting through with their illicit cargoes. 
In the same instance the mutual cooperation between 
Federal, State, 'ana local agencies is a must. Without 
cooperation between Law Enforcement agencies we stand 
to lose the "War" against narcotics traffickers. 

(3) United States attorneys offices and state District 
Attorneys must also be provided with additional 
personnel, and financial resources in order for them to 
vigo'rously prosecute violators. This will assure 
arrest and timely prosecution in these matters. 

(4) A narcotics and drug abuse program should be developed 
at the elementary level; in order that youngsters at a 
very early age begin to learn and understand the pro
blems they will be faced with Whould they someday be 
exposed to this type of activity. 

Gentlemen, I have provided you with copies of our narcotics enforce
ment statistics in this report. I feel that the report is self explanatory 
and provides you with an idea of what we have to deal with in our geograph-
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ical area. 

In closing I must re-emphasize that one solution to our narcotics 
and drug abuse problem is to address it as close to the source as possible. 
In order to do this we need the necessary resources to carry out this 
mission. Plain. simple reasoning will dictate that keeping narcotics 
and dangerous drugs out of the country or minimizing their smuggling 
will prevent their distribution to our citizens. 

I ask you, gentlemen~ to take these matter under consideration. We 
are' prepared to do more in narcotics enforcement, but we need assistance. 
Narcotics and Drug Abuse in our society impacts on all of Us either 
directly or indirectly. Federal assistance to local agencies for the 
purpose of enforcing narcotics laws is just another method of appro
piating funds of the defense of our countrys' welfare. 

85-584 0-84-14 
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For Fiscal Year 1981 - 1982, the Task Force Unit in 
a combined effort with other agencies investigated a total of 
82 narcotic ahd dangerous drug related cases. A total of 105 
arrests Were made as a result of the combined investigative 
efforts. Seizures of controlled substance directly related to 
these investigation are catagorized as follows: 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

Marihuana 
Heroi n 

- 3.956 pounds - 7 ounces 
- 21 pounds ! ounce - 16.9 grams 

Cocaine - 16 pounds 13 ounces 
Other Dangerous Drugs - 803 hits LSD 

Statistics for the Fiscal Year 1982 - 1983 reflect the following! 

~ota1 Narcotics & Dangerous Drugs Cases Investigated 76. 
ota1 Arrests results of these investigation 78. 

Total Seizures related to these investigaions--:-
(a) Marihuana - 6,208 pounds - 10 ounces 
(b) Cocaine - 7! pounds - ! ounce - 3! grams 
(c) Other Dangerous Drugs - 49,188 Units (2,301 hits 

of LSD) combined in Units. 
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CONGRESSIONAL HEARING 
ON 

DRUG ABUSE 

December ~2, 1983 
Corpus Christi, TX 

Dr. Maria Luisa Garza 

I am Dr. Maria Luisa Garza, Executive Director of the 

Gulf Coast Council of La Raza, Inc., a charter affiliate of 

the National Council of La Raza in Washington, D.C. The 

Gulf-Coast Council of La Raza is a community-based organiza

tion delivering social services in the areas of (1) Education 

for School Dropouts; (2) English as a Second Language; (3) 

Training and Employment for Handicapped Youth; (4) Prevention 

of Tbo-Early Childbearing; (5) Prevention of Drug. Abuse. 

A Drug Abuse Prevention Program is composed of all those 

activities that act as an intervention network to inform, 

educate, guide, protect, and stop youngsters from becoming 

involved in drug abuse. 

The propensity and inclination to use drugs transcends 

all ethnic, economic, sexual, educational, and social back-

grounds. Young people from the barrio, from the ghetto, 

from middle class and from the jet set groups have been and 

are experimenting with drugs with frightening consistency. 

The response from the public toward drug abuse has not been( 

unlike the general response to other potential problems 

facing youth: Assuming the false notion that these problems 

occur to other people only, resort to p.unishment as a deterrant, 
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use the situation to obtain publicity taking minimal action to 

solve the problem, or provide treatment and rehabilitation 

when the crisis erupts. None of these approaches is going 

to make a real difference in keeping young people from using 

drugs. The real impact is in. the prevention of drug abuse. 

Drug Abuse Prevention Programs need .the support of the com

munity, the schools, the businesses, and the legislators. 

Drug Abuse Prevention programs need to be strenghten finan

cially, not at the expense of curtailing treatment and reha

bilitation programs, put as a priority measure to divert many 

youngsters from ever having to join a treatment and rehabili

tation program. society needs to become educated in the tre

mendous value a prevention program brings to. everybody, not to 

mention the benefits in terms of savings of tax dollars that 

are used in treatment programs and the pain and destruction 

drug addiction brings to individuals and to entire families. 

School districts in particular need to become more accepting 

and more cognizant of the psychological impact the specialists 

from a drug prevention program can make in their school popu

lation. School districts need to become more cooperative 

with community-based organizations that specialize in providing 

drug prevention assistance and education. 

For the past three years the Gulf coast Council of La Raza 

has offe~ed a d~~g prevention program to this community and 

surrounding areas. The grass roots people feel very grateful 

for the services we provide. These services include: 

i 
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1. Individual counseling in the language the family understands 
best or prefers to use as a medium of communication. 

2. Peer and group counseling in our center .for d~opouts 
in the homes, in the schools, (when aske·d). ' 

3. Family 70unseling including grandparents and grandchildren. 
Counsel1ng sessions are held in the home if preferred. 

4. Educational activities in. drug prevention with continuous 
follow-up activities to reinforce the material presented. 

5. Networking with other agencies to make referrals, if 
needed. 

6. Education in academic subjects leading toward obtaining 
a GED; or returning the youngsters back to their respective 
school districts after a period of readjustment. 

7. Employment leads,. preparation for entry-level employment 
skills, and job search. 

8. Recreational and social activities. 

Community-based organizations are better able to deal 

with students, dropouts, and "push-outs" than any other 

educational, judicial, or detention institution. This is 

true because we are in constant communication and direct con-

tact with ,the grass roots people, with parents of students 

participating in other programs, directors of other agencies, 

with the students we serve on a one-to-one bases, with members 

of the law enforcement and probation officers, and many other 

individuals who work with youth on a daily basis. Networking 

with participants in other programs becomes very important 

in the prevention of drug abuse activities. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. Appropiate sufficient financial support for the imple
mentation of drug prevention programs that deal directly 
with the potential users and deliver direct services 
to families, community groups, and other agencies. 

Cl 
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Allow community-based organizations to implement pro
grams of drug prevehtion and delivery services directly 
to the participants, potential users, families, classrooms, 
and other groups. Community-based organizations are the 
only other institutions that can work with youngsters 
school distructs cannot retain. . 

Drug Prevention Programs must involve the entire community 
and the entire family placing emphasis in drug education 
at a very early age, 

Drug Abuse Prevention Programs need stronger financial 
support to provide a more intensive ahda more extensive 
service in preventing youngsters from ever entering 
a drug treatment and rehabilitation program. The recidivism 
rate of treatment and rehabilitation programs is very 
high to ignore the prevention aspect of drug abuse. 

Raise the level of awareness concerning the benefits of 
prevention rather than asting under crisis by holding 
more meetings in the local communities and allowing 
the parents, the educators, the social workers, and 
the legislators to participate in these programs. 
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December, 198) 

REPORT OF ROBERT WARREN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, 
PALMER DRUG ABUSE PROGRAM -

BROWNSVILLE 

I am Robert Warren, A Brownsville resident, certified 
alCohol and drug abuse counselor and Director of the Pa.lmer 
Drug Abuse Program - Brownsville. I also servp. as Vice
president of the Valley Association of Alcohol and Drug 
Abuse Counselors and on th'e Regional Alcohol and Drug Ab,use 
Advisory Corwni ttee as well. 

My hope is to bring you my opinions on the topics you 
have outlined from three perspectivas I .. first as a drug addict~ 
and alcoholic who sought treatment in Texas, secorld as a client 
of different treatment facilities (private and public), and 
third as a prof~ssional in the field for six years, having 
worked in North Texas, West Texas, Central Texas and presently 
in South Texas. I have been employed by the Palmer Drug Abuse 
Program all of this time and in Brownsville fOl' the past eight 
months. PIlior.:,to my recovery, I made frequent trips to South 
Texas to acquire drugs. 

The first topic I would like to address is the 2xtent of 
drug abuse in the area. My experience has led me to conclude 
that younger children are beginning to experiment--nine, ten. 
and eleven-year-olds. The use of marijuana and alcohol has 
permeated every social and economic stratalto the-point tha~; 
it is accepted as normal behavior for teenagers to use 
marijuana and alcohol. In my opinion, othel' drugs that are 
being abused more all the time include valium, barbituates, 
amphetamines, sedatives, opiates and inhalants. These drugs 
are quite accessible in Mexico and by anyone of any age. This 
was well-documented by Pam Warrenburg. a local television 
newswoman, who did an expose on this subject. The teenagers 
I have worked with have all (with the exception of two), 
abused prescription medications secured in Mexico. This group 
consists of teens from twelve to fifteen, the average age 
being fifteen to sixteen. I consider this very serious. With 
all my experience. I have never lived in a geographic area 
where drugs were so easily acquired. 

The second question I would like to address is the 
inadequacy of available treatment in the Valley area. It is 
estimated that there exist approximately 27,500 alcoholics, 
exclusive of other kinds of chemical abusers. For every 
chemical abuser, there exists an average of four family members 
in need of treatment. This means that there are 110,000 people 
in need of treatment from the effects of alcoholism alone. 
There are approximately fourteen certified alcoholism and 
drug abuse counselors in this geographic area. The faciliUes 

505 Old Alice Road • ~row.!.ll!v!"0, To!<as 78520 (51 2) 544-3333 
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here leave oome rather large gaps. There is only one private in-patient 
treatment center in the area, and the cost factor involved makes this 
facili ty out of reach of thi, al'erage client. The MHMR system will not 
accept anyone with a medical condition, which in my opinion. is ludicrous. 
Most chemically dependent clients have definite medicRl needs other than 
their addictj on. On two occasitJns. refe·-rals I made wel'e rejected r;)r thi <: 
reasor.. Additionally. there are only a few programs which exif:t to ser'vic' 
the adcle:;cent client and family. These services are the hilmer Dl'~lg Abu:.:" 
Program, Fairlight, Alcoholics Anonymous and AI-Anon. Gnly three Hal :'-'.'-Iay 
houses exist in the Valley, and they work primarily with middle-aged 
alcoholics. Our experience has been that they are able to serve their 
immediate vicinity only. I find this information 'rery disheartening anel 
depre!;sine;. It seems that the treatment facilities and professional 
staff are also overwhelmed and disheartened. 

As far as prevention efforts, I am sorry to say my information is 
pretty much limited to t\1e immediate Brownsville area. In I:rowns'lil2.,~, 
three agencies exist that provide programs to the public for cheminal 
abuse prevention education. We at the Palmer Drug Abuse Frogram have been 
booked solid since we opened in April and have had to tUrn down speaking 
engagements due to the lack of staff and time. I believe that mor~ 
resources shOUld be allocated to this area. especially for prevention 
ed~cation. The programs available tend to be archain and not current as 
far as new modalities. I also feel that chemical abuse prevention 
Ii tera ture is not re~~d ily available d'.le to the expen:'lf!. The Pall~er Drug 
Abus'? fro':;r'am .nakes li terature availaole. but it .i.l:l so expensive that we :wv," 
already excc eded all budgeted ;'.mds c:esignated for thi s purpose. ('rrJeri!1t, 
pamlJhlc'ts frolo till' U.S. Gover"J!J.ent Frinting Office is prohibitive due to 
cost. l\iy suggesti on would be to make these available at a reduced CO!3t or 
free t·;) non-profit organizations. 

The following are suggeuted waJ's to attack the problel~s associ«tfld wi tit 
alcohol and drug abuse: 

a. Frovide legislative endorsement of the National ASRoci.ation of 
Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors as well as the Texas 
Associ~t on of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse CoUnselDrs. 

b. Cut the red tape, and invoke legislation allowing private industry 
'to open treatment facilities within a reasonable tjme. Also 
provide string-free funds to these facilities. 

c. Provide funds tllrough legislation for agencies willin~ to operate 
prevention programs (including school districts)· 

d. I';ost important of all. review the !llHlV.R system, its cost p.!'fectivenesc 
~nd, in my opinion. needless waste of funds on administr~tive 
functions instead of treu tmertt personnel. Also. in th is review 
of the i\~HMR system, I would encourage the review of staff educRtion 
of those disseminating chemical dependency information and 
administering treatment programs. It is my opinion that a lot 
of personnel in this systerr. are inadequately trained in this 
highly specialized field. I would also encourage the legislation 
necessary to rnake the ~'ex&.s Commission on Alcoholism broaden its 
scope and become the Texas Commission on Chemical Abuse. It is 
<1:1 antiquated notion that alcohol1sm and dru~ abuse are different. 

I hope that the information contained in this report is helpfUl to the 
commi ttee. I appreciate the invi ta tion to share my opinions and views. '..:'heJ' 
are drawn fron; my experience and 'consultation with other people fro'n this 
area. Again, thank you. and if I can be of further assist~nce, please 
feel free to call upon me. 

--------------~------
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Sincerely, 

Q.&~tW=! 
Robert B. Warren, CADAC 
Director, Brownsville PDAP, Inc. 

1. Regional Alcoholism Plan 1984. 

2. Texas Association of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors 
Director 1982-1983. 

3. Resources for families: Publication by the Valley Regional 
Council of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse. 

4. U.S. Government Printing office Cataloque of Alcohol 
Publications Available (MS210). 
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF DAVID M. POLLARD, M.A. 
TADAC, TRAINED PROFESSIONAL COUNSELOR 

KLEBERG COUNTY SUBSTANCE ABUSE PROGRAM, KINGSVILLE, TEXAS 

Dear Mr. Rangel, and members of the select committee on Narcotics 
Abuse and control of the U.S. House of Representatives 

I feel there is a big gap in the prevention, education, 
treatment, and rehabilitation efforts in drug abuse. More effort 
needs to be placed in the elementary school area where four cases 
of children using heroin have been reported this year. Last 
month a girl in the second grade was sent to treatment as she 
was "strung out" on amphetamines. In speaking to the Junior 
High Schools I have discovered many of the students are using 
qualudes and "yellows", of course it is understood they are drin
king alcohol and smoking marijuana. Now it seems the more immedi
ate danger is eight graders selling and giving drugs to sixth 
graders. In my hometown Kingsville, which has approximately 
30000 population, I would estimate there are about 300 users 
of heroin. Cocaine is the popular drug at this time and many 
young- people in their 20's are spending $20,000. per year on 
it. 

Some of the programs in place are a halfway house in Corpus, 
Detox Center, MHMR Substance Abuse Center - residential and halfway 
house ; private medical facilities - which cost $4000. to $10000. 
per month; small preventive and education programs; methadone 
clinic with out-patient and follow-up; and Harlingen Detox 
Center-two weeks to a month residential treatment. 

Many of the programs are concentrated in Corpus and ·the 
rural areas have little or no facilities or knowledge of how 
to handle these problems. Many of the medical problems of the 
addicts can't be treated due to county hospitals not accepting 
this expense. Drug abuse centers will not accept out of county 
addicts due to lack of room. Psychological expertise is at a 
minimum and there is a lack of family treatment. Employment 
skills are antiquated as they are, for example: a) welding for 
two months and one can't get a job or b) oil field related and 
the oil field is down. Many of the programs are alcohol related 
and will release an addict after detoxing rather than sending 
him through the psychological program. Addicts with psychological 
troubles or schizophrenia will not fit in programs for 
schizophrenics or drug programs. They are bounced back and forth 
and usually denied treatment where they most desperately need 
help_ When addicts come to me for help that they do not have 

....--:rrisurance and it is usually two or three weeks before the can 
get into residential treatment. Many of the children that are 
addicted cannot be reached. The~e is much denial in the schools 
and it is hard to approach the schools to help the children there. 

Drug education done in the schools is a form of treatment. 
Treatment in a facility begins by making the client aware of 
his problem, getting past the denial syndrome, educating the 
client of damaging effects of drugs, and getting commitments 
using group pressure to create a more realistic reality where 
a "drug free" behavior is acceptable. When approaching students 
in a clas sroom si tua tion where materials and facts are presented 
this is the beginning of treatment of a disease. Drug addiction 
as in alcoholism is a family disease. The identified patient, 
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the addict is a member of a Psychologically sick family. Most 
of these children cannot be reached other than in a classroom 
situation. Just one presentation is not enough. Students which 
react need further assistance in adjusting to their feeling 
learning to express them, and being able to get out from unde; 
family pressures through this education and understanding;. The 
schools need to ask families to go into treatment and require 
at. least two or three counseling sessions where referral or 
counseling is done by the school counselors. Many times the 
school counselors are logged down with duties and do no actual 
counseling. 

If a family comes in for treatment it is begun by discussing 
the identified patient's problems; Drug addiction and abuse. 
This is usually related to other problems in the family as problems 
of drug addiction or alcohol abuse of the parents or that the 
parents need to work on their relationship. The responsibili tv 
of becoming drug free must remain with the addict but othe~ 
relationships and behavior in the family must be treated. This 
treatment must be done in the area the addict is from and in 
his hometown where the family is residing. By enabling the 
children to understand the pressures they are under and not 
attempting to relieve family pressures by using drugs. Many 
addictions may be prevented. Many times the addict is the 
scapegoat of the family. When family pressures build and there 
is trouble in the parent's relationship, the addicted child or 
identified patient begin having trouble in school and using drugs. 
This shifts the attention away from the parental relationship. 
Preventive techniques need to help teachers, school counselors 
and administrators identify. these students and give them a way 
to enter these students into treatment where the Whole family 
and important friends of the client are involved. Counseling 
should be set up in the DEG centers. Many of these students 
are not identified as needing preventive treatment. They are 
straight A students and perform leadership roles at the school 
and are overcompensating for the trouble in their homes. These 
students will eventually become addicts as they leave high school 
or cO.llege and finally breakdown from the pressures built up 
by thJ.s reaction. Students need to learn to identify the role 
they play in their family. Are they having to play an adult 
role due to the absence of a father or being a member of a Single 
parent family. Are they the oldest child in the family? Family 
roles must be clarified in order to prevent addictions in the 
future. 

There is too much division between schools agencies, and 
law enforcement; and energies are wasted. Mo;e education of 
leaders of the communities, schools, and law enforcement are 
needed. Schools must somehow take on this responsibility of 
educating its students as to the psychological effects of family 
relationships and dissention among its members. It is useless 
to try to eduoate students that have no memories or ability to 
retain knowledge. There are problems in educating a top student 
in physics that is unknowingly overcompensating for family troUble 
at home and will eventually become an addict and be unable to 
use his Ph.D. Students, parents, educators, law enforcement, 
and the population in general must be made a\'lare of the crises 
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of the situation, the large numbers being affected, and the 
solution to the problem. Eighty-five percent of the people 
sent to prison will return to prison when released. Every area 
that works on this problem is important as in punishing "dealers"..
and people making a profit off others psychological illnesses 
and destroying what is left of their mental health for a profit. 
But cutting off drugs availability and sending people to prison 
or all rebounding as the psychological illness is sometimes cured 
but usually remains. The addict will find a way to get his drugs. 
The addict needs to be in a drug free environment for a short 
period of time where he will have no access to drugs and be 
completely detoxed. If it is not possible to have this facility 
the families must be trained to help take on his responsibility. 
Each community needs a facility of this sort. The family must 
be treated along with the addict. Most of the concentration 
is placed in the cities which have about half the population. 
The other half of the population goes untreated. This disease 
reminds one the reference in the bible where suffering is handed 
down from generation to generation. If the whole family is not 
treated much is not accomplished. The schools are the only places 
where children are available for treatment. The next step would 
be to identify problem students and call the family in for 
treatment. Many tj.mes the students are expelled from the school 
for long periods of time and the disease continues. 

In order for our notion to become psychologically healthy 
and not have the need for drugs to relieve tension and pain more 
money is needed in education, treatment, and prevention programs. 
Many of the best trained and well educated colleagues of mine 
have gotten out of the field of drug abuse and only a few qualified 
people remain due to lack of funds and ability to maintain their 
own families. People with addictions do not want to be helped. 
There is mass denial and embarrassment associated with this disease 
much as in alcoholism. This denial spreads from the individual, 
to the family, to the various agencies; feeling that they are 
inadequate if they admit to having these problems. Feeling of 
guilt and failure are associated with these problems and thus 
the disease becomes not only a family illness but a community 
illness. UnlE"ss more money is spent in educating people of the 
psychological illness that is throwing a shadow across our nation 
and blocking the normal development of our children we will become 
even more diseased. The mass movements, advertisements, chemical 
people show, Lions Club activities, con~i-butions from civic 
organizations, parent support groups, are 'helping to combat this 
disease. But is growing as a cancer in the very soul of our 
people. The ADM alcohol, drug, and mental health block grant 
has had a large impact on communities in Texas. Competiveness 
and misunderstanding between agencies and the communities must 
be identified and brought into the open. Feelings of law 
enforcement that "treatment" is too easy on the criminal, after 
their long hunt and capture, must be dealt with. It is very 
frustrating to feel that the Judicial system has let the addict 
off or that he is just sent to a treatment program. The addict 
needs to be sent to treatment earlier in the process and not 
as an alternative to punishment or prison. 

" 

i 

217 

Many times County jails are used as detox places where drugs 
are not available to its clients. Treatment of these prisoners 
and their families and children could be set-up at this time 
through available agencies. 

Urinanalysis systems could be set up through schools and 
law enforcement agencies where treatment is demanded of the whole 
family if urine results are positive. Laws need to be legislated 
where families of addicts are required to meet to discuss addiction 
and family roles, etc. A treatment specialist shoUld be assigned 
to each county to organize schools, law enforcement agenCies, 
civic organizations, etc. into adequate facilities to help these 
families. 
Perhaps communities without halfway house could use jails; schools 
shoUld contact agenCies, teachers and counselors trained to treat 
students; school administrators should take active roles in 
treating students, and this being viewed as educational' drug 
usage shoUld be understood as a disease and not just pieasure 
seeking; more advancement is general understanding of- couples 
therapy and family therapy of students; general publically forced 
treatment of addicts and their families through law enforcement 
and judicial agencies; more funding for treatment, prevention, 
educational programs that get the parents involved; trained people 
organizing preventive techniques in rural counties. 

This disease has grown to such proportions that it is reaching 
our elementary school children; not only from pressures created 
in the home from alcoholism and drug abuse, but also actual drug 
usage by elementary school aged children. This is where more 
money needs to be spent in order to stop the spread of addictions 
in its beginning stage. 

Thank you, 

David M. Pollard, M.A. 
TADAC 
Trained Professional Counselor 

, ......... '" .. _- .. 
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STATEMENT 

OF 

RICHARD SALWEN, ESQ. 

MEMBER OF TEXANS' WAR AGAINST DRUGS COMMITTEE 

DALLAS, TEXAS 

ON 

RECOMMENDED FEDERAL EFFORTS TO 

REDUCE AND PREVENT DRUG ABUSE IN THE UNITED STATES 

BEFORE THE 

SELECT COMMITTEE ON 

NARCOTICS ABUSE AND CONTROL 

U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENT A TIVES 

DECEMBER 7, 1983 
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Mr. Chairman and distinguished members of the Select Committee on 

Narcotics Abuse and Control, it is a pleasure to appear before you today. I would 

like to speak with you about the history and programs of the Texans' War Against 

Drugs Committee, and the effect those programs have had in reducing drug abuse 

among young people in the State of Texas. I would also like to make several 

recommendations to the Committee regarding federal actions which Texans' War 

Against Drugs Committee believes will be the m6st helpful in reducing drug abuse 

in America. 

The Texans' War Against Drugs Committee was formed in February, 1979, 

by Executive Order of the Governor of the State of Texas, and given responsibility 

for determining and implementing strategies to decrease and prevent drug abuse in 

Texas. The persons appointed to serve on the Committee are not traditional 

"experts" in the field of drug abuse. Because traditional thinking had had little or 

no success in reducing drug abuse, the people chosen were community leaders with 

a reputation for innovative thinking and forceful action, who were willing to donate 

a great deal of time and effort to finding a solution to the drug problem. As 

chairman, the governor chose Ross Perot, the founder and chairman of Dallas

based Electronic Data Systems Corporation. Perot had proven time and again his 

dedication to the betterment of America, and had a record of always pursuing a 

project to completion. 

The Committee spent its first eight months studying every aspect of the 

drug culture and previpus efforts to combat abuse of drugs. They studied the law, 

penal institutions, medical research and the courts. They visited headshops, 

rehabilitation centers, halfway houses and local jails. They talked with nationally 

known experts in the field, with volunteers, with parents whose children had fallen 

prey to the canCer of drug abuse, and with young abusers and ex-abusers 

themselves. In short, the Committee left no stone un turned in determining a 

direction. 

Because available time and money were both limited, the Committee ~lad 

to select and focus on the aspects of the drug abuse problem where the most good 

could be done. It was determined, first, to focus on prevention, rather than 

treatment and rehabilitation, because prevention has a much more attractive 
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cost/benefit ratio. This is not to say that treatment and rehabilitation of those 

who are being damaged by drugs today is unimportant, or that it should be ignored. 

However, the Erimary focus must be on prevention, to best utilize scarce 

resources. 

Next, the Committee concluded that effective prevention must function 

tc reduce both the ~ and the demand sides of the drug abuse equation. If 

tough law enforcement efforts reduce the supply of illegal drugs,' but no reduction 

occurs in demand, new suppliers will jump into the market at higher price levels. If 

we work solely to reduce demand thr~ugh education and protection of our young 

people, the suppliers, right down to the classmates and friends on the street level, 

will redouble their efforts to win new converts to the drug culture. The situation is 

insidious because drug abusers need new converts through which to finance their 

own habits. If we can reduce supply and demand simultaneously, however, the 

problem will not tend to regenerate itself. 

The Committee also 'd~cided that the primary focus of our efforts should 

be on protecting young people, between the ages of 10 and 18. Recent figures 

compiled by the National Institute on Drug Abuse show that the initial age of drug 

abuse has moved downward to the point that, currently, most young people who will 

use the IIgatewayll drugs (alcohol, marijuana) have done so by age 14; and that very 

few first time users of these substances start their use after age 18. Consequently, 

effective prevention efforts must be directed at this age group. 

Finally, the Committee decided that our primary (but not sole) focus must 

be on marijuana. In light of the overwhelming medical evidence that marijuana is a 

very dangerous substance, especially to gr9wing minds and bodies; in light of the 

fact that marijuana is a IIgatewayll drug which leads psychologically (if not 

physically) to the use of other more potent mind-altering substances; in light of the 

wide-spread use of marijuana by young people (more than 6096 of high school 

seniors have used marijuana, and nearly 1096 are daily users); in light of the 

relative ignorance of most parents regarding the scope and dangers of the problem; 

in light of wide-spread myths and misrepresentations to the effect that marijuana 

is a harmless, or possibly beneficial substance; and in light of the relatively strong 

and effective efforts of other groups in the field of alcohol abuse prevention, the 

Committee concluded that our major thrust should be toward protecting our young 
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people by reducing the marijuana epidemic in our society today. At the same time, 

the programs described below do not ignore abuse and prevention of other drugs, 

including heroin, cocaine, pills, inhalants, and alcohol. 

Ultimately, after months of intensive study, the Committe'e developed a 

three-pronged approach to the prevention of drug abuse, in line with the 

conclusions and guidelines described above. This three-pronged approach is as 

follows: 

First, the Committee's study had led it to conclude that criminal laws 

related to drug abuse in Texas WerE) terribly inadequate, especially the legal 

provisions which law enforcement agencies needed to apprehend and convict the 

criminals dealing in large commercial quantities of illegal drugs. A packag-: of new 

legislation to remedy this situation was developed in conjunction with Baylor 

University School of Law, was introduced in the Texas State Legislature, and was 

enacted in 1981. A synopsis describing that legislation is attached to this 

statement. 

Second, the Committee concluded that law enforcement officers, judges, 

and prosecuting attorneys all across the state of Texas need better opportunities 

for education about the abuse of illegal drugs, the drug culture, and the Texas laws 

relating to drug abuse. To provide a better opportunity for those responsib!e for 

enforcement of drug laws in the criminal justice system, the Texans' War Against 

Drugs Committee has developed and sponsored more than fifty seminars and 

conferences for judges, attorneys, and police officers throughout the state since 

1980. The goal of this effort is tough, uniform justice administered fairly and 

impartially in each criminal case related to drug abuse. Although this ambitious 

goal has not been fully realized as yet, we have seen significant progress, 

particularly in those rural jurisdictions where there previously was little or no 

opportunity for comprehensive training related to drug laws. 

Third, and most important, the Committee set out to develop and 

implement strategies which would protect young people in Texas and prevent the 

initial entry into the drug culture. In this area, the Committee has developed 

mUltiple approaches. Because young people learn most readily from their parents, 

top priority has been given to educating parents throughout the State on the 

35-684 0-84-16 
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dangers of drug abuse to children and young people (and especially, in detail, the 

dangers of marijuana); on the ways in which young people become involved in drug 

abuse; on the ways in which parents can identify and discover drug abuse by young 

people at an early stage, before it becomes uncontrollable; and on a comprehensive 

set of specific, effective steps and actions which parents and other adults may take 

to protect the young people in their care and prevent the onset of drug abuse. The 

programs selected by the Committee to carry out these objectives are, by and 

large, not new. Instead, they are programs and 'tactics that the Committee found 

during its months of research to have been effective in other communities such as 

Atlante'jl Georgia and Naples, Florida. With very little change, the Committee was 

able to adopt these programs for use in Texas. 

What was new, however, was the way in which the Texans' War Against Drugs 

Committee organized the dissemination of its programs to obtain maximum effect 

in communities aU across the State of Texas. Although the concern of Texas 

parents (li.ke parents everywhere in America) was great, it would have taken far 

too long to initiate and build a single purpose grass-roots organization around the 

programs selected by the Committee. Consequently, the most effective existing 

major service organizations in the State were brought together and requested to 

adopt the conclusions, programs, and strategies of the War Against Drugs 

Committee as their own. Leading organizations which responded favorably to this 

call include Texas Congress of Parents and Teachers (PTA); the Texas Junior 

League; Texas Medical Association AI~xiliary; the Texas Extension Homemakers 

Association; and the Lions Club International (which has adopted the Te~'ans' War 

Against Drugs programs as a worldwide priority project). 

A detailed manual describing the specific strategies and programs adopted 

by toe Texans' War Against Drugs Committee and the other organizations listed 

above is attached to this statement, entitled "Drug Education Training Manual and 

Resource Guide". 

To spread the information further, the Committee has supported teacher 

in-service programs, has organized community-wide drug awareness rallies, has 

conducted and participa~ed in radio and television call-in programs, has produced 

and distributed many different kinds of literature (including a comic book 

describing the dangers of marijuana), and has served as a resource for state and 
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local agencies and community leaders and organizations. We have emphasized the 

problems encountered in the minority communities, and have a full-time minority 

field coordinator as part of our professional staff of ten people. 

The activities of the Texans' War Against Drugs Committee have had a 

significant effect in reducing drug abuse in the State of Texas. Diversion of 

prescription drugs on the illegal street market has been significantly reduced by 

the operation of the Triplicate Prescription statute which the Committee 

developed. More than 390 parent groups have been organized in at least 150 cities 

and towns across the State. The level of knOWledge about the dangers of drug 

abuse is demonstrably higher than three years ago. Most junior high and high 

school students no longer view drug abuse as "hip" or "cool". For the first time in 

twenty years, the trend of drug abuse has leveled, and is beginning to decline. 

The activities of the Texans' War Against Drugs Committee have drawn 

nationwide attention. Governor William Winter of Mississippi, using the Texas 

model, has implemented a program called DREAM in his state. Governor Brown of 

Kentucky sent a five person team to Texas, who spent two days reviewing every 

aspect of the War Against Drugs organization and activities. Kentucky has now 

implemented a similar program. Representatives from Texans' War Against Dn,lnS 

have made presentations to three governors and assorted other officials in at least 

thirteen states. Ross Perot, C;:hairman of the War Against Drugs Committee, and 

Robbie Risner (Executive Director of the War Against Drugs, now retired) have 

worked closely with Nancy Reagan in developing her current activitIes to reduce 

drug abuse in the United States. 

Despite the widespread attention and the significant benefits derived 

from the activities of the Texans' War Against Drugs Committee, much remains to 

be done. In particular, the Committee recommends the following areas in which 

we believe the federal government snould take the lead and bring its resources to 

bear: 

A. We believe that the federal government needs to concentrate more 

and better resources to counteract the myths that marijuana is 

harmless or medically beneficial. Better research and broader, 

more aggressive dissemination of the facts are both needed. As 
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with almost every other issue, better-informed citizens can and will 

, make better choices and take better action within their families, 

neighborhoods, and communities. 

Although we appreciate the recent increase in federal enforcement 

efforts to intercept the flow of illegal drugs into the United States 

and apprehend the smugglers and distributors of these substances, 

we believe still more needs to be done. In particular, more emphasis 

needs to be given to the Texas coast, the border with Mexico, and 

the problem of "midnight airlines" landing at small air strips. 

c. Perhaps the most important recommendation is that the government 

dramatically increase and improve its ~fforts to stem the flow of 

marijuana, cocaine, and opium-derived drugs at the source by 

conducting widespread and effective, eradication programs, both at 

home and abroad. Eradication is by far the most cost-effective 

means of preventing illegal drugs from reaching the consumer on the 

typical high school campus. The furor over paraquat is truly a 

"tempest in a teapot". This herbicide is used to treat fields 

throughout many areas, of the United States, with no hazard or harm 

to human life or health. It is a sham to suggest that paraquat 

suddenly becomes dangerous when used to eradicate marijuana. 

D. Federal funds, and the time of federal personnel, should be used in 

greater measure to provide better, more comprehensive training for 

local law enforcement agencies so that the local agencies can better 

provide tough, uniform enforcement of laws related to illegal drugs. 

The effectiveness of federal agents, prosecutors, and judges can be 

multiplied 'manifold times if their local counterparts receive 

training comparable to their own. 

Finally, let the parents, once they have become informed and motivated, 

work within their communities to restore the drug-free environment that all our 

:children deserve. If America is to remain a great nation, a world leader in 

technology, and a wholesome place to live and bring up future generations, we must 
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all work together to excise the cancer of drug abuse that destroys our most vital 

resource -- our youth. 

Thank you for listening to my testimony. I will be happy to try to answer 

any questions you may have. 

Q 
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TEXANS' WAR ON DRUGS LEGISLATIVE PACKAGE 

The package of legislation developed by the Texans' War on Drugs 
Committee and successfully enacted in the recently completed regular session of 
the 67th Texas Legislature includes the following: 

Delivery to Minors - This new law significantly toughens penalties against adults 
who deliver marihuana or controlled substances in Penalty Groups 1, 2, or 3 to 
persons 17 years of age or less. Persons convicted of such deliveries will be subject 
to first degree felony penalties under the new statute. In addition, there will be no 
deferred adjudications permitted for such convictions, assuring that persons 
convicted of delivering these drugs to minors cannot avoid a felony conviction 
record. 

Trafficking - This new statute changes Texas law with respect to drug-related 
crimes in several areas. First, it makes conspiracy, solicitation, and attempt 
sections of the Penal Code applicable to offenses under the Controlled Substances 
Act. Second, it significantly toughens per'.aHies for possession or delivery of large, 
commercial quantities of lllegal drugs. Third, it broadens the circumstances under 
which vehicles, vessels and airplane!) can be seized in connection with drug 
enforcement activity; and makes it possible to seize aU proceeds derived from 
illegal drug-related criminal activity. Fourth, it changes the burden of proof for 
such seizures, making it possible to obtain forfeitures if the right to seizure can be 
proved, by a "preponderance of the evidence", rather than "beyond a reasonable 
doubt". Fifth, it provides for money seized by law enforcement authorities to be 
retained by the seizing authority for later IJse In drug enforcement actIvities. 
Sixth, it establishes penalties for knowingly financing, or investing in, illegal drug
related activities. Finally, it permits large quantities of marihuana which have 
been seized to be promptly destroyed after being weighed, measured, and 
photog raphed. 

Drug Paraphernalia - Thill new law prohibits the manufacture, delivery, and 
possession of "drug paraphernalia". It contains specific requirements that the 
intent of the defendant be proven before a conviction can be obtained. However, 
the statute also provides for the seizure and forfeiture of drug paraphernalia; and, 
under the provisions In the "Trafficking" bill mentioned above, the right to such 
seizures can now be proved by a preponderance of the evidence. Consequently, it 
should be possibie to close down the "head shops" by seizing and confiscating their 
inventory of drug paraphernalia. 

Triplicate Prescriptions - Under the provisions of this new law, the Department of 
Public Safety will establish a program which will require prescriptions for Schedule 
II drugs (including opium derivative drugs, amphetamines, barbituates, and 
methaqualone) to be written and filled using a "triplicate" form, with one copy sent 
to DPS for computer analysis. This program is an effective investigative tool to 
find the "pill pusher" doctors and pharmacists; and also serves as an extremely 
effective deterrent against such illegal activities by health care professionals. 

Professional License Revocation - This new law permits the licenses of health care 
pro.fessionals convicted of drug-related felony crimes to be revoked on an 
immediate baSis, in contrast to present law, under which delays of up to two years 
have been experienced. It also prohibits reinstatement of the license of the 
convicted professional unless the licensing board makes an explicit determination 
that such reinstatement is in the best interest of the public and the individual 
professional involved. 
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SUMlvlARY OF WAR ON DRUGS LAWS ------------------------------

A. Imposes tougher jail sentences and fines against adults selling drugs 
to minors. 

B. Makes it impossible for adults selling drugs to children to avoid' 
criminal conviction record by serving probation. 

QI!:!lL Traff~.!<ing - Aimed against those who deal in large, commercial 
quantities of illegal drugs. 

A. Makes it a crime to finance large-quantity illegal drug deals, or 
knowingly receive or invest funds derived from such deals. 

B. Makes conspiracy, solicitation, and attempt provisicns of Penal 
Code applicable to large-quantity illegal drug crimes. 

C. Imposes tough, new penalties against persons convicted in 
connection with large-quantitIes of illegal drugs. 

D. Makes it easier to seize the planes, ships, vans, etc. used for 
distribution of illegal drugs. 

E. Makes it pdssible to seize all assets and proceeds derived from 
illegal commercial quantity drug deals. 

F. Provides for prompt destruction of illegal drugs seized by 
authorities. 

Drug Paraphernalia 

A. Outlaws manufacture, sale and possession of paraphernalia intended 
for use with illegal drugs. 

B. Provides for seizure of drug paraphernalia. 

Triplicate Prescriptions 

A. Reduces prescription forgeries by enhanced control over 
prescription blanks. 

B. Provides computer analysis of prescriptions for Schedule. II Drugs 
(the most dangerous group). 

C. Reduces diversions of prescription drugs to the illegal street 
market. 

D. Protects privacy of physician-patient relationship. 

Professional License Revocations ---_._----
A. Provides for immediate suspensiun of license of health care 

professional convicted of drug-related felony. 

B. Provides that licenses removed for drug-related felony convictions 
can be returned only if licensing board finds reinstatement in best 
public interest. 
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NE.W PENAL TIES FOR DRUG TRAFFICKING 

MARIJUANA 

- ~-------~-

Delivery: 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. ,. 
6. 

7. 

8, 

Less than 1/4 oz. without remuneration - Class B Misdemeanor 
Less than 1/4 oz. with remuneration - Class A Misdemeanor 
More than 1/4 oz., up to 4 oz. - 3rd Degree Felony 
More than 4 oz., up to 5 lb. - 2d Degree Felony 
5-50 lb. - 1st degree felony 
50-200 lb. - aggravated felony, 5 yrs-life, up to $.50,000 fine no deferred 
adjudications permitted. ' 
200-2,000 lb. - aggravated felony, 10 yrs. - life, up to $100000 fine no 
deferred adjudications permitted " 
Over 2,000 lb. - aggravated felony, "1.5 yrs.-life, up to $2.50 000 fine no 
probation permitted, no deferred adjudications. " 

~n~ violations 0.£ number 6, 7, or 8 above by persons with previous felony 
drug convIctIons would trIgger the following penalties: 

6. 
7. 
8. 

10 yrs. -life, up to $100,000 fine, no deferred adjudication 
15 yrs. - ~e, up to $2'0,000 f~ne, no proba~on, no deferred adjudications 
20 yrs. - life, up to $'00,000 flOe, no probation, no deferred adjudications 

Possession 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. ,. 

Deliverr 

1-
2. 

3. 

4. 

2 oz. or less - Class B misdemeanor 
2 - 4 oz. - Class A misdemeanor 
4 oz. - 5 lb. - 3rd degree felony 
'-'0 lb. - 2d degree felony 
Possession of more than 50 lb. of marijuana carries the same penalties as 
delivery of the same amount would carry, as described in number 6 7 and 
8 above, including prohIbitions against deferred adjudicati~n' and 
probation, and special prOVisions for repeat offenders. 

PENALTY GROUP ONE 

Less than 28 grams - 1st degree felony 
28-200 - aggravated offense, same penalty as item number 6 under 
delivery of marijuana 
200-400 grams - aggravated offense, same as item number 7 under 
delivery of marijuana 
over 400 grams - aggravated offense, same as item number 8 under 
delivery of ma.rijuana. 

Repeat offenses for items 2, 3, and 4 are the same as for items 6 7 and & 
respectively under delivery of marijuana. ' , 
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(Penalty Croup One - cant.) 

Posses~ion 

1. Under 28 grams - 2d degree felony 
2. 28-400 grams - same as item number 6 under delivery of marijuana 
3. Over 400 grams - same as item number 7 under delivery of marijuana 

Repeat offenses for 2 and 3 same as for 6 and 7, respectively, under 
delivery of marijuana. 

PENAL TY GROUP TWO 

Delivery _ Same penalties, throughout, as are applicable for possession of Penalty 
Group One drugs. 

Possession 

1. Less than 28 grams - 3d degree felony 
2. 28-400 grams - same as item number 6 under delivery of marijuana 
3. over 400 grams - same as item number 7 under delivery of marijuana 

Repeat offenses for 2 and 3 same as for items 6 and 7, respectively, under 
delivery of marijuana. 

PENALTY GROUP THREE 

Delivery 

1. Under 200 grams - 3d degree felony 
2. 200-400 grams - same as item 6 under delivery of marijuana 
3.. over 400 grams - same as item 7 under delivery of marijuana 

Repeat offenses for 2 and 3 same as items 6 and. 7, respectively, under 
delivery of marijuana. 

Possession 

1. Under 200 grams - Class A misdemeanor 
2. Over 200 grams and repeat offenses - same as for delivery of similar 

amounts. 

PENAL TY GROUP FOUR 

Delivery - Same as for Penalty Group Three deliveries, throughout. 

Possession 

1. 
2. 

Under 200 grams - Class B misdemeanor 
Over 200 grams and repeat offenses - same as for dellvery of similar 
amounts. 

aLEGALINVESTMENT 

A person who knowingly receives or invests funds he believes to be 
derived from lllegal drug activities, or knowingly finances illegal drug activities Is 
liable for .5 years _ life imprisonment and a mandatory fine of $.50,000 - $1 million; 
and deferred adjudications are not permitted. 
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Testimony - Corpus Christi Drug Abuse Council, Inc. 

The Corpus Christi Drug Abuse Council was established and 
incorporated August, 1969, by two local physicians and other 
interested community individuals who felt the citizens of 
Corpus Christi, who were experiencing drug problems, needed 
this service. The agency is governed by a Board of Directors 
twenty-five (25) in number, that meet on a monthly basis. The 
primary services and program philosophy Df this agency are 
education, treatment, and prevention of drug abuse. The administra
tive offices are located at 527 Gordon, Corpus Christi, Texas. 
Our purpose is two-fold: 1) A continuing identification of community 
needs related to drug abuse and drug information 2) Providing 
for these needs directly or through coordination of local helping 
agencies. 

The Corpus Christi Drug Abuse Council operates two drug modalities, 
the Drug-Free After Care Program and the Methadone Clinic. The 
agency is funded by Texas Department of Community Affairs Drug 
Abuse Prevention Division, 2015 South I.H. 35, Austin, Texas. These 
funds are a part of a Block Grant received from Washington to 
Texas Department of Mental Health/Mental Retardation. The current 
funding year began October 1, 1983, through September 31, 1984. The 
Corpus Christi Drug Abuse Council received $247,498.00, 60% federal 
funds, to be matched locally by $164,999.00, 40% cash match. This is 
a eleven (11%) percent cut from the previous funding year, Total 
matrix of client slots are one hundred and eighty three \~ith one 
hundred and eight out-patient methadone client s and seventy five 
out-patient drug free clients. This is a cut of twelve clients from 
previous funding year. The local cash match was increased from 
35% to 40% in 1983-84 funding. 

"A UNITED WAY AGENCY" 
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The COt'flUS Chri s ti Drug Abuse Council experiences a di ffi cuI t time acqui ri ng 
the required cash match of $164,999.00. There are no city or county funds 
available, These funds are acquired on an annual basis with approximately 
$100,000.00 derived ft'ol11 United Way, Client fees, Criminal Justice (State 
Pr~bation/Fe~eral Probation/Parole/Texas Youth Council), Urinalysis testing, 
wIllIe, approxllllately $65,000.00 are secured by fund raising activi ties and 
donatlons, It should be noted that Federal Law prohibits refUSing services 
to d client for inability to pay and clients must be charged as per sliding 
scale. The public and clients 1SSUme the program is totally federally 
funded and unless a drug abuser with problems exists in private individual 
homes, it is simply not a problem and funding is of no interest to the 
community. The Corpus Christi Drug Abuse Council Board of Director's reviews 
the budget and funding situation to determine the possibility of ooerations 
on an annual basis, . 

"!,he COI'PUS Christi Drug Abuse Council services clients from si x counties to 
lnclutle Nueces, Kleberg, Aransas, Bee, San Patricio, Jim Wells. There are 
approximately 2000 heavy drug abusing citizens in Corpus Christi proper not 
to include all of the people who use marijuana or soft drugs on a daily 
ba~is. This agency is only t.!!nded to handle one hundred and eighty three 
clHmts and at the present time we are servicing 227 cl ients on a monthly 
basis. The additional clients are seen after hours on personnel's personal 
time. There is a client \~aiting l'lst of fifty two persons. There is no 
way to expand agency operations due to difficulty obtaining financial cash 
match of existing budget. Potential clients and waiting list clients con
tinue to check on a daily basis for admission to CCDAC and in addition are 
referred to the State Hospital, Private Programs, -or MHI1R Drug Program. 

The Corpus Cht'i sti Drug Abuse Council Drug Free/ After Care Out-Pa ti ent modal i ty 
currently has a matrix of ninety-nine cl ients with twenty two admissions and 
sixteen terminations for the month of November, 1983, of the existing matrix 
70% are employed, 19% unemployed, 8% ~-'!udents, 3% Homemakers. There were 
84% males, 16% females and the ethnic distribution was 28% Mexican American, 
65% Anglo, and 7% Black. The Drug Free/After Care modality conducted twenty 
six (26) intake interviews and three hundred and nine counseling sessions, 
averaging three counseling sessions per client. There were thirty five (35) 
positive Urinalysis t~lenty two (22) or which were intake referrals, and 
the drugs of abuse were marijuana thirty (30) and five (5) other drugs of 
a~use. Referral sources of the ninety nine·clients were eight (8) voluntary, 
flfty three (53) Nueces County probation, nine (g) 36th Judicial District 
probation, State parole (0) and Administrative Office of the United States 
Courts (Federal Probation/Parole) twenty eight (28), Refugio Probation 
one (1). Criminal Justice referl'als consisted of 92%. These referrals are 
made by the Courts throug~ State Adult Pt'oba ti on. Drug abuse services 
including counseling and urinalysis are a condition of probation in lieu 
~f being sent to the penitentiary. A monthly client progress report to 
lnclude all phases of clients lifestyle is sent to probation officer on 
a monthly basis, Seventy-five telephone calls were r-eceived requesting 
agency or drug abuse information. Hours of operation for the Administrative 
office and the Drug Free/After Care modality al'e 8:00dlll-5:00pm Monday 
thru Friday with evening counseling by appointment only, Monday and 
Thursday. 

" 
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The Corpus Chri s ti Drug Abuse Council Methadone Cl i ni cis located at Memori a 1 
Medical Center, 2606 Hospital Blvd, Corpus Christ\, Tx. The Methadone Clinic 
out-patient modal ity currently has a matrix of one hundred and t~lenty eight 
clients with twelve admissions and thi.'teen terminations for the mon~:h of 
November, 1983. Of the existing Matrix S2.3% are employed, 30.4% are unemployed, 
4.6% students and 12.S% are Homenrakers. There are SO% males, SO% females, 
and the ethnic distribution was 49.2% Mexican American, 48.4% Anglo, 1.S% 
Black and .7S% AlIlet"ican Indian. The Methadone modality conducted eighteen 
intake interViews and three hundred and six counseling sesions, averaging 2.39 
counseling sessions per client. These clients are 100% voluntary referrals. 
The Methadone Clinic hours of operation are 5:00am until 4:00pm. Monday 
thru Friday and 5:00am until 10:00am Saturday and Sunday. 

The Methadone Clinic dispenses all medication in the clinic with no take out 
prescription except for emergency. Should a client need to leave town 
he is referred to a clinic at point of designation or as close as possible. 
Every attempt is made to keep methadone out of the streets for illicit use 
to include observing clients while ingesting dosage. 

The Corpus Christi Drug Abuse Council has good rapport with all bodies of 
community criminal justice working together for common goals. 

Clients incarcerated in Nueces County Jail are serviced with medication and 
counseling for continuity until disposition of client is made. 

The Corpus Christi Drug Aubse Council also maintains a community service program 
for shop lifters as reffered by the Courts. These clients usually complete 
forty to fifty hours janitorial duty to complete Court instructions. The 
agency has no janitorial service due to cost so we welcon~ these referrals. 
Counseling is offered and observation of agency activities with drug abusers 
leaves a lasting impression on these young people should they be abusing 
drugs and stealing to supply a habit. 

The Corpus Christi Drug Abuse Council offers drug prevention presentations on 
a fee only basis. Three years ago all drug prevention funding for the agency 
was terminated due to lack of federal funding. The community has still not 
accepted the fact that presentations cannot be made free-of-charge but there 
simply is no personnel available to perform the task. Should CCDAC personnel 
choose to perform drug prevention on their personal time, they may do so. 
During the month of November, 1983, several presentations were made due to 
National Drug Abuse Week. The First Lady, Nancy Reagan, was in the green room 
cutting Chemical People, while the President was in the cutting room cutting 
drug abuse program funding. See attached for typical presentations done free 
of charge. 

As Executive Director of the Corpus Christi Orug Abuse Council for twelve years 
I have been invo.1ved in the grass roots of the drug abuse problem to include 
the original, national, federal rules governing drug treatment. This agency 
has survived all funding phases, new deals, old deals, raw deals but the 
current deal is - unless funding either state or federal is improved, we 
cannot survive. ' 
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Texas programs will close, private programs will double in existence, 
methadone will flow in the streets with no control. This Community 
works hard to keep private methadone programs out to insure that a 
control system is established; but the future may leave no choice -
the Comllli ttee needs to look a t drug abuse ha rd and long. 

Respectfully Submitted 



DRUG PREVENTION, REHABILITATION, 
INTERDICTION, AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 13, 1983 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
SELECT COMMITTEE ON NARCOTICS ABUSE AND CONTROL, 

Corpus Christi, TX. 
The committee met, pursuant to call, at 9 a.m., in room 221, Bay 

Plaza Convention Center, Corpus Christi, TX, Hon. Charles B. 
Rangel presiding. 

Present: Representatives Charles B. Rangel, Sam B. Hall, Jr., 
Solomon P. Ortiz, and Kent Hance. 

Also present: Richard Lowe, chief counsel; Jack Cusack, chief of 
staff; Elliott Brown, minority staff director; Michael J. Kelly, coun
sel; and John J. Capers, investigator. 

Mr. RANGEL. The select committee will resume its hearings. 
I would point out that we're here at the invitation of Solomon 

Ortiz in an effort to see what the Federal Government, and more 
specifically, the U.S. Congress can do to assist the people in this 
part of the country as relates to drug prevention, rehabilitation, 
interdiction, and law enforcement. 

We're fortunate to have the leadership of Congressman Ortiz, 
who brings with him unique law enforcement experience as the 
former sheriff of this area. 

And we're just as fortunate to have Sam Han, an outstanding 
Member of Congress and a member of the Judiciary Committee, 
which has the responsibility to protect our people constitutionally, 
and at the same time has the direct legislative responsibilities to 
create and to uphold criminal laws, especially those that concern 

.. themselves 'with violation of narcotics laws. 
Mr. Ortiz. . 
Mr. ORTIZ. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. We are very 

happy to have you, as chairman of this committee, and Sam Hall 
here this morning. 

We were listening to some of the testimony yesterday. Of course, 
it's a great concern as to the magnitude of the problem that we 
have, not only in south Texas or in our State, but it's an interna
tional problem. 

As we were listening to some of the witnesses yesterday, they 
were describing methods-or, ideas. And the main idea that kept 
coming across was the idea of, maybe, trying some kind of preven
tion program. 

As a law enforcement official for many years, I have seen where 
thousands and thousands and millions of dollars have been spent 
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on drug rehabilitation process. Very little can be salvaged once 
people become addicted. The funding should not be taken away 
from those that are working very hard to rehabilitate these' indi
viduals. 

However, I have not seen enough at the prevention level. And, 
hopefully, we will be able to get some testimony from you today ~1;S 
to what can be done. What can we do? 

I know that today is going to be a very, very interesting day, be
cause we need your help, we need your input. The only way we are 
going to be able to make a dent is by worl~ing together. The respon
sibility of parents and educators and law enforcement officials and 
public officials is going to be necessary to accomplish what we need 
to do and to reach our goals. 

We welcome the panels this morning, and we are very happy 
that you took time from your busy schedules to be with us. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Sam Hall from east Texas. 
Mr. HALL. I have no comments, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. Then the Chair will call the first panel of communi

ty leaders, the Honorable Sam Lozano, mayor of the city of Harlin
gen, director of the School Community Guidance Center from Har
lin.gen, TX. 

Joining him will be Mr. Tip Johnston, Century 21-Johnston Co., 
from Harlingen, TX. 

Joining the panel will be Mrs. Ella Prichard, board of directors 
of the National Federation of Parents for Drug-Free Youth, here 
from Corpus Christi. 

Also from Corpus Christi, the president of the City Council of the 
Parent-Teachers Associations, Mrs. Burma Barnett. 

We hope that the panel will have an opportunity to ask you 
questions that will assist us in our work in Washington. And since 
we have the written statements of all of the witnesses, at least I've 
been advised by staff that we do, and with the consent of the com
mittee members, we will enter the entire statement into the record 
and hope that you would limit your remarks to 5 minutes, high
lighting your testimony, so that it would give us more time to ex
change ideas as to how we can support and improve what we're 
doing. 

Mr. Mayor, thank you so much for taking time to be with us, and 
we are honored to have you. 

TESTIMONY OF SAM LOZANO, MAYOR, CITY OF HARLINGEN, DI
RECTOR, SCHOOL COMMUNITY GUIDANCE CENTER, HARLIN
GEN, TX 

Mr. LOZANO. Thank you. And I'm very privileged to have this op
portunity to bring forth this message that I think you people have 
heard throughout the Nation. 

It's unfortunate that everybody speaks about the drug problem 
that we have in our country. Yet, there seems to be no concentrat
ed effort or coordinated effort to bring forth some method of pre
vention or intervention or even, as one gentleman put it yesterday, 
eradicate the problem of marijuana, particularly, in south Texas. 
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I do know who my State representative is. In fact, I can name all 
the State representatives in my area and throughout the Stat~ of 
Texas, as well as some Congressmen from throughout the UnIted 
States. 

In December I had the opportunity not only to speak to Con
gressman Roybal and others in California, but other elected offi
cials along the same lines that we are here for. 

This problem of drug abuse has hit my family personally, and 
that's why I visited California. .. 

But aside from that, I come in daily contact wIth the ~hIldren 
that are involved in marijuana, inhalants, and other materIals that 
are deteriorating the youth in our area and the youth of Texas and 
the country. . . 

I was very happy being a junior high school prInCIpal, an~. I saw 
that there was nothing being done about the us~ of mariJuana, 
other than just bringing forth the s.tudent suspenSIOn and then fl.-
nally getting to the board for expulsIOn.. . 

Along that time there was State legIslatIOn to, perhaps, address 
the problem and addr~ss the p~oblem fr~m the viewp?int o! the .ed
ucator or the people Involved In educatIOn. And theIr .maln o~~ec
tive was to prevent or keep more students ~hat were ';ISIng marIJua
na, at least giving them a second opportunIty to. stay 111. school. 

Well that worked fairly well for a short perIOd of time, but the 
resour~es were not sufficient to address the problem in the whole 
community. . 

Thus we turned back to what we had been dOIng before of expel
ling st~dents. We do not expel s~udents in as large a number as we 
had previously because of a particular place called the School Com
munity Guidance Center, which allows for the student to reflect, or 
think things out, with couns~ling. .. 

I am administrator. That s on~ of my functIOns In the center. 
And I feel that we have to involve the whole c0D?-munity.. . 

And I'm sorry to say, and ashamed to say thIS: ~he City counCIl 
or local government has not addressed the problem In any manner. 

I have been a councilman, as well as mayor, for a number of 
years, since 1962, yet I have not been able to persuad.e my col-
leagues to address the problem. . 

However, I'm happy to say that the present counCil. has taken a 
closer look and will provide some help to the communIty and, defi
nitely, to the schools. 

There have been many things tried i~ the Rio Grande V ~lley 
along the lines thttt I speak of, but nothmg that would coordIna~e 
and get a hold of the problem. And I feel that one of the reasons IS 
that the communities are not really aware of the dangers when a 
student or young person uses marijuana. . . 

I see youngsters that I had when I was an el~mentary prInCIpal 
that got started on inhalants or drugs, who are lIterally bums now. 
Unproductive citizens of Harlingen that are 21, 22, or 23 years. of 
age. And it's sad to see that tYP.e of individual in your communIty 
and, yet, not be able to do anythIng. . 

We have others, as we mentioned yesterday, MHMR, WhICh you 
know what it's trying to do. I think they're a frustrated depart
ment like many other departments that have testified before you. 

35-584 0-84-16 
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However, I think that the key, at least in my opinion, is to in~ 
volve not only parents with students in school but everyone. Or, at 
least make them aware of the problem. And I have set those objec~ 
tives and those goals, and hop~fully--

. I have been speaking to our State representative, and he has 
gIven me at least some hope of redoing some of the things that 
were initiated in 1978. 

[The prepared statement of Mr. Lozano ~_1:Jpears on p. 303.J 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank' you very much, Mr. Mayor. Mr. Johnston. 

TESTIMONY OF VERNON C. JOHNSTON~ JR., CHAIRMAN, 
HARLINGEN AGAINST DRUGS [HAD], HARLINGEN, TX 

Mr. JOHNSTON. Thank you, Chairman Rangel, members, and 
staff. We appreciate y'all's time in coming down to listen to our 
problems in south Texas, and we do have some. 

Y'all have got my statement before you, and rather than going 
over what Sam has just said, where I am coming from is: I am the 
chairman of Harlingen Against Drugs, which is a committee under 
the PTA, and we are also under the Texan's War on Drugs which 
you heard yesterday. 

We receive directions from the Texans' War on Drugs in pam
phlets and handouts, but no monetary funds. And so far, we don't 
need funds. We've got good volunteers. 

I d? believ~, as with other people here, that \vhat we're doing 
now IS a maintenance program. As far as Federal funds State 
funds, they only maintained a certain level. But I don't think we're 
getting to the heart of the problem. 

As you will read in my statement, I think the problem lies much 
deeper. It's in the family unity. It's in community unity. It's in 
these types of efforts. 

I'm not a pessimist, as my statement would sound like. If I was, I 
would not be in the business I'm in. But I am an optimist in many 
ways. I ~hink that with proper guidance and proper direction the 
communIty can be pulled together. 

This is where it's going to have to come from. Everybody likes 
Federal dollars, and they like the State dollars to be used. But 
those dollars not used properly in a prevention manner and an 
educational manner would be wasted dollars. And that we can't 
afford either. 

I spoke with about 1,300 sixth graders last year. The reception of 
the sixth graders was tremendous. It's better than the adults. They 
understand the problem when you speak to them clearly and plain
ly. 

We are trying to get down to the lower levels, to the second 
grade and to the fourth grade. We have a public program that goes 
in to all the fourth graders in Harlingen. And we have another 
type of program that goes to the second graders. 

So, there again, we're hitting these people for 1 hour out of a 
whole year, a~d then they get bombarded the rest of the time by 
the news medIa, not to put them down, but also by the movies that 
they see on TV, by the sounds that they hear, and the words that 
they hear coming out of the music in today's music. And it's awful 
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hard for us to combat that 'continuous noise and things they hear 
for 1 hour a day. 

So, I think the parent prevention, and prevention in the age, 
somewhere, second, third, fourth, fifth, and sixth grades is where 
we've got to start. 

That's all the comments I have. Thank you. 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Johnston appears on p. 306.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you very much, Mr. Johnston. 
Mrs. Prichard, the president of the Coastal Bend Families In 

Action. 

TESTIMONY OF ELLA PRICHARD, PRESIDENT, COASTAL BEND 
FAMILIES IN ACTION, INC., CORPUS CHRISTI, TX 

Mrs. PRICHARD. Yes, I was the founding president at that organi~ 
zation, which is a nonprofit, volunteer organization committed to 
juvenile drug abuse prevention and education in south Texas. I 
continue to serve on the executive board, and I'll be speaking from 
that experience today. 

I do want to thank you for inviting me here, and I would like to 
commend this select committee for securing passage of the diplo
macy against drugs bill. 

For the past 3 years, due in large measure to the leadership 
given by the Texans' War on Drugs, south Texans have taken a 
close look at the use of drugs, particularly marijuana by juveniles" 
and the consequences of juvenile drug use. 

Through the efforts of Families in Action, parents, educators, law 
enforcement personnel, elected officials, drug treatment profession
als, the medical community, and youth themselves have joined to
gether to combat this problem. 

As you well know, for a decade, the parents sat by uninv~lved 
and waited for experts to solve the problem, and relentlessly, Juve
nile drug abuse climbed. 

Since the beginning of the parent movement in 1977, drug use 
among high school seniors has finally started to drop, and the 
parent movement, with the support it has enjoyed from both the 
private and the public sector, holds great promise for the future. 

We've been singularly fortunate in Texas because of the leader .. 
ship given to us by Texans' War on Drugs. Texans' War on Drugs 
brought in leaders in prevention and education from around the 
country. They provided staff, programming, and print resources to 
assist. They created a statewide network with communication to 
other States. And this caliber of leadership and professionalism 
gave credibility to the movement here in Texas and is now being 
copied by other States. . 

Here in Corpus Christi, our initial support came from our sherIff, 
now our Congressman, Solomon Ortiz, our mayor, and our superin
tendent of schools. Those who had dealt S(l long with the problem 
from a professional level welcomed the participation of parents and 
the private sector. . .. 

Since the local program began, we have studIed all aspects of JU
venile drug use. We turned to the materials at hand, and we found 
that, almost invariably, textbooks, fIlms, and library books were in-
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accurate and out of date and that funds were not available to re
place them. 

We did get exce~le.nt as~istance from the local office of the Drug 
Enforcement AdmInIstratIOn and the substance abuse office at ~he 
Naval Air Station. They helped us obtain government-printed ma
terials. 

National Institute on Drug Abuse had a wealth of materials. 
They were not always accurate, but they were available free or at 
nominal cost. 

. Since then, t~e picture has changed for the worse. We're begin
nIng to see the Impact of the parent movement. In print materials, 
the message now is coming out clearly that any use of illicit drugs 
is abuse, that marijuana is physiologically and psychologically 
harmful. 

But at this same time that changes for the better are being made 
in the resources, funding cuts are resulting in fewer and fewer ma
terials being available. 

NIDA mate:rials are better than ever. l\1any of them are singu
larly appropriate for classroom use. But you have children's comic 
books that are selling for several dollars now, which makes them 
completely out of reach for the classroom or for the prevention pro
gram. A 35-page parent manual, for example, that was 35 cents 
when we started is now $4. 

The schools of south Texas have demonstrated a marked commit
ment to reversing the upward spiral of drug use at school. Most 
like the Corpus Christi District, have adopted tough policies that 
call for long-term suspension of students who use drugs and alcohol 
at school. 
~owever, t~e Fifth Circuit Court ruling that the use of drug

snIffing dogs In the classroom violates students' civil rights has 
made the schools' job much more difficult. Surely every student 
has a oasic right to attend a school where he can feel safe, where 
he can learn, where teachers can teach. 

I saw President Reagan's recent recommendion about the need to 
address this problem. The disruption of the teaching process by 
stoned and drunk students is a national problem and needs to be 
solved at the national level. 

Tightened school budgets have drastically reduced funds avail
able for such programs as inservice drug programs for teachers 
and, here in Texas, the long time highly successful Operation Kick
It, where State prisoners visit our schools and share their experi
ence. 

Families in Action has sought to fill the gap. It has purchased 
films for the Region II Education Service Center, which serves 
more than 90,000 children in 11 counties in south Texas. We pro
vided .the funds for inservice workshops. For $1,500, we were able 
to traIn volunteers to conduct drug education to more than 2 000 
fo~rth and sixth graders last year. This year, for $500 more: we 
wIll reach more than 3,000 fourth and sixth graders expanding to 
all local Catholic schools, the Episcopal school and' one suburban 
public school district. ' 

While it is unrealistic to expect a volunteer organization with an 
annual budget of $20,000 to carry the major responsibility for drug 
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prevention, this is an example of the kinds of programs being con-
ducted by the parent groups across the country. . 

The Reagan administration is to be commended for attractIng 
the attention of the public and the media to the seriousness of the 
problem, and for involving the private sector in fin~ing so~utions. 
Many of these privately funding programs ~r~ more InnovatIv~ and 
more cost effective than some of the tradItIOnal bureaucratIc ap
proaches. 

Unfortunately, national drug prevention !ID-d treatment efforts 
too often fail to recognize that drug abuse IS more than a black
white problem and that regional differences do exist. Films, as w~ll 
as photographs in textbook'3 and brochures, show black and whIte 
faces and are written in English. They give information on heroin, 
cocaine, and marijuana, but not on inh~lant~, glue, and paint t~at 
are the drugs of choice of the poor HIspanIC boy.s of the barrI~s. 
Concerned Hispanic parents cannot get the materials they need In 
the language they speak. Texas agencies have made every effort to 
meet the need, but the funds to produce high quality, professional 
materials are not available. 

The best national policy is one that will provide full Government 
support to the public and the private secto~, to pro~essionals, and to 
parents. It will acknowledge that all mInd-altering drugs are a 
threat to our children and that our Nation needs to address drugs 
and alcohol use and abuse as a single problem. It will recognize 
that drug abuse affects the entire Nation, all ages, all classes, all 
racial and ethnic groups. 

[The prepared statement of Mrs. Prichard appears on p. 308.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Mrs. Prichard. ~ifrs. Barnett. 

TESTIMONY OF BURMA BARNETT, PRESIDENT, CITY COUNCIL 
PARENT-TEACHER ASSOCIATIONS, CORPUS CHRISTI, TX 

Mrs. BARNETT. Mr. Chairman, members ~f the committee, I am 
Burma Barnett, president of the City Council Parent-Teacher Asso
ciations in Corpus Christi. 

Unfortunately, narcotics usage in our young people has dr?p~ed 
from occurring primarily at the high school age down to the J~nIOr 
highs and now, tragic as it is, to the elementary schools. Marijuana 
has been found among our first graders. 

But I feel the people who have spoken before you on rehabilita
tion and treatment have very valid points, but we must get to the 
very root of the problem, as so many of them have said. It's educa
tion. And more than education, it's prevention. 

Staff development sessions in Corpus assist our teachers in pre
senting accurate information from the kindergarten through the 
12th grade on drug and substance abuse. Not only are the physio
logical, psychological, and sociologic~l affects. of drug abu~e. taught, 
but more importantly, the teachers Include Informed decisIOnmak
ing, positive peer group rela~ion~h~ps, caree~ .and life. goals, family 
life and developing and maIntaInIng a POSItIve self-Image. Teach
ing' activities based on unbiased, up-to-date information enhance 
the credibility of the teacher and offer a greater chance to deter 
the dangerous street information, the subtle media messages, and 
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the pop-idol role modeling to which our students are subjected 

daily.. . h I' t d 10 Prevention IS the key to educatIOn. Teenagers ave IS e 
things that are their main proble~s, t~ings that. give ~h.em con
cern, anxieties that they have: TheIr frIends, . theIr famIlIes, fee~
ings, future careers, sexuality, parents,. quest~ons abou~ ~he unI
verse, love, safety, and security, and faIrness ill competItIOn. The 
inability to cope with any or all of these concerns can lead to a 
poor self-image in a young person. 

While teenagers and adults may have s<;>me of the same concer~s, 
teens do not have the skills or the maturIty necessary to deal !Vlth 
them. The most important skill which teenagers need to learn IS to 
develop ani maintain a positive self-image. 

Columbus, OH, is the headquarters of a program called ~uest/ 
Skills for Family Living Project, which masterfully deal~ wIth the 
teaching of living skills to high school stu.dents. The hI~hl:y aca
demically oriented school of Bloomfield Hills, MI, has Insbtu~ed 
the Quest/Skills for Living Prograrn as a one-semester, electIve 
credit course. I understand that the response from the sophomores 
when they took it 2 years ago has been so great they are now 
asking that there be a re-Quest as they go into .their senior: :y~ar. 

Quest teaches students proficiency in goal settIng, responsIb.ihty, 
self-control and self-esteem building. Mike Buscemi, the natIOnal 
coordinato~ of the Quest Program has said, "We are only going to 
solve the drug and alcohol problem when we solve the people prob-
I " em. .. . 1-. h' h The Quest Program is only in effect, at t.hIS tnne, In tue uIg 
school level, but there are plans to implement it next year in the 
junior highs, and then, hopefully on to the e~ementary: schools. 

This program was determIned by the NatIOnal InstItute on Drug 
Abuse to be one of the three best drug prevention courses available 
in the country today, although it is not primarily a dru&, p::even
tion program. Since Quest, teenage pregn~ncy, as well ~s Inc~deI?-~s 
of drug and alcohol abuse in Bloomfield HIlls, have dechned SIgnIfI-
cantly. . 

The skills which enable young people to deal WIth peer pressure, 
with drugs and alcohol incidences, and with changing sexuality? we 
admit, are ones that need to be nurtured and learned slowly In a 
loving home environment. Unfortunately, for so many of our young 
people, that does not happen. So, perhaps, these coping skills need 
to be taught in our schools. . 

I feel that the parents of this country would support the expendI
ture of Federal State or local money for such a beneficial pro
gram, because dnly by' deal~ng wit~ ~he cause of narcotics and sub
stance abuse can we effectIvely elImInate the need for more treat
ment and rehabilitation programs. 

Thank you. 
[The prepared statement of Mrs. Barnett appears on p. 314.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, 1\.1rs. Barnett. 
Mr. Ortiz. 
Mr. ORTIZ. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.. . . 
I would like to ask Mayor Lozano, who IS very Involved In work

ing with the school district, what kh~d of drug preve;nti<;>n programs 
the Harlingen Independent School DIstrIct has at thIS tIme? 
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Mr. LOZANO. None, other than the program that was mentioned 
by Tip Johnston on a voluntary basis, working with the sixth grad
ers and fourth graders in limited time through, as I said, volunteer 
groups. 

Mr. ORTIZ. At this point, the State does not mandate the local 
school districts to provide some type of drug education program? 

Mr. LOZANO. No; no one mandates, as such. As I said, the only 
thing that they've addressed in this problem is at one time, the 
only thing the schools were doing were just getting rid of the prob
lem. 

When I say "getting rid of the problem," that meant the student, 
at which time legislation and funding was provided for seven cen
ters throughout the State of Texas, and Harlingen School District 
was one of the seven that was chosen, to start a pilot program. 

An off-campus room or setting to deal with the student that was 
involved with marijuana and, perhaps, never caught with marijua
na, in possession of marijuana, however he's disruptive or has in
corrigible behavior. 

Mr. ORTIZ. In other words, he is removed-if he were caught 
with the marijuana, he is removed from his classroom, but at this 
point, you do have an alternative. 

Mr. LOZANO. An alternative for those that are caught for the 
first time, but if they are caught for the second time, then, they are 
usually expelled. 

Mr. ORTIZ. And once they are expelled, there is no alterna
tive--

Mr. LOZANO. They become a community problem then. It be
comes a problem for the police, and as I have submitted to the com
mittee here, statistics that are related to the number of juvenile of
fenses that occur in a community number close to 700 a year. And 
most of those are related, break-ins, theft, and vandalism. They 
become a community problem then, because there is no other alter
native. Once they are expelled from that particular school, none of 
the other school districts would accept the student. 

Mr. ORTIZ. Do you see a need, at this point, for the State govern
ment or the Federal Government to help you implement some type 
of educational program in the school? 

Mr. LOZANO. Definitely. As I said, I thought, at one time, that 
the schools could deal with this problem, but I soon learned that 
that was not the case. Parents became involved only when they 
had their children there and only a certain segment of our commu
nity. 

And as I said, one of the largest gatherings in Harlingen was at 
the time that Perot came to Harlingen and addressed the medical 
auxiliary, who took the leadership on the war on drugs. And it was 
one of the most successful community efforts, but it was short 
lived. It did not take-or did not spread itself enough to deal with 
the Hispanics. The literature was only in English. And I'm sorry to 
say that it was short lived. Just a short while. 

And as I said, at one time, I thought that the community finally 
was addressing the problem but it soon died. 

And as I said, I think that there were efforts by the PTA and 
volunteer groups, such qS Mr. Johnston mentioned, that we are 
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trying to revive and, perhaps, educate the young in the elementary 

:!:t~~~~h: ~ff~':,~~n~o:: ~~~~uf~~rj~~r lhl;~, f~~v!~t~':!d 
ei~~~ ftn~ r;fli!~i~ag~:~ to the elementary grades, as it was men-

tiI':,e~h~e~:~enties, early ~eventies, ,,:~en I ::r:S~~~~~t'::~~ 
at the high school, we dId see marijuana as the were in the 
Nowl ' there't

s
. somNeo~e:~!u;f ~~~ ~r~l~~~o~:e in th: junior high, ear y seven Ies., . . h. h 

and they filter on down from tthe J~nlOr Ifdy ·ou pull them? Do you Mr. ORTIZ. Now, Mr. Johns on, ow cou ? 

geMtref~rrals? Ho~~oe~~O~;eP[~1haemp~~~!~ right now of trying to 
r. OHNSTON.. r to have referrals from the 

set up a voluntary ?ounse Ing group But there's a lot more prob-
schoo~s, tfe d°!ll~~~tr;;g:ii~ t~~~o~~u would think .. It l<?oks like a 
;~:~l:;d~:eun~il you try to induce it and start runnmg Into snags, 

which is not u~commoan·teen line now which is a 24-hour hot line, We are openIng up .' 

so to speak. It should be in ope~atb~u~Yt~:b~~~~~i and getting in

vor::d.~\re~~!~t O!~n~oh:~~ ~h Sam and Dan Izer [phonetical-

ly ~i-~~rs~h~~fsini;~~~nst~!bfu~ ~~~~ last night, have a cturfre:n~ prob-
? kid Th ' got such a gross amoun 0 InJ.orma-lem of educating ~. ey v~ t th k· ds that I don't believe the tion that they're trYIng to gel" o~" e I, . 1 t thO 

schools should be the social agency in °brlder toMmp C:fu,~n a te~ch~~-
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rnd i can tell you she .has3eOnokil!dgh .pr~~:~~t k:~d~g S:od~e:~'t 
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have-I don't think that ought to be put on the sc 00 sys em, per-
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marijuana. 

Mr. HALL. May I interrupt? 
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¥:j::';O~~';,~:h~:.%I:!~~~ i't0~~~g °t~ ~~~~e fues~i~~ 
don't think they should be a social branch to .do thIS JO~ ld 
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maybe I tend to disagree with you, but we're trying to get some solutions from you. 

Where would you begin with this prevention program? At what level and where? 

Mr. JOHNSTON. As I said, I would start at the elementary level. 
The schools will give you the time. The school will say: OK. You 
can have an hour a week. Or whatever that time is to put this program in. 

But to give the school the responsibility of putting together the 
program of organizing the program to do the work itself, no. Be
cause Our school system says: Yes, we'll give you the time to work 
with our kids because they need. 

But then, they've got to go out and hire staff. They've got to go 
out and hire people. There ought to be some coordination, hopeful
ly, in the local agencies that are there' to come into the school 
system and work that program. 

Mr. ORTIZ. Let me see if I understand you. You feel that there 
should be an independent agency where volunteers would come 
into the school districts with their program and the schools would 
allocate time. Is this the way you would set it up? 

Mr. JOHNSTON. That's the way I, Tip Johnston, would like to see 
it because I think the schools are--

Mr. ORTIZ. Mrs. Prichard, would you like to comment? 
Mrs. PRICHARD. Well, basically, this is what a part of the drug 

program is in the Corpus Christi Independent School District right 
now. And Doctor Littleton is on the next panel, so you can ask him about the details. 

But it became obvious when our parent group began to explore 
the general curriculum that the Texas law mandates that drug 
education be taught. There are no funds, and there's not a drug education Course. 

There is a curriculum guide that says that it's appropriate for 
drug education to be taught in the sciences, in health, in social 
studies, and various places where it can OCcur in the curriculum. 
There are also guides for the teachers themselves that are avail
able, books that are available, teachers in the community that are available. 

But it became obvious that the teachers' main responsibility is to 
teach those children reading and math and those basic skills and 
that when you're dealing with hundreds of teachers in dozens of 
schools to maintain similar quality and quantity of information 
from student to student, it becomes very difficult. 

So, what has been done here is the establishment of the GATE 
Program [General Awareness Through Education] which was devel
oped in Metropolitan Atlanta. Except that I think that we've done 
it better here because of the active involvement of the school district. 

But it is funded by the Junior League of Corpus Christi. It is ad
ministered by the Families in Action. Volunteers Come from both 
the Junior League and the community. The school district provides 
a staff person that attends all the training meetings as coordinator, 
and the principals request it. 

But those voh~nteers, then, go into the fourth and sixth grade 
classrooms twice. We had hoped for them to be able to go three 
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times but there is a shortage of volunteers. But they will go twice 
to th~ students and then onc~ at nigh~ to all of the parents of those 
students and give them drug Information. .. 

The teachers and the librarians and. the prIncIpals are all left 
with a packet of resources and informatIOn so that t~e teacher can 
have ongoing plans and activities on what the traIned volunteer 
presents. . t . 

The trained volunteer goes through 10 weeks of exten~lve r~nn
ing hearing from doc~ors a~d scientists. The ~eacher can t possIbly 
have that kind of an In-serVIce on drug educatIOn. . 

Mr. ORTIZ. I meant to ask Ma~or Lozano . anothe! qU~stIOn. 
Where are the other six centers, besIdes the one In HarlIngen: 

Mr. LOZANO. There's more now. In 1978, Pasa?-ena, HarlIngen, 
Cor us-I don't recall. Pasadena, Corpus, HarlIngen" Conroe-I 
don~ recall the seven. But only seven school districts In the State 
of Texas That's how little they think about the problem. 

And ~gain, you know, you ask the question of me: Is. the~e ~ 
mandate from the Texas Education ~gency or from the legIslatIOn. 

Well I am sorry to say that there IS not. . . 
Now: mandate in education is where you I?Ight speak 40, 50 mIn-

utes of science; you mu~t have so many credIts. . 
Yes there are guidelmes. You say, well, you may teach! In your 

health classes, drug-the use of drug abuse or drug abuse In gener-
alities. Id b 

But I would say that I would hope that there wou . e a man-
date that you must teach 1 hour in the seventh grad~, lIke you do 
health or choir or what have you. Now, that to me IS a mandate 
from legislation, the Texas Education Agency. And .yet, they barely 
touch upon the subject. But again, not a coordlI:ate~ effort to 
where the State of Texas mandates this through legislatIOn and ev-
erybody must follow. t t· d 

We do need volunteers, and PTA has played a grea par In e ~
cation in Texas and they are the ones that have taken the lead In 
volunteers helping. And we certainly need the help there. But 
again, nothing that is structured, as such. 

Mr. ORTIZ. Thank you, Mayor. . f If I 
One thing, in particular, stands o~t when I was sherif - may 

have just one more minute, Mr. ChaIrman. 
In a society where both parents have to work, we have the 

father the mother, and their young boy who would come. h~h~' 
and n~body was around. And then, when he :r;teeded help Wit IS 
homework, either daddy was too busy or too tired and moth~r was 
doing something else. It reached the point where he felt reJecte~ 
And then he started hanging around with the wr?ng crowd, an 
before you knew or he knew, the young.b?:f was addIcted. 

So I feel that we do have a responSIbIlIty for somebody to take 
the ~esponsibility of drug prevention some~here, an? I hope that 
we can be in a position today to get some Informa~lOn fr?m. you? 

I was very moved when you said that this school In-MIchIgan. 
Is that correct? 

Mrs. BARNETT. Yes. . 
Mr. ORTIZ. They do have this elective where they can take 1 

hour? Can you explain a little bit about that? 
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Mrs. BARNETT. It's a one-semester, credit course, an elective. At 
this time, elective. They may work to getting it to be a required 
Course. At this time, it's an elective in the high schools that they 
take, and they deal with all types of establishing relationships, 
peer pressures. Just building their confidence. A positive kid. A 
good kid. Because a kid that feels good about himself, although 
they may know the facts, they may have the information on heroin 
and what this does to you, marijuana and what this does to you, 
they arent's going to stop and t.hink about that. If they feel bad, if 
Mom hollered at them and Dad's not around and they've had a 
crummy day at school and somebody says, "Hey, this'll make you 
feel good," if they need something to make them feel good, they'll 
go try it. 

Mr. ORTIZ. Thank you. 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Hall. 
Mr. HALL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I've listened to you people. Mr. Lozano states that expelling stu

dents from school is not addressing the problem. Mrs. Prichard 
states that the schools of south Texas have demonstrated marked 
commitment to reversing the upward spiral of drug use at school. 
The Corpus Christi District has adopted tough policies that call for 
long-term suspension of students that use drugs and alcohol at 
school. 

Well, it looks to me like you've both taken an inconsistent posi
tion, No.1. 

I hear a lot of talk about peer pressure. What is your defmition 
of peer pressure, sir? 

Mr. LOZANO. A student that can no longer hear the' outside 
world, the realities of-- ~-

Mr. HALL. What do you mean by "can't hear the outside world"? 
Mr. LOZANO. At one time, when I was growing up, sir, I took rev

erence in listening to my elders, my priest, my father and mother, 
my aunts, my uncles, and anyone that I held in esteem or respect. 
And whatever advice they gave me, I took it because I knew they 
cared for me. Whereas-and whatever anybody else said, even my 
friends, I took and accepted it. 

Whereas, right now, you talk to a stUdent, you try to counsel 
with a stUdent, and they couldn't care less what their father says, 
what their mother says, what an aunt, an uncle, a teacher, a 
priest, a minister would say. They want to belong with those that 
they spend the majority of their time with, and those are students 
of their age. 

And you have a lot of images in your school now. You belong to 
different groups, and there is such a group that is bent on holding 
an image, and they will not deter from any advice or counsel that 
anyone else would give, other than those that they hold in esteem. 
And it lnight be a drug pusher or marijuana pusher or--

Mr. HALL. All right. Mrs. Barnett states in her statement here 
that: "Marijuana has been found among our first graders." 

Now, where is that peer pressure on a first-grade student? 
Mr. LOZANO. Well, I think, sir, I've been in education for 34 

years, and I've dealt with-and I've been principal of a school. Yes, 
sir, a first grader or kindergartner will look around and see what 
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am I wearing and things like that. And there is peer pressure 
there. Mr. HALL. Well, how is that peer pressure for a first grader to 
look around and see how he or she might be dressed to make them 
get on marijuana? Mr. LOZANO. Well, I'm not dealing with- ... I'm talking about peer 
pressure in general and ~ot her terminology of s~mebo?:r using
I'm talking-when I mention peer pressure here, I m tahnng about 
the junior high students, not in the remarks that have been made. 
When I-the testimony that I gave to you was testimony that I've 
dealt with for 5 years, day in and day out, and not from a first-
grade student. There have been cases in her city or community where a first-
grade student used it, and there have been some third graders ~n 
the school district where I come from that they used that. I dId 
not-I don't mean to say that peer pressure-there is peer pres
sure hut not in the using of marijuana, as she put it, sir. 
M~. HALL. Mrs. Prichard, what is your definition of peer pres-

sure? Mrs. PRICHARD. Obviously, it's when a kid surrenders to pres-
sure or what he perceives to be pressure, from his associates. 

I'd like to say a couple of things, though, to answer some of your 
concerns. Mr. HALL. Wait a minute. Let's stay on peer pressure here for a 
moment. 

Mrs. PRICHARD. OK. I'd like to say that--
Mr. HALL. Is peer pressure when the father and mother of the 

child doesn't devote enough attention and time to that child? That 
creates some sort of a situation in the child's mind that he or she 
must do something else to stay within the norm of what he or she 
perceives that to be? 

Mrs. PRICHARD. I think that most junior high kids are eager to be 
accepted by their peers. However, the statistics. that I've see~ o? 
drug prevention and on the peer pressure question show that lt IS 
the child with low self-esteem who is most susceptible to peer pres-
sure. The child that feels good about himself and has succeeded some-
where, who feels loved and accepted by his parents and his friends 
and his teachers, is less likely to submit to peer pressure to use 
drugs or anything else. 

So, there is some correlation between self-esteem and peer pres-
sure. Mr. HALL. Now, you state that the schools have done a pretty 
good job down here in expelling students that, frankly, I think 
ought to be expelled when they're caught up in this business. 

Now, the mayor doesn't believe that. 
Mr. LOZANO. No, I didn't say that, sir. I said that expelling stu-

dents is not the answer because it then becomes a community prob
lem. I'm also-I also happen to be mayor of a community, sir, 
where we deal with--

Mr. HALL. Let me read what you said. 
"We have seen that the traditional methods of dealing with indi-

viduals with drug problems have not worked." 
Page 2 of your statement. 
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Mr. LOZANO. Yes, sir. 
Mr .. HALL. "Expelling the student or incarcerating him for drug 

abuse IS not the answer to the problem." 
Mr. LOZANO. That is correct. 
!\:fr. HALL. Now, that means to me that the traditional ways of 

trYIng to solve ~hese problem~, in your opinion, are not working. 
Now, Mrs. ~rIchard states Just the opposite, as I read, if I can 

read th~. EnglIsh .h~nguage. And I've already read it. About the 
~chools ~n my opInIOn, have demonstrated a marked commitment 
In revers~ng the .upwar? spiral of drug use at school." 

Now, I m fa~lliar Wl~h tl;1at Fifth Circuit Court case. I think it 
wa~ a bad deCls~on .. I thll:k It was a terrible decision. But, anyway, 
we re saddled WIth It until we can do something about it 

But I'm concerned about when you talk about the pe~r pressure 
~ow, I served,on a school board for 10 years before I went to Wash~ 
Ington, and I ve seen these things come before the school board 
t?at are heart rending and will tear your heart out. But I don't be
heve that y?U can separate thi~ fro.m the school system. 
~ow, you ve got to have outSIde Interest to get involved in it, cer

taInly. But these youngsters that we're talking about today and 
some of the st~teme~ts that ~?at •. '11 of you have said, it's sd true 
about the, outSIde radIO,. teleVlslOn! th'\i}gs you see and hear. 

But we ve got to, I thInk, get baCK to the proposition that mother 
and daddy know a little bit more about what their child should or 
should not do than some outsider. 

Nmy, I don't believe. th~t you can say, No.1, that the schools do 
nO~--In ~y w~y of thlnkIng, have a pivotal part to play in this. I 
thInk we re gOIng to have to get,first, the teachers who can under
stan~ the pro~lem and teach it to these youngsters. 

Second, I t~llnk you always have to bring your parents into it. 
But the thI~~ that concerns me greatly is when I hear people say 

that the tr~dI~IOnal methods haven't worked. I don't like to beli~ve 
th~t. I don t hke to believe that they have fallen down and we're 
gOIng to have to go out to some social organization to solve these 
problems. 

Mr. LOZANO. I don't know how you construed my remarks but I 
have made re~omn:endations within the last 3 weeks to exp~l two 
students. I beheve In that. 

However, those t~o students have juvenile records. You go to 
court two or t~ree times, and it's still amongst our midst. So, what 
do you-I don t lD;ean t? blam(~ the court. I'm not blaming anybod . 

But you go to Juvenl~e c.ourt and said, well, they didn't commlt 
any-there ~re worse kIds In this area than those that use marijua
na or bre~k I~ or break a curfew or what have you. 

As I saId, I III not that liberal, and I've been around long enough 
to say ~hat by expelling a student, that's not the answer And I will 
repeat It. . 
. Mr. ~ALL. Well, what do you think ought to be done to a student 
In a hIgh school that comes in stoned? Should they keep hI'm . 
there? In 

Mr. LOZANO. No. What--
Mr. HALL. Or her in there? What should you do with him? 
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'd tried alternatives of removing 
Mr. LOZANO. Well, as.c I sal , ~d of time He is counseled with, 

him from that campuS lor a perl? ned' All right? 
and if he continues t? do thi{' fe l~::~~ yo~ think that 13-, 14- or 

All right. OJ..1ce ~e s ~xpe ted'; Just wander? The parents are 
15-year-old chIld IS, gOlng ~_o. , 
working or thMey db on tthknt?;one of the problems. Everybody s work

Mr. HALL. ay e a 
ing. , . But I'm coming from two 

Mr. LOZANO. That's .what I d:~:;!g'we've been entrusted with 
directions here .. As belngkan '~h a drug user because the youngster 
that task of tr¥lng .to Vfor WI 

is the one that s uSIng It. h t 'ngs in the police department, 
I'm also aware of our dS ~r ~~:~ kid that's been caught 10, 12 

that they can no l?nge~ lhl g ~~ people on a weekly basis. We took 
times. The frustration, , a, back on the streets. 
so-and-so to court, and ne; th' k? Do you think the courts-I 

Mr. HALL. Well, what 0 you itn . 
know you do, but let me ~fkrah~ has been suspended from school 

Whenever you ge? a c 1 fuen that child is taken befor~ a mag
on one or tw:o occaSlOns, anthd. k that the judiciary system IS too Ie
istrate or a Judge, do you In 
nient on those people? . Very much so. 

Mr. LOZANO. Some are, yes, s~r. t ery, vin areas where I go that 
Mr HALL. I've seen many Ins an~es 

theY'~e back on the streets on probation. 
Mr. LOZANO. That'sbcot~rect: J'ust a license to steal, as far as I'm 
Mr. HALL. And pro a Ion IS 

concerned. t tent? 
Mr. LOZANO. Could I make one s a em'rl '15 with a 7-month-old 
On October 30, ther~ w~s a young gl ~u~ber of years from an 

child that had beeD: USIng Inhalan~s. f~~ ~ur school district and into 
[unintelligibl~] famIly. ~~eh:o:~t ~~tended more that; 16 ~ays of 
our communIty. The ghirt' because of truancy and dIsruptive be
school. She was broug In 
havior and incorrigible ak~ ~~a: rh~k 1~~dicating] for the juveni~e 

And I prepared a pac e a d the court-or, the judge smd 
officers to present t? the churl' and she must attend school on a 
that girl must continue sc 00 an 
daily basis. . , , ending hours of time, the truant 

Well she dId not. So, we rElI SPII I m' aking home visits. Never 
, . 't' t cher as we as , f '1 officer, the VlSl Ing eath 'Sh's the only supporter of the amI y. 

could speak to t1:e m~ t er. ·l- a child and this one, 15-year-old. 
Another unmarrIed SIS er Wl 'Ill 

And we just coul.dnfl't--. tHer CTirls to do the same, stay away' 
And she was In uenClng o!, b~ 

from school. . ~l had many. So, of course, I 
So, instead of l;avlng dO~~ f,~ o~:~f~he recommendations I made 

believe in expulslOn, an a 
for expulsion. I' ing to deal with it, with this young 

I know that the po lCe are go 
girl, next week, I daredsa~t' think _ "W that whatever the police do 

Mr HALL. but you on ,uu , 
will s'olve that particular problem. 
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Mr. LOZANO. Well, we cooperate. We turn them over to the juve
nile probation office. rJ'he juvenile probation office prepares a case, 
going before the Judicial system, the judge. And that'1s what I'm 
saying. That's what I just said, and I'm just repeating myself. 

Mr. HALL. Mr. Johnston. 
Mr. JOHNSTON. You made a statement. Mr. Hall, and I'd like to 

back up to a little bit about the parents. And you feel like it ought 
to be in the hands of the parents. And I totally agree. 

But if you go out on the street and ask the parents have they 
ever sat down and discussed drug abuse with their children, I dare 
say, 3 percent might have, 97 percent won't have. 

Mr. HALL. I've had them come before that school board in Mar
shall, parents with children, who had some sort of drug abuse. 
People that I knew. Good, solid folks in Harrison County, who had 
no earthly knowledge or idea that their daughter or son might be 
011 this drug thing. And when you hear it unfold before a school 
board there and you see those parents just get into nearly a convul
sive state, it's a serious, serious situation. 

So, I don't think that you can say in many instances-and you 
know, when I think of peer pressure, maybe I don't broaden it out 
enough, but I always kind of get it on the basis of the children are 
intimidated by their mothers and daddies sometimes. Maybe peer 
pressure should be magnified to include children who are their as
sociates and all that. I'm sure that's correct. 

But I think you're going to have to get back. We can legislate, we 
can create funds, we can have hearings all up and down this coun
tryside. But until you get the mothers and fathers involved in this 
entire process, you're not going to solve it. 

Now, I could talk all day, Mr. Chairman, and I know I've talked 
too much already. But I get really concerned when I hear people 
who are experts differing on law enforcement. That's kind of what 
triggered me this morning. 

It's now law enforcement, but schools. The suspension business. 
Mr. LOZANO. Again, I've held different positions in Iny different 

assignments, and at one time, I felt that we could deal with it from 
the school standpoint. That's no longer the case. In my last state
ment, my testimony was that we, as elected officials, will address 
the problem. And I dare say, with you, that we're going to have to 
involve more people, parent or nonparents. 

Mr. HALL. We had testinlony yesterday from a person who said 
that the intimidation of the student, expulsion from school, too 
many rules, and punishment won't work. 

I don't agree with that. I wrote it down as it was stated. 
Now, if you take that position, then you've gotten to the place 

that of the Chief of Police of Brownsville told us yesterday that the 
magnitude of the problem is too big for all of us. And I don't think 
we've gotten to that point, yet. If we do, we ought to disband this 
committee and go back home. 

I yield back the balance of my time, as I've already overstayed it. 
Mr. RANGEL. Well, I think that your background, and I don't 

mean as a legislator, but as a member of the school board, shows 
that we don't, in the Congress, have the answer and that we're 
using these exchanges to see whether or not there are new ap
proaches. 
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I listened very attentively to positions that you've taken, Mr. 
Hall and I have nothing but sympathy for the mayor. 
B~cause as a schoolteacher, if you did follow your conservative 

trend and kick them out because you were unable to get the politi
cians to support programs to prevent them from coming drugged, 
then you leave your educator's hat at the school and come back as 
a member of the city council or the mayor, and then you ca~'t 
raise money to keep them in jail, if, in fact, that is. what the ma~n 
extreme would be. To kick them out and not be lenIent on them In 
jail. 

And, Mr. Hall, part of that. testiI~ony we got yes.terday f;om a 
Pederal judge was just as frIghtenIng ~s ~he sh«=:rIffs testimony 
who claimed that you would sell drugs Wlth ImmunIty. 

The U.S. Attorney was saying that he has to consider the c~se
load in court as he indicts and prosecutes. And we are talkIng 
about felons. So--

And then, this committee was in California, and one sheriff told 
this committee that, yes, he could indict a lot more people, but 
whose going to pay the taxes to pay for the trial. 

And it hurt me as an American and as a lawyer and as a law
maker to believe that law enforcement was based on the communi
ty's willingness to pay taxes to prosecute the cases. 

So clearly what we have here is a community that is so igno
rant'or so af;aid to face up to this frightening problem that they're 
not willing to pay their load to either educate to prevent ?r, c~r
tainly the criminal justice system is not prepared to take In kids 
when 'they haven't even got room for the interstate traffickers or 
the international traffickers. 

Mrs. Prichard, in this war against drugs, which I learned a lot 
about yesterday, and we made a commitment, at least, Mr. Ortiz 
agreed with the chair that we're going to flow through and pull out 
the good and see whether we can assist in national and, also, to see 
whether or not we can assist them in the Texas area to coordinate 
those people who don't have the participation tp.at y.our groups. do. 

But does the organized church play a role ill thIS war agaInst 
drugs? Are they listed among the supporters in Texas? 

Mrs. PRICHARD. The executive director of the Texans' War on 
Drugs is in this room, and he could probably answer that better 
than I. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, no, 1--
M~·s. PRICHARD. But here in Corpus Christi, we have had the in

volvement of individual clergyman and individual congregations. 
We have not had denominational support. 

Mr. RANGEL. That's what I meant. 
Mrs. PRICHARD. No. 
Mr. RANGEL. And I notice, Mr. Johnston, that you're very active 

in the church. Have you found the institutional church involved? 
rm not talking about the individual. You're in real estate, and 
some are teachers. But have you found your church to say, "Count 
me in this war"? 

Mr. JOHNSTON. No, not 3$ a church. No. 
Mr. RANGEL. And, Mr. M~Aycr, has it been your experience that 

politicans and those who seek elective office always have a sensi
tive ear for the church in terms of what they want? 
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Mr. LOZANO. Let's be honest. You're in politics. So am I. I think 
that this problem has fallen on deaf ears, as far as politicians go, 
because the youngsters don't vote, and the parents don't know 
enough about the problem to deal with it on the political scene. 

Contrary to what I heard here yesterday and, you know, this 
morning, it's a problem that, perhaps, cannot be answered by 
having meetings here and in California and different places. 

But I, for one, am very optimistic about what can be done, be
cause there have been other menaces that have befallen us here in 
this Nation and we have found resources to deal with it. And hope
fully, let it be a political issue. 

And I intend to carry this message to my community. I have 
tried to involve the other elected officials there to no avail, but I 
have not completely given up. 

But, finally, this present council has provided money to hire 
someone to be a liaison between volunteer groups, the city, and the 
schools. And--

Mr. RANGEL. I guess my question was, Mr. Mayor: Do you believe 
that the church could put political pressure on individual elected 
officials in connection with getting their interest? 

One of the problems we have in New York is teenage, pregnancy, 
and so, talking about educating the parents, really don't mean too 
much, because the child, the baby, needs an education. 

Mr. LOZANO. There's a group that has just emerged. And, you 
know, this is the scary thing about this matter of the burnings in 
the gulf. You have enough people throughout the valley; 18,000 sig
natures, mind you, in 4 months. 

And this is something new that very little of us know. Yet, the 
leadership of the people involved, through the church or churches 
interfaith, has gotten astounding responses. And yet, you know, th~ 
drug problems, we've tried with this group and that group. 

And hopefully, to answer your question, that might be the 
answer, Congressman, to involve the churches, this group that has 
just emerged, interfaith. Hopefully, they will take this problem
this concern. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, the committee thanks all of you for the indi
vidual and collective work that you're doing in this area. 

And we come at the invitation of Congressman Ortiz to give you 
support. 

It's a little confusing as to how you would like to see Federal as
sistance. Everyone says they don't want any strings attached and 
eliminate the bureaucracy. 

But this administration sort of believes that you don't have to 
worry about the strings because they're not going to give you the 
money. 

But you don't have to be questioned on how would you like it to 
come in. They rely heavily on volunteerism, on the church, and on 
many in this great country, seeing a problem, will all put their 
shoulders to the wheel and turn it around. And a lot of television, 
of course. 

But I think that when parents realize that a different type of ap
proach has to be taken, this administration, like any other admin
istration, listens, especially during an election year, to what the 
people really want. 
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I hope you'll allow us to be supportive of your efforts. And it 
would seem to me that those representatives, especially those that 
represent Spanish people in the area, and it wouldn't be too much 
to ask our local priests and ministers to call them in just for a con
ference to point out to them the needs of their parishioners and the 
needs of the community and to let the elected officials know that 
their support would allow them to be remembered in the parish's 
prayers at the appropriate time. 

And their failure to respond, of course, might be mentioned at 
the appropriate time. 

It's such an important thing that-there's not too much in the 
Bible about doing anything for those that can take care of them
selves. The whole emphasis is on taking care of the powerless. 

And as a politician all of my adult life, I can't find any group 
that has less POWCL than an addicted kid. I mean, he or she is just 
out of everything, his own family, his community, and certainly the 
political arena. 

And so, it seems like you can pick up a couple of points political
ly and in heaven by trying to do something for this group of people. 

In any event, we will continue to work with you. If you have any 
additional suggestions or recommendations that you'd like to make, 
the record will remain open for you to do that. 

Thank you for your commitment. 
Mr. LOZANO. Thank you. 
Mr. RANGEL. The next panel is a group of educators headed by 

Mr. Jesse Benton, who is the principal of the Stell Intermediate 
School in Brownsville, TX. 

And from Robstown, TX, the superintendent there is Dr. Jose 
Gallegos. 

And also, the superintendent from here in Corpus Christi, Dr. 
Vance Littleton. 

You educators can see this panel is trying to become educated. 
We hope you can confme your oral testimony to 5 minutes so 

that the members of the panel could have some concern as to how 
we can be most helpful. 

Let's start off with Mr. Benton. 

TESTIMONY OF JESSE BENTON, PRINCIPAL, STELL 
INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL, BROWNSVILLE, TX 

Mr. BENTON. To start with, I'm representing Simon Rivera, the 
assistant superintendent for secondary education in BroWnsville. 
And he's in the hospital with an operation, and so, I'm just filling 
in for him. 

I have his report. Some of the things I can't SUbstantiate, but I 
do have feelings and knowledge of Brownsville, because I have 
been a principal since 1952. And so, I will be fIlling in for him rep
resenting junior high school level. 

Mr. RANGEL. The full report will be placed in our record. 
Mr. BENTON. Thank you, sir. 
And Mr. Rivera sends his regrets. 
Mr. RANGEL. Accepted. 
Mr. BENTON. The schools in Brownsville have been very interest

ed in the drug problem and educating our students. In our science 
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department, there is quite an area set aside .for drug. abuse. And 
the different courses do implement a program of educat~on. . 

And in Brownsville we start with the first grade In trYIng to 
educate our students plumb through the junior high school. 

And we do have some help from some outside sources: Two of our 
newest sources from the outside Fairligh,ts Incorporat~on and the 
Palmer Drug Abuse Program have been Instrumental In our com-

munity. . h t d t h t I N ow, as far as dealing in the school WIth t e s. u en w 0 ~c ua -
ly comes to school with marijuana or under the Influence of It, cer
tainly we expel them from school if we think necessary. The school 
board' has gone along with us if it be for more than 2 weeks. A 
principal can suspend for 2 weeks. , ., 

There is an alternative school that s been put up. Now, It w~n t 
set up strictly for drugs. It was for students wh? h~d behaVIoral 
problems, but where students may get an educatIOn In a more re
stricted environment than a regular claSS!OO~i., And t?ey do get 
some good counseling there. And we feel lIke It s working a great 
deal helping out with our situation. . 

Other than what Mr. Rivera haS i~ the repor~ here,.I feel like 
we're doing a good job as far as takIng care of ImmedIate needs. 
They don't seem to be in much larger numbers than we had a year 
or two ago. . d 

In junior high school, there's one thIng that was not a~dresse 
that is a problem in Brownsville and has been fo; some tIme, and 
this is inhalants. In other words, student~ w:ho ,,?-ll buy glue. An~ 
this, basically, I think is elementary and JunIOr hIgh s~hool. .1 don. t 
think it's very strong in the high schools. ~nd they II sniff thIS 
glue, and they'll get high on that. And then, It went from there to 
spray paint. .. k 't ill al t 

And we have an ordinance In Brownsville that ma es 1 ~g 0 
sell these inhalants to minors. So, there h~ be~n an e~fort m our 
local community to control that type of SItuatIon. It IS not c0-n::
pletely enforced, but if the schools become a~are of a pl.ace that s 
selling it allegedly to students, then the polIce are notIfied. And 
they go by and warn them. . . 

I don't know of anybody being prosecuted, but they dIScontmue 
this type of practice. And it has been helpful. . 

And that's the only-I can't come up with any rec~mmendatI?ns. 
I think that-I'm hoping somebody will come up WIth somethIng, 
but as far as me to say: This will solve the problem, I don't have 
any suggestions. 

[The statement of Mr. Rivera appears on p. 32~.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Mr. Benton. Doctor LIttleton. 

TESTIMONY OF VANCE LITTLETON, PH.D., SUPERINTENDENT, 
,CORPUS CHRISTI INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT, CORPUS 
'CHRISTI, TX 

Mr. LITTLETON. Mr. Chairman and me~bers of the committee,.I 
want to thank you, ,also, for the opportunIty to present some testI
mony to the committee today. 

o 
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I would like to state that I am speaking for me, as an individual, 
not representing our board or school district per se. What I have to 
say is strictly my personal opinion. 

I have given you some written information regarding the pro
grams that we have underway in our school district to ~ducate the 
students and, hopefully, prevent their involve!:1cnt in using and 
abusing drugs .. 

We've also presented some statements in the written testimony 
about our particular policies in the district which, in essence, calls 
for recommendation by the principal to expel youngsters who 
either possess or are under the influence of drugs in our school, as 
well as alcohol, for that matter. 

1'd like to make my comments pertain to my observations of 
these efforts. 

I think we have a well-designed drug education program, as far 
as the education effort is concerned. We have ample materials, 
films, various resources. We put quite a bit of effort into in-service 
training for teachers. 

I would have to say that while I think our effort, as compared 
with most school districts, I could not say that the end result in 
terms of preventing students from becoming involved is that suc
cessful. 

I've observed this in this school district and three others for the 
last 10 or 15 years, and I would have to say that the educational 
efforts, in general, have not proved too successful, obviously, in pre
venting young men and women from getting involved. 

I do think it's needed. We need to make that effort. Please don't 
read that into it. But I can't say it's been too successful. 

I believe that the strong policy regarding efforts to eliminate the 
presence of drugs on school campus is a must by school systems. I 
think it's had an extended and very beneficial effect in Corpus 
Christi with the particular policy that we have had in effect. 

I visited with a group of students this morning who are on my 
advisory group from each of our high schools. I asked them what 
they seem to-what they perceive, rather, to be some of the ef
fects-or, reasons, rather, for some decline that we're seeing in 
terms of use of drugs. 

They, almost to a person, felt like the strong policy that we have 
has had an effect. Why. It sent a clear message. It sent a clear mes
sage about the importance of it and what the school district and 
the parents in this community felt about the use of drugs by young 
people. 

And I think, secondly, they're saying that in the school setting is 
where they have more interaction with friends, peers) if you will, 
than in any other setting, and because there is less drugs now 
present on our campuses, they're not subjected to the influence 
from their friends to use drugs that they had in previous years 
prior to the advent of the policy. 

I think it's going to take a very strong, total effort by local com
munities, as well as the effects of other governmental agencies that 
we can have. 

We've had here in Corpus the chemical people presentation 
where we had meetings in each of our schools trying to attract par
ents and others to come and explore what might be done to help 
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address with significant societal problem through much of the re
sources in a local community. We had some 2,000 patients come to 
the meetings that we've had, which was under the leadership of 
Families in Action in cooperation with the school district. And I 
think through those efforts and follow-up efforts, you can get much 
of the community to be aware of the problem and seek ways to deal 
with it and increase our efforts. And I just believe that's a man
date. 

If I had a solution to suggest to you today, we'd bottle it and sell 
it and be well ahead of the game. But, obviously, I don't. 

I do think that education, school districts, do have a role in, one, 
providing an educational program. I think, No.2, they must take a 
strong stance regarding their efforts to eliminate the presence of 
drugs on school campuses. And I think that message has to be 
clear. 

I think they have to cooperate with other agencies in the commu
nity, including patrons, to make a maximum community effort as 
to the whole matter. 

I think, at the national level, ways through our TV media and 
others to, again, increase awareness. I think looking at various, if I 
may say so, TV programs that seem to smile on the use of drugs is 
not helping. 

These same students this morning said that various TV pro
grams that addressed it more realistically and looked upon with 
disfavor does influence young people. 

I think our law enforcement agencies need to increase their ef
forts in dealing with young people who violate the law in that 
regard. I know they're strapped personnel wise, according to their 
statements. It's difficult to deal with, but students get that mixed 
message. They see, in Corpus Christi, the school district taking a 
strong stance, and on the other hand, they feel that they can get 
away with it with law enforcement agencies if they're only using 
small amounts. And that is a mixed message. 

I do believe, again, that it's going to take a strong educational 
effort, a strong stance by the school district, their work with other 
agencies, but a maximum effort on the part of that community to 
explore all the ways they can possibly deal with this problem. It is 
difficult to raise that awareness and get that involvement, but I 
think that's what it's going to take. 

[The prepared statement of Mr. Littleton appears on p. 329.] 
Idr. RANGEL. Thank you, Dr. Littleton, Dr. Gallegos. 

TESTIMONY OF JOSE GENE GALLEGOS, SUPERINTENDENT, 
ROBSTOWN INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT, ROBSTOWN, TX 

Mr. GALLEGOS. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, staff 
members, I have a prepared statement 1'd like to r9ad to you this 
morning. 

I will speak with you today, of course, from the perspective of a 
State school superintendent in a school district supporting 4,700 
students and also a lower socioeconomic setting, and state to you 
the problems that educators contend with as follows: 

'. 
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No.1, what is the extent of the drug abuse problem in the 
schools and what can be done to more effectively bring the problem 
under control? 

There !ire definitely p:r:obl~ms in regard to drug abuse in Ameri
can publIc schools. And I d lIke to share with you gentlemen some 
statistics that I ran into recently, and I'm sure 'you've bee~ bom
barded with statistics. 

T1.tese statist~cs were put together by the University of Maryland 
Institute of SOCIal Research for the University of :Maryland. 

No.1, r.oughly t'Y0-thirds of all Americans try an illicit drug 
bef~re theIr final ~lgh school year, and 1 in every 16 high school 
senIors smoke marIjUana daily. 

Second, many of them started chemical use between the ages of 
11 and 14. 
· .No .. 3, harmful effects of marijuana. Smoking five marijuana 
JOInts. m a week has the same effect on the respiratory system as 
smoking 112 tobacco cigarettes. That is significant data and I'm 
sure yo~ have additional data before you. ' 
· By !his, I mean that students are definitely using or experiment
Ing ~th drugs at a higher level than ever before and we have to 
adI~llt that .fact. Th~ availability of drugs, coupled with permissive 
socIetal. attltud~s,. wIll co~tinue to make this problem one of major 
proportlOns. It IS Imperative that all public agencies work together 
to combat the problem. 
· Mr. Chairman, I was pleased with your comments about involv
mg th~ church. I don't believe that we in society look hard enough 
at the lnvolveme.nt of the church t? get behind us in this particular 
e~ort. And I thmk, we s1.tould. It s a very vital force and a very 
Vlable force. that we re gOI~g to have to contact, get in touch with, 
and get theIr support, theIr active support in this particular proc
ess. 
· I would like to state that educators are making efforts to combat 
the drug abuse proble~. They and. school boards are attacking the 
problem through the ImplementatlOn of strict drug abuse policies 
~? dru~ prevention pr~grams which do involve parents and other 
CItizens m the communIty. We all have a stake in solving the prob
lem of drug abuse. We need to get parents involved as well as 
teachers. ~nd. I think that this is extr(~mely critical. ' 

In our dl~t~ICt, we have a very strong policy which is enforced by 
sc!t0o~ admInIstrators and supported by our board of education. We 
will sImply not tolerate drug abuse by our students. I would fur
ther suggest that school districts increase communication and not 
~low suspended students to cross school district boundaries to reg
ISter. And I know this is a problem. 

In ~obstown, we also have a communitywide drug education 
co~mlt~ee compo~ed of educators, students, and parents. The com
mIttee IS gene~at~ng a d~ug awareness program that I believe will 
have a ~ery SIgnIficant Impact on drug abuse in our schools and 
communlt:r .. AI~o, we. have bee!l working jointly with the Coastal 
Bend FamIlIes m Action CommIttee to combat drugs in our schools. 
I would stz:ess an~ underscore the importance of the drug aware
ness commIttee bemg formulated and being pushed and promoted 
by parents. This is critical. 
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I do not believe there is a significant effort at the Federal and 
State level that attempts to address the drug abuse problem in our 
schools. There is a definite need for greater resources to be allocat
ed to assist school districts with their drug abuse and prevention 
programs. 

You will recall that I come from a very low socioeconomic set-
ting. Our board of education is very much strapped for financial re
sources. And we need help. 

Larger school districts, perhaps, wealthier school districts, per-
haps, can cut it. For us, it's very difficult. 

It is particularly important that resources be made available to 
school districts of all sizes for alternative education programs for 
those studentc:; who are suspended for drug abuse. 

In conclusion, I would encourage this committee to provide the 
needed emphasis at the Federal, State and local level to direct both 
human and material resources at the elementary and secondary 
level of public education to combat this serious and ever-growing 
problem. 

I would close by saying that it's going to be particularly signifi-
cant, gentlemen, if we're really going to attack this problem,. that 
we begin the drug education process very early ons and I'm talking 
about preschool, kindergarten, first grade. 

And I don't believe that we have been doing that. At least, we 
have not been doing that good a job in our school district, and it's 
going to have to be attacked that ea,rly. 

Thank you. 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Gallegos appears on p. 333.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank YOU1 Doctor. 
You indicated that you're an educator in a poor community. Are 

your teachers organized by the labor movement, or the union? 
Mr. GALLEGOS. Fortunately, not. No, sir. 
Mr. RANGEL. Do they negotiate their salary with your school 

board? 
Mr. GALLEGOS. Mr. Chairman, we don't have collective bargain-

ing in the State of Texas. I believe a few school districts in the 
State do allow for consultation rights, which basically is collective 
bargaining. 

Mr. RANGEL. How do you express your needs as an educator? To 
whom do you go? To the city council, to the State legislators? How 
do you get your curriculum supported, the things that you think 
are necessary for the kids? 

Mr. GALLEGOS. Well, basically, we start-our staff starts with the 
board of education. We go to the politicians that sit on the board of 
education and start with them. And then, I try to employ active 
parents. 

Mr. RANGEL. How do you get the case of drug abuse education 
before these politicians that sit on the local school board? 

Mr. GALLEGOS. Well, I'll tell you, they--
Mr. RANGEL. I know how you get the question of the teachers' 

salaries before them, but r:pl just trying to find out: How do you 
get them an agenda to show what the needs are in order for you to 
do a more effective ~ob in educating? 

Mr. GALLEGOS. I m not sure I understand your question, Mr. 
Chairman. 

'. 
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Mr. RANGEL. Well, you see, we received the testimony of this 
panel that we're doing the best we can with what we have to work 
with. 

And you're saying: But we do need more resources. 
And I'm trying to see what we can do to support your request. 

But in order to do that, I have to find out how you put in your re
quest and to whom for additional resources. 

In other words, if you did, in fact, have a teachers union, then I 
would hope that the teachers would include in their demands for 
pension benefits and better tenure and higher quality of life, also 
sometimes, as relates to moneys for drug prevention education. 

But since you don't have that system, we can't take that to the 
union. And God knows, we're not going to take it to the church. 

But where do we take it? 
It seems to me that you are the one that suggests to the school 

board what you need to operate. 
I guess my question is: Do you include, in your recommendations 

to the school board, resources for drug education? 
nilr. GALLEGOS. Mr. Chairman, in our community, resources are 

extremely limited, and this is a cry that, perhaps, you get from 
every superintendent you talk to but we have limited resources. 

Mr. RANGEL. As an educator, you heard the mayor say that while 
resources are limited, you know, in going to the city council and 
going to the State legislators, why hasn't the council heard how 
much it costs to take care of some of these problems or find them
selves evicted. 

I mean, the cost of kicking a guy out of school, it's a very costly 
experience to the community. I mean, if you really want to carry 
through with it, you know, you got to take him to court; you got to 
have the district attorney's office; and if he's poor, you got to get 
him a lawyer; if you put him away, you got to get a handful of 
social workers, jailers, probation officers, and social workers. And 9 
chances out of 10, he still comes out a problem. It's a very costly 
operation. 

Why is it that we can't try to get some prevention, not because of 
compassion or sensitivity to the kids' needs, but just in terms of 
how much money it's going to cost. 

Mr. GALLEGOS. Mr. Chairman, I would address your question in 
this fashion. I believe I already have by saying that we must begin 
the inservice project with teachers at the elementary level. We've 
not done a very good job yet. 

Mr. RANGEL. But the teachers haven't requested money, have 
they? , 

Mr. GALLEGOS. Not in this regard. We just have not prioritized it. 
We have not started the education process, both with parents and 
staff. 

Mr. RANGEL. Let's try to do that, because the school board is not 
going to give you an open hand. They're politicians, too. 

Mr. Ortiz. 
Mr. ORTIZ. Somebody mentioned that the school should playa 

role. How extensive should the role be? Now, what would be the 
role. as far as trying to implement some type of drug prevention 
program? Should we set up a curriculum? And if we do, at what 
level in order to reach the child? Anybody? 
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Mr. LITTLETON. Congressman, if I may, the State has previously 
mandated that the Texas public schools have a drug education and 
prevention effort. In our district, it is from K through 12, included 
in the three subject areas indicated in my wri~ten report... . 

While resources that have been made avaIlable are lImIted, In 
my opinion they are adequate. The resources currently come from 
State as far as-or, rather, our general funds from the State 
allow~ us to get the materials. They have films and things avail
able through the Education Service Centers. 

As you heard from previous testimony, we have volunteer efforts 
in our community that supplement our own resources in terms of 
the education efforts. 

In terms of providing an education toward a preventative pro
gram-for a preventative program, while you can always use more, 
I personally believe it is adequate. 

Mr. ORTIZ. Then, you think--
Mr. LITTLETON. And I think our role should be in that. But I 

would hasten to say that over the many years that we've been in 
this, the use of drugs has increased, it's gone down, it's varied. And 
it's not to my knowledge, yet been able to be related to the educa
tion effort to prevent it. 

I'm not saying, again, by that statement, Don't do it. I just would 
hate to put all our marbles on that partieular element. 

Mr. ORTIZ. Can you describe the different methods under the 
drug prevention program at the school, that you would apply at the 
K level, and then the other levels? How do you reach the child
let's say a kindergarten child-how no you speak to him? How do 
you get to him versus a junior or sophomore in high school? 

Mr. LITTLETON. You're beginning, at the early levels, to address 
not so much in-depth, factual knowledge about the results of chem
ical abuse. You're trying to develop an appropriate attitude about 
the child's self or physical wellbeing, so that the youngster will not 
intend to have a negative self-image and also have pride in his 
physical wellbeing. He's not going to be eventUally susceptible to 
pressures that might be brought to bear regarding drug abuse. 

As you get older, then you're able to get in with more factual in
formation and appeal to reasoning aspects of the youngster. 

It's a sequential program, infused, generally, in about three sub
ject areas that I mentioned in my written report, health, science 
and social studies. 

I use other activities, in terms of group discussions, role playing. 
We bring in law enforcement officers and other people to help play 
role models as we discuss the total effort. 

I think the public schools in Texas, through some 10 more years 
of experience in this business, have generally designed some ade
quate programs. I think where we are weak in it, on occasion, are 
with teachers who may not have the kind of understanding and in
depth training. We're always constantly working on that. 

Mr. GALLEGOS. Mr. Ortiz. 
Mr. ORTIZ. Yes. 
Mr. GALLEGOS. I'd like to make a comment. 
I think that in the traditional curriculum projects that we have 

implemented in the public schools is not really beginning to ad
dress the critical issue. 
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These young people in various communities, such as ours, are 
very much aware of the drug business and the drug trade. They're 
aware. They're aware through the media. They're aware through 
the community contacts. 

I believe we're going to have to address the issue of drug abuse 
much more directly at the elementary level and stop the sugar
coating effect of this particular issue. We're all saying, everyone 
keeps talking about we have a very serious problem .and that it 
needs to be addressed head on with pre-K, kindergartl:m, and first 
grade students. These are sophisticated young people that need to 
know the facts. 

Mr. ORTIZ. You stated that even though the State mandates, we 
talk about K to 12, how much time do we spend in a 6-week period 
training or teaching a child? 

Mr. LITTLETON. Congressman, I don't have accurate information 
in terms of the numbers of minutes, say, average per week or per 6 
weeks, that have been devoted to it. 

Again, I would-my perspective on it is that while the education
al program is adequate, we have not seen that dramatkally affect 
the ups and downs in terms of the frequency of use of drugs by 
young people. 

And I don't think the issue is the adequacy of the educational 
program as presented by the public schools. I think the problem is 
more extensive than'that, and that while we are addressing one 
element fairly well, it needs a coordinated, concentrated effort 
from many other sources, as well. 

Mr. ORTIZ. I was just reading in the newspaper the other day 
about a test that shows drug-prone youngsters. Are you. familiar 
with that test? 

Mr. LITTLETON. I read the same article. 
Mr. ORTIZ. I believe that the problem is so serious that now they 

have developed a test, which they think is going to be a part of the 
answer. 

Then, I feel that the school district will need to do something to 
prepare themselves, prepare so that we can meet this challenge. 

In my years in law enforcement, I have felt that there has to be 
some type of educational program, and I do agree that we need to 
get to the child at a very, very young age. And I'm not t:rying to 
dump all the responsibilities to the school districts. I do understand 
that, as parents, we do have a responsibility, too. 

And it is going to take many, many ingredients to accomplish 
the job. But I cannot find a better place to begin than mayhe at the 
school district-the school level. 

And I do agree with Doctor Gallegos. We cannot continue! to soft 
pedal the issue anymore. We're just going to have to face it head 
on. 

I don't have any more questions at this point, Mr. Chairman. 
I would like somebody else to maybe--
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Hall. 
Mr. HALL. I have no questions, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. Well, I think that the members agree that our next 

panel that we should put on in the area of law enforceme,nt, the 
local law enforcement agencies first. And then, after that, have 
that backed up with the Federal law enforcement officials. 

-----~----- --
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And then, when it comes to the community problems that are 
drug related, perhaps we ought to put the professionals on first and 
then have the community people come on behind. 

Doctor Littleton, your testimony is in sharp conflict with the 
panel that preceded you, and there's no difference in the degree of 
concern about the problem that we face. 

So, it seems to me that it would be helpful if the community 
would get together, because ies clear to me that you're probably 
seeing the same things from a different discipline, from a different 
perspective. 

But if you're doing all that you can with adequate resonrces and 
it's not working, then obviously, we have to find out from other 
people that may not have the training that you have as an educa
tor as to what have they done to make it work. 

And maybe the proper place to conduct drug education is the 
school. Maybe it's the home. Maybe it's the church. But I think we 
all agree that, collectively, we could be doing a better job, and we 
want to help you in doing that. 

And you say, Dr. Littleton, that as far as resources are con
cerned, that that's not one of the problems, as you see it. 

Mr. LITTLETON. Yes, sir, I know I'm somewhat of a maverick in 
regard to the question of resources. 

I really do believe that I've seen efforts, in my experience with 
two or three districts and certainly the Corpus Christi public 
schools, where there has been a very strong effort to eliminate the 
presence of drugs on campuses, and with some significant success. 

Not that it was eliminated, but we've cut it down dramatically 
from what it had been prior to the advent of this particular policy. 

But we still have use of drugs by young people. It's occurring 
predominantly off campuses. 

Mr. RANGEL. But responsible people are saying in testimony-we 
could swear the witnesses, but it's not necessary. To my knowledge, 
there is not an overall policy to deal with drug abuse in south 
Texas schools. 

Mr. LITTLETON. OK. I would say: What is the objective of a 
policy? 

If the objective is to prevent young people from ever using drugs, 
then certainly not. If it is to eliminate the use or possession of 
those drugs on campuses, then I think you can take a strong stance 
which will substantially reduce the amount of use on campuses. 
And I think thaes happened here. 

I can quote some figures for you. 
Mr. RANGEL. How can we claim the policy is working, when 

yearly there are more of the students being suspended from 
schools? 

Mr. LITTLETON. Prior to the advent of this policy, we had some 
300 to 400 cases of first usage or instances of use of drugs on our 
campuses per year. 

The first year in the advent of the policy, it dropped to 100. 
It's back up to around 200, but still, nearly only half that which 

we had in terms of referrals for the presence or use of drugs on 
campuses before the acceptance of the policy. 
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Our teachers constantly state in support of the policy that it has 
eliminated students from coming to campus under the influence or 
doped up. It has reduced the amount of drugs on campus. 

But it can take a very-it can have a very dramatic effect on 
that. It's the elimination of the use of it by the young people out
side the schools that I think is the major problem. 

When you refer a youngster to the policy or you point these 
things out and because of whatever reasons they can't deal with it, 
that is one, again, loophole and message that comes clear to young 
people. They have the message on campus. It's outside of that, I 
think, where we're slipping. 

Mr. RANGEL. Have you any reponse to Mayor Lozano's testimo
ny? 

Mr. LITTLETON. I didn't hear all of Sam's testimony. Sam and I 
worked together in Harlingen and was there when, in fact, they es
tablished the alternative center. 

Regarding resources may be what you're referring to. 
Mr. RANGEL. Well, I think, as an educator, you know, people 

seldom take those problems to city hall, and they go to city hall, 
and they don't help them there. And I just don't know what you 
do. 

Mr. LITTLETON. Mr. Chairman, first, I don't want to think the 
phrase should apply. I don't think schools ought not be involved 
with other agencies. I really do. I think we have a responsibility to 
do what we can first in our business and on our campuses, and I 
think we have a responsibility to work with other agencies. 

Mr. RANGEL. Let me ask you a question. The mayor is saying 
that these kids are being kicked out of schools, are causing him 
problems as mayor, causing him problems in the city council, caus
ing him problems in the juvenile delinquency and crime. And as a 
politician, he is saying that these kids being kicked out of school 
are causing the community probL ~s, social problems, and finan
cial problems. And he says that he can save his town a lot of grief 
by having some of these problems dealt with in the school. And 
then he goes to the school, and they say, "Well, we don't have 
money to deal with it here." 

You're saying you don't really believe you're causing any prob
lems in the community by expulsion and that you're doing a rela
tively good job with the resources that you have to work with and, 
as far as you're concerned, those resources are sufficient. 

Mr. GALLEGOS. Mr. Chairnlan. 
Mr. RANGEL. Yes. 
Mr. GALLEGOS. There's no question in my mind that we are caus

ing the community a problem. Whenever you take a 14-, 15-, 16-, 
17-year-old student and push him out of school, and we do that, we 
do enforce the drug policies, we have to, we have to address it. And 
we do suspend for long periods of time. 

So, when you do this, that takes that 14-year-old, whether it's in 
Ci..:rpus Christi, or Robstown, or Dallas, and it puts him on the 
street. 

Mr. RANGEL. That's why, doctor, I'm so sensitive to the mayor's 
problem because most politicians only have the board of election to 
beat up on, but--
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Once you eliminate that guy from your system, it, makes. yOl~r 
system a lot better to operate. And I gue~s .what y<?u re sayIng IS 
that it's not your problem once you elImInate hIm from your 
system. 

Mr. LITTLETON. What I need to clarify on that is where the re
sponsibility for working with parents and young people who have 
gotten in drugs lives. ~f it is with .the school district, res, we need 
more resources. If it IS more an Integral part of SOCIety-or, the 
community then maybe some other agencies need those resources. 

Mr. RANGEL. I knew, Doctor Littleton, that if we talked. long 
enough that we all w~)Uld find the type of language. :And ag:;tIn, as 
a lawyer, sometimes It'S dIfficult for me to ~ommunI~ate WIth my 
kids, but it just seems to me that we're basICally sayIng the same 
thing. . 

There may be some question as to whether or not the school IS 
the proper place, whether it's the home, whether it's a joint effo,rt. 

But I think that with so many good and wonderful communIty 
leaders that we've had the good fortune to have testify before us, it 
might be helpful if you could get together and try to find some 
common language, bec~use yo~'re sa~ing the ~ame thing. 

The issue as I see It now, IS you re fulfillmg the role that you 
believe the ~chool should play, but there is a larger role that some 
other part of society should take. 

Jack Cusack read into what you're saying is that, perhaps, it's 
the supply role, which again brings us back to forei~ policy. ~as 
nothing to do with local law enforcement. And there s no questIOn 
that there is a role. 

And all of us have a little expertise as to how we would like to 
see the problem attacked, but rather than having it appear, and I 
quote "appear," that it's being shifted--

And that's why I go back to the mayor, because he can't shift 
because he wears two hats. 

But once you say it should be the school system~ you can sleep 
nights, maybe, because your prod~ctiyity,. your classroom gra~es 
would go up, especially if you don t lIve In the same communIty 
where you teach. . . 

But if you're concerned about the overall communIty, I thInk 
that the community needs educators to tell them what they can 
and what they cannot do and where they do need resources, other 
resources, maybe outside of the educational system. . 

This is a great panel. You've been a great help. And we will be 
working with your new Congressman, who has now become a very 
seasoned Congressman, Solomon Ortiz, to have your c~m~ents J?ut 
on this committee to see how we can be more supportIve In trYIng 
to eliminate the problem. . . 

We think that your area has to be targeted as a prIOrIty area, 
because if we can't deal with the border and Mexico, then we 
might as well give it up for the rest of the Nation. 

Thank you so much. 
We're going to try to shift the schedule a little bit because the 

third panel is not here. We shifted our witness list. 
But we do understand that the State representative panel is 

here, and if they are here, we would like to hear from them at this 
time. 

o 



Is Miss Watson here? 
Miss WATSON. Yes. 
Mr. RANGEL. Very good. 
Doctor Simpson. 
And Mr. Veselka? 
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Mr. VESELKA. That's correct. 
Mr. RANGEL. And Monsignor Brosnan. 
Monsignor, if I'd known you were here, I would have i.hifted my 

remarks about the church tremendously. 
Monsignor BROSNAN. No problem. 
Mr. RANGEL. OK. Miss Deena Watson, State drug abuse director, 

Drug Abuse Prevention Division, 'rexas Department of Community 
Affairs, Austin, TX. 

Doctor Simpson, director of Behaviorial Research Program, 
Texas A&M Unive: '''y, College Station. 

Mr. Marvin VeseL ,associate commissioner for professional sup
port, Texas Education Agency, in Austin. Our good friend, J.J. 
Pickle from that area. 

And the Right Reverend Monsignor Dermot N. Brosnan, Patri
cian Movement, San Antonio, TX. Our friend Henry Gonzalez from 
that area, and an old and ,~.ear family in New York now from San 
Antonio, the Sutton family. Percy Sutton is now one of our family's 
business people, but has been one of our political leaders as well. 

Your full statements wHl be entered into the record. You've had 
an opportunity to hear the ~~:changes that we've had from educa
tors and other community people. 

And so, feel free, if you will, to deviate from the prepared testi
mony and to kind of weave in, perhaps, some of these answers to 
questions that were asked or we did not ask. 

We're going to ask that you attempt to restrict your testimony to 
5 minutes so that we'll have more of an opportunity to ask you 
questions. 

Miss Watson~ would you start us off, please. 

TESTIMONY OF DEENA WATSON, STATE DRUG ABUSE DIRECTOR, 
DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION DIVISION, TEX-4S DEPARTMENT OF 
COMlUUNrry A}4~FAIRS, AUSTIN, TX 

Miss WATSON. Mr. Chairman, I'd like to note that I have brought 
in this morning an addendum to the testimony to enter into the 
record. It is merely a directory of tlte treatment and prevention 
services supported through our agency. 

Mr. RANGEL. Without objection. 
[The directory referred to is in the committee files.] 
Miss WA'fSON. I do thank you, too, for the invimtion to address 

this committee on a number of issues l'elated to drug abuse in the 
Nation. 

I speak to you from the perspective of the director of the State 
drug agency and one who has worked in the field nationwide fol.' 
over 15 years. 

I do like to point out that I am particularly pleased that -:hi3 
committee has not restricted its interest to problens related to US3 

of narcotics, as iC) in the title of the committee, no!' to one prot!em 
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area, because I think it's becoming increasingly obvious that drug 
abuse is a far-reaching concern. 

And I think my central message here today is that we must ad
dress all facets of this issue with a well-balanced set of strategies 
informed by a keen understanding of our history in this area. 

This set of strategies must be addressed simultaneously to all 
populations potentially impacted by drug abuse, and must include 
balanced supply reduction and demand reduction efforts. 

Further, these efforts need to be coordinated and directed simi
larly at all governmental levels. 

I believe that the history of this country's drug abuse efforts has 
been successive pendulum swings from enforcement or supply re
duction to development of services to reduce the demand for drugs. 

And although we have made, progressively, technical improve
ments in both realms, we have yet to accomplish the balance neces
sary to really impact the problem. 

In the past couple qf years, the shift of emphasis on the Federal 
level to supply reduction has been so abrupt as to threaten the con
tinued viability of our prevention and treatment efforts. 

With the reduction of Federal funding for drug abuse services 
and the significant reduction in the leadership role of the National 
Institute on Drug Abuse, the treatment and prevention system has 
been ·veakened considerably. 

While there has been a 30-percent decrease in funds for treat
men .. and prevention services since 1980, there had been, in the 
same period of time, a 30-percent increase in Federal funds for 
drug law enforcement to a figure which is really $2% million 
higher than the total alcohol, drug, and mental health services 
block grant. 

Now, I'm sure the committee knows, but it hasn't been, appar
ently, in much of the testimony that I have heard so far in this 
hearing, that my agency-the Texas Department of Community 1:\.£
fairs Drug Abuse Prevention Division-is the designated agency re
sponsible for drug abuse services in Texas. 

We suffer from insufficient visibility, and we do so primarily be
cause our exclusive role lills heen that of administering the Federal 
dollars. 

The program that we have developed over the years has been 
one which has followed the guidelines of the categorical grants in 
dru::; abuse that were replcced by the current ADMS block grant. 

Vv' ~~ are in a situation where that has-is a dwindling program. 
We're making cutbacks because of loss of funds at a time when, as 
is stated in the written testimony here, at a time when we really 
need to be expanding services rather than decreasing services. 

A great deal of the problem is not just the quantity of services 
but that we have gaps in the continuity of services in some regions 
and lack of resources for sufficient coordination between the serv
ice sector or the demand reduction sector and the supply reduction 
sector. 

And this is why I have the central theme of balance throughout. 
It seems to me that a direct outcome of increased .supply reduction 
effort of more arrests, et cetera, will lead, inevitably, to a greater 
demand for treatment services. 
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Yes; we need to go through the criminal justice system. Yes; 
some people are ending in the penitentiaries, but not nearly as 
many as are arrested. And then, there are those that are very 
much more appropriate for treatment, I believe, than entering into 
a revolving-door criminal justice situation. 

So I think we have an increased demand for services, as has been 
brought out and will be brought out by other members of this 
panel today. 

I won't go into statistics that are here in the testimony. 
We have been fortunate with the advent of the block grant mech

anism. We have been able to take the greater flexibility and re
quirements that came about with the bock grant and will shift 
some of our emphasis into greater educational efforts. 

We have done this, however, at reduced funding levels. In other 
words, we're taking on that additional task of direct prevention 
services within the State as an economy measure. 

This, I would point out, is the first time that this agency has 
been heavily involved in education efforts beyond the field of drug 
abuse services. We have been involved in training service providers 
and some people who have a vested interest in the drug abuse com
munity. We now have reached out to public and-the general 
public and to private agencies providing a great deal of informa
tional materials, training workshops. We have just completed our 
second annual statewide conference of about 400 participants 
from-that would include educators, parent groups, and interested 
parents, school kids, for that matter, related agency personnel from 
the Department of Human Resources down to the local level. We 
provided everybody, I think, a very nice workshop. Again, a 3-day 
conference. 

This is the second one. They've been highly successful. 
Increasing, as we can, the visibility of the drug abuse issues and 

problems and being together with various people with the question 
of what we, as a whole, not just a State agency, intend to do about 
this problem. 

I think it's important to reiterate, since we've had a large bit to 
do here in Texas with nationwide research on treatment effective
ness, to point out that that research does indicate that drug abuse 
treatment does work. 

We, also, within the State, our State agency, we document indi
vidual client records for all of our treatment clients and our most 
recent data shows that about 50 percent of all clients improved 
during treatment and of those in treatment 9 months or more, 78 
percent show improvement. 

I think Doctor Simpson will be able to speak more fully, if you 
would like, on treatment effectiveness data. 

I'm also proud to point out that the State has launched fIDd is 
now in the fourth year of a prevention management evaluation 
system. Now, this applies primarily to secondary prevention efforts, 
intervention and alternative type strategies, and I think is a very 
fine advance in a very difficult problem of determining just how 
useful, just how effective prevention strategies really are. That's a 
very difficult area. 

Those of us vlho worked for years on treatment evaluation 
thought we had it hard then, but evaluation of prevention strate-
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gies, I think, is a much more difficult task but one that needs to be 
done. I do not think it's the responsible public strategy to begin to 
say-What we need to do in the education world, we need to pre
ven t drug abuse. 

Yes, that's a nice hypothetical situation. Certainly, it's less costly 
to prevent a problem than to try to deal with its outcome. 

On the other hand, we need to know responsibly where to ad
dress our public moneys in those prevention efforts, which are 
going to be most effective. 

Our program, as administered at the State level, I think it's im
portant to bring out that this program is perceived-There was 
some confusion, I believe. Maybe it was the terminology in yester
day afternoon's hearing, and I remember the question from the 
committee a nUlnber of times: Who is your State representative? 

I donJt know if that was perceived as the elected representative 
from that district or--

Mr. RANGEL. Elected representatives. 
Miss WATSON. Or the State office, whatever. 
Mr. RANGEL. No. Elected representatives as to who to take the 

problem to, if you have a problem, with the administration. 
Miss \\r ATSON. Correct. 
My agency, I believe, is primarily perceived as running, as it 

does, a Federal program. We are a State agency, but the guidelines, 
the direction, the moneys are Federal moneys. 

Mr. RANGEL. I'll never understand that. 
The President has said that he wants to keep the Federal people 

out of it and turn it over to you State people so that you'll have the 
ability to determine the priorities. Now, you're saying that you are 
viewed as a Federal agency. 

Miss WATSON. As a Federal program, not a Federal agency. 
Ivlr. RANGEL. We can discuss that, but we're going to have a big 

problem with that perception. 
Have you concluded? 
Miss WATSON. I would like to put in a little plug for the need for 

continuing the national treatment data system that we have under
way that we're now partially continuing on a voluntary basis. And 
I think this is a very important effort and one that needs to be cen
trally coordinated to provide appropriate data to your committee 
and other congressional committees. 

[The prepared statement of Miss Watson appears on p. 335.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Miss Watson. Dr. Simpson. 

TESTIMONY O}l' D. DWAYNE SIMPSON, PH.D., BEHAVIORAL RE
SEARCH PROGRAM, PROFESSOR, DEPARTMENT OF PSYCHOLO
GY, TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION, TX 
Mr. SIMPSON. Thank you. 
I'd like to speak to you from my vantage point as an evaluation 

researcher. I will not read my statement of testimony. I'd like to 
make three points, however. These have to do with the questions 
that were raised in letters we received concerning our statements 
on effectiveness of services in prevention and treatment services, 
and also questions about gap.s that seem to exist in these services. 

Mr. RANGEL. That would be helpful, Doctor. 

35-584 0-84 --18 
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Mr. SIMPSON. One of the things mentioned in the testimony so 
far is evidence that Miss Watsoll referred to concerning the effec
tiveness of drug abuse treatment services. I've been involved in a 
project for a number of years with an evaluation research team. 
The purpose of the project was to evaluate drug abuse treatment 
programs in a national evaluation study. 

From these findings, I think it's important that we recognize 
that treatment services are having a positive impact. We have evi
dence that drug abuse treatment programs lead to more positive 
outcomes in drug abuse, employment, and criminal involvement. 
These are the behavioral indicators used for judging the outcomes 
of clients in these programs. 

For example, we have found that in the first year following drug 
abuse treatment, there's only about 40 percent of the sample who 
continue to use opiate drugs on a daily basis. And the length of 
time that individuals stay in programs is also related to behavioral 
outcomes; the longer the treatment, the more positive the out
comes. 

We're also in the process now of doing some long-term followup 
studies of these same individuals to find out what happens, using a 
historical perspective over a 12-year period of time. In our 6-year 
followup study, we found that roughly one-fourth of the heroin ad
dicts who came into drug abuse treatment programs were still 
using heroin on a daily basis; about two-thirds were not using 
opiate drugs at all. The data we're now collecting in a 12-year fol
lowup study seems to indicate that those statistics are still accu
rate reflections of the current behavioral patterns. Studies of these 
data will provide information on a national basis about what hap
pens over the long haul with people who come into drug abuse 
treatment programs. 

The second point I'd like to make concerns the need for data. 
Without some kind of systematic data collection system, we can't 
know what's going on in programs, nor can we evaluate the effec
tiveness of those services. In times like we've experienced in the 
last few years, we know that when dollars are cut, one of the first 
things that happens is a reduction in data collection activities. Ob
viously, the treatment service delivery system is a priority, and 
that seems to be the main thing that's maintained. But I think it's 
important that we make efforts to continue some sort of systematic 
data collection system. 

Mr. RANGEL. On a national basis? Or locally? 
Mr. SIMPSON. Well, I don't think you can separate the two. You 

have to have the data from the local area which are then fed into a 
national system. 

But as Miss Watson i.ndicated, there is need for coordination in 
the data base. It doesn't make much sense, I think, for one commu
nity to be collecting one type of data, another community to be col
lecting a different type of data. If they do, we can't combine the 
data and we can't compare what's happening in different types of 
programs and different locales. 

We are doing some work along this line in the field of prevention 
with the Drug Abuse Prevention Division at TDCA, which has been 
guiding and nurturing a drug abuse data collection system for pre
vention activities over the last 4 years. We now have that system 
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in place, and its purpose is to provide the Drug Abuse Prevention 
Division with the means for monitoring community-based services 
which they're purchasing through block grants funds. Its purpose 
also includes sending information back to the individual programs 
which will help improve their services through the use of informa
tion on clients and client needs. And, finally, it serves as an infor
mation base for evaluation. 

One of the issues already mentioned in previous testimony is of a 
special concern in Texas, and that has to do vrith inhalant use. 
This seems to be a growing problem and unfortunately, we do not 
have a very good handle on paint sniffing and inhaling other types 
of solvents. It is especially a problem among youth in low income 
Mexican-American communities. I think this area represents one 
of the gaps in services, and we need to have more information on 
it. 
[~he prepared statement of Mr. Simpson appears on p. 346.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Doctor. 
Mr. Veselka, we have the extensive testimony of Mr. Bynum, 

who is the commissioner of education in Austin, and that testimo
ny is going to be entered into our record. Would you like to high
light it for us? 

TESTIMONY OF MARVIN VESELKA, ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER, 
TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY, DEPARTMENT OF PROFESSIONAL 
SUPPORT, AUSTIN, TX 

Mr. VESELKA. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the 
committee. 

My name is Marvin Veselka. I'm representing Raymon Bynum, 
commissioner of education. 

Rather than read the entire testimony, there are some highlights 
I'd like to give to you and then be available for any questions you 
have afterward. 

Mr. RANGEL. Thank you. 
Mr. VESELKA. We've given some references of limited information 

concerning the widespread use of drugs affecting large segments of 
our society and we realize it would be unrealistic to think that the 
schools are immune to the problems of drug abuse. 

We know that data show that the Nation still has the highest 
level of illicit drug use of any nation in the industrialized world. 
National and State research reports have shown that drug abuse 
has a negative effect on the learning process and does contribute to 
increased school dropouts, truancy, and juvenile criminal acts. 

Our agency has not conducted any statewide surveys to deter
mine the levels of drug abuse in the State. 

There is great concern, however, that students are beginning to 
experiment with drugs at a much younger age because of the re
ports that we receive from individual school districts. It's not un
common to find 9- or 10-year-olds in local districts experimenting 
with various drugs. 

The response of the Texas Education Agency and the schools in 
the State to this problem has focused on three parts: Prevention, 
intervention, and security. 

Weare all familiar with the definition of prevention. 
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Intervention is a little further down the road. 
And then, the issue of securit~, which. P!obably has D;ot been 

brought up in this particular hearIng, but It IS a part of thIS whole 
probkm. f 

We'd like to bring out the poi~t, however, ~h!l~ governance 0 
school districts, in the large part, IS the. :resp~m~IbilIty of an elected 
board of trustees which makes local polIcy wIthIn the framework of 
State law and State board of education rul~s and reg~lations .. 

Recent legislation is going to cause a major statewIde curr~c~lum 
revision in the State. It is currently underway, az:d we antIcIpa~e 
that by the spring of 1984, roughly Mar~h of thIS year, we :VIII 
have new rules in the area of school currI~ul':lm fo:: tJ:e first time 
that will specify requirements for all the dIstrICts wIthIn the St~te. 

I'd like to point out a few things in the area of health e.duc~tIOn. 
It will be required in each district in the State that specIfic Infor
mation be taught about negative ~ffects of drugs and. the factors 
that contribute to drug abuse begms at grade 4. It wIll be dev~l
oped in grades 4, 5, and 6, a little bit in th~ junior .high, and also In 
the required course in the secondary .level. In the J:Igh school. 

Students will learn that drugs ImpaIr physIcal, mental, and 
social development and that pe!~o~s who us~ drugs depend on 
drugs, rather than their own abilIties .. They WIll learn to be pre
pared in the likely event that theY.WIll have to choos~ between 
using or refusing drugs. Students Will ~earn ~hat refusIng drugs 
might require difficult ch.oices and assertIve actIOll; and that the de
cision not to use drugs mIght be challenged by theIr pee::s, bu~ they 
can meet those challenges. Th~y will learn ~~e relationshIp be
tween drugs and crime. They wIll learn that. citIzen~ ~ are protected 
by laws and have responsibility for suPP?rtIng valla law: ~~force
ment efforts. They will learn that they wIll ?ave responsIbIlIty, as 
adults, for improving laws. Abov~ all, they w~lliearn t~at there are 
a multitude of productive, satisfYIng alternatI.ves to usmg: drugs .. 

It's key to point out here that the requIrements will go In~o 
effect this spring. In the past, there has ~e~n a request for thIS 
type of requirement among the schools, but It s been left stnc~ly up 
to the school in terms of the type of program and the way that It 
manages it in the curriculum. This specific curriculum change, as 
mandated will be implemented through the State board of educa
tion rules' and will specify the objectives and the outco~es. that 
must be taught in specific grade levels in every ~chool. ~hIS WII~ be 
handled in the health curriculum and the socIal studies curncu-

IUli;s been pointed out that there ~re. a num~er of districts that 
have some quality programs, but thIS IS a varIable among the ap-
proximately 1,100 dhtricts in the State. . 

The State boai"d of education through its rules for t~~ accredI!a
tion of school districts requires all districts to have P?lICIeS pe~-taIn
ing to student respon~ib~lit!es, right~, and the condItions leadIng to 
suspension or other dIscIplInary actIOD;s, ~nd procedural saf~guards 
as required by law. Therefore, e~ch dI~tnct has developed It~ own 
policies and procedu::es .for deal.mg With dru,g posseSSIOn or sale. 
Emphasis on each dIstrIct has Its own. Y?l.:!- ve heard many. var
iances in those types of procedures and polIcIes us~d by the dIffer
ent districts. 

-------------- --------------------------
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Suspension is part of local policy. It may be immediate upon first 
incident, or it may be a last resort. 

Because it is in the best interests of everyone in the State for 
these students to continue their education, many districts are oper
ating alternative education programs for students who would oth
erwise be suspended or expelled. One of the objectives of these pro
grams is to identify and assist students who are dysfunctional be
cause of their drug abuse. Many students have to be referred to 
public or private facilities for treatment. 

Alternative education programs are supported through a variety 
of sources, such as, local, State and criminal justice funds. Our 
agency is currently funding 16 projects. The legislature appropri
ated $3 million for the biennium. The projects are concentrated in 
the areas of highest criminal activity among youths and, in fact, 
strictly the urban districts and in the valley. 

An increasing proportion of a school district's budget is now 
going for school security measures, such as, guards, alarm systems, 
building security, and dog sniffer programs. For example, Houston 
Independent School District spends $1.6 million annually for build
ing security alone and employs approximately 75 people. Dallas In
dependent School District spends $1.5 million annually for its secu
rity system and employs 78 people. 

The drug sniffer program throughout the State comes under the 
expenditures dealing with school security. 

Recently, however, a circuit court ruling ruled that the use of 
dogs to sniff students for drugs constituted a search and that school 
districts needed to have a reasonable cause before undertaking this 
action. The outcome of this decision appears to be that the schools 
will now be confined to using their dogs around lockers and unat
tended automobiles, not in the proximity of the students. 

Schools can make a significant contribution to prevent drug 
abuse and help students who have problems with drugs to over
come them and continue their education. However, a concerted 
effort by families and governmental agencies, including schools, is 
necessary if we are going to stop drug abuse. 

We will continue our efforts. We hope the Federal Government 
will support our efforts by doing the following: Assertively limiting 
the availability of drugs; providing accurate, timely, and impartial 
information through its clearinghouse role; supporting research in 
all aspects of drug abuse and making findings available to the prac
titioners; examining possible methods of providing more affordable 
public and private adolescent treatment programs for drug abuse. 

Other recommendations we'd like to make at this time include: 
School districts should be encouraged to have both prevention 

and intervention programs for youth at risk of developing serious 
drug problems. 

Second, post-secondary institutions, like the colleges and univer
sities, that prepare educators should include in their courses of 
study the topics of drug information, methods of identifying and re
ferring students who exhibit signs of drug misuse or abuse, drug 
abuse4 preverltion curricula, and classroom .nj~V;i.tgement techniques. 

Students and parents should be trained l:.(. '-.;.f~anize their commu
nities to combat drug abuse. The schools cannot be effective with
out them. 'rhe Federal Government, in cooperation with States and 
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localities, should foster the formation of peer assistance programs, 
parent support groups, and community action committees. 

Students should be given an opportunity to identify security and 
drug abuse problems and to develop solutions themselves. 

I appreciate the opportunity to express my views and concerns 
about illegal drug traffic and its effects on the students in our 
State. 

We at the Texas Education Agency and in the public schools of 
Texas will continue to cooperate in State and national efforts to 
conquer the problems of drug abuse in the Nation. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
[The prepared statement of Raymon L. Bynum which was pre

sented by Mr. Veselka, appears on p. 349.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Monsignor, you may lproceed in any way that you 

feel spiritUally directed. [Laughter.] 

TESTIMONY OF MSGR. DERMOT N. BROSNAN, PATRICIAN 
MOVEMENT, SAN ANTONIO, TX 

Monsignor BROSNAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of 
the committee and staff. 

I would just make a few further comments to what I have sub
mitted in writing, and one of the comments that I would like to 
make is that when we talk about substance abuse, prevention or 
education, I think it behooves us to get back and see, possibly, some 
of the underlying causes before we make some statements. 

And looking at drug abuse over the past 25 years, it has occurred 
to me that the interest has becom(~ rather more than enthusiastic 
of recent years simply because of flhe shift in drug abuse from mi
norities into middle-upper brackets. 

It is a good cause that it did happen, in that it brought light to 
those who have labored for many, many years without the recogni
tion and financial support that they should have gotten many 
years back. Because the real cause is the water right problem and 
the nations of Europe are just as badly straddled as we are. ' 

And to think that the terrorism iI., now obtaining some of its fi
nancing through the illicit drug trafficking is even more scary. 

~Iowever,. on the lo~al ~~vel, I ff~~l that .some of the problems per
t~ln to, basIcally, family life, the dIssolutIOn of family life in all na
tIOn.s, due to the change in our economic structures, our economic 
enVIronment, through the continued increase in divorce, child 
abuse. 

And in Texas, the tremendous differential we have in education. 
For instance, in San Antonio in Bexar County area, we have over 
14 school districts for a little over a million people with differenti
ating standards that, certainly is very selective. 

On the State level, we have the per capita rate, certainly, which 
is equal for all citizens across our State. But the local lack of-the 
lack of local funds to match the State dollars definitely provides a 
tremendous differential, where quality education can really become 
the privilege of those who are in good property taxing areas to gen
erate local dollars. 

Certainly, down in the valley there is an acute problem of local 
funds, and even more so now with tho devaluation of the peso and 
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very little solutions coming to the whole border area of approxi
mately 1,200 miles in Texas. 

Just yesterday in one of our local papers, a new academic 
achievement test result was shown, had been given to students in 
Dallas and seven other major cities around the world, and it indi
cates that the American children are among the worst students of 
mathematics in the industrialized world and do not fare much 
better in the science and geography areas. 

And H. Ross Perot is heading up a special committee and says, 
quote: "Too bad that we can't give a test on football and drill teams 
so that we could finish first." 

I think that we need, in Texas, to really give tremendous support 
to our teaching profession by way of salaries and by trying to come 
up with an equitable system of financing in Texas, rather than 
having it equitable at the State level and then conditioned on local 
tax dollars being generated to match that. 

In addition, we have in Texas, for instance, a situation which our 
State legislature has to build, in the Harvey McAlister Treatment 
Program Act, which would have provided for education, research, 
prevention, treatment, and int.srface with the criminal justice 
system. It took 8 years to pass the bill, and 4 years ago it was 
passed. And it has not yet been funded 1 single dime. 

So that the block grants coming in from the Federal Government 
and which require matching by the State, in Texas was not, in fact, 
being matched by the State. It was being matched by local pro
grams, most of them private, nonprofit corporations. And the State 
of Texas wasn't even providing adequate funds for the operation of 
its interstate agency, so that even some of the funds of the block 
grant had to be used for that. 

Now that we've seen the existence of continued decrease in Fed
eral funding, the State agency is straddled even with a worse situa
tion in that some of the significant programs suffered a 23-percent 
cut, and the State does not have any money to maintain existing 
progra..."IlS, let alone generate new programs, either in prevention, 
intervention, interface with criminal justice. 

Besides that, I think that it's important for us to realize that if 
the Federal Government had not taken the leadership role in drug 
abuse treatment and prevention, the States, especially Texas, 
would not have. 

We have had a war on drugs, and it has been successful to the 
extent to which it has gone. But, in my opinion, it has not gone far 
enough because it has to get into every aspect of substance abuse. 

And we cannot have, for instance, in the Congress of the United 
States special subsidies for the tobacco industry, which is a deadly 
substance and is habit forming, while at the same time it has a sig
nificant decrease in the funding of prevention and education and 
treatment dollars for substance abuse. To me, they are completely 
contradictory. 

In addition, I think that treatment effectiveness has to be looked 
at in terms of local costs. And these local costs have to look at the 
average treatment residential program in Texas. It's about $27; 
that will provide for approximately 2,000 hours of treatment in 1 
year, as compared to keeping the present type of treatment for ap
proximately $50 a day for nothing, other than warehousing. 
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And when we look in Texas that we have approximately 210,000 
people on State probation and 36,000 peoI?le in our prison sy!~tem, 
which is under Federal court order to radIcally reform, and 23,000 
people on State parole, a~d approximately .ano~he.r 900,000 plElople 
under some kind of legal Involvement, pendIng IndIctment or what
not it's estimated that 60 percent of these are, in some way, drug 
rel~ted. Yet Texas has less than 8,000 people in treatment. 

So that ~hen we look at the prevention of importation of drugs, 
we need to, also, look at the manufacturing of drugs and tremen
dous industry internally of advertising and the role oU'r media play 
in actually, the promotion of drug substances. 

That, of course, becomes a rather ticklish question because, of 
course it is very self-serving by our major networks who, at many 
times 'set themselves up as experts in the field of substance abuse. 

I aiso think that we have become overstraddled in terms of 
voting for practically anything we do in o?-r State and localleyels. 
I think there has to b~ a greater effort to Involve people, especIally 
our youth, in the affairs of government-. city, county, ~tat~, and 
national. I think we have gone overboard In all of the votIng Issues 
we have, and we need to take a look in seeing what damage we 
may be doing in diluting participation in the affairs of government. 

I certainly think that we need to support our local government 
because these problems all begin locally and never have begun na-
tionally. 

However, I think this does pertain to the national Government 
to protect the rights of citizens of the United States and to see that 
there is an equitable opportunity in the various needs of people 
throughout our Nation. 

Certainly, in south Texas, I have felt that there has been a gross 
negligence on the part of providing adequate funds for some unique 
problems in our border towns and cities. Our intoxicant inhalants 
is one serious problem. 

Also, to be able to provide some residential programs for our 
youth is also a tremendous vacuum in Texas. 

I certainly commend this committee and its chairman for the 
continued work that you are doing in spite of very, very serious 
international difficulties, and I have no hesitation in saying that 
voluntarism is just a little bandy on a matter of international prob
lems, and we do need some very serious infusion of funds national
ly and statewide in order to help the local levels. 

I think prevention education and treat.ment and interface and 
the criminal justice must begin locally, but the funds must be 
available. 

Our local cities and counties do not have these funds in Texas, 
especially our border towns. And especially, I see that the block 
grant, at this point, is very much inadequate. 

[The prepared statement of Monsignor Brosnan appears on p. 
355.] 

Mr. RANGEL. Monsignor, would you care to address yourself to 
the national manifesto that you had in your written testimony? 

Monsignor BROSNAN. Yes. I honestly believe that the major par
ties have to try and get together and try to put substance abuse 
outside the realm of politics and to try and bring in, under the 
manifesto, a type of commission set up by both the House and the 
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Senate and then comprised of citizenry from each State both in 
the public sector, the educational sector and the eccl~siastical 
sector, to try and develop some type of policy that church and State 
and educational systems would all integrate in their various roles 
of revitalization of citizenship. 

When I gave up a citizenship from where I left and when I swore 
to uphold the laws and ideals of this Nation, that was under oath. 
And I think I had an advantage because I had to give up something 
to become something. 

Sometimes, I think that we do not appreciate the greatness and 
strength. of the citizenry of this country, .and 'Ye have to try and get 
to that cItIzenry on the local level, especIally Into the families. 

But I do believe our national Government is vital in giving that 
lea~ership an~ deve~oping that manifesto because, hopefully, other 
natIOns, especIally In Europe and the Third World, would then 
follow suit. 

Because I feel that the United Nations has been rather ineffec
tive in giving that leadership role that it could have. And also, the 
world health organizations have certainly been just mandating 
even the promotion and the concept of prevention and treatment. 

Mr. RANGEL. You have inspired me, Monsignor, and I assure you 
that I asked staff to explore this possibility and present it to our 
members to draft the appropriate resolution to present it to the 
Members of Congress and to see whether or not we can reach out 
to .the hearts of citizens in order to see whether they can manifest 
thIS concern that we should have as a nation. 

I woul~ like to s~are with you that some of the things that we've 
been tryIng to do IS that we have reached out to legislators, our 
peers! ~n dru~ producing ,countries in an effort to point out to them 
tl?-a~ It s no~ Just a questIOn of the United States being a consumer 
VICtIm NatIon, that the profits that have evolved certainly have 
eroded many of the democracies that are involved in this, whether 
it's cocaine, marijuana or opium. 

So, we will try to do that. 
I can see, in reading your testimony, that certainly there's no 

need to discuss with you your understanding of how the system 
works. You've made appeals to your State legislators. You've seen 
the shortfalls of the Federal Government. You understand the 
block grant system. 

Y\'hat I. ~on't understaD:d is ~hy we have such outstanding 
prIests, mInIsters, nuns dOIng this work, and, yet, sometimes we 
don't hear the strong voice of the church with all of its not under
standing, but power, speaking out to the local and St~te and the 
Federal representatives when decisions are being made as relates 
to budget. 

Monsignor BROSNAN. I think that they, the leaders, suffer from 
the same thing that our State and national educators suffer from 
and that's lack· of awareness and lack of sensitivity. And think 
that's why it appears that the problem is so monumental that 
they're not sensitive to the intricacies and the massiveness of what 
is, in f~ct, happening and how it's eroding our society. 

Mr. RANGEL. That's a sad commentary. I think I agree with you. 
I find so many committed people that are just so stunned by the 
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enormous nature of the problem that they would rather not even 

di~~:~!. say to Miss Watson that th~ a?mi~istration' s u~dlehsta~t 
in of block grant is that an apprOpriatIOn 18 made, men a ea , 
al~oholism or whatever the particular bl?ck is,. and th;s l oesl \~:~: 
local State communities for then: to ~ec~d~, wlthoul d era they 
ference and redtape, what theIr priOritIes are. nonce. 
decide that more moneys are needed for. any of those particular 
areas then it is this administration's behef that dtheSY'tthin, ,0 ~o 
the r~sources that are available on. t?e loc~ an ta e eve ~ 0 
supplement what they, in their opInIon, behedve sho~d ~e brve~ 

riority treatment or to go to our churches an our c ~rI a e 0 
p anizations or to our volunteers and to have them to do It. . d 
g And so if your agency is pictured as a Fed~r~ agenc~ pedce~v~_ 
as a Fed~ral agency, it does not follow the thmklng of tea mInIS
tration because then no pressures would be placed on you on the 
local or State level or eVEm the private sector level. So, you should 
b . d as an agency that is underfunded. 

e l~dc:~h a large amount of the monies coming from the Fed~ral 
Government, very little dire~tion, you shd0ftd d~ave ~oh~;°th~~~~~ 
ents saying: We should be dOIng more an In Ing ou 
going to do more. . c St t epre-

And what I was trying to say 18 that, as a 10!mer a e r 
sentative and as an elected official, is that very httletressures't~re 
put on us in this area. The dedicated members of t IS commi ee 
volunteered to be on this committee. . . f thi 

And 1'd like to point out that the prIor two chalr~en 0 s hom-
mittee were defeated at the polls for reas0!ls whIch I ~opedl ave 
nothing to do with their commitment to trymg to get a an e on 

th~~t it is not a very popular committee in terms of ~ettingb sifci 
port and there are a lot of other things we could be dOIng to u 
up ~ lot of support for getting reelected. 

And that's why I was trying to stress yesterday to the ffu~s 
that needed some advice that they have to know the names 0 elr 
State representatives. d "W 11 h you 

And those State representatives then shoul say, e, ave 
discussed this with Miss Watson?", 1 

And Miss Watson would say, "Well, we ve got too many peop e 
coming to us, Mr. Representative, !lnd if you really wbanted t? t~e 
care of some of your constituents problems, remem er us In e 

St~~£u~fect~~rse, the church would bless the representative for 
doing such fine work. 

[Laughter .J 
lVIr RANGEL. Mr. Ortiz. dId 't kn 
Mr' ORTIZ. The only question that I h~ve~-an. on ow-

maybe the Chairman has already asked this questIon'
d 

t 
Now once ou get this block grant, what formula 0 you uS,e. 0 

distrib~te th! funds, knowing that w7 d<? have many?communltIes 
who have a serious prol?le~? What Crltter~a d~ Y<?fh ~h~ basic alloca-

Miss WATSON. The crIterIa we use s ar ou 'Y1, . , f 
tions as requirpd through the block grant, whlCh IS a mmlmum 0 
20 percent will go to prevention activities. No more than 10 per-
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cent can be used for administration. We use much less than that at 
this point. 

And, in reality, actual allocations, with the exception of some 
special provisions for the use of the Jobs bill supplement which has 
special requirements. The remainder of the allocation h~ basically 
been a matter of trying to continue to salvage those investments 
we have already made in building programs, such as the monsi
gnor's and those of Miss Meadows who testified yesterday after
noon. 

And so, what I'm saying is: A continuation of services already 
built has major priority on the treatment side. 

A building of new and more varied prevention services has been 
th~ intent of our funding allocation on the prevention services, 

Mr. ORTIZ. Which means that in my community, we're beginning 
to experiment with this serious problem and I come to you and you 
wouldn't be able to fund it because you are going to continue to 
fund those programs that are already preventive; is that correct? 

Miss WATSON. I would say that is our necessary priority at this 
time. In the treatment area, in particular, those funds are-we're 
looking at in fiscal year 1985, a 30 percent reduction of funds avail
able to treatment programming. And this is proportionate with our 
general reduction in revenues. 

Now, our actual funding of service providers at the community 
level is done on a competitive review process, and that's an impor
tant thing to point out. 

And even on the treatment side, in each case, we will put out a 
request for proposals, and all applications are reviewed in competi
tion with each other according to established uniform criteria. 

So, it is a matter of, really, we're looking for competent, viable 
service providers at a community level. 

On the prevention side, that competitive review process is also in 
progress, and, as a matter of fact, my staff is currently reviewing, I 
don't know how many, quite a lot of applications for prevention 
services. 

We have set up some new categories of projects to bring in new 
providers that, for instance, as you pointed out, in your communi
ty, have some experimenting people or where you have a project 
for youth at risk, and that would be very possible that an applicant 
from your community would be funded there, as,Dr. Garza is. 

Mr. ORTIZ, Thank you. 
Mr. Veselka, another question that I have, when you mentioned 

in your statement that: "Further recommendations address the 
roles of other groups: School districts should be encouraged * * *." 

Now, could you expand a little bit as to how you encourage them, 
if you would? 

Mr. VESELKA. We have staff that can provide technical assistance 
and also give referrals. 

Once the State regulations are in place, everything else falls 
back to the authority of the local district. 

At this particular time, until the new curriculum reform bill is 
in place, there is nothing in the State law or board regulations that 
speaks to any requirements in the schools' curriculum that has to 
do with drug education and drug abuse issues. 
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So current drug programs are established through encourage
ment and leadership efforts. Until additional regulations are in 
place' to require school districts to have prevention programs, this 
will continue. 

The statutes that were in place in the State dealing with crime 
and drug prevention were tak~n ?ff the books in 197-.no, 1981, by 
the State legislature. So, at thIS time, our only avenue IS to encour
age until the new regulations are implemented. 

Mr. ORTIZ. What was the wisdom of taking them off? 
Mr. VESELKA. I will not speak for the members of the Texas Leg

islature. 
What happened is that the whole area of school curriculum 

reform was a great issue of concern and debate by I?any people, 
causing differences of opinion. And there were many ~Ifferent la~s, 
dating back over the past 50 years, that would speCIfy a reqUIre
ment to the curriculum. You must teach this, this must happen, 
and so on. And the aggregate became almost unmanageable. 

So, what happened was that the legislature repealed everything 
dealing with school curriculum and mandated the State boa~d of 
education, which has 27 State elected members, to come up With a 
State curriculum requiring specifically by objective and by grade 
what should be taught. 

In the areas of health and social studies, objectives dealing with 
crime and drugs are a part of that new requirement. . . 

Putting all this into place is coming to closure now. We antiCI
pate new rules to be implemented in all schools next fall, fall of 
1984. 

So, that was the, quote, "wisdom" at that time. 
Mr. ORTIZ. What do you anticipate would be the changes in the 

curriculum that might have a lot to do with what we're talking 
about today, drug prevention at the school level? 

Mr. VESELKA. Many of the districts have programs that go far 
beyond what the State will require. But for the first time, we will 
have assurances that every district in the State is providing pre
vention information and content dealing with the bad effects of 
drugs and so on. That will be happening in grades 4, 5, and 6, as I 
stated. And every district is required by State law and to imple
ment these State board regulations for the first time. 

In the past we have said what should be happening, and we had 
no assurance~ that it would. This way, school districts' accredita
tion will be on the line if it is not meeting that State law require
ment. 

Mr. ORTIZ. Actually, this would be a mandate that we don't have 
at this point. 

Mr. VESELKA. That's correct. 
Mr. ORTIZ. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. Congressman Hall. 
Mr. HALL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I direct this question to any of the four at the table. 
What is the relationship, if any, between illegal aliens and the 

drug problem? . 
Monsignor BROSNAN. Personally, I would say that there IS very 

little in our area that I would say by way of relationship with the 
illegal alien. 
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I wou~~ tend to ~hin~{ that there was more of a relationship be
tween CltI~ens. comIng In from. the Middle East in our area, rather 
th.an comI~g In throu~h MexlC.o. So, I ~ould not se~ the illegal 
allen as beIng necessarIly at all Involved In the traffickIng of drugs 
as such. ' 

Mr. HALL. Is that the feeling of the rest of you? 
Mr. VESELKA. We hear speCUlation, but nothing concrete. 
Mr. HALL. Well, what is the relationship betw,een drugs and high 

unemployment, if any? 
Mon.signor BROSNAN. I would say that in the Bexar County-San 

~nt?nIO are.a as a result of! I wo.uld say, the war on poverty in the 
SIxties a:r:d In~o the seve~tles, WIth t~e job opportunity increasing, 
the GI bIll, With the radIcal change In some of the curriculums in 
our school ~i~tricts, once the minorities got an opportunity of 
upward mobIlIty, emp~oyability, college competition and so on; we 
dId see some decrease In drug abuse in those areas. 

So, I would say that employability is a high factor, and I would 
also say that the .opportuni~y of educati?n is a very high factor. 

Mr. HALL. I m!ght add, SIr, that. that s exactly the same testimo
ny that we re~elved from people In New York City some months 
ago, th~t the hIgh unemployment was a factor in drug abuse. 

MonSIgnor BROSNAN. And I might add inferior housing 
Mr. HALL. Inferior housing?' . 
Monsignor BROSNAN. Housing, yes. It tends to get to the dignity 

of. the person. And looking at the plenty versus the lack of it cer-
taInly has a damaging effect on the child. . , 

Miss WATSON. I--
Mr. HALL. Dr. Simpson, I-excuse me. 

. Mis~ WATSON. I just wanted to point out, I do not have the statis
tics With ~e, but I se~m to s~~ a new tre~d in drug use patterns 
that y.ou WIll find.a hIgh POSItIve correlatIOn with unemployment 
rates In an are~, In geographic areas. I think we're finding that 
very much so In some of our border cities such as Laredo It 
graphically along with unemployment.' . 
M~. ~ALL. Doctor ~impson, I understand that you have a grant 

applIcat~on under re~Iew right at this time by NIDA--
[Mr. Sunpson noddIng affirmatively.] 

. Mr. HALL [continuing]. Regarding people who experiment with 
Inhalants. 

Mr. SIMPSON. That's correct. 
Mr. HALL. All right. What can you tell us about this project? 
Mr. SIMPSON. Well, as I mentioned--
Mr. HALL. And how it might affect--
~r. SIMPSON. 'Yell, as it's been pointed out by many who have 

testI~ed already, Inhalant use seems to be a growing problem. It's a 
c?nslde!able concern, certainly in south Texas. Yet, we know rela
tively lIttle about the use of these intoxicants. 

This particular project is one that's based on the information 
s~stem t~at was develope~ with the Texas Department of Commu
n~ty AffaIrs. Its purpose IS to conduct 3-year followup interviews 
~Ith youth who ~ave a history of inhalant abuse when they come 
I~ to the preven~IOn program for counseling for secondary interven
tion type of serVIces. 
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Our interest there is to look at the family dynamics, what goes 
on in the family as possible etiological factors, and look at them 
over time, whether they go on to other, more serious drugs, wheth
er they continue to use inhalants-just find out what does happen. 

Mr. HALL. Do you find that the problem exists in the lower eco
nomic strata? 

Mr. SIMPSON . Yes. I think it's difficult to separate economics 
from other etiological factors. One of the things that has been curi
ous to me, and I think to others, is why it seems to affect primarily 
the Mexican-American community. We also have low socioeconom
ic black areas and Anglo areas, but they don't seem to be affected 
to the same extent that the Mexican-American community is. 

Mr. HALL. Well, now, does your study also include those illegal 
aliens from Mexico who may come in, as to what their particular 
position may be in that regard? 

Mr. SIMPSON. The sample would not be stratified on that basis. If 
such an individual came in, he'd be serviced through the preven
tion program. 

Now, there may be such individuals coming in. I doubt, however, 
that we have-Well, I'm fairly certain that we would not have ille
gal aliens and children of illegal aliens in that system. The preven
tion programs that we work with indicate that the illegal alien 
families tend not to use social services because of fear of detection. 
At least, that's my understanding. 

Mr. HALL. I think that's correct. 
Mr. SIMPSON. So, individuals who would be followed up in our 

particular study would have been in the community for quite some 
time. 

Now, I think I would like to add to that, if I might, some other 
concerns that are becoming important, and that has to do with the 
migrant families, particularly along the border such as in Del Rio. 
Vie have one prevention program located there, and the problems 
of drug abuse seems to be of great concern among those families 
who migrate up through the Midwest following crops and work on 
wheat harvest, cherry picking, and the like. 

l\1r. HALL. Well, let me just sum it up by saying this: We've 
heard testimony here for 2 days and will hear other testimony this 
afternoon magnifying this problem. We hear it from the schools. 
We hear it from the social agencies. We hear it from the churches. 
We will hear it from the law enforcement people again this after
noon. We heard some from them yesterday. 

We get back to a lack of money, a lack of personnel. 
And then you get away from the thing aft~~r listening to it for 2 

days and reflect on what you've heard, and then you come down, or 
I do, to the bottom line. If we had sufficient funds. And sufficient 
funds is a very arguable point. If we had sufficient funds and 
enough people, and if that was used effectively, would that signifi
cantly reduce the drug problem in the United States? Without
one caveat. Without getting back to the source areas of Colombia, 
Mexico, the Central American areas where this stuff is grown with
out any hesitancy. 

Mr. SIMPSON. I don't really know, because I think one of the 
problems that seems to be prominent from the testimony that 
we've heard so far is the lack of coordination. Most of us look at 
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ihis problem from our own particular perspective. You've heard 
. rom la~ enforcement people. You've heard from schools and serv
I?e prOViders. yery few of u~, I think, ~ave a broad enough perspec
tive, and I think the MonSIgnor's testimony is interesting because 
fe ~db!icked up and used a broad perspective. I think we all need 
.0 e Olng t~at. And we need to coordinate with what's going on 
~n the Texans war on drugs and the families movement which are 
Important ~ut don't hit all the areB:S or address all typ~s of drugs. 
<?ommunI~y-based :programs, I thInk, provide an important and 

unIque serVice, espeCIally among families that are not as well edu
Atdd. We need reso?rces th.ey c!in go to when they have problems. 

n many o~ the ki~s. comIng Into these prevention programs do 
not have carIng faml~Ies. They may have single parents and the 
pr:areilntbmay be working. They often don't have a good strong 
am y ase. ' 
~r: HALL. Well, do you think if you had additional money and 

ad~tIOnal p~ople to fac~litate your program that you would ever 
get that famIly that you ve just mentioned into the mainstream of 
any program that you're trying to make workable? 

Mr. SIMPSON. If you mean all of those families, I'm not sure 
~hether we wo~ld or. not. I. know that we could be doing a better 
Job. From my .dI~~us~IOns With people around the State, I know it 
tak~s a real InItiatIve to convince the family and educate the 
family as to what those problems are. 

Now, ru;; you know, there's a real movement nationally toward 
~ore famIly th.erapy. In discussions with treatment programs there 
IS a strong feelIng about the effectiveness of family therapy. 

Mr. ~ALL. If ~he four of you could tell this committee, could man
date thIS commIttee to do something to help alleviate the problem 
and I'll start ~th Ms. Watson, first, what would you tell us to ~ 
back to Yf ashington and try to get done that would help you wirh 
your varIOUS problems? 

Miss WATSON. May I combine my response with your former 
question to Dr. Simpson? 
M~. HALL. Yes, you may. 
MISS . W:'-TSON. I do believe that with sufficient resources we 

could sI~Ificantly reduce the drug abuse problem. I believe that 
as I belI~ve ~veryone here does, because we have to, in order t~ 
~eep trYl1:1g, Just. as you have to believe that there must be a solu
tIOn to thIS maSSIve problem. 
. I do not believe .th~t we will eradicate drug abuse, but I do be
l~eve tha~ we can S.IgnIf,icantly reduce it, that we can cut it down to 
SIZe. I thInk there IS eVidence of that in our effectiveness studies et 
cetera. ., 

I believe it's bigger than just looking at illegal drug abuse or 
drug abuse. 

I b~lieve, also, that for that to work, where there are, as you say 
s~ffiClent, resources, that that must be handled simultaneously 
With ho!dIn~ down the avail~bility, 

I don t thmk we can do eIther approach in a teeter-totter effect 
If we put ~ll of,ol!r resources into reducing the availability of 
drugs, the ~nterdictI01:1 of smuggling, et cetera, et cetera, or all of 
our money Into redUCIng the demand, it will not work. I do believe 
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that we have to keep both of those things balanced and work on 
both ends of the problem at the same time. . . 

What I would-and that really is where I am gOIng. I thInk there 
are a number of areas that would help,. a n';1mber of th.ings I would 
encourage that would put us in that dIrection of keepIng that bal-
ance that we need. 

I would encourage this committee to continue its sup:port of the 
Justice Assistance Act and grant name program for taking care of 
developing a prescription drug diversion program. 

I think we've got to hit at all aspects ~f drug abuse a~. the same 
time. We can't focus on heroin. We can t focus on marIJu~na. We 
can't focus on inhalants. We're talking about a common Ideology 
here. We need to look more into the research of just what the d~ug 
problem is. And I do believe there is evidence t~at we're talking 
about a common problem of substance abus~, and If w~ lo?k at ~ne 
problem at a time, we're only going to go Into substItutIOns WIth 
another substance instead. 

I think it would be h€:lpful and in the dir~~tion of t?~t bala:r:ce to 
look at provisions-a small portion of provlsl0I?-S of CIV.II forfeItures 
for treatment services which will be needed With the Increased ar-
rests. 

As I menthlued earlier, title 19 amendments. encourage the com-
mittee to look into some support for nonhospltal-base~ treatment 
services out of title 19 payments. These would help WIth the cost 
containment efforts contained in there. 

Most of all, I would hope that when we':e talking ~bout dr~g 
education in the schools, in the general publIc, but pa!tIcularll' In 
the early grades of schools, that we talk n?t about Just don t do 
drugs. We've gone through the forbidden frUIt. It works part. of the 
time with some people. I think what we really ~eed to do IS, talk 
about health promotion how to lead a healthy lIfe. Not: Don t do 
this' don't do that. But ;ather: What it is you need to be to do your 
m~imum, and that requires that you take care of your body and 
not do these things. 

Mr. HALL. Thank you. 
Dr. Simpson, then? . 
Mr. SIMPSON. Well, I do think that additional funds Will be help-

ful. Additional funds are only a means to the end, however. But I 
think a massive influx of funds, which obviously will not happen, 
would not be the solution. It would not solve all of drug abuse prob-
lems. . t' 

I think the programs operating now, both In the preven Ion 
arena and treatment arena in the State, simply do not have ade
quate funds. There are waiting lists, and there are people they 
cannot serve. . 'd 

Along that same line, I would like to support somethlng yo~ ~~ 
a while ago. Namely, that we need to place the responslbllIty 
which ultimately is the family. I think we've seen over the last few 
decades a breakdown of the extended family, and that has a bear
ing on the drug abuse problems that ~e see t?day. 

Family dynamics, however, are not ImmedIately effected by ~rop
ping a lot of funds. We need to get a strategy together that Will be 
effective in putting back in place the .famlly structur~, and the 
values that the family needs to have to Influence the chlldren con-
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cerning drug abuse and the problems that are associated with drug 
abuse. 

Mr. HALL. Thank you, sir. 
Mr. VESELKA. From my perspective, the State has a responsibility 

in the education of children. The State needs to be about that in 
the best fashion it can. 

So, therefore, there would be a strong role for the Federal pre
vention information. The well-educated child can make better deci
sions and understand, as I think Miss Watson was saying, issues in 
dealing with the whole area of prevention. 

The assistance we would need nationally would be in the areas of 
decreased availability, obviously, and also something that Simpson 
talked--

Mr. HALL. Increased availability? 
Mr. VESELKA. Decreased availability of the drugs. 
Mr. HAl.J.. Oh, decreased. All right. 
Mr. VESELKA. Yes. Decreased availability of drugs, and also help 

with the intangible issue of awakening the American society to the 
massive problems in this area and also instilling the values in fam
ilies, since they must support the schools and other agencies in 
their efforts. 

I think the schools can educate, and that is our challenge. If we 
can't, we need to deal with that. And that we can handle at the 
State level. 

In some of these other efforts we can, obviously, be a part, but 
it's very, very large. We need the support of all students parents. 

Mr. HALL. You mentioned the United Nations a while ago. God 
knows let's don't get them involved in it. 

Monsignor BROSNAN. That's why I said that. 
M H Q'? r. ALL. t...:.:.r. 
Monsignor BROSNAN. That's why I mentioned them. Because they 

have not done a good job. 
Mr. HALL. They couldn't cure a cold, much less a drug problem. 
Monsignor BROSNAN. That's correct. 
If I had to make one single choice to invest the money in one 

single area without being guilty of simplicity, I would invest it in 
diagnostic services in the very earliest ages of the child and from 
the schools. That would probably be K through 8. 

The reason I say that is because substance abuse, to me, if you 
could somehow stop all the sources of drugs coming into our 
Nation" that would not stop the underlying causation which neces
s;itated some vehicle of escape. 

So, to me, the connection, without playing on that word, is be
tween the incumbent problem of the family not being solved within 
~he family dynamics and the forced appearance of it in the extenu 

'.simI of the family, namely the schools or the church, that type of 
triumvirate. 

And if you have some good funding into our State educational 
agencies to provide high technical diagnostic services, I think 
you're not only going to solve the problem of substance abuse, but, 
hopefully, crime and many of the other behavioral problems that 
appear. 

In trying to provide that diagnostic service, I think then you 
could be sensitive to the different cultural and ethnic values of the 
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different parts of your State and population. And I think that's a 
very frustrating thing in our educational systems~ that we have 
many children thinking in one language and trying to express in 
another and being misunderstood. We have children being tested in 
one system and comprehending in another system. 

So, I do think that that's one area, and those diagnostic services 
then being tempered into the things of your cultural, social, envi
ronmental statuses and stratas, keeping that in mind, because I 
think we need to see, for instance, our middle-upper families 
having a vast problem today. So, obviously, it's not money, and it's 
not employment in that area. It's other areas. Things like alcoholic 
parents, child abuse, unemployment, dyslexia, all of the different 
problems that may not show in substance abuse, but they can show 
in other areas. 

Also, I think that we should take a good look at our insurance 
carriers and see what can we do by way of providing adequate in
surance coverage in nonmedical settings, but in accredited and cer
t.ified programs that will ensure proper standards, but at a much 
lower cost and at a much more reasonable cost. 

The reason I say that is because right now I feel that the middle
upper class are really being financially taken to the races with ex
orbitant costs for treatment. 

~llr. HALL. I ask this question for information: Do the insurance 
companies today have an exclusion on drug-related illnesses? I 
don't know about that. 

Monsignor BROSNAN. Some places, they have. In Texas, we just 
recently had some adjustments made, and the insurance carriers 
are now providing what I would say token coverage, yes. 

However, with very high option insurance, for instance, by your 
upper class, they're paying phenomenal prices in hos~ital settings 
that have unnecessary-and the quality of what they re getting is 
even suspect. 

If you would get those who could pay, either through insurance 
or through private sources, into the mainstream, you would, also, 
then be able to help those people who cannot pay and still main
tain better services, in my opinion. 

I do think that we have to just demand a high quality from our 
teaching profession nationally. And that would be the second area 
that I would put money into. Really get the best people we have in 
this Nation for the minds of our children, our young adults, and 
adults. 

In Texas, that's difficult. The salaries are low, and the State leg
islature did not come through this time. 

But I really think that the teaching profession is one of the most 
sacred professions there is. And certainly, I would emphasize that, 
because it gets across all social lines, it gets across all ethnic lines, 
and to me, it's a necessary thing. 

The other thing that I would see would be supporting law en
forcement and trying to get them back into the neighborhoods, 
walking the neighborhoods, Rnd giving them the necessary support 
services to become familiar with the authors of authority, the fami
lies themselves. 

Mr. HALL. Thank you. 
I yield back the balance of my time. 
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Mr. RANGE~. I want to thank the panel for its testimony and its 
recommendatIOn~ and hope you ~tay on my case, Monsignor, as re
lates to the manIfesto, and keep In touch with me directly as well. 

~f any of you have any additional remarks that you wouid like to 
make for the record, the record will remain open. 

Thank you very much. 
Our last panel deals with the State law enforcement. We have·~ 

I'm sorry. We're going to take a 5-minute break for the stenogra
pher, and then our last panel, we will have Colonel Adams, Mr. 
Lee, and Mr. Hartley, 

[Recess.] 
Mr. RANGEL. The committee will resume, and we would like to 

conclude this part.of the hearings that we've had in Corpus Christi. 
. We have, on t~IS panel Mr. Richard Hartley, administrative as

sIstant to the director of Texas Department of Corrections at 
Huntsville, TX. 

Mr. Fred Lee, director of the Criminal Justice Division, of 
Austin, TX. 

The Chair recognizes, for the purpose of introducing the next 
witness, Congressman Sam Hall from east Texas. 

Mr. HALL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
. This is a dis~inct honor an~ privilege that I have here today to 
Introduce to thIS panel Col. JIm Adams, who is the director of the 
De~artment of ~ublic Safety. 

I ve kno":ll JIm for over 35.y.ears, and I .think I can say without 
~nyone taking a contrary pOSItion,. that he's probably, in my opin
IOn, one of the most capable, effiCIent law el1forcement officers in 
the United States. 

H7's devoted his life to law en~or~ement at its highest levels, and 
I think that th!~ State of Texas IS, mdeed, fortunate and privileged 
to have Jim Adams as the director of the Department of Public 
Safety. 

I know we will, but I would certainly ask each member of this 
committee to listen to what Jim Adams has to say about this sub
ject. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, and thank the panel. 
We're going to try to ask you to limit your remarks to 5 minutes 

recognizing that your ~ntire written statements will be placed int~ 
the record. And that WIll afford the panel, our panel an opportuni-
ty to have more lengthy discussions with you. ' 

We welcome you, and we'll ask you, Colonel Adams to begin if 
you don't mind. ' , 

Colonel ADAMS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. I'd like to add that Jack Cusack, too, would like to 

be included in those laudatory remarks about you, Colonel. He's 
been after me for the last 2 days to tell me you were coming. 

You can add your remarks now for the record: 
Mr. CUSACK. Well, it's very difficult to do it in any way that 

measures up to the fme tribute that Sam Hall has made to Jim 
Adams. 

But I knew Jim during the seventies when he was at headquar
ters, and I was at headquarters of DEA. And he was just a wonder
ful professional to work with in every way. 
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TESTIMONY OF COL. JAMES B. ADAMS, DIRECTOR, DEPARTMENT 
OF PUBLIC SAFETY, AUSTIN, TX 

Colonel ADAMS. Thank you. 
I certainly don't feel like a stranger before this committee seeing 

Congressmen Ortiz and Hall, our relationship, which has gone back 
in the law enforcement area for many years, has been very favor
able and enjoyable. 

You do have my written statement, and I just want to express 
my appreciation for the interest this committee is showing in the 
borde~ problems we .have from the standpoint. of drug trafficking. 

I thInk we all realIze that the Federal agencIes are our first line 
of defense and especially with the responsibility for helping eradi
cate drugs overseas and, second, for interdicting them at the 
border. The manner in which they carry out that sole responsibil
ity certainly has a tremendous impact on State and local law en
forcement agencies. 

We have a very cooperative relationship with all of these agen
cies. O~ce the products do get into Texas or once they're produced 
here, lIke, methamphetamines and cultivation of domestic marijua
na, then we have a joint responsibility. And that's where our very 
fine relationship develops. 

The State of Texas, of course, is attempting to meet its responsi
bilities, and we're dedicating resources. We've been able to secure 
passage of some very fme legislation over the last 4 years which 
has had an impact on the problem. And we will continue td do our 
part. 

I think the immensity of the problem is one of the things that 
~o~t overwhelms u~ at tillleS .. The national estimate report is in
dICating that the retaIl sales of Illegal drugs are 79 to 90 billion dol
lars a year. That's a rather significant figure nationwide. 

But when you relate that to other indicators, like, the retail sales 
of legitimate drug prescriptions in this country being at $10 billion 
a. y~ar and beer, wine, and liqu?r, $16 billion a year; tobacco $23 
bIllIOn a year, we can get some Idea of how prominent retail sales 
of drug traf~ckiI?-g a~e in the economic welfare of this country and 
the devastatIOn It brings from the standpOInt of corruption of law 
enforcement officers, public officials, particularly in the States of 
Florida and Georgia where we've just seen case after case develop 
of th;.;tt type. And it's an area where we really have to devote our 
combIned efforts, Federal, State, and local, to try to be effective. 

At the State level in our particular areas of responsibility, we've 
started a major program on cultivation of domestic marijuana de
tection, and we've, again, received assistance from the Federal Gov
ernment, about $28,000 in funds from DEA to help in this area. 

The Forest Service, the U.S. Forest Service, has just given us 
$7,000 to buy gasoline for our helicopters. And we were able to 
detect and destroy about 11,000 marijuana plants in several coun
ties worth about $4 million on the street. 

So, we do have a good program going in that area. But just in the 
past year, we've found marijuana being cultivated in 55 of the 
Texas counties, out of the 254. 

In the methamphetamine area and amphetamine, Texas leads 
the Nation. And I'd have to update the statistics in the prepared 
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statement I have, because we've had several more seizures just in 
the past few days. Thus far this year, we've seized 32 illegal, clan
destine methamphetamine or amphetamine laboratories in the 
State of Texas. And those 32 are just ones that DPS, Department of 
Public Safety has participated in. Others have been seized by local 
sheriffs or police departments without our involvement, just 
through an investigation on the scene or a chance encounter with 
them. So, these figures are far from complete and, therefore, do not 
present the totality of the problem we have in methamphetamines 
and amphetamines. 

A wiretap statute was passed 2 years ago in Texas. We've used it 
on 10 occasions, arrested 95 people, seized over $12 million in 
drugs. And the people of Texas have shown their support of this, 
because in the first case we had under the wiretap statute, they 
gave the perpetrator a 75-year sentence and a $250,000 fine. 

A statute was passed on diversion of drugs requiring a triplicate 
prescription whereby practitioners must give us one copy of each 
drug prescription for the schedule 2 more dangerous, addictive 
d.rug~. Since th.at statute was passed, we've had a 48-percent reduc
tion m Texas In 1982, the first full year, 48 percent reduction in 
the number of schedule 2 prescriptions written in Texas. Before 
that, we had one doctor who, by himself, in a 7 -month period wrote 
28,000 nontherapeutic prescriptions at $100 each, $2.8 million. He 
probably wrote one more prescription for his writer's cramp in 
writing all of those prescriptions. 

We had a pharmacist in Houston who put out 2 percent of the 
national Dilaudid productioIi un an annual basis, put it out on the 
streets. You can buy the Dilaudid tablets for 46 cents a piece. 
They're worth $40 a piece-$25 to $40 dollars a piece on the 
streets. They didn't need heroin on the street. They had the Dilau
did readily available. Maybe one reason heroin has increased in 
Texas is because we put him out of business and doctors are being 
more careful. 

But we're doing what we can from a legislative standpoint; from 
an executive standpoint, the Governor has endorsed our request for 
additional narcotics personnel. In the next session or the coming 
session of the legislature and from a law-enforcement standpoint, 
we can do better. 

From the resources we have, we're trying to address the problem 
in cooperation with the Federal agencies. 

That's all I have. 
[The prepared statement of Colonel Adams appears on p. 359.] 

TESTIMONY OF FRED LEE, LAW ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM 
DIRECTOR, CRIMINAL JUSTICE DIVISION, AUSTIN, TX 

Mr. LEE. May I express the regrets of Mr. Pena. He was involved 
in a court trial in Houston today, and he asked me to come in and 
make a few .remarks. 

You do have his written statement, or it has been sent to you. 
i\1r. RANGEL. That statement will be placed in the record in its 

entirety without objection. 
Mr. LEE. If I may, I'd like to comment on some of the specific 

things that relate to this area. 
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The Criminal Justice Division in fiscal year 1984 is going to have 
about $20 million for distribution around the State for the effec
tiveness of the crirninal justice system. And of this, nearly $10 mil
lion are going into law enforcement, over 51 percent. 

It happens that in the coastal-the gulf coastal area, there are 4 
organized crime units that are being funded by the Criminal Jus
tice Division, out of 1l. 

The 11 Criminal Justice Division organized crime units have a 
pooled funding of almost $2 million. 

There will be four organized crime units in the coastal area. 
There's one here in Corpus Christi, one in Brownsville, there's one 
in Galveston, and there's one in Harris County, which is the Hous
ton area. These are all funded, and have been funded for the last 
10 years. 

Just a quick summary of some of the statistics that these four 
units have accomplished. 

In the last 2 fiscal years, the four units that are in the gulf coast 
area have a total seized contraband of $84 million, a seized stolen 
property valued at over $11 million, and nearly 1,000 felony arrests 
were made, 998 felony arrests were made, most of which were pros
ecuted. 

The Criminal Justice Division money also has been used, since 
1981, to perform the electronic surveillance of drug traffickers 
which Colonel Adams referred to. The law was passed in the legis
lature two times back, and to date, the Criminal Justice Division 
has funded that for over a million dollars. 

We do have Criminal Justice Division money in the DARE 
project. Those sums amount to over a million dollars, and we--

I heard you mention several times this morning at various inter
views about alternative schools. One of the biggest pushes we have 
in the Criminal Justice Division is to fund more alternative type 
schools. And there is an increasing number of those being funded. 
An.d the money is available for that when the agencies come in for 
them. 

Juvenile money has always been more prolific-I guess that's a 
good word there-than other moneys because Federal systems still 
fund juvenile projects. We add State money to that. We have a law 
in our Criminal Justice Division that at least 20 percent of all 
money collected in Texas for the Criminal Justice must go to juve
nile. And that's added on to the Federal money available. 

Governor White is behind the program that we're talking about 
100 percent. The law enforcement program is being pushed very 
hard by me and the others in the Criminal Justice Division. We 
have the backing of Governor White, and, hopefully, if there's 
more funds available in the next fiscal year, we'll do more. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Pena, which was presented by 

Mr. Lee, appears on p. 375.] 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you. 
Mr. Hartley of the Texas Department of Corrections, Huntsville. 

---- -~~ 
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TESTIMONY OF RICHARD HARTLEY, ADMINISTRATIVE ASSIST
ANT TO THE DIRECTOR OF TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF CORREC
TIONS, HUNTSVILLE, TX 

l'-Ar. HARTLEY. Thank you, Mr" Chairman. It's a privilege to be 
here and testify before the committee today. 

You have my wrItten statement, and I'll try in the point of brevi
ty to condense my remarks to you. 

Th.e Texas Department of Corrections houses over 36,000 adult 
conVICted felons spread through 26 correctional facilities through
out east and southeast Texas. And throughout this department we 
find that a great majority or a great amount of our offenders' al
thoug~ they are not there for crimes indicative by the charg~ of 
narcotics, are there for related reasons. 

In ou! prisons, e~tima~e.s in~cate that about 80 percent of the 
populatIon h~ ad~Itted nI~tOrIeS of drug dependency or addiction. 
In. a~y exaI?I.n!ltIOn of thIS relationship between drug use and 
crlIl~.lIl.al actiVIties, accurate statistics are difficult to obtain. Most 
stat~stICS are the res~lt of self-reported data, so the validity of the 
findI;llg depends entirely upon the truthfulness of the person 
making the report. 

As a general r~le, one 'would expect self-reported figures are 
probably ?onservatIve, as some persons may be reluctant to report 
use of an illegal substance. 

The March 1~83 Bulletin of Bureau of Justice Statistics released 
re~ults of a ~at~onal survey of State prison inmates. The results of 
th~s .report ~~Icate t~at the connection between drug abuse and 
crImInal. actiVIty continues to be strong. More than half of the 
State prI~oners surve:ye.d said they had taken illegal drugs in the 
month prIor to commItting the crime. 

Some of the significant findings of this survey were that half of 
the drug offe~ses were committed while under the influence of 
drugs. Apl?roximately 25 I?ercent of all burglaries and 20 percent of 
all robberIes were commItted under the influence of marihuana. 
About 12 P7rcent of all ro~beries and 10 percent of all larcenies 
were commI~ted under the. mfluence of heroin. Seventy-eight per
cen~ of the Inmates questIOned had used drugs at some time in 
theIr lIves, and ~bo~t one:h~f of tJ:;te inmates had been daily drug 
users at sorne pOInt In theIr lIves With nearly 40 percent having re
cently used drugs on a daily basis. 

In Texas, 52,091 drug arrests accounted for almost 6 percent of 
ap. reported arrests in 1982. Most of these arrests were for posses
SIOn of drugs, and only 8.1 percent of the arrests were for the sale 
of drugs. 

The annual report for 1982 published by the Texas Judicial 
System noted that d:ug .cases comprised 10.9 percent of all criminal 
cases added to the dIstrIct court, and 9.7 percent of all cases in the 
county court. 

During 1982, a to~al of 1~497 inmates were admitted to the de
partment of correctIOn~ ~or Jrilg offenses. This figure represents 
8.97 pe!cent of all admIssI~ns to the department in 1982. These in
mates Include only those Incarcerated as a direct result of their 
drug involvement. Approximately 75 percent of the admissions 
were 25 years of age or older. 
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On November 29, 1983, there were 2,197 drug offenders on hand 
in the population of the department, which comprised 6.1 percent 
of our total population. The gulf coast area accounted for 1,024 of 
the offenders. East Texas contributed 513; south Texas, 324; west 
Texas, 204; central Texas, 76; and north Texas, 56. . 

We used 12 characteristics to develop a profile of the drug offend
er in the department of corrections: Age, sex, race, marital status, 
religious preference, educational achievement, IQ, length of sen
tence number of prior confinements in TDC as well as other pris
ons, ~eformatory commitments, and number of probated sentences. 

The characteristics of the offender in the department of correc
tions a result of drug involvement-usually for possession, sale, or 
manufacture of illegal drugs-indicates that these inmates tend to 
be older, approximately 33.8 years of age. They tend to be male in
mates, predominantly white or Hispanic, who had or have been 
married and who express a preference for either Protestant or 
Catholic churches. The offenders generally have a seventh grade 
educational level and tend to score on the lower end of the normal 
IQ range. Most are serving sentences of less than 10 years and 
have been confined in the department of corrections at least once 
previously. The large majority of the drug offenders have been 
placed on probation at least one time prior to incarceration in the 
department of corrections. 

In order to further obtain insight into the drug offender profile, a 
random sample of drug offenders in our department were selected. 
Fifty-nine inmates sampled compared favorably with the general 
drug offender population in all demographic areas and, therefore, 
was found to be representative of the popUlation. 

A search and review of the record summary card on inmates in 
the sample revealed that most of the inmates had a history of drug 
involvement extending back several years. About 80 percent of the 
group reported a history of drug abuse, 22 percent reported history 
of drug possession arrests, and 60 pel'cent reported a history of sell
ing drugs. 

Records also reveal that most users began in their teens and 
early twenties with admitted addiction by age 23-among the 24 
percent who admitted an addiction. 

Arrest records reveal that the majority of the inmates had been 
arrested about three time for drug-related offenses, three times for 
property-related offenses, and three times for crimes of violence. 
About 8.6 percent of the sample was incarcerated for multiple of
fenses. Theft, bu:rglary, possession and delivery of a controlled sub
stance, burglary of a motor vehicle, and forgery were common of
fenses that often were found as multiple offenses. 

The major portion of the offenders in the department as a result 
of conviction on a charge of possession was 64 percent, and the re
mainder were incarcerated as a result of sale or distribution. 

The most commonly used drug, by far, was marijuana. Nearly 83 
percent of the sample used heroin; 29 percent, cocaine; 27.5 per
cent, methamphetamines; and 21 percent barbiturates. 

The department has an alcoholism-drug program that provides a 
treatment program for substance abusers incarcerated within the 
department. Because of the similarities and, quite often, the over
lapping of the problems of alcoholism and drug dependency abuse, 
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the TDS program is directed toward both the alcoholic and the 
dru~ addict. Estimates indicate that approximately 80 percent of 
the Inmate population is in prison either directly or indirectly be
cause of alcohol or drug abuse. 

Thirty counselors and two supervising counselors are authorized 
an~ assigne:d to units to provide counseling services designed to 
aSSIst chemIcally dependent inmates and orient them in directions 
free of the influence of alcohol and drugs. 
Th~ major eleme~ts of this progr.am are Alcoholics Anonymous 

meetings, therapeutIc group counselIng, alcohol and drug education 
and study sessions, individual counseling, prerelease programs and 
unit orientations. ' 
T~e overall go~l of the .alcoholis~-drug program is to encourage 

the Inmates to reject prevIOUS negatIve behaviors and attitudes de
velop more mature behaviors and more satisfying and realistic 
v~lu~ syste:ms? ~hus creating a greater sense of personal worth 
WIthIn the IndIVIdual and, concurrently, reducing or eliminating al
cohol-drug dependency. 
. The ~bjec~ive:s of the program are to assist participants in adjust
Ing .to lIfe WIthIn the department of corrections; to emphasize alter
natIve means of handling those situations which, in the past have 
led to alcoho.l or ~rug abu.se; to help participants realize that they 
do have chOIces In selecting responses to situations' to instill in 
participants an aversion to alcohol-drug abuse; to e~phasize pro
ductive use of leisure time; to help familiarize inmate clients with 
community coping skills; and to help ensure client familiarity with 
the moral and social aspects of drug abuse and the legal conse
quences of drug abuse. 

In conclusion, inmate interviews with the sample inmates were 
conducted at nine prisons in the system. The interview was direct
ed toward learning more about the motivation for drug involve
~e!1t and the extent of treatment program involvement. The ma
JorIty of the sample, 52 pe~cent, considered themselves to be drug 
users only; 27 percent conSIdered themselves to be both users and 
drug deal~r~. Nearly 14 percent called themselves only a dealer. 
The remaInIng 7 percent of the sample considered themselves in
volved to such an extent in drugs that they used, sold, and manu
factured them. 

Of those inmates who considered themselves dealers or manufac
~urers of drugs, over one-third, 38 percent, reported that their deal
Ing or manufacturing was to support their habit. 

The primary reason cited for drug involvement by the inmates 
interviewed was peer group pressure. About 64 percent of the 
group cited the influence and pressure of friends as one of the rea
sons for getting involved with drugs. The second ranking reason for 
drug involvement was experimentation. Nearly 39 percent reported 
that the need for money contributed to their involvement. Only 9 
percent reported that their home environment contributed to their 
drug involvement. Other reasons cited included boredom some
thing to do, the need to keep going on, and the need to stay' awake. 

qver 40 ~ercent of the drug offenders interviewed reported that 
theIr drug Involvement led them to commit other violations of the 
law. The most frequently reported law violation was burglary fol-
lowed by robbery, ~hoplifting, car theft, and forgery. ' 

---.-~----
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When questioned about the progression of their drug involve
ment, most of the sample reported an initial use of marijuana and 
sometimes alcohol, which gradually led to use of other drugs. Some 
reported that the popularity of certain drugs, particularly cocaine, 
was part of the drug chain. The use changed, as well. 

Most of the inmates in the sample had never been a participant 
in a drug treatment program prior to becoming incarcerated. Only 
11 percent of the sample reported participation, in the TDC pro
gram. The most commonly cited reason for not being in the pro-
gram was a feeling that they did not need any help. . 

Each of the inmates interviewed was invited to share comments 
in the hopes of making people more aware of the situation. Several 
representatives themes were found in these comments: 

Drug use is more extensive than most parents realize. 
Drug use leads to bad news all the way around. 
Other people are hurt by it and loss of contact with the real 

world makes coming down even worse. 
The highs are not worth the lows. 
Marijuana use does lead to other drugs, not so much by a natural 

progression alone, but by associating yourself with other drug users 
in an environment ripe for experimentation and fads. 

Marijuana is a step' in the wrong direction. You can buy it with 
your allowance. 

Education of young children in school as to the consequences of 
drug abuse is the best tool for combating drug abuse. 

A detailed report on drug offenders in the Department of Correc
tions, Mr. Chairman, is being compiled and will be provided to the 
committee for your use as deemed appropriate. 

Thank you again for the opportunity to appear before you. 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Hartley appears on p. 378.] 
Mr. RANG1i:L. Thank you, Mr. Hartley. 
Do you know :whether other State Departments of Corrections 

have produced these type of profiles? 
Mr. HARTLEY. I have not seen any other, Mr. Chairman. I don't 

know, 
Mr. RANGEL; Have you reached any conclusions as to whether or 

not these inmates that found themselves in jail that had previous 
contact with drugs whether it was the drugs and the contact that 
placed them in jail or whether or not the jail population-whether 
they would have been in jail with or without drugs? 

Mr. HARTLEY. It's my opinion, Mr. Chairman; and as I had testi
fied earlier, that about 80 percent of the people who come to prison 
come there because of some involvement with either drugs and/or 
alcohol. And, I think that is a catalyst in getting them involved in 
criIninal behavior. 

l\lr. RANGEL. You know there are some people that think that 
criIninals just get involved in drugs and alcohol, as opposed to 
drugs and alcohol pushing people into criminal activities. 

You've look~d at that, and you believe that the drugs and the al·, 
cohol abuse have encouraged criIninal activity. 

l\({r. HARTLEY. Yes, sir. I would have to feel that it does, without 
a doubt. 

l\rlr. RANGEL. How successful do you believe your rehab program 
has been? 
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Mr. HARTLEY. Mr. Chairman, I don't think that any rehabilita
tion program can be successful without the participants making a 
total commitment to the program. We can have the greatest reha
bilitation programs in the world, but if the inmate does not make a 
commitment to the program and does not want to better himself, 
they're useless. ' 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, how successful have you been in encouraging 
people to make the commitment. 

Mr. HARTLEY. Well, as I testified, only about 11 percent of our 
inmate population has sought out the help. If you looked at it from 
a recidivism standpoint, only about one-third of the inmate popula-
tion returns to prison in Texas. Sixty-seven percent don't. . 

There are a great many ways you could measure recidivism, and 
I don't propose to compare Texas to other States because, as you 
probably well know, there are many different variables in account
ing that. 

But it is a, problem, and without that commitment from the 
inmate, our programs, our encouragement, and our staff are use
less. 

Mr. RANGEL. But you do believe, as a result of your studies and 
your own experience and background that if these people had not 
been exposed to drugs that many of them probably would not have 
landed in jail. . 

Mr. HARTLEY. My personal opinion, yes, sir. 
Mr. RANGEL. Now, have you been able to produce any type of 

studies to show the commended cost to the.State? Not social costs, 
but dollars and cents cost of creating these jails and the costs of 
incarceration. . 

Mr. HARTLEY. Well, Mr. Chairman, I think if you looked at the 
cost of incarceration in Texas, and Texas prides itself by having a 
lower cost per day per inmate, only about $14 per day to maintain 
an inmate. 

But if you take the 2,200 inmates identified, soley by narcotics 
charges, you're looking at a significant amount of money, daily. 
And then, if you add on to it the number of narcotics-related of
fenses, burglary, robbery, car theft, larceny, et cetera, you're talk
ing about a lot of dollars. 

Mr. RANGEL. Has any case like that been presented, to your 
knowledge, to the State legislature in terms of saving dollars for 
preventive programs? 

Mr. HARTLEY. Part of the program and rehabilitation has been 
given to us through the assistance of the legislature, and we're 
very fortunate in this State that the legislature has identified this 
as an area for the department to work in trying to turn these lives 
around and keep the cost to the taxpayer down. So, we're getting 
excellent assistance and guidance from the legislatur.e in that area. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, we're fortunate to have a copy of your profile 
and the information, and we appreciate. the fact that you're going 
to send us an update on it. . 

Mr. HARTLEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. And if you fmd any other States that are doing 

this, let us know. And we'll do the same. 
Mr. HARTLEY. Will do. 

<> 
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Mr. RANGEL. Colonel Adams, have you been working with this 
organized crime drug enforcement task force in this area? Have 
you met with them? 

Colonel ADAMS. We've met with them. Our narcotics personnel 
work with the different task force, the one with the State. We have 
an ongoing relationship with all of them. 

Mr. RANGEL. But have you been personally involved in view of 
your--

Colonel ADAMS. Not with the one right here in the area, no. 
Mr. RANGEL. Well, what relationship would your office have with 

the task force as concerned with the border problems? 
Colonel ADAMS. Well, in our narcotics service, we have 169 nar

cotics agents, State agents, and along with that, 16 highway patrol
men who are assigned as what wle call CLE trooper [criminal law 
enforcement trooper]. . 

And wherever we work, we work in conjunCtion with the local 
authorities. In other words, each task force that's formed, or each 
organized crime group around the State, interacts with our narcot
ics personnel. 

Mr. RANGEL. But the State's drug-related crime, especially the 
drug trafficking, you do find that it's impacted by your proximity 
to the Mexican border. 

Colonel ADAMS. That's right. For instance, on the-like, the Fed
eral agencies have the primary responsibility for interdicting the 
drugs coming in, but on the Texas-Mexican border, just from Del 
Rio to Brownsville, for instance, if you take two counties deep, we 
have identified, say, 700 suitable landing areas for aircraft. 

And when you see trends changing, for instance, because of the 
pressures on Florida, more large aircraft flying into Mexico as a 
staging area, and the smaller aircraft flying into Mexico from 
Texas and other States that would then be in range. Texas provides 
ample opportunity for landing and smuggling through the use of 
aircraft. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, how effective do you believe our Federal Gov
ernment has oeen in interdiction at the border, at the State for 
which you have the crime prevention responsibility? 

Colonel ADAMS. I'd say that the efforts are not effective, overall 
effective, because of the large amount of drugs still coming in. 
When you look, from a national standpoint, and see that last year, 
for instance, 1982, we say the seizures of cocaine go up from 4,000 
to 12,000 pounds. We saw heroin seizures go up from 332 to 608 
pounds. And marijuana, 2 million to 3 million pounds. And yet, you 
find the purity is up and the price is down. 
_ Now, we have to conclude that we're still dealing with just the 

tip of the iceberg, and we're not interdicting-I think the estimates 
that the Federal agents have used over the years should indicate 
that, perhaps, we're seizing about 10 percent of the drugs that are 
destined for the United States. 

So you can't call it effective when you have a 90-percent entry 
level. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, have not the Federal task force representa
tives contacted your office to ask for your input and your experi
ence as to what we could be doing and doing it better? 

Colonel ADAMS. Oh, yes. And we're getting better every year. 

I 
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And I think that what we're seeing is that a shortage of re
sources at the Federal level, primarily in their interdiction efforts. 

We don't have enough for air support in Texas. We put transpon
?ers ~m pla.nes. Our narcotics service, the State service, and in con
JunctIon w~th U.S. Cus~oms .. And it's not unusual for a plane to 
come back In from MeXICO With a transponder working and no air-
craft available to scramble and meet that plane. ' 

So, there you know another load is coming in. It's just like the 
radar coverage which is insufficient along the border. And we're 
just-I say it's primarily a question of resources, and in considering 
resources, you don't just look at enforcement resources. You have 
to look at the total scheme of things, even how many penitentiary 
beds we have available. 

Vfe hav~ maj?r cases where, for instance, we'll have 110 subjects, 
major subjects In the case, and it gets whittled down to putting 10 
people in the penitentiary. . 

Some of these c,ases we take into Federal cgurt, and the U.S. At
torney says, I can t take b~t ~O o~ the.m. ~e throwaway 100, or we 
throwaway 90. The organIZatIOn IS stIll gOIng to be alive. 

And then once they get. in the Federal penitentiary, we've had 
cases where through our Wiretaps, not on the person in the Federal 
pen, but on someone else, we learn that they're still using the tele
p~ones out of the Federal penitentiary to run their drug oper
atIOns. 

You don't find that in TDC. 
Mr. HARTLEY. No, sir. 
Colonel ADAMS. W. e don't allow them t? use a telephone, a public 

telephone, confident!ally. ~ut Fed~ral prIsons do, and we pick them 
up on our conversatIOns stIll runnIng a drug operation in Texas 
An~ even in the Shagra [phonetically] case, where the FBI ·had 

the Wiretap o~ the suspect in connection with the investigation of 
the assaSSInatIOn of Judge Wood, the Federal judge down here 
they oyerh~ard him still running drug operations out of the Feder~ 
al penItentiary. 

I think .one thing they sh~uld do is shut off those telephones, but 
tha~ gets Int~ s?mebody else s .business, the Federal prisons, and we 
don t try to InJest ourselves Into that from the standpoint of the 
problems that, again, impact on Texas because of that sort of 
access to continuing an operation, even after someone's incarcerat
ed. 

Mr. RANGEl:. Wel~, the whole spirit of the strategy, if any, is to 
have cooperatIOn With those on the front line. You can't get any 
closer to the front line than the Texas border. 

Colonel ADAMS. That's right. 
Mr. RA~GEL. Have you had the opportunity to reduce your rec

ommendatIons to the Federal Government in writing? 
Colonel ADAMS. We have from the standpoint of the-I haven't 

brought up the telephones in the Federal pen but on the other as
pects, on the increased coverage. We've taken' that up through the 
Governor's conference, and their recommendations. We have a 
S~ate drug enforcement alliance that we're represented on. We met 
~Ith the southern Governors first, and then we met with the N a
tIo~al Governor s Conference and laid out a number of recommen
datIOns from the standpoint of .intelligence and resources. 
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In our meetings, I meet regularly with the U.S. Customs in 
Texas, the Drug Enforcement personnel, also with the Commission
er of Customs in Washington, the head of Drug Enforcement, head 
of the FBI. 

We have a very good working relationship, and we bring these 
problems up as they come up. But we still get down to the ques
tions of availability of resources. 

Mr. RANGEL. Would you be kind enough, Colonel, to provide to 
this committee a summary of the recommendations that you have 
made that you would think is a national or Federal responsibility 
to assist you in carrying out your State responsibilities? 

Colonel ADAMS. Be glad to. 
Mr. RANGEL. That would be very helpful to us, and if you do it, 

then you can't be charged with meddling because we're asking for 
it. 

Colonel ADAMS. Well, I think you have to understand that we 
have some fire fights from time to time on a local level in any Fed
eral-State relationship, but institutionally, we have a very healthy 
and very fine working relationship with the Federal agencies. We 
put out fires rather than let them destroy the effectiveness of what 
we're trying to do, and that's get at the major drug traffickers in 
the United States. 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, our problem, Colonel, is that we have never 
seen any higher degree of cooperation between Mexican officials, 
between local officials, and between Federal officials. But we still 
frnd the stuff pouring across the borders. 

Colonel ADAMS. That's right. 
Mr. RANGEL. So, it's clear that as one of the Mexican officials 

told us last night through an interpreter, we have maximum coop
eration, but, obviously, something is lacking. 

Colonel ADAMS. Well, I think you heard a very good presentation 
this morning, and I don't think luu'll frnd any law enforcement of
ficial in this country who doesn t say that the only long-term solu
tion to the drug problem is the education, prevention, and treat
ment program. 

In the meantime, what we try to do is keep the pressure on the 
illegal trafficking because we know the importance of availability 
of drugs to draw other people through peer pressure into this net. 

And even the figures that Mr. Hartley presented to you show 
how many people get in through peer p'ressure, and we need to 
create more deterrents. The drug problem is just one major part of 
the total criminal justice system. 

Mr. RANGEL. Colonel, we know that. And I'm going to rely on the 
church as it relates to the spiritual family units and prevention. 

And certainly, we rely on the State for rehabilitation, which is so 
important. 

But as it relates to law enforcement, if you could just assist us. 
And we have the responsibility in directing foreign policy to 

source ·countries. 
And so, we know the different aspects of it, but because of the 

proximity of Texas to the border and because of the growing influ
ence of the congressional delegation from Texas, we think that we 
ought to focus and at least target this area to see what we can do 
before it just spreads all over. . 
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. Your recommendations will be very helpful to us In what we 
Intend to do when we get back to Washington. 

So, thank you. 
Solomon Ortiz. 
Mr. ORTIZ. Colonel, what really disturbs me now: Why wouldn't 

the Federal prosecutor accept the other 100 cases? What was his 
excuses? 

In .other wOl'ds, I ~an understand your problem. I nlean, in order 
to crIpple the organlZatjon, you need to put them in jail. 

What excuse did they use? 
· Colonel ADAMS. T~ey used the same excuse they used when I was 
In the FBI, and that s the fact that the Federal prison system only 
has 25,000 beds. We have 36,000 in the prisons in our Texas system 

There are not enough Federal prison beds available to deal with 
all the people we can arrest and prosecute to date. 

And. unless you have a constant treatment of the problem, you're 
not gOIng to have a deterrent. 

You can take ban~ robbers, as an example of what does work. 
~very. bank robbery IS reported. Every bank robbery is vigorously 
Inve~tIgat~d. Seve~ty-;five percent of the bank robberies are solved, 
and InvarI.ab~y, a Judg~ will send a bank robber to the penitentiary 
upon con'.'lctl(~n. And It has the lowest recidivism rate of any of the 
Federa). VIOlatIOns that the FBI has jurisdiction over. 

But IJ?- th~se other areas, drug cases, you take coming across the 
border. Its dlfferen~. We passed a tough law in Texas to raise the 
penaltI~s for multIton ~ots and 500 pounds or more. And so, now 
they br~ng them across 10 25-pound lots, 50-pound lots. ' 

AI}d In many cases, upon being detected at the border~ they will 
not be prosecuted by the Federal agencies. They'll draw the line 
and say, ,"We're not going to prosecute these small cases," because 
they don t ~ave the beds, t~e Federal prisons to put them in. 
· They don t have-Even If they put them on probation and estab
h~hed a record, that would h~lp because then you would be dealing 
WIth a second offender next tune, but they're often given a walk in 
those small amounts. 
· And we ~ave, youknow~ hundreds of thousands of Mexican na

tIonals camlng acro~s the borders every day. And it doesn't take 
!ong f~r the grapeVIne to tell you that there's a sanctuary if you 
Just bring across a small amount of drugs. . 

And that's why I say that th~r~ isn't any lack of desire to pros
ecu~e, but you haye to be realIstIC because the judges don't have 
avaIlable docket tIme, or ultimately, there are not enough prison 
beds. 

Now, recently in Gonzales, we had a case we worked with the 
local authorities, and we did arrest over 100 people. But before
hand, the p~os~put?r decided on .the ones he would usually walk, 
and ~~ey saId, W~ 11 take them In and get a plea of guilty on the 
condItIOn they get In a treatment program." .. 

And that, I think, is a good approach, rather than just giving ev-
erybody a walk. . 

The top ones,. 10 to 15, ~re ~oing to be prosecuted and sent down 
to Mr. Hartley In t~e penItentIary. But instead of giving anybody a 
walk, they were gOIng to take them and require them to go into a 
treatment program as a condition of probation. 

() 
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So, there are avenues to try to treat everybody, not just throw 
away many of them and not even prosecute them. 

Mr. ORTIZ. How many of these, really, do not need treatment, but 
they go to the bank with the money that they derive from the 
sales? Now, is there a good percentage of these individuals traffick
ing in drugs who might not be addicted but are there for the 
money? 

Colonel ADAMS. Absolutely. Because it is so lucrative. 
You know, when you look at some of the drug rings that have 

been broken up nationwide and see someone in a 4-year period 
making $300 million, you know there is a lot of money involved. 

And unless we can create a deterrent, we're going to be encour
aging more and more people to get into the drug traffic operation. 

Mr. ORTIZ. You know, I feel sorry for law enforcement, especially 
the position of responsibility that you have. Now, I believe that our 
society here in Texas and throughout the Nation are being-It's a 
two-pronged attack. We're not only concerned with how these 
things come from abroad, but now we're cultivating it here. 

Colonel ADAMS. And look at the problems we had, or you had in 
Congress, changing the "posse comitatus" statute to get a little 
more military involvement. 

And yet, they still have to recognize their first mission is to pro
tect the United States. But if we lose the battle on drug abuse, sub
stance abuse, not just drugs, but alcohol and others, we're not 
going to need a military to defend what's left. We have to have 
some balance, and that bill, again, was a very healthy approach 
toward allowing the military when they could be available to give 
us intelligence, give us AWACS capability, which still isn't being 
developed that much because of the cost involved in it, but it's a 
step toward what we're going to have to do. 

Mr. ORTIZ. One more question, and then I'll yield the balance of 
my time to the chairman. 

Now, these people who are cultivating this land, are they the 
owners of the land, or are they leasing the land through other indi
viduals? How is it working, Colonel? 

Colonel ADAMS. Well, a lot of it was found through this project 
with the U.S. Forest Service, where they furnished us the gasoline 
for our helicopters. We flew over forest lands, and there were all of 
these little plots being developed in out-of-the-way places on nation
al forest lands. 

It was pretty rare that we'd find someone involved in a large cul
tivation effort doing it on his own land. Most of the cultivation is 
on lease land or just in wilderness areas or on U.S. forest land or 
State forest land. 

Mr. ORTIZ. Thank you, Colonel. 
Mr. RANGEL. Sam Hall, based in Texas. 
Mr. HALL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Jim, have you noticed any change in trafficking patterns of 

methods of operation of drug smugglers operating in Texas since 
this-since the military got involved in it? 

Colonel ADAMS. We had originally anticipated that there would 
be a sharp increase in the smuggling coming in through Texas. We 
have not seen that, yet. 
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it'~~s~~~: bein~d:\!~~d. is we don't know whether it's there and 

For indstalnce, the EPIC reported two boat seizures in the gulf last 
year, an a rea?y this ye~r, I think there have been two. ... 

l"[ten you ~rIng Tex~s Into that route, we're still-that just adds 
rna Uo hmofre ~Ileage commg out of Colombia, so we haven't seen that 

c 0 an Increase. 
':Ie do thin~ the air. traffic has increased out of Mexico and 

we ve se~n the Increase In heroin coming in. ' 
in~a~~ lIt tqe deSte~ties, two .out of three kilos of heroin coming 
th ~ ni e a es came In from Mexico through Texas '\nd 
ben't w25Ith a fine eradication program they started that dropp' ed to 

a ou percent. ' 
t I~'s ~n~reasing again, and we're getting reports of heroin labora°Mes RIng set up along the Texas-Mexican border in Mexico 

r. AL~ . .DO. any ?f the three of you see any correlati~ b
t;~bk!~e CIVIl dIsobedIence that we had in the sixties and the dru~ 

Mr. LEE. I don't know myself, no. 
t ~. ~A~TLEY. I don't know of anything that would tie it directly 

b~ought .0u~fo~h~~~iH~e b~al O~~nlhi!~a~;t:sreP~~~h!>I~ been 
country IS t;l tre:memdous breakdown of the family unit g n our 

fo~~.!I::t:ctJ~; i~~~t:I. ~dt~~ b~~~kJ~!r ti:~g~~~~:::~:~} 
the famIly, the economIC pressures placed on the family-we'v t 
rore~whParent working families. We have more one-parent ;a~1-
Ies: f! ave mo:e pt;lrents that don't care as much about the wa 
th~Ir kIds a!e dOIng m school or who they're with Th t Yf 
thIngs certaInly fall right into it. . ose ype 0 

Mr: HALL. Thank you. 
I Yield back the balance of my time. 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you. 

fo;~~yC~:~~:n~~~~: ;~u o~:~:. And again, the record is open 

Colo~el Ad.ams, because you're so well respected, we'll lean on 
you a lIttle bIt more and hope that we can continue the d'al d exchange. 1 og an 

And thank you, Mr. Hartley, for the fine job that you've done on 
~fu ~~~~les. We hope it will be updated and to work very closely 

th The Chairt.woulhd like to thank the staff of Congressman Ortiz for 
e coopera IOn t at they've given to our staff' k' t . 

these hearings took place and pulling it all togeth::r rna Ing cer aln 
Q We also would ~ike to thank the local community 'leaders as well 

ao the State offiCIals, both appointed and elected .i.'or taki' t' out. ' 11 ng Ime 

Certainly, we've come to support our Federal agencies and de
~~ti~~i::' that have a responsibility of enforcing our Federal nar-

But the Chai~ would like to single out the Coast Guard for 
only the ~xpertIse of the testimony that Rear Adm Will' 'St not 
~~ h~.glV~h to t~is committee and for the job they're d~i~ of ec~= 

, na mg e gu area, but also because the Coast Guard support 

35-584 0--84-20 
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of .the mission of this hearing has made it possible for us to be 
here, and we do hope that those present and those not will have 
the reeord to say that we were appreciative. We are. I 

And I, think we also -should state the patience of our stenogra-
pher for fast-talking politicans and the Texas group. ' 

We thank you' very much, and the hearings Will 'now stand ad-
journed. " ' 

[Whereupon at 1:21 p.m. the committee was adjourned.] 
[The following was received for the record:] . 

-----~---. 
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PRESENTATION BY SAMUEL C. LOZANO 

In order to allow everyone ample time to make their presentation, I will keep 

my remarks as short as possible. The members of the panel have previously re

ceived copies of my remarks along with attachments showing statistical data 

on the drug related problems in our community. Other individuals have 

testified or will testify on problems in their respective communities. 

I am sure some of those problems are also indigenous to Harlingen. 

As the Mayor and administrator of the Harlingen Independent School District's 

Guidance Center I am acutely aware of the damage drugs cause in our community. 

As a member of the School District since 1950 and member of the City Commission 

since 1962, I have seen drug problems escalate not only in our school but 

a1so throughout the country. 

As administrator fo)' the Guidance Center I haVE: firsthand contact with every 

student that uses drugs and becomes a problem for the school systeM. Uhile 

my office is designed as a place where disruptive students are sent to con

tinue their education in a more controlled and restrictive environment, it 

is not designed to address the unique problems of students using drugs. 

In some cases the Guidance Center is a stopping place for students whose 

disruptive behavior continues and are finally expelled from the school 

system. 

Expelling students from school is not addressing their drug problems. 

Instead, in'some cases it compounds the problem not only to the student and 

the school but also to the community by removing the student from a somewhat 

controlled environment to an environment where he, in some cases, is at 

liberty to do whatever he pleases due to both parents working or coming from 

a single parent household. Thus, the juvenile ceases to hecome a problem 

of the school and, instead, now becomes the problem of the police department. 

While the police department recognizes the drug problem to be of great mag-
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nitude which transcends all social and economic levels of the cOMmunity, it is 

not designed to treat problems in a preventive manner. Instead, it is designed 

to arres t and incarcerate i ndivi dua 1 s who 'use drugs. l3ecause of the juveni 1 e 

status of most offenders, there is very little that can be done and many 

individuals are apprehended over and over again. A juvenile with drug 

problems is simply turned oVer to the county juvenile authorities who also 

are not equipped to address the problem on a preventive level. 

We have seen that the traditional methods of dealing with individuals with 

drug problems h"ve not worked. Expelling the student or incarcerating him 

for drug abuse is not the answer to the problem. Therefore, it is incum

bent upon all of us to look beyond the methods we are using and design one 

that actually works. 

In my many years of experience as an educator, I have seen many reasons why 

students turn to drugs. Many turn to drugs as an escape from their home 

environment but it is my opinion the majority turn to drugs because of peer 

pressure. r1any parents cannot compete nor counteract the pressure from 

our children's peers and, therefore, are helpless to address the problems 

the youth are having with drugs. This is particularly true of many residents 

, ill our community due ,to their social and educational level when they are 

suddenly asked to address a problem they are not that knowledgeable about. 

It would appear an educational program designed for the level of understanding 

of many of our residents would be essential. Indeed, while many individuals 

are aware and concerned with the drug problems of the community, I do not be

lieve the entire community has been alerted to the level they should. 

Passing laws to make drugs illegal is not the answer either. Enforcement of 

these laws is a burden on our community's resources but does not address the 

problem itself. 
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There are agencies which are designed to address the problems much better than 

police departments or school districts; however, many of these agencies are 

underfunded such as the Tropi ca 1 Texas Center for Ilenta 1 Health and Menta 1 

Retardation. This agency has an excellent staff and opportunity to do pre-

ventive work in the area of drug abuse, but, again, because of lack of funds 

they are unable to have the impact on the problem as they should. It is my 

opinion that not enough resources, either financial or personnel, are 

available to agencies to adequately address the problem of drug abuse. 

Study after study, report after report, are produced not only by government 

agencies but by educators regarding drug problems. However, the problem is 

still with us and continues to escalate. We have seen this country attack 

othel' major problems such as disea,ses, pol io and other, and find a cure. 

believe the same can also be true of the drug problems in our society. 

Because I am so concerned vii th the probl em in our community, I i ntenu to 

propose to the Commission of the City of Harlingen that a position within 

the city staff to combat drug problems be created. This individual \~ill 

act as a liason between the school district, the City of Harlingen, and other 

agencies dedicated to address the drug problem. This individual will not 

be a la\~ enforcement person but rather SOMeone who is well versed in drug 

problems and can make recommendations to the elected officials on how to 

cOOIbat dl'ug abuse. 

1 sincerely appreciate the opportunity to appear before the Select Committee 

on Narcotics Abuse and Control and hopefully some answers may come out of this 

hearing. 

o 
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VE:ROCN c. JOONS'l1:N, JR; 

Statement for U.S. House of Representatives 

Select Committee on Nartotics Abuse and Control 

Hearings: December 12 & 13 in Corpus Christi 

My personal involvement has been liw,ited to w.orking with youth 
through the P.T.A.'s H.A.D. (Harlingen P!lainst Drugs), and church 
youth groups. My opinions a~e based on conversations with school 
administrators, Medical personnel ,youth workers, .and youth themselves. 
I am the father of a fourteen year old boy and a twelve year old 
girl and I believe I have a good relationship with t~em for honest 
communication. 

I have had many opportuniti~s to ask questions and listen to 
kids. These kids range from eleven to thirteen years of age. They 
have been open and honest in most answers. When asked if they know 
"someone w who use~ drugs or used d~ugs in the past, the majbrity 
answered,"yes". Many of the kids do not connect "paint sniffing" 
or "glue sniffing" with drugs. There is an availabi1it, of mdrijuana 
and other drugs in the. ~chools and general co~munity. 

I believe we can have a maintenance program through education, 
heavier penalties fo~ violators, general law enforc~ment, and all 
the social programs currently available. I do not believe we ~an 
significantly decr~as~ drug use and abuse unti] the basic moral and 
family structures are strengthened; until parents take a position; 
until the medical community takes a strong position; until'the 
general public is. convinced there are short and,lon.g run physical 
and psychological effects; and until the major networks (T.V.), 
movie studios, and recording companies etc., stop glamorizing drug 
use. 

To my knowledge, there is not an overall policy to deal with 
drug abuse in South Texas .choo1s. Each school district basically 
handles their situation per their guidelines. In my opinion, the 
schools should educate, and the community should be responsible for 
drug related problems. The community could be the city, county, 
area, state, or federal government. 

I believe the existing Federal, State, and local programs 
basically deal with the addict or user. I do not believe there 
are enough efforts being placed in the prevention and education areas, 
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especially in parent education. 
In conclusion, I believe that the fact that the Federal Government 

has to get involved in the education and prevention of drug abuse 
is a sign of the times. People refusing to take responsibility for 
their own actions, communities reluctant to deal with their own 
needs, parents not giving direction, guidance, or discipline to their 
children; and everyone blaming someone for their own problems. Drug 
abuse is a cancer that will effect all areas of a persons life. The 
cancer will spread to family members, friends, schools, communities,etc. 
The only ones to benifit are the·"b100d suckerS" that sell. transport, 

grow, and defend the drug$ and drug pushers. 
Vernon c. Johnston,' Jr. 

~~ C. I., WtW I~" 
17.../1P/~""3 

1406 E. Harrison 
Harlingen, Texas 78550 
Business - (512) 425-3333 
Home (512) 423-6462 

.. 
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TESTIMONY 

By 

ELLA PRICHARD 

Founding President 

Coastal Bend Families In Action, Inc. 

Mr. Chairman, members of the committeG; I am Ella Prichard 

of Corpus Christi, founding president and current executive 

board member of Coastal Bend Families in Action, a non-profit 

volunteer organization committed to juvenile drug abuse 

prevention and education in South Texas. I want to thank you 

for inviting me to appear before you today, and I want to 

express my appreciation for the contributions made by the 

committee in securing passage for the Diplomacy Against Drugs 

bill. I hope you will provide the same leadership in getting 

the Crime Bill, or its separate components, out of House 

committee. 

For the past three years, due in large measure to the 

leadership given by the Texans' War on Drugs, South Texans have 

taken a close look at the use of drugs, particularly marijuana, 

by juveniles and the consequences of juvenile drug use: to 

youth themselves, their families, peers, schools and 

communities. Through the efforts of Coastal Bend Families in 
.. 

Action, parents, educators, law enforcment personnel, elected 

officials, drug treatment professionals, the medical community 

and youth themselves have joined together to combat the problem 

and to work toward a drug-free society. 

For too long, in South Texas as throughout most of the 

country, parents sat by and waited for the "experts" to find 

solutions. But the "experts" failed to find many solutions 

that truly worked, and for a decade the amount of drug use 

I 
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among youth continued to climb. With that climb has come the 

parallel rising death rate among our youth, the only group in 

American society today whose death rate is not decreasing. 

Since the beginning of the parent movement in 1977, drug use 

among high school seniors has begun to drop; and the parent 

movement, with the support it has won from both the public and 

private sector, holds great promise for the future. 

The parent movement in Texas has been singularly 

fortunate, for Texans' War on Drugs, established by our former 

governor, Bill Clements, and chaired by Ross Perot, found 

models to copy; brought in leaders in drug prevention and 

information from around the country to educate us; provided 

staff, programming and print resources to assist us; and 

created a statewide network, with communication to other 

states, for morale and encouragement. This caliber of 

leadership and professionalism gave credibility to the parent 

movement in Texas. The Junior Leagues of Texas, Texas Medical 

Association Auxiliary and the Texas Congress of Parents and 

Teachers quickly joined the movement. Other civic groups have 

followed. Here in Corpus Christi, our initial support came 

from our sheriff--now our Congressman--Solomon Ortiz, our mayor 

and our superintendent of schools. Those who had dealt so long 

with the problems of juvenile drug abuse--and with the 

concurrent problem of public apathy--welcomed the participation 

of parents and the private sector. 

Since the local program began, we have studied all aspects 
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of juvenile drug use: causes and effects; treatment and 

prevention. We turned first to the materials at hand and 

discovered that not only were textbooks, films and library 

books O,ut .of date; but funding cutbacks at the federal, state 

and local level made replacing such material virtually 

impossible. The local office of the Drug Enforcement 

Administrat~on and the substance abuse office at the Naval Air 

station assisted us in obtaining government-printed materials. 

Other material, not always containing accurate information 

however, came fr.e.e or at nominal cost from the National 

Institute on Drug Abuse. State agencies also had a wealth of 

free materials, and federally funded treatment agencies were 

willing to share their resources. 

Since then, the picture has changed for the worse. As the 

parent movement has made its voice heard--that any use of 

illicit drugs is abuse, that m~rijuana is physiologic~lly and 

psychologically harmful--additional major funding cuts have 

occurred, resu~ting in fewer and fewer materials being produced 

at higher and hi,gher costs. Today,- NIDA is'publishing some 

excellent materials, many of them especially appropriate for 

classroom use, but their high cost, e.g., children's comic 

books that cost several dollars, put them out of reach for the 

average school district or prevention program. 

Certainly, every agency does not deserve to continue. Too 

many have become self-serving; others have been careless with 

public funds. Great harm was done when health agencies 
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promoted the theory that marijuana is less harmful than tobacco 

and alcohol. We need careful accounting: cost-accounting, 

success rate, accuracy of information; but w,e do not need to 

destroy the effective work of our successful agencies: 

Similarly, we need to hold our law enforcement agencies 

accountable; but we will not solve the problem of drug 

smuggling and trafficking by reducing the staffs and resources 

of the Customs Service, Border Patrol, coast Guard and Drug 

Enforcement Administration. 

The schools of South Texas have demonstrated a mar~ed 

commitment to reversing the upward spiral of drug use at 

school. Most, like the Corpus Christi District, have adopted 

tough policies that call for long-term suspension of students 

who use drugs and alcohol at school. At first the new policy 

was highly effective, and drug and alcohol use on campu~ 

dropped noticeably. But the Fifth Circuit Court ruled that the 

use of drug-sniffing dogs in the classroom violated students' 

civil rights, and since that ruling drug suspensions have 

climbed. Surely, every student has a basic right to attend a 

school where he can feel safe, where he can learn, where 

teachers can teach. The disruption of the teaching process by 

stoned and drunk students is a national problem and needs to be 

solved at the national level. 

Funding cutbacks have tightened school budgets and 

drastically reduced "frills" like top-quality drug in-service 

programs and the longtime highly successful "Operation 
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Kick-It," where state prisoners visit the schools and share 

their experience. Families in Action has sought to fill the 

gap. It has purchased films for the Region II Education 

service Center, which serves more than 90,000 children in 11 

counties~ provided funds for in-service workshops~ trained 

volunteers to conduct drug education to more than 2,000 fourth 

and sixth graders~ and financed "Operation Kick-It" in 1982. 

While it is unrealistic to expect a volunteer organization with 

an annual budget of $20,000 to carry the major responsibility 

for drug 

programs 

prevention, this is one example of the kinds of 

being conducted by parent groups across the country. 

The Reagan Administration is to be commended for 

attracting the attention of the pUblic and the media to the 

seriousness of the drug problem and for involving the private 

sector in finding solut~ons. . Many' of these privately funded 

programs truly are outstanding, and they tend to be more 

more cost-effective than some of the traditional innovative and 

bureaucratic approaches. 

Unfortunately, national drug prevention and treatment 

efforts too often fail to recognize that drug abuse is more 

than a black-white problem and that regional differences do 

exist. Films, as well as photographs in textbooks and 

brochures, show black and white faces and are written in 

English. They give information on heroin, cocaine and 

marijuana but not on inhalents--the glue and paint that are the 

drugs of choice for the poor Hispanic boys of the barrios. 
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Concerned Hispanic parents cannot get the materials they need 

in the language they speak. Texas agencies have made every 

effort to meet the need, but the funds to produce high-quality 

professional materials are not available. Again, support at 

the national level is needed. 

The best national policy is one that will prOvide full 

government support to the public and the private sectc;>r, to 

professionals and parents. It will acknowledge that all 

mind-altering drugs are a threat to our children and that our 

nation needs to address drug and alcohol Use and abuse as a 

single problem. It will recognize that drug abuse affects the 

entire nation, all ages, all classes, all racial and ethnic 

groups. 

G 
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STATEMENT·GIVEN TO THE U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES SELECT 
COMMITTEE ON NARCOTIC ABUSE !N CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS ON DECEM~ 
BER 13, 1983 BY MRS. BURMA BARNETT, PRESIDENT OF THE CORPUS CHRISTI 
CITY COUNCIL OF PARENT-TEACHER ASSOCIATIONS. 

Thank you for this opportunity to speak before you. I am 

Burma Barnett, President of the Corpus Christi City Council of 

Parent Teacher Associations. Our City Council is made up of re

presentatives from PTAs in the Corpus Christi Independent School 

District, Tuloso-Midway Independent School District, and Calallen 

Independont School District. our combined memberships are approxi

mately 14,000. I am serving my second term as the Council presi

dent. Because council has not studied specifically the questions 

you have asked me 'to address, I am speaking today only for myself 

and from my own information, research, kn~wledge and concern about 

the drug abuse problem in our schools. 

Narcotic usage in our young people has dropped from occurring 

primarily at the high school age down to the jr. high age and, 

tragic as it is, we are now finding the problem in our elementary 

children. Marijuana had been found among our first graders. 

In our Corpus Christi public schools, marijuana is the major 

problem with occasionally a student being found with p8lls of some 

kind. Working toward drug free schools the CCISD Board of Trustees 

has instituted Board Policy #5143 dealing with drug and substance 

abuse. This policy was adopted in May of 1981 to be in effect tho 

school year of 1981-1982, and was amended to inclUde drug parapher

nalia beginning with the 1983-1984 school year. The policy can be 

violated by a student found to be under the influence of a prohi

bited substance or the possession or use of drugs or drug para-
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phernalia or by the conviction in a court of law of amisdea-

meanor or felony for the possession, use, deliver, dispensing or 

sale of a prohibited substance or drug pare.pherne.lic. whether. on 

or off school property. or while attending or participating in a 

school sponsored function. 

Students found violating this policy ere suspended for the 

remainder of· the termor semester with failing grades. The first 

year this policy was in effect, 1981-1982, 106 students were sus

pended. The number rose to 180 during the 1982-1983 scheal ye~r. 

AS of December 6, 1983 in this, the third year of the policy, there 

havo beeu 59 s.uspensions. Of these, 44 have be,en for ms.rijuans., 

8 for alcohol (which is alao covered in the policy) and 7 for para

phernalia. Suspended stUdents have the right of appeal to the' 

School Distriutts Hearing Officer and to the Board of Trustees. 

How can we claim the policy is working when yearly there are 

mere of the students being suspended from school? \'Ie must remember 

that the intent of this policy is not to see how many students can 

b& caught and "kicked out" of school but rather to impress upon them 

tha.t drugs are not allowed on school campusei:i OI'&t school activities. 

!n the twc years since the 5th Circuit Court of Appeals 

handed down thA decision involving the Goose Creek School Dietrict 

and the drug sniffing dog, it is i'elt that the students are laboring 

under a. false sense of security du~ to the "drug dog" nu longer 

be-ging t:.llQwed to 'lsI'liff out.ns. p&raon. This complacency may also 

make u~ the higher number of suspensions. 
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This year the suspended students can attend special bacic 

classes and both individual and fn~ily counseling sessions at our 

local Martineau Juvenile H~ll. One extra teacher has been hired 

and one extra portable building hasLbeen erected for this purpose. 

Cc~pus Christi Independent School District hae no more and 

probably nu less a drug problem than any other school district 

of similar size. The schools only reflect society and drugs ~ 

more available today. 

What type of a pr~vention program do we have here? Staff 

development sessions assist our teachers in presenting accurate 

information from Kindergarten through the 12th gr&.de on drug and 

substance abuse. Not only are the phusiological, psychological 

and sociological effects of drug ab~se taught but more importantly 

the teachers include decision making, positive peer group relation

ships, car-eel' and life goals, family life and deVeloping and 

maintaining a positive self-image. Teaching activities based on 
• I 

unbiased, upAto-dnte information enhance the credibility of the 

teacher·and offer n greater chance to deter tbe dangerous street 

information, the 8ubtle media messages, and pop-idol role modeling 

to which our stUdents are being subjected daily. 

The basic concepts of the classification and terminology of 

drugs are first presented in health and 6cience classes in elemen

tary school and further developed in the secondary schools in health, 

physical science~and. biology classes as well as other courses. For 

example, drug control regUlations ar& treated generally in health 
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class but in more depth in government class. Each grude rein

forces and builds on what has been previously taught. Our schools 

do a good job providing information and helping stUdents handle 

their personal lives more successfully. 

The GATE (Gain Awareness Through Education) program presented 

by the Junior Lec..gue of Corpus Christi sends many volunteers with 

further drug education into our 4th and 6th graders in 2 weekly 

hour long sessions. GATE is in its thil'd year, having grown from 

2 schools the first year, to 14 last ~ear and already having com

pleted 6 in the 198)-1984 year. Parent meetings ere also arranged 

before the actUal GATE session~ begin. 

In the Jetter I received from thio committee I was asked the 

question, "What needs to be done to improve drug abuse prevention, 

treatment and rehabilitation services?" Some of the others here 

will speak more about the treatment and rehabilitation programs 

but I would like to address particularly the prevention aspect of 

this problem. 

Teen-agel'S have listed the following 10 things as their main 

concern: 

1. friends 

2. family 

3. feelings 

4. future careers 

$. sexuality 

6. parents 

7. queotions about the universe 

35~584 0-84-21 
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8. love 

9. safety and security 

10. fcirness it competition 

While teen-agers may have the same concerns as adults, they 

de not have the skills or maturity necessary to deal with them. 

The most important skill which teen-agers need to learn is how to 

develop and maintain a positive self-image. Columbus, Ohio is the 

headquwrters of a program called Quest/Skills For Living Project, 

which masterfully deals ~/ith the teaching of living skills to high 

school students. The highly academically oriented school of 

Bloomfield Hills, Michigan has instituted the Quest/Skills £or 

~iving program as a one-semester elective credit course. Quest 

teaches students proficiency in goal-setting, ~esponsibllity, self, 

control, and self-esteem building. As Mike Buscemi, the national 

coordinator of the Quest program has said, IIWe !ire only going to 

solve the drug and alcohol problem when we solve the people problem." 

Although the Quest program is only in e£fect at the high school 

level now, there are plans to implement it in the junior highs 

next year, and hopefully on to the elementary level. This program 

wc~ determined by the National Institute of Drug Abuse to be one 

of the three best drug prevention courses available in the country 

today, although it is not primarily a drug prevention program. Since 

Quest, teen-age pregnancy as well as incidents of drug and alcohol 

abust: in Bloomfield Hills have declined dgnificantly. 

The slL'.ll \-rhich enable young people to deal with. peer pressure, 

~: i th drugs and alcohol inc idents, and with changing s exuali ty we 
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admit are ones which should be nurtured and learned slowly in a 

loving home anvirorunent. This does not always occur, however, so 

these vitcl coping skills need.to be taught in our schoole. 

I feel the parents of this cuun~ry would support the expen

diture of Federal, state or local money for such a beneficial 

program. Only by dealing with the cause of Ncrcotic and Substance 

abuse can we effectively eliminate the need fer more treatment and 

rehabilitation programs. 
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BURMA BARNETT 
4209 Carlton 
Corpus Christi, Tex~~ 78415 
(512) 852-6511' 

320 

Born: November 12, 1941 Corpus Christi, Texas 

Graduated Mary Carroll High School, C9~PUS Christi 
Attended Del I-tar College 

Married Kenneth H. Barnett ror 23 years 

Three children: Barry Donald, 22 
Jeffrey Thomas, 20 
Julie Virginia, 19 

All graduates of Moody High School, Corpus Christi. Now attending 
Del Mar College and Southwest Texas state University, San Marcos. 

Has been involved in P~A work for 16 years. Four ye~rs on the 
board of the League of Women Voters or Corpus Christl. Served on 
bo~rd of the Business and Professional WomQn's Club. Trained 
a~ an arbitrator for the Better Business Bureau. Chajrperson of 
P;e-school classes for Norton Street Church of Christ.for 6 years. 
Participant in the Leadership Corpus Christi class XII. ~Dard 
member of Corpus Christi Familiae in Action. 
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C8howMlliQQe 911depel1deflt gcl100Q COi~tnict 
CBhOltlI1!:1I1QQe. tTexas 78520 

RAUL A. BESTEIRO, JR. 
December 7, 1983 

SUPERINTENDENT 

Mr Charles Rangel, Chairman 
select Committee On Narcotics Abuse and ~ontr01 
Room 510 ' 
3649 Leopard 
Corpus Christi, Texas 78408 

Dear Mr. Range 1 : 

In accordance with your request for information regarding 

narcotic abuse and control, I have conducted a survey on our schools, 

local law enforcement agencies and prevention and treatment centers. 

Furth~rmore, I obtained some statistics from a national journal of 

alcohol abuse. 

Included in this letter are the ~esults of my investigation, 

as well as my conclusions and recommendations. 

According to the Brownsville Police Department, the drug addiction 

problem in our area has not been researched enough to report the 

extent of drug addiction. 'As far as the effectiveness of law enforcement 

efforts are concerned, the police department is doing everything possible 

to control and prevent drug abuse. They provided the following statistics 

on the juvenile drug and alcohol users arrested in the years 1978 

and 1982. 

1978 1982 

FEMALE: FEMALE: 

AGES: 11-12 None AGES, 11-12 1 drug, 1 alcohol 

13-14 2 drug related, 1 alcohol 13-14 2 alcohol 

15 6 alcohol 15 1 drug, 1 alcohol 

16 5 drug, 3 alcohol 16 2 alcohol 

17 4 alcohol 17 5 alcohol 

18 1 drug, 3 alcohol 18 3 drug 10 alcohol 

19 5 alcohol ,19 4 alcohol 

"THE BROWNSVILLE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICTIS AN EaUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER, M/F," 
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MALE: 

AGES: 11-12 3 drug, 1 alcohol 

13-14 17 drug, 3 alcohol 

15 9 drug, 39 alcohol 

16 20 drug, 59 alcohol 

17 

18 

19 

15 drug, 66 alcohol 

25 drug, 108 alcohol 

19 drug, 90 alcohol 
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1982 

MALE: 

AGES: 11-12 12 drug, 1 alcohol 

'13-14 9 drug, 17 alcohol 

15 12 drug, 19 alcohol 

16 14 drug, 34 alcohol 

17 

18 

19 

13 drug, 83 alcohol 

17 drug, 98 alcohol 

24 drug, 124 alcohol 

The treatment and prevention activites in our schools and community 

include the referral of students involved in any kind of chemical 

dependencies to several agencies and organizations. Copies of these 

agencies and organizations are enclosed. 

With specific reference to the need for compl'ehensive drug education, 

my perspective is that there is a vital need if an expansion for 

such education~' 

Upon contacting the Cameron County Task Force, I was informed 

that cities such as Brownsville with its proximity to the Mexican 

Border are highly affected by the transit of .herofn,and marijuana 

from Mexico. The transit of such drug::; primarily involves adults 

and not school age children. However, it appears that the adults 

and/or non-students do influence the students in our schools. 

In regard to the drug abuse pr.oblems in our schools, school 

" officials are aware that there is a definite problem. It has been 

our overall district policy to illl:orm all school personnel either 

through staff develop!!!en!::, lecl:ures, films, and resource people 

about any and all kinds of narcotics abuse and control. 

Our district's overall policy in the dealing with drug abuse 

in our schools has been to inform and educate students at every grade 

level. Our school district has also employed agents who use dog 

sniffers periodically throughout the school year'in the schools. 

At the present time, we are in the process of evaluating the effectiveness 

of the techniques being used by these agents. 
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As mentioned earlier you will find copies of federal, state, and 

local programs available in our community that deal with drug problems. 

Current programs in our district are addressing the particular needs 

of students in our area through short and long range goals that are 

stated in our school district's five-year plan. 

The "National Institute of Alcohol Abuse Journal" indicates that 

93% of the high school seniors have used alcohol and that 50% of 

high school seniors use alcohol on a regular basis. Some of these 

students use alcohol before school, after school, or during lunch. 

The statistics in this report also show that one out of every seven 

persons in the United States use alcohol or end up in trouble due 

to alcohol abuse. At the present time the median age of alcohol 

users has decreased from 50 year olds to 30 year olds. 

The report also infers that most adolescents try alcohol and 

marijuana b~tween grades five through eight for the first time. 

One of the newest programs available in Brownsville attacking any 

kind of chemical dependencies is the Fairlights Incorporation and 

the Palmer Drug Abuse Program. 

Hopefully, through the combined p.fforts of the Hous~ Select 

Committee on Narcotic Abuse and Control, our local, federal, and 

state law enforcement agencies, we can determine what needs to be 

done to correct this problem that prevails in our school of today. 

I personally appreciate the concern of your committee for it 

is evident that drug and alcohol abusers are a definite threat to 

our society and especially to our youth. 

I look forward to hea=ing from you once again, and I will do 

my best to keep you informed of any additional information that is 

within my power to provide to your :ommittee. 

SR/nlo 
Enclosures: 5 

SinCerelY~ 

S~ "'-~/C'\.. 
Simon Rivera, Jr., Irl 
Assistant Superintendent 
for Secondary Education 
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'I 

I 

1 
ItTO GRANnr: VA1 .. T .. F.Y MrD WAY nOUSE INC. 

I 

IiDr, N. 7th, IInrl1nr,t'n ~lC '18550 

24 hours a dny 

Al Romero 

4 County Area 

Pay resident care when able 

I 

I 
!T('1 ! 423~~i9&4 

I 

Age limit-08-65) Should be employable 
Not for eme~gency services 

90 day program Indetermined outpatient care 
Group and In,diviual Counseling & Educational presunl:at':'-:::-' 

I 

State Fundin,s & Local Contributio~s 

I 
Wo.rking resi~ents during the 90 day program contrii::II;c 
to the support. 

---~----------------------------------------- -------

S'THFR ~JFOF.M.\TIbN ----,--

35-584 0-84--22 
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TEY.AS STATE OF 'STATE DEPAR'l'MmIT. OJ! l'ili'NTAL ITEALTII 
AND MElI.'TAL RETARDl.'L'IOii 

35 Orange, Brow~sville Tx 785Z0 ~. 542-9151 
I 

8 a.m, - 5 p.m~ 

Dr. Timithy Brown 

Cameron 

Pay for some medication if able. 

Anybody who needs help' 

Will help anybody who wants to get off, drugs, provide 
counseling serVices, will help people ,who want to go 
to the hospita~ for detact. 

State funds 

If minor needs help to get off 
go into office'without his/her 
needs help to ~et off drinking 
needs parent or guardian to be 
hospital in Harlingen. 

drugs, ,he 
parents. 
alcohol, 
admitted 

or she can 
If minor_ 

he or she 
into the 
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REALITY HOUSE' 

I 

405 E. Washington, Bro;~sville Tx 78520 ~. 541-1i7! 

I 

2<' hour care . 

Mr. Van Vaughn 

Cameron, Willacy, Hidalgo and Starr Counties 

None 

Federal offenders, those men on parole or on probation, 
sentenced thrqugh court, condition of.probation- retu;:ncd 
from Federal Correctional Institution. 

• I 
Readjust to community life, to become ,a productive 
citizen to rehabilitate drug addicts and alcoholic8. 

Federal Government contract basis and privately owned. 
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ALCOHOLICS ANONYMOUS 

705 N. Expwy •• Brownsville, Tx 
78520 

t 
tT~~. 
I 

,t\!!-4d1. 
~"~.,,93?3 

t 
12 noon - 1 p .• m. and 8 p;m. - 9 p.fII. (Mon. thru !?n~.) 

1 p.m. - 2 p.m. an1 8 p.m. - 9 p.~. (Sun.) 
7 p.m. - 8 p,.m. Young Mind meetiflg 

Brownsville 

None 

Anyone who wants to quit drinking;alcohol. 

t , 
t 
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VALLEY l'.EGIONAL COUNCIL ml ALCO:;';;'i.ISrl PJID'DRUG ::.:;::: 

I 

. I' 
2733 S. 77 Sun~hine St~ip, Harlingen Tf 7a550,~. ~~3-0::: 

I I 

10 a.m, - 4 p.m, 

Mrs.: Romero 

, 
Cameron, Willaey, Hidalgo 

None 

None 
" 

Information-Ref~rral-Spe~kers Bureau 

Community Contributions 
Anticipated Federal funding 

Co-ord1nation in Employment Efforts 

(i 
'\ 

(o~her hour:;:) 4~3-;';:: .. 

, I 
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Testimony 

By 

Vance Littleton. PhD 

Superintendent 

Corpus Christi Independent School District 

DRUG EDUCATION PROGRAM K-12 . 

Growing up presents many difficulties. Young people are striving to develdp 
from dependence to independence. to gain individual identity. and to reach out 
socially into a world of changing values, standards, and modes of behavior. 
Most educators and medical authorities agree that helping the young person to 
develop a well-adjusted personality is basic to the prevention of dr~g use and 
abuse. Studies have shown that the person who succumbs to drug abuse may feel 
.insecure, unrecognized, Clnd unhappy. 

The purpose of the Corpus Chl"Hti Independent School Di stri ct' s Drug Educati on 
Progl'am is to provide accurate .• unbiased infonnation and resources to the stu
dent. This program assists each student by providing factual up-to-date infor
mation thl'ough the content'areas from kindergarten through the twelfth grade. 

Infonnation concerning drugs and the latest'research is provided through text
books, resource speakers, films and filmstrips. Role playing. simulations, and 
other stUdent-involvement type activities are used to assist students to make 
informed decisions. These activities are further developed to assist students 
in establishing positive peer-group relationships. 

Activities are employed inseyeral classes to help students in examining various 
goals -- individual, family, educational, and career -- in order to set the back
ground for setting personal life goals. These goals are evaluated from the 
stUdent's point of view to help them detennine what is needed to obtain other 
goals in life. 

Activitie.s are developed in various subject areas to help each pupil to develop 
and maint~Jn a positive self-image. When teachers are aware of stUdents who 
have specific problems other resources are requested, such as the. additional 
expertise of the counselor and/or the nurse. 

The Drug Education Program is se,quential in nature .\~ith the foundation being 
provided itl the elementary schools. Various skills and concepts are introduced 
in the primary grades and developed at other grade levels. Activities are designed 
to be stUdent-centered in order to be the most effective. 

Student activities are provided through the subject areas of Health, Science, and 
Sodal Studies. The basic skill areas are reinforced when students are required 
to research and report specific questions. 

There are. many drug education resources available for Corpus Christi students and 
teachers Which include textbooks. curr;culumguides. handbooks. and media materials. 

Textbooks 
State-adopted textbooks are provided to each student in health, life science, 
biology, American history. government, and psychology classes. The text
books have met the standards established by the state textbook committee. 

Curriculum Guides, Handbooks, and Resource Guides 
Drug education resource Units and guides, written by and for district 

'personnel since 1970, are available for the subject areas that include drug 
education units. In an effort to continue to provide accurate, up-to-date 
drug and sUbstance abuse information, the Health/Nutrition Guides, Grades 
1-2, 3-4. 5-6, and the Drug Education Resource Unit (1983-84) have been 

00 
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prepared to assist teachers, administrators, and support personnel. 

f1edia 
mteachers are encouraged to utilize the films that are available from 
the Regional Education Service Center (ESC). Using recommendations from 
community groups and district personnel, the ESC has updated the film 
listing \'lith recent acquisitions. Each school library has the media 
catalogs and supplements, and the librarian facilitates the ordering and 
shO\~ing of the films appropriate for each grade level. 

Addit~onal sources of material are available from various community 
agencles and for-the elementary schools from the Elementary Science Center, 

Staff Development 
Training sessions are provided during Pre-Contract and Pre-School Staff 
Development. Equivalency Time Programs, and District Inservic.e Days. 
These sessions are designed for elementary teachers, science, social 
studies, health and P.E. teachers, nurses, counselors, administrators, 
P.E. paraprofessionals, and other interested faculty and staff. 

Although every attempt is made to have resource information available 
that is current and valid, it is-emphasized that teachers and support 
personnel must stay informed of the latest medical research, current 
community resources. and the changes in drug legisiation. Training 
sessions provide current informatio.n as IVell as topics for classroom 
discussions and presentations. Teaching activities based on unbiased, 
up-to-date information enhances the credibtlity of the teacher and offers 
a greater chance to deter the dangerous street jnfor;;i~.ti on, subtle medi a 
messages, and pop-idol modeling to l'ihich students arr.: being subjected 
daily. 

Additional Resources Availabl! tb.Studan~~ ~nd Teachers 

- The CCISD Profes·sitl'Ja1 Library provides current magazines and books 
which are p~~vfewed by central office instructional staff. Material 
with th;:z appropriate content and reading level are included on local 
bi~Hographies. 

- School libraries provide materials I~hich are reviewed and recCl!lllOOnded 
by the individual school staff. 

- Support personnel such as counse 1 ors and nUI'ses recei ve speci a 1 tra i ni ng 
and research data in order to meet the unique needs of the schools in 
which they are assigned. They have materials related to drug use and 
abuse. In addition, through workshops and newsletters they are informed 
of a variety of community resource agencies and individuals to whom 
referrals may be made. 

Area Services Available to Students and Teachers 

Non-Profit organizations such as the Coastal Bend Families in Action, 
C.C. Police Department, Hedical Society and Au;<niary, and the Nueces 
County Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Council provide various services at 
little or no charge. These resource~ al'e available to be used in the 
instructional program and to me.et individual needs. 

----.~---
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_ Private serviceS are provided by various clinical psychologists, 
medical doctors, and lawyers at varying rates or fees. 

The instructional program includes the following topics: 

A~lareness of the useful and harmful effects of drugs 

Accurate irifotmation regarding the harmful effects to the substance 
abuser 

Physiological effects of drugs 
M psychological effects of drugs 
_ Soc;010gica1 effects of drugs 

Activities to assist students in 

t~ihtaining a positive self-image 
Making informed decisions 
Developing positive peer group relationships 

- Setting life goals 

Additional drug topics are included in selected subject areas and grade 1eve1s~ 
Specific subject areas for the introduction and reinforcement of a concept are 
determined by teachers and curriculum consultants. For exampl~, d~ug control 
regulations are treated generally in health class but are stud1ed 1n more depth 
in government courses. The basic concepts of the classification and terminology 
of drugs are first presented in health and scienc~ classes in el~entary.schoo1 
and further developed in secondary school courses in health, phys1cal SC1ence, 
and biology. 

At least one subject area at each grade level has been designated an emphasiS 
area for drug education. The following chart shows the areas of ~mphasis. 

GRADE 

K-6, 7 
K-6, 

or 8 
a 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 

WHERE 

Health Education 
Li fe Sci ence 
American History & Citizenship 

• General Physical Science 
Health Education 
American History 
American Governmant 

The major drug education concepts and topics are presented sequentially. Each 
grade level reinforces and builds on what has been p.reviously presented. Teachers 
are not limited to teaching only those concepts listed for their grade level. 
All teachers at every grade level are encouraged to be aler~ to the special needs 
of their students and to provide guidance and inform~tion or to.rec~mmend the 
appropriate school and community resour~e. Informat10n and.act1vit1es are inte
grated in all areas of instruction. Th1S assignment of tOP1CS is planned to en
sure that essential material' is presented •. 

The CCISD Drug Education program is designed to provide information and skill~ 
that assist students to handle their personal lives more succes~ful1y. to avo1d 
relying on drugs to solve interpersonal problems, and to live w1th people whose 
drug use patterns are different from their own. 
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In addition to providing a strong instructional thrust, Corpus Christi Inde
pendent School District is also committed to ensuring a drug-free environment 
in which our students can learn. The Board of Trustees and administration feel 
that strong deterrent measures are critical to our efforts to provide safe 
schools. 
The district has in force a strong drug/alcohol policy which is working success
fully to remove students who possess or abuse those substances while at school 
or at school-related activities. The policy requires student offenders -
without exception -- to be suspended for the rest of the semester and to receive 
F's in all" sub.jects. 
Though originally critized by some as being "too tough," this policy. has signifi
cantly reduced the incidence of possession and use of drugs and alcohol on Corpus 
Christi Independent School District campuses. The policy is strongly supported 
by school administrators, parents and the community. 

Drug and alcohol abuse is a community concern. As part of the community of Corpus 
Christi, the school district has played an active r01e in support of various 
groups fighting drug abuse. 

Rec9mmendations on what is needed to win this battle include: 

* Further education for parents on hOlt to develop healthy children \~ho will 
not turn to chemical dependency, hOw to recognize clues indicating drug 
abuse and how to deal with son~ and daughte~s struggling with this problem. 

* A wid~-spread public information campaign to make society as a whole aware 
of the dangers of drug abuse and where help is available if needed. 

* Additional instruction for teachers and school staff members in how to 
recognize and help stUdent drug abusers. 
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ROBSTOWN I,NDEPEN DENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
801 NORTH FIRST STREET 

ROBSTOWN, TEXAS 78380 

(512) 387.2511 

December 7, 1983 

Honorable d.1arles B. Ibn gel , Chnjnnan 
Select Connnl ttee on Narcotic Abuse 
and Control 
Room 501 
3649 Leopard 
Corpus Christi, TX 78408 

~ar Congressman Rangel: 

Thank you for offering me the opportunity to address the Select 

Committee 011 Narcotics Abuse and Control on the critical topk of drug 

addiction problems in South Texas. r appreciate the fact that this 

Connnittee has decided to conduct this hearing. It lYill convey 11 stronp 

message throughout Texas. r will speak to you today from the perspective 

of a schOOl superintendent and statf" the problems educators contend with 

as follows: 

1. Extent of the drug abuse problem in the schools and what can 

be done to more c<ffectively bdng the problem under control. 

There are definitely problems in regards to drug abust> in .American 

Public School~ today. By this, I mean that students are definitely 

using or experimenting with drugs at a higber level tJlaJl ever before. 

The availability of dl~gS coupled witl1 permissive societal attitudes will 

continue to make this problem one of major pOl-portions. It is imperative 

that all public agencies work together t~ combat the problem. 

I would like to sta~~i that educators are making efforts to combat 

the problem. TheY.lIld school boards are attacking the problem through the 

implementation of strict drug abuse policies and drug p-revention programs 
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which involve parents and other d ti zens in the communi t)'. We all have a 

stake in solving the problem of drug abuse. 

In our district, we have a very strong policy which is enforced by 

school administrators and supported by our Board of Education. We will 

simply not tolerate drug abuse by our students. I would further suggest 

that school districts increase communications and not allow suspended 

students to cross school district boundaries to register. 

In Robstown, we also have a community-wide Drug Education Gommittee 

composed of educators, students, and parents. The committee is generating 

a drug awareness program that I believe will have a very significant impact 

on drug abuse in our schools and community. Also, we have been working 

jointly with the Goastal Bend Families in Action Gommittee to combat drugs 

. in our schools. 

I do not believe there is a significant effort at the Federal and 

State level that attempts to address the drug abuse problem in the schools. 

There is a definite need for greater resources to be allocated to assist 

school districts with their drug abuse and prevention programs. 

It is particularly important that resources be made available to 

school districts of all sizes for alternative education programs for 

those students who are suspended for drug abuse., 

In conclusion, I would encourage this committee to provide the 

needed emphasis at the Federal, State and Local level to direct both hunan 

and material resources at the elementary and secondary level of public 

educatir;n to combating this serious and ever growing problem. 

Sincerely, ~ 

~6.g0S' Ed. D.~ 
Superintendent 
JGG/ce 

Encl: I Drug Abuse Policy 
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T~STIMONY FOR "DRU~ TRAFFICKING AND ABUSE ON THE TEXAS. GULF COAST" 
HEAR I NG OF THE U",::>. HOUSE OF /{EPRESENTA~IVES SELECT ~O"lMITTEE 

UN NABCOTI CS AeUSE ANti QNTROL 
DECEMBER 12-13) 19 j 

CORPUS ~HRISTI) TEXAS 
DELIDVEREDABY DEENA WATSON) DIRECTOR 
- RUG BUSE PREVE~TION DIVISION 
IEXAS DEPARTMENT OF ~OMMUNITY AFFAIRS 

MR. CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THF.COMMITTEE) I THANK YOU FOR THE 

INVITATION TO ADDRESS A NUMBER OF ISSUES RELATED TO DRUG ABUSE IN 

TEXAS AND THE NATION. 

I COME TO SPEAK TO YOU 'FROM THE PERSPECTIVE OF DIRECTOR OF A 

STATE DRUG AGENCY AND ONE WHO HAS WORKED IN THE FIELD OF DRUG ABUSE 

NATIONWIDE FOR OVER 15 YEARS • 

, I AM PARTICULARLY PLEASED THAT THIS COMMITTEE HAS NOT RESTRICTED 

ITS INTERESTS TO PROBLEMS RELATED TO USE OF NARCOTICS NOR TO ONE 

PROBLEM AREA FOR IT IS BECOMING INCREASINGLY OBVIOUS THAT DRUG ABUSE 

IS A FAR-REACHING CONCERN) AND MY CENTRAL MESSAGE HERE TODAY IS THAT 

WE MUST ADDRESS ALL FACETS OF THIS ISSUE WITH A WELL-BALANCED SET OF 

STRATEGIES INFORMED BY A KEEN UNDERSTANDING OF HISTORY. THIS SET OF 

STRATEGIES MUST BE ADDRESSED SIMULTANEOUSLY TO ALL POPULATION POTEN

TIALLY IMPACTED BY. DRUG ABUSE AND MUST INCLUDE BALANCED SUPPLY REDUC

TION AND DEMAND REDUCTION EFFORTS. FURTHER) THESE EFFORTS NEED TO BE 

COORDINATED AND DIRECTED SIMILARLY AT ALL GOVERNMENTAL LEVELS. 

THE HISTORY OF THIS COUNTRY'S DRUG ABUSE EFFORTS HAS SEEN SUC

CESSIVE PENDULUM SWINGS FROM ENFORCEMENT OR SUPPLY REDUCTION TO 

DEVELOPMENT OF SERVICES TO REDUCE DEMAND FOR DRUGS. ALTHOUGH WE HAVE 

PROGRESSIVELY MADE TECHNICAL IMPROVEMENTS IN BOTH REALMS) WE HAVE 

YET TO ACCOMPLISH THE BALANCE NECESSARY TO REALLY IMPACT THE PROBLEM. 

IN THE PAST FEW YEARS) THE SHIFT OF EMPHASIS TO SUPPLY REDUCTION HAS 

BEEN SO ABRUPT AS TO THREATEN THE CONTINUED VIABILITY OF OUR PREVENTION 

AND TREATMENT EFFORTS. WITH THE REDUCTION OF FEDERAL FUNDING FOR 

s .... 
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DRUG ABUSE SERVICES AND THE SJGNIFICANT REDUCTION IN THE LEADERSHIP 

ROLE OF THE NATIONAL INSTITUTE ON DRUG ABUSE, 'THETREATMENT AND 

PREVENTION SYSTEM HAS BEEN WEAKENED CONSIDERABLY. WHILE THERE HAS 

BEEN A 30 PERCENT DECREASE IN FUNDS FOR TREATMENT AND PREVENTION 

SERVICES SINCE 1980, THERE HAS BEEN IN THE SAME PERIOD OF TIME A 

30 PERCENT INCREASE IN FEDERAL FUNDS FOR DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT TO 

A FIGURE WHICH IS 2~ MILLION DOLLARS HIGHER THAN THE TOTAL ALCOHOL, 

DRUG AND MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES BLOCK GRANT. 

THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT O~ COMMUNITY AFFAIRS IS THE AGENCY DESIG

NATED TO ADMINISTER THE DRUG ABUSE PORTION OF THE ADMS BLOCK GRANT 

IN TEXAS, AND HAS BEEN THE LEAD STATE AGENCY FOR DRUG ABUSE SERVICES 

FOR 14 YEARS. THE DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION DIVISION WITHIN TDCA HAS 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR ESTIMATING THE EXTENT AND NATURE OF DRUG ABUSE 

PROBLEMS IN TEXAS, ALLOCATING AVAILABLE RESOURCES TO ADDRESS THESE 

PROBLEMS THROUGH TREATMENT AND PREVENTION SERVICES) AND COORDI

NATING THE EFFORTS OF INTERESTED AGENCIES AND INDIVIDUALS. 

CURRENTLY} WE ESTIMATE THAT OVER 700,000 TEXANS ARE IN NEED 

OF DRUG ABUSE TREATMENT. As MANY AS 14}000 PEOPLE AGED 12-17 MAY 

BE ADDED TO THAT FIGURE EACH YEAR AS THEY REACH DRUG-ABUSING AGE. 

IN ADDITION, OVER HALF A MILLION YOUNG PEOPLE AGE 12-17 ARE AT RISK 

OF BECOMING DEPENDENT ON DRUGS AND REQUIRE PREVENTION SERVICES. 

EACH YEAR AN INCREASING PROPORTION ~F TREATMENT ADMISSIONS ARE RE

FERRALS FROM THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE SYSTEM. 

THE FOLLOWING COMPARISONS BETWEEN DRUG ABUSE PATTERNS IN TEXAS 

AND NATIONAL FIGURES ARE DE~IVED FROM INDIVIDUAL CLIENT RECORDS 

MAINTAINED ON CLIENTS ADMITTED TO AND DISCHARGED FROM FEDERALLY 

FUNDED DRUG ABUSE TREATMENT PROGRAMS IN TEXAS AND NATIONALLY. 

HERO~N~ AMPHETAMINES} MARIJUANA AND OTHER OPIATES} IN THAT ORDER, 

ARE THE MAJOR PRIMARY DRUGS AT ADMISSION TO TREATMENT IN TEXAS 

WHEREAS, NATIONALLY} MARIJUANA IS MORE PREVALENT THAN AMPHETAMINES. 

I 
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IN TEXAS, SECONDARY AND TERTIARY DRUG PROBLEMS REPORTED ARE MORE 

OFTEN MARIJUANA RATHER THAN ALCOHOL AS REPORTED NATIONALLY. 

TREATMENT ADMISSIONS AND ARRESTS DATA SHOW AN INCREASE IN 

HEROIN USE IN TEXAS BEGINNING IN 1982 AFTER 2 YEARS OF LEVELING 

OFF. AMPHETAMINES HAVE SHOWN A SLIGHT ANNUAL INCREASE AND 

TREATMENT ADMISSIONS FOR MARIJUANA DECREASED SLIGHTLY IN 1982. 
Two CHARTS PROVIDE THESE DATA IN GREATER DETAIL. ALTHOUGH THE 

INCIDENCE AND PREVALENCE OF INHALANT ABUSE IS LOWER THAN THESE 

OTHER DRUG CATEGORIES IT MERITS SPECIAL CONCERN HERE. IN THE 

PAST YEAR, OVER SJX PERCENT OF ADMISSIONS TO DRUG ABUSE TREATMENT 

PROGRAMS FUNDED THROUGH THIS AGENCY WERE FOR INHALANT ABUSE. 

THIS IS ABOUT SIX TIMES THE RATE REPORTED FOR THE UNITED STATES 

IN 1981 BY THE NATIONAL INSTITUTE ON DRUG ABUSE (NIDA). 

CONCERNED CITIZENS IN TWO TEXAS CITIES HAVE RESPONDED TO 

THIS PHENOMENON THROUGH THE FORMATION OF coMMUNITY ACTION GROUPS. 

THE SAN ANTONIO TOXICANT INHALANTS TASK FORCE SPONSORED BY 

NOSOTROS, INC, MONITORS LOCAL BUSINESSES FOR COMPLIANCE WITH 

RECENTLY ENACTED STATE LAW PROHIBITING THE 8AL't: OF SPRAY PAINT 

TO MINORS. ANOTHER GROUP, PARENTS AND NEIGHBORS UNITED HAS 

EFFECTIVELY UTILIZED THE MEDIA AND LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES IN 

BRINGING THE INHALANT ABUSE PROBLEM TO LIGHT IN THE HOUSTON 

AREA. THE GROUP SEEKS TO ENHANCE AWARENESS OF THE DANGERS OF 

AEROSOL INHALATION AND ORGANIZES BOYCOTTS OF BUSINESSES THAT 
Y' ' 

SELL OR MANUFACTURE THESE PRODUCTS. 

THE CURRENT DRUG ABUSE PROGRAM OPERATED BY TDCA CONSISTS 

PRIMARILY OF THE ADMINISTRATION OF COMMUNITY-BASED PREVENTION . . 

AND TREATMENT SERVICES PROVIDERS AND THE DIRECT PROVISION OF 

DRUG ABUSE EDUCATION SERVICES FROM THE STATE LEVEL. IN THE 

AREA OF PREVENTION, 29 COMMUNITY-BASED PROGRAMS ARE FUNDED AT 
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AN ANNUALIZED TOTAL OF $1.1 MILLION AND SERVE ABOUT 200,000 
PERSONS A YEAR. IN THE AREA OF TREATMENT SERVICES, TWENTY-SEVEN 

COMMUNITY-BASED PROGRAMS RECEIVED CONTINUATION fUNDING FROM 

TOCA'OCTOBER 1, 1983 AT A TOTAL OF $5.4 MILLION. FINALLY, THE 

AGENCY PROVIDES NUMEROUS DIRECT DRUG EDUCATION SERVICES. FOR 

EXAMPLE, THE TEXAS CLEARINGHOUSE FOR DRUG INFORMATION DISSEMI

NATES ABOUT 187,000 PIECES OF LITERATURE PER 'YEAR, AND APPROXI

MATELY 800 PERSONS HAVE RECEIVED TRAINING OR HAVE ATTENDED 

EDUCATIONAL SESSIONS IN THE LAST YEAR. 

ALTHOUGH THE ADVENT OF THE BLOCK GRANT MECHANISM RESULTED 

IN A REDUCED FUNDING LEVEL, WE, WITH SOME OTHER STATES, WERE 

FORTUNATE TO HAVE HAD OVERLAPPING FEDERAL FUNDS AVAILABLE IN 

1982. WITH CAREFULLY PLANNED FORWARD FUNDING THE FULL EFFECTS 

OF THE 30 PERCENT REDUCTION IN ANNUAL AWARDS LEVELS OVER THE 

PEAK IN 1980 WILL NOT BE FELT UNTIL FY 1985. WITHIN THAT TOTAL 

REDUCTION, ALLOCATIONS TO TREATMENT NECESSARILY DROPPED 5.4 
PERCENT IN FY 1981, ANOTHER 3.1 PERCENT IN FY 1982, 2.7 PERCENT 

IN FY 1983 AND A FULL 12.5 PERCENT IN FY 1984. By 1985, THE 

TOTAL DROP IN TREATMENT FUNDING COMPARED To'FY 1980 WILL BE 30 
PERCENT. 

IN ADDITION TO THE REDUCTION IN OVERALL FUNDING LEVEL, 

TREATMENT ALLOCATIONS HAVE BEEN REDUCED AS A RESULT OF THE 

ADMS BLOCK GRANT STATUTE WHICH REQUIRES STATES TO ALLOCATE 20 
PERCENT OF THESE FUNDS FOR PREVENTION SERVICES. SINCE THE ADMS 

BLOCK GRANT DID NOT PROVIDE NEW FUNDS FOR THIS PURPOSE, TEXAS, 

LIKE MANY OTHER STATES, HAS HAD TO REDUCE TREATMENT SERVICES IN 

ORDER TO MEET THE PREVENTION REQUIREMENT. 

COMMUNITY-BASED TREATMENT SERVICES SUPPORTED BY TOCA ARE 
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TARGETED TO iNDIVIDUALS DIAGNOSED AS DRUG ADDICTED OR DRUG 

DEPENDENT. INDIVIDUALS WHO ABUSE ANY DRUG (EXCEPT FOR EXCLUSIVE 

USE OF ALCOHOL) ARE CONSIDERED FOR ADMISSION TO TREATMENT IF 

THEIR CHRONIC, COMPULSIVE USE OF THE DRUG HAS RESULTED IN A 

PSYCHO-PHYSIOLOGICAL DEPENDENCE AND/OR HAS ASSUMED A CENTRAL 

NEGATIVE ROLE IN THEIR LIFESTYLE. A COMPREHENSIVE PSYCHO-SOCIAL 

EVALUATION DOCUMENTING EMOTIONAL AND/OR BEHAVIORAL PROBLEMS 

RESULTING FROM DRUG ABUSE IS UTILIZED BY PROGRAMS FUNDED BY 

TOCA TO DOCUMENT THAT TREATMENT SERVICES ARE PROVIDED IN ACCOR

DANCE WITH THE ABOVE POLICY. DRUG ABUSE SERVICES SUPPORTED BY 

TOCA CONSIST OF DETOXIFICATION, DRUG MAINTENANCE, AND DRUG-FREE 

SERVICES DELIVERED IN RESIDENTIAL OR OUTPATIENT ENVIRONMENTS. 

NATIONWIDE RESEARCH AS WELL AS OUR OWN CLIENT OUTCOME 

MEASURES DEMONSTRATE DRUG ABUSE TREATMENT WORKS. OUR MOST 

RECENT DATA SHOW THAT 50 PERCENT OF ALL CLIENTS IMPROVE DURING 

TREATMENT. OF THOSE IN TREATMENT 9 MONTHS OR MORE, 78 PERCENT' 

IMPROVE. IN TERMS OF TREATMENT SETTING, SIXTY PERCENT OF ALL 

RESIDENTIAL CLIENTS SHOW IMPROVEMENT IN DRUG USE PATTERNS OR 

IN LEVEL OF EDUCATION ATTAINED AT DISCHARGE. THE RATE IS 70 
TO 80 PERCENT IMPROVEMENT FOR CLIENTS PARTICIPATING IN TREATMENT 

AT LEAST SIX MONTHS, OVER 50 PERCENT OF OUTPATIENT CLIENrS 

SHOW THESE IMPROVEMENTS AT DISCHARGE, WITH OVER 70 PERCENT 

IMPROVEMENT FOR THOSE REMAINING IN TREATMENT NINE MONTHS OR MORE. 

TEXAS TREATMENT CLINICS APPEAR TO BE ABLE TO RETAIN CLIENTS 

BETTER THAN THE NATIONAL AVERAGE. HOWEVER, TEXAS CLINICS DIS

r.HARGE MORE CL~ENTS FOR NON-COMPLIANCE AND ARE LESS LIKELY TO 

DISCHARGE CLIENTS WHO STILL OCCASIONALLY USE DRUGS AS HAVING 

COMPLETED TREATMENT. THE RATE OF ARRESTS FOR CLIENTS WHO HAD 
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AN ARREST RECORD AT ADMISSION AND WHO STAY IN TREATMENT OVER A 

LONG ENOUGH PERIOD OF TIME TO COMPARE DURING-TREATMENT ARREST 

RATE ALSO SHOWS IMPROVEMENT, 

DESPITE THESE CLIENT OUTCOMES, AND THE QUALITY OF PROGRAMS 

DEVELOPED OVER TIME, THERE ARE GAPS IN OUR PROVISION OF TREATMENT 

SERV ICES, f1ANY PROGRAMS ARE FIND I NG IT D I FFI CULT ·W ITH REDUCED 

FUNDING TO PROVIDE A FULL CONTINUUM OF NEEDED SERVICES AND TO 

UPDATE TREATMENT STRATEGIES IN LIGHT OF CURRENT RESEARCH, A 

SYSTEMATIC STATE-WIDE REFERRAL NETWORK INCLUDING PRIVATE AND 

PUBLlCALLY FUNDED PROGRAMS IS NEEDED TO ALLOW FOR GREATER ACCES

SIBILITY TO TREATMENT OF ALL PERSONS IN NEED AND TO APPROPRIATELY 

IDENTIFY TREATMENT NEEDS, FURTHER, STATEWIDE DEVELOPMENT AND COORDI

NATION ARE NEEDED TO PROVIDE FOR APPROPRIATE REFERRAL TO TREATMENT 

OF PERSONS CHARGED WITH CRIMES, DURING THE FIRST NINE MONTHS OF 

1983, TREATMENT PROGRAMS FUNDED BY TDCA SERVED ALMOST 10,000 
PERSONS, HOWEVER, AS OF OCTOBER I, 1983, THERE HAS BEEN A 13 
PERCENT DECREASE IN FUNDING AND AN ADDITIONAL 10 PERCENT DECREASE 

FOR TREATMENT SERVICES IS ANTICIPATED FOR NEXT YEAR, SO .THAT BY 

1985, ONLY 8000 PERSONS WILL BE ABLE TO RECEIVE TREATMENT WHEN 

OVER 700,000 PERSONS IN TEXAS ARE REPORTED TO BE IN NEED OF TREAT

MENT, THUS At A TIME WHEN THE EFFECTIVENESS OF TREATMENT CAN 

BE DEMONSTRATED AND THE NEED ~OR TREATMENT SERVICES IS INCREASING, 

TREATMENT RESOURCES AND CAPACITY ARE DIMINISHING, 

TDCA OBLIGATIONS TO PREVENTION CONTRACTORS HAVE BEEN IN

CREASED TO MEET THE 20 PERCENT MINIMUM REQUIRED BY THE ADMS 

BLOCK GRANT. IN ADDITION, TDCA HAS SIGNIFICANTLY INCREASED ITS 

DIRECT PROVISION OF PRIMARY PREVENTION SERVICES. INCREASED 

EMPHASIS HAS BEEN PLACED ON STATE-LEVEL EDUCATION EFFORTS 
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RESULTING IN ABOUT A 30 PERCENT INCREASE IN LITERATURE DISTRIBUTED 

AND ABOUT 3 TIMES THE VOLUME OF FORMER EDUCATIONAL EFFORTS, 

As SUPPORTED BY NATIONAL RESEARCH, FUNDING PRIORITY FOR 

PREVENTION HAS BEEN GIVEN TO COMPREHENSIVE SERVICE PROVIDERS, 

WHICH TARGET YOUTH CONSIDERED TO BE AT HIGH RISK FOR DRUG IN

VOLVEMENT, SERVICES INCLUDE INTERVENTION SERVICES DESIGNED TO 

PROVIDE ASSISTANCE AND SUPPORT TO HELP PERSONAL ADJUSTMENT 

DURING CRITICAL PERIODS, ALTERNATIVES SERVICES DESIGNED TO OFFER 

POSITIVE EXPERIENCES AND PROVIDE OPPORTUNITIES FOR CONSTRUCTIVE 

PEER INVOLVEMENT, EDUCATION SERVICES DESIGNED TO ASSIST INDIVID

UALS IN DEVELOPING AFFECTIVE SKILLS AND INFORMATION SERVICES 

DESIGNED TO DISTRIBUTE ACCURATE AND OBJECTIVE INFORMATION ABOUT 

DRUGS AND THEIR EFFECTS,. DATA FROM THE PREVENTION MANAGEMENT 

AND EVALUATION SYSTEM (PMES) SHOW THAT YOUNG CLIENTS SERVED BY 

THESE PROGRAMS ARE MOST LIKELY TO HAVE USED ALCOHOL (68 PERCENT), 

MARIJUANA (61 PERCENT) AND INHALANTS (33 PERCENT), COMPARISON 

OF BEHAVIORAL INDICATORS DURING TWO MONTH PERIODS BEFORE AND 

DURING PREVENTION PROGRAM PARTICIPATION REVEAL: 

~EWER PROBLEMS WITH POLICE (+41% CHANGE) 

DECREASED MARIJUANA USE (+15%) 
IMPROVEMENT OF SCHOOL GARDES (+12%) 
FEWER SCHOOL CONDUCi PROBLEMS (+10%) 

IN ADDITION TO COMPREHENSIVE PREVENTION SERVICE PROVIDERS, 

OTHER CONTRACTORS ARE FUNDED TO IMPLEMENT NARROWER-FOCUS PREVENTION 

STRATEGIES SUCH AS CRISIS AND PEER COUNSELING, TRAINING IN JOB 

SEEKING AND INTE~VIEWING, AND FAMILY EDUCATION, 

AFTER INADEQUATE GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF SERVICES DUE 

TO LIMITED RESOURCES, THE MOST SIGNIFICANT GAP IN THE AREA OF 

35-584 0-84-23 
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PREVENTION SERVICES IS COORDINATION BETWEEN THE VARIOUS GROUPS 

INVOLVED IN DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION, I.E. SCHOOLS, CRIMINAL AND 

JUVENILE JUSTICE SYSTEMS, TREATMENT AND PREVENTION SERVICE 

PROVIDERS, PARENT GROUPS AND COMMUNITY ORGANIZATIONS. IN TEXAS, 

AS IN MANY OTHER STATES, THE PREVENTION EFFORTS OF THE STATE 

DRUG ABUSE AGENCY HAVE BEEN AUGMENTED BY THE PARENTS' MOVEMENT. 

THE TEXANS' WAR ON DRUGS HAS ORGANIZED GROUPS ACROSS THE STATE 

AND MOBILIZED THEM TOWARD DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION IN THEIR COMMU

ITIES AND ON THE STATE LEVEl THROUGH EDUCATION AND LOBBYING FOR 

LEGISLATIVE CHANGES. PRIVATELY SUPPORTED AND SELF-HELP GROUPS 

AS WELL AS SCHOOLS AND PROGRAMS SUPPORTED THROUGH OTHER PUBLIC 

AGENCIES SUCH AS THE STATE ALCOHOL AND MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITIES 

ARE ALSO INVOLVED IN PREVENTION EFFORTS. IN LIGHT OF THE CHANGING 

LEADERSHIP ROLE OF NIDA AND THE STATE DRUG ABUSE AGENCIES, IT 

IS IMPERATIVE THAT THERE BE STRONG, FORMAL COORDINATION AMONG 

THESE GROUPS IN ORDER TO MAXIMIZE THE VALUABLE RESOURCES WHICH 

EACH HAS TO CONTRIBUTE. 

How DOES THE CURRENT STATE PROGRAM UNDER THE ADf1S BLOCK 

GRANT SYSTEM DIFFER FROM THAT OPERATED UNDER THE CATEGORICAL 

GRANTS? THE NATURE OF COMMUNITY-BASED SERVICES HAS NOT YET SIG

NIFICANTLY CHANGED. THE MAJOR PROBLEMS ENCOUNTERED WITH THE 

BLOCK GRANTS HAVE NOT BEEN WITH THE FUNDING MECHANISM BUT WITH 

THE REDUCED FUNDING LEVELS. As PREVIOUSLY STATED, TREATMENT' 

CAPACITY HAS DROPPED, AND PREVENTION PROGRAMMING HAS INCREASED 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH BLOCK GRANT REQUIREMENTS. THE STATE PROGRAM 

FOR DRUG ABUSE ,SERVICES SUPPORTED BY THE BLOCK GRANT HAS DEVELOPED 

ALMOST EXCLUSIVELY ACCORDING TO THE GUIDELINES OF THE CATEGORICAL 
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GRANTS AND ACCORDING TO DESIGNATED USES OF THOSE FUNDS. SCHOOL

BASED PROGRAMS, COORDINATION WITH PRIVATE PROVIDERS, COURT-BASED 

REFERRALS, ETC •. WERE NOT INCLUDED IN THE CATEGORICAL GRANTS: 

HOWEVER, THESE CONTINUE TO BE IMPORTANT COMPONENTS OF A COMPRE

HENSIVE SYSTEM OF DRUG ABUSE SERVICES WHICH NEED TO BE ADDRESSED. 

AT A TIME WHEN THE BLOCK GRANT MECHANISM SHIFTS ADMINISTRA

TIVE RESPONSIBILITIES TO THE STATE LEVEL, SUPPORT FOR ADMINIS

TRATIVE STAFF HAS DIMINISHED DRASTICALLY. A CORE OF QUALITY 

SERVICES HAS BEEN CAREFULLY DEVELOPED OVER THE PAST DECADE AND 

ATTENTION BY THE AGENCY SHOULD NOW BE GIVEN TO EXPANDING TOWARD 

A COMPREHENSIVE SYSTEM OF SERVICES FULLY COORDINATED WITH RELATED 

EFFORTS. UNFORTUNATELY, SUPPORT FOR STATE PLANNING STAFF HAS 

SIMILARLY DIMINISHED AND FUNDS ARE UNAVAILABLE FOR DEVELOPMENT 

OF THESE ADDITIONAL SERVICES. 

FINALLY, THE NATIONAL TREATMENT DATA SYSTEMS DEVELOPED BY 

NIDA AND TO WHICH WE CONTRIBUTE ARE NOW OPERATING AT BEST ON A 

VOLUNTARY BASIS BECAUSE OF LACK OF FUNDING AT THE NATIONAL LEVEL. 

MAINTENANCE AND ANALYSES OF A NATIONAL DATA BASE ARE ESSENTIAL 

FOR PROJECTION OF SERVICE NEEDS AND ASSESSMENT OF STATE AND LOCAL 

EFFORTS WITH THOSE OF OTHER STATES AND NATIONALLY. 

ON A MORE PROMISING NOTE, I FEEL THAT HEARINGS LIKE THIS 

ONE HERE TODAY PROVIDE OPPORTUNITIES FOR MAKING THE PUBLIC MORE 

AWARE OF AND RESPONSIVE TO DRUG ABUSE PROBLEMS AS WELL 

AS PROVIDING A FORUM FOR DETERMINING THE BEST MEANS OF INTEGRATING 

ALL EFFECTIVE AND VIABLE EFFORTS TO REDUCE THE PROBLEMS RESULTING 

FROM DRUG ABUSe. 
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"Drug Trafficking and Abuse on The Texas Gulf Coast" 

Hearing of the U.S. House of Representatives 
Select Committee on Narcotics Abuse and Control, 

Congressman Charles B. Rangel, Chairman 

December 12-13, 1983 
Corpus Christi, Texas 

Statement of Testimony from: 
D. Dwayne Simpson, Ph.D. 

Behavioral Research Program 
Professor, Department of Psychology 

Texas A&M University 
College Station, Texas 77843 

I appreciate the time and effort devoted by this.Sel;ct ~ommittee to 
acquire testimony from State and local levels concern1ng ~he 1mportant 
problems related to drug abuse and add1ction in Texas. I also thank you for 
this opportunity to testify before you today. 

There are several important areas designated for testimony at this 
hearing, but I will restrict my commen~s to only.t~lo of those.areas. In 
particular, I wish to respond to your 1nterests 10 the e!fectl~ene~s of drug 
abuse treatment and prevention programs, and the gaps Wh1Ch eXlst 1n current 
program efforts. My comments are based ~rimarily on,my experi~nces ~s a 
member of an evaluation research team WhlCh has studled commun1ty-ba~ed drug 
abuse treatment and prevention services for almost 15 years. 

With reQard to the issue of program effectiveness, the major drug abuse 
treatment approaches used for heroin and other opiate drug addicts h~ve been 
demonstrated to have a positive impact on posttreatment drug use, crlminal 
involvement, and employment. For instance, the rate of daily use of heroin 
or other opiate drugs has been found to drop to about 401 in the first year 
after treatment (as reported in more detail in the appended National 
Institute on Drug Abuse Treatment Research Report, DHHS Publication No. ADM 
82-1209 entitled "Evaluation of Drug Abuse Treatment Effectiveness: 
Summar/ of the DARP Follow-up Research" by D.D. Simpson and S.B. Sells). It 
is also important to add that the length of time spent in treatment was 
found to be particularly important; that is, long-term clients had better 
posttreatment outcomes than short-term clients. 

After about 5-to-6 years following their admission to drug abuse 
treatment, we have found that roughly one-fourth of the addicts in our data 
system still used opiate drugs daily (that is, during the last year before 
the follow-up interview). but about two-thirds did not use opiate drugs at 
all. Preliminary information from a long-term follow-up study we are 
currently conducting on these addicts is also relevant •. It.indicate~ that 
these drug use and abstinence rates continue to be descr1ptlve of thlS 
sampl~' at 12-years after treatment as well. 

--_.---. ---
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The effectiveness of treatment services and long-term outcomes for 
users of nonopiate drugs, on the other hand, have not been studied as 
thoroughly. The rapid evolution of these services during the last decade 
and the diversity of drug use patterns involved have complicated this 
evaluation task. In addition, important descriptive information on 
treatment services and clients has become difficult to obtain since the 
initiation of the ADM block grants, and this problem is especially critical 
at the national level. The major reason is the discontinuation of Federal 
data collection requirements, such as the Client Oriented Data Acquisition 
Process (CODAP) and the National Drug and Alcohol Treatment Utilization 
Survey (NDATUS). Under the ADM block grants, Texas and other States have had 
to cut back program services, and in spite of the recognized importance and 
applications of client and program data, there simply has not been enough 
money to sustain most standardized data collection activities at adequate 
and appropriate levels. Because of the need for at least some fundamental 
information on program services, the loss of the systematic data collection 
systems has been among the most serious conseguences of ADM block grants. 

In Texas, a notable exception to this general loss of emphasis on data 
collection efforts has involved a systematic plan of the Drug Abuse 
Prevention Division in the Texas Department of Community Affairs to assess 
prevention services in the State. It has provided for the establishment and 
maintenance of an information system for community-based prevention programs 
designed to serve high-risk youth in low socioeconomic neighborhoods. This 
statewide data base (PMES), provides information on overall drug abuse 
prevention service deliyery as well as individual client characteristics, 
problems, and pro~ress in these programs. It assists the state in 
monitoring the program services purchased, provides diagnostic and 
statistical feedback to individual programs for improving the quality of 
their services, and serves as a basis for conducting research on important 
drug abuse issues. 

One such issue involves the growing problem in Tex3s with the sniffing 
of spray paint and other inhalants. This form of drug use is especially 
prevalent among Mexican-American adolescents, and it represents a common and 
growing cause for alarm throughout our State because of its serious 
physiological and psychological consequences. Too little is known about the 
circumstances surrounding this problem, and unfortunately, AOM block grant 
funds are continuing to shrink as the need for prevention and treatment 
services increase. Indeed, the programmatic needs to deal with inhalant use 
in this atmosphere of limited resources leads to one of the major gaps in 
our current program efforts in Texas. 

With regard to the human service demands in our State, it should b~ 
noted that Texas and some of the other "sunbelt" States were slower than 
other parts of our Nation in developing problems of economic recession in 
recent years. Consequently, this State experienced a tremendous influx of 
new residents searching for work. Economic indicators also suggest that 
Texas is also lagging behind Nationally in its sluggish recoVery from this 
recessionary period. The added population infusion (particularly in the 
lower socioeconomic ranges) has combined with prevailing economic stre~ses 
to stretch already taut drug abuse and other human service delivery systems. 
Thus, Texas is at a crossroads. Recent cocaine busts along our Gulf Coast 

" 
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testify to the trafficking conducted to meet demands by an a~fluent 
clientele for glamour drugs. Parent mOV(e,l1ents? often from I~~ddle-class 
suburbia focus on legitimate concerns about w1despread mar1Juan~ use by 
their children. Lower socioeconomic neighborhoods try to deal w1th the use 
of i nexpens i ve i nha 1 ants by thei r adolescents, as we 1,1 as the ~se of other 
drugs. This dlverse and complicated picture of serV1ce needs 1S then 
overlaid by the ever present political pres~ur~s to resP9nd to powerful 
special interest groups. Meanwhile, ~ur eX1st~ng commun1ty-based dr~g abuse 
service programs continue to have the1r operat1ng funds reduced or W1thdrawn 
altogether. 

In conclusion. difficult and painful choices have emerged i~ Texas and 
other states for the allocation of resources for drug abuse ~erv1ces. More 
importantly. these choices will require th~ neglect of certa1n problem areas 
to the extent that funding lpvels are not 1ncreased to meet the needs. 
Hopefully, this process wil~.~ot overloo~ the important use 9f management 
information and service delIvery evaluat10n systems to help 1mprove and 
guide these difficult policy-making decisions. 

I 
I 
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Testimony presented by 

Raymon L. Bynum 

Commissioner of Education 

Texas Education Agency 

THE STATUS OF DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION IN TEXAS SCHOOLS 

REPRESENTATIVE RANGEL, MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE: 

THANK YOU FOR INVITING ME TO APPEAR BEFORE THIS COMMITTEE TO DISCUSS THE IMPACT 

OF ILLEGAL DRUG TRAFFICKING ON TEXAS, PARTICULARLY ON THE STUDENTS OF OUR 

STATE· 

WITH WIDESPREAD USE OF DRUGS AFFECTING LARGE SEGMENTS OF SOCIETY, IT WOULD 

BE UNREALISTIC TO THINK THAT THE SCHOOLS ARE IMMUNE TO THE PROBLEMS OF DRUG 

ABUSE· WHAT IS THE EXTENT OF THE PROBLEM? HERE ARE SOME NATIONAL DATA COLLECTED 

BY THE UNIVERSITY OF f1ICHIGAN FROM HIGH SCHOOL SENIORS· A SAMPLE OF TEXAS 

DISTRICTS WAS INVOLVED IN THE SURVEY· BETWEEN 1975 AND 1978, 

DAILY MARIHUANA USE CLIMBED RAPIDLY FROM 6 PERCENT TO 11 PERCENT OF ALL SENIORS. 

THE NUMBER OF SENIORS HAVING TRIED THE DRUG HAS NOT CHANGED SIGNIFICANTLY; 

IN 1979 IT WAS 60 PERCENT, AND IN 1982 IT WAS 59 PERCENT· THE GOOD NEWS IS THAT 

DAILY MARIHUANA USE HAS DECLINED SINCE 1979 AND IN 1982 WAS 7 PERCENT OF ALL SE

NIORS· THE TREND IS THE SAME FOR COCAINE. THE PROPORTION OF HIGH SCHOOL SENIORS 

REPORTING ANY USE IN THE PRIOR YEAR INCREASED DRAMATICALLY FROM 1975 TO 1979, 

AND THEN LEVELED OFF BETWEEN 1979 AND 1981. IN 1982, THE ANNUAL PREVALENCE HAD 

FALLEN TO 11.5 PERCENT· 

DESPITE ENCOURAGING TRENDS IN STUDENT DRUG ABUSE, NATIONAL DATA SHOW THAT 

THE NATION STILL HAS THE HIGHEST LEVELS OF ILLICIT DRUG USE OF ANY NATION IN THE 

INDU<'TRIALIZED WORLD. OTHER NATIONAL AND STATE RESEARCH REPORTS HAVE SHOWN THAT 

DRUG ABUSE HAS ENORMOUS DELETERIOUS EFFECTS ON THE LEARNING PROCESS AND CONTRIB-

UTES TO SCHOOL DROP OUT, TRUANCY, AND JUVENILF. CRIMINAL ACTS· 

THERE HAVE NOT BEEN ANY SURVEYS TO DETERMINE THE INCIDENCE OF DRUG USE AMONG 

TEXAS StUDENTS SPECIFICALLY· THERE ARE REPORTS FROM SCHOOL DISTRICTS INDICATING 

THAT SUSPENSIONS HAVE INCREASED FOR DRUG-RELATED OFFENSES THIS SCHOOL YEAR. 

AUlD, THERE IS GREAT CONCERN THAT STUDENTS ARE BEGINNING TO EXPERIMENT 

<> 
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WITH DRUGS AT A MUCH YOUNGER AGE THAN IN PREVIOUS YEARS· 

FIND 9- AND IO-YEAR-OLD STUDENTS EXPERIMENTING WITH DRUGS· 

DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION EFFORTS IN TEXAS 

IT IS NOT UNCOMMON TO 

WHAT IS THE RESPONSE OF THE TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY AND THE SCHOOLS TO THIS PROB-

LEM? THE FOCUS HAS BEEN (1) PREVENTION, (2) INTERVENTION, AND (3) SECURITY· 

THE OBJECTIVE OF PREVENTION IS TO EDUCATE THE STUDENT PRIOR TO SIGNS AND 

SYMPTOMS OF DRUG ABUSE PROBLEMS· THE OBJECTIVE OF INTERVENTION IS TO IDENTIFY 

STUDENTS WHO ALREADY ARE EXHIBITING SYMPTOMS OR DEVELOPiNG PROBLEMS IN ORDER TO 

MODIFY THEIR BEHAVIOR OR, IF NECESSARY, TO REFER THEM TO TREATMENT- THE AIM OF 

SECURITY IS TO DEVELOP A SYSTEM THAT ENSURES A SAFE ENVIRONMENT FOR STUDENTS AND 

FACULTY, ONE THAT IS RELATIVELY FREE OF DRUGS AND CRIME· 

THE GOVERNANCE OF SCHOOL DISTRICTS IS THE RESPONSIBiliTY OF AN ELECTED BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES WHICH HAKES LOCAL POLICY WITHIN THE FRAMEWORK of STATE LAW AND STATE 

BOARD OF EDUCATION RULES AND REGULATIONS· STATEWIDE CURRiCULUM REViSION IS 

UNDERwAY IN TEXAS, AND NEW STATE BOARD OF EDUCATiON RULES GOVERNING INSTRUCTIONAL 

PROGRAMS CURRENTLY ARE BEING DISCUSSED AND WILL BE FORMALLY ADOPTED IN MARCH 1984. 

THE RULES UNDER CONSIDERATION CALL FOR INSTRUCTION IN HEALTH EDUCATION THAT IS 

SPECIFICALLY RELATED TO DRUG ABUSE AND INSTRUCtiON IN SOCIAL STUDIES THAT IS 

GENERALLY RELAtED TO DRUG ABUSE· 

SPEcrFIC INFORMATiON ABOUT THE NEGATIVE EFFECTS OF DRUGS AND THE FACTORS THAT 

CONTRIBUTE TO DRUG ABUSE BEGINS AT GRADE 4. STUDENTS LEARN THAT DRUGS IMPAIR 

PHYSICAL, MENTAL, AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT AND THAT PERSONS WHO USE DRUGS DEPEND 

ON DRUGS RAtHER THAN THEIR OWN ABILITIES· THEY LEARN TO BE PREPARED IN THE 

~-----. ---
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LIKELY EVENT THAT THEY WILL HAVE TO CHOOSE BETWEEN USIN(oj OR REFUSING DRUGS· 

STUDENTS LEARN THAT REFUSING DRUGS MIGHT REQUIRE DIFFICULT CHOICES AND ASSERTIVE 

ACTION AND THAT THE DECISION NOT TO USE DRUGS MIGHT BE CHALLENGED BY THEIR PEERS, 

BUT THAT THEY CAN MEET THOSE CHALLENGES. THEY LEJI.Rl. THE RELATIONCHIP BETWEEN 

DRUGS AND CRIME· THEY LEARN THAT CITIZE~~ ARE Pf.OTECTED BY LAWS AND HAVE RE

SPONSIBILITY FOR SUPPORTING VALID LAW EI!FORCf~~ENT EFFORTS· THEY LEARN THAT THEY 

WILL HAVE RESPONSIBILITY AS ADULTS FOR IMPROVING LAWS· ABOVE ALL, THEY LEARN 

THAT THERE ARE A MULTITUDE OF PRODUCTIVE, SATISFYING ALTERNATIVES TO USING DRUGS· 

MANY SCHOOL DISTRICTS ALREADY HAVE ESTABLISHED INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAMS THAT 

EXCEED STATE REQUIREMENTS· SCHOOL DISTRICT PERSONNEL ALWAYS ARE ENCOURAGED 

TO PLAN PROGRAMS THAT ADDRESS LOCAL NEEDS· 

RECOGNIZING THAT .DRUG ABUSE IS NOT JUST A SCHOOL PROBLEM, THE TEXAS EDUCATION 

AGENCY HAS COORDINATED WITH OTHER AGENCIES TO PROVIDE ASSISTANCE TO LOCAL SCHOOL 

DISTRICTS· THEY INCLUDE: 

• TEXAS COMMISSION ON ALCOHOLISM 

• TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 

TEXANS' WAR ON DRUGS 

• TEXAS CONGRESS OF PARENTS AND TEACHERS 

HERE ARE FOUR EXAMPLES OF COORDINATION: 

To DATE, 63 SCHOOL DISTRICTS HAVE RECEIVED FUNDS TO PURCHASE 

CURRICULA THAT INCLUDE DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION COMPONENTS· 

• A STATEWIDE PREVENTION CONFERENCE SPONSORED BY ANOTHER STATE 

AGENCY DREW REPRESENTATIVES OF 90 SCHOOL DISTRICTS AS A DIRECT 

RESULT OF RECRUITMENT DONE BY THE TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY. 
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SCHOOL PTA's, IN COOPERATION WITH THE TEXANS' WAR ON DRUGS, 

HAVE BEEN THE MOVING FORCE BEHIND 200 PARENT GROUPS FORMED 

IN THE STATE TO FIGHT DRUG ABUSE IN THEIR COMMUNITIES· 

THE TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY COOPERATED WITH THE CHEMICAL PEOPLE' 

PROJECT BY ENCOURAGING SUPERINTENDENTS TO MAKE SCHOOL FACILITIES 

AVAtLABLE FOR THE AIRING OF THE CHEMICAL PEOPLE AND THE DISCUS-

SIONS THAT FOLLOWED· 

INJERYENTION S~~~Ul~: 

THE STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION THROUGH ITS RULES FOR THE ACCREDITATION OF SCHOOL 

DISTRICTS REQUIRES ALL DISTRICTS TO HAVE POLICIES DESCRIBING STUDENT RESPONSI

BILITIES, RIGHTS, AND CONDITIONS LEADING TO SUSPENSION OR OTHER D1.SCIPLINARY 

ACTIONS AND PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS AS REQUIRED BY LAW (PRINCIPLE 3, STANDARD D)· 

THEREFORE, EACH DISTRICT HAS DEVELOPED ITS OWN POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR 

DEALING WITH DRUG POSSESSION OR SALE· SUSPENSION IS PART OF LOCAL POLICY' IT 

MAY BE IMMEDIATE UPON THE FIRST INCIDENT OR iT MAY BE A LAST RESORT· SUSPEN

SION IS USED WHEN THE LOCAL BOARD OF EDUCATION DETERt.,INES THAT iT IS NO LONGER 

PRODUCT 1 VE TO ALLOW TilE STUDENT TO REMA I N I N SCHOOL WiTH AN UNRESOL YED DRUG 

PROBLEM· 

--~---~ _._-

BECAUSE IT IS IN THE BEST INTERESTS OF EVERYONE IN THE STATE FOR THESE STUDENTS 

TO CONTINUE THEIR EDUCATION, MANY DISTRICTS ARE OPERATING ALTERNATE EDUCATION 

PROGRAMS FOR STUDENTS WHO WOULD OTHERWI SE BE SUSPE1~DED OR EXPELLED· ONE OF THE 

OBJECTIVES OF THESE PROGRAMS IS TO IDENTIFY AND ASSIST STUDENTS WHO ARE DYSFUNC

TIONAL BECAUSE OF THEIR DRUG ABUSE. MANY STUDENTS HAVE TO BE REFERRED TO PUBLIC 

OR PRIVATE FACILITIES FOR TREATMENT-
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ALTERNATIVE EDUC~rION PROGRAMS ARE SUPPORTED THROUGH A VARIETY OF SOURCES SUCH AS 

LOCAL DISTRICT, STATE, AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE FUNDS· FOR EXAMPLE, THE TEXAS 

EDUCATION AGENCY THROUGH THE SCHOOL-COMMUNITY GUIDANCE CENTER PROGRAM, CURRENTLY 

FUNDS 16 PROJECTS- THE GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE FUNDS A SIMILAR 

NUMBER OF PROJECTS- OTHER DISTRICTS ARE BEING ENCOURAGED TO ADOPT ONE OF THESE 

ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION MODELS OR TO DEVELOP THEIR OWN PROGRAMS FOR IDENTIFYING 

AND REFERRING STUDENTS TO COMMUNITY AGENCIES FOR ASSISTANCE WITH DRUG PROBLEMS· 

SCHOOL SECURITY 

AN INCREASING PROPORTION OF A SCHOOL DISTRICT'S BUDGET IS NOW GOING FOR SCHOOL 

SECURITY MEASURES SUCH AS GUARDS, ALARM SYSTEMS, BUILDING SECURITY, AND DOG 

SNIFFER PROGRAMS· FOR EXAMPLE, HOUSTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT SPENDS $1-6 

MILLION ANNUALLY FOR BUILDING SECURITY ALONE AND EMPLOYS 75 PERSONS- DALLAS 

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT SPENDS $1 1/2 MILLION ANNUALLY ON ITS SECURITY SYS

TEM AND EMPLOYS 78 PERSONS-

RECENTI.Y, A CIRCUIT COURT RULED THAT THE USE OF DOGS TO SNIFF STUDENTS FOR DRUGS 

CONSTITUTED A SEARCH AND THAT SCHOOL DISTRICTS NEEDED TO HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE 

BEFORE UNDERTAKING THIS ACTION· THE OUTCOME OF THIS DECISION IS THAT DISTRICTS 

ARE NOW CONFINING THEIR USE OF DOGS TO LOCKERS AND UNATTENDED AUTOMOBILES. 

SCHOOLS CAN MAKE A SIGNIFICANT CONTRIBUTION TO PREVENTING DRUG ABUSE AND TO 

HELPING STUDENTS WHO HAVE PROBLEMS WITH DRUGS OVERCOME THEM AND CONTINUE THEIR 

EDUCATION· HOWEVER, A CONCERTED EFFORT BY FAMILIES AND GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES, 

INCLUDING SCHOOLS, IS NECESSARY IF WE ARE GOING TO STOP DRUG ABUSE· WE WILL 

CONTINUE OUR EFFORTS- WE HOPE THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT WILL SUPPORT OUR EFFORTS 

BY: 

ASSERTIVELY LIMITING THE AVAILABILITY OF DRUGS 



354 

• PROVIDING ACCURATE~ TIMELY~ AND IMPARTIAL INFORMATION THROUGH 

ITS CLEARINGHOUSE ROLE 

• SUPPORTING RESEARCH IN ALL ASPECTS OF DRUG ABUSE AND MAKING 

FINDINGS AVAILABLE 

• EXAMINING POSSIBLE METHODS OF PROVIDING MORE AFFORDABLE PUBLIC 

AND PRIVATE ADOLESCENT TREATMENT PROGRAMS FOR DRUG ABUSE 

FURTHER RECOMMENDATIONS ADDRESS THE ROLES OF OTHER GROUPS: 

• SCHOOL DISTRICTS SHOULD BE ENCOURAGED TO HAVE PREVENTION AND 

INTERVENTION PROGRAMS FOR YOUTH AT RISK OF DEVELOPING SERIOUS 

DRUG PROBLEMS· 

• POST-SECONDARY INSTITUTIONS THAT ,PREPARE EDUCATORS SHOULD INCLUDE 

IN THEIR COURSE OF STUDY THE TOPICS OF DRUG INFORMATION~ METHODS 

OF IDENTIFYING AND REFERRING STUDENTS WHO EXHIBIT SIGNS OF DRUG 

MISUSE OR ABUSE~ DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION CURRICULA~ AND CLASSROOM 

MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES· 

• STUDENTS AND PARENTS SHOULD BE TRAINED TO ORGANIZE THEIR COMMUNITIES 

TO COMBAT DRUG ABUSE· THE SCHOOLS CANNOT BE EFFECTIVE. WITHOUT THEM· 

THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT ~ IN COOPERATION WITH STATES AND. LOCALITlES~ 

SHOULD FOSTER THE FORMATION OF PEER ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS~ PARENT SUP

PORT GROUPS~ AND COMMUNITY ACTION COMMITTEES· 

• STUDENTS SHOULD BE ,GIVEN AN OPPORTUNITY TO IDENTIFY SECURITY AND 

DRUG ABUSE PROBLEMS.AND TO DEVELOP SOLUTIONS. 

As COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION~ I APPRECIATE THE OPPORTUNITY TO EXPRESS MY VIEWS 

AND CONCERNS ABOUT ILLEGAL DRUG TRAFFIC AND ITS EFFECTS ON THE STUDENTS IN OUR 

STATE· WE AT THE TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY AND IN THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS OF TEXAS 

STAND READY TO COOPERATE IN STATE AND NATIONAL EFFORTS TO CONQUER THE 

PROBLEMS OF DRUG ABUSE IN THIS NATION· 

.. 

o 

.: 
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TESTIMONY FROM 

MONSIGNOR DERMOT N. BROSNAN 

Mr. Chairman, I would like to thank you and your committee for 

giving me the opportunity to testify here today. 

My name is Monsignor Dermot N. Brosnan, 222 E. Mitchell Street, 

San Antonio, Texas. I am the founder and Executive Director of 

The Patrician Movement, a private non-profit corporation providing 

treatment and rehabilitation to substance abusers for the past 

twenty-four years in San Antonio. At present we have 140 clients 

in our residential center and 500 in outpatient clinics all in a 

drug free program. In addition, I am Vice-Chairman of the Texas 

Adult Probation Commission in Austin, Texas. 

I estimate we have in Texas 50,000 abusers of heroin, dilaudio, 

demerol, morphine, methadone; 250,000 abusers of amphetamines, 

barbiturates, methamphetamine, cocaine, toxicant inhalants, LSD, 

PCP, and 1,500,000 abusin£marijuana. Yet we have about 8,000 

people in the State getting treatment. In fact the States does 

not provide any money from general revenue for prevention, 

education or treatment of tlie substance abusers. The Federal 

dollars coming into Texas in the Block Grant are being matched 

by local or private monies in cash or in soft match. In October 

of 1982 the Texas Department of Community Affairs, the single 

state agency for Drug Abuse, requested the Texas Legislature Budget 

Board, for full funding of the R.B. McAllister Drug Treatment 

Program Act in the amount of $13,000,000. At first the Budget 

Board cut out the entire request. However,in November of 1982 we 

were able to get 10,000,000 dollars put back in the budget request 

for the 68th Legislature to consider in the spring session of 1983. \. 

I 

" 
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After much debate in Urban Affairs and the appropriations committef:''3 

only 600,000 dollars was appropriated for the biennium. 

As a result of tie state failure to provid~ proper funding some 

programs have closed do\'ln and many programs have had cuts up to 

23% cash and a~ increase of their local match. In addition the 

prison system in Texas is in serious trouble. The pr~sent popula-

tion is about 36,000 prisoners with a budget of over 700,000,000 

dollars for the biennium. Also the system is under Federal Court 

order to me~t certain standards due to the poor conditions. Also 

we have 208,000 people under adult probation and 23,000 people on 

state Parole in our state. A good 40% of these people in our 

criminal justic~ system are drug related and in need of special 

services. Yet the State has not provided the funding ata time 

when the Federal block grant is being reduced. 

I see yet another problem that we need to address as drug abuse 

continues to increase in the middle upper class of our society. 

As this problem affects these families many times the reaction is 

one of pain. The Family, because they have money, rush out to 

seek the best help possible. This can be a very costly experience 

with little in return. e.g. 10,000 dollars for 20 days treatment; 

1,800 dollars for a mere assessment of the problem or 50,000 

dollars for three or four months in the hospital. As we protect 

the poor and the minority so also do we have a duty to protect 
" . 

the middle and upper levels of our society. Insurance companies 

should be required to provide proper coverage at reasonable cost 

and all programs should be required to meet certain state stand-

ards. I 
I' I, 

I 

<> 
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In the area of juveniles many problems exist. There is a complete 

lack of program services expeciallY in Texas in relationship to 

the toxicant inhalants. Much more fun;:";.ing in this area must be 

made available. Also the Reed for mOre education and intervention 

is necessary. Our school systems must be examined in relationship 

to the needs of children in todays complex society. The standards 

of education must be cOhsistant in our State ,md Nation aCld not 

have quality Education still conditioned on only wealth or value 

of property. We must continue to' 'ieve in the uniqueness and 

digni·ty of each individual person, t.k, continuing importance of 

the family as the basic unit of society, and of education as the 

basic med1_':l!'\',for hum~n growth and development. The Family has to 

cont!,-ibute to the public good and to be g\·~<:jed by the Laws passed 

to obtain that uood. The Family is the nation's strength or 

weakness. 1'11e school, Law Enforcement, :;u:}:i,cial system, LegislativE.! 

and executive branches of government are all ~xtensions of the 

Home or Family. 

It is illy belief that an industry, drug abuse, of 90 billion dollars 

in the united States can o!lly find sollitions through a concerted 

effort by the public and private sectors. Law enforcement, the 

judiciary, parol'e and probation, education, treatment amlprevention 

programs, private and public, must all network and Jnterface ,dt.h 

each other. Legalizat,ion of th:~se drugs of abuse to elimate the 

profit motive will not work. The involvement of International 

terrorist in the drug scene make the drug scenc.that ~uch more 

complex. The time is here for a "National Manifesto", to be 

35-584 0-84-24 

------.. _-
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drawn up by both political parties, concerning drug and alcohol 

abuse, crime and deliquency. This Manifesto should be fully 

supported by every level of Government, Educational and Church 

institutions motivating Families and individual citizens to 

fight a common enemy. Proper funding at the Federal and state 

level should be provided to carry out the Manifesto in full. Yet 

with the continued decrease in the Federal Block grant system, 

much damage is being done in the area of services. At the pre-

sent time I would say that Texas is now facing a serious crisis 

in Education, prevention and treatment services. state standards 

must be established and published so that the public can be pro

tected. In Texas the R.B. McAllister Bill gives this authority 

to the single state agency, the Texas Department of Community 

Affairs, but funding is not available to the agency. 

I would like to thank the Chairman and his committee for this 

opportunity" Ir I can be of further assistance to you please 

call on IDi3 •. I \<lOuld also like to thank you for the great work 

you are doing for our citizens and nation. 

i 
I 
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TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SA~ETV 

® 
JAMES a. ADAMS 

DIRECTOR 

LEOE.GOssm 
ASST. DIRECTOR 

5l1li N. LAMAR BLVD. • BOX 4017· AUSTIN, ~ 11m 

December ~O, 1983 

Honorable Charlas B. Rangel 
U.S. ~ouse ~f Represen~ative~ 
Chairman. Select Committee on Narcotics 

Abuse and Control 
Room H2-234. House Office Bldg. Annex 2 
Washington. D.C. 20515 

Dear Representative Rangel: 

~ 
CHAIIUIo._ 

aw_N 
W.C-I~_ 
SHANNON H. Mrul'1' 

CO .... ...aN1M 

During my testimony before your committee on December 13. 1983 
in Corpus Christi. Texas. ! indicated to you that I would make 
available some recommendations from the State Drug Enforceme'nt 
Alliance whic·h were later incorporated by the National Governors I 
Association. Enclosed is a copy of the paper dealing with strate
gies for drug control efforts. 

In addition. I am enclo~ing my respo.~e to questions raised in your 
let~er dated June 27, 1983. " 

It was's pleasure to see you again and I certainly want to commend 
you and your committee on the interest sho'yn in the 1II0st serious 
criminal law enforcement problem facing this country today. 

Enclosures 

'. 
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QUESTION: 

1. (a) What do you feel should be the Federal role in drug law 
enforcement1 

(b) From that perspective, what do you see as the principal 
problem and issue areas that have hindered, or now hinder, 
effective drug la~ enforcement and prosecution1 

ANST,~ER: 

1. (a) The federal role in drug law enforcement, of necessity, must 
be the lead role. This is occasioned by the ~act that retail 
sales of illegal drugs nationwide are estimated to be between 
79 and 90 billion dollars a year. In comparison, retail sales 
in legitimate drug prescriptions run approximately 10 billion 
dollars a year; beer, wine and liquor retail sales are 16 
billion dollars a year; and tobacco retail sales ~re 23 billion 
dollars a year. Obviously, the magnitude of the problem clearly 
establishes drug abuse and trafficking in illegal drugs as a 
national problem warranting the highest priority. 

Coupled with this, only the.federa~ government has the requi
site jurisdiction to deal with the. first and second lines of 
defense, i.e., the eradication of drugs abroad in source 
countries; and failing that, the subsequent interdiction en
route to or at our borders. These activities fall squarely 
within the jurisdiction of the federal Drug Enforcement Adminis
tration and State Department and the U.S. Customs Service. 

The effectiveness or lack of effectiveness of the named federal 
agencies in preventing illegal drugs from entering the United 
States impacts on state and local law enforcement agencies as 
well as a host of federal agencies who have concurrent juris
diction in enforcing drug and narcotics laws and related 
statutes. DEA, Customs, FBI, and IRS, in particular, have 
substantial responsibilities in this area. 

(b) A major problem which currently exists is the inability of 
the criminal justice system to handle all of the violators 
who are currently detected. A shortage of prosecutors, court 
docket space, judges and, ultimately, penitentiaries dictates 
that many individuals currently detected violating federal 
narcotics laws are not prosecuted or. handled in any meaningful 
manner by the criminal justice system. Time and time again, 
a major drug trafficking investigation is culminated with only 
a few principals prosecuted; often leaving others free of any 
sanction whatsoever. A major organization cannot be destroyed 
by prosecuting only the prinCipals leaving the second and third 
strata available to move up and continue operations. I do not 
mean to infer that we do not need more investigative personnel 
but I am pointing out that more investigative personnel without 
providing for the results of their efforts to be fully addressed 
by other components of the criminal justice system is counter
productive. 

1 
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QUESTION: 

2. 

ANSWER: 

2. 

QUESTION: 

3. 

ANSWER: 
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It should be obvious that when drug seizures are made at our 
borders and the violators are released with no charges we are 
providing a sanctuary for those smuggling so-called "small" 
amounts even though those "small" amounts may be as much as 
10 or 15 pounds of marijuana. 

In your opinion, what is the most appropriate role for State 
and local governments, respectively, in combatting the traf
ficking and use of illicit drugs? 

Each state, as Texas does, should have a narcotics serVice 
with statewide jurisdiction to impact on the identification, 
investigation and immobilization of trafficking organizations. 
In states with foreign borders and/or coastline such as Texas 
has, the effort should include investi~ative activities directed 
at major land, sea arid air smuggling attempts. Since by its own 
estimates the federal government is able to interdict only 10% 
of the drug traffic directed at the United States, state agencies 
must make a heavy commitment to the investigation of organiza
tions within the state which are engaged in smuggling operations 
as well as distribution within the state. The state agency must 
also concentrate on cases involving domestic cultivation, clan
destine laboratories and drug divers10n since these cases by 
their very nature and magnitude invariably involve many juris
dictions within the state and a statewide inveotigative capa
bili~y is necessary to cope with them. 

The local jurisdictions not only play an important role in 
major trafficking investigations centered in their jurisdic-
tion but also have an important responsibility for keeping 
the pressure on small street dealers and users in order that 
all segments of the trafficking problem are addressed. In
herent in the role of state and local agencies is the absolute 
need to have a cooperative relationship with the federal 
agencies as it is not possible to separate out a particular 
role for anyone agency. The drug trafficking problem is so 
immense that no entity or group of entities can do the job alone. 

In your opinion, what do State and local govennments need most 
from the Federal government in combatting the trafficking and 
use of illicit drugs (a) in terms of financial resources, and 
(b) other than funding? 

3. (a) The greatest need on the part of state and local governments 
in terms of financial resources is for the federal government 
to adequately fund the federal investigative agencies at a 
level which would ~nsure effectiveness in the primary areas 
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of overseas er~dication and border interdiction as well as 
the necessary funding to ensure proper. disposition of 'the 
csses involving those arrested or who could be arrested. 
Additional equipment particularly in the area of radar capa
bility and aircraft are obviously needed if any substantial 
improvement can be expected in the area of air smuggling. 

(b) In addition to enhanced funding of the federal agencies ia~ 
vOlved, there needs to be a higher degree of commitment on 

QUESTION: 

4. 

ANSWER: 

the part of the federal government to p.rosecute the full range 
of narcotics violators falling within the purview of federal 
statutes rather than facing its responsibility only where major 
violators are concerned. In addition, although the level of 
cooperation among federal. state and local agencies in Texas 
is high, the need for such must be constantly stressed and 
improved upon particularly in the areas of sharing intelligence 
information. 

What organizational and/or program-policy changes, if any, 
would you recommend for consideration? (a) Federal, (b) State 
and local. 

4. (a) Granted that all of the federal agencies have more work within 
their respective jurisdictions than resources to perforc such 
work, consideration should be given to the ability of other 
federal agen~ies to 'play a more paTticipatory role in combatti~g 
the drug trafficking problem. In psrticular, consideration should 
be given to the role af the INS Border patrolman who is well 
trained, highly lIIof;i~:,al::ed and in a good position, particularly 
along the Texas-Meltican border, to make substantial contributions 
to the interdictic-.1 effort. 

(b), (c) No comment. 
QUESTION: 

s. 

ANSWER: 

s. 

QUES!ION: 

Please submit ydur candid opinion of changes, if anYj in the 
drug abuse situdtion in'your jurisdiction over the past five 
years. Conside~: (a> increases, decreases and changing patterns 
of abuse of specific substances, (b) effectiveness of present 
policies and methods, and (c) consequences of changes in 
Federal funding strategies. 

This question falls more appropriately within the purview of 
the Texas Department of Community Affairs and the Drug Abuse 
Research & Education (DARE) organization. 

6. (a) P~ease submit your candid opinion of the consequences of the 

'. 
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realignment of DEA and the FBI which gives the latter concur
rent jurisdiction in drug law enforcement. Please respond in 
terms of both immediate and long term perspective. 

(b) Does your organization now, or did it formerly, engage in 
cooperative efforts with either the DBA or FBI? Please de
scribe any changes in cooperative efforts that may have 
resulted from the DEA-FBI realighment. 

ANSW~i;.: 

6. (a) The realignment of DEA and the FBI has had a positive impact 
on the federal ef~rts. By maintaining DEA as an independent 
agency it has ensured there will be no dimunition of effort 
and that the federal drug enforcement effort not be submerged 
among the many diverse responsibilities of the FBI. The 
granting of jurisdiction to the FBI allows that agency to bring 
its tremendous resources and experience to bear, particulably 
in the area of electronic surveillance and financial investi
gations which are absolutely essential to penetrate major 
organized crim e oonspiracies whether they be of the traditional 
la cosa nostra type or the type of organized crime that we are 

·increasingly encountering in the drug trafficking field. The 
substantial increase in the number of joint investigations worked 
by those two agencies and the positive accomplishments already 
produced v.ividly demonstrate the wisdom of the realignment 
which has taken place. 

(b) The Texas Department of Public Safety has had a long-standing 
ongoing cooperative relationship with both DEA and the FBI. 
More significant joint investigations have been conduc~ed with 
DEA in recent years because of the concurrent jurisdiction we both 
have in the areas of drug enforcement. Previously, the FBr's 
priorities were such that our long term involvement in joint 
operations was primarily in areas of major propert.y thefts; 
however, with the advent of the investigative task forces in
volving the FBI and DE! and state and local a~encie~ we are 
beginn.ing to engage in more joint operations.· 
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Strategies for Drug Control Efforts 

In July 1982, at the Annual ~[eeting of the Southern Governors' Association in. Hilton 
Head, South Carolina, the southern governors agreed that international drug 
o:afficking has become an issue of major regional concern. Governor Lamar Ale.'Cll1der 
of Tennessee and Governor Bob Graham of Florida invited governors and state law 
enforcement officials to a special meeting in Nashville, Tennessee to discuss 
str.l.tegies for handling drug trafficking problems. The results of that meeting, held in 
September 1982, were eight policy recommendations for states to enhance drug 
control efforts. These recommendations subsequendy received unanimous concur· 
renee from all participating states. 

On October 14, 1982, President R~gan announced his national initiatives to combat 
drug smuggling and organized crime. These initiatives are consistent with the 

, recommendations developed by the governors in Nashville. 

An ad hoc staff group of the National Governors' Assodation (NGA) met in 
WashingtOn, D.C. on November 18, 1982, to define the role of me Gol:emors' Project 
included in the President's initiatives. The group also agreed to work with staff of 
Governor Bob Graham of Florida to prepare an implementation strategy for the eight 
policy recommendations approved by the southern states. On January 13, 1983, 
Commissioner Robert Dempsey of the-Florida Department of L'Iw Enforcement 
presented an implementation str.ltegy to the ad hoc committee for their review and 
comment. The southern governors v-ish to express their appreciation to the members 
of this committee for their v.illingness to work on this endeavor. 

Upon adoption of the implementation str.l.tegy by the NGA. a steering committee 
should be appointed immediately to oversee and ensure implementation. This 
steering committee should submit an annual report [0 the NGA on progress related to 
these initiatives. 

BOth the President's and the governors' recommendations indic:lte that it is 
impermi\'e that implement:ltion of drug strategies be closely coordinated among the 
st:ltes and at the federal level. 
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~ecutive Summary 
The f~lIowing is a plan for implementing recommenda. 
tlons tor drug concrol that ~'aS dr:lfted bv an ad hoc 
~up from .the :-I9A in ]anuaIy 1983. The follOwing eight 
lte~ ~~ Identified as needed for better drug conU'OI in 
the Cnned States: . 

1 Incre:L5ed educ:llional cojfortS. including the estab. 
lishment of blue ribbon commissions in e:!Ch Slate 
and a feder.lIly·sponso~ national educ1tion 

2 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 

program: 

lo~n.sit1ed er.&dJcadoQ and lutcrdJcd.,o. l.e~ 
milltary/oawl U'Sistance to sr:ue ar.d local 
governments. fOCUSing on che destruction of drugs :u their source. foreign or domestic. and on :m 
U1C~ mi!lc:uy commitment to the interdiction of 
drugs bemg Impolted by air or 5e:I: 

Nadonal re:u:tiOD. encoUl':lging the continuation of 
the Bush Task Force :md the twelve regional cask 
forces; , 

Ccntr:illzed. ~ormadon :ind l.nreWgence data 
base. com,btnmg :md coordtn:1ting d:itl from loc:::tl. 
Slate. mulu'stlte :md feder:ll sources; 

Concerted .m'eet enforcement :zcdvity. urging 
SU'Onger sUPPOIt for 10C1l law enforcement :Jgencies' 
drug conU'OI perroMd :md equipment; 

St:lndard legislation. co be developed in e:!Ch Stlte 
:md through a national commi[[ee formed for this 
purpose: 

Gce::ate~ prose,CUtori:ll commitment. ~ith the 
same pnom}" 81"en co drug cases as to other priorit'l' 
are:L5: :md . 

~rdInation of effortS of IOC1l agc:ncles. en. 
abh~g agencIes co pool inforrpation :md resources fi 
m:L"(I!llum efi'olt. ' or 

~ recomm~d:won is accomp:mied by specific sugges. 
~ons :!bout :lCtlons g()\'emors might C!Ike or su It. The 
IS also a comme~t on ~e tlSClI impact of eachP:omme: 
d:uion :md ways In ~'hich thi.; might be minimized. 

A lise of p~sidemi:JI iniciati"es chat ~'e~ not among th 
dl:\'eloped .br the :-iGA. but which ne"elthcless de:;e,,~ 
gubem:lConal suPPOIt. is included at the end of this 
document. 
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The Governors' Issues 

... !Need for Incre3Sed 
~' Educational Efforts 

Th:e problem of drug muse in our society is related to so 
;;:-,:,'"y flctors that it c:mnot be successfully :u:idressed by 
any Ilingle discipline .• \ consistent e.'tChange of informa· 
tion. :md ide:lS :unong the various disciplines that on 
afftlr,t consl.uner demand does not e:tist. The ultimate 
lorlg·term su'Ccess of drug control effortS is not possible 
~iL\1out a rr..:uriage of these disciplines. supported by an 
edu(;:uedand involved pUblic. 

R~ommendat1ol1 
~ st3te should consider the est2blishment of a Slue 
Ribbon SIa~ide Drug Eduction Commission invol"ing 
le:Iders from the pUblic and pm'l1te sectOrs. This 
Commission should consist of high·IC"'e1 represenctives 
from a c:i'oss section of disciplines including law 
enforcement. prosecution. judlci:ll. educational. medlcll. 
legisl:uh-e and citizen,/pafenL'~'Oung people groups. 

Implemencwoa Str:uegy . 
C E:!ch gO\-emor should consIder 3ppointing representa· 

tives from a cross section of the public and prh':1te 
sectOrs to a Sta~ide Drug Eduction Commission. It 
is imper:1tive that the membership comprising this 
Commission be committed to a,.1d aggressi\-e cow.ud 
;accomplishing the.goals est:Iblished by this recom· 
mendation. The Commission should direct effortS 
to\\-mi: 
- Pri'I:ate Industry: ~iding crime· specific inform:l' 

tion. identi~ing indusay prevention progmrns and 
funding sources. and integt:lting muru:1l industryl 
citizen:enforcement aahities. 

- .Public .-!u"al't'7less and Concern: Coordinate :md 
ofP.I1ize citizens' groups:md progc:ms; dC"-elop . 
dtiiens' pre-.-ention progr:un models: dC"'elop medi:l 
Clmpaigns' "technology tr.In5fers": and integt3tlon 
~i!h chic :lOd church groups. indUSU!,. edUCltion 
and enforcement. The Commission should comider 
the "T= ~ar on Drugs" progmm. which h:is 
est:1blished· itself 35 :I model in this are:!. 

- Public Scboo/ Education: Assist the Department of 
Eduction in dC\-eloping :md presenting more 
relC"':1nt. pOSitive :md pro:u:rh-e C1J1Ticul:l in bw· 
related eduction. ' 

- UlW Enforcement. Community Organi:allons and 
. Neighborhood Coordinarton: Provide mlining to I:!w 
enforcement personnel in order to promllte more 
effecth-e integt3tion of enforcement agencies ~ith 
communi~' eductiorull 3cthities. E.'tistinp; crime 
pre\-ention and other local net'll;orics .ihould be 
recognized and used. 

C G,)\-embrs should urge that a rultion:U effoct. :Ide· 
qu:ltel~·:scffed. be undett:lken to de\-elop progt:1ll1 
models and infonnation set\ices for the indi\idu:ll 
stltes. 

C Govemors should urge Wt the fedet:ll government 
oo'Clop and implement a national eduction progr:un. 
In this reg:Ird. the President has recommended that 
emphasis be pl:!ced on tr.Iining of scte and local law 
enfon:ement personnel. Govemors should be encour· 
aged to support this initi:lti\-e. 

Fi5cal Imp2Ct 
The fiscal impact of educ:uional effortS can be minimized 
by turning to the prh':1te sectOr for e.'\:eCuti\-e resources. 
fund t3ising 3Ctl\ities and creative clem. ,Membership on 
!he Slue Ribbon Commissions would be \'Oluncuy. SlateS 

• could also 5a\-e resoures by promoting drug edUCltion 
through e:tisting citlzen netwOrks. such as those address, 
ing crime prevention. 

2 Need for Intensified Eradication 
and Interdiction: Military/Naval 
Assistance to State and Loc:U 
Governments 

The fede!:1l gO\'emment has e:tclush-e ~ibllit}· for 
coordinating interdiction of drug shipmentS from foreign 
countries and 3SSistlng those countries in the =diction 
of drugs at the source. As a result of intensh-e lobb~ing. 
!hree signifiont dC"-elopmentS h3\-e occurred O\-et the 
past ye:1r Wt ha\-e had a positi\-e impact on er:ulicatlon 
and interdiction effortS: (1) rei:L'CUlon of the Posse 
Comitatus dOctrine. :ill~ing the milicuy to prO\ide 
assistance to ci\;Ii:ul law enforcement agencies: (2) the 
cernO\':11 of the Percy Amendment to the Foreign 
Assistance .~. "''hich prohibited foreign go\-emmentS 
from recehing 3SSist:UlCe from the L'.s. gO\-emment if 
herbicides were used to control illicit drugs: and (3) the 
recent effortS made b\' th~ natiorull :ldministration to 

. support eradicuon effCiits in foreign countries. 

RecommendatJon 
The fedet31 gO\-emment should adopt. 35 itS top drug 
control priority. the et:1dic::ltion of illicit drugs in source 
countries :md the interdiction <;If drugs 1e3\ing those 
countries. 

The Cnitee! St:ites should continue encout3ging foreign 
go\-emmentS to emplor et3dic::ltion methods. including 
herbicidal applictions. and should continue to absorb or 
contnbutl; to the COStS of some of the more critic::ll 
programs in signlfic::lnt source' countries. In :1ddition. the 
militur forces of the Cnited St:ites should be oiled upon 
to make a majOr commitment to increase their IC\'CI of 
support in the interdiction effoct. 

.. 
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Implemenuatioll Str:l~ 
C CA:n'emors Should consider :idoptingaresolution to 

·Congress and the President to urge the fedet:ll 
poemment: 

- !l) keep :lS One of ItS tOp drug control priority 
prostuns the er.ldic:1tion of drugS ;It source coun
liteS and to continue to pl'O\ideadequ:u:e furidii'lg in 
subsequent ~'C3lS. 

- to oo'elop Impl'O\-ed et:Idictiontechniques. 
.;. to continue 10 contribute to the cost of these 

control efforts. 

- to continue to encoUr.lge other countries to utilize 
et:Idicatlon methods. ' 

C Keeping in mind the ~end\JU5 inae&se of domestl· 
c:::illy grown marijuanll. and clandestine manuflcture of 
d:lngerous drugs. governors should support eradication 
etrortS :wi the oo'elopment ~ applicuion of 
inno\'2Qo.-e me:lSures within their srar,e, to combat 

.!hese :.cuvttles. . . 

C CA:n-emors should urge the nati9na1 3dmInistr.ltioll to 
espznd the role of !he millcur fo~es o( the Cnited 
SateS in :lir :1tId 5e:I interdiction ~ffortS. This incre:Ised 
role:: should include :iu regions of the country. . 

C Go\-emors should encou.":Ige their st3te :md 10C31 law 
enforcem~ent agencies 10 ~'Ork c105C!ly with and seek 
asslsra."ICe from the militarY forces of !he United Stites 
and de'>'elop plans with milieu)" forces to coordinate 
etfortS ag:tinst drug aafficking. 

C Go\-emors should encOur3ge their respeCtI\-e congres· 
slonal delegations to pro\ide sufficient funding toilie 
miUtI~· to offset the COstS in\'Olved In p:mIcip:lting in 
ci'<ili:m drug control effortS. 

C. The 80\'emors~ should consider Iu\ing the Xatlonal 
Gwrd :md '3U other appropriate resqurces v.'Ork "'ith 
SUte :md 10Cl1 law enion:ement :Jgencles in drug 
interdiction :md et3diclion progr.uns. 

FI5c:Ll Im~ct 
SI:ues implementing et3dlction eftbrtS will e.-cperience 
cos!S. Coopet3tion "'ith fed~t3i ~r:uliction effortS 15 
encour3ged to minimize those e:cpendltures. CoStS may 
also be :155OCiated "'ith ~atiorull Guard 3cthities aimed at 
355lsting :.l:Ile drug bw enforcement. Th~:ie cOStS cn be 
~i~imized. or possib1r elimirulted. by conducting 
:-;~uOlUI Gwrd drug enforcement acti\ities in conjunction 
v.,th regular Gu:ud l!:lining e:cen:ises. 

3 Need for A National Reaction 
o.-er the past decde. numerous. SClteS Iu\'e been hurt by 
the greming drug problem. These SClteS ha\'e taken 
i!;?fJependenr Steps to comb3t the problem: however. their 

. resource lImit:ltions and geogt:lphic restrictions ha~'e 
hindered the sutes' effecth-eness. The fedeal gO\'em· 
ment. realizing the rultionai ramiflcuions of me drug 
problem. h35 condUCted several significant .operatlons that 
ha\'e lessened these restrictions:1tld limit:ltions. such as 
the recent Bush Task Force in South Florida and the 
=tion of twel\'C region:U wk forces. 

Recommendatioa 
The federal gO\-emment should be encour3ged.tO 
main!:lin on a permanent b:lSls the fedet:ll resources 
associated with the original Bush Task Force and twel~'e 
new tISk forces. 

Implemem:adoa Stratqy 
C ~h p-emor should urge his/her respectl\-e congres· 

sional delegation to l1lllintlin and continue support of 
the original Bush T35k Force and the twelve new . 
region:al drug taSk forces. 

e The gcJ\'emors should urge th3t tOp Wllite House and 
JUStice officials meet twice. ve:lrln\ith selected 
p-emor! from the :>:GA t~'dlsCUss poli~'issues of 
mutual interest related to drug tt3ifickin~ 

C Go\-emors should SUPPOrt the Presidenti:ll Commis· 
sion on Org:lOized Crime. ",'hlch will be in opefation 
for three years. Membership of this commission 
should include a represent3tl\-e'of the XGA. 

C Go\-emors should request the Dep:utment of JuStice to 
include SUte rep~ctives h3\ing poli~·.maklng or 
opet3tlon:U responsibilities in drug enforcement on 
the intem:t! groupresponsib!e for :u:1minlstering the 
regiorull wk forces. Further. tlut these represenwh'es 
ha\'e, appropriate decision' making St:IlUS In the grQup 
~ithin p:1r.tmerers of st3te,related responsibilities. 
Further. that each govemor should appoint a stne drug 
enforc;ement coordln:ltor to meet "'ith the le:ld , 
adminlStt3tOr of the respective wk force on :1 specific 
periodic basiS. 

C The gO\-emors should communicate v.ith their respec· 
tive scte and 10C31 law enforcement officials to :icth -el\' 
5~ppOct the !'resident's initi:lti\-e, . 

cGo\~ors should consiaer :Icti\'l;l): 5Olici~lng public 
support of these .initl3ti\-es through speeches. l'I!edia 
and other public Information resOurces. 

C Go\-emors should through their respecth'e legisla· 
tures. ensure wt adeqwte resoutCes 3re :1\':1il:!ble for 
st3tes to coordirulte elfecth'elv with :md complement 
!he fedet31 tI5k terce effortS .. 

Fbc:U Imp:la 
Each st3te ml!St :tn3lyze itli in\'estmentli 10 ensure that it is 
tlidng a balanced appr03ch to drug law enforcement ..... 
st:lte's 100'estment priorities should rellea the seriousness 
of the drug problem in that SUte. 
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4 Need for A Centrall2ed Informa
tion and Intelligence Data Base . 

L:xw enforcement :lgencies in\'OI\'ed in drug' control have 
histOric:illy b= hampered by lack of accessible :1I1d 
:lSSessable intelligence information rel:1tlng to ilIeg:11 
uafficking. A centralized system to receive, :1I1!Ilyze :1I1d 
dis..o;emin:lte infomution 3ffiong state :1I1d 10C11 law 
enforcement :lgencies must e:tist if prooc::tive. non· 
duplictive :1I1d signifiC:1l1t targeting effortS ue to occur, 
Such a svstem must int= with similar S\'!.tem5 in other 
states and 'I\ith the fedenl go'I-emmenL . 

Recommendation 
E:lch sene must est:1blish a centt:tlized drug·related 
intelligence SIo'5tem. To be effective, the indi\idual 
S\'Stems must'ensure Input from:1l1d response to 10C1l 
efuorcement :!gendes :1I1d should inret:lCt consistently 
~ith appropri:!te State :1I1d multi·state S}'Stems :1I1d the 
Drug Enforcement Adminis[1':1tion's E1 F'Jso Intelligence 
Center (EPIC). 

Implementation Str:1teiY 
C Go\'emors should direCt their prim:uy state drug 

enforcement :lgenc:: to begin the development of :I 
state'l\ide drug,rel:lted intelligence system, \\ith =ly. 
sis :1I1d e~eting cpabilities. These S'!<'Stem5 should be 
joined 'I\ith the other 3ppropri:!te State, multi,State :1I1d 
federnl intelligence S}'Stern5. 

- States th3t possess such S'!<'Stem5 should sluie 
concepts. ide:lS and technologies with other st:1tes. 

- St:ites should ensure th3t these s}'Stems plO\ide the 
information to :III 10C11 law enforcement :lgencies 
\\;thin their respeCti\-e states, 

- The indi\idual states should ensure that their 
S}'Stems :ue linked with appropriate S'!<'Stems in Other 
states. :IS ""'-ell :IS 'I\ith multi·sete :1I1d feder:l! 
intelligence S}'Stems, 

C (j,J\'emors ~hould recommend that their appropriate 
laVo' enlarcement :lgencies de\-elop :I =d3tory drug 
st3IlStics reporting '1'Stem rele\':1Ot to the me:lSurement 
of the drug problem :1I1t! the imp:u:t of enforcement 
effOI"'.$. 

Fl5ci1 Impact 
Costs :lSso.:i:lted with est3blishing or enh:lOcing st:Ite 
intelligence S}'Stems 'I\il1 \-:u:' from St3Ie to St:1te. 
Purchasing :I new computerized S}'Stem. including both 
hard'l\'3re :1I1d soim'3re. is :111 e:qlensi\'e process. \X'here 
computer '1'Stems :ue :l1=dy in place, such :IS in those 
setes 'I\'here responsibili~' for colleCting t:CR d3e is :It 
the sete le\·el. costs tn3V be limited to de\'eloplOg 
necessa~' soimare, Some personnel enh:1ncements tn3y 
also be neceSS3~'. 

5 Need for Concerted 
Street Enforcement Activity 

Loc:1l law enforcement :lgencies must pro\ide the 
Immedl3te response to :I '':1riecy of community de=ds 
for crime control. It Is difficult for those agencies to 
dedicte alre:ldv sU3ined resources to proaeth'e drug 
prevention :1I1d' enforcement problems .. Howe\'er, the re:ll 
direCt :1I1d indireCt drug, related crimes must be de:1lt with 
COnstlOtly :IS a paIt of the required i:lw enforcement 
response to the communi!)'. This response .is :IS • 
ad:un:lntl~' de=ded :IS are r~oonses to '101ent cnme 
are:LS. 

Recommend:nioD 
Go\'emors :1I1d legisi:ltors of the \':1rious st:1tes should 
apply m3.'Cimum support and effort to'l\'3rd incre:lSing 
resowces (personnel:1l1d equipment) of 10001law 
enforcement :lgencies. 

Implement:ldon Str.ltegy 
C Govemors should consider altem:u!\'e funding options, 

such :IS pri\':ue sowces (found:itions. etc.) or ,u 
legislati\'e mechanisms such :IS nne :1I1d forfeiture 
a1IOC1tiOns specificUy =rked for drug control 
enforcement progr:lffiS. 

C GO\'emors should promOte adequate feder:l! :1I1d St:1te 
support of 10C11 law enforcement :lgencies. Bec;tuse 
the drug problem is one of n:ltion:1l scope. fed~1'31 
resources are needed to support criticl or e:ar:xordi. 
03r\' sete and 10C31 enfurcement effortS. Go\'emors 
should also Stress to 10C1l Ie:lders their support for the 
ali0C3tion of needed resources to conduct drug 
enforcement Progr:lffiS. jOint ope1'3tions :1I1d coopet:l· 
th'e effortS. 

Fl5a.l Impact 
St:ite gO\'emment setiSticl S}'Stems must pro\ide go\·er· 
nors 'I\ith :ldeqU3te 3SSessments of loc:LI drug tr.uficklOg 
problems. Resource support '1\;11 \'3~' from St3te to sete 
depending upon the m:lgnitude of the pro-'1lem. i.e .. 
border St3te. source St3te. m:llor distr;bution point, etc. 
Go\'emors should 3S5ess e:tiSting in\'esunents to ensure 
they :Ire :lddressing the problem :IS :I priori!}' tn3tter. In 
p:uticul:1r, border setes must dedicate a portion of 
a\'3il:1ble new resources to the prion!}' problems of drug 
trafficking :md diStribution. 

I 
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6 Need for Standard Legislatiop. 
There is gte:lt dispari~' 3ffiong the St:1tes' drug laVo'S. There 
is e\idence that smuggling O~iZ3tiOns ha\'!: eken 
3d\'3I1tage of some St:1tes' deficiencies in legal recourse 
and prob:ibilities of detection, apprehension :1I1d 
prosecution. 

Recommend:nion 
E:u:h State should est:iblish a legis!ati\'e c0!IU11irtee of 
prcsecuth'e. enforcement. judic131 and legisl:1l\\'e 
members to e:cunine :1I1d de\'elop :I comprehe.'lSi\·e 
S}'Stem of model :utd uniform I:lW5 de:iling 'I\ith the drug 
problem. The stlte bar :tSSOci:ltions and Ia'l\' schools 
should be included in this efforL This committee can be 
a sep:11'3te emi!}', or a part of:1l1 e:cisting St:1te'l\;de drug 
3Cti\ity. 

Implementation Str.ltegy 
C The GcA'eITlors should consider the est:1bllshmem of:l 

committee Qpe1'3ting 'I\ithin their re5peCtl\'e states to 
e:cunine elCisting legislation :1I1d determine th:u St3te's 
needs. 

C A ::-lation:ll Committee should be created. reporting to 
the ~GA Commia:ee on Crimin:LI Justice :1I1d Public 
i'roteCtion. This committee 'I\ill de\'elop a comprehen. 
si\,e system of model :1I1d uniform laws de:lllng with 
the drug issue :1I1d v.ill dissemin:lte the model drug 
legislati\'e p::::lClge back to the respecth'e St:ltes for 
their conside1'3tion. 

C The Go\'emors should see that the fede1'31 go'I'emment 
. assign appropriate representati,'es to this :-:ation:lI 

Committee to promote uniformi!}' of St:1te :1I1d fede1'31 
la'l\'S :lnd ser\'e :IS :I mech:1l1ism to tr:msmlt states' 
concerns to the fede1'31 legislati\'e process. 

C The :-:3tion:ll Committee snould consider :It le:ISt tile 
follO'l\ing items for the model legislative p:1c1oge: 
- Rac.lzeteer·/njluenced and Com/pt Organi;:anons Act 

(RICO): prmiding for the prosecution of entire 
crimlml otg:lntZ3tions :1I1d civil forfeiture of re:ll and 
persoml prope~' used in the course of, or 3Cqwred 

. 'I\ith the proceeds of. their crimin:ll 3Cth ities. 
- lJnJg Trafficking iDuos: pi'O\iding :lppropriate sen. 

tences tor drug \iolators :1I1d :I gr.tdU3ting ::ole of 
pe:uities commenSUr:lte with the seriousnc:ss of the 
\iolauon. :lOd permlrting conslde1'3tion of foreign 
felony drug comictions in sentencing drug law 
\;o13tors. 

- ~'iretaps: pro\iding for COurt·Juthonzed intercep. 
tion of telephonic communictions between drug 
lav.' \iol:J.rurs. 

- Mutual Aid: prO\idlng for definitions of interjurisdic. 
tion:ll :luthorities, liabilities. agreements and reo 
source e:cchanges within :1I1d 3ffiong the \-ulOUS 
states. 

- Mandarory Reponing 0/ Currency Transactions: 
requiring financ131 institutions' reporting of cett:lin 
trans:Ictions to the St:1tes. The St3rute of limitations 
must pro\ide sufficient time to allow full use of 
complex l:lw enforcement techniques before a.treSL 

- COnspiracy Prot'isions: pro\idlng for charging those 
who direCt or particip:lte in drug smuggling \'elltUreS 
to be sentenced :IS prinCipals. 

- Mandarory Reponing 0/ Drug Statistics: to :I centr.ll 
enti!}' both 'I\ithin the St:1te5 :1I1d at the fedcr:LI Ie\'el 
to reduce dUplicte' reporting :1I1d to est:iblish :I 
valid d:ie b3Se for problem :lSSessment :1I1d resource 
alI0C3tion. 

- Contraband and Asset Forfeitllrr! Reform: with 
appliC3tion of fines :1I1d forfeitures being applied 
direct1r to law enforcement prog=. i.e., through 
trust funds. 

- Stare Depamnent of ReL'fmUe FilllS rlcces:s: plO\idlng 
for 3CCess, with appropriate safegu:uods. by law . 
enforcement agencies. 

- Wimess and v'iclim ProtecTion: pro\iding :luthority 
. and funding required :1I1d m:1klns it :111 offense with 

signific:mt punishment to :lnnO\' or injure a witness 
or \ictim invol\'ed In the criminal justice process. 

- &ul Reform: to more cett:linly immobilize drug 
traffickers with less judic131 discretion. i.e .. v.'here 
smugglers :Ire kno'l\ll to tr.l\'el intematiomU\' or 
"IIo'here \'iolence is predict:ible. . 

C GtJo.'emors should u~e that the Congress remO\'e 
restrictions. with :lppropn:ue S3feguards, rh:it pre\'ent 
the Intem:LI Re\'enue Sef\ice from sh:tring intelligence 
reg:t.rding crimirull :lCti\ities with st:Ite :1I1d 10C3l 
:luthoritles. 

C The President h:lS :1Sked the Congress to continue its 
effortS to seek p:1SS:1ge of essenti:ll crimin:l1law 
reforms. The specific b'l\'s mentioned 'I\-ere bail retarm. 
iorfelrure of assets. :;emencing reform and :lmc:ndments 
to the exclusion:uy rule. The gO\'emors should 
cOrlSider supporting the President's initl3ti\'e in seeking 
p:1ss:tge of these essemi:ll retorms :1I1d ensure that 
these is.sues :Ire COOrui03ted 'I\ith simil:!r sete lesisla. 
tion reform etTorts. 

Fi:sc:U Impact 
Th= :Ire mlOim:l1 St3te CostS 3SSOClated ~ith this 3Cti\i!}'. 

o 
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7 Need for Greater 
·ProsecutoP:U. Commitment 

Prosecutors are hindered by he:1W court dockets and 
bread responsibilities .that !1l2ke it .difficult fc;>r them ro 
dedic:ue resources ro the prosecution of f!1"Ilor drug 
smulZgling opeotions. Alternative :lppro:u:nes ~o ~g 
pros-ecution and better cpordin:ltion a,mO?8 C1[CUlts 
de:1ling "'ith multi·junsdlction:tl org:ml~t10ns are needed. 
Prosecutors should take steps ro e.'Cpedite ~ enforce· 
ment Q.SeS. :IS has been done successfullr 10 c:LSeS 
in\'Ol\,ng c::treet' criminals .• ~tion:tl resources are 
needed for pro~ution of highl~' financed and ~ ... ell· 
defended drug org:tniZ!ltions. 

Recoaunendadoas . 
Go\-emors of the \'3rious states are U1'6ed to enco~~ 
prosecutors ro include drug ~ :IS :l p21t. o~ their 
jurisdJction·.~ priority prosecuaon:=r c:nmtn:ll 
progr:uns. 
Go\-emors should develop progr:uns that will atIr.1ctand 
re!:1in competent prosecuting :1ttom~'S. 

ImplemenadoD Str.ltegy . . 
e Go\-emors should seek suong commitments ~m their 

rescecti\"e legisl::!rures to ensure that prosecuu\'~ 
offices are gh-en the necess:ay support to ~It and 
ret:lin qualified prosecutors for specific assignment to 
drugc=s. 

C Go\-emors shollid urge that State prosecutl~-e officials 
coordiri:ue "'ith feder:tl ~ forces and I:=S Attomeys 
to minimize duolic:uive efforts and ma."Cimlze the 
impact of prosecuch-e effortS. 1'his e£tC:ttshouid 
include the n~iy established f..:iIo,' Eniorcemerlt 
Coordin:tting .Committees (LECC) and other recog· 
nized processes cre:tted to provide mutu:li fedeo1. 
State :md loc:1l assistance. 

e Go\-emors·should encourage'5t:lte and lOCI! prosecu. 
tors to assume le:1dership in the de\-elopment and 
coordination of priority drug irwestigati\'7 efforts and 
prioric:-' prosecution =tegies. and U1'6e Implem~t:1. 
tion of speci:ll judici:ll processes th:1t gu:u:mtee f:lir 
and speedy adjudic:ttion of malor drug c:LSeS. 

Flsc:IlImpact " jb'l" 
Direct 5t:lte jurisdiction o\-er prosecution respons I lUes 
v:II\' from 5t:lte to5t:lte. 'X'here c:tteer crimin:ll progr:uns 
ha\~ been implemenled throughout the 5t:lte. m:tior drug 
ClSeS should be handled on ·the same. e:'P~lted b:tSis :IS 
:I "'':IV of est:tblishing priorities :tnd mlnImlzmg e:tpendi· 
cures :L5.."OCiated "'ith prosecUtion. This effort should 
include de\-e!opment :md implement.:uion of procedures 
for handling pro5ec"Jtion of both I.:areer cnm!n:tl and 
m:llOr drug tr.Uficking Cl.SeS on :I p~Onty b:lSlS. ~bere 
prosecution is a shared responslblil~' of the st:lle and 
10Cl1 go\-emments. :til le\'els should ",'Ork together to 
e:tpedite the prosecution of oreer cnml,?1s :tnd ~g 
toiticking =5. ~10St 'O&S :lSSQCJ:lted ""th :I .n= 
emph:tSiS on the prosecution of drug = "'111 be for 
personneL 

8 Need for Coordination of 
Efforts of I.ocal Agencies 

There is geneolh' no mechanism to pro\ide for 
loc:tL SJ:lte :lgencies to pool (heir resources and work 
toge:her on common drug J:IrgeCS. Eqc:ipped "'ith the 
necessary legisl::!tion. :lgencies can dr:lft co~~l . 
agreements to effect "jOint force oper:ttl~~ or m~n:=11 
aid paCts" co e:tpand resource and Jurisdictional :tbliltles 
to 3ttlck drug opeoth-es. 

Recomme"ndadoD 
The \-:ulous 5t:lte5 should consider de\-elopment of .. 
nece:s.sar'l legislation to de\-elop a "mutual :nd ~'&em, • 
wherebv' law enforcement :tgencies can cont!:lcru:Llly JOin 
together and pool their knoy--1edge, resourc~ :trid skills 
toward in\1:Stlgati\'ely :ttr:ICldng drug smuggling net\\'Orks. 

Implement:WoQ Strategy 

C The Go\-emors should consider. :IS referenced in the 
legisl::!ti\-e reform section. the de\-elopment of "munta1 
aid" legisl::!t!on ro ensuc-e that the ~w enforcement 
agencies "'ithin and 3p1ong the \':In?~ st:Ite5 can 
contr:IctU:Ill,' join together to effect 10lnt force 
opet:JtionS.· " 

e The Go\-emors should:ensuc-e that \he te:1d St:lte \:tI-.. 
.enforcement agenq coordin:ttes ""th 10ClI \;!.w 
enforcement :lgencies so that their o~ort1l CO? 
cerns and initiath-es ~ effecti\'ely coordirtlted WIth 
feder:tl wk force ~orts. 

Fi5cIJ Impact . 
De\-elopment of "mutll:ll :lid" ~'Sterns "'ill reqU!n::l 
dediotion of time by e:dsting personnel and mmlm:ll 
suppo rt resources. 

Additiorua.l Presidential Initiatives 
In :ldditlon to the recommendations m:tde b~' the 
President th:1C h:l\-e been included in the pre\ious 
di.scussions. the {ollo"'ing presldenti:ll initiatives are also 
\'I,'Orth~' of strong support by the :-iGA. 

e The: President h:tS ClI1ed for a C:iliinec·le\-el Committee 
on Orl!:tnized Crime. ch:tired by the .>.nome\· GeneoL 
to re\i~' and coordinate ail fedeol etTorts :igainst 
organized crime. 

C The President ha,; requested that the .>.nomey General 
prepare an :ulnU:1l repott to the .>.mencan people to 
report on progress and needs in the drug fighL 

e The President h:tS requested th:lt :ldditional prison and 
jail space be pro\;ded to meet the need Clused by the 
=tion of the t\\'e!\'e wk forces. 

e The PreSident recommends that emph:lSis be pl:u:ed 
on toming of !it:lte and 10ClI la",' enforcement 
personnel. 
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BY 

JAMES B. ADAHS 

DIRECTOR 

TEXAS DEPARTNENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 

Chairman Rangel and distinguished members of this committee, I wish 

to thank you for the opportunity to present my testimony today re

gardil1g the drug trafficking and drug abuse trends in Texas. 

The Texas Department of Public Safety through its Narcotics Service 

has been and is currently committed to reducing drug trafficki.ng in 

Texas and the United States. Over the past several years, Texas law 

enforcement officials have seC'n a change in dnlg trafficking trends 

within the State. Although the changes have not been deemed drastic, 

they have caused la\~ enforcement officers to alter their enforcement 
efforts to some extent. 

Harihuana smugglers continue to utilize land vehicles. general aviation 

aircraft and marine vessels to import marihuann into Texas. One gradual 

change deals with the land smugglers bringing marihuana across the bor

der in private vehicles, In the past, it lVas not uncommon to seize 100 _ 

300 pounds of marihuana from the trunk of n smuggle~s vehicle entering 

Texas. Today, however, the trend seems to be for smugglers to break 

up larger loads and utilize more vehicles, Seizures made from private 

vehicles now yield only 25 - 50 pounds of marihuana in each vehicle. 

This may be an attempt by smugglers to reduce their losses resulting 

from seizures and to avoid recently passed legislation which provided 

stiff, mandatory sentences for persons convicted of trafficking in 
large quantities of narcotics. 

South Texas continu.es to playa signi.ficant role in marihuana smuggling 

by general aviation aircraft. Huch of the marihuana smuggled into Texas 

is accomplished through the use of general aviation aircraft. Because 

of its close proximity to Hexico. and because of its vast, sparsely 

populated counties, South Texas provides air smugglers a safe place to 

land for refueling and/or offlonding of its contraband cargo, This 

refueling or offloading segment of the smuggling op\~ratibn can normally 

be completed in approximately I':en minutes and for this reason, often 

goes undetected. During 1982, a total of 36 marihuana laden aircraft 

we:re seized by law enforcement agencies throughout Texas, In addition. 

10 marihuanc" related air crashes were reported. The first 10 months of 
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1983 have yielded 25 drug related aircraft seizures and 3 drug related 

air crashes in Texas. Our State has an extensive land border with 

Mexico, a major source country for marihuana, and the majority of this 

border is untouched by radnr. As long as this condition exists, the 

. smuggling of marihuana by general aviation aircraft is going to continue 

to be a major problem for Texas law enforcement officials and the State's 

citizens. 

LB\~ enforcement agencies in Texas have been concerned that the multi

agency enforcement effort in Florida would cause the marine smugglers 

to shift their operations to the Western Gulf of Mexico, including Texas 

and Louisiana. During 1983, 2 vessels were seized off the Texas coast 

for transporting marihuan;l. Thus far in ]983, an additional 2 vessels 

have been seized attempting to import the drug. It is believed that 

more vessel seizures could be made if additional law enforcement man

power and resources were made available to support a stronger law en

forcement effort in this area. The shift of drug trafficking operations 

from Florida to Texas has been especially evident in the trafficking of 

cocaine. In. only the past 2 months, two separate seizures have yielded 

approximately 140 pounds of cocuinl! Reized in Texas. This abundant 

supply of cocaine has also been supported by the simultaneous drop in 

the price of cocaine while the percentage of purity remains high. 

One of the most significant trends set in recent years has been the 

emergence of clandestine laboratories being operated throughout Texas. 

Texas, for the third straight year, ranks first in the nation in the 

number of clandestine laboratory seizures. This statistic is evidence 

of the fact that Texas also leads the nation in the amount of illegal 

drugs being manufactured. During 1982, 19 laboratories manufacturing 

illegal drugs were put out of operation by the Department of Public 

Safety in cooperation with other police agen('ies. Through October, 1983, 

24 clandestine laboratories have been seized and reported to our Depart

ment. In 1983 alone, Inethamphetamine and amphetamine valued at over 

6 million dollars has been seized from these illegal laboratories. 

Chemicals and laboratory equipment present at these sites provided 

the capabilities of producing many times that amount of illegal drugs 

had the laboratories not been seized. It too, is important to point 
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out that the figures only reflect seizures in which the Department of 

Public Safety was involved. Seizures made by other agencies working 

w2,t,hout assistance from the Department make actual seizure amounts 

much greater • 

Although the quantity of marihuana seized in recent years in Texas 

has not increased significantly, the quality or T.H.C. content of 

marihuana being seized has increased dramatically. This is due pri

marily to improved cultivation techniques being utilized by growers 

both abroad and especially here in Texas. Domestically gro~l mari

huana has been on the increase in Texas recently, a trend already 

established in other states such as california, Oklahoma and Hawaii. 

Thus far in 1983, 36,272 marihuana plants have been eradicated by 

Texas law enforcement authorities. These marihuana plants were lo

cated in 88 separate plots found in 55 Texas counties. A total of 

94 suspects involved in this domestic marihuana cultivation have 

been arrested in 1983. The Department of Public Safety continues to 

cooperate with other enforcement agencies (state, federal and local) 

in an attempt to identify domestic marihuana suspects and to discover 

the illegal marihuana fields. Our Department has combined manpower 

and resources with the National Forest Service and the Drug Enforce

ment Adminil:1i:i:!l:tiun in dealing with this problem. An intense program 

was conducted during 1983 in Texas which utilized Department aircraft 

to fly many aerial surveillance missions covering thousands of acres 

of national forests and other Texas lands in an attempt to locate and 

eradicate additional marihuana fields. 

The Triplicate P~escription Program was established by the Texas 

Legislature in 1981 as a method for controlling the diversion of 

legitimate drugs into the illegal market. In 1982, the first year 

of the program, statistics indicate that there was a 48% reduction 

in Schedule II prescriptions written in Texas. In the first 9 months 

of 1983, an additional 13% reduction has been noted. This reduction 

in prescriptions written is deemed to have made a significant impact 

on the diversion problem which touches not only South Texas but the 

entire state. 

35-584 0-84--25 
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Drug abuse is thl? non-medical use of any drug, in such a way that it 

adversely affe~ts some aspects of the user's life. Drug abuse is 

deemed by many as the most serious criminal and social problem facing 

,the nation and the State of Texas. Research conducted by the U. S. 

'De~~rtment c: Bealth and Human Services estimates that 27% of our 

12 - 17 year aIds have tried marihuana while 6l,% of our 18 - 2-.5 year 

old:; havt' tried the drtlg. Approximately 90% of all heroin users be

gan their drug experiences with the use of marihuana, the "gateway" 

drug. The declining student scores on national education tests in

dicate that drug use, among other factors, has affected the students' 

desire and ability to learn. The long-term effects of the drug abuse 

situation are much more critical in that often drug abusers fail to 

become productive citizens and o.ften .leech off of ,society in. an attempt 

to support. thefr drug habits. Research conducted by the Department of 

Justice in 1979 reflects that 'one-third of state prison inmates were 

under the influence, of an illegal drug 1~hen they coml'litted the crime 

for which they were serving their sentences. Approximately 78% of 

the inmates surveyed admitted having abused drugs at some time in their 

lives. This research also' indicated !:hat 25% of all burglaries and 20% 

of all robberies .and 50% of all drug offenses were committed while 

under the influence of marihu.ana. App,rl'lximately 12~~ of all robberies 

and 10% of all larcenies were committed while under the influence;of 

heroin. Additional research results indicate that one-half of the 

inmate population surveyed had been daily drug users at some point 

in their lives, while 40% of the inmates admitted to a recent use of 

drugs on a daily basis. These significant statistics indicate that 

there is a definite relationshi'; between drug usage and c:rime. 

The drug awareness and' abuse prevention ef"£·)rt in 'Texas has been 

maintained statewide by the l'exans' tolar oil Drugs Committee in cooperation 

with organized civic groups and state and local law enforcement agencies. 

Thil> dedicated group has been successful in reaching many' parents, teach

ers and our youth and providing them with scientific findings regarding 

drug abuse. The Texans' War on Drugs Committee has !,olicited and re

ceived active participation and suppor!: from thes!,! con.cerned citizens 

across the state in the fight against dnlg abuse. 

Thank you. 
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TEXAS GOVERNOR'S OFFICE 

.f.R!!!.INAL JUSTICE DIVISION ACTIVITU:S TO Cet.1BAT 
NARCOTICS AND DANGEROUS DRUGS TRAFFICKING 

IN TEXAS GU_LF tOAST AREA 

PRESENTED TO: U.S. HOUSE SELECT CONMITTEE ON NARCOTICS ABUSE AND CONTROL 
CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS 

DECE~1BER 13, 1983 
BY MR. FRED LEE 

The scope and significance of the involvement of organized crime in 

drug trafficking has been established in all areas of the state. In an 

effort to assist metropol itan areas wi th special ized units to combat 

organized crime and control drug problems~ the ~overnor's Office through 

the Criminal Justice Division has provided financial assistance designed 

to increase the effectiveness of multl·-agency 0 . ~ . rganlze.l crlme, narcotics, 
and dangerous drug co~trol units. 

During FY'84, 9/1/83 - 8/31/84, the Criminal Justice Division will 

fund eleven multi-agency organized crime control units and two narcotic 

enforcement units. In addition, this Division has provided funds to the 

Department of Public Safety to support the Electronic Surveillance of Drug 

Traffickers, and funds to Drug Abuse Research and Education Foundation, 

Inc. (DARE) to support the very successful Texans Har on Drugs Project. 

r'lulti-agency organized crime control units in FY'84 will be funded 

in the total amOl1nt of $1,748,986. Four of the funded multi-agency 

orgdnize( ~rime units are in the Texas Gulf Coast area. These m~lti

agency organized crime and narcotic units have all been active for more 

tilan ten years and all have establ ished outstanding records. 
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The funded multi-agency orgainzed crime units in the Texas Gulf 

c.oast area are th(! Harris County Organi zed Crime Uni t, the Corpus 

Christi Organized Crime Unit, the Galveston County Organized Crime 

Unit, and the Cameron County Organized Crime Unit. For FY ' 81 and FY ' 82 

the four funded multi-agency organized crime units in the Texas Gulf 

Coast area recovered stolen property valued at approximately $11,200,000, 

seized contraband valued at more than $84,000,000 and made 998 felony 

arrests. Most of the felony arrests were for narcotic violations. 

The Harris County Organized Crime Unit (funded in FY 1983 for 

$188,612) during nine months of grant period had reco~eries of stolen 

property valued at more than $4,500.000, seized contraband street-valued 

at almost $6,000,000, and made 189 felony arrests; Corpus Christi 

(funded in FY 1983 for $124,641) for. six months of grant period recovered 

stolen property valued at $73,250, seized contraband street-valued at 

$120,945 and made eighty felony arrest; the Cameron County Organized 

Crime Unit (funded in FY 1983 for $86,912) during nine months of grant 

recovered stolen property valued at $433,000, seized contraband street

valued in excess of $3,000,000, and made 75 felony arrests; and the 

Galveston County Organized Crime Control Unit (funded in FY 1983 for 

$126,268) recovered stolen property valued at $1,068,472, seized 

contraband street-valued at $4,985,473, and mad~ 165 felony arrests. 

CJD has supported the Electronic Surveillance of Drug Traffickers 

.1Jrin,] the pl'!riod n/31/31 to 3/J1/'34 .lith g"ants to DPS in the a .. lOunt 

of 51,164,674. The current ~rant to DPS to support the electronic 

sur":ei11ance of drug traffickers is in the amount of $364,515. 

--~--~ ---~ ----
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In the fourth year of funding by CJD is a grant to the Drug Abuse 

Research and Education Foundation, Inc. (DARE). Current year funding 

for support to DARE is $375,760. DARE has a regional office at Universal 

City, Texas that serves the Texas Gulf Coast area. DARE directs its 

efforts to reduce drug abu se by \~orki ng ~Ii th juveni 1 es, pa rents, 1 aw 

enforcement groups, PTA, teachers, and servi ce organi zati ons to conduct. 

programs to reduce and control drug related problems. 

In addition to the indicated specific drug l"elated programs supported 

by CJD, support to an Auto Strike Force at Brownsville and a Burglary Task 

Force at Corpus Christi are examples of projects connected with drug 

related crime. Also funded by CJD is specialized law enforcement training 

that is available to narcotic officers. 

Development of strategies and techniques to control drug smuggling 

and trafficking in Texas, especially in the Texas Gulf Coast where a 

large percent of controlled substances enter the state, is a major concern 

of Governor \Jhite and his administration. Funds available to the Criminal 

Justice Division will continue to be prioritized to give maximum support 

to law enforcement agencies dedicated to the control of drug smuggling 

and trafficking. 
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RICHARD HARTLEY 

A Description Profile of 
'!he ilruq Offender in 

the Texas Depart:IIel.lt of,C;~ons 

'Ihank you, Mr. Cllail:man for inviting rle to speak before this dis

tinguished carmi.ttee. '!be Texas Depart:imnt of Cor.rections cq::preciates the 

0!;PJrt1mi.t:y to share infonnation with you on this very iltpJrtant issUe. 

'!be Depart:mmt of Corrections is the ~ in ~. charged with the 

respons:ibility of incarcerating cxmvicted apult felons. 

'!be mission of the Texas Department o~ Corr!:!ctions (TOC) is mandated 

by Article 6166 of V&nen's Texas Civil. Statutes. '!be law requires that 
i : ..... ; .. 

m: manage a Irodem prison system for the citizens of Texas in ~rdance . 

with prescribed law and policies set by the Texas Board of cOrrectiais. 

It is the policy of the Oepartm:mt to huranely seCure ccmnitbn felons, 

achieve self-sufficiency to the extent poss:ible' through proograns. of '-«>rk 

and to provide pr;og:LdUS of trea1:Ilent offerinq CJRX)1'tunities for refonna

tien. 

Currently, the imate ~tion of the nepart:nent nmi:lers jUst aver 

36 ,000. 'nlese inmates are housed in twenty-six ~te CDrrectional 

facilities spread t:hl:ougOOut the Fast and Southeast portion of the state. 

In Texas, as found aaOss the·country,· aany of the off~ incar

cerated are ccnfined due at least in Part to an involvement- in illegal 

drugs. 

Recently :tel.eased results of a national survey comucted by the. 

Bureau of Justice Statistics (BJS), a bratdl of the U.S. ~tof 

Justice, seem to indicate that aver half of the innates 'I'CM ocnfined in 

;ms nation's prisons were usin; drugs ~ the m:nth prior to carmit

tin; their om:ent offense. In Texas priscns, estimates irdicate that 

about 80 r.ercent of the innate ~tion -.have ~tted histories 

of drug ~cy or addiction:md/ oralCl.:lOOl ablse. '!he 
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plrpOse of this pres~tation· is to outline the characteristi.cs or the 

drug offender in the Texas DepartlIent of eor.r:ections (TOC) and to ; 

examine the progians utilized for trea1:Ilent. '!be scoPe of the problem 

will be discussed first, follCMed by a description profilin:r the 

imlate wOO is incarcerated as a direct resultbf drug invol~t.; '!be 

third topic I will present is the results of an intensive review of a 

.randan sanple of drug offeOOe.rs"in T!X!. '!be final portion of this 

presentation examines the treatnent progranlprovided for substance 

abuser:;;. 

:rh any examination of the relationship between drug use and crimi:" 

nal. activity, accurate statistics are diffic:uJ.t to obtain. r-t:lst statis

tics are the result of self-reported data, so the validity of the firxi

ings depends entinily ur::on the truthfulness, of the person reporling. As 

,; a general rule, one would expect that self-report figures are probably 
'" . 
• conservative as semi! persa!S may be reluctant to repOrt use of an illegal 

substance. 

AlDtller problem is encountered whe.,." att:atpt:inC] to ident:ify the offender 

who is engaged in criminal. activity due to his involvement in drug use. It 

is a fairly simple matter to extract the ntll1ber of 'innates Who are ~ 

cerated as a direct result of drug involvement (i.e., tOOse cOnvicted of 

poissession ,or sale or manufacture of drugs). Much I1Dre difficult is the 

_ identification of those inmates cxnv:icted of other'ccim=s (robbery, b.u:glaxy, 

etc.) as 'an indirect result of drug involvenent '(i.e., rc:tlbers who rob to 

~ a drug addiction) • 

'!be March' 1983 Bulletin Of ,tM ..BIJl::e;o1.~of Justice StatisticS rel.eased 
I ..' ',.' 

the results of a natie~~-.:.:.~..:r-..;.:::'""~b..:.\ .. ~$on imlates.. '!be results of 

this self-report survey il'xiicate that the oonnect:i.on between drug abuse 

'. -r , " 
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and ~ activity continues to be strong. M:lre than half of the state 

prisoners surveyed said they had taken illegal drugs in the ITOnth prior 

to cc:mni.~ the cr:iJre. Sa!e of the significant fi.ndi.ngs of this survey 

were: 

. tted whil under the influence • Half of all drug Off~ were camu. e 

of d%ugs. 

• ~tely 25 percent of all burglaries and 20 percent of all 

:rotberles were cxmnitted UDler the influence of trarijuana. 

J :About 12 percent of all :rotberles and 10 percent of all larcenies 

'were catmitted under the influence of heroin. 

tioned had used drugs at sane t:iJre o 78 percent of the inmates ques . 

in their lives. 

• About half of the imates had ~,daily drug users at sane !?Oint 

in their lives, with nearly 40 percent having recently used drugs 

em. a daily basis. 

In Texas, 52,091 drug an:eSts aCCCWlted for allTOst six percent (5.96%) 

of all reported arrests in 1982. Most of the arrests were for possession 

of drugs (91.9%). Only 8.1 percent of the cu:rests were for the sale of 

drugs. Marijuana arrests accounted for over 70 percent of the cu:rests. 

Data fran the first six m:mths of 1983 indicate that the nmi:ier of arrests 

far sale of drugs has incz:eased slightly (CCJl1?OS~ 9.1 percent of all drug 

arrests). Arrests for the sale and possession of drugs have contributed 

heavily to the caseload upcn TelI:as courts. 

'!'he Amlual. Report far 1982 published by the Texas JOOicial Systan 

mtes that drug cases cx:aprise 10.9 percent of all criminal cases added to 

District Courts and 9." of all ,cdminal cases handled by County Courts. 

1/ 
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Of 9,555 District Court cases haOOled, cxmv;i.ctions resUlted in 5,948 cases: 

there were 64 acquittals: and, 3,543 cases were dismissed. Over 2,000 

cases resulted in 'In:: convictions. A CImllative total 38,457 years of 'In:: 

or jail t:iJre was assessed in 2,375 cases (an average sent:eB:e per case of 

16.2 years). 

At! the County Court level, 47,843 druq related cases were on the 

docket resulting in 15.401 o:nvictions, 116 acquittals, 12 ,156 dismissals 

and 436 other dispa;itions. 19,734 cases were still perx1:i.n;r in County 

Court ~t the end of '1982 • 

~ 1982, a ,total of 1,497 :imates were admitted to 'In:: for drug 

offenses. nus figrJre represents 8.97 ~t of all admissions to 'In:: 

in 1982. '1bese:imates include only those incarcerated as a direct 

result of their druq invol.VE!tlent. ~tely 75 percent of the adnis,-:_ 

'sicBs were 25 years of age or older. 

On NoverCer 29, 1983, there were 2,197 drug offeOOers on harxi in 'In::. 

''!'he drug C?ffeOOers cx:uprised 6.1% of the total 'In:: pqa;Watiem.. '!be Gulf 

Coast Area' acx::oonted for 1,024 (46.6%) of the offerK3ers: East Texas oon

tributed 513 (23.4%); South Texas 324 offenders (14.7%); west Texas sent. 

204 (9.3%); Central·Texas 76 (3.5%); and, North Texas 56 (2:5%). 

'l\.'el. ve characteristics were cix>sen to use in developing a profile 

of the drug offender in 'In::. 'lbe twelve characteristics are age, sex, 

race, marital status, religious preference, educaticm.al achievement 

score, I.Q. score, m"1r:imJm .J.er.gt:.'J. -of sentence, 'nlmtler of prior Conf~ 

IlE!nts in 'In::, prior row~~1!.;-id!.:!l8!t~-.....=~.::isons, prior confinements in. 

refonnatories ,1 aOO Ill.IIiJer or probated sentences. 

~" 
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O1aracteristic S!mnal:y 

'!be charact:eristics of ~ offender in 'roC as a direct result of 

drug involvement (usually for possession,. sale or manufacture of 

illegal drugs) inclica~. that these innates, tend to be older (33.8 years) 

male inrrates. The offenders are predaninately white or hispanic innates 

who are or had been m:p:ried, and ~ ~s .~ preference for either 

protestant or catholic chw;ches. The offenders generally have a seventh 

grade educational ~evem:mt level' and tend to score in the lower em 
of the, notmal range in I.Q. ~ are se:r:vinq sentences of less than 

I 
10 ~ and have been ccnfined in'IDC at least,once previously. '!be 

large majority of the drugoffeIX1ers have ~ pl4ce on probation at 

least one time prior to incarceration in .'roC. ' 

'Ibis profile tends to !em sUPport to ,the .uJea that drug invol~t 

is a life-long habit resulting in clu:onic cxmtact wi~ law enforcement 

, agencies, the coorts.,and correcti~. 

!EX; ~ SAMPLE DATA 

In 0J:der to obtain further insight into the drug offeIX1er profile, 

a randan sanple of drug offenders in TOC was' select?d. The. 59 innate ' 

sa!!pl.e c::at'pared favorably with the general drug offender p:!pUlation in 

all major damgraphic areas and was thus fOUI¥i to be a ~entative ' 

Simple. 

A search and review of the record .. stmnaI:y card on irma~ in the 

sarrple revealed that IIDSt of the innates in the SiEple had a histmy of 

drug involvement extending back several years. About 80 percent of the 

drug p:>ssession arrests, apd 60 percent reported a hist:qry of selling \ , 

-------~ ---
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drugs. Records also revealed that mst users began in the teens and 

early twenties, with aduitted addiC't:ic:!i~ ~ the ~ of 23 (ant:ID;J the 

24 percent who admitted an addiction}. 

Arrest reamls reveal that the majority of the imlates bad been 

m::rested about 3 tiIoos for drug-related offenses, 3 times £orproperty 

related ccimes and 3 times for ccimes of violence. About 8.6 ,percent 

of the SlJIIl)le was ~ted for nultiple offenses. Theft, burqlary, 

~ion, delivery of a controlled substance, burglary of a mqtor 

vehic19 and forgery were cxmtDn offenses ~t often found as nultiple 

offenses. 

'!be' major portion of the offenders were in 'IDC asa result of. a con

vict.:ial an a charge of p:>Ssession (64 percent). The remainJer were iJrar-, 

aerated as a result of sale ordistril:uti~ (45 percent). ~ that sate 

0Yerl.appin;J of offenses occurs with these offenders (Le., sane may have 

currant offenses for both the p:>Ssession and ~ or a drug). 

'!be IIDSt ocmoc:nly used drug by far, was marijuana. Nearly 83 per-. . 
cent of the 5aII\lle used .heroini 29 percent a:x:aine; 27 .5 percent meth

~; and, 2l percent barbituates. 

'mE 'rOC AI.CX>8JLISM/DRlG PRX>RAM 

'!be 'rOC Alooholisnv'Drug Proqram provides a treat;meIit program for 

~ abusers incarcerated within TOC. Because of the s:im:i.larities 

and quite often, the overlappin; of the prdJlems of alcoholism and drug 

dependency/abuse, the TOC program is directed towards both the alc:d1olic 

am the drug addict. Estimates in:li.cate that approximately 80 percent 

of the TOC innate populatial is in prison either .d:i:r.-:t- IV or .indirectly 

because of alcohol and/or drug dependency. Thirty cc:unselors arxi two 

Supervisin] Counselors are authorized and assigned to 'roC units to pro-
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vide counseling ~ces designed to assist chemically-deperx21t imlates 

orient themselves in a dh'ecticn free of the influence of alcohol an:1 drugs. 

'!be major elenents of the program are Alcoholics AnclnyI'oclUS (M) neet

ings (which in 'nx: include. druq users), therapeutic group counseling 

sessions, alcohol an:1 drug education an:1 study sessions, individual coun-
, , 

sel.iDI, pre-release prtJgL&IS an:1 unit orientations. '!be overall goal of 

the Alcoholism,lDrug Program is to encourage the client to reject previous 

negative behaviors an:1 attitudes, devel"P nore mature behaviors ana. nore 

satisfying and realistic value systems 1 thus creat.in;J a greater sense of 

peLScnal WOl.i:h within the individual and CXII1CIlL'l:eIly reducing or 

eliminating alcohol/drug dependency. 

'!be program is designed to ll'Ctivate participants tcwaLd al~tives 

resp:ase styles to alcohol/drug abuse, ~,eJItlhasizes performance of 

stated behavioral objectives. 

'!be trea'bnent enviraInent is relatively strucblre:l, and one in which 

clients are enccuraged to work ~t their own pace to achieve successive 

levels of deVP..lopnent. Each activity in the program is ~ to pro

llDI:e specific skills that may be generalized to work, social, and persCDal 

areas both in end rut of prison. 

'!be objectives of the prtJgL&1l are: 

• To assist participants in adj~ to life Within the Texas 

Department of Corrections, in gain:i.n;J inteLper5a'lal skills an:1 

self control, and tlms, real.izin;r fewer disciplinary problems 

than mn-participants. 

• To esq;lhasize alternative means of handl.iJ:KJ those situations which 

in tile past have led to alcobol/dnx.! .al:11..~',.he!i'~'::9L'S. 

• To help pa..-ticipants realize they have choices in selecting 

I 

1 
i 

, 
1\ 

I 
;1 

:) 

" 

I 
g 

I 

I 

385 

respcnses to situations. 

• To instill in participants an aversicn to alcobol/druq abuse. 

• To eJItlhasize productive use of leisure time. 

• To help familiarize imate clients with camunity coping skills. 

• To provide CWJLtunities for gradual asstlIlption of personal 

:responsibility by the participants., 

• To help ensure client fCl!liliarity·with the moral and social 

aspects of drug abuse, and the legal canse::tue.nces of such abuse. 

~ 

'lb! 'nx: AlcohoJ.isnv'DLuq PLogLam ('10.) is furrled in a large part by 

efforts of the Texas Ccmnission of Alcoholistit ('10.) F\.u'dinq for the 'nx: 

ptOgL&n is obtained by the 'D and transferred to the Department of 

Corrections for the sole purpose of operating the Alccholism/Drug Program. 

'1his ft..um.nq is a\9IlE!f1ted by additional furdin;r by the Department of 

_ Can:ections. In EY '84 the '10. is pLOirl,ding $604,649 and in EY '85 

$613,513 of pr:inm:y i\mdi.ng. 

Pl:ogram Participants 

In late 1980 and early 1981 the 'lOC Alcobolism/Drug Program and 

representatives of Sam !blstal State University's Cr.iminal Justice Center , 

conducted a catprehensive SI.lL'Vl:W of the pLOgriSll participants. Many of the 

findings of the survey parallel fimings by the Bureau of Justice Statis

tics sw:vey discussed earlier. Results of this sw:vey indicate: 

• Oller cne-third (37%) of the program participants were using 

alcohol at the time of or just prior to the offense for which they 

were SE'.rvlng time. lS% were using alcohol and'pills; 20% using 

al.cobol and marijuana. 
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• ~y 30% said their criIne was not the result of drug or alcohol use. 

• 42% of the participants c.la:iJn that the criIne was amnitted to 

support their alcohol or drug aa:liction. 

• Allrost half (47% of thepaiti.cipantsreported that there was never 

a t.:ine when they were a:i::resteCI.·when they had not been drink:ing 

or using chu;s. 

!mate Intervi(&~ 

Ifterviews with sample irmates were con:iucted a'7 nine prison units. 

. .. ~:-......... "'---"-. ,~-~ ...... rrore about: the IOOtivation for 'lhe :i.nterViE!l<l was ~"""'.,.,.... .\OOuwcu' ...................... ." •. • 

~ involvanent am the extent of treatIrentprCYLdr4 invol~t;. 

The majority of the ~ (~2 peLCent) considered themselves to be 

drug users ally. 27 percent considered them;~ves to be both drug uqers .. ~ . 
and drug dealers. Nearly l4percent cal.l.ed, themselv:es ally a dealer. ~ 

remaining 7 percent .of the. SCII1?le ca:lSidered ~elves involved to such 

. an extent in chu;s that they used, sold, am manufactured them. Of those 

irmates who considered themselves dealers or manufacturers of chu;s, over 

aoe-thinl (38 percent) reported their dea.l.:in;J an:l/ar manufacturing was 

~ S1.lppOrti bruur dl:Ug use habit. 

'lhe primaJ:y reasal cited far drug involvanentby the imiates inter

v:i.ewed was peer groop pressure. About 64 }?el:cent of the group cited the 

influence and· presSure of frieros as CXJe of the reasons for getting 

involved with chu;s. The secood rank:i.n; reason far drug iilvo~verent was 

experiIrentatian (45 pex:c:ent). Nearly 39 percent reported that the need 

far m::mey contril:Juted to their drug involvanent. Only 9 percent reported 

that ~ heme enviLUlIeut i:xI'ltributed to their drug inVolvanent. Other 

reasons cited included "baredan"; "sc:methinq to do"; "need to keep goi:Iq~" 
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and "need to stay awake". . 
OVer forty percent of the drug offemers interviewed report:ej that 

their drug involvenent led them to camdt other violations of the law. 

'!be roost frequently ~rted law violation was buLglary. '.!his offense 

was follO'lIed by robbery, shop~, car theft and forgery. 

i'Ilen questioned about the progression of their drug involvenent, 

I'i'DSt of the sample reported an initial use of marijuana (and SCl'Mt:ines 

alCXlOOl) which gradually led to the use of other drugs. Sate reported 

that the pc:pul.arity of certain drugs (particularly, cocaine) was part 

of a drug changed, the use changed as well. 

Mlst. of the innates in the saI;lle had never been a participant in 

a drug treatJrent progrcmt prior to their 'IOC :incarceration. Only II per_ 

cent of the sanple reported participation ~ the 'rOC Alcohol.i..sm;DKUg 

P%op:am. ~e Ill:lSt camr:mJ.y cited ~ifar not. being in the program 
, . 

was a. feeling that they did not need any help • 

Each. of the inmates interviewed ~ given opportunity tb share 

thoughts on making people rrore aware of the drug situaticn. Several 

Lepresentative themes were found in these a::rtlOOnts: 

• Drug use is rrore extensive than rrost parents realize. 

• Drug use leads to "bad news n a,ll the way ciround. Other people 

~ hurt by it and loss of contact with the "real worldn makes 

canin;r down even worse. "The highs are not worth the lows." 

• Marijuana use does lead to other drugs, not so II1lCh by a natural 

pt'Og'ression alene, but by associating yourself with other drug 

users in an env:lrorment ripe for experlnentation and fads. 

"Marijuana is a step in the wmDtJ<~Jon. _~1 ~.an buy it with 

ya:&r allCMance. n 

• Eciucaticn of yoong children in school as to the CCI'lSeqUences of 

drug use is ~ ~t tool far cari:latting drug abuse. 

A detailed repxt on drug offenders in 'IOC is now being COIpiled 

So.."\Ii should be availabl~ to nenbers of this camrl. ttee upon carpletion. 

cn:e again, I wcuJ.d like to ~ a~ation for the.invitation to 

speak be£ore th.is ccmni.ttee. Please feel free to contact us fit ~ time 

if we can be of assistance. 
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